

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
 MEETING AGENDA 


CITY COUNCIL 
 


Roy Swearingen, Mayor  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Mayor Pro Tem 


Peter Murray, Council Member 
Vincent Salimi, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 


 


TUESDAY 
NOVEMBER 17, 2020 


VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE  
  


6:00 P.M.  
The public portion of the agenda will be heard immediately following  


the conclusion of the Closed Session items. 
 


 
DUE TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA’S DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY – THIS 
MEETING IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO AUTHORIZATION FROM GOVERNOR 


NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDERS – CITY COUNCIL AND COMMISSION MEETINGS ARE 
NO LONGER OPEN TO IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  


 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS TO CITY CLERK BEFORE OR DURING THE MEETING VIA EMAIL  


hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 
Comments received before the close of the public comment period for that item will be read into 
the record and limited to 3 minutes.  Please include your full name, city of residence and agenda 
item you are commenting on.  Any comments received after the close of the public comment 
period will be distributed to Council and relevant staff after the meeting and filed with the agenda 
packet . 


WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 
 


LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 
schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.   
 
VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  and remain archived on the site for five 
(5) years. 
 
If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, please 
contact the City Clerk, Heather Iopu at (510) 724-8928 or hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us . 
 
Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable  
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 
Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  You may also contact the 
City Clerk via e-mail at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us . 


Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds and 
declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public agencies in this 
State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of the law that their 
actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  The people of this State 
do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  The people, in delegating 
authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what is good for the people to know 
and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on remaining informed so that they may 
retain control over the instruments they have created. 


CORONAVIRUS ADVISORY 
INFORMATION: 
 
CLICK HERE for City Updates 
 
CLICK HERE for County Updates 


1 of 611



mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us

http://pinoleca.hosted.civiclive.com/city_government/coronavirus

https://www.coronavirus.cchealth.org/





Pinole City Council  
Agenda –November 17, 2020 
Page 2 


1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS


2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 


3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   


A. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL—ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
Gov. Code § 54956.9(d)(2) or (d)(3) 
Number of Potential Cases:  1 


B. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
Pursuant to Gov. Code § 54956.8 
Property:  401-120-035 for 2100 San Pablo Avenue, The Faria House 
Agency negotiator:  City Manager Andrew Murray and Assistant City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa,  
Negotiating parties:  Pinole History Museum 
Under negotiation:  Terms  


4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION


5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments)
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 


6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS


A. Proclamations


B. Presentations / Recognitions 


7. CONSENT CALENDAR
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of September 15, 2020 


B. Receive the October 31, 2020 – November 13, 2020 List of Warrants in the 
Amount of $581,934.04   and the November 13, 2020 Payroll in the Amount of 
$407,166.63 


2 of 611







City Council 
Agenda – November 17, 2020 
Page 3 


C. Confirm Existence of Continued Local Emergency [Action:  Adopt Resolution per 
Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 


D. Receive The Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 First Quarter Financial Report And Adopt 
A Resolution Approving Budget Adjustments [Action: Receive Report and Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Murray)] 


E. Receive The Quarterly Investment Report For The Quarter Ending September 
30, 2020 [Action: Receive and File Report (Murray)] 


F. Adopt A Resolution Approving A Compensation And Benefits Plan For 
Management And Confidential Employees [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (Murray)] 


G. Exclusive Negotiating Rights Agreement With Satellite Affordable Housing 
Associates To Develop Affordable Housing At 811 San Pablo Avenue [Action: 
Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 


H. Adopt A Resolution Authorizing Adoption of The California Department Of 
Transportation (Caltrans) “Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 
10 – Consultant Selection” And Amending The Procurement Policy To 
Incorporate This Requirement [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (Miller)] 


8. PUBLIC HEARINGS
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 


A. Hazel Street Subdivision, Design Review, And Development Agreement [Action:  
Conduct Public Introduce Ordinance on First Reading, and Adopt Resolution per 
Staff Recommendation] 


9. OLD BUSINESS


A. Recommendations Of The Faria House Ad Hoc Committee And Consideration Of 
A Memorandum Of Understanding (MOU) Regarding The Renovation Of The 
Faria House And Lease To The Pinole History Museum [Action:  Receive Report 
and Consider Adoption of Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Murray)] 


10. NEW BUSINESS
NONE 


11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS


A. Mayor Report
1. Announcements


B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 


C.  City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


3 of 611







City Council   
Agenda – November 17, 2020 
Page 4  


 
D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 


 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of December 1, 2020 In 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
 
I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  November 12, 2020 at 6:00 P.M 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 


4 of 611







7A 


Pinole City Council  
Minutes – September 15, 2020 
Page 1 


CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MINUTES 


September 15, 2020 


1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS


The City Council Meeting was held via Zoom videoconference and broadcast from the Pinole 
Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California.  Mayor Swearingen called the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council to order 5:01 p.m. and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 


2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT


A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 


Roy Swearingen, Mayor 
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Mayor Pro Tem  
Peter Murray, Councilmember (5:03 p.m.) 
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember  
Anthony Tave, Councilmember 


B. STAFF PRESENT 
Andrew Murray, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer 
Neil Gang, Police Chief 
Chris Wynkoop, Fire Chief 


City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda was posted on September 10, 2020 at 5:00 p.m. All legally 
required notice was provided.   


Following an inquiry to the Council, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items 
on the agenda.   


3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning into 
the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   


A.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Pursuant to Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray 
Employee organizations: Unrepresented positions - Assistant City Manager, 
Development Services Director/City Engineer, Finance Director, Fire Chief, 
Police Chief, Fire Battalion Chief, Human Resources Specialist, Planning 
Manager, Police Lieutenant, Public Works Manager, Recreation Manager, 
& WWTP Manager 


B.   CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 


5 of 611







Pinole City Council  
Minutes –September 15, 2020 
Page 2 
 


      Pursuant to Gov. Code § 54956.8 
Property:  APNs: 402-230-015, 402-230-016, 402-230-017, 402-230-018, 402-
230-020 and 402-230-022 
Agency negotiator:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant City Manager Hector 
De La Rosa, Legal Counsel Stephanie Downs 
Negotiating parties:  General Realty CE, LLC 
Under negotiation:  Price and terms 


 
At 5:02 p.m. Mayor Swearingen convened the meeting to a closed session. 
 
 
4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 6:24 p.m. Mayor Swearingen reconvened the meeting to open session and announced that 
there was no reportable action from the closed session. 
 
Mayor Swearingen gave a report highlighting the impacts of COVID-19 in the Pinole community 
and information relating to CA wildfires. 
 
5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject to 
modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter 
unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City 
Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
The following speakers submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with 
the agenda packet for this meeting:  Rafael Menis, David Ruport, Sal Spataro, Ivette Ricco 
 
6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 


 
A. Proclamations  


 


 
B. Presentations / Recognitions 


1. Proclamation Honoring Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager, Ron Tobey, on 
the Occasion of His Retirement 


 
Mayor Swearingen read a Proclamation honoring Ron Tobey for his dedication to Pinole serving 
as Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager.  Mayor and Council members thanked Mr. Tobey for 
his years of service.  Community Services Director/City Engineer Tamara Miller recognized Ron 
Tobey’s many successes and thanked him for his service.  Mr. Tobey thanked staff and Council. 
 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent Calendar. 
Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 
The following speaker submitted written comments relating to Item 7D that were read aloud and 
will be filed with the agenda packet for this meeting:  Irma Ruport 


6 of 611







Pinole City Council  
Minutes –September 15, 2020 
Page 3 
 


 
City Attorney Casher responded to the questions raised in the public comment. 
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of July 7, 2020 
 


B. Receive the August 29, 2020 – September 11, 2020 List of Warrants in the Amount 
of $365,499.09 and the September 4, 2020 Payroll in the Amount of $453,402.96. 


 
C. Resolution Confirming Continued Local Emergency [Action:  Adopt Resolution per 


Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 
 
D. Amendment to the City of Pinole Conflict of Interest Code [Action:  Adopt 


Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Iopu)] 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Murray/Tave to Approve Consent Calendar Items 7A- 
7D 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Swearingen, Murray, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
   
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record prior 
to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 


A. Approve The City Of Pinole Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 Through 2024-25 Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Plan And Adopt The FY 2020-21 Capital Budget [Action: 
Conduct Public Hearing and Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Miller)] 


 
Community Development Services Director/City Engineer made a presentation highlighting the 
details of the CIP.   
 
At 7:18 p.m. Mayor Swearingen opened the public hearing. 
 
The following speaker submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with the 
agenda packet for this meeting: Ivette Ricco 
 
At 7:20 p.m Mayor Swearingen closed the public hearing. 
 
Council members asked questions.  Staff responded to questions. 
 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Salimi/Tave to Approve The City Of Pinole Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2020-21 Through 2024-25 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan And Adopt The FY 
2020-21 Capital Budget 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Swearingen, Murray, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  


7 of 611







Pinole City Council  
Minutes –September 15, 2020 
Page 4 
 


Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
 


B. Amendment To Chapter 15.54 Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (WELO) Of 
The Pinole Municipal Code [Action:  Conduct Public Hearing on First Reading of 
Ordinance per Staff Recommendation (Hanham)] 


 
Planning Manager Hanham presented a report to the Council detailing the proposed ordinance 
amendment.   
 
At 7:58 p.m. Mayor Swearingen opened and closed the public hearing. There were no public 
speakers.   
 
Council members asked questions of staff regarding the details of the report.  Staff responded to 
questions. 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Tave/Murray to Approve Amendment To Chapter 
15.54 Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance (WELO) Of The Pinole Municipal Code on First 
Reading 
  
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Swearingen, Murray, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS 


 
A. Direction To The City’s Voting Delegate To The League Of California Cities Annual 


Conference Regarding The Resolution Being Considered By The League’s 
Members [Action:  Discuss and Provide Direction (Murray)] 


 
City Manager Murray presented a report. City Council members held discussion.  There were 
concerns expressed regarding the potential implications of the resolution including outsourcing of 
social media platforms to other countries, and impact on 1st amendment and 4th amendment 
constitutional rights.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Salimi/Murray to Support the Resolution Being 
Considered By The League of CA Cities and Direct Staff to Draft A Letter Outlining 
Considerations of the Council to Be Presented at the League of CA Cities Annual 
Conference 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Swearingen, Murray, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
 
 


8 of 611







Pinole City Council  
Minutes –September 15, 2020 
Page 5 
 


B. Urgency Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 2020-03 Of The City Of Pinole 
Authorizing The Zoning Administrator To Issue Temporary Use Permits To Waive 
Requirements Of Title 17 Of The Pinole Municipal Code And Permit The Use Of 
Public Property To Facilitate Business Operations Impacted By Novel Coronavirus 
(Covid-19) [Action:  Adopt Urgency Ordinance per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 


 
City Attorney Casher presented a report to the Council and provided an overview of the recommendation. 
Council members asked questions.   Staff responded to questions. 
 
The following speaker submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with 
the agenda packet for this meeting: Ivette Ricco 
 
Council members made comments and asked questions.  City Attorney Casher responded to 
comments. 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Murray/Tave to Approve Urgency Ordinance 
Amending Ordinance No. 2020-03 Of The City Of Pinole Authorizing The Zoning 
Administrator To Issue Temporary Use Permits To Waive Requirements Of Title 17 Of The 
Pinole Municipal Code And Permit The Use Of Public Property To Facilitate Business 
Operations Impacted By Novel Coronavirus (Covid-19) 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Swearingen, Murray, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
 


10. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Receive Old Town Pinole Parking And Pedestrian Safety Study [Action:  Receive 


and File Report (Hanham)] 
 
Planning Manager Hanham presented a brief introduction to the item.  Consultant Brett Hondorf 
presented a summary of the Old Town Pinole Parking and Pedestrian Safety Study.  Council 
members asked questions.  Mr. Hondorf and staff responded to questions.   


 
B. Approve A Policy To Permit The Installation Of Lights On City Trees In The Old 


Town Business District By Business Owners [Action:  Approve Policy per Staff 
Recommendation (Miller)] 


 
Community Development Services Director/City Engineer presented a report to the Council 
detailing the proposed policy. 
 
The following speakers submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with 
the agenda packet for this meeting: Irma Ruport, Bill & Lisa Ancira 
 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Martinez-Rubin/Tave Approve A Policy To Permit 
The Installation Of Lights On City Trees In The Old Town Business District By Business 
Owners, With the Amendment that the City Will Pay the Costs for the Lights and Installation 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Swearingen, Murray, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave 


9 of 611







Pinole City Council  
Minutes –September 15, 2020 
Page 6 
 


Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
Council members held discussion regarding options for tree lighting for the holiday season as well 
as the full year.  Council gave its consensus to direct staff to bring back cost information and 
possible proposal at a future meeting for the City to pay for the installation and maintenance of 
lights as well as a possible expansion of the area being lit for the full year. 
 
 


C. Receive The Fiscal Year (FY) 2019-20 Fourth Quarter Financial Report 
(Unaudited) And Adopt A Resolution Approving Budget Adjustments [Action:       
Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (G. Rocha)] 


 
Finance Consultant Rocha presented an overview of the report to the Council.   
 
At 10:58 p.m. Mayor Swearingen called a short recess. 
 
At 11:02 p.m. Mayor Swearingen reconvened the meeting. 
 
The following speaker submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with 
the agenda packet for this meeting:  Rafael Menis 
 
Finance Consultant Rocha and City Manager Murray answered the questions raised during the 
public comment. 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Councilmembers Swearingen/Murray to continue the meeting to 11:30 
p.m. 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Swearingen, Murray, Martinez-Rubin, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 


 
Council members asked questions regarding the details of the report.  Finance Consultant 
Rocha and City Manager Murray answered questions from Council. 
 
 


 
11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  


 
A. Mayor Report 


1. Announcements 
 
Mayor Swearingen and Council member Murray announced the Fernandez Park Basketball 
court is being redone in honor of David Patrick Underwood and that the project is well 
underway. 
 
Mayor Swearingen announced the ballot box at City Hall that is available for Vote by Mail 
ballots.  Asked Assistant City Manager to provide an update about the Senior Center.  Assistant 
City Manager De La Rosa announced that recreation staff is working to reopen the Senior 


10 of 611







Pinole City Council  
Minutes –September 15, 2020 
Page 7 
 


Center and to improve the communication to its members.  He provided updates regarding 
programs being offered. 
 


 
B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 
 


Mayor Swearingen attended the Mayor’s Conference and he announced a presentation and 
discussion held regarding mental health considerations in emergency calls to law enforcement.  
Mayor Pro Tem provided additional details regarding solutions that are being discussed across 
cities in the County. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Martinez-Rubin announced the status of the Census 2020 and encouraged the 
public to respond if they haven’t already. 
 
Council member Tave provided additional context regarding the Mayor’s Conference meeting and 
discussions of mental health.  He is working with city staff and other local legislators to continue 
dialogue on the topic and will report back. Provided an update regarding the Faria House Reuse 
Ad Hoc Committee.  The work of the Committee is making progress and there will be a report to 
the full Council soon. 
 
Council member Salimi asked for more of an update regarding the Faria House Ad Hoc 
Committee.  Council member Tave and Council Member Murray restated that progress is being 
made and that the committee is going to be able to bring back a full report, soon. 
 
 


D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Martinez-Rubin asked for a future agenda item to discuss improved wayfinding 
signage in the City of Pinole, particularly downtown.  Consensus given.  


 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 


 
City Attorney Casher announced that there was a meeting of the Municipal Code Subcommittee 
to discuss the Historical Preservation Ordinance. There will be a report back to the Council at an 
upcoming meeting. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of October 6, 2020 In 


Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
At 12:01 p.m. Mayor Swearingen adjourned the meeting in honor of C. B Williams and Amber 
Swartz. 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


11 of 611







11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 1 of 12


WARRANT LISTING
City of Pinole, CA By Vendor Name


Payment Dates 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


Vendor: ALH01 - ALHAMBRA & SIERRA SPRINGS


224.02100-222-4220111/13/20209514919593757102920 PD WATER


Vendor ALH01 - ALHAMBRA & SIERRA SPRINGS Total: 224.02


Vendor: AME41 - AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING


1,136.62100-112-4210111/13/2020951503748 CITY CLERK MUNICIPAL CODE
BOOK EDITS


Vendor AME41 - AMERICAN LEGAL PUBLISHING Total: 1,136.62


Vendor: AME52 - AMERICAN MESSAGING SERVICE, LLC


43.55525-118-4310111/13/202095151W4102378UK FIRE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


Vendor AME52 - AMERICAN MESSAGING SERVICE, LLC Total: 43.55


Vendor: 2005 - ANIMAL DAMAGE MANAGEMENT, INC


250.00100-345-4210811/13/2020951523547C CY PEST CONTROL


Vendor 2005 - ANIMAL DAMAGE MANAGEMENT, INC Total: 250.00


Vendor: ARA01 - ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES


290.15100-343-4441011/13/202095153000705096111 CORP YARD UNIFORM LAUNDRY
SERVICE


14.22100-221-4441011/13/202095153705070394 PD UNIFORM SERVICE


9.58100-221-4441011/13/202095153705078967 PD UNIFORM SERVICE


9.58100-222-4441011/13/202095153705087552 PD UNIFORM SERVICE


9.58100-222-4441011/13/202095153705096115 PD UNIFORM SERVICE


290.15100-343-4441011/13/202095153705104734 CORP YARD UNIFORM LAUNDRY
SERVICE


9.58100-222-4441011/13/202095153705104737 PD UNIFORM SERVICE


290.15100-343-4441011/13/202095153705113283 CORP YARD LAUNDRY SERVICE


9.58100-222-4441011/13/202095153705113287 PD UNIFORM SERVICE


9.58100-222-4441011/13/202095153705121689 PD UNIFORM SERVICE


290.15100-343-4441011/13/202095153705151686 CORP YARD UNIFORM LAUNDRY
SERVICE


Vendor ARA01 - ARAMARK UNIFORM SERVICES Total: 1,232.30


Vendor: ARM04 - ARMOR LOCKSMITH SERVICES


39.75100-343-4210811/13/20209515473462 CORP YARD KEYS


39.20100-343-4210811/13/20209515473480 CORP YARD KEYS FOR DOG
POUND BUILDING


52.33100-345-4210811/13/20209515473517 COPR YARD KEYS FOR
RESTROOMS


22.87100-343-4210811/13/20209515473522 CORP YARD  KEYS


Vendor ARM04 - ARMOR LOCKSMITH SERVICES Total: 154.15


Vendor: ARM09 - ARMOUR PETROLEUM SVC/EQUP


650.53100-343-4210811/13/202095155WO-19583 COPR YARD GAS PUMP REPAIR


Vendor ARM09 - ARMOUR PETROLEUM SVC/EQUP Total: 650.53


Vendor: 1320 - BADAWI & ASSOCIATES


18,393.75100-115-4210111/13/202095156931 FINANCE 2020 AUDIT


Vendor 1320 - BADAWI & ASSOCIATES Total: 18,393.75


Vendor: ESP01 - BELINDA ESPINOSA


550.00100-117-4110111/13/20209515710282020 MEDICARE RETIREE
REIMBURSEMENT


Vendor ESP01 - BELINDA ESPINOSA Total: 550.00


Vendor: BOU01 - BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC


158.31100-231-4210411/06/20209513283822207 FIRE MEDICAL SUPPLIES


78.93100-231-4210411/06/20209513283827462 FIRE MEDICAL SUPPLIES


Vendor BOU01 - BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC Total: 237.24


7B


12 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 2 of 12


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


Vendor: CAL20 - CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF PROFESSIONAL FIREFIGHTERS


324.50100-231-4100811/06/202095133102020 NOV FIRE LTD NOVEMBER BILLING


Vendor CAL20 - CALIFORNIA ASSOCIATION OF PROFESSIONAL FIREFIGHTERS Total: 324.50


Vendor: PER03 - CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTM


96,163.89100-117-4100411/13/202095158100000016223637 ANNUAL UNFUNDED ACCRUED
LIABILITY


108,287.08100-117-4100411/13/202095158100000016223647 ANNUAL UNFUNDED ACCRUED
LIABILITY


184.47100-117-4100411/13/202095158100000016223662 ANNUAL UNFUNDED ACCRUED
LIABILITY


445.96100-117-4100411/13/202095158100000016223674 ANNUAL UNFUNDED ACCRUED
LIABILITY


294.19100-117-4100411/13/202095158100000016223683 ANNUAL UNFUNDED ACCRUED
LIABILITY


Vendor PER03 - CALIFORNIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTM Total: 205,375.59


Vendor: CCP03 - CCP INDUSTRIES


245.63500-641-4210711/13/202095159IN02639983 WPCP EYE WASH EYE CUP
EMERGENCY SUPPLIES


Vendor CCP03 - CCP INDUSTRIES Total: 245.63


Vendor: COL02 - COLE-PARMER INSTRUMENT CO


587.00500-641-4430511/13/2020951602419885 WPCP  BURETTE CLASS NIST CAL


Vendor COL02 - COLE-PARMER INSTRUMENT CO Total: 587.00


Vendor: CON93 - CONCORD UNIFORMS LLC


15.17100-221-4441011/13/20209516117580 PD CLUTCH BACK NAME TAG


Vendor CON93 - CONCORD UNIFORMS LLC Total: 15.17


Vendor: CON44 - CONTINENTAL ELECTRIC


7,636.00200-342-4210811/13/202095162CEI11367 PW FOUNDATION REPAIR
LUMINAIRES


8,071.50200-342-4210811/13/202095162CEI11368 PW FOUNDATION REPAIR FOR
LUMINAIRES


8,088.00200-342-4210811/13/202095162CEI11369 PW LUMINAIRES


Vendor CON44 - CONTINENTAL ELECTRIC Total: 23,795.50


Vendor: CCC13 - CONTRA COSTA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT


5,052.58200-342-4210111/06/202095134703477 SIGNAL MAINTENANCE


766.30310-347-4210111/06/202095134703477 SIGNAL MAINTENANCE


158.26310-348-4210111/06/202095134703477 SIGNAL MAINTENANCE


Vendor CCC13 - CONTRA COSTA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT Total: 5,977.14


Vendor: CON54 - CONTRA COSTA COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR


52.00100-345-4320111/13/20209516320-290067 SECURED PORPERTY TAXES
PARCEL 401-080-058-1


52.00100-345-4320111/13/20209516320-290068 SECURED PROPERTY TAXES
PARCEL 401-080-059-9


52.00100-345-4320111/13/20209516320-290069 SECURED PROPERTY TAXES
PARCEL 401-080-060-7


Vendor CON54 - CONTRA COSTA COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR Total: 156.00


Vendor: CONA7 - CONTRA COSTA FAMILY JUSTICE ALLIANCE


536.44100-222-4210111/13/2020951642020PIN-04 PD ASSOCIATION
CONTRIBUTION


Vendor CONA7 - CONTRA COSTA FAMILY JUSTICE ALLIANCE Total: 536.44


Vendor: DEP03 - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION


1,557.48200-342-4210111/13/202095165SL210073 PW SIGNAL MAINTENANCE


296.89310-347-4210111/13/202095165SL210073 PW SIGNAL MAINTENANCE


409.51310-348-4210111/13/202095165SL210073 PW SIGNAL MAINTENANCE


Vendor DEP03 - DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Total: 2,263.88


Vendor: DOL01 - DOLAN'S LUMBER


29.06500-641-4210811/13/202095166PININV100420081 WPCP 5/8 X 12 GALFOUND BOLT
W/NUT


13 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 3 of 12


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


165.87500-641-4210811/13/202095166PNINV100422474 WPCP LUMBER PRODUCTS


Vendor DOL01 - DOLAN'S LUMBER Total: 194.93


Vendor: 1779 - D-TAC K9 LLC


700.00100-221-4251411/13/2020951672045 PD POLICE DOG TRAINING


Vendor 1779 - D-TAC K9 LLC Total: 700.00


Vendor: 1634 - EAGLE EYE ENGRAVING


1,793.99500-641-4210811/13/2020951682020-0548 WPCP 24X24 CAST ALUMINUM
PLAQUE


Vendor 1634 - EAGLE EYE ENGRAVING Total: 1,793.99


Vendor: EBM01 - EBMUD


155.36100-343-4310211/13/202095169231771-102620 2691 APPALOOSA TRAIL-
IRRIGATION USE ONLY


155.36100-343-4310211/13/202095169231772-102620 2785 SIMAS AVE--IRRIGATION
USE ONLY


55.74100-345-4310211/13/202095169464589-102620 659 Tennent Ave--Parks &
Gardens--Blackies Storage


60.76209-554-4310211/13/202095169464595-102720 635 Tennent Ave--Pinole Youth
Center/CTV


60.76505-119-4310211/13/202095169464595-102720 635 Tennent Ave--Pinole Youth
Center/CTV


55.74201-343-4310211/13/20209516946519-102620 813 Fernandez Ave--Irrigation
Use Only


1,370.92100-345-4310211/13/202095169465395-102720 1095 Nob Hill Ave--Parks &
Gardens--Meadow Park


802.82500-641-4310211/13/202095169465422-102720 80 TENNENT AVE--WASTE
WATER TREATMENT PLANT


84.20209-558-4310211/13/202095169465569-102620 601 Tennent Ave--Memorial Hall


55.74100-343-4310211/13/202095169465922-102620 636 Tennent Ave--Irrigation Use
Only


565.60100-231-4310211/13/202095169465923-102720 880 Tennent Ave--Public Safety
Facility/Building


1,606.94100-222-4310211/13/202095169465924-102620 880 Tennent Ave--Public Safety
Facility/Building


357.10100-223-4310211/13/202095169465924-102620 880 Tennent Ave--Public Safety
Facility/Building


1,606.94100-231-4310211/13/202095169465924-102620 880 Tennent Ave--Public Safety
Facility/Building


6,507.74100-345-4310211/13/20209516946596-102720 2310 Park St--Fernandez Park
Baseball Field


773.94100-345-4310211/13/202095169466363-102720 1818 Canyon Dr--Irrigation Use
Only


61.72201-343-4310211/13/2020951694665183-102720 2361 San Pablo Ave--Old Bank
Building


155.36100-343-4310211/13/202095169466531-102620 800 PINOLE SHORES DR-
IRRIGATION USE ONLY


55.74100-343-4310211/13/202095169466536-102720 2401 Del Monte Way--Irrigation
Use Only


84.20100-343-4310211/13/202095169466643-10262020 2000 San Pablo Ave--Irrigation
Use Only


1,817.80100-345-4310211/13/202095169524589-102720 592 Marlesta Rd--Irrigation Use
Only


897.10209-552-4310211/13/202095169529821-102720 2500 Charles St--Senior Center


960.70209-552-4310211/13/202095169529852-102720 2500 Charles St--Senior Center


565.60201-343-4310211/13/20209516953200-102720 2361 San Pablo Ave--Offices--Old
Bank Building


55.74100-343-4310211/13/202095169532187-102620 2601 Charles St--Irrigation Use
Only


55.74100-343-4310211/13/202095169540499-102620 1230 Pinole Valley Rd--Irrigation
Use Only


55.74201-343-4310211/13/202095169540787-102620 2361 San Pablo Ave--Irrigation
Use Only


14 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 4 of 12


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


55.74100-343-4310211/13/202095169541397-102620 1601 Marlesta Rd--Irrigation Use
Only


2.37100-110-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


5.74100-111-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


5.26100-112-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


15.59100-115-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


5.26100-116-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


42.07100-117-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


74.97100-343-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


13.39200-342-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


5.07212-461-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


13.48212-462-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


4.02285-464-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


4.02505-119-4310211/13/202095169544461-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


7.07100-110-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


16.97100-111-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


15.55100-112-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


46.10100-115-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


15.55100-116-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


124.43100-117-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


221.72100-343-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


39.59200-342-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


14.99212-461-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


39.87212-462-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


11.88285-464-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


11.88505-119-4310211/13/202095169545474-102720 2131 Pear St--Offices--City Hall


289.34209-558-4310211/13/202095169554625-102720 601 Tennent Ave--Memorial Hall


354.74201-343-4310211/13/202095169565167-102720 2100 San Pablo Ave--Offices--
Faria House


55.74201-343-4310211/13/202095169565168-102620 2100 San Pablo Ave--Irrigation
Use Only


101.46201-343-4310211/13/202095169565169-102720 2100 San Pablo Ave--Offices--
Faria House


725.50310-347-4310211/13/202095169570108-102820 1303 Pinole Valley Rd--Irrigation
Use Only


55.74100-343-4310211/13/202095169571919-102620 2329 Orleans Dr--Irrigation Use
Only


15,124.50500-641-4430411/13/202095172EBM-BDO-01384 BACWA MEMBERSHIP SPECIAL
PROGRAMS


Vendor EBM01 - EBMUD Total: 36,560.70


Vendor: ELE01 - ELECTRONIC INNOVATIONS, INC.


175.00100-343-4210811/06/20209513541674 CITY HALL SERVICE CALL FOR
COUNCIL ENTRY


Vendor ELE01 - ELECTRONIC INNOVATIONS, INC.  Total: 175.00


Vendor: FAS02 - FASTENAL


353.48500-641-4210811/13/202095173CAS1719845 WPCP S/S TRUBOLT CABINET


Vendor FAS02 - FASTENAL Total: 353.48


Vendor: FLA09 - FLAGTIME, USA


220.55100-343-4210811/13/2020951741440 COPR YARD USA CALIFORNIA
OUTDOOR FLAGS


Vendor FLA09 - FLAGTIME, USA Total: 220.55


Vendor: FOR02 - FORENSIC SERVICES DIVISION


300.00100-222-4210111/13/202095175PINPD-2009 PD ALCOHOL UNIT AND
FINGERPRINT


Vendor FOR02 - FORENSIC SERVICES DIVISION Total: 300.00


Vendor: 1979 - GALAXY PRESS


63.09100-222-4220111/13/20209517633798 PD BUSINESS CARDS DELGADO


Vendor 1979 - GALAXY PRESS Total: 63.09


15 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 5 of 12


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


Vendor: GRA03 - GRAINGER


196.52500-641-4210711/13/2020951779693950306 WPCP DRAIN CLEANING CABLE


71.04500-641-4210711/13/2020951779695107632 WPCP BEAM CLAMP DRAIN
CLEANING TOOL


Vendor GRA03 - GRAINGER Total: 267.56


Vendor: HAC01 - HACH COMPANY


2,048.06500-641-4210711/06/20209513612099677 WPCP LAB SUPPLIES AMMONIA,
NITRATE COLORIMETER


815.85500-641-4430511/06/20209513612180057 WPCP FILTER GLASS FBR BOD
STD DILUTION


380.36500-641-4210711/13/20209517812183497 WPCP OXYGEN, STARCH, PAO
LAB SUPPLIES


167.12500-641-4210711/13/20209517812183503 WPCP AMMONIA


-171.52500-641-4430511/06/202095136CM0000576 WPCP CREDIT BUFFER SOLN RED
PH 20 LITER


Vendor HAC01 - HACH COMPANY Total: 3,239.87


Vendor: HAR01 - HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTIC, LLC


159.94500-641-4210711/13/202095179006M1078 WPCP PUMP STRAINER


1,807.62500-641-4210711/13/202095179006M1254 WPCP GAUGE DIGITAL PRESS
SUPPLIES


Vendor HAR01 - HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTIC, LLC  Total: 1,967.56


Vendor: HEA01 - HEALTH CARE DENTAL TRUST


552.64100-110-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


574.70100-111-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


149.19100-112-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


127.13100-113-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


298.38100-115-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


59.17100-116-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


208.36100-221-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


1,414.40100-221-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


335.49100-222-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


59.17100-222-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


1,589.96100-223-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


1,395.93100-231-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


335.49100-341-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


1,022.27100-343-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


127.13100-465-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


761.00105-221-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


59.17105-231-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


171.25106-222-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


127.13106-231-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


149.19204-227-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


149.19209-551-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


97.63209-552-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


134.27209-554-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


149.19212-461-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


230.42212-462-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


1,015.26500-641-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


267.53500-642-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


298.38505-119-4100211/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


298.38998-2010511/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


393.18998-2010511/06/20209513710082020 STATEMENT CARE DENTAL BENEFITS


Vendor HEA01 - HEALTH CARE DENTAL TRUST Total: 12,550.58


Vendor: HIL03 - HILLTOP FORD


3,080.97100-221-4210711/06/202095138FOCS339709 SERVICE ON PATROL CAR


Vendor HIL03 - HILLTOP FORD Total: 3,080.97


16 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 6 of 12


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


Vendor: IED02 - IEDA, INC.


2,274.00100-116-4210111/13/20209518023193 LABOR RELATIONS
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES


Vendor IED02 - IEDA, INC.  Total: 2,274.00


Vendor: IMA01 - IMAGE SALES, INC.


20.76100-222-4220111/13/2020951810069152-IN PD BADGE FOR JOSHUA SHAVIES


Vendor IMA01 - IMAGE SALES, INC. Total: 20.76


Vendor: KEL09 - KELLER CANYON LANDFILL


6,044.84500-641-4430211/13/2020951824212-000029599 WPCP SLUDGE REMOVAL


Vendor KEL09 - KELLER CANYON LANDFILL Total: 6,044.84


Vendor: CUR03 - LN CURTIS & SONS


1,195.51100-221-4441011/13/202095183INV434459 PD SERGEANT LOPEZ BODY
ARMOR


Vendor CUR03 - LN CURTIS & SONS Total: 1,195.51


Vendor: 1566 - MANAGEMENT PARTNERS, INC.


5,090.00100-110-4210111/06/202095139INV08930 ANALYSIS


Vendor 1566 - MANAGEMENT PARTNERS, INC.  Total: 5,090.00


Vendor: MEY01 - MEYERS,NAVE,RIBACK,SILVER


20,726.08100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070410 CITY ATTORNEY FEES


2,418.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070411 CITY ATTORNEY FEES


390.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070412 CITY ATTORNEY FEES PUBLIC
RECORDS REQUEST


810.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070413 CITY ATTORNEY FEES RISK
MANAGEMENT


3,697.50100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070414 CITY ATTORNEY FEES SALE OF
PINOLE SENIOR VILLAGE


607.50100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070415 CITY ATTORNEY PINOLE SHORES 
II


769.50100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070416 CITY ATTORNEY BALLOT
MEASURE FIRE


1,214.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070417 CITY ATTORNEY FEES


210.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070418 CITY ATTORNEY FEES


540.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070419 CITY ATTORNEY GENERAL
SERVICES PW


474.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070420 CITY ATTORNEY CLAIM AGAINST
PGE FOR DELAYS ON PROJ


942.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070421 CITY ATTORNEY FEES


1,053.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070422 CITY ATTORNEY GENERAL
MATTER WPCP


2,374.34100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070423 CITY ATTONEY GENERAL
SERVICES POLICE


28,513.54100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070424 CITY ATTONEY GENERAL
SERVICES LABOR AND EMPLOY


1,002.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070425 CITY ATTORNEY GENERAL
SERVICES CODE ENFORCEMENT


7,215.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070426 CITY ATORNEY GENERAL SERV
COMMUNITY DEVELOP


590.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070427 CITY ATTORNEY FEES


463.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070428 CITY ATTORNEY FEES


1,809.00100-114-4210211/06/2020951402020070429 CITY ATTORNEY FEES


Vendor MEY01 - MEYERS,NAVE,RIBACK,SILVER Total: 75,818.46


Vendor: 1708 - NUTRIENT AG SOLUTIONS, INC.


3,244.74106-345-4720311/13/20209518443867968 CORP YARD TRILOGY RYEGRASS


Vendor 1708 - NUTRIENT AG SOLUTIONS, INC.  Total: 3,244.74


17 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 7 of 12


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


Vendor: OLI01 - OLIVERS TOWING INC


255.75200-342-4720511/13/20209518520-7085 PW TOWING DURING SLURRY
PROJECT


Vendor OLI01 - OLIVERS TOWING INC Total: 255.75


Vendor: O'R01 - O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC


7.60100-221-4210711/06/202095142102820STATEMENT CITY WIDE PARTS/SUPPLIES


288.48100-231-4210711/06/202095142102820STATEMENT CITY WIDE PARTS/SUPPLIES


158.97100-343-4210711/06/202095142102820STATEMENT CITY WIDE PARTS/SUPPLIES


30.57100-343-4210711/06/202095142102820STATEMENT CITY WIDE PARTS/SUPPLIES


50.22207-344-4210711/06/202095142102820STATEMENT CITY WIDE PARTS/SUPPLIES


39.32500-642-4210711/06/202095142102820STATEMENT CITY WIDE PARTS/SUPPLIES


44.39500-642-4210711/06/202095142102820STATEMENT CITY WIDE PARTS/SUPPLIES


144.24500-642-4210711/06/202095142102820STATEMENT CITY WIDE PARTS/SUPPLIES


61.16100-343-4210711/13/2020951862833-274975 COPR YARD DEGREASER AND
FOAMING SPRAY


Vendor O'R01 - O'REILLY AUTOMOTIVE, INC Total: 824.95


Vendor: PAC41 - PACIFIC ECORISK


1,046.00500-641-4430511/13/20209518716912 WPCP TOXICITY TESTING


1,046.00500-641-4430511/13/20209518716913 WPCP TOXICITY TESTING


Vendor PAC41 - PACIFIC ECORISK Total: 2,092.00


Vendor: CLA17 - PAUL CLANCY


123.46100-117-4110111/06/20209514311022020 2020 RETIREE MEDICAL REIMB


123.46100-117-4110111/06/20209514311022020-2 NOVEMBER RETIREE MEDICAL
REIMB


Vendor CLA17 - PAUL CLANCY Total: 246.92


Vendor: PGE01 - PG&E


728.93500-642-4310311/13/2020951881093-610302020 W END/HAZEL AVE SEWAGE
PLANT


14,650.39100-343-4441011/13/2020951882222-910262020 MONTHLY STATEMENT-VEHICLE
MAINTENANCE


63,546.86500-641-4310311/13/2020951884256-110282020 11 TENNANT AVE


10.71100-345-4310311/13/2020951884430-410272020 S/O MARLESTA 1ST POLE-
SPRINKLER CONTROLLER


12.48100-345-4310311/13/20209518858511-9102620 W/S PINOLE SHORES DR-
SPRINKLER CONTROLLER


102.17200-342-4310311/13/2020951886521-110282020 IFO 971 SAN PABLO AVE-
TRAFFIC SIGNAL CONTROL


175.23200-342-4310311/13/2020951886747-310302020 RAMONA & PINOLE VALLEY-
TRAFFIC SIGNAL & ST LIGHT


58.18200-342-4310311/13/2020951886897-010282020 PINOLE VALLEY RD & ESTATES
AVE-TRAFFIC LIGHT CTRL


8,498.74100-222-4310311/13/2020951887547-810272020 880 Tennent Ave-Public Safety
Facility


1,699.75100-223-4310311/13/2020951887547-810272020 880 Tennent Ave-Public Safety
Facility


6,799.00100-231-4310311/13/2020951887547-810272020 880 Tennent Ave-Public Safety
Facility


36.14201-343-4310311/13/2020951889929-4102620 790 PINOLE SHORES DR-NEW
METAL BUILDING


2,161.90209-552-4310311/13/2020951889961-710282020 2500 CHARLES ST-SENIOR
CENTER


Vendor PGE01 - PG&E Total: 98,480.48


Vendor: JAR01 - PINOLE GOODYEAR


6.00100-343-4210711/13/202095189025366 CORP YARD SCRAP TIRE
DISPOSAL


28.00100-343-4210711/13/202095189026425 CORP YARD TIRE DISPOSAL


98.00100-343-4210811/13/202095189026594 COPR YARD SCRAP TIRE
DISPOSAL


63.00100-231-4210711/13/202095189026913 FIRE  OIL CHANGE TO FIRE CHIEF
VEHICLE


18 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 8 of 12


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


918.95100-343-4210711/13/202095189027076 CORP YARD VEHICLE
MAINTENANCE


1,202.63100-343-4210711/13/202095189027082 COPR YARD VEHICLE
MAINTENANCE


61.00100-343-4210711/13/202095189027144 CORP YARD VEHICLE
MAINTENANCE


Vendor JAR01 - PINOLE GOODYEAR Total: 2,377.58


Vendor: 1009 - PRECISION IT CONSULTING


2,143.43525-118-4210511/13/20209519011155 IT SOPHOS 1 YEAR RENEWAL
SOFTWARE


Vendor 1009 - PRECISION IT CONSULTING Total: 2,143.43


Vendor: 2042 - RECORDS SYSTEMS ASSOCIATES, INC.


6,399.20100-112-4210111/13/20209519120-6 CITY CLERK RECORDS
RETENTION MANAGEMENT


Vendor 2042 - RECORDS SYSTEMS ASSOCIATES, INC. Total: 6,399.20


Vendor: SQU00 - SQUARE DEAL GARAGE


231.32100-221-4210711/13/20209519233142 PD BATTERY FOR PATROL CAR


Vendor SQU00 - SQUARE DEAL GARAGE Total: 231.32


Vendor: STA56 - STAILING S&S RV REPAIRS


438.83100-221-4210711/13/2020951936528 PD REPLACE REAR BRAKE BLEED
BRAKES PAD


Vendor STA56 - STAILING S&S RV REPAIRS Total: 438.83


Vendor: STA42 - STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT


90.61100-115-4220111/13/202095194102520STATEMENT VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS OFFCIE
SUPPLIES


283.93100-117-4220111/13/202095194102520STATEMENT VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS OFFCIE
SUPPLIES


1,584.26100-222-4220111/13/202095194102520STATEMENT VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS OFFCIE
SUPPLIES


44.76100-231-4220111/13/202095194102520STATEMENT VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS OFFCIE
SUPPLIES


143.09100-341-4220111/13/202095194102520STATEMENT VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS OFFCIE
SUPPLIES


52.88212-461-4220111/13/202095194102520STATEMENT VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS OFFCIE
SUPPLIES


73.69212-461-4220111/13/202095194102520STATEMENT VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS OFFCIE
SUPPLIES


131.07525-118-4710211/13/202095194102520STATEMENT VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS OFFCIE
SUPPLIES


Vendor STA42 - STAPLES BUSINESS CREDIT Total: 2,404.29


Vendor: STE20 - STERICYCLE, INC.


55.44100-222-4210111/13/2020951953005304628 PD MEDICAL WASTE SERVICE


Vendor STE20 - STERICYCLE, INC. Total: 55.44


Vendor: OFF11 - THE OFFICE CITY


172.18500-641-4220111/06/202095144IN-1665169 WPCP OFFICE SUPPLIES


Vendor OFF11 - THE OFFICE CITY Total: 172.18


Vendor: UNI38 - UNIVAR USA INC


3,316.86500-641-4430311/06/20209514548688987 WPCP HYPO CHLOR


3,318.56500-641-4430311/06/20209514548738634 WPCP HYPO CHOLR


5,339.48500-641-4430311/06/20209514548743995 WPCP BISULFITE LIQ


3,648.49500-641-4430311/06/20209514548792476 WPCP HYPO LIQ


5,960.77500-641-4430311/13/20209519648807261 WPCP BISULFITE


Vendor UNI38 - UNIVAR USA INC Total: 21,584.16


Vendor: UNI07 - UNIVERSAL BUILDING SVCS.


222.36100-222-4210811/13/202095197258631 POLICE DEPT JANITORIAL
SUPPLIES


188.59100-343-4210811/13/202095197258632 CITY HALL JANITORIAL SUPPLIES


1,070.00100-343-4210811/13/202095197481954 CITY HALL JANITORIAL SERVICE


19 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 9 of 12


AmountAccount NumberPayment DatePayment NumberPayable Number Description (Payable)


1,176.00100-222-4210811/13/202095197481955 PD AND FIRE JANITORIAL
SERVICES


1,176.00100-223-4210811/13/202095197481955 PD AND FIRE JANITORIAL
SERVICES


914.00209-557-4210811/13/202095197481956 SWIM CENTER JANITORIAL
SERVICES


508.00500-641-4210811/13/202095197481961 WPCP JANITORIAL SERVICES


Vendor UNI07 - UNIVERSAL BUILDING SVCS. Total: 5,254.95


Vendor: USB06 - US BANK


11,633.00100-2001811/06/202095146102220STATEMENT CITY CREDIT CARDS


Vendor USB06 - US BANK Total: 11,633.00


Vendor: VER02 - VERIZON WIRELESS


4,747.04525-118-4310111/06/2020951479864988464 CELL PHONE CITYWIDE


Vendor VER02 - VERIZON WIRELESS Total: 4,747.04


Vendor: VIS01 - VISION SERVICE PLAN


74.44100-110-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


74.44100-111-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61100-112-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61100-113-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


37.22100-115-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61100-116-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


279.15100-221-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


55.83100-222-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


241.93100-223-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


204.71100-231-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


55.83100-341-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


130.27100-343-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61100-465-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


111.66105-221-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61105-231-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61106-222-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61106-231-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61204-227-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61209-551-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


37.22209-552-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61209-554-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


18.61212-461-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


37.22212-462-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


130.27500-641-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


55.83500-642-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


37.22505-119-4100311/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


55.83998-2010611/06/202095148810708320 VISION BENEFITS CITYWIDE


Vendor VIS01 - VISION SERVICE PLAN Total: 1,823.78


Vendor: WIL52 - WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES


3,463.14500-641-4210111/13/202095198010-46090 WPCP SEWER CHARGES


Vendor WIL52 - WILLDAN FINANCIAL SERVICES Total: 3,463.14


Grand Total: 581,934.04


20 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 10 of 12


Report Summary


Fund Summary


 Payment AmountFund


100 - General Fund 403,378.15


105 - Measure S -2006 950.44


106 - MEASURE S-2014 3,580.34


200 - Gas Tax Fund 31,049.87


201 - Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund 1,286.88


204 - Police Grants 167.80


207 - NPDES Storm Water Fund 50.22


209 - Recreation Fund 5,823.53


212 - Building & Planning 635.42


285 - Housing Land Held for Resale 15.90


310 - Lighting & Landscape Districts 2,356.46


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 124,414.29


505 - Cable Access TV 412.26


525 - Information Systems 7,065.09


998 - Payroll Clearing 747.39


581,934.04Grand Total:


Account Summary


 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name


100-110-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 552.64


100-110-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 74.44


100-110-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 5,090.00


100-110-43102 Utilities/Water 9.44


100-111-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 574.70


100-111-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 74.44


100-111-43102 Utilities/Water 22.71


100-112-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 149.19


100-112-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


100-112-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 7,535.82


100-112-43102 Utilities/Water 20.81


100-113-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 127.13


100-113-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


100-114-42102 Prof Svcs/Attorney Servic… 75,818.46


100-115-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 298.38


100-115-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 37.22


100-115-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 18,393.75


100-115-42201 Office Expense 90.61


100-115-43102 Utilities/Water 61.69


100-116-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 59.17


100-116-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


100-116-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 2,274.00


100-116-43102 Utilities/Water 20.81


100-117-41004 Emp Benefits/PERS Retir… 205,375.59


100-117-41101 Retiree Benefits/Medical-… 796.92


100-117-42201 Office Expense 283.93


100-117-43102 Utilities/Water 166.50


100-20018 Accounts Payable/CalCard 11,633.00


100-221-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 1,622.76


100-221-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 279.15


100-221-42107 Prof Svcs/Equipment Mai… 3,758.72


100-221-42514 Admin Exp/Special Depart 700.00


100-221-44410 Safety Clothing 1,234.48


100-222-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 394.66


100-222-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 55.83


100-222-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 891.88


100-222-42108 Prof Svcs/Building-Structu… 1,398.36


100-222-42201 Office Expense 1,892.13


21 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 11 of 12


Account Summary


 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name


100-222-43102 Utilities/Water 1,606.94


100-222-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 8,498.74


100-222-44410 Safety Clothing 47.90


100-223-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 1,589.96


100-223-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 241.93


100-223-42108 Prof Svcs/Building-Structu… 1,176.00


100-223-43102 Utilities/Water 357.10


100-223-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 1,699.75


100-231-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 1,395.93


100-231-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 204.71


100-231-41008 Emp Benefits/Long Term … 324.50


100-231-42104 Prof Svcs/Paramedic Servi… 237.24


100-231-42107 Prof Svcs/Equipment Mai… 351.48


100-231-42201 Office Expense 44.76


100-231-43102 Utilities/Water 2,172.54


100-231-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 6,799.00


100-341-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 335.49


100-341-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 55.83


100-341-42201 Office Expense 143.09


100-343-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 1,022.27


100-343-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 130.27


100-343-42107 Prof Svcs/Equipment Mai… 2,467.28


100-343-42108 Prof Svcs/Building-Structu… 2,504.49


100-343-43102 Utilities/Water 1,181.41


100-343-44410 Safety Clothing 15,810.99


100-345-42108 Prof Svcs/Building-Structu… 302.33


100-345-43102 Utilities/Water 10,526.14


100-345-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 23.19


100-345-43201 Taxes/Property Tax 156.00


100-465-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 127.13


100-465-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


105-221-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 761.00


105-221-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 111.66


105-231-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 59.17


105-231-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


106-222-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 171.25


106-222-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


106-231-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 127.13


106-231-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


106-345-47203 Improvements/Parks 3,244.74


200-342-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 6,610.06


200-342-42108 Prof Svcs/Building-Structu… 23,795.50


200-342-43102 Utilities/Water 52.98


200-342-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 335.58


200-342-47205 Improvements/Streets 255.75


201-343-43102 Utilities/Water 1,250.74


201-343-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 36.14


204-227-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 149.19


204-227-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


207-344-42107 Prof Svcs/Equipment Mai… 50.22


209-551-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 149.19


209-551-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


209-552-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 97.63


209-552-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 37.22


209-552-43102 Utilities/Water 1,857.80


209-552-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 2,161.90


209-554-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 134.27


209-554-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


22 of 611







WARRANT LISTING     Payment Dates: 10/31/2020 - 11/13/2020


11/12/2020 2:30:31 PM Page 12 of 12


Account Summary


 Payment AmountAccount Number Account Name


209-554-43102 Utilities/Water 60.76


209-557-42108 Prof Svcs/Building-Structu… 914.00


209-558-43102 Utilities/Water 373.54


212-461-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 149.19


212-461-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 18.61


212-461-42201 Office Expense 126.57


212-461-43102 Utilities/Water 20.06


212-462-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 230.42


212-462-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 37.22


212-462-43102 Utilities/Water 53.35


285-464-43102 Utilities/Water 15.90


310-347-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 1,063.19


310-347-43102 Utilities/Water 725.50


310-348-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 567.77


500-641-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 1,015.26


500-641-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 130.27


500-641-42101 Prof Svcs/Professional Ser… 3,463.14


500-641-42107 Prof Svcs/Equipment Mai… 5,076.29


500-641-42108 Prof Svcs/Building-Structu… 2,850.40


500-641-42201 Office Expense 172.18


500-641-43102 Utilities/Water 802.82


500-641-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 63,546.86


500-641-44302 Other Materials Supp/Slu… 6,044.84


500-641-44303 Other Materials Supp/Ch… 21,584.16


500-641-44304 Other Materials Supp/Pe… 15,124.50


500-641-44305 Other Materials Supp/Lab… 3,323.33


500-642-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 267.53


500-642-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 55.83


500-642-42107 Prof Svcs/Equipment Mai… 227.95


500-642-43103 Utilities/Electricity & Pow… 728.93


505-119-41002 Emp Benefits/Dental 298.38


505-119-41003 Emp Benefits/Vision Care 37.22


505-119-43102 Utilities/Water 76.66


525-118-42105 Prof Svcs/Network Maint… 2,143.43


525-118-43101 Utilities/Telephone 4,790.59


525-118-47102 FF&E/Computer Equipme… 131.07


998-20105 Sal & Ben Payable/Dental … 691.56


998-20106 Sal & Ben Payable/Vision … 55.83


Grand Total: 581,934.04


Project Account Summary


 Payment AmountProject Account Key


**None** 581,934.04


Grand Total: 581,934.04


Approved by:__________________________ Date:______________11/12/2020


23 of 611







   


  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7C 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
  BY:  ALEX MOG, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION CONFIRMING CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF LOCAL 


EMERGENCY 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution confirming the continued 
existence of a local emergency.   
 
BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION 
 
On March 18, 2020, the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency Services, 
proclaimed a local emergency pursuant to California Government Code Section 
8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 2.32. The emergency declaration was 
based on public health and safety concerns for persons and property within the City 
as a consequence of the global spread of novel coronavirus 2019 ("COVID-19"), 
including confirmed cases in Contra Costa County, as well as, the Contra Costa 
County Department of Health’s shelter in place order dated March 16, 2020. The 
City Council subsequently adopted a resolution affirming the City Manager’s 
emergency declaration.  
 
The California Emergency Services Act requires the City Council to review the need 
for continuing the local emergency at least once every 60 days. Although the local 
emergency does not end until terminated by the City Council, the Pinole Municipal 
Code requires the City Council to periodically review the need for continuing the 
local emergency. The City Council has confirmed the continued existence of the 
local emergency multiple times since the emergency was first declared, most 
recently on November 17, 2020. 
 
Community transmission of COVID-19 continues to occur, and the number of cases 
within Contra Costa County has continued to rise. There have now been 
approximately 20,500 cases of COVID-19 within the County and approximately 253 
deaths. There have been over 1,000 new cases in the last 2 weeks alone. The rate 
of positive tests is increasing in the County, as well as throughout California. In 
Pinole, the rate of new cases over the last 14 days is approximately 143 new cases 
per 100,000 people. Although Contra Costa County was briefly in the “moderate” tier 


24 of 611







City Council Report, 7C 
November 17, 2020 


in the State’s four tier blueprint for a safer economy, it has been reclassified as being 
within the “substantial” tier due to the increasing prevalence of COVID-19. The 
“substantial” tier, also known as the red tier, is the second strictest tier. This means 
that the State still considers COVID-19 to be a serious risk to public safety. There is 
a concern among medical professionals that new cases of COVID-19 may be 
surging as colder weather makes outdoor activities harder.  
 
Public health and safety concerns for persons and property within the City as a 
consequence of the global spread of novel coronavirus 2019 continue to exist.  
 
If the proposed resolution is adopted, the City Council will confirm the continued 
existence of the local emergency.  In accordance with state law and the Municipal 
Code, the City Council will review the emergency declaration periodically until the 
conditions warrant a termination of the emergency declaration.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from the adoption of the resolution ratifying a local 
emergency. However, the City will consider all options available to seek 
reimbursement for indirect expenses and fiscal impacts through the appropriate 
authorities.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Local Emergency  
 
 
 
 


 


25 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


1 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE CONFIRMING 
THE CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF A  LOCAL EMERGENCY DUE TO COVID-19 


 
 WHEREAS,  Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Section 
2.32.060 authorize the Director of Emergency Service to proclaim a local emergency 
when conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within 
the territorial limits of a city exist if the City Council is not in session and provides that the 
City Council shall ratify the proclamation within seven days thereafter; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole 
Code Section 2.32.060, the Director of Emergency Services proclaimed the existence 
of a local emergency caused by the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), a respiratory 
disease first identified in China that may result in serious illness or death that is easily 
transmissible from person to person, on March 18; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 24, the City Council ratified and confirmed the 
proclamation of the existence of a local emergency issued by the Director of Emergency 
Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal 
Code Section 2.32.060, the City Council must periodically review the need for continuing 
the local emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the conditions that prompted the original declaration of a local 
emergency continue to exist; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the recitals contained in Resolution No. 2020-13, adopted by the City 
Council on March 24, are incorporated into this Resolution as if stated herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, there have now been approximately 20,500 cases of COVID-19 and 
approximately 253 deaths within the County, and over 1,000 cases in the last 2 weeks 
alone; and   
 
 WHEREAS, the rate of new cases in Pinole over the last 14 days is 
approximately 143 per 100,000 people, which is one of the highest rates among cities in 
Contra Costa County; and   
 
 WHEREAS, although Contra Costa County was briefly in the “moderate” tier in 
the State’s four tier blueprint for a safer economy, it has been reclassified as being 
within the “substantial” tier due to the increasing prevalence of COVID-19; and 
 
 WHEREAS, positivity rates for COVID-19 appear to be increasing significantly 
throughout California; and 


26 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


2 
 


 
 WHEREAS, the public health and safety concerns for persons and property within 
the City as a consequence of the global spread of COVID-19 continue to exist; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in order to prevent the spread of COVID-19, the City and its residents 
must continue to take serious precautions; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of Pinole residents, businesses, 
visitors, and staff is of utmost importance to the City and additional future measures may 
be needed to protect the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City may require additional assistance in the future, and a formal 
declaration of emergency allows the City to access resources in a timely manner in a 
timely fashion; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of 
persons and property within the territorial limits of the City related to COVID-19 pandemic 
continue in existence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that extraordinary measures are required to 
protect the public health, safety, and of persons and property within the City that are or 
are likely to be beyond the control or capability of the services, personnel, equipment, 
and facilities of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council have continued existence of a local emergency 
periodically since it was first declared on March 18, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to confirm the continued existence of a local 
emergency within Pinole due to COVID-19. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Pinole 
hereby declares as follows:  
 


1. The local emergency declared by Resolution No. 2020-13 due to the 
COVID-19 Pandemic continues to exist within the City of Pinole.  


 
2. During the existence of the declared local emergency, the powers, 


functions, and duties of the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency 
Services, and the emergency organization of this City shall be those 
prescribed by State law and by ordinances and resolutions of the City of 
Pinole.  


 
3.  The declaration of local  emergency shall remain in effect until such time 


that the Council determines that the emergency conditions have been 
abated. 


 


27 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


3 
 


 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Pinole on this 17th day of 
November 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 


    
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


28 of 611







   


 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 7D 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2020-21 FIRST QUARTER 


FINANCIAL REPORT AND ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING 
BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council receive the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020-21 First 
Quarter Financial Report and adopt a resolution approving related budget 
adjustments. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City operates on an annual budget cycle. Through the budget, the City Council 
approves revenue estimates and authorizes City staff to expend the City’s limited 
financial resources. As one of the many activities that the City undertakes to help 
ensure its financial soundness, staff provides quarterly financial reports on the City’s 
budget condition. 
 
Staff has reviewed the first quarter financial performance for the City’s FY 2020-21 
budget. Based on the actual revenue and expenditures of the first quarter, the City is 
on track to receive the amount of revenue budgeted for the year for most operating 
funds.  Expenditures have been reviewed and variances have been evaluated for 
spending within the approved budgeted levels.  Both revenues and expenditures will 
be further reviewed with the mid-year budget process when additional year to date 
information is available and adjustments will be recommended as warranted.    
 
Pinole, like other communities, has been impacted by the shelter-in-place (SIP) order 
resulting from COVID-19. Fiscal impacts of the SIP have been identified and noted. 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
General Fund Analysis 
 
The FY 2020-21 budget originally adopted on June 16, 2020 included the use of 
General Fund balance, in part for the purchase of a new fire engine, for a net deficit 
of $2,002,577. Below is a summary of the first quarter General Fund actual revenue 
and expenditures. 


29 of 611







City Council Report 7D 
November 17, 2020  2 


 
 
 
General Fund Revenue 
 
General Fund revenue for the first quarter was $1.78 million, or 11% of budget.  
General Fund revenues are not received evenly throughout the year, so first quarter 
revenue is not expected to be 25% of the annual budget. For comparison, the General 
Fund revenue for the first quarter of FY 2019-20 was 12% of the annual budget. 
 


 
 
 
Property Tax 
 
Property tax is received in December, April, and June of each year.  The projected 
revenue for FY 2020-21 is $4.15 million.  Property tax revenue includes the basic 1% 
property tax of $2.85 million and the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund 
(RPTTF) of $1.29 million. This is revenue that has resulted from the dissolution of the 
former Pinole Redevelopment Agency and represents the shift from the Agency 
receiving tax increment revenue to the various taxing entities receiving the tax 
revenue.    The RPTTF revenue will convert to “normal” property tax revenue when all 
of the former Agency’s outstanding debt is paid off and the Successor Agency is 
formally dissolved. Dissolution is currently expected to occur sometime after the final 
debt service payment in FY 2023-24. 
 
 


General Fund FY 2020-21 
Original Budget


FY 2020-21 
Current Budget


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of Budget


Revenues 15,606,351$      15,606,351$      1,782,589$    1,782,589$   11%
Expenditures 17,608,928        17,636,828        5,091,152      5,105,440     29%
  Net surplus/deficit (2,002,577)         (2,030,477)         (3,308,562)$   (3,322,850)$  
Beginning Fund Balance 6,620,900          6,620,900          
Ending Fund Balance 4,618,323$        4,590,423$        


FY 2020-21 
Original Budget


FY 2020-21 
Current Budget


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals


% of Budget


Property Taxes 4,146,109$        4,146,109$        7,041$           0%
Sales and Use Taxes 3,345,879          3,345,879          639,588         19%
Utility Users Tax 1,896,000          1,896,000          447,554         24%
Franchise Taxes 750,000             750,000             87,807           12%
Other Taxes: TOT 410,000             410,000             120,989         30%
Other Taxes: Business License 375,000             375,000             10,956           3%
Intergovernmental Taxes 2,006,163          2,006,163          -                 0%
Public Safety Charges 1,306,115          1,306,115          327,515         25%
Total Other Revenue 489,072             489,072             141,140         29%


Revenue Total: 14,724,338        14,724,338        1,782,589      12%
Transfer In from Section 115 Trust 882,013             882,013             0%


Revenue/Sources Total: 15,606,351$      15,606,351$      1,782,589$    11%


30 of 611







City Council Report 7D 
November 17, 2020  3 


Sales Tax  
 
For FY 2020-21, sales tax for the General Fund is budgeted at $3.35 million. First 
quarter revenue received through September 30, 2020 totaled $639,588 (19% of the 
annual budget) but did not include the final payment for the first quarter, which is 
received in late November. Actual revenue is on track with the amount included in the 
budget. In anticipation of lower revenue due to COVID-19, the FY 2020-21 budget 
included a 11% reduction in first quarter sales tax compared to the first quarter of FY 
2019-20. Staff will monitor this revenue and will present further analysis with the 
Second Quarter Financial Report in February 2021. 
 
All Other General Fund Revenue  


 
Utility Users Tax (UUT) and Franchise Tax revenue, which is derived from utility 
customers, are trending at 24% and 12%, respectively, and are consistent with 
projected revenues based on when payments are received throughout the year. 
 
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) is trending higher than anticipated at 30% for the 
quarter.  Business License revenues are primarily received in December and January 
based on the annual renewal process which is initiated in December of each year.   
 
Intergovernmental taxes include the Property Tax In-Lieu of Motor Vehicle License 
Fee (VLF) of $1.98 million and Homeowner Property Tax Relief of $31,000. These 
funds are primarily received in January and April of each year. 
 
Public safety charges, including police dispatch services for Hercules and San Pablo, 
are billed on a quarterly basis and are at 25% of budget for the year. 
 
Other General Fund revenues include Coronavirus Relief Funds in the amount of 
$120,415. 
 
A transfer from the City’s Section 115 Pension Trust to the General Fund was 
budgeted for FY 2020-21 in the amount of $882,013. The transfer amount will be 
determined at the end of the fiscal year based on the actual pension costs incurred 
for the year. 
 
General Fund Expenditures 


 
The City Council authorized expenditures in the amount $17.64 million in the FY 2020-
21 General Fund budget.  General Fund actual expenditures for the first quarter of FY 
2020-21 totaled $5.09 million, which was 29% of budget.   
 
 


31 of 611







City Council Report 7D 
November 17, 2020  4 


 
 
Overall, department spending is trending as expected and variances exceeding 25% 
are explained below. 
 
• City Manager department budget at 34% due to spending for consultant study of 


City’s organization structure and operations. 
• City Attorney department budget at 64% due to some one-time labor and 


employment related expenses. These expenses are related to the conclusion of 
two investigations and completion of the Management and Confidential Employees 
Compensation Plan, as well as continued yet modest expenses related to COVID 
impacts.  This budget will be reviewed in detail at mid-year as part of the Second 
Quarter Financial Report process. 


• Finance department budget at 32% due to a vacation payout and audit contract 
costs. 


• Fire department budget at 38% of budget due to the expenditure of $920,000 for 
the new fire truck in the first quarter. 


• Debt Service budget at 100% as the result of the annual payment for Pension 
Obligation Bond debt service paid in the first quarter. 


 
Other Funds Analysis 
 
Measure S 2006 Fund (Fund 105) and Measure S 2014 Fund (Fund 106) 
 
Measure S 2006 is a voter-approved general purpose use tax levied at 0.5% on all 
retail sales.  Revenue from Measure S 2006 has historically been allocated by the City 
Council to fund public safety programs. Measure S 2006 revenues include tax 
revenues projected at $1.83 million in FY 2020-21 and interest revenue of $20,000 on 
fund balance. Tax revenues are trending at 19% based on the timing of sales tax 
payments to the City. 
  
 


Department FY 2020-21 
Original Budget


FY 2020-21 
Current Budget


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals


Encumb.    Actuals w/ 
Encumb.


% of 
Budget


City Council 145,482$          173,382$          40,343$        40,343$       23%
City Manager 437,043            437,043            147,884        147,884       34%
City Clerk 250,145            250,145            44,288          44,288          18%
City Treasurer 6,779                6,779                1,988            1,988            29%
City Attorney 149,136            149,136            95,282          95,282          64%
Finance Department 510,212            510,212            165,509        165,509       32%
Human Resources 276,434            276,434            38,668          38,668          14%
Non-Departmental 1,701,069         1,701,069         364,009        364,009       21%
Police Department 7,249,344         7,249,344         1,545,519     1,545,519    21%
Fire Department 4,471,322         4,471,322         1,711,459     1,711,459    38%
Public Works 926,807            926,807            204,177        14,286         218,464       24%
Community Development 227,201            227,201            36,862          36,862          16%
Debt Service 555,000            555,000            556,107        556,107       100%
Transfers Out 702,955            702,955            139,058        139,058       20%


Expenditure Total: 17,608,928$    17,636,828$    5,091,152$  14,286$      5,105,440$  29%


32 of 611







City Council Report 7D 
November 17, 2020  5 


  
 
Measure S 2014 is a voter-approved general purpose use tax also levied at 0.5% on 
all retail sales. Revenue from Measure S 2014 has historically been allocated by the 
City Council to address some of the City’s operational and deferred capital 
improvement needs.  Measure S 2014 projected revenues include tax revenue of 
$1.83 million in FY 2020-21 and interest revenue of $30,000 on fund balance.  Tax 
revenues are trending at 19% based on the timing of sales tax payments to the City. 
Expenditures are trending lower due to the timing of spending for capital projects. 
 
 


 
 
Gas Tax Fund (Fund 200) 
 
The Gas Tax Fund accounts for revenue from State excise taxes on gasoline and 
diesel fuel sales (referred to as the Highway Users Tax Account (HUTA)) as well as 
revenue from the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB1) (referred to as 
the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA)). Gas Tax Fund resources 
are restricted for use in the construction and maintenance of public streets. These 
funds support both annual operating and capital projects. Revenues are trending in 
line with the timing of receipt of funds from the State.  The expenditures are trending 
lower due to the timing of road maintenance projects. 
 


 
 
Public Safety Augmentation Fund (Fund 203) 


Measure S 2006 FY 2020-21 
Original Budget


FY 2020-21 
Current Budget


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals


% of Budget


Revenues 1,845,669$        1,845,669$        351,441$       19%
Expenditures 2,165,524          2,165,524          456,960         21%
  Net surplus/deficit (319,855)            (319,855)            (105,517)$      
Beginning Fund Balance 1,785,877          1,785,877          
Ending Fund Balance 1,466,022$        1,466,022$        


Measure S 2014 FY 2020-21 
Original Budget


FY 2020-21 
Current Budget


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals


% of Budget


Revenues 1,855,669$        1,855,669$        353,602$       19%
Expenditures 3,672,274          3,672,274          136,144         4%
  Net surplus/deficit (1,816,605)         (1,816,605)         217,458$       
Beginning Fund Balance 3,760,830          3,760,830          
Ending Fund Balance 1,944,225$        1,944,225$        


Gas Tax FY 2020-21 
Original Budget


FY 2020-21 
Current Budget


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of Budget


Revenues 866,465$           866,465$           182,703$       182,703$      21%
Expenditures 1,568,570          1,568,570          56,380           88,231          4%
  Net surplus/deficit (702,105)            (702,105)            126,323$       94,472$        
Beginning Fund Balance 927,444             927,444             
Ending Fund Balance 225,339$           225,339$           


33 of 611







City Council Report 7D 
November 17, 2020  6 


 
The Public Safety Augmentation Fund (PSAF) accounts for monies allocated by the 
County Auditor-Controller under Proposition 172 from the statewide 0.5% sales tax 
based on a share of statewide taxable sales.  These funds are used exclusively for 
public safety.  The receipt of these funds is conditioned on Maintenance of Effort using 
base year FY 1992-93. The expenditures in this fund are trending much lower than 
budget due to the temporary vacancy of a public safety position during the first quarter. 
 
Police Grants Fund (Fund 204) 
 
The Police Grants Fund accounts for grants received and used exclusively for public 
safety.  Funding for school resource officers received from West Contra Costa Unified 
School District (WCCUSD) and Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) grant funding is 
recorded in this fund. WCCUSD determined not to provide the City with a grant of 
$150,000 for one school resource officer in FY 2020-21. This grant had been assumed 
in the City’s FY 2020-21 adopted budget. This Fund has available fund balance of 
$125,498 that can be used to offset this loss of revenue for the time being. Staff will 
reevaluate this budget as part of the mid-year budget review and recommend budget 
adjustments at that time. 
 
NPDES Storm Water Fund (Fund 207) 
 
The NPDES Storm Water Fund accounts for assessments collected by the County via 
property tax bills pursuant to the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) regulations, a federally mandated program.  Assessments are levied at $35 
per Equivalent Runoff Unit (ERU). Revenue estimates are based on the number of 
ERU's multiplied by the adopted rate. 
 
NPDES Storm Water revenue is projected at $266,449 and revenue is received after 
February of each year. 
 
Recreation Department Fund (Fund 209) 
 
The Recreation Department was dramatically impacted by the SIP order, which has 
required closing in-person recreation programs.  Revenues are at 13% of budget and 
include program fees at 3% and Operating Transfers In from the General Fund and 
Measure S Fund at 23% to support the expenditures.  The budget for this department 
will be reviewed with the Second Quarter Financial Report and staff will present 
recommendations for budget revisions at that time. 
 
 


34 of 611







City Council Report 7D 
November 17, 2020  7 


 
 
Building & Planning Fund (Fund 212) 
 
The Building & Planning Fund’s FY 2020-21 adopted budget projected a net $490,638 
use of fund balance to achieve a balanced budget. First quarter revenue totaled 
$164,032 for 20% of projected budget and expenditures totaled $170,907 for 13% of 
budget. Note that expenditures are not reflective of a full quarter since some invoices 
for professional services that support the Development Services Department were still 
pending at the time of the completion of this report. Staff will review this budget with 
the mid-year budget process to further evaluate expenditures versus the revenues for 
this activity.  
 
Solid Waste Fund (Fund 214) 
 
The Solid Waste Fund accounts for funds received from Republic Services, Inc. from 
a surcharge is assesses on customer rates for solid waste services. These funds are 
set aside for future solid waste capital projects and for a rate stabilization fund.  
Revenue projections are $368,000 and funds are received after each quarter. As of 
September 30, 2020, no payments have been received. 
 
Measure J Fund (Fund 215) 
 
The Measure J Fund accounts for special sales tax revenues collected by the Contra 
Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) and reapportioned to the cities for local street 
projects. The City must submit a checklist each year to confirm compliance with a 
Growth Management Program in order to receive these funds. Estimates of annual 
funding are provided by the CCTA, and jurisdiction allocations are based on a formula 
that considers both population and road mileage.  Revenues are projected at 
$388,000 and revenues are received in June of each year. 
 
Spending of these funds is dependent on the timing of capital projects. 
 
Lighting and Landscape District Fund (Fund 310)  
 
The Lighting and Landscape District Fund accounts for assessments to property 
owners to maintain median lighting and landscaping within the Pinole Valley Road 


Recreation FY 2020-21 
Original Budget


FY 2020-21 
Current Budget


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals


% of Budget


Revenues
  Program Revenue 634,989$           634,989$           16,208$         3%
  Transfers In 651,831             651,831             150,307         23%
    Total Revenues 1,286,820          1,286,820          166,515         13%
Expenditures 1,298,524          1,298,524          165,619         13%
  Net surplus/deficit (11,704)              (11,704)              896$              
Beginning Fund Balance 58,143               58,143               
Ending Fund Balance 46,439$             46,439$             


35 of 611







City Council Report 7D 
November 17, 2020  8 


North and South areas.  Revenue is received in December, April and June with 
property tax payments. 
 
Sewer Enterprise Fund (Fund 500) 
 
The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses 
for sewer utilities. Fees are used to operate the Pinole-Hercules Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, which serves the Pinole and Hercules areas. Revenues are received 
with the property tax payments in December, April and June.  
 


 
 
A budget adjustment of $1,089,104 is recommended for the annual principal and 
interest payment related to the treatment plant upgrade project, which was completed 
at the end of FY 2019-20. The Clean Water State Revolving Fund program provided 
funding for the City’s 50% share of the upgrades to the treatment plant.  The first 
annual debt service payment was made in July 2020. 
 
Cable Access TV Fund (Fund 505) 
 
This Fund accounts for revenue received from cable franchise fees, video production 
and broadcast charges, and Public, Educational, and Governmental (PEG) access 
fees.  PEG access fees are designated for equipment purchases. Transfers from the 
General Fund also help support the operating costs. Staff will review this budget in 
further detail with the Second Quarter Financial Report process. 
 
Information Systems Fund (Fund 525) 
 
The Information Systems Fund is an internal service fund used to account for activities 
that provide technology goods or services to other City funds and departments on a 
cost-reimbursement basis.  Expenditures at the end of the first quarter are at 20% of 
budget. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
In this FY 2020-21 First Quarter Financial Report, staff recommends a budget 
adjustment for the Sewer Fund as noted Attachment A. 
 


Sewer FY 2020-21 
Original Budget


FY 2020-21 
Current Budget


FY 2020-21   
YTD Actuals


% of Budget


Revenues 7,648,971$        7,648,971$        499,106$       7%
Expenditures 8,232,681          8,232,681          2,538,122      31%
  Net surplus/deficit (583,711)            (583,710)            (2,039,016)$   
Beginning Fund Balance 19,784,826        19,784,826        
Ending Fund Balance 19,201,116$      19,201,116$      


36 of 611







City Council Report 7D 
November 17, 2020  9 


 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – FY 2020-21 First Quarter Financial Report Summary by Fund 
B – Resolution Adjusting Fiscal Year 2020-21 Budget 


37 of 611







4,146,109      4,146,109      4,146,109       7,041             7,041            (4,139,068)     0%
3,345,879      3,345,879      3,345,879       639,588        639,588        (2,706,291)     19%
1,896,000      1,896,000      1,896,000       447,554        447,554        (1,448,446)     24%


750,000         750,000         750,000          87,807           87,807          (662,193)        12%
410,000         410,000         410,000          120,989        120,989        (289,011)        30%
375,000         375,000         375,000          10,956           10,956          (364,044)        3%


2,006,163      2,006,163      2,006,163       -                 -                 (2,006,163)     0%
1,306,115      1,306,115      1,306,115       327,515        327,515        (978,600)        25%


489,072         489,072         489,072          141,140        141,140        (347,932)        29%
14,724,338   14,724,338   -                 14,724,338    1,782,589     1,782,589    (12,941,749)  12%


882,013         882,013         882,013          
15,606,351   15,606,351   15,606,351    1,782,589     - 1,782,589    (12,941,749)  11%


145,482         173,382         173,382          40,343           40,343          133,039         23%
437,043         437,043         437,043          147,884        147,884        289,159         34%
250,145         250,145         250,145          44,288           44,288          205,857         18%


6,779              6,779              6,779               1,988             1,988            4,791              29%
149,136         149,136         149,136          95,282           95,282          53,854            64%
510,212         510,212         510,212          165,509        165,509        344,703         32%
276,434         276,434         276,434          38,668           38,668          237,766         14%


1,701,069      1,701,069      1,701,069       364,009        364,009        1,337,060      21%
3,476,300     3,504,200     -                 3,504,200       897,970        - 897,970        2,606,230      26%


7,249,344      7,249,344      7,249,344       1,545,519     1,545,519    5,764,820      21%
4,471,322      4,471,322      4,471,322       1,711,459     1,711,459    2,876,865      38%


11,720,666   11,720,666   -                 11,720,666    3,256,978     - 3,256,978    8,463,688      28%


926,807         926,807         926,807          204,177        14,286              218,463        708,344         24%
227,201         227,201         227,201          36,862           36,862          192,404         16%


1,154,008 1,154,008 - 1,154,008 241,039 14,286 255,325 898,682 22%


555,000         555,000         555,000          556,107        556,107        100%
702,955         702,955         702,955          139,058        139,058        20%


17,608,928   17,636,828   17,636,828    5,091,152     14,286              5,105,439    (12,531,390)  29%


(2,002,577)    (2,030,477)    -                 (2,030,477)     (3,308,563)    (14,286)            (3,322,850)   (410,359)        -18%
Fund Balance July 1, 2020 6,620,901     6,620,901     6,620,901       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 4,618,324     4,590,424     4,590,424       


1,825,669      1,825,669      1,825,669       352,715        352,715        (1,472,954)     19%
20,000           20,000           20,000            (1,273)            (1,273)           (21,273)          -6%


1,845,669     1,845,669     1,845,669       351,441        351,441        (1,494,228)    19%


2,433              2,433              2,433               -                 -                 2,433              0%
1,402,432      1,402,432      1,402,432       345,711        345,711        1,056,721      25%


760,659         760,659         760,659          111,249        111,249        649,410         15%
2,165,524     2,165,524     -                 2,165,524       456,960        456,960        1,708,565      21%
(319,855)       (319,855)       (319,855)         (105,518)       (105,518)      214,337         


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 1,785,877     1,785,877     1,785,877       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 1,466,022     1,466,022     1,466,022       


Fund: 100 - General Fund
Revenue


Property Taxes


Proposed 
Adjustments


Other Taxes: TOT


Intergovernmental Taxes


City of Pinole, CA For FY2020-21 Period Ending: 9/30/20


Variance
Favorable


(Unfavorable)
Original 
Budget


Current 
Budget EncumbrancesYTD Actual


Amended 
Budget Total


Percent
Used


Franchise Taxes


Sales and Use Taxes
Utility Users Tax


            Finance Department Total:


            City Clerk Total:


            City Attorney Total:
            City Treasurer Total:


            City Council Total:
            City Manager Total:


Total Administrative:


Penison Trust 115 Transfer 


Total Other Revenue


Sources Total 


Other Taxes: Business License


Public Safety Charges


           Public Works Total:
           Community Development Total:


General Fund Total:


Fund: 105 - Measure S -2006


Revenue Total:
Interest and Investment Income


Revenue
Sales and Use Taxes


Total Development Services:


           Debt Service:
           Operating Transfer Out:


General Fund Net Results


           Fire Department Total:
Total Public Safety:


           Police Department Total:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


            Human Resources Total:
            Non-Departmental Total:


            Fire Department Total:


Measure S -2006 Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


Expenditures


            Police Department Total:
            Finance Department Total:


ATTACHMENT A


38 of 611







Proposed 
Adjustments


City of Pinole, CA For FY2020-21 Period Ending: 9/30/20


Variance
Favorable


(Unfavorable)
Original 
Budget


Current 
Budget EncumbrancesYTD Actual


Amended 
Budget Total


Percent
Used


1,825,669      1,825,669      1,825,669       354,090        354,090        (1,471,579)     19%
30,000           30,000           30,000            (1,488)            (1,488)           (31,488)          -5%


-                  -                  -                   1,000             1,000            1,000              0%
1,855,669     1,855,669     1,855,669       353,602        353,602        (1,502,067)    19%


2,433              2,433              2,433               -                 -                 2,433              0%
693,000         693,000         693,000          11,250           11,250          681,750         2%


42,600           42,600           42,600            -                 -                 42,600            0%
193,641         193,641         193,641          20,982           20,982          172,659         11%
444,489         444,489         444,489          62,275           62,275          382,214         14%


2,272,561      2,272,561      2,272,561       41,637           41,637          2,230,924      2%
23,550           23,550           23,550            -                 -                 23,550            0%


3,672,274     3,672,274     3,672,274       136,144        136,144        3,536,130      4%
(1,816,605)    (1,816,605)    (1,816,605)     217,458        217,458        2,034,063      -12%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 3,760,830     3,760,830     3,760,830       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 1,944,225     1,944,225     1,944,225       


-                  -                  -                   30,021           30,021          30,021            0%
-                  -                  -                   30,021          30,021          30,021            0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 7,457,116     7,457,116     7,457,116       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 7,457,116     7,457,116     7,457,116       


80,000           80,000           80,000            -                 -                 (80,000)          0%
5,000              5,000              5,000               -                 -                 (5,000)             0%


85,000           85,000           85,000            -                 -                (85,000)          0%


80,000           80,000           80,000            -                 -                 80,000            0%
5,000              5,000              5,000               -                 -                 5,000              0%


85,000           85,000           85,000            -                 -                 85,000            0%
0 0 0 0 0 0


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 114,949         114,949         114,949          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 114,949         114,949         114,949          


-                  -                  -                   599,770        599,770        599,770         0%
-                  -                  -                   599,770        599,770        599,770         0%


-                  -                  -                   21,215           21,215          (21,215)          -            
-                  -                  -                   21,215          21,215          (21,215)          -            
-                  -                  -                   578,554        578,554        578,554         -            


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 18,088,811   18,088,811   18,088,811    
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 18,088,811   18,088,811   18,088,811    


866,465         866,465         866,465          182,703        182,703        683,762         21%
1,568,570      1,568,570      1,568,570       56,380           31,850              88,231          1,480,339      6%
(702,105)       (702,105)       (702,105)         126,323        31,850              158,173        860,278         -23%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 927,444         927,444         927,444          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 225,339         225,339         225,339          


Fund: 106 - Measure S-2014


Interest and Investment Income
Reimbursements


           Recreation Total:
Expenditures Total:


           Public Works Total:


Fund: 150 - General Reserve


Measure S-2014 Net Results:


General Reserve Net Results:
Revenue Total:


           Fire Department Total:


Revenue
Sales and Use Taxes


           Finance Department Total:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Information Systems Total:
           Police Department Total:


           Non-Departmental Total:


            Public Works Total:


Fund: 160 - Equipment Reserve
Revenue


            Public Works Total:


 Equipment Reserve Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


Revenue Total:


Gas Tax Fund Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


            Community Development Total:
Expenditures Total:


Fund: 200 - Gas Tax Fund


            Community Development Total:


 Interest and Investment Income


Fund: 700 - Pension Fund
Revenue


425 - Administrative Expenses


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


 Pension Fund Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


39 of 611







Proposed 
Adjustments


City of Pinole, CA For FY2020-21 Period Ending: 9/30/20


Variance
Favorable


(Unfavorable)
Original 
Budget


Current 
Budget EncumbrancesYTD Actual


Amended 
Budget Total


Percent
Used


39,991           39,991           39,991            475                475                (39,516)          1%
37,175           37,175           37,175            4,049             4,049            33,126            11%


2,816             2,816             2,816               (3,574)           (3,574)           (6,390)            -127%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 166,676         166,676         166,676          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 169,492         169,492         169,492          


172,766         172,766         172,766          29,687           29,687          (143,079)        17%
189,512         189,512         189,512          2,302             2,302            187,210         1%
(16,746)          (16,746)          (16,746)           27,385          27,385          (44,131)          -164%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 365,840         365,840         365,840          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 349,094         349,094         349,094          


150,000         150,000         150,000          -                 -                 (150,000)        0%
152,305         152,305         152,305          37,486           37,486          114,819         25%


(2,305)            (2,305)            (2,305)             (37,486)         (37,486)        (35,181)          1626%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 125,498         125,498         125,498          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 123,193         123,193         123,193          


46,500           46,500           46,500            4,936             4,936            (41,564)          11%
19,719           19,719           19,719            447                447                19,272            2%
26,781           26,781           26,781            4,489             4,489            (22,292)          17%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 207,302         207,302         207,302          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 234,083         234,083         234,083          


101,600         101,600         101,600          85,333           85,333          (16,267)          84%
97,897           97,897           97,897            18,700           18,700          79,197            19%


3,703             3,703             3,703               66,633          66,633          62,930            1799%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 269,337         269,337         269,337          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 273,040         273,040         273,040          


266,620         266,620         266,620          194                194                (266,426)        0%
377,717         377,717         377,717          63,009           63,009          314,708         17%


(111,097)       (111,097)       (111,097)         (62,815)         (62,815)        48,282            57%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 16,432           16,432           16,432            
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (94,665)          (94,665)          (94,665)           


1,286,820      1,286,820      1,286,820       166,515        166,515        (1,120,305)     13%
1,298,524      1,298,524      1,298,524       165,619        165,619        1,132,905      13%


(11,704)          (11,704)          (11,704)           896                896                12,600            -8%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 58,144           58,144           58,144            
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 46,440           46,440           46,440            


820,700         820,700         820,700          164,032        164,032        (656,668)        20%
1,311,338      1,311,338      1,311,338       170,907        170,907        1,140,431      13%
(490,638)       (490,638)       (490,638)         (6,875)           (6,875)           483,763         1%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 158,389         158,389         158,389          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (332,249)       (332,249)       (332,249)         


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


Public Safety Augmentation Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:
Fund: 204 - Police Grants


Fund: 203 - Public Safety Augmentation Fund


Expenditures Total:


Fund: 201 - Restricted Real Estate Maintenance 


Restricted Real Estate Maint Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:
Expenditures Total:


Fund: 207 - NPDES Storm Water Fund


Expenditures Total:
 Traffic Safety Fund Net Results:


Fund: 206 - Supplemental Law Enforcement Svc 


Police Grants Net Results:


Fund: 205 - Traffic Safety Fund
Revenue Total:


Revenue Total:


Recreation Fund Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


Fund: 212 - Building & Planning


NPDES Storm Water Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


 Sup Law Enforce Svc Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:
Expenditures Total:


Fund: 209 - Recreation Fund


 Building & Planning Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


40 of 611







Proposed 
Adjustments


City of Pinole, CA For FY2020-21 Period Ending: 9/30/20


Variance
Favorable


(Unfavorable)
Original 
Budget


Current 
Budget EncumbrancesYTD Actual


Amended 
Budget Total


Percent
Used


66,060           66,060           66,060            15,219           15,219          (50,841)          23%
126,417         126,417         126,417          22,649           22,649          103,768         18%
(60,357)          (60,357)          (60,357)           (7,430)           (7,430)           52,927            12%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 335,177         335,177         335,177          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 274,820         274,820         274,820          


368,000         368,000         368,000          (422)               (422)              (368,422)        0%
20,000           20,000           20,000            -                 -                 20,000            0%


348,000         348,000         348,000          (422)               (422)              (348,422)        0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 1,558,131     1,558,131     1,558,131       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 1,906,131     1,906,131     1,906,131       


388,000         388,000         388,000          (114)               (114)              (388,114)        0%
780,598         780,598         780,598          74,503           74,503          706,095         10%


(392,598)       (392,598)       (392,598)         (74,617)         (74,617)        317,981         19%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 1,821,573     1,821,573     1,821,573       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 1,428,975     1,428,975     1,428,975       


-                  -                  -                   (91)                 (91)                 (91)                  0%
-                  -                  -                   -                 -                 -                  0%


0 0 0 (91)                 (91)                (91)                  0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 86,562           86,562           86,562            
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 86,562           86,562           86,562            


-                  -                  476                476                476                 0%
-                  -                  -                 -                 -                  0%
-                  -                  476                476                476                 0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 20,749           20,749           20,749            
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 20,749           20,749           20,749            


-                  -                  -                   (12)                 (12)                 (12)                  0%
-                  -                  -                   -                 -                 -                  0%
-                  -                  -                   (12)                 (12)                (12)                  0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 88,070           88,070           88,070            
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 88,070           88,070           88,070            


-                  -                  -                   9,953             9,953            9,953              0%
8,000              8,000              8,000               -                 -                 8,000              0%


(8,000)            (8,000)            (8,000)             9,953             9,953            17,953            -124%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 108,925         108,925         108,925          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 100,925         100,925         100,925          


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures Total:


Fund: 215 - Measure C and J Fund


Revenue Total:
Fund: 213 - Refuse Management Fund


 Refuse Management Fund Net Results:


Fund: 214 - Solid Waste Fund


 Measure C and J Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:
Revenue Total:


Revenue Total:


Fund: 275 - Parkland Dedication Fund


Solid Waste Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:
Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures Total:
ASp Certification and Training Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Parkland Dedication Fund Net Results:


Fund: 276 - Growth Impact Fund


Fund: 225 - Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund


Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund Net Results:


Fund: 226 - CASp Certification and Training Fun


Revenue Total:


 Growth Impact Fund Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


41 of 611







Proposed 
Adjustments


City of Pinole, CA For FY2020-21 Period Ending: 9/30/20


Variance
Favorable


(Unfavorable)
Original 
Budget


Current 
Budget EncumbrancesYTD Actual


Amended 
Budget Total


Percent
Used


-                  -                  -                   (42)                 (42)                 (42)                  0%
-                  -                  -                   -                 -                 -                  0%
-                  -                  -                   (42)                 (42)                (42)                  0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 (665)               (665)               (665)                 (665)              
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (665)               (665)               (665)                 (708)              


105,000         105,000         105,000          (1,086)            (1,086)           (106,086)        -1%
174,903         174,903         174,903          20,780           20,780          154,123         12%
(69,903)          (69,903)          (69,903)           (21,866)         (21,866)        48,037            31%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 7,819,515     7,819,515     7,819,515       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 7,749,612     7,749,612     7,749,612       


42,780           42,780           42,780            -                 -                 (42,780)          0%
42,780           42,780           42,780            2,439             2,439            40,341            6%


-                  -                  -                   (2,439)           (2,439)           (2,439)            0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 32,188           32,188           32,188            
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 32,188           32,188           32,188            


-                  -                  -                   2                     2                    2                      0%
-                  -                  -                   -                 -                 -                  0%
-                  -                  -                   2                     2                    (2)                    0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 (621)               (621)               (621)                 
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (621)               (621)               (621)                 


15,000           15,000           15,000            3,750             3,750            (11,250)          25%
14,867           14,867           14,867            4,127             4,127            10,740            28%


133                 133                 133                  (377)               (377)              (510)                -284%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 (309)               (309)               (309)                 
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (176)               (176)               (176)                 


70,000           70,000           70,000            -                 -                 70,000            0%
(70,000)          (70,000)          (70,000)           -                 -                70,000            0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 545,005         545,005         545,005          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 475,005         475,005         475,005          


250,000         250,000         250,000          -                 -                 (250,000)        0%
3,114,801      3,114,801      3,114,801       -                 -                 3,114,801      0%


(2,864,801)    (2,864,801)    (2,864,801)     -                 -                2,864,801      0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 1,294,914     1,294,914     1,294,914       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (1,569,887)    (1,569,887)    (1,569,887)     


Revenue Total:


Revenue Total:
Expenditures Total:


Fund: 310 - Lighting & Landscape Districts


Housing Land Held for Resale Net Results:


Revenue Total:
Fund: 277 - Development Services


Fund: 285 - Housing Land Held for Resale


Expenditures Total:
Development Services Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:
Pinole Valley Park Net Results:


Revenue Total:
Expenditures Total:


 Lighting & Landscape Districts Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:
Fund: 316 - Pinole Valley Park


Fund: 317 - Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund


City Street Improvements Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Expenditures Total:


Fund: 325 - City Street Improvements


Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund Net Results:


Fund: 324 - Public Facilities Fund


Public Facilities Fund Net Results:


42 of 611







Proposed 
Adjustments


City of Pinole, CA For FY2020-21 Period Ending: 9/30/20


Variance
Favorable


(Unfavorable)
Original 
Budget


Current 
Budget EncumbrancesYTD Actual


Amended 
Budget Total


Percent
Used


-                  -                  -                   (12)                 (12)                 (12)                  0%
189,758         189,758         189,758          -                 -                 189,758         0%


(189,758)       (189,758)       (189,758)         (12)                 (12)                189,746         0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 25,437           25,437           25,437            
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (164,321)       (164,321)       (164,321)         


250,000         250,000         250,000          -                 -                 (250,000)        0%
1,439,281      1,439,281      1,439,281       -                 219,733           219,733        1,219,548      15%


(1,189,281)    (1,189,281)    (1,189,281)     -                 219,733           219,733        969,548         -18%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 774,582         774,582         774,582          
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (414,699)       (414,699)       (414,699)         


7,648,971      7,648,971      7,648,971       499,106        499,106        (7,149,864)     7%
8,232,681      8,232,681      1,089,104     9,321,785       2,538,122     2,538,122    6,783,663      27%
(583,711)       (583,710)       (1,089,104)   (1,672,814)     (2,039,016)   (2,039,016)   (366,202)        122%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 19,784,826   19,784,826   19,784,826    
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 19,201,116   19,201,116   18,112,012    


-                  -                  -                   56                   56                  56                    0%
-                  -                  -                   7,790             7,790            (7,790)             0%
-                  -                  -                   (7,734)           (7,734)           (7,734)            0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 2,911,107     2,911,107     2,911,107       
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 2,911,107     2,911,107     2,911,107       


512,419         512,419         512,419          33,364           33,364          (479,056)        7%
539,309         539,309         539,309          95,116           95,116          444,194         18%
(26,890)          (26,890)          (26,890)           (61,752)         (61,752)        (34,862)          230%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 (35,235)          (35,235)          (35,235)           
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (62,126)          (62,126)          (62,126)           


802,890         802,890         802,890          157,939        157,939        644,951         20%
(802,890)        (802,890)        (802,890)         (157,939)       (157,939)      (644,951)        20%


0 0 -                 -                0 0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 (196,169)       (196,169)       (196,169)         
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 (196,169)       (196,169)       (196,169)         


-                  -                  -                   (12)                 (12)                 (12)                  0%
-                  -                  -                   -                 -                 -                  0%
-                  -                  -                   (12)                 (12)                (12)                  0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 13,350           13,350           13,350            
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 13,350           13,350           13,350            


Indirect cost allocations Total:
 Information Systems Net Results:


Revenue Total:
Expenditures Total:


Plant Expansion Fund Net Results:


Fund: 505 - Cable Access TV
Revenue Total:


Fund: 503 - Plant Expansion Fund


Sewer Enterprise Fund Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


Expenditures Total:
Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund Net Results:


Fund: 500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund
Revenue Total:


Park Grants (Measure WW) Net Results:
Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:
Fund: 377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund


Fund: 327 - Park Grants (Measure WW)


Total Expenditures
Asset Seizure-Unadjudicated Net Results:


Fund: 704 - Asset Seizure-Unadjudicated
Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


Fund: 525 - Information Systems


Cable Access TV Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Revenue Total:


43 of 611







Proposed 
Adjustments


City of Pinole, CA For FY2020-21 Period Ending: 9/30/20


Variance
Favorable


(Unfavorable)
Original 
Budget


Current 
Budget EncumbrancesYTD Actual


Amended 
Budget Total


Percent
Used


-                  -                  -                   (1)                    (1)                   (1)                     0%
-                  -                  -                   -                 -                 -                  0%
-                  -                  -                   (1)                   (1)                   (1)                    0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 1,738             1,738             1,738               
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 1,738             1,738             1,738               


-                  -                  -                   3                     3                    3                      0%
-                  -                  -                   -                 -                 -                  0%
-                  -                  -                   3                     3                    3                      0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 189                 189                 189                  
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 189                 189                 189                  


250,000         250,000         250,000          (1,716)            (1,716)           (251,716)        -1%
250,000         250,000         250,000          3,270,031     3,270,031    (3,020,031)     1308%


-                  -                  -                   (3,271,747)   (3,271,747)   (3,271,747)    0%


Fund Balance July 1, 2020 6,289             6,289             6,289               
Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2021 6,289             6,289             6,289               


Revenue Total:
Fund: 716 - Pinole Public School


Revenue Total:
Expenditures Total:


 gnized Obligation Retirement Fund Net Results:


Fund: 723 - Police Evidence Trust


Police Evidence Trust Net Results:


Fund: 750 - Recognized Obligation Retirement F


Total Expenditures:
Pinole Public School Net Results:


Expenditures Total:
Revenue Total:


44 of 611







RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, MODIFYING THE CITY BUDGET FOR 


FISCAL YEAR 2020-21 


WHEREAS, the City Council did adopt a Budget for City Operations by 
Resolution number 2020-58 on June 16, 2020; and 


WHEREAS, the City Manager has presented proposed recommendations for 
modification of the adopted budget and programs of service for the City of Pinole 
Operations for fiscal year 2020-21 as part of a First Quarter Financial Report at the regular 
City Council Meeting held on November 17, 2020; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council has considered these recommended changes, as to 
the matter of the City budget; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council has solicited public input on the proposed 
modifications to the FY 2020-21 Operations Budget. 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole 
as follows: 


Modifications to the budget, including any requisite use of appropriate Fund 
Balance, for the City of Pinole for Fiscal Year 2020-21 commencing July 1, 2020 and 
ending June 30, 2021 are hereby approved and adopted as follows: 


FY 2020-21 Budget Adjustments 


Sewer Fund (500): 


Expenditures - Principal and Interest  $1,089,184 


PASSED AND ADOPTED this 17h day of November 2020, by the following vote: 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  


NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 


ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on this 17th day 
of November, 2020. 


ATTACHMENT B


45 of 611







 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 


46 of 611







   


 
 


 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 7E                                
   


 
DATE: NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: GENIE ROCHA, FINANCE CONSULTANT 
  DEBBIE LONG, CITY TREASURER 
 
SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE 


QUARTER ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2020 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Receive the Quarterly Investment Report for the quarter ending September 30, 2020. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Pinole Investment Policy requires that a Quarterly Investment Report be 
submitted to the City Council. The attached Investment Report for the quarter ended 
September 30, 2020 conforms to the City’s Investment Policy as well as all applicable 
State and federal requirements, particularly California Government Code Section 53646. 
 
The funds that the City invests, and which are reported in the Quarterly Investment 
Report, are comprised of cash and investment balances across all City funds. For 
example, the City’s General Fund (Fund 100) has cash and investments of $2,220,427 
which is part of the total General Fund fund balance. (In addition to cash and investments, 
fund balance also includes receivables.) The Sewer Funds (Fund 500 and 503) have cash 
and investments of $15,166,466. The cash and investment balances across all City funds 
are “pooled” for investment purposes, with the exception of the General Reserve, which 
is discussed further below. Interest earned on investments is allocated to the various 
funds based on the cash balances of those funds. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
All investments held at September 30, 2020 conform to the City’s Investment Policy and 
all applicable State and federal requirements.  


Investment Instruments 
 
The City Treasurer and Finance Director select the instruments in which to invest the 
City’s funds in order to best meet the objectives laid out in the City’s Investment Policy. 
The balances held in different investment instruments at September 30, 2020 are noted 
in Attachment A and summarized in the table below. The bulk of the City’s investment 
funds are invested in the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), 


47 of 611







City Council Report 7E 
November 17, 2020  2 


because of the safety and liquidity of the investment pool. LAIF and other pooled funds 
(CalTrust) make up 73.5% of the City’s investment portfolio. Money Market and mutual 
funds comprise 9.37% and are maintained for cashflow purposes. Long-term investments 
(those with maturities greater than one year, such as Certificates of Deposit, Medium-
Term Corporate Notes, and Federal Agency Securities) make up 17.13% of the City’s 
portfolio. These long-term investments yield greater interest earnings for funds that are 
not needed for short-term cash flow purposes. 
 
Funds in the City’s General Reserve are maintained in an account that is separate from 
the rest of the pooled funds. This enables the Finance Director to implement a directed 
investment plan for the General Reserve funds. The City’s practice has been to invest 
these funds in instruments with longer duration, thereby yielding greater investment 
earnings. 
 


Investments  Market Value  % of Portfolio 
Investment Pool - LAIF 27,308,413  65.44% 
Investment Pool - CalTrust 3,364,117 8.06% 
Money Market Savings 3,580,954 8.58% 
Mutual Funds 328,110  .79% 
Certificates of Deposit 4,337,880 10.39% 
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 2,312,150  5.54% 
Federal Agency Securities 500,900  1.20% 
Investment Total $      41,732,525 100.00% 


 
Investment Yield and Duration 
 
The aggregate yield of the City’s investment portfolio for the quarter ended September 
30, 2020 was 1.053%, summarized in the table below. LAIF yields have decreased over 
the past year and are lower than long-term investment yields in most cases. Money 
market savings accounts earned 0.040% interest. Long-term investments yielded 1.605% 
on average. Earnings on investments held until maturity typically fluctuate with market 
conditions and are considered “unrealized” prior to maturity. The City expects to yield a 
gain on all investments at maturity. 
 
 


Investments 
September 30, 2020 


Yield  
September 30, 2019 


Yield  
Investment Pool - LAIF 0.685 2.390 
Investment Pool - CalTrust 0.365 1.940 
Money Market Savings 0.040 0.063 
Mutual Funds 0.995 1.750 
Certificates of Deposit 1.621 2.032 
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 2.513 2.710 
Federal Agency Securities 0.680 2.015 
Average Yield 1.053 1.777 


 


48 of 611







City Council Report 7E 
November 17, 2020  3 


The Federal Reserve has kept interest rates unchanged since March 2020. The Federal 
Funds yield has historically been similar to LAIF’s yield (Pooled Money Investment 
Account (PMIA)) (see chart below). Currently the Federal Funds yield is below LAIF. 
 


 
 


Cash Flows 


The funds held in investments, as well as the very small amount of funds that the City 
maintains in traditional bank savings accounts with Mechanics Bank and which are not 
reported in the Quarterly Investment Report, provide the working capital for the City’s 
operations. There are sufficient funds as of September 30, 2020 to cover anticipated 
expenditures through the next six months. 
 
Investment Strategy 


The City utilizes a passive investment management approach by buying and holding 
securities until maturity. A “laddered maturity” investment strategy is applied to the long-
term portion of our investment portfolio. A laddered portfolio is structured with securities 
that have different maturity dates. As securities are called or mature, proceeds are 
reinvested in a new security with another long term at the end of the ladder. Laddering 
helps to minimize interest-rate risk, increase liquidity, and diversify credit risk. 
 
Staff continues to monitor rates of return on City funds invested and make modifications 
to best achieve the objectives laid out in the Investment Policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 


There is no fiscal impact from receiving the Quarterly Investment Report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 


A –Investment Report - Quarter Ending September 30, 2020 


49 of 611







CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT SEPTEMBER 2020
PORTFOLIO SUMMARY


Weighted
Days to Average


Investments Par Value Market Value Book Value % of Portfolio Maturity Yield Maturity


Investment Pool - LAIF 27,308,413 27,308,413 27,308,413                 65.44% 1 0.685 1
Investment Pool - CalTrust 3,364,117 3,364,117 3,364,117 8.06% 1 0.365 0
Money Market Savings 3,580,954 3,580,954 3,580,954 8.58% 1 0.040 0
Mutual Funds 328,110    328,110 328,110 0.79% 1 0.995 0
Certificates of Deposit 4,215,000 4,337,880 4,337,880 10.39% 872 1.621 5
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 2,250,000 2,312,150 2,312,150 5.54% 477 2.513 7
Federal Agency Securities 500,000    500,900 500,900 1.20% 1,714 0.680 21


Subtotal Investments 41,546,594$             41,732,525$              41,732,525               100.00% 511 1.053 6


Average Years: 1.4
Cash


Mechanics Bank - Vendor Checking * 1,545,532 1,545,532 1,545,532 1 
Bank of the West - Payroll Checking * 931,612 931,612 931,612    1 
Bank of the West - Checking (Credit Card Clearing) * 171,718 171,718 171,718    1


Subtotal Cash 2,648,862 2,648,862 2,648,862 1


Total Cash and Investments 44,195,456$             44,381,386$              44,381,386$             


*Not included in yield calculations


The above investments are consistent with the City's Investment Policy and allowable under current legislation of the State of California.  Investments were selected using safety, 
liquidity and yield as the criteria.  The source of the market values for the investments are provided by US Bank in accordance with the California Government Code requirement.  
The City has sufficient cash flow to cover anticipated expenditures through the next six months.


Investment Pool
73%


Money Market Savings
9%


Mutual Funds
1%


Certificates of Deposit
10%


Medium-Term Corporate 
Notes


6%


Federal Agency Securities
1%


CITY OF PINOLE - INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
September 2020


ATTACHMENT A


50 of 611







CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT SEPTEMBER 2020
PORTFOLIO DETAILS


Type / 
Account 
Number CUSIP Issuer Investment Description Manager GL Acct # Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Yield


Days to 
Maturity


S&P 
Rating


Maturity 
Date


Weighted 
Average 
Maturity


Investment Pool
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Pooled Treasury - State of California LAIF 999-10201 27,308,413           27,308,413            27,308,413       0.685 0.685 1              N/A 1
CalTrust - Short Term Fund (City) Pooled Treasury - Joint Power Financing Authority CalTrust 999-10202 24,488                  24,488                   24,488              0.390 0.390 1              N/A 0
CalTrust - Medium Term Fund (City) Pooled Treasury - Joint Power Financing Authority CalTrust 999-10203 3,339,629             3,339,629              3,339,629         0.340 0.340 1              N/A 0


Subtotal and Average 30,672,529           30,672,529            30,672,529       0.472 0.472 1              0


Money Market Savings
Mechanics Bank Money Market Savings (City) City 999-10102 1,632,490             1,632,490              1,632,490         0.080 0.080 1              N/A 0
Bank of the West Money Market Savings - Police Evidence Trust City 999-10104 107,758                107,758                 107,758            0.010 0.010 1              N/A 0


84501100 999491905 Wells Fargo Bank Money Market - WPCP Escrow Wells Fargo 503-10302 1,840,707             1,840,707              1,840,707         0.030 0.030 1              N/A 0
Subtotal and Average 3,580,954             3,580,954              3,580,954         0.040 0.040 1              0


Mutual Funds
19-516680 U.S. Bank Accrued Income - City Reserve US Bank 150-10110 25,713                  25,713                   25,713              1.980 1.980 1              N/A 0
19-516680 31846V203 1st American Government Obligation Fund Mutual Fund Shares - Class "D" - City Reserve US Bank 150-10110 302,398                302,398                 302,398            0.010 0.010 1              N/A 0


Subtotal and Average 328,110                328,110                 328,110            0.995 0.995 1              0


Certificates of Deposit
19-516680 02007GLR2 Ally Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                254,983                 254,983            1.800 1.740 712          N/A 9/12/2022 4
19-516680 02587DJ90 American Express Centurion Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                248,030                 248,030            2.250 2.240 70            N/A 12/9/2020 0
19-516680 064520BG3 Bank of Princeton Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000                251,898                 251,898            0.500 0.500 1,552       N/A 12/30/2024 9
19-516680 05580ATL8 Bmw Bank North America Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                255,944                 255,944            1.800 1.740 804          N/A 12/13/2022 5
19-516680 140420A59 Capital One Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 248,000                250,879                 250,879            1.600 1.580 307          N/A 8/3/2021 2
19-516680 29976DQ86 Everbank Jacksonville FL Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 125,000                126,550                 126,550            1.500 1.480 316          N/A 8/12/2021 1
19-516680 38149MAY9 Goldman Sachs BK USA New York Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000                261,946                 261,946            2.600 2.440 978          N/A 6/5/2023 6
19-516680 58404DFE6 Medallion Bk Salt Lake City Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000                256,624                 256,624            1.700 1.650 719          N/A 9/19/2022 4
19-516680 59013KCZ7 Merrick Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000                259,851                 259,851            1.650 1.580 1,094       N/A 9/29/2023 7
19-516680 61690UGW4 Morgan Stanley Bank Na Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000                261,960                 261,960            2.600 2.440 979          N/A 6/6/2023 6
19-516680 61760AF46 Morgan Stanley Private Bk Natlassn Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000                261,960                 261,960            2.600 2.440 979          N/A 6/6/2023 6
19-516680 70212VAB4 Partners Bk helena Ark Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                249,994                 249,994            0.600 0.590 1,734       N/A 6/30/2025 10
19-516680 795450XM2 Sallie Mae Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 125,000                125,573                 125,573            2.200 2.190 77            N/A 12/16/2020 0
19-516680 84223QAN7 Southern Bankcorp Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000                251,900                 251,900            0.500 0.500 1,486       N/A 10/25/2024 9
19-516680 856285QG9 State Bk Indiana New York N Y Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000                254,030                 254,030            1.000 0.980 1,730       N/A 6/26/2025 11
19-516680 85916VDN2 Sterling Bank of Poplar Bluff Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                257,663                 257,663            1.650 1.580 1,083       N/A 9/18/2023 7
19-516680 9497485W3 Wells Fargo Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000                251,704                 251,704            1.750 1.730 260          N/A 6/17/2021 2
19-516680 949495AF2 Wells Fargo Bank Natl Bk West Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                256,391                 256,391            1.850 1.780 821          N/A 12/30/2022 5


Subtotal and Average 4,215,000             4,337,880              4,337,880         1.675 1.621 872          5


Medium-Term Corporate Notes
19-516680 037833BS8 Apple Inc. 2.25% Corporate MTN 02/23/2021 - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 500,000                503,520                 503,520            2.250 2.230 146          AA+ 2/23/2021 2
19-516680 478160BT0 Johnson Johnson 2.05% Corporate MTN 3/1/23 - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 750,000                779,205                 779,205            2.050 1.970 882          AAA 3/1/2023 16
19-516680 594918BW3 Microsoft Corp 2.40 % Corporate MTN 02/06/22- City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 500,000                513,870                 513,870            2.400 2.330 494          AAA 2/6/2022 6
19-516680 94988J5T0 Wells Fargo Bank Na 3.625 % Corporate MTN 10/22/21- City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 500,000                515,555                 515,555            3.625 3.520 387          A+ 10/22/2021 5


Subtotal and Average 2,250,000             2,312,150              2,312,150         2.581 2.513 477          7


Federal Agency Securities
19-516680 3133ELH80 Federal Farm Credit Bks .680% Agency Bond 6/10/25 US Bank 150-10110 500,000                500,900                 500,900            0.680 0.680 1,714       AA+ 6/10/2025 21


Subtotal and Average 500,000                500,900                 500,900            0.680 0.680 1,714       21


Investment Portfolio Total and Average 41,546,594$      41,732,525$        41,732,525$   1.074 1.053 511 6


Average Years : 1.4


51 of 611







   


 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 7F 
 


 
DATE: NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  


FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING A COMPENSATION AND 


BENEFITS PLAN FOR MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL 
EMPLOYEES 


 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving a 
Compensation and Benefits Plan for Management and Confidential Employees (“Plan”). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
City staff in the following management and confidential job classifications are currently 
employed under individual employment agreements (IEAs, sample attached): 
 
• Assistant City Manager 
• Development Services Director / City Engineer 
• Finance Director 
• Fire Battalion Chief 
• Fire Chief 
• Human Resources Specialist 
• Planning Manager 
• Police Chief 
• Police Lieutenant 
• Public Works Manager 
• Recreation Manager 
• Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager 
 
The use of IEAs for these classifications is an arrangement that has provided the City 
with flexibility because, through IEAs, the City has been able to set specific, 
individualized salary, benefits, and other provisions for each employee. However, 
having IEAs with differing provisions has created an administrative burden and resulted 
in inconsistency in how different employees are treated. 
 


52 of 611







City Council Report, 7F 
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  2 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
City staff has prepared a Compensation and Benefits Plan for Management and 
Confidential Employees (“Plan”) for Council’s consideration based on commonalities 
among the current IEAs, best practices, current legal requirements, and input from 
affected employees. It addresses the following common terms and conditions of 
employment, which have historically been addressed for Pinole’s management and 
confidential employees in IEAs: 
 
• Salary, potential cost of living adjustments (COLA), performance evaluation, and 


merit increases; 
• Severance; 
• Leaves; 
• Medical, retirement, and other miscellaneous benefits; and 
• Special compensation and allowances. 
 
Although the Plan is based in large part on the commonalities among the current IEAs, 
it does differ from current IEAs in some regards. Whereas IEAs provide COLAs to 
management and confidential employees equivalent to that provided to City employees 
in another bargaining unit, the Plan establishes that the City Council will determine a 
COLA specifically for management and confidential employees, which provides the City 
Council with more flexibility. And, whereas IEAs do not specify salary ranges, the Plan 
contains salary ranges for each classification, comparable in breadth to the five-step 
range of other City employees. The salary range for each classification in the Plan was 
established based on Pinole’s historic practice regarding salaries for different 
classifications, employees’ current salaries, common practice among peer jurisdictions, 
internal equity considerations, and other common practices. The Plan also specifies a 
framework for performance evaluation and the consideration of merit increases, which is 
not addressed in IEAs. Finally, the current IEAs of management and confidential 
employees are limited term, whereas employment under the Plan will not be limited 
term. 
 
Although one goal of the Plan is to simplify personnel administration by establishing a 
standard set of terms and conditions for employment of management and confidential 
employees, there are some special terms and conditions that apply to specific 
classifications with unusual work circumstances. For example, some employees are 
entitled in the Plan to take-home vehicles and uniform allowance. In addition, the Fire 
Battalion Chief classification is unique among the classifications covered by the Plan in 
that it does shift work, meaning that it works a specific shift (56 hours, in the Battalion 7 
arrangement), which someone must cover, and that is outside of the standard Monday 
through Friday daytime schedule that all other management and confidential employees 
work. Because the Fire Battalion Chief does shift work, it does not have the same 
flexibility to have holidays off or take leave that the other employees covered by the 
Plan have. To address this, the Plan contains a provision that the Fire Battalion Chief be 
paid for holidays in lieu of taking them off and receive overtime when they are required 
to backfill for a shift in the Battalion 7 arrangement that would normally be covered by 
another Battalion 7 agency (either Confire or Rodeo-Hercules). 


53 of 611







City Council Report, 7F 
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  3 


 
If the Plan is adopted by the City Council, the City will allow employees with IEAs to 
transition to the Plan immediately, or when their current IEAs expire. 
 
Note that the City Manager and City Clerk, which are the only two management 
classifications that report directly to the City Council, are currently employed under 
IEAs. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
City staff do not expect there to be any significant fiscal impact due to transitioning from 
IEAs to the Plan. The Plan is intended to simplify and standardize the terms and 
conditions of employment for management and confidential employees. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Resolution 
B. Sample Individual Employment Agreement (IEA) 
C. Compensation and Benefits Plan for Management and Confidential Employees 
 


54 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-___ 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A COMPENSATION AND 


BENEFITS PLAN FOR MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES 
 


 
WHEREAS, City staff in management and confidential job classifications are 


currently employed under individual employment agreements (IEAs); and 
 
WHEREAS, although the use of IEAs for these classifications is an arrangement 


that has provided the City with flexibility, having IEAs with differing provisions has created 
an administrative burden and resulted in inconsistency in how different employees are 
treated; and 


 
WHEREAS, having IEAs with differing provisions has resulted in an issue 


regarding pension benefits; and 
 
WHEREAS, City staff has prepared a Plan for Council’s consideration based on 


commonalities among the current IEAs, best practices, current legal requirements, and 
input from affected employees; 
 


NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
does hereby approve the City of Pinole Compensation and Benefits Plan for Management 
and Confidential Employees. 
 


PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on 
the 17th day of November 2020 by the following vote: 


 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


55 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 1 of 9  


AGREEMENT FOR EMPLOYMENT OF 
XXXXX 


 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between the City of Pinole (“the 


City”), a general law city, and XXXXXX (“XXXXX” or “Employee”).  This Agreement 
(“Agreement”) will become effective as specified herein.   


 
1. Appointment of XXXXX as XXXXXX Director:   
 
The City Manager is authorized to negotiate the terms of an agreement with 


XXXXX for his/her services.  The City Manager and XXXXX have engaged in such 
negotiations, and XXXXXX and the City now desire to agree in writing to the terms and 
conditions of XXXXX’s employment as XXXXXX Director. 


 
2. Term of Agreement:   
 
This Agreement will become effective on the date executed by the City Manager, 


and will continue for a term of four (4) years.  The parties to this Agreement may 
terminate this Agreement pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 5.           


3. At-Will Employment: 


XXXXXX is an “at will” employee who shall serve at the pleasure of the City 
Manager.   Accordingly, the City Manager may terminate XXXXXX’s employment at any 
time, with or without cause.  This provision may not be altered except by a written 
instrument executed by XXXXXX and the City Manager, which specifically references 
this Agreement and section.   


4. Duties and Responsibilities:   
 


a. XXXXXX shall commence his/her duties as XXXXXX Director 
effective XXXXX, 20XX.   


 
b. XXXXXX shall serve as the XXXXXX Director for the City subject to 


the terms and conditions set forth herein. XXXXXX shall also perform the 
functions and duties specified under the laws of the State of California; the 
Municipal Code of the City; the Ordinances and Resolutions of the City; the job 
description for the XXXXXX Director position; and such other duties and 
functions as the City Manager may from time-to-time assign under the periodic 
performance evaluations anticipated under Section 11 of this Agreement.   


 
c. XXXXXX agrees to devote his/her productive time, ability and 


attention to the City’s business.  For the duration of this Agreement, XXXXXX 
shall not hold secondary employment, and shall be employed exclusively by the 
City, subject to any exceptions approved in writing by the City Manager.  As an 
exempt employee, XXXXXX shall not receive overtime or extra compensation for 
work performed outside normal business hours.   


56 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 2 of 9  


 
5. Termination of Employment and Severance: 
 


a. XXXXXX may terminate this Agreement with or without cause, by 
giving the City Manager thirty (30) days written notice in advance of termination.  
During the notice period, all the rights and obligations of the parties under this 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 


b. The City Manager may terminate this Agreement with or without 
cause, subject to any limitations in the Municipal Code at the time of termination.   


 
c. In the event the City terminates XXXXXXXX’s employment without 


cause after the first twelve (12) months of employment, the City shall pay 
XXXXXXXXX severance in a sum equal to one (1) month base salary and the 
value of continuation of all medical benefits for a period of one (1) month, for 
every year of service, up to a maximum of six (6) months base salary and the 
value of continuation of all medical benefits for a period of six (6) months 
(collectively “Severance”) under this Agreement.  Such severance is contingent 
upon XXXXXXX signing and delivering a general release of all claims against the 
City (including without limitation its former and current elected officials, 
employees, officers and agents).  Any severance amount paid pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be subject to the restrictions set forth in California Government 
Code § 53260.  If XXXXX retires within 120 days after separation, and becomes 
eligible for coverage under the City’s retiree health plan, XXXXX shall reimburse 
the City the full value of the health premium portion of the severance payment.   


 
d. If XXXXXX is terminated for “cause,” the City shall not owe any 


severance under this Agreement.  The determination of whether there is “cause” 
for termination shall include but not be limited to those items listed in the 
Personnel Rules.  


 
6. Compensation:   


 
a. Effective XXXXX, 20XX, XXXXXX shall be paid an annual base 


salary of $XXXXXX, less all applicable federal, state and local withholding.  
XXXXXX shall be considered for a merit increase annually in conjunction with the 
completion of his performance evaluation, as outlined in paragraph 11.  Merit 
increases shall subject to the City’s ability to pay for a salary increase. 


 
b. XXXXXX shall receive cost of living salary increases equal to that 


provided to the AFSCME bargaining unit.   
  
c. XXXXXX shall receive the benefits identified in Exhibit A to this 


Agreement. 
 


57 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 3 of 9  


7. Hours of Work: 
 


 XXXXXX may work under a “flexible” time schedule, in consultation with the City 
Manager. 


 
8. Indemnification: 
 
The City shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify XXXXXX against any lawsuit 


pursuant and subject to the provisions and limitations of California Government Code 
section 825, provided such lawsuit is against XXXXXX for acts within the course and 
scope of his employment.  The City may decline to defend and/or indemnify only as 
permitted by the California Government Code.  The City may compromise and settle 
any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any settlement or judgment therefrom.  


 
9. Notices: 
 
Notices pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing given by deposit in the 


custody of the United States Postal Service, first class postage prepaid, addressed as 
follows: 


a. The City:   
City Manager 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 
 


b. XXXXXX:  
To the address shown as current in the payroll system 
 


Alternatively, notices required pursuant to this Agreement may be personally 
served in the same manner as is applicable to civil judicial process.  Notice shall be 
deemed given as of the date of personal service or as of the date of deposit of such 
written notice, postage prepaid, with the United States Postal Service. 


 
10. Arbitration: 
 


  a. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Agreement 
or the breach thereof, or arising out of or relating to XXXXXX’s employment or 
termination thereof, including but not limited to claims of employment discrimination 
based on federal and state law, which cannot be resolved among the parties 
themselves, shall, on the written request of either party served on the other within the 
applicable statute of limitations, be submitted and resolved by final and binding 
arbitration in a manner consistent with the Federal Arbitration Act, if applicable, or the 
California Code of Civil Procedure (including CCP Section 1283.05).  Service of the 
written request shall be made only be certified mail, with a return receipt requested.  
Time is of the essence; if the request is not served within a one-year period for claims 
arising out of this Agreement, or within the applicable statute of limitations for the 
alleged federal and state law claims, the complaining party’s claim(s) shall be forever 
waived and barred before any and all forums, including, without limitation, arbitration or 
judicial forums. 


58 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 4 of 9  


  b. The Arbitrator shall have no authority to alter, amend, modify or 
change any of the terms of this Agreement unless a provision expressly conflicts with 
applicable federal or state laws.  Any arbitrator selected under this provision shall have 
the express authority to consider statutory violations of federal and state law in addition 
to disputes involving this Agreement. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be final and 
binding and judgment therein may be entered in any court having jurisdiction over the 
dispute. 


 
  c. The Arbitration shall be conducted under the National Rules 
(“Rules”) for the Resolution of Employment Disputes of the American Arbitration 
Association (“AAA”) current at the time of the dispute.  In the event that any of the 
above Rules are determined to be in conflict with federal or state law, then the arbitrator 
shall have the authority to amend the Rules accordingly.  The City shall be responsible 
for paying all the AAA’s administrative and arbitrator’s fees.  In all other respects, the 
parties shall bear their own attorneys’ fees and costs except as otherwise required by 
law.  The parties shall have the right to conduct discovery which provides them with 
access to documents and witnesses that are essential to the dispute, as determined by 
the arbitrator.  The arbitrator’s written award shall include the essential findings and 
conclusions upon which the award is based. 


 
  d. The parties intend that this arbitration procedure is mandatory and 
shall be the exclusive means of resolving all disputes whether founded in fact or law 
between Employee and the City and/or its employees, elected officials, directors, 
agents, officers or managers arising out of or relating to this Agreement, the parties’ 
employment relationship and/or the termination of that relationship, including, but not 
limited to, any controversies or claims pertaining to wrongful or constructive discharge, 
violations of the covenant of good faith and fair dealing, implied contracts, public 
policies, anti-discrimination statutes or any employment-related statutes.  THE 
PARTIES EXPRESSLY WAIVE ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY RIGHT TO 
HAVE ANY SUCH DISPUTE DECIDED IN A COURT OF LAW AND/OR BY A JURY IN 
A COURT PROCEEDING. 
 


11. Performance Evaluations: 
 
The City Manager shall review and evaluate the performance of XXXXXX every 


twelve (12) months, or on any other schedule deemed appropriate by the City Manager.  
At the time of each evaluation, performance goals shall be discussed that will be used 
to assist in the evaluation of XXXXXX’s performance in the future.  The performance 
evaluation shall be documented in memo form and shall address the ongoing role of 
XXXXXX, an evaluation of past performance and mutual expectations of future 
performance.  These memos shall further define the role and performance expectations 
of XXXXXX.   
 


12. Dues and Subscriptions: 
 
The City shall pay for the professional dues and subscriptions of XXXXXX 


necessary for his continuation and full participation in appropriate professional 
organizations, subject to available budgeted funds. 


59 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 5 of 9  


 
13. Professional Development: 


 
 At the time of the execution of this Agreement, the parties acknowledge that 
XXXXXX is, or will be, a member of various professional and service organizations.  In 
addition, other organizations sponsor and offer short courses, institutes, seminars, and 
the like, which would be beneficial to XXXXXX’s professional development.   
 


XXXXXX is permitted, encouraged, and in some instances, required by the City, 
to attend such meetings, activities, seminars, courses, institutes, and the like, as 
deemed appropriate by the City Manager.  XXXXXX’s travel, subsistence, and other 
related expenses shall be reimbursed consistent with applicable City policy and 
available budgeted funds. 
 


14. Miscellaneous: 
 
 a. The text herein shall constitute the entire agreement between the 
parties.  This Agreement may not be modified, except by written agreement 
executed by both parties.   
 
 b. If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement 
is held unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this 
Agreement, or portion thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected 
and shall remain in full force and effect. 
 


c. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
California. 


 
d. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts containing 


original signatures. 
 
 
XXXXXX            
 
DATED:     _____________ 
 
 
CITY             
      XXXXXXXXX, City Manger 
 
DATED:     _____________ 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
            
XXXXXXXX     XXXXXXXXX 
City Clerk     City Attorney 


60 of 611







 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 6 of 9  


EXHIBIT A 
 
 Health, Vision, Dental, Retirement Benefits 


 
XXXXXX shall receive the same health, vision, dental, retirement, life insurance 
($40,000), long-term disability and other benefits, including PERS that are 
provided to all other Miscellaneous City employees.   
 
Premium Contributions:  The City’s contribution toward XXXXXX’s health 
insurance premium shall be based on the Kaiser XXXX rates, based on family 
status (single = $XXXX, 2-party = $XXXXX, or family = $XXXXX).  If XXXXXX 
elects to participate in the medical in-lieu benefit, the amount provided to 
XXXXXX shall be $225, $450, or $600 per month, depending on the family 
status.   


 
 Retiree Medical 


 
XXXXXXX and his/her spouse at the time of retirement shall be eligible to enroll 
on the City’s retiree medical plan, in accordance with the provisions of the 
CalPERS Health Plans and the CalPERS Health Vesting Schedule.   
 
The City shall make contributions toward XXXXXXX’s retiree health insurance 
premium in accordance with the CalPERS Health Vesting Schedule.   
 
Upon XXXXXXX’s death, his/her spouse shall continue to be eligible for 
enrollment on the City’s plan, in accordance with the CalPERS Health Plan 
eligibility requirements and restrictions. 
 


 Retirement Plan 
 
Classic Employees: 
 
The City currently participates in a retirement system through a contract with the 
California Public Employees Retirement System (CALPERS).  For the 
Miscellaneous Employees, including XXXXXX, the CALPERS contract offers the 
following options: 
 


 3% @ 55 Retirement Plan 
 Military Buy Back 
 Third Level Survivors Benefit 
 Single Highest Year Compensation Formula 
 Service for Unused Sick Leave 


 
XXXXXXX agrees to pay the full Employee Contribution to CalPERS (8%).   


 
 
 


61 of 611







 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 7 of 9  


New Employees: 
 
The City currently participates in a retirement system through a contract with the 
California Public Employees Retirement System (CALPERS). Effective January 
1, 2013, new employees falling under the PEPRA law shall pay 50% of the 
Normal Cost:    For the Safety Employees, including XXXXXX, the CALPERS 
contract offers the following options: 
 


• Third Level 1959 Survivors Benefits 
• Average of the three highest years of compensation 
• Service Credit for Unused Sick Leave  
• 2.7% at 57 Retirement Plan 


 
 Auto Allowance 


 
[Insert applicable language, if negotiated] 
 


 Cell Phone/PDA Stipend 
 
If XXXXXXX obtains a personal Cell Phone/PDA and wishes to utilize the device 
for business purposes, in lieu of a City issued PDA, the City shall provide XXXXX 
with a $60 monthly stipend.  This stipend shall be payable on one pay period 
each month and be subject to all federal and state withholding and tax laws. 
 
XXXXXX hereby acknowledges and agrees that receipt of this stipend means 
that any voice-mail, text or e-mail messages received on his/her personal device 
that are related to City business are property of the City and are subject to 
disclosure in accordance with the Public Records Act and applicable case law.  
XXXXXX further hereby confirms that he/she will provide authorization for the 
City to obtain such records from his/her service provider. 
 


 Deferred Compensation – 457 Plan 
 
The City makes a 457 plan available for XXXXXX to contribute to through payroll 
deduction. 
 


 Vacation 
 
XXXXXX shall accrue vacation leave at a rate of 96 hours per year, accrued 
incrementally each pay period.  Upon separation from the City, XXXXXX shall be 
paid for all unused accrued vacation leave based upon his base salary on the 
date of separation.  At the beginning of XXXXXX’s fifth (5th) year of employment 
his accrual rate will increase to 144 hours per year. At the beginning of 
XXXXXX’s tenth (10th) year of employment his accrual rate will increase to 160 
hours per year.  At the beginning of XXXXXX’s sixteenth (16th) year of 
employment his accrual rate will increase to 192 hours per year. 
 


62 of 611







 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 8 of 9  


XXXXXX may cash out up to 52 hours of vacation annually, provided that he has 
a minimum of 20 days (160 hours) accumulated. 


 
 Administrative Leave  


 
In addition to vacation leave, XXXXXX shall also accrue ninety-six (96) hours of 
administrative leave per year, accrued incrementally each pay period.  XXXXXX 
may cash out this leave at any time during the calendar year.  Any balance 
remaining at the end of each calendar year will automatically be paid to XXXXXX 
at his hourly base pay in effect on that date. 
 


 Sick Leave 
 
XXXXXX shall accrue ninety-six (96) hours of sick leave per year, accrued 
incrementally each pay period.  In addition, XXXXXX shall receive an additional 
four (4) hours of vacation accrual twice a year (8 hours total per year) if he does 
not use any sick leave during the six months of January-June and July-
December each year. 
 


 Other Leaves 
 
XXXXXX shall receive all other leaves, (Bereavement, Family and Medical, Jury 
Duty, Military, etc.) as provided to other Miscellaneous City employees.  
 
 


 Holidays 
 
XXXXXX shall receive the following legal paid holidays: 


 
 January 1 New Year’s Day 
 Third Monday in January  Martin Luther King’s Birthday 
 Third Monday in February Washington’s Birthday 
 Last Friday in March Caesar Chavez Day 
 Last Monday in May Memorial Day 
 July 4 Independence Day 
 First Monday in September Labor Day 
 November 11 Veteran’s Day 
 Fourth Thursday in November Thanksgiving 
 Fourth Friday in November Day after Thanksgiving 
 December 25 Christmas 
 


In the event that any of the aforementioned days falls on a Saturday, the 
preceding Friday shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. In the event 
that any of the aforementioned days falls on a Sunday, the following Monday 
shall be considered a holiday for pay purposes. 
 


63 of 611







 


XXXXXX Employment Agreement        XXXXX 20XX 
Page 9 of 9  


Every day proclaimed by the President or the Governor as a public fast, 
Thanksgiving, day of mourning, or holiday shall be observed as a holiday for pay 
purposes. 
 
In addition, XXXXXX shall receive twelve (12) hours of floating holiday each 
fiscal year.  These hours are not vested and must be taken by June 30th of each 
year or they will be lost. These hours may not be cashed out. 


 


64 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 
 


COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS PLAN 
FOR 


MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL 
EMPLOYEES  


 
 


Effective November 17, 2020 
  


.


65 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


i 


CITY OF PINOLE 
COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS PLAN 


MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES 
 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 


SECTION 1. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE.......................................................................1 


SECTION 2. ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN .......................................................................1 


SECTION 3. CLASSIFICATIONS .................................................................................................1 


SECTION 4. AT-WILL STATUS ...................................................................................................2 


SECTION 5. TRANSITION TO THE PLAN .................................................................................2 


SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE ...................................................................................................2 


SECTION 7. MANAGEMENT SALARY RANGES .....................................................................3 


A. Initial Salary .............................................................................................................3 


B. Base Compensation Structure ..................................................................................3 


SECTION 8. COST OF LIVING AND PAY RANGE ADJUSTMENTS ......................................3 


SECTION 9. MERIT INCREASES AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS ...........................3 


A. Basis for Merit Increases .........................................................................................3 


B. Performance Evaluation Process..............................................................................3 


C. Merit Adjustment Guidelines ...................................................................................4 


D. Cap on Merit Increases ............................................................................................4 


SECTION 10. EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS .....................................................................................4 


SECTION 11. SEVERANCE PAY .................................................................................................4 


SECTION 12. SICK LEAVE ..........................................................................................................6 


A. Rate of Sick Leave Earned .......................................................................................6 


B. Sick Leave Incentive ................................................................................................6 


C. Other Use of Sick Leave ..........................................................................................6 


SECTION 13. HOLIDAYS .............................................................................................................6 


SECTION 14. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE .................................................................................7 


A. Department Heads ....................................................................................................7 


B. All Other Classifications ..........................................................................................7 


SECTION 15. OTHER LEAVES ....................................................................................................7 


SECTION 16. VACATION .............................................................................................................7 


66 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


ii 


A. Rate of Vacation Earned ..........................................................................................7 


SECTION 17. MEDICAL BENEFITS ............................................................................................8 


A. Health Insurance ......................................................................................................8 


B. Retiree Medical Insurance .......................................................................................8 


C. Medical In-Lieu .......................................................................................................9 


SECTION 18. DENTAL INSURANCE ..........................................................................................9 


A. Dental Insurance Provided .......................................................................................9 


B. Orthodontic Insurance Provided ............................................................................10 


SECTION 19. VISION INSURANCE ..........................................................................................10 


A. Vision Insurance Provided .....................................................................................10 


SECTION 20. LIFE INSURANCE ...............................................................................................10 


A. Life Insurance Provided .........................................................................................10 


SECTION 21. DISABILITY INSURANCE .................................................................................10 


A. Disability Insurance Provided ................................................................................10 


B. Disability Insurance Premium Rates ......................................................................10 


C. Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade ...............................................................11 


SECTION 22. DOMESTIC PARTNER MEDICAL COVERAGE ..............................................11 


A. Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined ........................................................11 


SECTION 23. INCENTIVE BENEFITS .......................................................................................11 


A. Educational Degree ................................................................................................11 


SECTION 24. RETIREMENT PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES..........................................................12 


A. Retirement Plan Defined ........................................................................................12 


B. CalPERS Contract Benefits – Classic Employees .................................................12 


C. CalPERS Employer Contribution Rate Sharing Formula for Classic 
Employees ..............................................................................................................12 


D. CalPERS Contract Benefits – PEPRA Employees ................................................13 


SECTION 25. DEFERRED COMPENSATION – 457 PLAN .....................................................13 


SECTION 26. CLOTHING AND EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE ...............................................13 


A. Uniform and Safety Equipment Allowance for Public Safety Employees ............13 


B. Safety Shoe Allowance ..........................................................................................13 


SECTION 27. AUTO ALLOWANCE ..........................................................................................14 


A. Police and Fire .......................................................................................................14 


B. All Other Employees..............................................................................................14 


67 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


iii 


C. Elimination of Auto Allowance .............................................................................14 


SECTION 28. CELLPHONE ALLOWANCE ..............................................................................14 


SECTION 29. FIRE BATTALION CHIEF BACKFILL FOR PARTNER AGENCY ................15 


EXHIBIT “A” 16 


MANAGEMENT GROUP SALARY RANGES  EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 17, 2020.............16 


68 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


1 


CITY OF PINOLE 
MANAGEMENT AND CONFIDENTIAL EMPLOYEES  


COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS PLAN 


ARTICLE ONE: INTRODUCTION 
SECTION 1. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE 


The City of Pinole (“City”) wishes to establish and maintain a plan of compensation and 
benefits for management and confidential personnel of the City. Accordingly, the City 
sets forth this “Management and Confidential Employees Compensation and Benefits 
Plan” (also known as the “Plan”).  


The purpose of this Plan is to establish the compensation and benefits applicable to the 
City’s management and confidential employees beyond those already approved in the 
Personnel Rules or other legislative actions of the City Council. Should there be any 
conflicting provisions between this Plan and the Personnel Rules, the Plan shall 
supersede.  


SECTION 2. ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN  


The Management and Confidential Employees Compensation and Benefits Plan shall be 
administered by the City Manager or his/her designee. The City Manager shall have the 
authority to establish and revise policies and procedures to ensure fair and equitable 
administration of the Plan.  


SECTION 3. CLASSIFICATIONS 


The following management and confidential classifications are covered by this Plan.  


• Assistant City Manager 
• Development Services Director / City Engineer 
• Finance Director 
• Fire Battalion Chief 
• Fire Chief 
• Human Resources Specialist 
• Planning Manager 
• Police Chief 
• Police Lieutenant 
• Public Works Manager 
• Recreation Manager 
• Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager 


69 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


2 


SECTION 4. AT-WILL STATUS 


All employees covered by this Plan are employed on an “at will” basis. Accordingly, both 
the City and the employee have the right to terminate the employment relationship at any 
time, with or without advance notice, and with or without cause.  


SECTION 5. TRANSITION TO THE PLAN 


The terms and conditions regarding compensation and benefits for the employees in 
classifications covered under this Plan are currently set forth in individual employment 
agreements (“IEA”). This Plan and the provisions herein shall replace any and all IEAs 
upon the expiration of the IEAs. Conversely, employees may elect to voluntarily 
transition to the Plan prior to the expiration of their IEA, and may do so in a written 
document signed by both the employee and the City Manager. The written document will 
state that the employee has voluntarily terminated their IEA and will be covered under 
the Plan going forward. When an employee transitions from an IEA to the Plan, the City 
Manager shall set the employee’s initial salary under the Plan based on the employee’s 
attainment of the knowledge and skills required by the classification and the employee’s 
performance to-date in carrying out the duties of the classification. If an employee’s 
salary under the IEA is less than the minimum annual salary in the Plan, upon 
transitioning, the employee’s salary shall be at least the minimum annual salary reflected 
in the Plan. The salaries of all employees in classifications covered under this Plan shall 
adhere to the ranges for the employee’s respective classification as set by the Plan 
regardless of whether or not the employee is covered by an IEA or has transitioned to the 
Plan. 


SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE 


This Plan will become effective on November 17, 2020, and will continue to be in effect 
unless otherwise modified by the City Council. 


 


  


70 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


3 


ARTICLE TWO: COMPENSATION 
 


SECTION 7. MANAGEMENT SALARY RANGES  


A. Initial Salary 


For new employees, the City Manager, or their designee, shall set the salary for 
individual employees covered by this Plan at the time of their initial appointment, within 
the established salary range for their classification. New hires may be appointed 
anywhere within the salary range for their classification. 


B. Base Compensation Structure 


As provided in Exhibit A, this Plan sets forth the base salary ranges for all classifications 
covered by this Plan. There shall be no specified or pre-determined “steps” within the 
salary ranges for employees covered by this Plan. Rather, each classification under this 
Plan shall be assigned an open salary range containing a 21.6% spread between the 
minimum and maximum points of the range. 


SECTION 8. COST OF LIVING AND PAY RANGE ADJUSTMENTS 


At least annually, the City Council will consider a cost of living adjustment to the salary 
ranges for all classifications covered by this Plan that considers inflationary increases in 
the cost of living. 


SECTION 9. MERIT INCREASES AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS  


A. Basis for Merit Increases 


In addition to the cost of living adjustment discussed above, an employee covered by this 
Plan may receive a merit increase, once per year in relation to their anniversary and 
annual performance appraisal. Merit increases will be based upon the quality of the 
employee’s performance in the preceding twelve (12) months. Merit increases shall result 
in an employee advancing within the established salary range for their classification by 
the amount of the merit increase. 


B. Performance Evaluation Process 


Performance evaluations for all employees covered under this Plan are the responsibility 
of the City Manager, who normally will delegate the responsibility of performance 
reviews to the covered employee’s department head. The process for performance 
evaluations shall be conducted in accordance with Section 14 in the Personnel Rules, 
unless expressly provided otherwise below. 


A performance evaluation shall be prepared at least annually on each employee’s 
anniversary date. 


71 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


4 


The evaluation process shall begin with each employee preparing a self-evaluation of 
their own performance during the prior year. In addition, the employee shall draft 
proposed goals and objectives for the coming year.  


The employee’s supervisor shall then evaluate the employee’s performance for the prior 
year. The evaluations of both the employee and supervisor shall focus on:  


(1) the employee’s performance of their regular duties and responsibilities; and 


(2) the employee’s attainment of specific goals and objectives established for the 
employee at the beginning of the review period (i.e. one year earlier).  


Following completion of the written evaluations, the employee and their supervisor shall 
meet to discuss both the quality of the employee’s performance of their regular duties and 
responsibilities and the employee’s degree of success in accomplishing the specific goals 
and objectives set for them the previous year. They shall also review the employee’s 
proposed goals and objectives for the coming year. 


C. Merit Adjustment Guidelines 


Employees may be granted a merit adjustment of up to five percent each year (5.0%) for 
exemplary performance. 


D. Cap on Merit Increases 


If an employee’s salary is at the top of the salary range for their classification, the 
employee shall not be eligible for a merit increase.  


If an employee's salary is below the top of the salary range for their classification, the 
employee may receive a merit increase in accordance with the provisions set forth above. 
If the amount of the merit increase awarded would cause the employee’s salary to exceed 
the top of his/her salary range, then the employee shall receive as a merit increase only 
that portion of the merit increase that will bring his/her salary to the top of his/her range. 


SECTION 10. EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS  


The City Manager may authorize an increase to an individual employee’s salary to 
address internal or external salary equity issues. Any equity adjustment shall consider 
relevant internal and external equity data in order to effectuate the intent of this section. 
Any adjusted salary must adhere to the minimum and maximum amounts of the 
employee’s classification range.  


SECTION 11. SEVERANCE PAY 


Except as specifically noted otherwise, this section shall apply to all employees covered 
under this Plan. 


72 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


5 


In the event that the City terminates the employment of any employee covered by the 
Plan without cause after the first twelve (12) months of employment, the City shall pay 
the employee severance, in a sum equal to one (1) month base salary and the value of 
continuation of health insurance coverage for a period of one (1) month for every year of 
service, up to a maximum of six (6) months base salary and the value of continuation of 
health insurance coverage for a period of six (6) months (collectively "Severance"). Such 
severance is contingent upon the employee signing and delivering a general release of all 
claims against the City (including without limitation its former and current elected 
officials, employees, officers and agents). If the employee retires subsequent to 
separation and receives coverage under the City’s retiree health plan within six months of 
separation, the employee shall reimburse the City for the portion of the Severance 
associated with the value of continuation of health insurance coverage attributable to 
post-employment months after which the employee had coverage through the City’s 
retiree health plan. If the employee is terminated for “cause,” the City shall not owe any 
severance under this Plan. The determination of whether there is “cause” for termination 
shall include but not be limited to those items listed in the Personnel Rules. The term 
“cause” only relates to the potential to receive severance, and has no bearing on an 
employee’s at-will status. 


 


  


73 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


6 


ARTICLE THREE: BENEFITS 
SECTION 12. SICK LEAVE 


A. Rate of Sick Leave Earned 


Employees covered under this Plan shall accrue ninety-six (96) hours of sick leave per 
year, accrued incrementally each pay period. 


B. Sick Leave Incentive 


An employee’s sick leave use shall be reviewed by the City at the end of each calendar 
year. Employees who do not use any sick leave for six (6) consecutive months within the 
calendar year shall receive an additional four (4) hours of accrued vacation time. 
Employees who do not use any sick leave for the entire calendar year (12 months) will 
receive an additional eight (8) hours of vacation time. 


C. Other Use of Sick Leave 


All other conditions regulating sick leave accruals, usage, and family leave contained 
within the City’s duly adopted Personnel Rules shall apply to all employees covered 
under this Plan. 


SECTION 13. HOLIDAYS 


Employees that do not perform public safety shift work shall receive the following legal 
paid holidays: 


• January 1 New Year's Day 
• Third Monday in January Martin Luther King's Birthday 
• Third Monday in February Washington's Birthday 
• Last Friday in March Caesar Chavez Day 
• Last Monday in May Memorial Day 
• July 4 Independence Day 
• First Monday in September Labor Day 
• November 11 Veteran's Day 
• Fourth Thursday in November Thanksgiving 
• Fourth Friday in November Day after Thanksgiving 
• December 25 Christmas  


In the event that any of the aforementioned days falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday 
shall be considered a holiday for pay and leave purposes. In the event that any of the 
aforementioned days falls on a Sunday, the following Monday shall be considered a 
holiday for pay and leave purposes. Every day proclaimed by the President or the 
Governor as a public fast, Thanksgiving, day of mourning, or holiday shall be observed 
as a holiday for pay purposes.  


74 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


7 


In addition, employees covered under this Plan shall receive twelve (12) hours of floating 
holidays each fiscal year. These hours are not vested and must be taken by June 30th of 
each year or they will be lost. These hours may not be cashed out. 


Employees that perform public safety shift work shall receive 11.2 hours of straight time 
pay for each holiday listed above in lieu of receiving paid time off. 


SECTION 14. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE 


A. Department Heads  


The following classifications shall be entitled to receive administrative leave at an accrual 
rate of ninety-six (96) hours per year, accrued incrementally each pay period, and may 
cash out no more than sixty-four (64) hours each year. Any balance remaining at the end 
of each calendar year will automatically be paid out at the employees’ hourly base pay in 
effect on that date. 


• Assistant City Manager 
• Development Services Director/City Engineer 
• Finance Director 
• Fire Chief 
• Police Chief 


 
B. All Other Classifications 


Unless otherwise provided under this section, all other classifications covered by this 
Plan shall be entitled to receive administrative leave at an accrual rate of sixty (60) hours 
per year, accrued incrementally each pay period, and may cash out no more than forty 
(40) hours each year. Any balance remaining at the end of each calendar year will 
automatically be paid out at the employees’ hourly base pay in effect on that date. 


SECTION 15. OTHER LEAVES 


Employee covered by this Plan shall receive all other leaves (Bereavement, Family and 
Medical, Jury Duty, Military, etc.) as provided to other Miscellaneous City employees. 


SECTION 16. VACATION 


A. Rate of Vacation Earned    


Employees shall accrue vacation at the following rates, up to the following maximums, 
for continuous years of service performed: 


Years of Service        Hours Accrued Per Year          Maximum Accrual (Hours) 
 0 – 4    96     192 
 5 – 9    144     288 
 10 – 15   160     320 
 16+    192     384 


75 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


8 


The City Manager may grant a new employee a higher initial rate of annual accrual based 
on years of public service with other agencies or other appropriate factors. If a new 
employee is granted a higher initial rate of annual accrual, the employee’s rate will stay 
the same until the employee advances, based on the years of City service, to the higher 
accrual step. 


Employees covered by the Plan may cash out up to 52 hours of vacation annually, 
provided that he/she has a minimum of 20 days (160 hours) accumulated. 


Employees that transition from IEAs to the Plan shall accrue vacation at the rate that the 
employee receives under their IEA at the time of transition. The employee’s rate will stay 
the same until the employee advances, based on the years of City service, to the higher 
accrual step per the table above. Employees that transition from IEAs to the Plan shall not 
have any cap on maximum accrual. 


SECTION 17. MEDICAL BENEFITS 


A. Health Insurance  


The City shall make the following contributions toward the employee’s health premium: 


• Effective January 1, 2020, the City’s contribution toward the employee’s health 
premium will equal the 2019 Kaiser rate at each level of coverage. 


• Effective January 1, 2021, and every January 1 thereafter, the City’s contribution 
toward the employee’s health premium will equal the Kaiser rate for the prior 
calendar year at each level of coverage. 


B. Retiree Medical Insurance  


The City will contribute toward retiree health premiums, at the retiree’s preferred family 
status, as follows: 


• Employees hired before July 1, 2010 shall be: 


 eligible to continue in the CalPERS Health Plan and receive a City 
contribution toward their retiree health premium equal to that provided to 
current active employees, in accordance with Government Code Section 
22892 
 


 offered the option to elect to participate in the vesting program as defined 
below (described by Government Code Section 22893) as soon after the 
program implementation as allowed per CalPERS regulations 


• Employees hired on or after July 1, 2010 shall receive a City contribution toward 
their retiree health premium in an amount as described by Government Code 
Section 22893 (the PERS vesting schedule).   


76 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


9 


The percentage of employer contribution toward retiree health premiums is determined 
annually by CalPERS and shall be based on the member’s completed years of credited 
service (excluding any purchased service credits) at retirement as shown in the table 
below.  Employees must have a minimum of five (5) years of service with the City of 
Pinole and 10 years of total CalPERS service credit to be eligible for this benefit. 


Credited Years of 
Service 


Percentage of Employer 
Contribution 


10 50 
11 55 
12 60 
13 65 
14 70 
15 75 
16 80 
17 85 
18 90 
19 95 


20 or more 100 


C. Medical In-Lieu 


Eligible full-time employees with alternate medical insurance shall be allowed to receive 
payment in lieu of medical insurance as follows: 


• One-party coverage: $225 
• Two-party coverage: $450 
• Family coverage: $600 


An employee must show proof of adequate medical insurance coverage under another 
health plan before the benefit may be received, and annually thereafter. Employees will 
be subject to provisions of the City's health plans in the event termination of in-lieu 
benefits and resumption of medical coverage is desired. 


Employees electing the medical in-lieu option shall be entitled to an adjustment in the 
amount received for this option should their coverage status change. It is the duty of the 
employee to notify Human Resources of any such changes.  


SECTION 18. DENTAL INSURANCE 


A. Dental Insurance Provided 


The City shall pay for the dental insurance premiums for employees covered by this Plan 
and their eligible dependents, if desired. Selection of the carrier shall be at the discretion 
of the City.  


77 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


10 


The City-provided dental insurance plan provides for a maximum annual dental payout of 
$1,500 total for each employee and their eligible dependents.   


B. Orthodontic Insurance Provided 


The City shall pay for the orthodontic insurance premiums for employees covered by this 
Plan and their eligible dependents, if desired. Selection of the carrier shall be at the 
discretion of the City.  


The City-provided orthodontic insurance plan provides for a lifetime maximum 
orthodontic payout of $1,500 for each employee and for each employee’s eligible 
dependents. 


SECTION 19. VISION INSURANCE 


A. Vision Insurance Provided 


The City agrees to pay the premium for full family vision care coverage that provides for 
one examination, one set of lenses, and one frame per year. Selection of the carrier shall 
be at the discretion of the City.  The City provided plan shall provide for a $20 co-
payment for examination and a $20 co-payment for materials. 


SECTION 20. LIFE INSURANCE 


A. Life Insurance Provided 


The City agrees to provide term life insurance and accidental death and dismemberment 
insurance in the amount of $40,000 each per year/per employee. Selection of the carrier 
shall be at the discretion of the City. 


SECTION 21. DISABILITY INSURANCE 


A. Disability Insurance Provided 


The City agrees to provide the State Disability Insurance program to employees covered 
by this Plan. 


B. Disability Insurance Premium Rates 


• Short Term Disability Rates  


The City shall provide, at its own expense, short-term disability insurance of two-
thirds of salary ($463 per week maximum benefit) with a 29-day waiting period. 


 


 


 


78 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


11 


• Long Term Disability Rates  


The City shall provide, at its own expense, long term disability insurance of two-
thirds of salary up to $3,000 per month ($2,001 maximum benefit) with a 90-day 
waiting period. 


C. Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade 


Employees have the option to upgrade the plan to provide two-thirds of salary up to 
$5,000 per month at employee expense provided that all employees covered under this 
Plan opt for this upgraded coverage with said expense taken as a payroll deduction and 
provided the selected carrier agrees to this change. 


SECTION 22. DOMESTIC PARTNER MEDICAL COVERAGE 


A. Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined 


A Domestic Partnership is defined pursuant to the California Family Code. The City, in 
accordance with CalPERS regulations, will allow coverage for registered domestic 
partners of employees, as qualified dependents, under the medical, dental, and vision 
health care plans. Prior to any coverage being provided, the employee must provide proof 
of domestic partnership registration with the California Secretary of State. 


SECTION 23. INCENTIVE BENEFITS 


A. Educational Degree 


During the term of this Plan, the City will pay those employees who have earned degrees 
from accredited college institutions, additional pay as follows: 


• Associate of Art/Science Degree  $ 75.00 per month 
• Bachelor of Art/Science Degree  $150.00 per month 
• Master of Art/Science Degree   $225.00 per month 


An employee is only eligible to receive Educational Degree Pay under this section for 
one degree. An employee is not eligible to receive this pay for multiple degrees and/or 
disciplines. 


This Educational Degree Pay shall only be paid to employees holding a degree beyond 
that which is required for their classification, as outlined in the classification description, 
and if a higher degree is determined to be beneficial by the City Manager, which shall not 
unreasonably be withheld. 


79 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


12 


SECTION 24. RETIREMENT PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES 


A. Retirement Plan Defined 


The City shall contract with the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(CalPERS) for the purpose of allowing employees to earn retirement benefits.  


B. CalPERS Contract Benefits – Classic Employees 


For “Classic” Public Safety (3% @ 55 Plan) and Miscellaneous (2.5% @ 55 Plan) 
Members, the contract offers the following options: 


• Military Buy Back - The choice to participate in the CalPERS Military Buy Back 
program is solely at the discretion and cost of the employee. 


• Third Level 1959 Survivors Benefits 
• Single Highest Year Compensation Formula 
• Service Credit for Unused Sick Leave 


 
C. CalPERS Employer Contribution Rate Sharing Formula for Classic Employees 


The total amount owed by the City to CalPERS related to retirement benefits of City 
employees and annuitants is composed of the plan total normal cost and the plan total 
amortized cost, which together are the “Plan Total Cost”. City employees pay an 
“expected” employee contribution toward the plan total normal cost. Unless otherwise 
established between the City and employees, the City pays to CalPERS the plan total cost 
less the expected employee contribution, which is paid to CalPERS by the employee 
through payroll deduction. 


Employees covered under the Plan will pay an amount above the expected employee 
contribution, calculated as described below. 


Public Safety Employees 


Employees covered by this Plan that participate in CalPERS as public safety plan Tier 1 
(“Classic”) employees will contribute 9% of salary (expected employee contribution) and 
an additional 12.935% of salary (employee’s share of City rate). In the event the Plan 
Total Cost for the City’s Tier 1 public safety plan employees, when expressed as a 
percentage of payroll, increases in excess of 5.0% over the prior year’s contribution rate, 
the additional amount above the 5.0% increase shall be shared equally between the City 
and the employee. For example, if the employer contribution rate increases from one year 
to the next by 7%, then the City will pay 5% of that increase. For the remaining 2%, the 
City will pay 1% and the employee will pay 1%. 


Miscellaneous Employees 


Employees covered by this Plan that participate in CalPERS as Tier 1 (“Classic”) 
employees will contribute 8% of salary (expected employee contribution) and an 
additional 8.388% of salary (employee’s share of City rate). In the event the Plan Total 


80 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


13 


Cost for the City’s Tier 1 employees, when expressed as a percentage of payroll, 
increases in excess of 4.0% over the prior year’s contribution rate, the additional amount 
above the 4.0% increase shall be shared equally between the City and the employee.  For 
example, if the employer contribution rate increases from one year to the next by 6%, 
then the City will pay 4% of that increase. For the remaining 2%, the City will pay 1% 
and the employee will pay 1%. 


D. CalPERS Contract Benefits – PEPRA Employees 


Individuals first employed by the City on or after January 1, 2013 who are defined as 
“new members” by the Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013, shall 
be enrolled in the CalPERS. 


Employees classified as PEPRA Public Safety members will be enrolled in a 2.7% @ 57 
plan. Employees designated as Local Miscellaneous PEPRA members will be enrolled in 
a 2% @ 62 plan. Employees covered by the Plan enrolled in CalPERS as PEPRA Public 
Safety or Local Miscellaneous members will be responsible to pay a contribution to 
CalPERS equal to 50% of the total normal cost for their defined Plan as determined by 
CalPERS. 


SECTION 25. DEFERRED COMPENSATION – 457 PLAN 


The City shall make a 457 plan available for employees covered by the Plan to contribute 
to through payroll deduction. 


SECTION 26. CLOTHING AND EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE 


A. Uniform and Safety Equipment Allowance for Public Safety Employees 


Public safety employees covered by this Plan shall receive an annual uniform allowance 
of $1,000 for the purchase and maintenance of uniforms and accessories. 


The uniform allowance will be paid twice annually, one-half (1/2) in June and one-half 
(1/2) in December. Newly hired employees shall be eligible for a pro-rated start-up 
allowance. 


Police employees covered by this Plan shall receive an annual safety equipment 
allowance of $255 for the purchase of equipment such as a weapon, holster, duty belt, 
handcuffs, baton, flashlight, etc. The safety equipment allowance shall be paid in the 
same fashion as the uniform allowance described above. 


B. Safety Shoe Allowance 


The classifications listed under this section shall receive a safety shoe allowance in the 
amount of $200 per year. 


• Public Works Manager 
• Wastewater Treatment Plant Manager 


81 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


14 


The allowance provided under this section will be paid twice annually, one-half (1/2) in 
June and one-half (1/2) in December.  


SECTION 27. AUTO ALLOWANCE 


A. Police and Fire 


The City shall provide the following classifications with a city-owned automobile for use 
in discharging their duties, subject to all federal and state tax laws. The City shall also 
provide all expenses related to gasoline, maintenance and insurance of said vehicle. The 
classifications covered under this subsection shall have the unrestricted use of said 
vehicle within the State of California and shall not drive outside the state unless receiving 
prior approval from the City Manager. 


• Police Chief 
• Police Lieutenant 
• Fire Chief 
• Fire Battalion Chief 


B. All Other Employees 


The City shall provide employees with an automobile allowance in the form of a per mile 
reimbursement per IRS-approved mileage rates. These payments shall be made in 
conjunction with the City's normal payroll periods and subject to all federal and state 
withholding and tax laws. 


C. Elimination of Auto Allowance 


All employees hired on or after November 17, 2020 will not receive an automobile 
allowance. 


SECTION 28. CELLPHONE ALLOWANCE 


An employee covered under this Plan has the option to obtain a City-issued cellphone for 
business purposes. If the employee does not elect to receive a City-issued cellphone, the 
City shall provide the employee with a $65 monthly stipend. This stipend shall be 
payable on one pay period each month and be subject to all federal and state withholding 
and tax laws.  


The employee hereby acknowledges and agrees that receipt of this stipend means that any 
voicemail, text, or e-mail messages received on his or her device that are related to City 
business are the property of the City and are subject to disclosure in accordance with the 
Public Records Act and applicable case law. The employee further hereby confirms that 
he or she will provide authorization for the City to obtain such records from his or her 
service provider. 


82 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


15 


SECTION 29. FIRE BATTALION CHIEF BACKFILL FOR PARTNER AGENCY  


The Fire Battalion Chief classification is distinct among the classifications covered by the 
Plan in that it performs shift work. The City of Pinole is a party, with the Rodeo-Hercules 
Fire District and the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District, to the Battalion 7 
agreement, through which, among other things, each party provides a Fire Battalion Chief 
on a rotating shift basis to cover the needs of the entire Battalion 7. From time to time, 
the Pinole Fire Battalion Chief is required to cover a shift as Battalion Chief for Battalion 
7 that is additional to the City’s normal shifts. When the City’s Fire Battalion Chief 
covers the Battalion Chief duties for another agency, the Fire Battalion Chief shall 
receive compensation at a rate of one and one-half times his or her basic hourly salary for 
the hours worked, not to exceed the amount reimbursed by the other agencies.


83 of 611







ATTACHMENT C 


16 


EXHIBIT “A” 


MANAGEMENT GROUP SALARY RANGES  
EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 17, 2020 


 


Classification 
Minimum 


Annual Salary 
Maximum 


Annual Salary 
Assistant City Manager $192,893  $234,463  
Police Chief $192,893  $234,463  
Development Services 
Director/City Engineer $183,708  $223,298  


Finance Director $167,007  $202,999  
Fire Chief $167,007  $202,999  
Fire Battalion Chief $144,517  $175,661  
Planning Manager $144,517  $175,661  
Police Lieutenant $131,379  $159,692  
Wastewater Treatment 
Plant Operator $119,436  $145,174  


Public Works Manager $106,165  $129,044  
Recreation Manager $106,165  $129,044  
Human Resources 
Specialist $67,280  $81,779  


 


84 of 611







   


 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 7G 


 
 
DATE: NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS  


FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER  


SUBJECT: EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT WITH 
SATELLITE AFFORDABLE HOUSING ASSOCIATES TO DEVELOP 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING AT 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


 
    
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution approving an Exclusive 
Negotiating Rights Agreement (“ENA”) with Satellite Affordable Housing Associates 
(“SAHA”) to develop affordable housing on vacant land owned by the City at 811 San 
Pablo Avenue (APN 402-166-030). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Pinole (“City”) is the Housing Successor Agency (“Housing Successor”) to 
the former Pinole Redevelopment Agency (“Former Agency”).  Following the statewide 
dissolution of California redevelopment agencies in 2012, the Former Agency 
transferred a 0.60-acre vacant lot at 811 San Pablo Avenue (“Site”) to the Housing 
Successor.  State law requires the Site to be sold or developed with affordable housing 
by February 15, 2023.   
 
The City also has over $2 million in Low and Moderate Income Housing Asset Funds 
(“Housing Asset Funds”) that must be spent on affordable housing development.  If 
Housing Asset Funds are not spent within the next two years, the City risks having to 
transfer underutilized Housing Asset Funds (called “excess surplus”) to the State 
Department of Housing and Community Development (“HCD”). 
 
The City issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) in January 2020 to develop the Site 
with Housing Asset Fund assistance.  The RFP stated a preference for housing that 
serves veterans based on prior direction from the City Council.  The City received two 
proposals by the April 30, 2020 deadline from: 1) Satellite Affordable Housing 
Associates (“SAHA”) and 2) Power Community Development Systems, Inc. (“PCDSI”).  
SAHA submitted a detailed proposal that met all RFP requirements.  PCDSI submitted 
a brief letter of interest that failed to meet RFP requirements and did not demonstrate 
strong experience with affordable housing development.   
 


85 of 611







City Council Report, 7G  
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  2 


City Council directed staff to commence negotiations with SAHA.  After conducting a 
detailed review of SAHA’s qualifications and proposed development, staff 
recommends entering into an ENA that will give SAHA exclusive negotiating rights to 
negotiate Disposition Agreements if certain conditions are met within 240 to 360 days. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
Proposed Project and Developer Qualifications 
 
City staff and consultants completed a thorough review of SAHA’s qualifications and 
proposed development. The review determined that SAHA is a reputable and 
financially solvent developer proposing a quality affordable housing project.  A detailed 
evaluation of the proposal is provided as Attachment A.  SAHA’s proposal is provided 
as Attachment B. 
 
SAHA is proposing a three-story, 32-unit affordable housing complex that serves 
veterans (“Project”).  The building will include 1 studio, 26 one-bedroom, and 5 two-
bedroom units affordable for extremely low to low income residents.  One unit will be 
reserved for an on-site manager.  The remaining 31 units will be restricted to veterans, 
of which 15 would be supportive housing units for formerly homeless veterans.  The 
units would be restricted for veterans by State and Federal funding sources proposed 
to finance the project.  SAHA’s operating budget includes funding for supportive 
housing services for its formerly homeless veterans, both through its own staff and 
third-party services.  SAHA has an extensive track record serving this population at 
other properties in nearby cities such as American Canyon, Antioch, Berkeley, and 
Walnut Creek.   
 
The proposed Project would help fulfill the City’s Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
(“RHNA”).  At the end of 2019, the City had a remaining need for 283 housing units 
(80 very low, 48 low, 42 moderate, and 113 above moderate income).  The Project 
would provide 14 extremely low, 9 very low, and 8 low income units. 
 
ENA 
 
The Developer anticipates expending funds to prepare architectural designs and 
conduct certain studies that are needed to construct affordable housing on the 
Property.  The ENA provides assurance to the Developer that the City will not entertain 
and negotiate other proposals during a 240-day feasibility period for the parties to 
negotiate Disposition Agreements for the Project on 811 San Pablo Ave.  The ENA 
also allows for an option to extend the agreement for an additional 120 days (360 days 
total) in case of an unforeseen circumstance, as long as SAHA is performing its due 
diligence. 
 
The ENA deal points have been negotiated and are now in a form for City Council 
consideration. The ENA has been drafted with the following key points:  
 


86 of 611







City Council Report, 7G  
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  3 


• Agreement to enter into a 240-day negotiation period to negotiate the terms of 
Disposition Agreements, including but not limited to: (i) the purchase price for 
the sale of, or ground lease terms for, the Property; (ii) the proposed Project to 
be constructed on the Property; and (iii) the schedule of performance for the 
construction of the Project.  The Agreement may be extended for up to a 
maximum of 120 additional days upon the mutual written agreement of 
Developer and City, if the Developer illustrates progress and compliance with 
the terms of the Agreement.   


• Requires Developer to provide monthly progress reports on the status of the 
project.  


• Requires Developer to provide the proposed methods of financing to be used 
in the acquisition and development of the properties.  


• Requires a Deposit of $10,000 to reimburse staff for costs incurred in the 
negotiations of Disposition Agreements and to ensure that the Purchaser will 
proceed diligently and in good faith to negotiate Disposition Agreements to 
develop the property. 


• Requires Developer submit a Final Development Package to the City within 90 
days of the approval of the ENA, which includes but is not limited to final site 
plans, proposed methods of financing, an updated pro forma, and updated 
development timeline.  


Once the City Council approves the ENA, staff, our consultant, and representatives 
from SAHA will immediately commence negotiating the terms and conditions of the 
Disposition Agreements. The Disposition Agreements will be presented to the City 
Council for consideration and approval at a future meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None, the Developer will be required to submit $10,000 to the City, which will be 
applied to staff, consultant, and attorney costs required for negotiating the ENA and 
the Agreements. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Resolution  
B Exclusive Negotiating Agreement  
C Proposal Evaluation by RSG 
D SAHA Proposal 
 
 


87 of 611







                                                                       ATTACHMENT A 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE ADOPTING A 
RESOLUTION APPROVING AN EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 


WITH SATELLITE AFFORDABLE HOUSING ASSOCIATES TO DEVELOP 
AFFORDABLE HOUSING AT 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


 
 


WHEREAS, the City, as the Housing Successor, is the owner of the Property 
located at 811 San Pablo Avenue in the City of Pinole, County Assessor’s Parcel Number 
402-166-030, (the “811 San Pablo Ave”); and 


 
WHEREAS, the Property was purchased by the Redevelopment Agency of the 


City of Pinole (the “Agency”) with Redevelopment funds; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Dissolution Law, the Agency was dissolved on 


February 1, 2012 and the Property were transferred to the City as the  
Housing Successor by operation of law; and 
 


WHEREAS, the Property is currently vacant and zoned as Commercial Mixed use 
(CMU) but allows for 100% housing development along this portion of the San Pablo 
Avenue Corridor; and 


 
WHEREAS, The City issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) in January 2020 to 


develop the Site with Housing Asset Fund assistance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Satellite Affordable Housing Associates (“SAHA”) submitted a 


detailed proposal that met all of the City’s RFP requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, SAHA is interested in purchasing and developing the Property for 


affordable housing; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to sell the Property for development of affordable 


housing; and 
 
WHEREAS, SAHA anticipates expending funds to prepare architectural and 


design drawings and conduct certain studies that are needed to assess the feasibility of 
the development and construction of affordable housing on the Property; and 


 
WHEREAS, City staff and SAHA have negotiated the terms of an Exclusive 


Negotiating Agreement, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, (the 
“Exclusive Negotiating Agreement”), for the negotiation of the purchase and development 
of the Property. 


 
 
 
 


88 of 611







 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole:  
 


Section 1. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated by this 
reference. 
 


Section 2. City Council hereby approves the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement 
with SAHA, for a two hundred and forty (240) day term with the ability to extend the term 
for an additional one hundred and twenty (120) days. 
 


Section 3. The City Manager or his designated representative, is hereby 
authorized and directed, on behalf of the City, to execute the Exclusive Negotiating 
Agreement with such non-substantive changes that may be needed, as approved by the 
City Attorney, and to make all approvals and take all actions necessary or appropriate to 
carry out and implement the terms of the Exclusive Negotiating Agreement and to 
administer the City’s obligations, responsibilities and duties to be performed under the 
Exclusive Negotiating Agreement. 
 


PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 17th day of November 2020 by the following vote: 


 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on this 17th day 
of November, 2020. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
3615477.1  


89 of 611







EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 


by and among 


SATELLITE AFFORDABLE HOUSING ASSOCIATES 


and 


THE CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA 


DATED ______________________ 


ATTACHMENT B


90 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and ___________________     Page 1 of 12 
 
 


THIS EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is 
entered into by and between the City of Pinole, a California municipal corporation (the “City”) 
and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates, a California non-profit corporation (the 
“Developer”) dated as of _______________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”).  The City and the 
Developer are each referred to herein as “Party” or collectively referred to as the “Parties.” 
 


WHEREAS, the City is the owner of certain property (the “Property”) located at 811 San 
Pablo Ave. in the City of Pinole, California, known as County Assessor’s Parcel Number 402-166-
030, as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Property was originally purchased by the Redevelopment Agency of the 


City of Pinole (the “Former Agency”) with funds from the Former Agency’s low- and moderate-
income housing fund; and 


 
WHEREAS, on June 29, 2011 the legislature of the State of California adopted Assembly 


Bill x1 26 (as amended by AB 1484 and SB 107, the “Dissolution Law”), which amended 
provisions of the redevelopment law; and 


 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Dissolution Law the Former Agency was dissolved on 


February 1, 2012 and the housing assets owned by the Former Agency were transferred to the City 
as housing successor to the Former Agency; and 


 
WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to build a 32-unit affordable rental housing project 


affordable to households earning sixty percent (60%) or less of area median income (the 
“Project”); and 


 
WHEREAS,  the intent of both City and Developer under this Agreement is to establish a 


specific, limited period of time to negotiate mutually acceptable governing documents for the 
potential disposition of the Property and undertaking of the Project on the Property by the 
Developer; and  


 
WHEREAS, the City desires to negotiate a disposition and development agreement, an 


affordable housing agreement, and a financial assistance agreement (the “Disposition 
Agreements”) for the Project with Developer; and 


 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 54221(f)(1)(H), the Property is not 


subject to the State Lands Act because it is required to be used for affordable housing, which is a 
condition established by statute.    


 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements 


hereinafter set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows. 
 
1. Good Faith Efforts to Negotiate.  The Parties will use their best efforts to successfully 


negotiate  Disposition Agreements and any other documents required by the City for the 


91 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 2 of 12 
 
 


Property that will describe the terms and conditions governing the purchase of the 
Property by Developer.  The Parties will diligently and in good faith pursue such 
negotiations.  Furthermore, the Parties will use their best efforts to obtain any third-party 
consent, authorization, approval, or exemption required in connection with the 
transactions contemplated hereby.  This Agreement does not impose a binding obligation 
on City to convey any interest in the Property to Developer, nor does it obligate City to 
grant any approvals or authorizations required for the Property or any project or 
improvements constructed thereon. 


a. If Developer has not continued to negotiate diligently and in good faith, City will 
give written notice thereof to Developer who will then have ten (10) business 
days to commence negotiating in good faith.  Following the failure of Developer 
to thereafter commence negotiating in good faith within such ten (10) business 
day period, this Agreement may be terminated by City.  If this Agreement is 
terminated by City pursuant to the above sentence, Developer acknowledges and 
agrees that City will suffer damages, including lost opportunities to pursue other 
development alternatives for the Property and delayed receipt of property tax 
revenues from the Property, and that it is impracticable and infeasible to fix the 
actual amount of such damages.  Therefore, the Parties agree that if this 
Agreement is terminated as provided above, City will retain the Deposit (as 
defined in Section 5 of this Agreement, infra), plus any interest thereon, as fixed 
and liquidated damages and not as a penalty, and following such termination 
neither Party will have any further rights against or liability to the other under this 
Agreement. 


b. If City has not continued to negotiate diligently and in good faith, Developer will 
give written notice thereof to City which will then have ten (10) business days to 
commence negotiating in good faith.  Following the failure of City to thereafter 
commence negotiating in good faith within such ten (10) business-day period, this 
Agreement may be terminated by Developer.  In the event of such termination by 
Developer, City will return the Deposit to Developer in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 5 of this Agreement and neither Party will have any further 
rights against or liability to the other under this Agreement. 


c. If, notwithstanding City's and Developer's mutual diligent, good faith 
negotiations, the Parties have not entered into at least one Disposition Agreement  
on or before expiration of the Term of this Agreement (as defined in Section 3 of 
this Agreement) or any extension thereof, City will return the Deposit after taking 
into account any expenditures made for costs incurred by the City pursuant to this 
Agreement, and neither Party will have any further rights against or liability to the 
other under this Agreement. 


d. If performance of this Agreement results in execution of Disposition Agreements, 
the remaining Deposit will be transferred to the Reimbursement Agreement to be 
negotiated in conjunction with the Disposition Agreements. 


92 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 3 of 12 
 
 


2. Developer’s Exclusive Right to Negotiate With City.  City agrees that it will not, during 
the term of this Agreement, directly or indirectly, through any officer, employee, agent, 
or otherwise, solicit, initiate or encourage the submission of bids, offers or proposals by 
any person or entity with respect to the acquisition of any interest in the Property or the 
development of the Property, and City will not engage any broker, financial adviser or 
consultant to initiate or encourage proposals or offers from other parties with respect to 
the disposition or development of the Property or any portion thereof. 


Furthermore, City will not, directly or indirectly, through any officer, employee, agent or 
otherwise, engage in negotiations concerning any such transaction with, or provide 
information to, any person other than Developer and its representatives with a view to 
engaging, or preparing to engage, that person with respect to the disposition or 
development of the Property or any portion thereof.   


3. Term.   


a. The term of this Agreement (“Term”) commences on the Effective Date and will 
terminate two hundred forty (240) days thereafter, unless extended or earlier 
terminated as provided herein.   


b. The Term of this Agreement may be extended for up to a maximum of one 
hundred twenty (120) additional days upon the mutual written agreement of 
Developer and City acting through and in the discretion of its City Manager, or 
their designee (“City Manager”).   


4. Relationship of the Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement creates between the Parties the 
relationship of lessor and lessee, of buyer and seller, or of partners or joint venturers. 


5. Deposit for City Costs.   


a. In consideration for this Agreement and the costs the City has and will incur in 
furtherance of this Agreement and the negotiation of the Disposition Agreements, 
Developer will, within five (5) days of the Effective Date, submit to City a good 
faith deposit (“Deposit”) in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) in 
immediately available funds.  City will deposit the Deposit in a non-interest 
bearing account, when received by City. 


b. On or before expiration of the Term of this Agreement, the City may, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 1(c) of this Agreement, draw on the 
Deposit to reimburse the City’s cost for third-party assistance and staff time in the 
negotiations for any of the Disposition Agreements. The City will provide 
Developer a written account of such reimbursement. 


6. Terms and Conditions of the Disposition Agreements.  The Parties agree to use their best 
efforts to successfully negotiate the terms of the Disposition Agreements including, but 
not limited to (i) the purchase price for the sale of, or ground lease terms for, the Property; 


93 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 4 of 12 
 
 


(ii) the proposed Project to be constructed on the Property; and (iii) the schedule of 
performance for the construction of the Project.   


7. Developer’s Studies; Right of Entry.   


a. During the Term of this Agreement, Developer will use its best efforts to prepare, 
at Developer’s expense, any studies, surveys, plans, specifications and reports 
(“Developer’s Studies”) that the Developer deems necessary or desirable in 
Developer’s sole discretion, to complete its due diligence for the Property.  
Developer’s Studies may include, without limitation, title investigation, relocation 
analyses, marketing, feasibility, soils, seismic and environmental studies, 
financial feasibility analyses and design studies.  The Developer will have rights 
of access to the Property to prepare the Developer’s Studies. 


b. Developer hereby agrees to notify the City twenty-four (24) hours in advance of 
its intention to enter the Property.  


c. Developer will provide the City with workplans, drawings, and descriptions of 
any intrusive sampling it intends to do and any additional items stated in this 
section.  Developer must keep the Property in a safe condition during its entry.  
Developer shall repair, restore and return the Property to its condition 
immediately preceding Developer’s entry thereon at Developer’s sole expense. 


i. On January 31, 2020, the City released a RFP to solicit proposals from 
qualified developers for the development of the Project. On March 31, 
2020,  in response to the RFP, the Developer submitted a “Preliminary 
Development Package,” consisting of the following: 


(1) Cover letter providing a general overview of the Project 
including details on the management and operation of the 
Project; 


(2) Design concept narrative including the proposed improvements, 
target population, supportive services, and other onsite amenities; 


(3) Developer team breakdown identifying the members of the team, 
the team’s experience, including the Developer’s organizational 
documents; 


(4) Project cutsheets for developments that the Developer has 
completed in the past; and 


(5) The Developer’s financial capacity consisting of the financing 
plan for the project, the Developer’s financials, and the proposed 
Project’s pro forma. 


ii. Within ninety (90) days from the Effective Date, Developer shall submit 
to the City “Final Development Package,” consisting of the following: 


94 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 5 of 12 
 
 


(1) Fully updated information in each category and every item set 
forth under the heading “Preliminary Development Package”; 


(2) A well-defined site plan generally describing the Project using 
schematic drawings, and which depicts in detail the proposed 
design, density, and configuration thereof; 


(3) Square footages of all improvements; total gross building area 
(GBA) of the Proposed Project, with the GBA of the affordable 
units, with size and floor plan/configuration of each of the 
affordable units; 


(4) The circulation areas and GBA thereof; 


(5) Description of the common area amenities and common areas 
and GBA thereof; 


(6) Configuration of onsite parking, including residents’, guests’ and 
handicapped users’ parking spaces with number and type of 
parking spaces;    


(7) A detailed and updated pro forma for the Project that identifies 
all sources and uses of funds including but not limited to design 
of the Project and supporting infrastructure, along with initial 
estimates of development costs, including hard and soft 
construction and non-construction costs, and the remediation 
costs, if any, for development of the Property for rental housing; 


(8) Proposed identification of all sources of financing, including 
predevelopment, construction, and permanent financing with a 
description of the terms and conditions of such financings; and 


(9) An updated timeline that includes, based upon consultation with 
City staff, as well as the best professional judgment of 
Developer, the provision of necessary onsite and offsite 
improvements for the Project. 


d. If upon expiration of the Term of this Agreement and or any extensions, the 
Parties have not successfully negotiated the Disposition Agreements, Developer 
will provide City within fifteen (15) days following said date of expiration, 
electronic copies of the Developer’s Studies completed by such date.  Developer 
will also provide City with copies of any Developer’s Studies completed after the 
expiration of the Term within fifteen (15) days following completion of such 
studies, or if Developer intends not to complete any Developer Studies, Developer 
will provide City with copies of such uncompleted studies. 


8. City’s Reports and Studies.  Within ten (10) days following the Effective Date, City will 
make available to Developer for review or copying at Developer’s expense all 


95 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 6 of 12 
 
 


nonprivileged studies, surveys, plans, specifications, reports, and other documents with 
respect to the Property that City has in its possession or control, which have not already 
been provided.  Studies or documents prepared by City and its agents solely for the 
purpose of negotiating the terms of Disposition Agreements are not required to be 
provided by City to Developer and are excluded from this requirement. 


9. Developer’s Pro Forma and Evidence of Financing.  Prior to the execution of the 
Disposition Agreements contemplated by this Agreement, Developer will provide City 
with a pro forma for the Project that confirms the financial feasibility of Developer’s 
proposed development of the Property. The pro forma shall include the names and 
amounts from each funding source. Developer will provide monthly progress reports to 
the City on the status of preparing the Final Development Package and general progress 
on the Project. City is not obligated to seek approval of Disposition Agreements from the 
City Council unless and until the documents required by this Section have been provided. 


10. Full Disclosure.  Developer is required to make full disclosure to City of its principals; 
officers; major stockholders, partners or members; joint venturers; negotiators; 
development managers; consultants and directly involved managerial employees, if any, 
(collectively, “Developer Parties”); and all other material information concerning 
Developer. Any change in the identity of the Developer Parties will be subject to the 
approval of City, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  Developer will make and 
maintain full disclosure to City of its methods of financing to be used in the acquisition 
and development of the Property. 


11. Expenses.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, third-party costs and expenses 
(including, without limitation, all legal fees and expenses) incurred in connection with 
this Agreement and the activities contemplated hereby will be paid by the Party incurring 
the same. 


12. Confidentiality; Dissemination of Information.  To the extent permitted by law, during 
the term of this Agreement, each Party will obtain the consent of the other Party prior to 
issuing or permitting any of its officers, employees or agents to issue any press release or 
other information to the press with respect to this Agreement; provided however, no Party 
will be prohibited from supplying any information to its representatives, agents, 
attorneys, advisors, financing sources and others to the extent necessary to accomplish 
the activities contemplated hereby so long as such representatives, agents, attorneys, 
advisors, financing sources and others are made aware of the terms of this Section.  
Nothing contained in this Agreement will prevent either Party at any time from 
furnishing any required information to any governmental entity or authority pursuant to a 
legal requirement or from complying with its legal or contractual obligations. 


13. Execution of Disposition Agreements.  If the Parties successfully negotiate Disposition 
Agreements, City agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state legal 
requirements, including the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).  The City 
has no legal obligation to grant any approvals or authorizations for the sale of the 
Property or any development thereon until the Disposition Agreements have been 
approved by the City Council. 


96 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 7 of 12 
 
 


14. Termination.   


a. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual consent of the Parties.  


b. City will have the right to terminate this Agreement upon its good faith 
determination that Developer is not proceeding diligently and in good faith to 
carry out its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  City will exercise such right 
in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement.   


c. Developer will have the right to terminate this Agreement, in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement, if the results of its 
investigation of the Property are unsatisfactory, in Developer’s sole and absolute 
discretion, with respect to Developer’s desired development activities or if 
Developer is unable to obtain other necessary approvals, rights or interests.   


d. Neither Party will have the right to seek an award of damages as a result of the 
termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section. 


15. Effect of Termination.  Upon termination as provided herein, or upon the expiration of 
the Term and any extensions thereof without the Parties having successfully negotiated 
Disposition Agreements , this Agreement will forthwith be void, and there will be no 
further liability or obligation on the part of either of the Parties or their respective 
officers, employees, agents or other representatives; provided however, the provisions of 
Section 11 (Expenses), Section 12 (Confidentiality; Dissemination of Information), 
Section 17 (Indemnification), and Section 21 (Brokers) will survive such termination.  
Provided further, that upon termination or expiration of this Agreement without the 
Parties having successfully negotiated Disposition Agreements, Developer will deliver to 
City all of the Developer’s Studies pursuant to the provisions of Section 7 of this 
Agreement. 


16. Notices.  Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all notices to be sent pursuant 
to this Agreement will be made in writing, and sent to the Parties at their respective 
addresses specified below or to such other address as a Party may designate by written 
notice delivered to the other parties in accordance with this Section.  All such notices will 
be sent by: 


a. Personal delivery, in which case notice is effective upon delivery;  


b. Certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, in which case notice will be 
deemed delivered on receipt if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt; 


c. Nationally recognized overnight courier, with charges prepaid or charged to the 
sender’s account, in which case notice is effective on delivery if delivery is 
confirmed by the delivery service; 


d. Electronic transmission, in which case notice will be deemed delivered upon 
transmittal, provided that duplicate copy of the notice is promptly delivered by 
first-class or certified mail or by overnight delivery. 


97 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 8 of 12 
 
 


 
  City:  City of Pinole 
    2131 Pear Street 
    Pinole, Ca 94564 
    Attn:  City Manager 
    Tel (510) 724-9000 
    Fax (510) 724-9826 


 
 with a copy to:  Meyers Nave 
    555 – 12th Street, Suite 1500 
    Oakland, Ca 94564 
    Attn: Pinole City Attorney 
    Tel (510) 808-2000 
    Fax (510) 444-1108 
 
  Developer: Satellite Affordable Housing Associates 
    1835 Alcatraz Ave.  
    Berkeley, Ca 94703 
    Attn: Chief Executive Officer 
    Tel (510) 647-0700 
    Fax (510) 647-0820 


 
17. Indemnification.  Developer hereby covenants, on behalf of itself and its permitted 


successors and assigns, to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City and its elected 
and appointed officials, officers, agents, representatives and employees (“Indemnitees”) 
from and against all claims, costs (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees 
and litigation costs) and liability, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement 
and/or arising out of or in connection with claims resulting from or arising in connection 
with Developer or Developer’s agents, employees, consultants, contractors or 
subcontractors access to and entry on the Property pursuant to Section 7 of this 
Agreement; provided however, Developer will have no indemnification obligation with 
respect to the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any Indemnitee.   


18. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof will, 
to any extent, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, such term or provision will be 
ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without invalidating or 
rendering unenforceable the remaining terms and provisions of this Agreement or the 
application of such terms and provisions to circumstances other than those as to which it 
is held invalid or unenforceable unless an essential purpose of this Agreement would be 
defeated by loss of the invalid or unenforceable provision. 


19. Entire Agreement; Amendments In Writing; Counterparts.  This Agreement contains the 
entire understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and 
supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, oral and 
written, between the Parties with respect to such subject matter.  This Agreement may be 
amended only by a written instrument executed by the Parties or their successors in 


98 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 9 of 12 
 
 


interest.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which will 
be an original and all of which together will constitute one agreement. 


20. Successors and Assigns; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement will be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns; 
provided however, that neither Party will transfer or assign any of such Party’s rights 
hereunder by operation of law or otherwise without the prior written consent of the other 
Party, and any such transfer or assignment without such consent will be void.  Subject to 
the immediately preceding sentence, this Agreement is not intended to benefit, and will 
not run to the benefit of or be enforceable by, any other person or entity other than the 
Parties and their permitted successors and assigns.  


21. Brokers.  Each Party warrants and represents to the other that no brokers have been 
retained or consulted in connection with this transaction.  Each Party agrees to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless the other Party from any claims, expenses, costs or 
liabilities arising in connection with a breach of this warranty and representation.  The 
terms of this Section will survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement.  


22. Approvals.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City Manager will be 
authorized to enter into all written approvals, consents or waivers by the City without 
further authorization by the City Council.  Nothing herein, however, will be deemed to 
prevent the City Manager from requesting formal approval by the City Council if the City 
Manager, in their sole discretion, determines to seek such approval. 


23. Captions.  The captions of the sections and articles of this Agreement are for convenience 
only and are not intended to affect the interpretation or construction of the provisions 
hereof.  


24. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with 
the laws of the State of California. 


SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 


99 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 10 of 12 
 
 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first 
written above.    
 
CITY  
 
By: _______________________________ 


Andrew Murray 
 City Manager  
 
ATTEST: 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 Heather Iopu, CMC 
 City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 Eric S. Casher 
 City Attorney  


 
 
 
DEVELOPER  
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 Susan Friedland 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 
 
  
 
  


100 of 611







 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT 
City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates       Page 11 of 12 
 
 


Exhibit A 
 


811 San Pablo Avenue 
 


Legal Description 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
3603254.1  


101 of 611







Via Electronic Mail 


To: Andrew Murray, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
CITY OF PINOLE 


From: Tara Matthews, Principal 
Suzy Kim, Senior Associate 
Kyle Westra, Analyst 
RSG, INC. 


Date: October 22, 2020 


SUBJECT: REVIEW OF 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE DEVELOPMENT PROPOSALS 
RECEIVED APRIL 30, 2020 


The City of Pinole (“City”) serves as the Housing Successor Agency to the former Pinole 
Redevelopment Agency (“Former Agency”).  Four properties were transferred from the former 
Agency to the City as housing successor: 


1. Grove Vacant Land (Samuel Street)
2. Faria House Vacant Land (2100 San Pablo Ave)
3. Collins House (612 Tennent Ave); and
4. Vacant Land (811 San Pablo Ave).


The Grove and Faria House parcels of vacant land are restricted as open space and cannot be 
developed. State law requires the remaining two properties at 612 Tennent Avenue and 811 San 
Pablo Avenue to be developed for affordable housing purposes or sold by February 15, 2023.  If 
the properties are sold, any sales proceeds must be deposited into a Low and Moderate Income 
Housing Asset Fund (“Housing Asset Fund”) to fund other affordable housing efforts.  The Collins 
House is in the process of being sold (along with three other non-Housing Successor Agency 
properties). 


The City currently has over $2 million in Housing Asset Funds that must be spent to develop 
affordable housing within the next two years to avoid giving up funds to the State as excess 
surplus.  City Council directed staff to issue a Request for Proposals to develop 811 San Pablo 
Avenue (“Site”) with affordable housing paired with Housing Asset Fund assistance.   


The City issued an RFP in June 2018 and received two proposals.  The City initially selected 
Housing Consortium of the East Bay (“HCEB”) to develop affordable housing for residents with 
special needs.  The City and HCEB entered into an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (“ENA”) 


ATTACHMENT C


102 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 2 
 


that was terminated in November 2019 after HCEB failed to secure additional gap financing and 
meet ENA requirements.   


The City issued a second RFP in January 2020 for the Site.  The RFP identified a preference for 
housing restricted to veterans based on City Council’s earlier direction in 2018.  The City received 
two proposals by the April 30, 2020 deadline from: 1) Satellite Affordable Housing Associates 
(“SAHA”) and 2) Power Community Development Systems, Inc. (“PCDSI”).  SAHA is an affordable 
housing developer based in Berkeley with over 50 years of experience developing and operating 
affordable housing.  SAHA submitted a detailed proposal that met all RFP requirements and 
demonstrates strong affordable housing development experience.  PCDSI, based in San Jose, 
specializes in green building products.  PCDSI submitted a very limited letter of interest that failed 
to meet RFP requirements and did not demonstrate significant experience with affordable 
housing.  Attachments A-1 and A-2 present checklists detailing how SAHA and PCDSI met RFP 
submittal requirements. 


After reviewing the two proposals, City Council directed staff to move forward with conducting a 
detailed evaluation of SAHA’s development cost estimates to confirm the financial feasibility of 
the proposed project and the reasonableness of contributing the Site plus $2 million in Housing 
Asset Funds toward the proposed development.   


The following table summarizes key findings from RSG’s evaluation of SAHA’s proposal and 
development cost estimates.  


SAHA PROPOSAL EVALUATION 


Development Type Multifamily rental housing for veterans 


Number of Units 32 (SAHA has consulted with the City Planning Department and confirmed 
that the proposed number of units is permitted with a density bonus) 


Bedroom Mix 1 Studio 
26 One-Bedroom 
5 Two-Bedroom 


Income Levels 14 Extremely Low Income (45%) 
9 Very Low Income (29%) 
8 Low Income (26%) 
1 Manager Unit 


103 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 3 
 


SAHA PROPOSAL EVALUATION 


Veteran & Supportive 
Housing Services 


31 units are restricted for veterans, of which 15 would be supportive housing 
units for formerly homeless veterans.  The units would be restricted by State 
and Federal funding sources proposed to finance the project: HCD Veterans 
Housing and Homeless Prevention (“VHHP”) and HUD Veterans Affairs 
Supportive Housing (“VASH”) Vouchers. 


SAHA would provide supportive housing services through a part-time 
service coordinator and third-party service provision for its formerly 
homeless veterans.  The 15 units receiving HUD VASH vouchers would also 
have case management and supportive services as provided from the 
Veterans Administration. 


SAHA has an extensive track record serving this population at other 
properties in nearby cities such as American Canyon, Antioch, Berkeley, 
and Walnut Creek. 


Estimated Project 
Completion Timeline  


Negotiate ENA – Summer and Fall 2020 
Planning Application Submittal – February or March 2020 (90 days from 
ENA execution) 
Community Engagement – Spring to Summer 2020 
Negotiate and Execute Developer Agreements – by June 2021 
Begin Construction – September 2022 
Complete Construction – January 2024 


Estimated dates; subject to change pending necessary City approvals and 
HCD financing application review timelines. 


Total Development 
Cost 


$22 million ($681,828 per unit).  Includes prevailing wage. 


RSG scrutinized SAHA’s assumptions to ensure that the estimated costs 
(including but not limited to construction, design, financing, insurance, and 
legal costs), revenues, and operating and replacement reserves are realistic 
and not over/understated. We also prepared our own pro forma to compare 
to the developer’s and evaluate any discrepancies. 


RSG determined that SAHA’s total development cost estimate is within a 
reasonable range based on our experience, industry construction cost 
standards, and research of comparable projects. RSG’s cost estimate was 
1.9% lower than SAHA, which is a nominal difference. 


SAHA’s total development cost of $681,828 per unit is slightly lower than the 
median for the region ($685,000) based on recent comparable projects in 
Contra Costa and Alameda Counties.   


104 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 4 
 


SAHA PROPOSAL EVALUATION 


Requested City 
Contribution 


$2,000,000 residual receipt loan plus land.  SAHA typically structures deals 
with a long-term lease with low rent (i.e. $1/year). 


Of the $2 million requested, $500,000 for predevelopment costs would be 
helpful but not required. 


City Contribution per 
Unit 


$142,857 per unit if City agreement limits assistance to the 14 Extremely 
Low Income units to comply with Housing Asset Fund legal requirements.   


$62,500 per unit for all 32 units.   


RSG performed a gap analysis to ensure that the developer’s financing 
assumptions are reasonable and the request for City gap financing is 
reasonable. 


The proposed City contribution per unit is reasonable considering the 
amount of gap financing required for the project ($20 million) and the 
average amount of gap financing provided by other cities in comparable 
projects.  A review of 8 comparable projects in the region found that the 
median City financing contribution was $108,500 per unit based on the total 
number of units in the project, with a low of $20,000 and a high of $148,000.   


Estimated Residual 
Receipt Payments (55 
Years) 


The City’s $2 million residual receipt loan would be repaid based on net cash 
flow available after paying priority obligations.  Residual receipt payments 
vary based on several conditions that impact available net cash flow, such 
as vacancies, rent limits, and changes in operating expenses.   


RSG estimates that approximately $75,000 in principal and interest could be 
repaid between 2042 and 2052 based on a 55-year cash flow projection.  
For budgeting purposes, the City should conservatively assume that $0 
residual receipt payments will be received due to the unpredictable nature 
of residual receipt loans. 


Proposed Gap 
Financing (Permanent) 


4% Federal Tax Credit Equity $8,218,964 


Federal Home Loan Bank AHP             $310,000 


City of Pinole $2,000,000 


County HOME $2,200,400 


Deferred Fee / GP Equity                      $700,000 


HCD VHHP $7,360,690 


Total $20,790,054 


% of Total Development Cost 95% 


105 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 5 
 


SAHA PROPOSAL EVALUATION 


CDLAC QRRP Self-
Score 


120 out of 150 (estimated by SAHA). 


Minimum of 45 required for 4% Federal Tax Credit Equity. 


Operating Cash Flow RSG reviewed SAHA’s projected 30-year cash flow and prepared our own 
55-year cash flow projections.  We determined that SAHA’s estimated 
operating revenues and expenses are reasonable and meet State 
guidelines based on the proposed financing sources. 


SAHA’s operating budget includes $125,000 per year to provide supportive 
services to its residents who are formerly homeless veterans.  This covers 
a part-time SAHA service coordinator for all residents and third party service 
provision for the supportive housing units.  


Housing Asset Fund 
Compliance 


Housing Asset Funds must assist at least 30% Extremely Low Income units 
and no more than 20% Low Income units between FYs 2019-20 through 
2023-24. 


Of the proposed $2 million Housing Asset Fund contribution, 100% may be 
applied toward funding the 14 Extremely Low Income rental units proposed 
by SAHA, exceeding minimum requirements.  The 14 Extremely Low Income 
units have an estimated $9.5 million development funding gap per unit when 
considering the project’s capitalized cash flow.   


Design Concept & 
Amenities 


Design – A single three-story building with an elevator and high quality 
materials.  Scale and details consider Pinole’s historic streetscapes and the 
Three Corridors Specific Plan to fit into the surrounding neighborhood. 


Sustainable design – LEED Silver minimum goal. 


Community Amenities – Outdoor terrace, community multi-purpose room, on-
site management, maintenance, and resident services coordinator. 


Resident Services – Supportive services, community meals, computer 
training, tutoring, fitness classes, and other recreational activities. 


COVID-19 Design Considerations – Large outdoor gathering space, 
touchless controls for common doors, temperature screening, and other 
formal policies in place ensure resident safety. 


106 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 6 
 


SAHA PROPOSAL EVALUATION 


Developer Experience 
& Capacity 


Over 50 years experience in the Bay Area.  Own, develop, operate, and 
manage model. 


Have developed over 65 affordable communities.  Currently house over 
4,000 residents, including 400 units set aside for permanent supportive 
housing. 


Assembled an experienced team.  Will partner with Studio T Square for 
design work.  SAHA provides its own property management and resident 
services. 


Extensive experience securing affordable housing gap financing from public 
and private funding sources. 


Low debt ratio, indicating that organization is not over leveraged. 


High asset coverage ratio, indicating that organization can cover its debt 
obligations. 


Appears to have excellent financial capacity and is solvent. 


Community Outreach 
Process 


SAHA conducts its own community outreach process to: 


• Identify community-wide stakeholders (residents, businesses, 
community leaders) 


• Meet one-on-one or in small groups with neighboring residents and 
businesses directly impacted by the development 


• Hold an initial community-wide open house to introduce SAHA and 
the property management team. 


SAHA  shares images demonstrating how the project fits in with the scale of 
the surrounding neighborhood, invites community leaders who can vouch for 
the importance of affordable housing in the locality, and shares its extensive 
track record operating affordable housing and serving target populations 
such as formerly homeless veterans.  SAHA Project Management and 
Resident Services leadership participate in the community meetings to 
address any questions regarding operations and support from community 
members.   


107 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 7 
 


SAHA PROPOSAL EVALUATION 


Strengths Met all RFP requirements. 


Requested City contribution is on par with comparable projects. 


Proposed income levels meet Housing Asset Fund expenditure 
requirements.  100% of Housing Asset Funds loaned may be used to fund 
Extremely Low Income rental units, exceeding minimum legal requirements. 


Willing to self-fund entire predevelopment cost estimated at $1.2 million. 


Short development timeline (proposed completion by August 2023). 


Weaknesses It is unlikely that the City’s $2 million residual receipt loan will be significantly 
repaid based on projected net cash flows over a 55-year period. 


Other Considerations If veterans are no longer a desired target population, SAHA could consider a 
senior or special needs project based on the project’s current design and 
available gap financing.  However, this would result in an additional $2.2 
million funding gap.  Additionally, Pinole Housing Asset Funds may not be 
spent on senior-restricted units until Fiscal Year 2021-22 to comply with legal 
restrictions. 


Housing  that that is not restricted to veterans, seniors, or special needs (i.e. 
housing for teachers) would not be financially feasible with available gap 
financing sources unless the project had larger units and went up to five 
stories. 


Although SAHA has confirmed that the proposed density and height is 
permitted by the City’s development standards with a density bonus, if for 
some reason 32 units are not permitted during the entitlement process the 
project will not be feasible. 


If construction costs end up being much less than estimated, language could 
be included in the City loan documents that require project savings to flow 
back to the City at the end of construction. 


Recommendations Enter into an ENA with SAHA. 


To encourage timeliness in the predevelopment phase, the City could 
consider breaking up its $2 million assistance into multiple payments as 
follows: 


1. $250,000 after obtaining entitlements 


2. $250,000 after obtaining building permits 


3. $1.5 million upon closing of construction loans 


108 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 8 
 


 


RSG’s review has determined that SAHA is an experienced developer proposing a quality project.  
SAHA has sound financials and a proven track record of successfully obtaining gap financing to 
develop and operate affordable housing projects.  The total development cost estimates and 
proposed City contribution of $2 million is reasonable based on recent comparable projects in the 
region.  The proposed mix of units by income levels will meet Housing Asset Fund legal 
requirements.  RSG recommends entering into an ENA with SAHA that identifies development 
requirements and milestones.  The ENA will legally commit Housing Asset Funds to avoid an 
excess surplus, while allowing more time to negotiate specific deal points such as loan terms and 
a land contribution via donation or long-term lease. 


109 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 9 
 


 
 
 
 
 


ATTACHMENT A-1:  PROPOSAL EVALUATION CHECKLIST - SAHA 


 


Evaluation Requirement Relevant Proposal Location Strength of 
Submission Item Comments


Application Checklist
Initial Design Concept


Site Development Concept
1- Proposal Overview & Initial Development 
Concept- Pages 5-14


5


Well thought out initial concept. 
32 units serving Veterans @ 60% 
AMI (1 Studio, 26 1BR, 5 2BR). 
Considers City development 
standards and requires density 
bonus. LEED Silver goal.  
Tentative completion Aug. 2023.


Firm's vision for development and how it fits firm's overall business 
strategy


1- Proposal Overview & Initial Development 
Concept- Pages 5-14


5


Illustrate firm's understanding of Pinole, the local community, and the 
importance of a development project at the Site


1- Proposal Overview & Initial Development 
Concept- Page 9


4
Strong knowledge of Bay Area.  
Outlines community engagement 
plan for specific development.


Comply with City approved Building Code and applicable local 
modifications


1- Proposal Overview & Initial Development 
Concept- Page 10


4
Need density bonus concessions 
for parking, maybe open space


Developer's Identification
Entity's name, street address, mailing address, phone number, 
facsimile number, and e-mail address


2- Developer Identification- Page 16 5 All info included


Legal form of the organization
Cover Letter; 2- Developer Identification- 
Page 16


5
California 501(c)3 public benefit 
corporation


Narrative that details whether firm develops, or develops and 
operates, affordable housing complexes. Describe Firm's 
specialization


2- Developer Identification- Pages 15-51 5
Extensive Bay Area experience 
developing and operating 
affordable housing.  


Identify other key members of development team and relevant 
experience for each team member


2- Developer Identification- Pages 18-51 5
Identifies specific SAHA staff 
members, legal counsel, and 
architects


110 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 10 
 


 
  


Evaluation Requirement Relevant Proposal Location Strength of 
Submission Item Comments


Application Checklist
Developer Experience and Qualifications


Descriptions for 3 previously completed projects
3- Developer Experience and Qualifications 


Pages 42-51
5 Profile five recent projects


Previous project timelines
3- Developer Experience and Qualifications 


Pages 42-51
5 Included in project profiles


Previous funding sources each project
3- Developer Experience and Qualifications 


Pages 42-51
5 Included in project profiles


References for each project
3- Developer Experience and Qualifications 


Pages 42-51
5 Included in project profiles


Financial Structure and Financial Capacity of Developer


Identify firm's capacity to secure the equity and financing required to 


construct and operate this development (Including developer's 


financials and holdings)


4- Financial Capacity of the Developer & 


Proposed Financial Structure Pages 52-184
5


Extensive experience obtaining 


gap financing. Strong financials. 


Manage multi-million dollar 


budget and assets.


Pro forma and identify potential amount of gap financing required, and 


gap financing resources related to underwriting the cost of 


development and operations.


4- Financial Capacity of the Developer & 


Proposed Financial Structure Page. 185-188
5 All info included


Identify amount of Housing Asset Fund assistance requested from 


City


4- Financial Capacity of the Developer & 


Proposed Financial Structure Page. 185-188
4


Proposal initially requested $3 


million City contribution.  SAHA 


since confirmed that $2 million is 


sufficient.


Define firm's experience with securing other sources of gap financing 


that may be used for the project


3- Developer Experience and Qualifications 


Pages 42-51
5


Extensive experience obtaining 


gap financing.


Statement detailing whether development entity, or any of the named 


individuals on the development team, have ever filed for bankruptcy 


or had projects that have been foreclosed (If yes, list of dates and 


circumstances)


3- Developer Experience and Qualifications 


Page 54
5


Never filed for bankruptcy or 


foreclosure


111 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 11 
 
ATTACHMENT A-2: PROPOSAL EVALUATION CHECKLIST – PCDSI 
 


 


Evaluation Requirement Relevant Proposal Location Strength of 
Submission Item Comments


Application Checklist
Developer Experience and Qualifications
Descriptions for 3 previously completed projects N/A 0 Not provided


Previous project timelines N/A 0 Not provided


Previous funding sources each project N/A 0 Not provided


References for each project N/A 0 Not provided
Financial Structure and Financial Capacity of Developer
Identify firm's capacity to secure the equity and financing required to construct 
and operate this development (Including developer's financials and holdings)


"SCDP OSCS Overview 2020" 1 Provides credit line flowchart with 
little information


Pro forma and identify potential amount of gap financing required, and gap 
financing resources related to underwriting the cost of development and 
operations.


N/A 0 Not provided


Identify amount of Housing Asset Fund assistance requested from City N/A 0 Not provided


Define firm's experience with securing other sources of gap financing that may 
be used for the project


N/A 0 Not provided. Did not respond to 
RSG e-mail asking about 
experience.


Statement detailing whether development entity, or any of the named 
individuals on the development team, have ever filed for bankruptcy or had 
projects that have been foreclosed (If yes, list of dates and circumstances)


N/A 1 Not provided


112 of 611







Andrew Murray & Hector De La Rosa 
CITY OF PINOLE 
October 22, 2020 
Page 12 
 


 


Evaluation Requirement Relevant Proposal Location Strength of 
Submission Item Comments


Application Checklist
Initial Design Concept
Site Development Concept N/A 0 Not provided


Firm's vision for development and how it fits firm's overall business strategy N/A 0 Not provided


Illustrate firm's understanding of Pinole, the local community, and the 
importance of a development project at the Site


N/A 0 Not provided


Comply with City approved Building Code and applicable local modifications N/A 0 Not provided


Developer's Identification
Entity's name, street address, mailing address, phone number, facsimile 
number, and e-mail address


"PCDSI & Susana Memo" 3 Name, address, and phone 
number in letter. Email addresses 
only available through submission 
email.


Legal form of the organization N/A 0 Not addressed.  For-profit 
organization based on website.


Narrative that details whether firm develops, or develops and operates, 
affordable housing complexes. Describe Firm's specialization.


"PCDSI & Susana Memo" 1 Very briefly states they build 
green affordable housing and 
other uses but does not give 
qualifications.  RSG sent follow-
up e-mail asking about affordable 
housing experience.


Identify other key members of development team and relevant experience for 
each team member


"PCDSI & Susana Memo" 1 Provides contractor name and 
address but no details about 
team structure or experience.


113 of 611







ATTACHMENT D


114 of 611







811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


INTRODUCTORY LETTER ........................................................................................................................ 2 


SECTION 1: PROPOSAL OVERVIEW & INITIAL DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT ............................................ 4 


Proposed Project Schedule .............................................................................................................. 11 


Conceptual Design ............................................................................................................................ 12 


SECTION 2: DEVELOPER IDENTIFICATION ........................................................................................... 15 


SAHA Real Estate Development Staff Resumes ............................................................................... 23 


Studio T-Square Firm Bio & Staff Resumes ...................................................................................... 26 


Gubb & Barshay Firm Bio ................................................................................................................. 34 


SECTION 3: DEVELOPER EXPERIENCE & QUALIFICATIONS ................................................................. 39 


Comparable Project Profiles............................................................................................................. 42 


SECTION 4: FINANCIAL CAPACITY OF THE DEVELOPER 


& PROPOSED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE  ............................................................................................ 52 


SAHA’s Audited Financial Statements – June 30, 2019 and 2018 .................................................... 56 


SAHA’s Audited Financial Statements – June 30, 2018 and 2017 .................................................. 101 


SAHA’s Audited Financial Statements – June 30, 2017 .................................................................. 144 


Financing Plan ................................................................................................................................ 185 


Unit Mix  ......................................................................................................................................... 186 


20 Year Cash Flow .......................................................................................................................... 187 


SECTION 5: SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION .................................................................................... 189 


SAHA Award List ............................................................................................................................. 190 


SAHA Board of Directors ................................................................................................................ 194 


SAHA Communities – List of Properties  ........................................................................................ 196 


SAHA Resumes ............................................................................................................................... 203 


SAHA Organizational Chart............................................................................................................. 209 


1
115 of 611







2
116 of 611







3
117 of 611







  Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


SECTION 1: 
PROPOSAL OVERVIEW &  


INITIAL DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 


4


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


118 of 611







  Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


SECTION 1: PROPOSAL OVERVIEW & INITIAL DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT 


SAHA envisions a vibrant, resilient development that creates 32 new affordable apartment homes. 


As proposed, all of the homes will be affordable to households earning 60% of the area median 


income and below. The preliminary site plan and massing have been designed in such a way as to 


create feasible housing project while balancing quality of life amenities such as open space and 


community rooms, and complementing the surrounding neighborhood design character. Based on 


our understanding of the City’s priorities, we propose a target population of veteran households, 


some of whom would be formerly homeless. The proposed mix of studios, one-bedroom, and two-


bedroom units provides for flexibility for a variety of non-age restricted populations and we look 


forward to working with the City to refine the target population as needed. 


Please note that we offer this initial design concept as a starting point for conversation with City staff, 


elected officials, neighbors, and other community stakeholders regarding the scale, massing, and 


design direction of the development and to demonstrate the site’s capacity.  We look forward to 


community dialogue and design process that we anticipate will guide and shape the evolution of the 


site plan, floor plans, building elevations, and programming.   


a. Design Concept


The proposed project will provide high quality, affordable housing to the City of Pinole. The proposed 


development plan consists of one three-story building that achieves 32 apartment homes (26 1-


bedroom apartments, one (1) studio apartment, and five (5) 2-bedroom units, one of which will be 


for the manager.) A context plan, site and floor plans, and a San Pablo Avenue elevation are included 


at the end of this section for illustrative purposes. As the floor plans demonstrate, the first floor will 


feature the property management office, lobby, services office. The ground floor also features a large 


multi-purpose community room adjacent to a path leading to the outdoor community terrace. The 


building would be staffed with an on-site property manager, maintenance, and resident services 


coordinator. 


The San Pablo Avenue elevation enclosed in this section presents a front façade in a 


traditional design with residential character by the inclusion of residential scale bay windows on the 


upper floors, a trellis at the first floor, and a hip roof over the entrance. A lower roof and defined 


5


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


119 of 611







SAHA  April 30, 2020 


  Pinole, CA


entrance create a connection at the street level to encourage pedestrian activity to lend to the 


walkability of the site. The scale and details of the building were designed to coincide with historic 


Pinole streetscapes. Ground street level offices are carefully placed to ensure unit privacy and given a 


commercial storefront appeal to blend into the diversity of services provided along San Pablo Avenue. To 


activate the San Pablo corridor in keeping with priorities and principles set forth in Pinole’s Three 


Corridors Specific Plan, the design places the lobby and entrance, services office, and property 


management office along the project frontage, featuring storefront windows and a minimal setback. 


The building entrance and lobby will provide a welcoming and secure point-of-entrance for residents 


and visitors alike.  A spacious multi-purpose community room is located just off of the lobby, which 


in turn is connected via an outdoor pathway to a large patio terrace/courtyard in the rear of the 


property to facilitate indoor/outdoor activities.  Residential units are located on the first through third 


floors; the upper floors are fully accessible and served by an elevator.   


Generous landscaping will be incorporated to create a sense of being built into the surroundings 


and allow a softer transition from the heavier street traffic. In order to achieve the character built within 


Pinole we have laid out the building to ensure the parking and many of the units are tucked behind the 


main façade. This allows the parking to be entirely concealed from the main street front view. The 


engaging street frontage façade then becomes the feature to assist in defining the project and achieving 


the goal to fit into the distinct identity of Pinole. The proposed site plan includes a large green space at 


the south ends of the site that potentially could be designed for shared community use and 


programmed with amenities such as a children’s play area, community garden beds, or picnic seating.  


In addition, there is some space above the lobby on the second floor that could be used as a smaller 


lounge, library, or exercise room. The community space on the ground floor could be made available 


for use by community groups and neighbors in coordination with our building staff.  We look forward 


to engaging with neighbors, City staff and other stakeholders to investigate how to incorporate 


community-serving amenities while addressing security and maintenance concerns.  


As at all of our buildings, SAHA will staff a Resident Services Coordinator on-site to assist 


residents in meeting their individual needs and to promote community-building at the property.  In 


addition to one-on-one supports, the Resident Services Coordinators will also develop a robust 


calendar of activities based on tenant interests such as gardening, farm-to-table cooking classes, 


6


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


120 of 611







SAHA  April 30, 2020 


  Pinole, CA


community meals, computer training, tutoring, movie nights, yoga & exercise classes.  Services 


programming will be tailored to meet the residents’ needs and interests.  


b. Parking


The proposal includes 16 surface parking spaces. This number provides a .5 parking ration per unit.


While this is less than zoning code requires for a project of this density, parking could be one of the


concessions granted via California’s recently updated State Density Bonus, (AB 1763, approved


October 9, 2019.) The property is just steps away from the bus stop at San Pablo Ave and Meadow


Ace, which is serviced by several fixed public transportation routes—WestCAT Route 17, C3, and Jr/JL


which service Pinole, Richmond BART, Richmond Parking Transit Center, Hercules, and El Sobrante.


This ensures several transportation options for households without cars. If the City prefers to increase


the number of parking spaces, the project could accommodate more parking by building an additional


story.


c. Mitigating Impact, Architectural Style & Materials


The proposed site plan has been carefully designed to minimize impacts to the neighborhood. The 


parking lot and open spaces are used as a buffer to the adjacent single-family homes behind the 


project site. The building is situated at the front of the site, minimizing the setback with San Pablo 


Avenue. This placement helps to knit together the long streetscape, creates continuity with the 


existing neighborhood and commercial uses, and activates the street. Every effort will be made to 


preserve existing mature and healthy trees in the rear of the site. Additional trees will be planted to 


provide shade and to activate the streetscape.  


SAHA will perform Phase I environmental studies after entering into agreements with the City to 


develop the site and begin due diligence investigations.  


With regard to architectural style and materials, the design team will incorporate high quality 


materials and detailing, and utilize an articulated and varied façade to contribute to design quality. 


While economical and readily available materials like stucco and siding may be used to contain costs 


and construction time, they will be deployed in a thoughtful way. The building massing also will be 


varied to ensure that it is sensitive to the context and does not overwhelm the neighborhood. The 


7


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


121 of 611







SAHA  April 30, 2020 


  Pinole, CA


design team is eager to work with key members of the surrounding community to develop a building 


concept that is contextual and reflects local design aesthetics. The current proposed massing and 


siting are flexible enough to accommodate an evolving process without sacrificing overall unit or 


parking counts. 


d. Green Building & Sustainable Design


Over the past 15+ years, SAHA has made substantial investments in green building technologies at 


our housing developments and within our organization. Since 2003, the majority of SAHA’s 


developments have incorporated renewable energy systems (photovoltaics and/or solar thermal) 


and we have recently upgraded our older buildings with PV systems using an incentive program from 


the State’s California Solar Initiative. Our projects have been featured on the Build It Green Home 


tours and guidebook since 2005 and we have been called upon to set regional standards for green 


building through participation in pilot programs with Build It Green, HUD EnergyStar Midrise, and 


Bay-friendly Landscaping Coalition. We have set an internal goal of achieving a minimum of LEED 


Silver on all new construction projects and several of our newest developments have earned LEED 


Platinum accreditation.   


Sustainable design will be integrated into each design decision, from building orientation to material 


selection. We will manage indoor air quality by paying special attention to the sustainable elements 


of the heating, air conditioning, and water heating systems that are installed. Additional details that 


produce a more comfortable living space are efficient windows, increased ventilation, and avoiding 


the presence of Volatile Organic Compounds. Stormwater management will be integrated into the 


landscape design via; the use of drought tolerant landscape program will give the site a sustainable 


landscape identity.  


The building is a strong candidate for progressive sustainability measures. An all-electric building will 


be considered for this site.  Going all-electric would avoid the need for fossil fuels at the property and 


provide the opportunity to meet all energy needs through renewable sources generated either onsite 


from photovoltaic arrays and/or through community power contracts. Additionally, a high-


performing building envelope could add another layer of resiliency to the building by providing a slow 


rate of heat or cold loss in the event of an emergency power outage. A tight envelope, on-site power 


8


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


122 of 611







SAHA  April 30, 2020 


  Pinole, CA


generation, and battery storage allow buildings to be self-sustaining, without the use of a back-up 


generator, for a longer period of time following a natural disaster.  


e. Community Engagement


As a local non-profit, SAHA is deeply committed to working with local stakeholders during the 


planning and design process in order to ensure our buildings are consistent with the vision and needs 


of the community.  SAHA completed its first affordable development in Contra Costa County in 1989 


and since then has developed 10. SAHA has an established and portfolio of affordable housing 


developments in the East Bay that have been built in partnership with local agencies and with 


substantial community input. Over the years, we have developed a highly participatory approach that 


includes the following: 


• Identify community-wide stakeholders and leaders representing different sectors including local


businesses, the faith community, sustainability advocates, economic development, social service


agencies, and neighborhood leaders.


• Meet one-on-one or in small groups with neighboring residents and merchants who will be


directly impacted by the development and construction of the project.


• Hold an initial community-wide open house to familiarize stakeholders with SAHA’s organization, 


completed projects, and property management team. The open house is also an opportunity to


orient participants to the site and how it relates to the surrounding uses. We begin to collect


feedback on community preferences, hear participants’ hopes for the project, and listen to


concerns. At this time we also solicit potential volunteers for the Community Advisory Committee


(CAC).


• Convene a Community Advisory Committee – Optional Step. For certain projects, SAHA has


found it very constructive to convene a small Community Advisory Committee (CAC) comprised


of local stakeholders from different segments of the community to work in a more hands-on


capacity with the development team to shape the project design.  Under this approach, a group


of 6-10 stakeholders is asked to meet three to four times over a series of months to consider


design options, evaluate trade-offs, and to review site planning and architectural details.  For


example for one recent project, our CAC consisted of three neighbors, a social service provider, a


local real estate broker, and a local design professional.  On another, our CAC included several


neighbors, a member of the clergy, and a senior executive from the local hospital.  In conversation 


9


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


123 of 611







811 SAN PABLO AVENUE


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


  Pinole, CA


with City staff and through initial feedback gathered during one-one-one conversations and the 


initial community open house described above, SAHA will evaluate the benefits of convening a 


CAC for this project. 


• Prepare schematic drawings incorporating design feedback gathered. Before permit submittal,


the development team and the CAC (if applicable) will present the preferred design concept at a


second community open house. Depending on feedback received, additional design work and


community sessions may be warranted to fine-tune the design prior to submitting a permit


application.


Once we have fully vetted the proposed schematic design, the team will submit for project-level 


approvals. SAHA will provide project information and meeting notices in English, Spanish, and Asian 


languages and will provide translation services at all community meetings. 


Please note that the sudden arrival of Covid-19 is prompting us to plan for a future where in-person 


meetings and large group gatherings may not be possible.  We are in the process of developing and honing 


our digital toolkit so that we can continue to foster dialogue and input from stakeholders.  Options that 


we are exploring include pre-recorded video materials, real time digital presentations (using tools such as 


Zoom and WebEx), input gathering via Google forms and interactive platforms such as 


thoughtexchange.com.  


f. Zoning and Entitlements


We anticipate submitting a planning application by December 2020, allowing time to complete a 


meaningful and robust community engagement process. The project will need to comply with the 


California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) or be approved via SB35. SAHA will work with the City 


to hire a consultant to prepare an Initial Study to determine the level of environmental review 


required of the project. The development, assuming the use of federal funds, will also need to comply 


with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA), with which SAHA has extensive experience.   


The site is currently zoned with a General Plan Designation of Commercial Mixed Use and may be 


used 100% for residential purposes with an affordable housing agreement. The site also lies in the 


San Pablo Avenue Land Use Plan section of the City’s Three Corridors Specific Plan. Based on the City’s 


Zoning Code, General Plan Designation, and density bonus, we will build 32 units affordable units. As 


an affordable development with 100% of units being income restricted at or below 60% of the Area 


10
124 of 611







811 SAN PABLO AVENUE


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


  Pinole, CA


Median Income, the project would be eligible for a density bonus up to 80% and up to four zoning 


concessions, if needed, under State density bonus law. We propose using one concession for parking, 


as our initial site plan includes 16 parking spaces, significantly less than what would be required per 


the multifamily dwelling parking standards. Another concession may need to be used for private open 


space requirements for ground floor units. Our analysis indicates that the proposed project is 


consistent with the setbacks, stories and heights allowed by the Development Code.  


g. Timeline for Development


SAHA fully understands the housing crisis that exists throughout the entire Bay Area. More specific 


to this site, SAHA understands that the City of Pinole has obligations to utilize the land and financing 


associated with the former Redevelopment Agencies. An expedited timeline for developing new 


affordable housing throughout the region is vital. We anticipate being able to complete the project 


in approximately 3 years, a full schedule is detailed below.  The design for entire development is to 


be built in one single phase. We are assuming a 16-month construction schedule. 


Timeline 4% Scenario: Proposed Timeline 


Milestone Date 


Developer Selection June 2020 


Negotiate Development Agreement July - August 2020 


Begin Design & Community Engagement September - October 2020 


Planning Application Submittal December 2020 


Planning Approval April 2021 


Secure Project Funding January 2021 – October 2021 


Design Development, CDs, Submit Bldg Permit September 2021 


Start Construction April 2022 


Complete Construction August 2023 


11
125 of 611







S a n   P a b l o


Parking


Terrace


Community


Office &
Services


Entry Office


8 1 1


Sheet Title:


Scale:


Job No.


Drawn By:


Date:


Sheet No:


X:\2016 Archive\16002_Greystar_RWC_Chase_site\03.00_Working\03.01_CAD\01_XREF\000_Title and Notes\STSQ_Logo.jpg


THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION


PROPRIETARY TO STUDIO T-SQ, INC. AND IS FURNISHED


IN CONFIDENCE FOR THE LIMITED PURPOSE OF


EVALUATION OR REVIEW. THIS DOCUMENT OR ITS


CONTENTS MAY NOT BE USED FOR ANY OTHER


PURPOSE AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR


DISCLOSED TO OTHERS WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN


CONSENT OF STUDIO T-SQ., INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED,


COPYRIGHT 2010.


:   Architecture   


:    1970 Broadway, Suite 500


:    Oakland, California 94612


:    (510)  451 - 2850 


:   Planning    


:   Urban Design 


P
I
N


O
L
E


 
V


E
T


E
R


A
N


 
H


O
U


S
I
N


G


8
1
1
 
S


A
N


 
P


A
B


L
O


 
A


V
E


N
U


E
,
 
P


I
N


O
L
E


,
C


A


04/24/2020


Conceptual


Design


N


1" = 30'


1
12


126 of 611







Laundry


1br Elev


Trash &
Recycling


2br


Office
Studio


3rd floor


Lobby
& Mail


Community
Room


Parking
16 spaces


H


S a n   P a b l o S a n   P a b l o


Terrace


c


c


Office &
Services


c


H


c


c


c


c


c


Library
2nd floor


10'


1br


1br


1br


1br


1br


1br


2br


1br


1br


1br


1br


1br


2br


1br 1br


1br 1br


Elev


Bikes


20'
drive


Bikes


Sheet Title:


Scale:


Job No.


Drawn By:


Date:


Sheet No:


X:\2016 Archive\16002_Greystar_RWC_Chase_site\03.00_Working\03.01_CAD\01_XREF\000_Title and Notes\STSQ_Logo.jpg


THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION


PROPRIETARY TO STUDIO T-SQ, INC. AND IS FURNISHED


IN CONFIDENCE FOR THE LIMITED PURPOSE OF


EVALUATION OR REVIEW. THIS DOCUMENT OR ITS


CONTENTS MAY NOT BE USED FOR ANY OTHER


PURPOSE AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR


DISCLOSED TO OTHERS WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN


CONSENT OF STUDIO T-SQ., INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED,


COPYRIGHT 2010.


:   Architecture   


:    1970 Broadway, Suite 500


:    Oakland, California 94612


:    (510)  451 - 2850 


:   Planning    


:   Urban Design 


P
I
N


O
L
E


 
V


E
T


E
R


A
N


 
H


O
U


S
I
N


G


8
1
1
 
S


A
N


 
P


A
B


L
O


 
A


V
E


N
U


E
,
 
P


I
N


O
L
E


,
C


A


04/24/2020


Conceptual


Design


N


1" = 30'


2nd & 3rd Floors Site & Ground Floor


5 @
26 @
1 @
32


2 Bedroom
1 Bedroom
Studio
Total units


UNIT MIX BLDG. AREA
10,200 sf / floor
30,600 sf total


PARKING
16 cars (2 accessible)
32 bikes


2
13


127 of 611







28'


Sheet Title:


Scale:


Job No.


Drawn By:


Date:


Sheet No:


X:\2016 Archive\16002_Greystar_RWC_Chase_site\03.00_Working\03.01_CAD\01_XREF\000_Title and Notes\STSQ_Logo.jpg


THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS INFORMATION


PROPRIETARY TO STUDIO T-SQ, INC. AND IS FURNISHED


IN CONFIDENCE FOR THE LIMITED PURPOSE OF


EVALUATION OR REVIEW. THIS DOCUMENT OR ITS


CONTENTS MAY NOT BE USED FOR ANY OTHER


PURPOSE AND MAY NOT BE REPRODUCED OR


DISCLOSED TO OTHERS WITHOUT THE PRIOR WRITTEN


CONSENT OF STUDIO T-SQ., INC. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED,


COPYRIGHT 2010.


:   Architecture   


:    1970 Broadway, Suite 500


:    Oakland, California 94612


:    (510)  451 - 2850 


:   Planning    


:   Urban Design 


P
I
N


O
L
E


 
V


E
T


E
R


A
N


 
H


O
U


S
I
N


G


8
1
1
 
S


A
N


 
P


A
B


L
O


 
A


V
E


N
U


E
,
 
P


I
N


O
L
E


,
C


A


04/24/2020


Conceptual


Design


1" = 30'Conceptual San Pablo Frontage Elevation


3
14


128 of 611







  Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


SECTION 2: 
DEVELOPER IDENTIFICATION 


15


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


129 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


SECTION 2: DEVELOPER IDENTIFICATION: 


For the development of 811 San Pablo Avenue, SAHA has assembled an experienced and resourceful 


team. Satellite Affordable Housing Associates (SAHA) will be the Developer and Owner (through a 


Limited Partnership structure) and will also provide Property Management and Resident Services 


coordination. Studio T Square, a firm with which SAHA has previously partnered on Veterans Square 


(a 30 unit, 100% supportive housing project in Pittsburg, CA) will be the architects for the project. 


Other team members, described below, include Gubb & Barshay (attorney). The engineering team 


will be selected at a later date. Both SAHA and Studio T Square have worked extensively with wide 


variety of capable civil, electric, structural, and MEP engineers in the Bay Area. 


Satellite Affordable Housing Associates 
Street and Mailing Address: 1835 Alcatraz Avenue, Berkeley CA 94703 
Telephone: (510) 647-0700 
Fascimile: (510) 647-0820 
Email: info@sahahomes.org 


Satellite Affordable Housing Associates (SAHA) will serve as the Developer, Owner, Property 


Manager, and Resident Services provider for the proposed development at 811 San Pablo Avenue. 


SAHA is a California 501(c)3 public benefit corporation with over 50 years of experience developing, 


owning, and managing affordable housing in the Bay Area. Over the years, SAHA has developed over 


65 affordable apartment communities to serve families, seniors, and special needs groups. We 


specialize in high-density infill development and work closely with the local community to plan and 


design buildings that are contextual and that will meet the needs of neighborhood stakeholders as 


well as future residents. We have also developed over 40,000 square feet of retail/commercial space, 


with the majority located in mixed-used residential buildings.   


As a mid-sized non-profit with a focus on Bay Area counties, SAHA is able to respond to local housing 


needs by creating beautiful, efficient, and affordable developments that serve households who would 


otherwise face limited or dire alternatives. Our residents are able to thrive and achieve goals around 


health, education, and employment once they are stably housed. Currently we provide housing for 


more than 4,000 residents including 400 units of supportive housing for people with special needs 


who were previously homeless. 


16
130 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


We are proud that year after year our developments win national recognition for quality and 


innovation.  A complete list of awards is provided in Supplemental Materials. 


SAHA is led by CEO Susan Friedland and is overseen by a volunteer Board of Directors recruited from 


a diversity of professional and personal backgrounds.  Susan Friedland has the authority to represent 


and make legally binding commitments for the development entity. SAHA is a HUD-approved 


Community Housing Development Organization (CHDO) with one-third of our Board of Directors 


comprised of low-income members.  We also have a goal of significant resident representation on 


the Board and currently three seats are filled by SAHA residents. A Board list is included in Section 5, 


Supplemental Information.  Our Board meets regularly on the second Tuesday of every month to 


provide strategic direction and fiduciary oversight for the organization and its assets.   We employ 


over 200 highly skilled and committed full-time staff. 


Our organization supports three primary program areas: real estate development, property 


management, and resident services. By acting as owner, developer, property manager and services 


coordinator, SAHA is deeply committed to the long-term health, maintenance, and quality of each of 


our properties and our residents.  


SAHA Real Estate Development 


The SAHA Real Estate Development team is highly skilled in all phases of project development 


including site acquisition, managing design and entitlements, securing project financing, and 


overseeing construction completion. Each potential development site is evaluated closely to ensure 


it is located near quality-of-life amenities; is eligible and feasible in the current funding environment; 


and is reflective of community needs and priorities.  On every project, the architectural team is 


carefully selected to ensure it has the right design aesthetic for the surrounding neighborhood as well 


as the appropriate experience. As a result of our early and rigorous analysis, we have an outstanding 


legacy of completed projects.  A complete project list is included in Section 5 and profiles for recent, 


comparable projects are included in Section 3. 


We especially enjoy working in partnership with local governments and community members to plan 


and design housing communities that meet local affordable housing needs, integrate into the existing 


architectural context, minimize energy and water consumption, and contribute to the community at-


17
131 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


large. We work with stakeholders very early in the site planning and design process to ensure that 


their voices are heard. Much of our new construction work involves close partnership with local 


agencies on publicly owned parcels that are being leased or sold for the purpose of meeting 


community housing needs.  We are currently working with the cities of Oakland, Albany, Pleasanton, 


Livermore, Napa and Sonoma County to develop affordable housing on public land.   


The following key SAHA Real Estate Development staff will be assigned to the project. Brief 


descriptions of their professional experience as well as their role in this project are provided below. 


We have also resumes for these team members at the end of this section, and for other essential 


SAHA leaders in Section 5. 


Eve Stewart, VP of Real Estate Development 
(510) 809-2754
estewart@sahahomes.org


Eve Stewart has nearly 20 years of experience in real estate finance and development and has been 


with SAHA since 2003. During her tenure, Eve has directly managed or overseen the completion of 


more than 1,400 housing units and 21,000 square feet of commercial space. Currently, Eve is 


responsible for over 1200 units in SAHA’s predevelopment pipeline.  


Eve oversees all aspects of SAHA’s work in Real Estate Development. Eve will be the County’s direct 


point of contact during the selection process and will work closely with County staff to negotiate the 


development agreement.  Eve will actively lead the community engagement process with neighbors 


and stakeholders and will be closely involved in the project-level design and entitlement approvals.  


Carrie Lutjens, Project Manager 
(510) 809-2728
clutjens@sahahomes.org


Carrie will carry out day-to-day project management work including managing the design & 


entitlements process and securing financing for the project. Carrie has been at SAHA since 2014 and 


has managed complex developments such as Valley View Senior Homes, which utilized the same state 


Veterans Housing and Homelessness Prevention (VHHP) program funds as we propose using for 811 


San Pablo. Carrie is currently managing two developments in Berkeley, California—one new 


18
132 of 611



mailto:estewart@sahahomes.org

mailto:clutjens@sahahomes.org





 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


construction community for 35 affordable senior housing households, and the refinance and 


renovation of Ashby Lofts, a 54-unit family affordable housing development.  


Alex Lee, Associate Project Manager 
(510) 809-2772
alee@sahahomes.org


Alex will be fully involved in the community engagement process and will provide key support for the 


entitlements process, funding applications, and financing closing. Alex joined SAHA in January 2020 


with over three years of experience in affordable housing services, urban planning consulting, and 


nonprofit administration. Alex is currently involved in the construction of 117 affordable units across 


Alameda County, supporting construction supervision, project closing, and financing applications for 


projects in various stages of completion.  


SAHA Property Management & Operations 


SAHA’s track record for providing professional, high-quality property management stretches back to 


1971 and across seven Northern California counties. We currently manage 67 properties (including 


two, third-party management contracts) serving low-income families, seniors, and people with 


special needs with the goal of ensuring a high quality of life for our residents and strong property 


stewardship.  


The property management staff of SAHA, led by Angela Cavanaugh VP of Property Management, is 


highly skilled and experienced in the affordable housing field. SAHA property management employs 


125 full time staff including supervisors, site managers, maintenance and janitorial staff. Staff are 


responsible for providing a wide range of services including responding to resident requests and 


concerns, carrying out day-to-day maintenance, and coordinating capital improvements such as roof 


replacements.  Property Managers monitor property waiting lists, fill vacancies promptly when they 


occur, perform tenant screening, and carry out annual income certifications.   


SAHA has created and implemented preventative maintenance programs, management control 


systems, and emergency preparedness programs for all of our properties.   


19
133 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


The many buildings in SAHA’s portfolio represent a tremendous community asset, one that staff has 


pledged to protect.  This commitment and care is evident in the excellent condition of SAHA’s 


properties, including those that have been in operations for four decades or more.   


During predevelopment, key SAHA staff from Property Management include Angela Cavanaugh, VP 


of Property Management, and Daniel Ponce, Regional Property Supervisor.  Angela and Daniel will 


prepare operating budgets, participate in community outreach activities, and provide guidance of fair 


housing practices and marketing strategies.  Resumes for Daniel and Angela are included later in 


Section 5. 


SAHA Resident Services 


As a housing provider for over 40 years, SAHA has seen the tremendous impact that our services 


program has made in lives of our residents, helping them to achieve their life goals and maintain 


stable housing. Our program provides personalized, supportive services to all families and individuals 


living in our housing communities. Currently, SAHA employs thirty full time services staff and 


conducts a robust volunteer program that incorporates over 250 volunteers per year.    


Each of our properties is staffed with resident service coordinators who provide one-to-one 


individualized case management for residents who need additional support. In addition, SAHA 


delivers a comprehensive array of programs designed to help families and individuals form and 


strengthen social connections, develop new skills, and maintain the best possible physical, emotional, 


and cognitive health. These programs include social and recreational activities, community gardening, 


exercise and health classes, civic engagement opportunities, after-school activities, intergenerational 


interaction, and service linkages. 


SAHA’s team of Resident Services Coordinators (overseen by a licensed clinical social worker)  work 


on-site at our properties to support our residents’ social, emotional, cognitive, and physical well-


being by providing case management, coordination & referrals to community-based services and 


providers, and through community building activities.  


Resident Services begin with case management and meeting basic needs through meal programs, 


public benefits access, health screening and access to care, and transportation services. From there 


20
134 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


we address a wide variety of individual needs including help with immigration and naturalization, 


medical-related planning and services, legal assistance and mediation, and financial education. 


Activities include a wide variety of on-site classes and groups including exercise classes, quilting and 


embroidery, drum circles, choirs, dancing, walk groups, book clubs, meditation, Feldenkrais, 


intercultural potlucks, men’s groups and ESL classes. Tenants Associations provide a vehicle for 


socializing as well as advocacy and communication between management and residents.  For family 


buildings, on-site youth programs provide young people a safe and supportive environment to build 


skills and resilience.  Our youth development staff and volunteers provide structured, engaging 


programming that focuses on social-emotional learning skills, homework assistance, and positive role 


models from the community.  SAHA uses the School Age Program Quality Assessment to guide staff 


training, curriculum and the physical environment. Youth programming includes a range of activities 


including homework help, tutoring, art projects, gardening, cooking, dance, and storytelling.  In 


addition, SAHA’s services team organizes a back-to-school supplies drive and holiday toys drive 


annually.  This year, we distributed over 300 backpacks with school supplies to children living in our 


properties and in the community at-large. 


During predevelopment, key SAHA staff from Resident Services include Cristi Ritschel, VP of Resident 


Services. Cristi will prepare services plans & budgets, participate in community outreach activities, 


assist with preparing competitive funding applications and involve strategic service partners, such as 


a third party services provider for the potential veteran and formerly homeless households, as 


needed to best serve our target tenant population. Cristi’s resume is provided in Section 5. 


Studio T Square 


Studio T Square (STS) is an architecture, planning, and urban design firm located in Oakland 


that creates acclaimed buildings in urban and suburban environments. STS specializes in creating 


vibrant and diverse community destinations, working with project stakeholders to guide community 


consensus, and bringing to life sustainable public spaces.  Their architectural team has completed 


over 1,000 units of affordable housing for families, seniors, veterans, and people with special needs, 


and currently have 7 additional communities that are actively underway. Key STS staff during 


predevelopment, particularly the schematic design and entitlement phases, include Robert Lindley, 


Principal Architect and Maren Moegel, Director of Design. Mark Steppan, Project Architect and 


21
135 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


Director of Construction Documents, and Beau Hale (Program architect and director of Construction 


Administration) would play key roles in the construction documents and development phases.  A 


profile of the firm, its comparable project experience, and resumes of these key staff are enclosed at 


the end of this section. 


Gubb & Barshay 


Gubb & Barshay LLP, established in 1993 by Natalie Gubb (1948-2016) and Scott Barshay, is widely-


known as one of the top law firms specializing in the field of affordable housing. Based in Oakland, 


California, the firm is recognized nationally for its expertise in the low income housing tax credit 


program and in other affordable housing finance programs. Gubb & Barshay LLP has been involved 


in the structuring and closing of over 500 low income housing tax credit program transactions in 


California and other states on behalf of affordable housing developers. The firm has worked on 


projects with a wide variety of direct and syndicated investors and negotiated transactions involving 


nearly every major lender and investor in the area. They have extensive experience on both new 


construction and acquisition/rehabilitation developments, with a particular expertise in 


resyndications of existing LIHTC developments. In addition to their thorough review of the 


syndication documents, they also closely review the financial projections to structure the transaction 


to maximize syndication proceeds. They provide all certifications required by tax credit allocating 


agencies and have acted as special tax counsel on highly specialized tax credit issues. They also 


represent developers in limited partner investor buyout transactions. 


Scott Barshay, Partner & founder, will be the attorney for the project.  Scott will lead all transactional 


legal aspects of the project (loan documents, DDA, syndication etc).  Mr. Barshay specializes in 


affordable housing, real estate and tax matters, syndications, and nonprofit law. He has assisted 


lenders in analyzing underwriting risks, documenting transactions and negotiating favorable loan 


provisions. He also has been involved in structuring numerous syndications and advising clients on 


tax, fair housing, and relocation matters. 


Scott graduated from Duke University in 1981, summa cum laude with an B.A. degree in Economics. 


Member of Phi Beta Kappa. He received his J.D. from Harvard University Law School in 1985, cum 


laude. 


22
136 of 611







510-809-2754
estewart@sahahomes.org 


EVE CARLISLE STEWART 
VICE PRESIDENT OF REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 


Eve Stewart has nearly 20 years of experience in real estate development and finance and has been with SAHA since 
2003. During her tenure, Eve has directly managed or overseen the completion of 1,800 housing units, financed 
primarily using low-income housing tax credits (LIHTC) combined with additional State and local funding programs. Eve 
oversees SAHA's Real Estate Development team and activities. She is responsible for 1,100 units in SAHA’s 
predevelopment pipeline and is a member of SAHA's executive team charged with broader organizational leadership 
functions including strategic planning and budgeting. Eve is a former board member of East Bay Housing Organizations 
(EBHO), a nonprofit advocacy and policy group and has held leadership roles with EveryOne Home, Alameda County’s 
initiative to end homelessness. Eve holds a Masters degree in City & Regional Planning from the UNC -Chapel Hill and 
graduated magna cum laude from Harvard.


2003-present 


2000-2003 


2000 


PROFESSONAL EXPERIENCE 
SAHA / Affordable Housing Associates, Berkeley, CA 
Vice President of Real Estate Development 
Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 
Senior Associate 
Dept. of City & Regional Planning, UNC 
Teaching Assistant, Real Estate Investment & Affordable Housing Finance (graduate level) 


REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 
The Savoy 
101 units | Permanent housing for homeless and special needs; mixed use 
Lakeside Senior Housing 
92 units | Permanent supportive housing for chronically homeless 
Strawberry Creek Lodge 
150 units | Senior housing 
Ashby Lofts 
54 units | Mixed-use family housing 
Carmen Avenue Apartments 
30 units | Supportive & Special Needs family housing 
Harmon Gardens 
16 units | Supportive housing units for transition-age youth 


2000 


1995 


EDUCATION 
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 
Master of City & Regional Planning, Real Estate and Housing Development 
Harvard University 
Bachelor of Arts, Anthropology/Archaeology, magna cum laude 


23
137 of 611







  CARRIE LUTJENS 510-809-2728


clutjens@sahahomes.org 
  PROJECT MANAGER 


Carrie joined Satellite Affordable Housing Associates (SAHA) in February 2014. With more than 10 years of work experience 
in the housing field, Carrie came to real estate development with a strong commitment to community engagement and 
advancing opportunities for low-income people. Prior to working at SAHA, Carrie implemented a Rapid-Rehousing program 
in Philadelphia, PA and conducted Fulbright research on urban redevelopment in Mumbai, India. Carrie has a Master’s in 
City & Regional Planning from UC Berkeley and a Bachelor’s degree from Brown University in Urban Studies. 


PROFESSONAL EXPERIENCE 


2014-present SAHA, Berkeley, CA 


Project Manager 


Oversees and coordinates all stages of affordable housing development including site research and 


acquisition, feasibility analysis, pre-development, design, project financing, construction, loan 


close-out and transition to property management. 


2010-2013 Women Against Abuse, Philadelphia, PA 


Housing Coordinator 


Developed and implemented a rental subsidy program for individuals fleeing domestic violence by 
soliciting referrals, screening intakes, processing payments with Accounting, writing policies and 
documenting electronically to comply with government standards. Advocated for clients with local 
landlords, performed home inspections, and represented agency at city provider meetings. 


2009- 2010 U.S. India Educational Foundation, Mumbai, India 


Fulbright Research Scholar in Urban Planning 
Analyzed the role of community organizing in Mumbai’s urban redevelopment process by  
reviewing literature and interviewing 50+ residents of informal settlements, developers,  
bureaucrats, academics and NGO staff to assess the efficacy of organizing for redevelopment under 
supervision of faculty at Tata Institute of Social Sciences in Mumbai. 


EDUCATION 


2017 


2008 


University of California, Berkeley 
Masters of City & Regional Planning 


Brown University 
Bachelors of Arts in Urban Studies 


24
138 of 611







 ALEX (JINWOO) LEE 510-809-2772
alee@sahahomes.org  ASSOCIATE PROJECT MANAGER 


Alex joined Satellite Affordable Housing Associates (SAHA) in January 2020 and has over 3 years of experience in affordable 
housing services, urban planning consulting, and nonprofit administration. Prior to SAHA, Alex piloted the creation of data 
dashboards and systems which supported resident service administration at BRIDGE Housing. Alex also managed the 
drafting of numerous Environmental Impact Reports (EIR) in the Greater Los Angeles Area for developers, local 
cities/jurisdictions, and public agencies. Alex holds a BS in Environmental Policy Analysis and Planning from the University 
of California, Davis and a Masters of City and Regional Planning from the University of California, Berkeley.  


PROFESSONAL EXPERIENCE 
2020-present Satellite Affordable Housing Associates; Berkeley, CA 


Associate Project Manager 
Manages the development of affordable housing through a wide variety of tasks directly related 
to planning, development and financing of projects from acquisition through construction and 
occupancy. Currently working through the construction of 117 affordable units in the City of 
Berkeley and Pleasanton. 


2018 BRIDGE Housing; San Francisco, CA 
Resident Services Neighborhood Portfolio Assessment Fellow 
Created data dashboards and visualizations from resident surveys in BRIDGE Housing properties. 
Piloted an outreach program to solicit larger response rates from residents using existing 
resident services strategies and workflow.  


2018 Beneficial State Foundation; Oakland, CA 
Impact Assessment Fellow  
Analyzed CDFI loan lending data for Beneficial State Bank’s 2017 FY to track lending 
performance, sector-specific metrics, and alignment with mission.   


2016-2017 Impact Sciences Inc.; Pasadena, CA 
Planner  
Managed the drafting of Environmental Impact Reports, Initial Studies, and related 
environmental review documentation for clients across the greater Los Angeles area. 


EDUCATION 
2019 Masters of City and Regional Planning 


University of California, Berkeley 


2016 Bachelor of Science, Environmental Policy Analysis and Planning 
University of California, Davis  


25
139 of 611







FIRM PROFILE
Studio T-Square (STS) specializes in creating vibrant and diverse community 
destinations, working with project stakeholders to guide community 
consensus, and bringing to life sustainable and artistic public spaces.  As 
architects and planners, we work together to create a team of qualified and 
experienced sub-consultants and engineers, guide the vision, manage each 
phase of design and construction, ensure quality deliverables, and exceed 
project goals.


This proposal comes at an opportune time for STS as we have formally 
merged with YHLA Architects, a well-respected bay area architecture 
and urban design firm.  Established in Oakland in 1982, YHLA has a 38-year 
history providing exceptional design and service to its clients and the greater 
bay area community.  YHLA principals Yui Hay Lee and Robert Lindley were 
actively involved in affordable housing design as early as 1983, with projects in 
Menlo Park, Sausalito, Pt. Reyes Station and Richmond, all serving low-income 
families and seniors.  YHLA’s entire management, design and production team 
joined STS and brought a deep understanding of the needs of marginalized 
communities and the importance of good place-making.  We are excited by 
the infusion of experience and creative energy this merger has brought to our 
team.


Studio T-Square is a full-service architecture, urban design, and planning 
firm based in Oakland, California. The Studio T-Square team works under the 
direction of veteran architects Chek F. Tang AIA, NCARB, Chris Lee, AIA, LEED AP, 
Seema Mhaskar, AIA, LEED AP, and William (Bill) Williams, AIA who bring over 100 
years of collective professional experience to the firm. By joining forces with 
YHLA we have created a commitment to doing our part to solve the Bay Area’s 
housing crisis. The YHLA team has brought decades of local experience, and a 
well-regarded reputation for design excellence, development knowledge, and 
client service. 


Our proposed architectural team has completed over 1,000 units of affordable 
housing, and currently have more than 300 units in construction and on-
the-boards. Together we have completed over 15 affordable communities for 
families, seniors, veterans, and people with special needs, and currently have 7 
additional communities that are actively underway. We have enclosed several 
project references that demonstrate our experience specific to affordable 
housing. 


A R C H I T E C T U R E
I N T E R I O R S
U R B A N  D E S I G N
P L A N N I N G


• Oakland Local Business
Enterprise, Est. 2010 (LBE)


• Certified Minority
Business Enterprise (MBE)


• Full time employees: 46
• Number of licensed


architects: 14


studiot-sq.com


26
140 of 611







TYLER COURT  El Monte, CA – 2014
A 20 unit affordable senior housing project located on an in-
fill site along a major artery.  The project is close to services 
and community amenities, which provides seniors a chance 
to live within walking distance of many of their daily needs. 
The Craftsman inspired design disguises a highly energy 
efficient building that includes a roof-top solar photovoltaic 
array to provide site and common area lighting and power.  
The project was awarded LEED Platinum certification. 


KELSEY VILLAGE  Sacramento, CA - 2013
A 20 unit affordable housing project that includes 10 much 
needed independent living apartments for tenants with 
physical and mental disabilities under the HUD 811 Program.  
Carefully designed to ensure that 100% of all interior spaces 
and outdoor amenities are fully accessible, the building 
and grounds provide an environment that enables a rich, 
integrated and independent lifestyle.  In addition to well-
appointed apartments, the project features a community 
center with kitchen, a beautiful landscaped terrace, and 
generous community garden space with raised planters. 


VETERANS SQUARE  Pittsburg, CA – In Development
The project consists of a three-story residential building 
with 27 one-bedroom units, one two-bedroom unit, and one 
two-bedroom managers unit. Common areas for residents 
include a large main entrance lounge, a community room 
with kitchen and storage, bike storage in a separate building 
on site and exterior gathering and gardening areas. The 
building is equipped with a laundry facility and tenant 
storage on each floor. 


KINGS BEACH FAMILY HOUSING  Kings Beach, CA - 2012
77 units of workforce housing for the Lake Tahoe area.  As 
the first-ever affordable housing project built in the Tahoe 
basin, the project successfully resolved a host of challenging 
environmental, community, and logistical constraints.  Four 
of the five sites consist of small, clustered two and three 
story “chalet” style buildings.  The fifth and largest site 
features a “resort-lodge” inspired LEED Silver four-story 
complex that has become a symbolic gateway to the Kings 
Beach area.  Notable awards include U.S. Green Building 
Council Green Building Super Heroes Award and AIA/HUD 
Secretary’s Housing & Community-Informed Design Award.


RELEVANT AFFORDABLE HOUSING EXPERIENCE


27
141 of 611







RELEVANT AFFORDABLE HOUSING EXPERIENCE


LA VALENTINA NORTH  Sacramento, CA - 2012
A small in-fill lot provides 18 units of affordable family 
housing.  The project was the 2013 EPA award winner 
for Smart Growth as the project illustrated exemplary 
transit-oriented design, as well as cutting edge energy 
conservation design to achieve an 80% level of energy 
independence.  Promoted by the Sacramento Municipal 
Utility District as a model project for net-zero design in 
multi-family housing as it incorporates a highly efficient 
envelope, mechanical system, and roof-top photovoltaic 
panels.  The three-story buildings surround a central court 
linking the project with the historic context of the existing 
neighborhood. 


CURTIS PARK COURT  Sacramento, CA – 2017
A three-story residential building with associated on-
site parking.  The project provides 91 units of affordable 
apartments for seniors along with an administrative office, 
community rooms, central laundry rooms, and informal 
lounges.  The site incorporates a large terrace for outdoor 
activities, a vegetable garden for tenants’ use, and extensive 
landscaping.  


SIENA COURT  Pittsburg, CA - 2012
A full-city-block senior housing / retail mixed-use project 
with three individual buildings on one master-planned 
property. The main building has 95 residential units, a 
full community center, management office, lounges 
and laundry. The second building, sited on a revitalized 
commercial street is a mixed-use with 16 residential 
units, lobby, lounges and laundry on two floors above 
ground level retail spaces. The third building is a two-
level parking structure with a “living” green roof above, 
providing a beautiful visual amenity as well as storm water 
management.


28
142 of 611







PROJECT TEAM SUMMARY 


Studio T-Square has a talented roster of qualified 
architects, designers, and support team members to 
ensure that all assignments are properly staffed. We have 
assembled a specific team that is highly experienced in the 
successful design and delivery of affordable communities. 
The Affordable Housing project team will be led by Principal-
in-Charge, Robert Lindley; Director of Design, Maren Moegel; 
Project Architect/Director of Construction Documents, 
Mark Steppan; Project Architect/Director of Construction 
Administration, Beau Hale; and additional team members 
will be pulled from a pool of talented designers. Each of the 
selected team members bring decades of experience to 
the team in both public and private sector assignments. 
Detailed resumes for each of these team members are 
included on the following pages.


Robert Lindley | PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE
Robert Lindley has over 36 years’ experience in a wide range 
of project types including residential, office, commercial, 
industrial, research laboratory, educational, recreational 
and historic preservation / adaptive re-use.  He has led 
architecture and design teams on more than a dozen 
affordable communities throughout Northern California, 
and is currently in development on an affordable veteran’s 
housing development in Pittsburg, CA. Robert is a registered 
architect in California. He was a founding board member of 
the San Francisco Bay Area Chapter of A.D.P.S.R. (Architects, 
Designers and Planners for Social Responsibility), and a 
member of the California Emergency Design Assistance 
Team which provided pro-bono design assistance following 
the Oakland Hills Fire. He has served as president of the 
Davis Village Homes Architectural Review Board and 
currently serves as a member of the City of Davis Building 
Code Board of Appeals.


Maren Moegel | DIRECTOR OF DESIGN
Maren Moegel is an urban and architectural designer and 
master planner with broad international experience, with 
a passion for the diversity and vibrancy of dense urban 
environments. Her emphasis is on strategy and concept 
development for urban redevelopment, mixed-use, 
residential and transit-oriented districts, and creating high-
quality designs that are ecological, economic and social 
sustainability. Maren has designed and managed multiple 
complex teams and projects from initiation to Entitlement 
approval, while balancing zoning requirements, design 
quality, and stakeholders’ goals and interests.


Mark Steppan | PROJECT ARCHITECT AND DIRECTOR OF 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS
Mark is a licensed architect with over 40 years of experience 
in design and construction of a wide variety of project 
types including educational, institutional, civic, commercial, 
and student housing, with much of his career focusing on 
multi-family and mixed-use residential projects. Mark’s 
responsibilities include managing projects from conception 
through construction, on both renovation and new 
construction projects. As Director of Architecture, Mark has 
authored Office Production Standards, QA/QC Process/Plan 
Guidelines and oversees the QA/QC and Risk Management 
processes for Studio T-Square. He has led office seminars 
on housing accessibility, construction defects and how 
to improve documentation to minimize the potential 
construction issues. 


Beau Hale | PROJECT ARCHITECT AND DIRECTOR OF 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION
Raymond (Beau) Hale is the Director of Construction 
Administration and a senior project architect at Studio 
T-Square. With over 20 years of industry experience, Beau
has led project teams on a variety of complex assignments,
including multi-family residential, mixed-use, resort,
institutional, and education projects. He plays a key role
in the management and influence of design, delivery, and
construction, collaborates with owners, consultants, officials,
and contractors to deliver quality buildings both on time
and on budget.


29
143 of 611







ROBERT LINDLEY
AIA, NCARB


Robert Lindley has over 36 years’ experience in a wide range of project types 
including residential, office, commercial, industrial, research laboratory, 
educational, recreational and historic preservation / adaptive re-use.  Joining 
YHLA in 1985 and Studio T-Square in 2019, Robert has been the pivotal force 
behind many of YHLA’s award winning projects and has designed some of the 
firm’s most prominent and distinguished projects including Ultimar, a 400 unit 
coastal high-rise housing community in Clearwater Florida, Frank H. Ogawa 
City Hall Plaza at the Oakland Civic Center and Swan’s Marketplace in Old 
Oakland, a project which has won numerous awards.   


Robert has designed and directed the completion of a variety of projects in the 
Sacramento Region including the award-winning Sacramento Natural Foods 
Coop Market and 4-level Parking Structure, Curtis Park Court Senior Affordable 
Housing and the Del Rio Live-Work Lofts.  A trio of innovative urban in-fill 
mixed-use buildings, the McCormick and Roe Buildings in Davis and the Sutter 
Court Building in Old Town Folsom, carefully integrate housing, commercial 
and office components into established downtown redevelopment districts 
and represent exemplary prototypes for green, transit-oriented development.  
Recently completed projects include a number of sustainable affordable 
housing and mixed use projects in Sacramento, El Monte, Pittsburg and Kings 
Beach Lake Tahoe, continuing a commitment to quality design and energy-
efficient, environmentally appropriate development.  New work in progress 
includes a 380 unit residential high rise in Oakland Chinatown, a 111 unit 
“affordable-by-design” work-live complex in West Oakland and a 63 unit 
senior affordable housing project with adjacent senior community center for 
the City of Winters.


Selected Project Experience
• Curtis Park Court – Senior Affordable Housing, Sacramento, CA
• Independence Plaza – Senior Affordable Housing ADA Rehab, Alameda, CA
• Sutter Place – Affordable Housing Rehabilitation, Carmichael, CA
• Tyler Court – Senior Affordable Housing, El Monte, CA
• Garden Village – Family Affordable Housing, Sacramento County, CA
• Siena Court – Senior Affordable Housing, Pittsburg, CA
• Santa Fe Commons – Family Affordable Housing, Pittsburg, CA
• Garvey Court – Senior Affordable Housing, El Monte, CA
• La Valentina North – Family Affordable Housing, Sacramento, CA
• Kings Beach Housing – Family Affordable Housing, Kings Beach, CA
• Alta Manor – Assisted Living Center, Roseville, CA
• Ping Yuen Center – Senior Affordable Housing, Sacramento, CA
• Bellagio Gardens – Residential Apartments, San Jose, CA
• Bee Street – Senior Affordable Housing, Sausalito, CA
• Kelsey Village – Developmentally Disabled Housing, Sacramento, CA
• Del Rio Live~Work – Market Rate Housing, Davis, CA
• 23rd and Valley - Market Rate Housing, Oakland, CA
• Arbor Building – Residential and Office Mixed-Use, Davis, CA
• Temple Art Lofts – Historic Adaptive Re-Use Mixed-Use, Vallejo, CA
• Alta Manor II – Assisted Living Center Expansion, Roseville, CA
• Berryessa Villas – Market Rate Residential Townhouses, San Jose, CA
• Murphy Villas – Market Rate Residential Townhouses, San Jose, CA
• Gateway Housing – Family Affordable Housing, Menlo Park, CA
• West Marin Senior Housing – Sr. Affordable Housing, Point Reyes Station, CA


EDUCATION
Bachelor of Arts in Architecture 
with High Honors
University of California, Berkeley 


LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS
Registered Architect in 
California: C-18214 
Hawaii: 16612
NCARB Certificate Holder


PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
• American Institute of Architects


(AIA)
• National Council Architectural


Registration Boards (NCARB)
• City of Davis Handicap Access


Standards Board of Appeals
• City of Davis Building Board of


Appeals
• Village Homes Architectural


Review Board (past president),
Davis, California


• Bay Area Chapter A.D.P.S.R.
(Founding Member), San
Francisco Bay Area, California


• AIA California Emergency
Design Assistance Team
(C.E.D.A.T.), Oakland, California


PRINCIPAL-IN-CHARGE


30
144 of 611







MAREN MOEGEL
LEED AP
URBAN DESIGNER, DIRECTOR OF DESIGN


EDUCATION
Master of Urban Design,  
University California, Berkeley;


Master  in Architecture and 
Planning,  TU Karlsruhe,  
Germany 


LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS
LEED AP


PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS 
• US Green Building Council
• AIA San Francisco
• San Francisco  Planning and


Urban Research Association


SELECT AWARDS:
• LEED Neighborhood


Development selected project
• Pacific Coast Builders


Conference
• Koerber Stiftung, Transatlantic


Idea Contest Usable Award


Maren Moegel is an urban and architectural designer and master planner 
with broad international experience, and a passion for the diversity and 
vibrancy of dense urban environments. Her emphasis is on strategy and 
concept development for urban redevelopment, mixed-use, residential 
and transit-oriented districts, and creating high-quality designs that 
are ecological, economic and social sustainability. Maren has designed 
and managed multiple complex teams and projects from initiation to 
Entitlement approval, while balancing zoning requirements, design quality, 
and stakeholders’ goals and interests.


Projects include the master plan for a 28-acre Warm Springs mixed-
use district in Fremont, CA, near BART and Tesla; and subsequent project 
entitlement for high-density apartments and affordable housing; Urban 
design and project management for Gateway at Millbrae mixed-use 
district, on the San Francisco Peninsula; and various urban mixed-use 
projects throughout the San Francisco Bay Area.


Selected Project Experience
• Old Warm Spring Boulevard South Master Plan, Fremont, CA.  Valley


Oak Partners. 28-acre Urban Mixed-Use district including market-rate
housing and office, as well as a co-working space, 100 affordable
residential units, and public amenities. Master Plan Adopted in Spring
2016. Subsequent project approvals in 2018. Under construction.


• Broadway Plaza: Entitlement for 11-acre mixed use development in
Redwood City for The Sobrato Organization and MidPen Housing; with
400 apartment units, three office buildings, a public park, childcare,
and 120-unit affordable housing units. Building permits are in process.


• Gateway at Millbrae mixed-use district: urban design and team
coordination for transit-oriented mixed use district, including Veterans-
preferred housing, office, retail, hotel, and a pedestrian paseo. Republic
Urban. Groundbreaking in 2019


• Aster Avenue: Master Planning and Entitlement approval for 17-acre
Transit-Oriented Multi-Family development at the Lawrence Caltrain
Station in Sunnyvale, CA. Land-owner client and Olympic Residential
Group. Under construction in 2020


• Ohlone Mixed-Use Development, San Jose, CA. 8-acre Planned
Development Permit, Green Republic LLLP, 2015


• 9-km long Sanya master plan in Hainan, China, with subsequent sub-
district plans and residential high-rise and villa development.


Other Engagements
• Teaching workshop on Community Engagement at Bauhaus School


Weimar, Germany - Summer 2019


• SPUR Task Force, Regional Planning Strategy 2019, Urban Design


31
145 of 611







MARK B. STEPPAN 
AIA, CSI, NCARB
DIRECTOR OF ARCHITECTURE, 
CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS


Mark is a licensed architect with over 40 years of experience in the design 
and construction of a wide variety of project types including educational, 
institutional, civic, commercial, and student housing, with much of his 
career focusing on multi-family and mixed-use residential projects. Mark’s 
responsibilities include managing projects from conception through 
construction, on both renovation and new construction projects. 


As Director of Architecture, Mark has authored Office Production Standards, 
QA/QC Process/Plan Guidelines and is overseeing the QA/QC and Risk 
Management processes for Studio T-SQ. He has led office seminars 
on housing accessibility, construction defects and how to improve 
documentation to minimize the potential construction issues. 


Mark was the chair of the Professional Practice Forum at the East Bay 
Chapter of the AIA and has been sitting on the Board of Directors for the last 
7 years and in previous years was leading the chapter as President focusing 
on the practice of architecture and how the AIA can further assist the 
profession and the public.


Selected Project Experience
• VASF: Restrooms renovations, SF, CA
• VASF: Seismic Study 2 Bldgs, SF, CA
• North 4th Street Apartments, San Jose, CA
• Villa Montgomery, Redwood City, CA
• Dana Point Senior Housing, Dana Point, CA
• Villa Vasona Senior Apartments, Los Gatos, CA
• Kaiser Permanente Foundation Health System, Oakland, CA
• Sutter Health System, San Mateo, CA
• John Muir Health System, Walnut Creek, CA
• Santa Clara Square, Phases 3 & 4, Santa Clara, CA
• 1 AMD Place, Sunnyvale, CA
• Park Place, Mountain View, CA
• Las Palmas, San Jose, CA
• Wingfield Towers, Reno, NV
• Almaden Lake Village, San Jose
• Silverado Park, Long Beach, CA
• Admiral Kidd Park, Long Beach, CA
• 29 Palms Marine Corps Base, Twenty-Nine Palms, CA
• Lawrencce Livermore National Lab, Livermore, CA


EDUCATION
Bachelor of Arts in Architecture, 
University of California, Berkeley 


LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS
Registered Architect in California, 
Nevada, and New Jersey


PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
• American Institute of Architects


(AIA), Board of Directors of AIA
East Bay Chapter (AIAEB)


• Construction Specifications
Institute (CSI)


• National Council of
Architectural Registration
Boards (NCARB)


32
146 of 611







Raymond (Beau) Hale is the Director of Construction Administration 
and a senior project architect at Studio T-Square. With over 20 years of 
industry experience, Beau has led project teams on a variety of complex 
assignments, including multifamily residential, mixed-use, resort, 
institutional, and education projects. He plays a key role in the management 
and influence of design, delivery, and construction, collaborates with owners, 
consultants, officials, and contractors to deliver quality buildings both on 
time and on budget. 


In addition to substantial multifamily and residential expertise, Beau has 
experience in leading multi-building campus projects, school projects, and 
retail assignments. He plays a key role in the development of new programs 
and standards of practice which are adopted company wide.


Selected Project Experience
• The Huxley, Redwood City, CA
• Franklin 299, Redwood City, CA
• The Cardinal Apartments, Redwood City, CA
• The Reserve, San Jose, CA
• Santa Clara Square, Santa Clara, CA
• Brooklyn Basin Parcel 3, Oakland, CA
• Ironworks Apartments, Sunnyvale, CA
• 100 Moffett, Mountain View, CA
• 311 Matilda, Sunnyvale, CA
• North Foothill Townhomes, Fremont, CA
• 98th & Bigge Convenience Plaza, Oakland, CA
• Holy Trinity School, Sunnyvale, CA
• St. Patrick’s School, San Jose, CA
• Catholic Academy of Sunnyvale, Sunnyvale, CA
• Roosevelt Elementary School, San Francisco, CA
• Caldwell Performing Arts Center, Mill Valley, CA
• Eckerd Drugstores, Various Cities, CO
• Carneros Inn and Spa Hilltop Building, Napa, CA


EDUCATION
Bachelor of Architecture, 
Temple University Philadelphia, 
Pennsylvania


LICENSES & CERTIFICATIONS
Registered Architect in California, 
C-28091


PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
• American Institute of Architects


(AIA)
• Construction Specifications


Institute (CSI)
• Construction Documents


Technician (CDT)


RAYMOND (BEAU) HALE
AIA, CSI, CDT
PROJECT ARCHITECT, DIRECTOR OF 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION


33
147 of 611







Law Offices of 


GUBB & BARSHAY LLP 
505 14th Street, Suite 450   Telephone:  (415) 781-6600 
Oakland, California  94612  www.gubbandbarshay.com 


Firm Resume 


 Gubb & Barshay LLP has extensive experience with all types of affordable housing programs, 
including tax-exempt bonds, HUD programs, elderly and special needs housing, and state and local 
programs. The firm also has substantial experience with the federal and state housing tax credit programs, 
and has been involved in the structuring and closing hundreds of low income housing tax credit syndications 
in California and other states. This work has involved drafting limited partnerships, analyzing financial 
projections, negotiating with investors, and structuring transactions to maximize funding potential.  


Scott R. Barshay 
Mr. Barshay is a partner in the firm specializing in affordable housing, real estate and tax matters, 
syndications, and nonprofit law. He has assisted lenders in analyzing underwriting risks, documenting 
transactions and negotiating favorable loan provisions. He also has been involved in structuring numerous 
syndications and advising clients on tax, fair housing, and relocation matters.  


Education: Graduated from Duke University in 1981, summa cum laude with a B.A. degree in Economics. 
Member of Phi Beta Kappa. Received J.D. from Harvard University Law School in 1985, cum laude. 
Member of The State Bar of California and the American Bar Association.  


Lauren B. Fechter 
Ms. Fechter is a partner in the firm specializing in affordable housing, real estate matters, syndications and 
nonprofit law. Ms. Fechter assists developers in connection with the acquisition, financing and syndication 
of real estate projects utilizing low income housing tax credits, historic tax credits and new market tax 
credits. Ms. Fechter has also negotiated ground leases, disposition and development agreements and owner 
participation agreements with a wide variety of state and local agencies. 


Education: Graduated from Tufts University in 1997, cum laude with a B.A. degree in International 
Relations. Received J.D. from The George Washington University Law School in 2000, with honors. 
Member of the The State Bar of California and the American Bar Association. Also admitted to practice in 
the states of New York and Connecticut. 


Evan A. Gross 
Mr. Gross is a partner in the firm specializing in affordable housing finance, real estate, and municipal law 
matters. Mr. Gross was previously an associate with the firm, and represented nonprofit developers in 
connection with the acquisition, financing and syndication of real estate projects utilizing low income 
housing tax credits and other public and private affordable housing financing sources. Mr. Gross spent eight 
years as a Deputy City Attorney for the City and County of San Francisco, representing the City in 
affordable housing development and finance transactions, real estate matters, economic development 
programs, and affordable housing policy matters.  


Education: Graduated from Macalester College in 1999 with a B.A. in Economics and Urban Studies. 
Received J.D. from Georgetown University Law Center in 2003, magna cum laude. Member of The State 
Bar of California. 


Sarah C. Perez 
Ms. Perez is a partner in Gubb & Barshay LLP. Gubb & Barshay specializes in affordable housing, real 
estate matters, syndications and nonprofit law. Ms. Perez has extensive experience representing developers 
and investors in real estate finance including structured finance, tax-advantage investing, tax credit 
syndication, community development, and affordable housing transactions. Ms. Perez has experience in real 
estate transactions that generate low income, new markets and historic tax credits. In addition, Ms. Perez 
regularly advises nonprofits on a variety of issues including 501(c)(3) tax exemption rules, lobbying 
limitations and good governance. Ms. Perez is currently a Governing Committee Member of the ABA Forum 
on Affordable Housing and Community Development and a Member of the State Bars of California and 
Washington. 


34
148 of 611







Gubb & Barshay LLP 
Page 2 


Education: Ms. Perez is a triple Bruin, with B.A. in History from UCLA, an M.P.P. from the UCLA School 
of Public Affairs and her J.D. from UCLA School of Law. During law school, Ms. Perez was a member of 
the David J. Epstein Program in Public Interest Law and Policy, and served as the articles editor for the 
Journal of International Law and Foreign Affairs. Ms. Perez also clerked at several nonprofit and 
government organizations.  


V. Nicole Kline
Ms. Kline is associated with the firm, specializing in affordable housing finance and real estate matters. Ms. 
Kline has represented developers, lenders and equity investors in numerous real estate development projects 
which qualify for the low-income housing tax credit and tax-exempt bond financing. Her practice has also 
included a wide array of general corporate and nonprofit law matters.  


Education: Graduated from the University of California, Riverside, in 1998, with a B.A. Degree in Political 
Science. Member of Phi Beta Kappa, Pi Sigma Alpha and graduated with highest honors. Received J.D. from 
the University of California, Los Angeles School of Law in 2003, with a specialization in corporate law, 
where she was Managing Editor of the Journal of Law & Technology. Member of The State Bar of 
California and The Florida Bar. 


Karen Elliott 
Ms. Elliott is associated with the firm, specializing in real estate matters.  Ms. Elliott was previously Senior 
Counsel for a large commercial retail company and has extensive experience with real estate development 
deals.  Her practice has also included a wide array of real estate, general corporate and environmental law 
matters. 


Education: Graduated from King’s College London, in 1986, with a Bachelor of Laws.  Ms. Elliott is a 
Member of The State Bar of California and is admitted as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and 
Wales. 


Jed H. D’Abravanel 
Mr. D’Abravanel is associated with the firm, specializing in affordable housing, real estate, HUD regulatory, 
and nonprofit law. Mr. D’Abravanel has experience representing developers in transactions utilizing various 
HUD programs and the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Program. Mr. D’Abravanel regularly 
provides advice on regulatory issues relating to HUD’s Section 8 project-based rental assistance (PBRA), 
project-based voucher (PBV), and housing choice voucher (HCV) programs.  Prior to attending law school 
Mr. D’Abravanel spent five years as both a Health Volunteer and Headquarters staff member with the United 
States Peace Corps in Washington D.C. and Morocco. 


Education: Graduated from Humboldt State University in 2007 with a B.A. in Political Science, where he 
received the Outstanding Student Award for Excellence in an Academic Discipline. Received J.D. from 
American University, Washington College of Law, in 2016, magna cum laude, Order of the Coif, and served 
as Senior Articles Editor of the American University Journal of Gender, Social Policy and the Law.  Member 
of The State Bar of California, the District of Columbia Bar, and the American Bar Association Forum on 
Affordable Housing and Community Development.


35
149 of 611







GUBB & BARSHAY LLP 
REPRESENTATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS 


* City of Oakland projects
+ HCD projects


Client Project 
A COMMUNITY OF FRIENDS Avalon Apartments 


Berendos + 
Osborne Place 
Vendome 
Willis Avenue 


AFFORDABLE HOUSING CDC, INC. McCoy Plaza 
Pittsburg 3 LLC 
Tulare 


ALLIED HOUSING Bridgeway East LP 
Fremont 
Mission Bell 


BRIDGE HOUSING CORPORATION Foothill Farms 
Pottery Court 
St. Josephs Family 
Tobria Terrace 


BURBANK HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


Amarosa Village I & II 
Fife Creek Commons 
Gray’s Meadow + 
Hendley Circle 
Sea Ranch 


CABRILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


Montgomery Oaks 


CATHOLIC CHARITIES OF SANTA CLARA Archer  
Kings Crossing 


CENTURY HOUSING CORPORATION Family Shelter 
CHINATOWN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CENTER 


Broadway Family  
Broadway Sansome 
Mary H. Rogers 
Otis  


CLIFFORD BEERS HOUSING, INC. The Courtyards 
NoHo Senior Villas 
YMCA 


COMMUNITY HOUSING IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM 


Linden Housing  
Murphy Commons 
Orland 


COACHELLA VALLEY HOUSING COALITION Brisas de Paz 
Khav 72 
Rancho las Flores 
Paseo de los Heroes 


COMMUNITY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP Edward II 
San Cristina 


DOMUS DEVELOPMENT Kings Beach 
La Valentina  
Lincoln Court 
Siena Court 
South Court 


36
150 of 611







GUBB & BARSHAY LLP 
REPRESENTATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS 


* City of Oakland projects
+ HCD projects


CLIENT PROJECT 
EAST LA COMMUNITY CORPORATION Boyle Hotel 


Las Margaritas 
EAST BAY ASIAN LOCAL DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


California Hotel + 
Coliseum Phases I – IV * 
Drasnin Manor 
Fruitvale Station * 
Hismen Garvey * 


EDEN HOUSING, INC. Arroyo 
Ashland Village 
Eden Lodge 
Lafayette Senior 
Peralta Seniors 
Warner Creek 


HUMANGOOD NORCAL (fka ABHOW) Amberwood 
Pacific Meadows + 
Valley Vista 


L.A. FAMILY HOUSING CORPORATION Day Street 
Glenoaks 


LTSC COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


Menlo Family Housing 
PHD Apartments 


MERCY HOUSING CALIFORNIA 7th & H  
Arlington 
Boulevard 
Caroline Severance 


MID-PENINSULA HOUSING CORPORATION Fair Oaks I & II  
South City I & II 
Union City I & II 


MISSION HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


Mission Bay  
Third Street  
Valencia Gardens 


MUTUAL HOUSING CALIFORNIA Highlands 
Shasta Hotel 
Spring Lake 
TRIO + 


NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY HOUSING Arroyo Grande 
PEOPLE’S SELF-HELP HOUSING 
CORPORATION 


Cambria 
Dahlia Court II 
El Patio  
Rolling Hills 


PETALUMA ECUMENICAL PROJECTS Acacia Lane 
Casa Grande 
Toussin 


37
151 of 611







GUBB & BARSHAY LLP 
REPRESENTATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS 


* City of Oakland projects
+ HCD projects


CLIENT PROJECT 
SATELLITE AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
ASSOCIATES 


6th and Oak Associates 
Amistad 
Camino 23 Apartments * 
Jefferson Oaks Apartments * 
Kelsey Village 
Project Pride 
Walnut Creek 


SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES New Goshen Village II 
Rancho Linda 


SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY HOUSING Ford Hotel 
Gateways 
Rosslyn 


SKIDROW HOUSING TRUST Abbey Apartments 
Charles Cobb Apartments 
New Carver Apartments 
New Genesis Apartments 


TENDERLOIN NEIGHBORHOOD 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 


5th & Howard 
8th & Howard 
Aarti  
Mosaica 


VISIONARY HOME BUILDERS 8th Street Development 
Villa Monterey  
Vintage Plaza 


WEST HOLLYWOOD COMMUNITY HOUSING 
CORPORATION 


Hayworth House 


38
152 of 611







  Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


SECTION 3: 
DEVELOPER EXPERIENCE & QUALIFICATIONS 


39


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


153 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


SECTION 3: DEVELOPER EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS 


As described in Section 2, SAHA has assembled an experienced and resourceful team for the 


development of 811 San Pablo in Pinole. Satellite Affordable Housing Associates (SAHA) will be the 


Developer and Owner (through a Limited Partnership structure) and will also provide Property 


Management and Resident Services coordination. This section focuses on SAHA’s development 


experience and qualifications in particular. Descriptions for three previously completed projects 


similar to what we propose for 811 San Pablo are included at the end of this section (Tabora, Valley 


View, and Redwood Townhomes.) We have included an additional two profiles of comparable 


projects that are just now starting in construction—Manzanita in Napa, California, and Veterans 


Square in Pittsburg, California. The profiles include project timelines, funding sources, and project 


references.  


Satellite Affordable Housing Associates 


Satellite Affordable Housing Associates (SAHA) will serve as the Developer, Owner, Property 


Manager, and Resident Services provider for the proposed development at 811 San Pablo Avenue. By 


acting as owner, developer, property manager and services coordinator, SAHA is deeply committed 


to the long-term health, maintenance, and quality of each of our properties and our residents. As 


described in Section 2, SAHA is a California 501(c)3 public benefit corporation with over 50 years of 


experience developing, owning, and managing affordable housing in the Bay Area. Over the years, 


SAHA has developed over 65 affordable apartment communities to serve families, seniors, and 


special needs groups. We specialize in high-density infill development and work closely with the local 


community to plan and design buildings that are contextual and that will meet the needs of 


neighborhood stakeholders as well as future residents. We are proud that year after year our 


developments win national recognition for quality and innovation.  A complete list of awards, a list 


of our board, and our organizational structure is provided in Section 5. 


SAHA Real Estate Development 


The SAHA Real Estate Development team is highly skilled in all phases of project development 


including site acquisition, managing design and entitlements, securing project financing, and 


overseeing construction completion. Each potential development site is evaluated closely to ensure 


40
154 of 611







Law Offices of 


GUBB & BARSHAY LLP 
505 14th Street, Suite 450   Telephone:  (415) 781-6600 
Oakland, California  94612  www.gubbandbarshay.com 


Firm Resume 


 Gubb & Barshay LLP has extensive experience with all types of affordable housing programs, 
including tax-exempt bonds, HUD programs, elderly and special needs housing, and state and local 
programs. The firm also has substantial experience with the federal and state housing tax credit programs, 
and has been involved in the structuring and closing hundreds of low income housing tax credit syndications 
in California and other states. This work has involved drafting limited partnerships, analyzing financial 
projections, negotiating with investors, and structuring transactions to maximize funding potential.  


Scott R. Barshay 
Mr. Barshay is a partner in the firm specializing in affordable housing, real estate and tax matters, 
syndications, and nonprofit law. He has assisted lenders in analyzing underwriting risks, documenting 
transactions and negotiating favorable loan provisions. He also has been involved in structuring numerous 
syndications and advising clients on tax, fair housing, and relocation matters.  


Education: Graduated from Duke University in 1981, summa cum laude with a B.A. degree in Economics. 
Member of Phi Beta Kappa. Received J.D. from Harvard University Law School in 1985, cum laude. 
Member of The State Bar of California and the American Bar Association.  


Lauren B. Fechter 
Ms. Fechter is a partner in the firm specializing in affordable housing, real estate matters, syndications and 
nonprofit law. Ms. Fechter assists developers in connection with the acquisition, financing and syndication 
of real estate projects utilizing low income housing tax credits, historic tax credits and new market tax 
credits. Ms. Fechter has also negotiated ground leases, disposition and development agreements and owner 
participation agreements with a wide variety of state and local agencies. 


Education: Graduated from Tufts University in 1997, cum laude with a B.A. degree in International 
Relations. Received J.D. from The George Washington University Law School in 2000, with honors. 
Member of the The State Bar of California and the American Bar Association. Also admitted to practice in 
the states of New York and Connecticut. 


Evan A. Gross 
Mr. Gross is a partner in the firm specializing in affordable housing finance, real estate, and municipal law 
matters. Mr. Gross was previously an associate with the firm, and represented nonprofit developers in 
connection with the acquisition, financing and syndication of real estate projects utilizing low income 
housing tax credits and other public and private affordable housing financing sources. Mr. Gross spent eight 
years as a Deputy City Attorney for the City and County of San Francisco, representing the City in 
affordable housing development and finance transactions, real estate matters, economic development 
programs, and affordable housing policy matters.  


Education: Graduated from Macalester College in 1999 with a B.A. in Economics and Urban Studies. 
Received J.D. from Georgetown University Law Center in 2003, magna cum laude. Member of The State 
Bar of California. 


Sarah C. Perez 
Ms. Perez is a partner in Gubb & Barshay LLP. Gubb & Barshay specializes in affordable housing, real 
estate matters, syndications and nonprofit law. Ms. Perez has extensive experience representing developers 
and investors in real estate finance including structured finance, tax-advantage investing, tax credit 
syndication, community development, and affordable housing transactions. Ms. Perez has experience in real 
estate transactions that generate low income, new markets and historic tax credits. In addition, Ms. Perez 
regularly advises nonprofits on a variety of issues including 501(c)(3) tax exemption rules, lobbying 
limitations and good governance. Ms. Perez is currently a Governing Committee Member of the ABA Forum 
on Affordable Housing and Community Development and a Member of the State Bars of California and 
Washington. 


34
155 of 611







Gubb & Barshay LLP 
Page 2 


Education: Ms. Perez is a triple Bruin, with B.A. in History from UCLA, an M.P.P. from the UCLA School 
of Public Affairs and her J.D. from UCLA School of Law. During law school, Ms. Perez was a member of 
the David J. Epstein Program in Public Interest Law and Policy, and served as the articles editor for the 
Journal of International Law and Foreign Affairs. Ms. Perez also clerked at several nonprofit and 
government organizations.  


V. Nicole Kline
Ms. Kline is associated with the firm, specializing in affordable housing finance and real estate matters. Ms. 
Kline has represented developers, lenders and equity investors in numerous real estate development projects 
which qualify for the low-income housing tax credit and tax-exempt bond financing. Her practice has also 
included a wide array of general corporate and nonprofit law matters.  


Education: Graduated from the University of California, Riverside, in 1998, with a B.A. Degree in Political 
Science. Member of Phi Beta Kappa, Pi Sigma Alpha and graduated with highest honors. Received J.D. from 
the University of California, Los Angeles School of Law in 2003, with a specialization in corporate law, 
where she was Managing Editor of the Journal of Law & Technology. Member of The State Bar of 
California and The Florida Bar. 


Karen Elliott 
Ms. Elliott is associated with the firm, specializing in real estate matters.  Ms. Elliott was previously Senior 
Counsel for a large commercial retail company and has extensive experience with real estate development 
deals.  Her practice has also included a wide array of real estate, general corporate and environmental law 
matters. 


Education: Graduated from King’s College London, in 1986, with a Bachelor of Laws.  Ms. Elliott is a 
Member of The State Bar of California and is admitted as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of England and 
Wales. 


Jed H. D’Abravanel 
Mr. D’Abravanel is associated with the firm, specializing in affordable housing, real estate, HUD regulatory, 
and nonprofit law. Mr. D’Abravanel has experience representing developers in transactions utilizing various 
HUD programs and the Low-Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) Program. Mr. D’Abravanel regularly 
provides advice on regulatory issues relating to HUD’s Section 8 project-based rental assistance (PBRA), 
project-based voucher (PBV), and housing choice voucher (HCV) programs.  Prior to attending law school 
Mr. D’Abravanel spent five years as both a Health Volunteer and Headquarters staff member with the United 
States Peace Corps in Washington D.C. and Morocco. 


Education: Graduated from Humboldt State University in 2007 with a B.A. in Political Science, where he 
received the Outstanding Student Award for Excellence in an Academic Discipline. Received J.D. from 
American University, Washington College of Law, in 2016, magna cum laude, Order of the Coif, and served 
as Senior Articles Editor of the American University Journal of Gender, Social Policy and the Law.  Member 
of The State Bar of California, the District of Columbia Bar, and the American Bar Association Forum on 
Affordable Housing and Community Development.


35
156 of 611







GUBB & BARSHAY LLP 
REPRESENTATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS 


* City of Oakland projects
+ HCD projects


Client Project 
A COMMUNITY OF FRIENDS Avalon Apartments 


Berendos + 
Osborne Place 
Vendome 
Willis Avenue 


AFFORDABLE HOUSING CDC, INC. McCoy Plaza 
Pittsburg 3 LLC 
Tulare 


ALLIED HOUSING Bridgeway East LP 
Fremont 
Mission Bell 


BRIDGE HOUSING CORPORATION Foothill Farms 
Pottery Court 
St. Josephs Family 
Tobria Terrace 


BURBANK HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


Amarosa Village I & II 
Fife Creek Commons 
Gray’s Meadow + 
Hendley Circle 
Sea Ranch 


CABRILLO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


Montgomery Oaks 


CATHOLIC CHARITIES OF SANTA CLARA Archer  
Kings Crossing 


CENTURY HOUSING CORPORATION Family Shelter 
CHINATOWN COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CENTER 


Broadway Family  
Broadway Sansome 
Mary H. Rogers 
Otis  


CLIFFORD BEERS HOUSING, INC. The Courtyards 
NoHo Senior Villas 
YMCA 


COMMUNITY HOUSING IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM 


Linden Housing  
Murphy Commons 
Orland 


COACHELLA VALLEY HOUSING COALITION Brisas de Paz 
Khav 72 
Rancho las Flores 
Paseo de los Heroes 


COMMUNITY HOUSING PARTNERSHIP Edward II 
San Cristina 


DOMUS DEVELOPMENT Kings Beach 
La Valentina  
Lincoln Court 
Siena Court 
South Court 


36
157 of 611







GUBB & BARSHAY LLP 
REPRESENTATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS 


* City of Oakland projects
+ HCD projects


CLIENT PROJECT 
EAST LA COMMUNITY CORPORATION Boyle Hotel 


Las Margaritas 
EAST BAY ASIAN LOCAL DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


California Hotel + 
Coliseum Phases I – IV * 
Drasnin Manor 
Fruitvale Station * 
Hismen Garvey * 


EDEN HOUSING, INC. Arroyo 
Ashland Village 
Eden Lodge 
Lafayette Senior 
Peralta Seniors 
Warner Creek 


HUMANGOOD NORCAL (fka ABHOW) Amberwood 
Pacific Meadows + 
Valley Vista 


L.A. FAMILY HOUSING CORPORATION Day Street 
Glenoaks 


LTSC COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


Menlo Family Housing 
PHD Apartments 


MERCY HOUSING CALIFORNIA 7th & H  
Arlington 
Boulevard 
Caroline Severance 


MID-PENINSULA HOUSING CORPORATION Fair Oaks I & II  
South City I & II 
Union City I & II 


MISSION HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION 


Mission Bay  
Third Street  
Valencia Gardens 


MUTUAL HOUSING CALIFORNIA Highlands 
Shasta Hotel 
Spring Lake 
TRIO + 


NAPA VALLEY COMMUNITY HOUSING Arroyo Grande 
PEOPLE’S SELF-HELP HOUSING 
CORPORATION 


Cambria 
Dahlia Court II 
El Patio  
Rolling Hills 


PETALUMA ECUMENICAL PROJECTS Acacia Lane 
Casa Grande 
Toussin 


37
158 of 611







GUBB & BARSHAY LLP 
REPRESENTATIVE LIST OF PROJECTS 


* City of Oakland projects
+ HCD projects


CLIENT PROJECT 
SATELLITE AFFORDABLE HOUSING 
ASSOCIATES 


6th and Oak Associates 
Amistad 
Camino 23 Apartments * 
Jefferson Oaks Apartments * 
Kelsey Village 
Project Pride 
Walnut Creek 


SELF-HELP ENTERPRISES New Goshen Village II 
Rancho Linda 


SINGLE ROOM OCCUPANCY HOUSING Ford Hotel 
Gateways 
Rosslyn 


SKIDROW HOUSING TRUST Abbey Apartments 
Charles Cobb Apartments 
New Carver Apartments 
New Genesis Apartments 


TENDERLOIN NEIGHBORHOOD 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 


5th & Howard 
8th & Howard 
Aarti  
Mosaica 


VISIONARY HOME BUILDERS 8th Street Development 
Villa Monterey  
Vintage Plaza 


WEST HOLLYWOOD COMMUNITY HOUSING 
CORPORATION 


Hayworth House 


38
159 of 611







  Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


SECTION 3: 
DEVELOPER EXPERIENCE & QUALIFICATIONS 


39


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


160 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


it is located near quality-of-life amenities; is eligible and feasible in the current funding environment; 


and is reflective of community needs and priorities.  On every project, the architectural team is 


carefully selected to ensure it has the right design aesthetic for the surrounding neighborhood as well 


as the appropriate experience. As a result of our early and rigorous analysis, we have an outstanding 


legacy of completed projects.  A complete project list is included in Section 5 and profiles for recent, 


comparable projects are included in this section. 


We especially enjoy working in partnership with local governments and community members to plan 


and design housing communities that meet local affordable housing needs, integrate into the existing 


architectural context, minimize energy and water consumption, and contribute to the community at-


large. We work with stakeholders very early in the site planning and design process to ensure that 


their voices are heard. Much of our new construction work involves close partnership with local 


agencies on publicly owned parcels that are being leased or sold for the purpose of meeting 


community housing needs.  We are currently working with the cities of Oakland, Albany, Pleasanton, 


Livermore, Napa and Sonoma County to develop affordable housing on public land.   


The key SAHA Real Estate Development staff were identified in Section 2 (Developer Identification.) 


Brief descriptions of their professional experience, their role in this project, and their resumes were 


included in that section.   


41
161 of 611







LEASE UP DATE 


March 2018 


TOTAL COST 


$33,700,000 


DENSITY 


27 units per acre 


NUMBER OF UNITS 


85 Total 


INCOME LEVELS 


50% AMI & Below 


ARCHITECT 


Pyatok Architects 


GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


Sunseri Construction 


FINANCING PARTNERS 


City of Antioch 


Contra Costa County 


HCD VHHP, MHP 


4% Tax Credits 


Wells Fargo 


PROPERTY MANAGER 


SAHA PM 


SERVICE COORDINATOR 


SAHA and Shelter Inc. 


TABORA GARDENS SENIOR APARTMENTS 
3701 TABORA DRIVE, ANTIOCH 


Tabora Gardens Senior Apartments is the new construction of an 85 unit affordable 


housing community for people aged 55 and above.  Overlooking a quiet open space 


preserve, yet with neighborhood amenities in close proximity, the site is ideally located 


for senior housing. It includes 84 one-bedroom apartments and an on-site manager’s 


unit. A surface parking lot includes 59 parking spaces for residents. Resident amenities 


include a 1,066 square foot community room with kitchen, a smaller 541 square foot 


activity room with five computer stations along one wall, and an exercise room.  The 


community room opens to the central garden which includes a meandering path, several 


seating areas, and wheelchair accessible vegetable planters in a sunny spot.  


Over half the apartments are set aside for special needs populations.  33 are re-served 


for military veterans -- 12 of those for individuals who have been chronically homeless.  


An additional five are set aside for those with HIV or AIDS; five more units are for the 


disabled. Resident services include SAHA van transportation and a contract with Shelter 


Inc. to provide case management to the formerly homeless residents. The project also 


has project-based rental assistance from the Housing Authority of the County of Contra 


Costa and through HUD 811 program.  


ACQUISITION DATE 


January 26, 2010 


ENTITLEMENT DATE 


November 8, 2011 


CONSTRUCTION DURATION 


September 2016 — March 


2018 


42 162 of 611







TABORA GARDENS SENIOR APARTMENTS 
3701 TABORA DRIVE, ANTIOCH 


PROJECT REFERENCES: 


Dan Wendle 


VP—Director of Acquisitions, West 


Raymond James Tax Credit Funds, Inc. 


880 Carillon Parkway 


St. Petersburg, FL 33716 


Phone: 503-675-3933 


Email: Dan.Wendle@RaymondJames.com 


John S. Kauh 


Senior Vice President / Office Manager 


Wells Fargo Bank 


Community Lending & Investments 


333 Market Street, 18th Floor 


MAC A0119-183 


San Francisco, CA 94105 


Phone: 415-801-8523 


Email: kauhj@wellsfargo.com 


Teri House 


CDBG/Housing Consultant 


City of Antioch 


Community Development Department 


200 H Street, 2nd Floor 


Antioch, CA 94509 


Phone: 925-779-7037 


Email: CDBG@ci.antioch.ca.us 


43
163 of 611







LEASE UP DATE 


February 2019 


TOTAL COST 


$26,600,000 


DENSITY 


19 units per acre 


NUMBER OF UNITS 


70 Total 


INCOME LEVELS 


30% - 60% AMI 


ARCHITECT 


McCamant & Durrett    
Architects 


GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


Midstate Construction 


FINANCING PARTNERS 


City of American Canyon 


HCD VHHP 


FHLB AHP 


State CDBG 


City of Napa Housing  


Authority 


HUD-VASH 


4% tax credit equity  


PROPERTY MANAGER 


SAHA PM 


SERVICE COORDINATOR 


SAHA 


VALLEY VIEW SENIOR HOMES 
1 NATALIE LANE, AMERICAN CANYON 


SAHA’s American Canyon project presents a special opportunity to realize the City of 


American Canyon’s goals of creating a senior community that will offer a high level of 


amenities as well as on-site services for older adults with modest financial means.  


Valley View Senior Homes offers 70 cottage-style units on the site, all of which are 


affordable to very low and extremely low-income seniors.  Twenty-two of the units are 


set-aside for veterans with incomes at 50% of the area median income or below and of 


those, 17 units serve homeless veterans through the HUD-VASH program. The City of 


Napa Housing Authority provides a total of 34 project-based vouchers through HUD-


VASH and Section 8 rental assistance programs. Valley View was envisioned as a vibrant 


community that complements the character of the existing single-family neighborhood 


while achieving a density that promotes financial feasibility and long-term operational 


sustainability. The result is a hillside development of charming cottages, centralized 


parking, meandering paths, active recreation, and a community clubhouse. Residents 


will enjoy a beautifully landscaped community that incorporates the highest standards 


of green building and   sustainable design as well as a robust selection of on-site 


services and activities to support wellness, independent living, and aging-in-place.    


ACQUISITION DATE 


March 29, 2013 


ENTITLEMENT DATE 


November 20, 2013 


CONSTRUCTION DURATION 


June 2017— January 2019 


44 164 of 611







VALLEY VIEW SENIOR HOMES 
1 NATALIE LANE, AMERICAN CANYON 


PROJECT REFERENCES: 


Charles R. Anderson 


Senior Vice President 


Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 


Community Lending and Investment 


125 High Street, 15th Floor 


MAC J9226-150 


Boston, MA 02110 


Phone: 617-603-4226 


Email: Charles.r.anderson@wellsfargo.com 


Brent Cooper 


Community Development Director 


City of American Canyon 


4381 Broadway Street, Suite 201 


American Canyon, CA 94503 


Phone: 707-647-4335 


Email: bcooper@cityofamericancanyon.org 


Fiona Hsu 


Manager, Community Development Finance 


Silicon Valley Bank 


505 Howard Street, 3rd Floor 


San Francisco, CA 94105 


Phone: 415-764-3125 


Email: fhsu@svb.com 


45
165 of 611







LEASE UP DATE 


June 2019 


TOTAL COST 


$26,000,000 


DENSITY 


40 units per acre 


NUMBER OF UNITS 


28 Total 


INCOME LEVELS 


30% - 50% AMI 


ARCHITECT 


BDE Architecture, Inc 


GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


J.H. Fitzmaurice, Inc. 


FINANCING PARTNERS 


Citibank 


U.S. Bancorp 


City of Oakland 


County of Alameda 


Oakland Housing Authority 


California Department of 


Housing & Community 


Development 


4% Tax Credits 


PROPERTY MANAGER 


SAHA PM 


SERVICE COORDINATOR 


SAHA 


REDWOOD HILL TOWNHOMES 
4868 CALAVERAS AVENUE, OAKLAND 


With the support of the City of Oakland and Alameda County, SAHA developed Redwood 


Hill Townhomes, a 28-unit affordable family housing community. The City of Oakland is 


in need of affordable housing that is suitable for large families and located in areas 


with low poverty levels. Redwood Hill Townhomes provides an opportunity for low-


income families to live in the desirable Upper Laurel neighborhood and contributes to 


geographic equity in the city.  


Located on a 0.71 acre lot, the development features 12 two-bedroom and 16 three-


bedroom units, providing a total of 72 bedrooms of permanent affordable rental 


housing. Rents will range from 30%-50% AMI. Eleven units will be set-aside for 


individuals and families that have experienced domestic violence, of which seven will 


be reserved for households who are at-risk of or experiencing homelessness. The 


Oakland Housing Authority will provide a total of 27 project-based vouchers through the 


Section 8 rental assistance program, enabling SAHA to serve households with incomes 


even lower than the restricted incomes. 


Redwood Hill Townhomes features a four-story, U-shaped building oriented around a 


large interior courtyard complete with a landscaped seating areas and playground.  


Twenty-eight parking spaces are located in a ground-floor podium parking garage. 


Community features include a spacious community room with a full kitchen and dining 


area, a resident lounge, a landscaped community porch, a resident garden and bay-


friendly landscaping. 


ACQUISITION DATE 


August 9, 2013 


ENTITLEMENT DATE 


February 17, 2011 


CONSTRUCTION DURATION 


May 2017 — May 2019 


46
166 of 611







PROJECT REFERENCES: 


Anne Sodergren 


Assistant Vice President, Citi Community 


Capital 


Greenwich Street Community Capital, LLC 


5500 Maryland Way, Suite 350 


Brentwood, TN 37027 


Phone: 615-372-6155 


Email: anne.sodergren@citi.com 


Sebastian Glowacki 


Vice President 


U.S. Bancorp Community Development 


Corporation 


950 17th Street, 3rd Floor 


Denver, CO 80202 


Phone: 303-349-4132 


Email: sebastian.glowacki@usbank.com 


Jennifer Pearce 


Housing Development Manager, Community 


Development Agency 


County of Alameda 


224 West Winton Avenue, Room 108 


Hayward, CA 94544 


Phone: 510-670-6474 


Email: jennifer.pearce@acgov.org  


REDWOOD HILL TOWNHOMES 
4868 CALAVERAS AVENUE, OAKLAND 


47
167 of 611







TOTAL COST 


$34,000,000 


DENSITY 


27.6 units per acre 


NUMBER OF UNITS 


51 Total 


INCOME LEVELS 


30% - 60% AMI 


ARCHITECT 


Dahlin Group Architects 


GENERAL CONTRACTOR 


Sunseri Construction 


FINANCING PARTNERS 


City of Napa 


County of Napa 


4% Tax Credits 


FHLB AHP 


PROPERTY MANAGER 


SAHA PM 


SERVICE COORDINATOR 


SAHA 


MANZANITA FAMILY APARTMENTS 
2951 SOSCOL AVENUE, NAPA 


In the fall of 2015, the City of Napa selected SAHA through a competitive RFP 


process to develop a 100% affordable rental housing development, and in May 


2016, the City approved a formal development agreement with   SAHA. The 


property will be targeted to families and SAHA has committed to make its best 


efforts to reserve two units for currently or formerly homeless individuals. 


The development consists of 51 units (including one manager’s unit) within a 


single three-story building. The completed structure will be on grade with 


conventional foundation. Building construction will be Type V (primarily wood) 


and carport parking will include 85 spaces. 


The property is well located with respect to local services, amenities and 


public transit, with a grocery store, pharmacy (CVS) and park within walking 


distance (0.5 miles), a major regional hospital and shopping center, with three 


major grocery chains, and a Target within 1.5 miles of the site, and bus service 


to Downtown Napa located within easy walking distance. 


SAHA completed the entitlements process in September 2017, and began to 


secure soft financing commitments at that time. Groundbreaking is 


targeted for 2020, with estimated completion in 2021. 


ACQUISITION DATE 


June 23, 2016 


ENTITLEMENT DATE 


September 2017 


CONSTRUCTION DURATION 


May 2020—October 2021 
(anticipated) 


48
168 of 611







PROJECT REFERENCES: 


Todd Fabian 


Vice President, Regional Manager 


National Equity Fund, Inc. 


500 S. Grand Avenue, Suite 2300 


Los Angeles, CA 90071 


Phone: 213-240-3144 


Email: tfabian@nefinc.org 


Fiona Hsu 


Manager, Community Development Finance 


Silicon Valley Bank 


505 Howard Street, 3rd Floor 


San Francisco, CA 94105 


Phone: 415-764-3125 


Email: fhsu@svb.com 


Lark Ferrell 


Housing Manager, 


Housing Division, City of Napa 


1115 Seminary Street 


Napa, CA 94559 


Phone: 707-257-9547 


Email: lferrell@cityofnapa.org 


MANZANITA FAMILY APARTMENTS 
2951 SOSCOL AVENUE, NAPA 


49
169 of 611







TOTAL COST 
$18,000,000 


DENSITY 
38 units per acre 


NUMBER OF UNITS 
30 Total 


INCOME LEVELS 
30% - 50% AMI 


ARCHITECT 


Studio T-Square 


GENERAL CONTRACTOR 
Brown Construction 


FINANCING PARTNERS 


City of Pittsburg 
Contra Costa County 
4% Tax Credits 
HCD No Place Like Home 
HUD VASH 
Further soft financing to 
be determined 


PROPERTY MANAGER 
SAHA PM 


SERVICE COORDINATOR 
SAHA 


VETERANS SQUARE 
901 LOS MEDANOS STREET, PITTSBURG 


Veterans Square is the proposed new construction of a 30 unit affordable 
housing project targeting households earning between 30% to 50% AMI in Old 
Town Pittsburg. The project will consist of a 3 story Type V-A building with a 
unit mix of 28 one-bedrooms and 2 two-bedroom apartments. One two-bedroom 
apartment will be designated for on-site management. The City of Pittsburg 
Housing Authority will provide 29-project based vouchers. Nineteen of the units 
will serve homeless veterans through the HUD-VASH program. The remaining ten 
units will be set aside for homeless residents with serious mental illness through 
HCD’s No Place Like Home program. The project will provide 5 parking spaces 
onsite and 25 additional parking spaces in a gated parking lot across the street 
from the project. Project amenities include laundry rooms, community room, 
outdoor courtyard with picnic tables, barbecue grill, and planter boxes for 
community gardening.  


ACQUISITION DATE 
May & July 2019 


ENTITLEMENT DATE 
March 11, 2019 


CONSTRUCTION DURATION 


Oct. 2020 — Nov. 2021  
(anticipated) 


50 170 of 611







PROJECT REFERENCES: 


Kristen Lackey 


Affordable Housing Program Manager 


Contra Costa County Department of 


Conservation and Development 


30 Muir Road 


Martinez, CA 94553 


Phone: 925-674-7793 


Email: Kristen.Lackey@dcd.cccounty.us 


Melaine Venenciano 


Community Services Department 


City of Pittsburg 


65 Civic Avenue 


Pittsburg, CA 94565 


Phone: 925-252-4155 


Email: mvenenciano@ci.pittsburg.ca.us 


VETERANS SQUARE 
901 LOS MEDANOS STREET, PITTSBURG 


51
171 of 611







  Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


SECTION 4: 
FINANCIAL CAPACITY OF THE DEVELOPER & 


PROPOSED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE 


52


 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


* FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PROVIDED UPON REQUEST


172 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


SECTION 4: FINANCIAL CAPACITY OF THE DEVELOPER & PROPOSED FINANCIAL 
STRUCTURE 


Satellite Affordable Housing Associates enjoys a strong financial position that ensures our ability to 


self-fund predevelopment activities, leverage debt and equity investment to our projects, and to 


sustain our agency operations. Please find enclosed in SAHA’s audited financial statements for Fiscal 


Years 2017, 2018 and 2019.   


In addition, SAHA has a strong reputation in the industry as an innovative and capable developer and 


is highly-regarded by financial partners.  SAHA has an excellent record of securing long-term 


competitive subsidies from local, state, and federal sources as well as private equity and debt. Our 


projects routinely access funding from the following programs: 


 California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTAC) 4% and 9% tax credits
 California Debt Limit Allocation Committee (CDLAC) tax exempt bonds
 HCD Multifamily Housing Program (MHP), General and Supportive Housing
 HCD Infill Infrastructure Grants (IIG)
 HCD Transit-Oriented Development (TOD)
 Affordable Housing & Sustainable Communities (AHSC)
 Veterans Housing and Homeless Prevention (VHHP)
 CalHFA construction and perm loan programs
 Mental Health Services Act capital and operating subsidies
 Project Based Section 8
 Project Based Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH)
 HOPWA funds
 HUD Section 202,  811, 108, and Supportive Housing Programs
 Federal Home Loan Bank AHP Grants
 City and County HOME, CDBG and CHDO funds


Because of our excellent reputation as a developer and property manager, SAHA is able to attract 


high levels of investment from both tax credit investors and lenders to our projects. In the past five 


years SAHA has secured construction loans, mortgage financing and/or tax credit investment from 


the following commercial institutions: 


• Wells Fargo
• Bank of America


53
173 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


• Silicon Valley Bank
• National Equity Fund
• Raymond James
• Citibank
• US Bank
• CA Community Reinvestment Corporation (CCRC)


References for several of these financial partners can be found in the Developer Experience (Section 


3) with their respective project profiles. The combination of SAHA’s strong financial standing,


aptitude with public funding sources, and cadre of relationships with institutional lenders puts SAHA


in a strong position to carry out the proposed project and imitate development within 12 months of


completing the DDA.  Finally, neither SAHA nor SAHA staff named on the Real Estate development


team, have filed for bankruptcy nor had projects that have experienced foreclosure.


Proposed Financial Structure 


SAHA proposes to fund the development of 811 San Pablo Avenue primarily with 4% Low Income 


Housing Tax Credit equity (38% of development cost), a soft loan from the California Department of 


Housing and Community Development’s Veterans Housing and Homelessness Prevention Program 


(33% of development cost), a soft loan from the City of Pinole (16% of development cost) and a soft 


loan from the Contra Costa County’s HOME funds (10% of development cost.)  The remaining 4% of 


development cost will be funded by a soft loan from the Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco’s 


Affordable Housing Program and deferred developer fee. SAHA projects have utilized all of these gap 


financing sources before, with the exception of the funds from the City of Pinole, and have sized the 


awards based on the particular unit mix proposed. A financial proforma detailing this proposed 


scenario immediately follows this section. 


SAHA crafted its financial model by balancing twin goals of maximizing affordability and ensuring 


long-term financial feasibility. Please find the proposed financial model on the following pages of this 


section. Use of the state VHHP funds allow the projects to serve 100% veterans, 45% of which would 


be extremely low-income households of either formerly homeless or disabled veterans. Therefore 


we propose utilizing HUDVASH project-based Section 8 vouchers to further subsidize those 14 units, 


allowing the project to serve incomes even lower than 30% of the Area Median Income. While we 


54
174 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA  April 30, 2020 


find this combination of target population and funding sources to best meld the City of Pinole 


affordability and target population objectives with the project’s financial feasibility, SAHA has served 


a variety of populations and utilized a variety of gap funding sources that would allow us to adapt this 


plan if necessary. Lastly, the predevelopment costs for this project are estimated at approximately $ 


1.2 million SAHA is prepared to self-fund all the development costs; however,  It would be helpful if 


the City could allow $500,000 of its $3.5 million development loan to be used during predevelopment. 


55
175 of 611







Pinole RFP Version: Feasbility Analysis


Financing Plan


Uses Uses
1$                   Land / Acquisition 1$                   Land / Acquisition


14,505,513$   Construction 14,505,513$   Construction
678,660$        Architecture 678,660$        Architecture
403,355$        Survey & Engineering 403,355$        Survey & Engineering


1,114,519$     Construction Interest & Fees 1,114,519$     Construction Interest & Fees
-$                Permanent Financing 10,000$          Permanent Financing


80,000$          Legal 80,000$          Legal
414,100$        Reserves 414,100$        Reserves


2,003,258$     Other Costs 2,003,245$     Other Costs
145,474$        Bond Financing Costs 145,486$        Bond Financing Costs


2,540,000$     Developer Costs 2,540,000$     Developer Costs
106,187$        Syndication Costs 107,187$        Syndication Costs


21,991,066$   Total Uses 22,002,065$   Total Uses


Sources Sources
648,020$        Federal and State Tax Credit Equity 8,309,429$     Federal and State Tax Credit Equity
310,000$        FHLB AHP 310,000$        FHLB AHP


3,500,000$     Local Funds: City 3,500,000$     Local Funds: City
2,196,946$     Local Funds: County HOME 2,196,946$     Local Funds: County HOME


-$                GP / Sponsor Equity 500,000$        GP / Sponsor Equity
-$                Other HCD VHHP 7,185,690$     Other HCD VHHP


15,336,100$   Construction Loan -$                
21,991,066$   Total Sources 22,002,065$   Total Sources


Construction Permanent


4/29/2020 6:29 PM


185
176 of 611







Pinole RFP Version: Feasbility Analysis


Unit Mix (Rent and Income Levels)


Bedrooms AMI Subsidy Name Section 8
Total 
Units


 Gross 
Rent 


 Utility 
Allowance  Net Rent 


 Proposed 
Rent 


 Annual 
Rental 
Income 


 FMR/ 
Contract 


Rents 
 Section 8 
Payment 


 Annual 
Section 8 
Income 


0 50% 1 1,085$   36$            1,049$   1,049$       12,588$     
1 30% HUDVASH Yes 12 697$      43$            654$      654$          94,176$     1,876$       1,222$       175,968$   
2 30% HUDVASH Yes 2 837$      57$            780$      780$          18,720$     2,338$       1,558$       37,392$     
1 50% 6 1,162$   43$            1,119$   1,119$       80,544$     
2 50% 2 1,395$   57$            1,338$   1,338$       32,112$     
1 60% 8 1,394$   43$            1,351$   1,351$       129,696$   
2 MGR 1 -$       -$           -$       -$           -$           


-$       
-$       
-$       
-$       
-$       
-$       
-$       
-$       
-$       


Total: 14 32 367,836$   213,360$   


4/29/2020 6:29 PM


186
177 of 611







Pinole RFP Version: Feasbility Analysis


Cash Flow


Year  1 Year  2 Year  3 Year  4 Year  5 Year  6 Year  7 Year  8 Year  9 Year  10
Income
Rent 2.5% 367,836$       377,032$       386,458$       396,119$       406,022$       416,173$       426,577$       437,241$       448,172$       459,377$       
Section 8 Rental Subsidy 3% 213,360$       218,694$       224,161$       229,765$       235,510$       241,397$       247,432$       253,618$       259,958$       266,457$       
POTENTIAL GROSS INCOME: 581,196$       595,726$       610,619$       625,885$       641,532$       657,570$       674,009$       690,859$       708,131$       725,834$       


LIHTC Units Vacancy 5% (18,392)$       (18,852)$       (19,323)$       (19,806)$       (20,301)$       (20,809)$       (21,329)$       (21,862)$       (22,409)$       (22,969)$       
Section 8 Units Vacancy 7% (13,868)$       (14,215)$       (14,570)$       (14,935)$       (15,308)$       (15,691)$       (16,083)$       (16,485)$       (16,897)$       (17,320)$       
Commercial Vacancy -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              
EFFECTIVE GROSS INCOME: 548,936$       562,659$       576,726$       591,144$       605,922$       621,070$       636,597$       652,512$       668,825$       685,546$       


Expenses
Operating Expenses 3.5% 427,005$       441,950$       457,418$       473,428$       489,998$       507,148$       524,898$       543,270$       562,284$       581,964$       
Replacement Reserve Deposits 19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         
TOTAL EXPENSES 446,205$       461,150$       476,618$       492,628$       509,198$       526,348$       544,098$       562,470$       581,484$       601,164$       


NET OPERATING INCOME 102,731$       101,509$       100,107$       98,516$         96,724$         94,722$         92,499$         90,043$         87,341$         84,382$         


Required Payments
Bond Monitoring Fee 4,000.00$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           
Other: VHHP Required Debt Service 0.42% 30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         
CASH FLOW: 68,551$         67,329$         65,927$         64,336$         62,544$         60,543$         58,319$         55,863$         53,161$         50,202$         
DSCR: N/A 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Deferred Developer Fee -$              -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Investor Fee 8,000$  8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           
Asset Management Fee 2% 20,000$  20,000$         20,400$         20,808$         21,224$         21,649$         22,082$         22,523$         22,974$         23,433$         23,902$         
Residual Receipts
Soft Lenders: City of Pinole, County 75% 30,413$         29,197$         27,840$         26,334$         24,672$         22,846$         20,847$         18,667$         16,296$         13,725$         
Owner 25% 10,138$         9,732$           9,280$           8,778$           8,224$           7,615$           6,949$           6,222$           5,432$           4,575$           


4/29/2020 6:29 PM


187
178 of 611







Pinole RFP Version: Feasbility Analysis


Cash Flow


Year  11 Year  12 Year  13 Year  14 Year  15 Year  16 Year  17 Year  18 Year  19 Year  20
Income
Rent 470,861$       482,633$       494,699$       507,066$       519,743$       532,736$       546,055$       559,706$       573,699$       588,041$       
Section 8 Rental Subsidy 273,119$       279,947$       286,945$       294,119$       301,472$       309,009$       316,734$       324,652$       332,769$       341,088$       
POTENTIAL GROSS INCOME: 743,980$       762,580$       781,644$       801,185$       821,215$       841,745$       862,789$       884,358$       906,467$       929,129$       


LIHTC Units Vacancy (23,543)$       (24,132)$       (24,735)$       (25,353)$       (25,987)$       (26,637)$       (27,303)$       (27,985)$       (28,685)$       (29,402)$       
Section 8 Units Vacancy (17,753)$       (18,197)$       (18,651)$       (19,118)$       (19,596)$       (20,086)$       (20,588)$       (21,102)$       (21,630)$       (22,171)$       
Commercial Vacancy -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              -$              
EFFECTIVE GROSS INCOME: 702,684$       720,251$       738,258$       756,714$       775,632$       795,023$       814,898$       835,271$       856,153$       877,556$       


Expenses
Operating Expenses 602,333$       623,414$       645,234$       667,817$       691,191$       715,382$       740,421$       766,335$       793,157$       820,918$       
Replacement Reserve Deposits 19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         19,200$         
TOTAL EXPENSES 621,533$       642,614$       664,434$       687,017$       710,391$       734,582$       759,621$       785,535$       812,357$       840,118$       


NET OPERATING INCOME 81,152$         77,637$         73,824$         69,697$         65,241$         60,440$         55,278$         49,735$         43,795$         37,439$         


Required Payments
Bond Monitoring Fee 4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           4,000$           


Other: VHHP Required Debt Service 30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         30,180$         
CASH FLOW: 46,972$         43,457$         39,644$         35,517$         31,061$         26,260$         21,098$         15,555$         9,615$           3,259$           


DSCR: 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Deferred Developer Fee -$              -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Investor Fee 8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           8,000$           3,259$           
Asset Management Fee 24,380$         24,867$         25,365$         25,872$         23,061$         18,260$         13,098$         7,555$           1,615$           -$              
Residual Receipts
Soft Lenders: City of Pinole, County 10,944$         7,942$           4,709$           1,234$           -$              -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  
Owner 3,648$           2,647$           1,570$           411$              -$              -$  -$  -$  -$  -$  


4/29/2020 6:29 PM


188
179 of 611







   811 San Pablo Ave 
  Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020 


SECTION 5: 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 


189
180 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


SATELLITE AFFORDABLE HOUSING ASSOCIATES AWARDS (SINCE 2006)


2019 AIA COTE® Top Ten Awards: Lakeside Senior Apartments 


2019 PCBC Golden Nugget Award of Merit - Best Affordable Senior Housing Community On the 
Boards: Choice in Aging 


2019 PCBC Golden Nugget Award of Merit - Best Affordable Senior Housing Community: Tabora 
Gardens Senior Apartments 


2019 Top 50 Bay Area Developers, San Francisco Business Times Book of Lists 


2018 Top 50 Affordable Housing Developers in the US, Affordable Housing Finance 


2018 Top 50 Bay Area Developers, San Francisco Business Times Book of Lists 


2017 PCBC Golden Nugget Award for Best Affordable Senior Housing Community, Lakeside Senior 
Apartments 


2017 Nonprofit Housing Association of Northern CA: Leadership Award for Resident Services 


2017 Featured article in: AARP's annual "Where We Live: Communities for All Ages" guidebook for 
seniors 


2017 Featured chapter in: "Design for Good: A New Era of Architecture" by Island Press 


2017 Top 50 Bay Area Developers, San Francisco Business Times Book of Lists 


2016 Sustainable Contra Costa Green Building Award Honoree: Arboleda 


2016 AHF Reader's Choice Award Winner: Lakeside Senior Apartments 


2016 AIA/HUD Excellence In Affordable Housing Design: Lakeside Senior Apartments 


2016 AHF Reader's Choice Award Finalist: Lakeside Senior Apartments 


2016 PCBC Golden Nugget Award for Best Affordable Housing: Arboleda Apartments 


2016 PCBC Golden Nugget Award for Best Senior Housing: Strawberry Creek Lodge 


2015 AIA East Bay: Design Honor Award, Lakeside Senior Apartments 


2015 Sharing the Benefits Award: The Association of Bay Area Governments, Jack Capon Villa 


190
181 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


2015 Real Estate Deal of the Year Nominee: San Francisco Business Times, Lakeside Senior 
Apartments 


2014 Readers Choice Winner: Affordable Housing Finance, Valley Oak Homes 


2014 Readers Choice Winner: Affordable Housing Finance, The Savoy 


2014 Gold Nugget Award of Merit, Jack Capon Villa 


2014 Gold Nugget Award of Merit, Valley Oak Homes 


2014 Number 34 of Top 50 Affordable Housing Developers in the US, Affordable Housing Finance 


2014 San Francisco Business Times Real Estate Deal of the Year, The Savoy 


2014 The American Institute of Architects Housing Award for Architecture, Merritt Crossing 


2013 The American Institute of Architects' Committee on the Environment Top Ten Award, Merritt 
Crossing 


2013 Berkeley Design Advocates: Award of Excellence, Amistad House 


2013 Number 19 of Top 25 Bay Area Developers, San Francisco Business Times Book of Lists 


2013 Readers Choice Finalist: Affordable Housing Finance, Merritt Crossing 


2012 East Bay AIA Chapter: Exceptional Residential Honor Award, Merritt Crossing 


2012 Gold Nugget Award of Merit, Valley Vista Senior Homes 


2012 Gold Nugget Award of Merit, Harmon Gardens 


2012 Aging Services of California, Advocates of the Year 


2012 LEED for Homes Platinum Award, Harmon Gardens 


2011 Enterprise Community Partner of the Year 


2011 Gold Nugget Award of Merit, 401 Fairmount Apartments 


2011 Mental Health Community Services Award, Alameda County Mental Health Board 


2011 Readers Choice: Affordable Housing Finance, 401 Fairmount Apartments 


191
182 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


2011 Calfornia Supportive Housing, Quality Award for Achieving Excellence in Design, Madison at 
14th 


2011 Community Impact Award, Northern California Community Loan Fund 


2011 Top 50 Affordable Housing Developers, Affordable Housing Finance Magazine 


2010 Readers Choice: Affordable Housing Finance, Petaluma Avenue Homes 


2010 Gold Nugget Grand Award, Petaluma Avenue Homes 


2010 Metlife Foundation Award for Excellence in Affordable Housing, St. Patrick's Terrace 


2010 Urban Land Institute's Award of Excellence for the Americas, Madison at 14th 


2009 National Housing Award, American Institute of Architects, Madison at 14th 


2009 Readers Choice: Affordable Housing Finance, Madison at 14th 


2009 Gold Nugget Award of Merit, Sacramento Senior Homes 


2009 Gold Nugget Award of Merit, Orchards on Foothill 


2009 Charles Edson Tax Credit Excellence Award Finalist, Madison at 14th 


2008 I. Don Terner Prize for Innovation and Leadership in Affordable Housing Semifinalist, Madison 
at 14th 


2008 East Bay AIA Chapter "Best Residential Building," Madison at 14th 


2008 Gold Nugget Award of Merit, Helios Corner 


2008 Environmental Protection Agency Regional Energy Star Award for Excellence in Energy 
Efficient Affordable Housing 


2008 Housing Consortium of the East Bay Partnership Award 


2007 Bank of America Foundation's Neighborhood Excellence Award 


2006 Berkeley Design Advocates: Award of Excellence, Sacramento Senior Homes 


2006 Action for Beauty Council's Best New Housing Project for a Distinguished Contribution to 
Beauty of Environment, Acalanes Court 


2006 Readers Choice: Affordable Housing Finance, Fremont Oak Gardens 


192
183 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


2006 California Housing Consortium, California Housing Hall of Fame Inductee 


2006 League of California Cities, Helen Putnam Award for Excellence, Fremont Oak Gardens 


2006 Enterprise Foundation's Innovative Venture Prize, University Avenue Apartments 


2006 Charles Edson Tax Credit Excellence Award Finalist, University Avenue Apartments 


193
184 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


SATELLITE AFFORDABLE HOUSING ASSOCIATES - BOARD OF DIRECTORS 


Mike Jacob 
Board Chairperson 
Vice President, Pacific Merchant 
Shipping Association 


Rauly Butler 
Board Vice Chairperson 
Senior Vice President, The 
Mechanics Bank 


Francine Williams 
Board Secretary 
Community Leader, Church 
Volunteer, SAHA Resident 


Ron Ridley 
Board Treasurer 
Retired, Executive Director, 
Paradise Valley Estates 


Anthony Barron 
Board Member  
Vice-Chair of Litigation 
Department, Nixon Peabody LLP 


Sage B. Foster 
Board Member 
MA, MPH, Consultant 


Joy Moore 
Board Member 
Food Activist, Freelance 
Gardener and SAHA Resident 


Ralph Hayward 
Board Member  
In Memoriam 


Karen Jacobs 
Board Member 
Creative Thinker, Activist, SAHA 
Resident 


194
185 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


David Greensfelder 
Board Member 
Managing Principal, 
Greensfelder Commercial Real 
Estate 


Treva Reid 
Board Member 
East Bay Government Relations 
Representative, Pacific Gas and 
Electric 


James Reilly 
Board Member 
Chief Executive Officer, Angotti 
& Reilly General Contractors 


Alfred Reynolds 
Board Member 
Principal, Alton Management 
Group 


Scott Smith 
Board Member 
Vice President, CSG Advisors 


Smitha Seshadri 
Board Member 
Senior Vice President of 
Development, Bridge Housing 
Corporation 


195
186 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


SAHA Communities 
Meeting local housing needs since 1966 


Year of 
Completion/ 


Start of 
Management 


Development 
Name Address No. of 


Units Population Development 
Cost Role of SAHA 


May-19 Redwood Hill 4868 Calaveras Road 
Oakland, CA 28 


Family / Special Needs/ 
Experiencing 


Homelessness 
$26.2 M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Feb-19 Valley View 1 Natalie Drive 
American Canyon, CA 70 


Seniors/ Veterans/ 
Experiencing 


Homelessness 
$26.6 M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Mar-18 Tabora Gardens 3701 Tabora Drive 
Antioch, CA 85 


Seniors/ 
Veterans/Special 


Needs/ Experiencing 
Homelessness  


$33.9 M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Oct-17 Casa Montego 
Renovation 


1485 Montego 
Walnut Creek, CA 80 Seniors $35.9 M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Sept-17 Harper Crossing 3132 MLK Jr. Way 
Berkeley, CA 42 Seniors $16.3 M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


May-16 Tower Park 17th & G Street 
Modesto, CA 50 Seniors $14.9 M Developer, Co-


Owner 


Jul-15 Strawberry Creek 
Lodge 


1320 Addison Street 
Berkeley, CA  150 Seniors $23.4M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Feb-15 Arboleda 1550 Third Ave, 
Walnut Creek, CA 48 Family / Special Needs/ 


I/DD $25.7M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Dec-14 Lakeside Senior 
Apartments 


1507 2nd Ave. 
Oakland, CA 92 


Seniors/Special 
Needs/Experiencing 


Homelessness 
$25.0M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


April-14 Robin Lane 
1149 Meadow Lane & 


1890 Robin Lane 
Concord, CA 


16 Family / Special Needs 
/MHSA $2.4M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Dec-13 Jack Capon Villa 2216 Lincoln Avenue, 
Alameda, CA 18 Special Needs/ I/DD $13.9M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


May-13 Rising Oaks 3800 Coolidge Avenue 
Oakland, CA 31 Transition-Age Youth $9.3M Developer 


April-13 Kelsey Village 2830 Stockton Blvd 
Sacramento, CA 20 Special Needs/ I/DD $5.5M Developer, Co-


Owner 


196
187 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


April-13 The Savoy 1424 Jefferson Street 
Oakland, CA 101 


Special 
Needs/Experiencing 


Homelessness 
$28.0M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Mar-13 Valley Oak Homes 875 Lyon Street 
Sonoma, CA 43 Family $17.5M 


Developer, 
Owner and 


Property 
Manager 


Mar-13 Kenneth Henry 
Court 


6475 Foothill Blvd. 
Oakland, CA 51 Family $12.3M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Sept-12 Project Pride 2545 San Pablo Avenue 
Oakland, CA 20 Special Needs $4.2M Developer 


Jun-12 Merritt Crossing 609 Oak St., 
Oakland, CA 70 


Seniors/  Special 
Needs/Experiencing 


Homelessness 
$28.4M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Aug-11 Harmon Gardens 3240 Sacramento St., 
Berkley, CA 16 Transition-Age Youth $6.3M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


May-11 Valley Vista 


20503 &20709 San 
Ramon Valley 


Boulevard San Ramon, 
CA 


105 Seniors $31.2M Co-Developer 


Apr-11 Fairmount 401 Fairmount Ave., 
Oakland, CA 30 Family/ Special Needs $12.2M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Mar-11 Amistad House 2050 Delaware 
Berkeley, CA 60 Seniors $8.4M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jan-11 Octavia Court 261 Octavia Boulevard 
San Francisco, CA 15 Special Needs/ I/DD $9.5M Co-Developer, 


Co-Owner 


Jan-11 Newark Gardens 35300 Cedar Street 
Newark, CA 150 Seniors/Special needs $9.4M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jul-09 St. Patrick’s 
Terrace 


1212 Center Street 
Oakland, CA 66 Seniors $8.8M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


197
188 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


Jun-09 Montego Place 1485 Montego 
Walnut Creek, CA 33 Seniors $8.0M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Feb-09 Petaluma Avenue 
Homes 


565-577 Petaluma Ave.,
Sebastopol, CA 45 Family $17.0M 


Developer, 
Owner and 


Property 
Manager 


Sep-08 Orchards on 
Foothill 


2719 Foothill Blvd., 
Oakland, CA 65 Seniors $18.2M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Apr-08 Madison @ 14th 
Street Apartments 


160 14th St., Oakland, 
CA 79 


Family/Transition-Age 
Youth 


Mixed Use 
$30.9M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jan-08 Carmen Avenue 
Apartments 


2891 Carmen Ave., 
Livermore, CA 30 


Family/Special Needs/ 
Experiencing 


Homelessness 
$12.6M 


Co-Developer, 
Co-Owner and 


Property 
Manager 


Dec-07 Allston House 2121 7th St., 
Berkeley, CA 47 Family $9.3M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jul-07 Ashby Lofts 1001 Ashby Ave., 
Berkeley, CA 54 Family/Special Needs 


Mixed Use $21.8M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jul-07 Helios Corner 
1531 University Ave 


Berkeley, CA 80 Seniors/Special Needs 
Mixed Use $22.7M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Nov-06 Sacramento Senior 
Homes 


1501 Blake St., 
Berkeley, CA 40 Seniors 


Mixed Use $12.1M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Aug-06 Lincoln Oaks 40852 Lincoln St. 
Fremont, CA 11 Special Needs $4.4M Co-Developer, 


Co-Owner 


198
189 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


Oct-05 Eastside Arts & 
Housing 


2283 International 
Blvd., 


Oakland, CA 
19 Family 


Mixed Use $5.0M 


Co-Developer, 
Co-Owner and 


Property 
Manager 


Jun-05 
University 


Neighborhood 
Apartments 


1725 University Ave., 
Berkeley, CA 27 Family / Special Needs 


Mixed Use $11.6M 


Developer, Co-
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Dec-04 Oak Street Terrace 1109 Oak St., 
Oakland, CA 39 Seniors 


Mixed Use $7.7M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Oct-04 Oak Park 
Apartments 


2618 E. 16th Street 
Oakland, CA 35 Family $9.2M Co-Developer 


Mar-04 Acalanes Court 1988 Trinity Ave 
Walnut Creek, CA 17 Family / Special Needs $7.4M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Apr-05 Fremont Oak 
Gardens 


2681 Driscoll Road 
Fremont, CA 51 Seniors $19.3M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jan-02 Adeline Lofts 
1131 24th St. 
Oakland, CA 38 Live Work 


Artist Housing $9.5M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jun-01 Hillegass Avenue 
Apartments 


2500 Hillegass Ave., 
Berkeley, CA 19 Family $2.5M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Oct-01 Bancroft Senior 
Homes 


2320 55th Avenue 
Oakland, CA 61 Seniors $8.9M Co-Developer 


and Co-Owner 


Oct-01 Tice Oaks 
2150 Tice Valley 


Boulevard 
Walnut Creek, CA 


91 Senior N/A Co-Developer 


Dec-99 Hookston Senior 
Homes 


80 W. Hookston Rd., 
Pleasant Hill, CA 100 Seniors $8.8M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


199
190 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


Sep-98 Shattuck Senior 
Homes 


2425 Shattuck Ave., 
Berkeley, CA 27 Seniors $2.7M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Aug-98 Ashby Courts 
Apartments 


1222-1228 Ashby Ave., 
Berkeley, CA 20 Multi-family $899,000 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Sep-97 Prince Street 
Apartments 


1534 Prince Street 
Berkeley, CA 6 Family $307,000 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Nov-96 Sierra Gardens 150-170 Sierra Dr.,
Walnut Creek, CA 29 Family $2.3M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Mar-96 Peter Babcock 
House 


2350 Woolsey St., 
Berkeley, CA 6 Special Needs $512,000 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Nov-95 Ashby Apartments 1317 Ashby Ave., 
Berkeley, CA 12 Family $485,000 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Nov-95 Ashby Studios 
1303-1311 1/2 Ashby 


Ave. 
Berkeley, CA 


6 Family $485,000 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jul-95 Columbia Park 
Manor 


1780 Chester Dr., 
Pittsburg, CA 79 Seniors $7.1M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Mar-95 Alcatraz 
Apartments 


1900 Alcatraz St. 
Berkeley, CA 9 Family $500,000 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


200
191 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


Dec-94 Allston Commons 
828-836 Allston Way &


2203-2207 6th St.
Berkeley, CA 


12 Family $625,000 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jul-94 Heart Studios 950 Hearst Ave.  
Berkeley, CA 94710 12 Family $360,000 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Apr-93 Newark Gardens II 35322 Cedar Blvd. 
Newark, CA 50 Seniors $4.7M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jul-87 Casa Montego 1485 Montego,  
Walnut Creek, CA 80 Seniors $3.9M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Feb-79 Valdez Plaza  280 - 28th St. 
Oakland, CA 150 Seniors/Special Needs $15.2M 


Developer, 
Owner and 


Property 
Manager 


Jun-78 Newark Gardens I 35300 Cedar Blvd. 
Newark, CA 150 Seniors/Special needs $8.4M 


Developer, 
Owner and 


Property 
Manager 


Nov-71 Otterbein Manor 5375 Manila Ave. 
Oakland, CA 39 Seniors $2.2M 


Developer, 
Owner and 


Property 
Manager 


Jul-71 Lawrence Moore 
Manor 


1909 Cedar St. 
Berkeley, CA 46 Seniors $2.5M 


Developer, 
Owner and 


Property 
Manager 


Apr-71 Linda Glen 32 Linda Ave. 
Oakland, CA 42 Seniors $2.1M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Feb-71 Saint Andrew's 
Manor 


3250 San Pablo Ave. 
Oakland, CA 60 Seniors $3.0M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


201
192 of 611







 811 SAN PABLO AVENUE 
Pinole, CA 


SAHA April 30, 2020


Jan-71 Beth Asher 3649 Dimond Ave 
Oakland, CA 50 Seniors $2.4M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jan-71 Saint Patrick's 
Terrace 


1212 Center St. 
Oakland, CA 66 Seniors $7.3M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Apr-69 Park Blvd  4135 Park Blvd. 
Oakland, CA 42 Seniors $2.4M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Jan-69 Doh On Yuen 211 Eighth St. 
Oakland, CA 48 Seniors $2.8M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Feb-68 Satellite Central 540-21st St.
Oakland, CA 152 Seniors $8.1M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Dec-67 Stuart Pratt Manor 2020 Durant Ave. 
Berkeley, CA 44 Seniors $2.5M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


Aug-67 Glen Brook 
Terrace 


4030 Panama Ct. 
Oakland, CA 66 Seniors $3.1M 


Developer, 
Owner, Property 


Manager, 
Services Provider 


202
193 of 611







SUSAN J. FRIEDLAND 510-809-2762
sfriedland@sahahomes.org Chief Executive Officer 


Susan Friedland was recently named SAHA’s Chief Executive Officer after having served as its Executive Director since 
2005. Previously, Susan was the Director of Housing Development with Fifth Avenue Committee, a community-based 
development corporation in Brooklyn, NY. She holds a Masters of City Planning degree from U.C. Berkeley and 
graduated Phi Beta Kappa with a BA in Urban Studies from Brown University.  She received the National Award for 
Women in Planning from the American Planning Association and was honored by the Girl Scouts for her work 
promoting green building. Susan was a member of  the Board of Directors of the Nonprofit Housing Association of 
Northern California (NPH), and currently serves on the Board of Directors for Enterprise's Community Leadership 
Committee and for California Housing Consortium.  She supports her local community as Chair of the Albany Music 
Fund and formerly as a Planning Commissioner..   


PROFESSONAL EXPERIENCE 


2004-present SAHA / Affordable Housing Associates, Berkeley, CA 


Chief Executive Officer 
Directs regional nonprofit housing development company with 220 employees. Oversees all 
aspects of affordable housing development and property management of 75 residential buildings 
across the Bay Area. Implements and maintains fiscal oversight of organizational resources. 
Establishes and maintains personnel policy. Develops and implements organizational business plan. 
Actively participates in formulating municipal housing policy to implement goals of general and 
area plans. 


1997-2004 Fifth Avenue Committee, Brooklyn, NY 


Director of Housing 
Managed all aspects of housing development for nonprofit community development corporation, 
including project concept development, architectural schematic development, financial feasibility 
assessment, site selection, identification of funding sources, funding application preparation, 
selection of contractors and architects, coordination with governmental agencies, creation of 
necessary documents and coordination of loan closing, oversight of construction, and management 
of rent-up. Directed the development of 15 multi-unit housing and two community facility projects 
with over $75 million total capital budget.


1995-1996 U.S. Agency for International Development, Moscow, Russia 
Housing Reform Advisor 


1994-1995 Urban Planning Consultant, Berkeley, CA 
1991-1992 Coro Fellow, Coro Foundation of Northern California, San Francisco, CA 


EDUCATION 


Masters of City and Regional Planning, University of California at Berkeley 
Bachelors of Arts, Urban Studies (Honors Program), Brown University, Phi Beta Kappa, Magna cum 
laude 


203
194 of 611







510-809-2754
estewart@sahahomes.org 


EVE CARLISLE STEWART 
VICE PRESIDENT OF REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT 


Eve Stewart has nearly 20 years experience in real estate finance and development and has been with SAHA since 2003. 
During her tenure, Eve has directly managed or overseen the completion of more than 1,500 housing units, primarily using  
tax credit financing combined with additional State and local funding programs. Currently, Eve is responsible for 1,100 
units in SAHA’s predevelopment pipeline with total costs exceeding $430 million. Eve i s  a  f o r m e r  board 
member  of East Bay Housing Organizations (EBHO), a nonprofit advocacy and policy group and has held 
leadership roles with EveryOne Home, Alameda County’s initiative to end homelessness. Eve holds a Masters 
degree in City & Regional Planning from the UNC -Chapel Hill and graduated magna cum laude from Harvard. Eve is a 
certified Green Building Professional.


2003-present 


2000-2003 


2000 


PROFESSONAL EXPERIENCE 
SAHA / Affordable Housing Associates, Berkeley, CA 
Vice President of Real Estate Development 
Economic & Planning Systems, Inc. 
Senior Associate 
Dept. of City & Regional Planning, UNC 
Teaching Assistant, Real Estate Investment & Affordable Housing Finance (graduate level) 


REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS 
The Savoy 
101 units | Permanent housing for homeless and special needs; mixed use 
Strawberry Creek Lodge 
150 units | Senior housing 
Ashby Lofts 
54 units | Mixed-use family housing 
Carmen Avenue Apartments 
30 units | Supportive & Special Needs family housing 
Harmon Gardens 
16 units | Supportive housing units for transition-age youth 
University Neighborhood Apartments 
27 units | Family & disabled housing 


2000 


1995 


EDUCATION 
University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill 
Master of City & Regional Planning, Real Estate and Housing Development 
Harvard University 
Bachelor of Arts, Anthropology/Archaeology, magna cum laude 


204
195 of 611







510-809-2751
acavanaugh@sahahomes.org 


Angela Cavanaugh 
VICE PRESIDENT OF PROPERTY MANAGEMENT 


Ms. Cavanaugh has worked in the Affordable Housing industry for over 17 years. She began on the construction and 
maintenance team, and quickly became proficient in all aspects of construction rehabilitation. She was then promoted to 
Property Manager, a position she held for three years. For the next 9 years Ms. Cavanaugh was Director of Property 
Management, where she oversaw the operations of the entire Property Management department. Currently 
Ms. Cavanaugh holds the position of Vice President of Property Management, which is focused on property operations 
and oversight of site staff and commercial spaces. 


Ms. Cavanaugh has experience with multiple funding programs such as TCAC, HUD, MHSA and CalHFA, and has extensive 
knowledge of Berkeley rent board regulations and laws. Over the past nine years Ms. Cavanaugh has developed a keen 
sense for fair housing practices and works to uphold the mission of Satellite Affordable Housing Associates. Furthermore, 
Ms. Cavanaugh has mastered the management of affordable housing with all of its intricate human issues and has 
developed an intuitive sense of which policies and procedures work to maintain livable and desirable housing in diverse 
communities 


2000–Present   


1995-2000 


1989-1995 


PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 


SAHA / Affordable Housing Associates 
Vice President of Property Management / Property Manager 


Affordable Housing Associates 
Construction Worker / Maintenance Supervisor 


Landmark Theatre Corporation 
Manager 


ACCREDITATIONS 


2004 


2001 


2000 


1999 


California Compliance Professional of Occupancy Certificate, National Affordable Housing 
Management Association 


California Tax Credit Compliance Diploma, Elizabeth Moreland Housing Credit College 


California HVAC  Certification, State of California 


California Hazwoper Certification, State of California 


205
196 of 611







Daniel Ponce 510-809-2757
dponce@sahahomes.org Regional Property Director 


Daniel Ponce has over 10 years of affordable housing property management experience and has been with SAHA since 
2017. He was promoted to SAHA’s Regional Property Director position after having served as Property Supervisor 
since 2017. Currently, Daniel is responsible for the property management and operations for 27 properties totaling 
1,553 affordable housing units. Previously, Daniel worked as a Property Manager for eight years for several different 
properties in the East Bay. He holds a BA in Business Administration with a focus on Finance from Cal State East Bay 
University and AA Degree in Business Administration for Contra Costa College.  Daniel also has experience with 
multiple funding programs such as TCAC, HUD, MHSA and CalHFA, and has extensive knowledge of board regulations 
and laws 


PROFESSONAL EXPERIENCE 
2017-present SAHA / Affordable Housing Associates, Berkeley, CA 


Regional Property Director 


2017-2018 SAHA / Affordable Housing Associates, Berkeley, CA 
Property Supervisor 


2009-2017 Eden Housing Inc., Hayward, CA 
Property Manager 


2007-2009 College is Real, Inc., Richmond, CA 
Director 


EDUCATION 
Bachelors of Arts, Business Administration with Focus on Finance, Cal State East Bay University 
AA in Business Administration, Contra Costa College 


ACCREDIDATION  
Certified Occupancy Specialist (COS) 
Tax Credit Specialist (TCS)  


AWARDS 
PILLAR OF EXCELLENCE, EDEN HOUSING MANAGEMENT, INC. 
MERRIT CAPITAL SCHOLARSHIP AWARD RECIPIENT 
HISPANIC SCHOLARSHIP FUND RECIPIENT 
KENNEDY KING SCHOLARSHIP RECIPIENT 


206
197 of 611







510-809-2719
critschel@sahahomes.org 


Cristi Ritschel 
VICE PRESIDENT OF RESIDENT AND 
COMMUNITY SERVICES 


Cristi Ritschel joined SAHA in 2014 as the Associate Director of Resident Services. Prior to SAHA, she served in multiple roles 
at Human Options, a Southern California non-profit committed to serving victims of domestic violence and elder 
abuse. Cristi began her career in social work providing counseling, legal advocacy, and intensive case management to 
seniors who had experienced elder abuse. In addition to the direct service and supervisory roles at Human Options, Cristi 
developed an expertise in family violence across the lifespan which lead to opportunities to train law enforcement, 
prosecutors, social workers, faith community leaders, students, and the larger community. Cristi brings to SAHA an 
expertise on domestic violence in families and in senior populations, clinical social work, and professional development 
through the training and supervision of staff.  


PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
2007-2013 Human Options, Irvine, CA            


Program Supervisor - Safe Options for Seniors, Center for Children & Families  
Managed day-to-day program operations at multiple sites, including a field-based program 
for victims of elder abuse, outpatient mental health clinic for children and adult victims of 
domestic violence, and community based family resource centers. Provided administrative 
supervision of staff and interns, program development, monitored contracts, wrote grants, 
provided expertise and consultation, built partnerships and coalitions, and provided direct 
clinical services.


2013 California State University, Fullerton 
Lecturer, Human Services 
Taught and developed a curriculum for an upper division undergraduate class, created a positive 
learning environment, collaborated with colleagues, identified outside learning activities in order 
for students to earn the 40hr Domestic Violence Advocate Certificate, evaluated student 
performance, and coached students to support their academic achievement. 


2009-2010 University of California, Irvine 
Help Central Line Counselor, Student Affairs 
Developed a brand new program and services under the direction of the Associate Director, 
identified community resources, provided social services referrals and resources to support 
student success.   


EDUCATION 
2003 
2008 
2012 


Bachelors Degree, Human Development, University of California, San Diego
Masters Degree in Social Work, California State University, Long Beach 
Licensed Clinical Social Worker #28301 


207
198 of 611







TOM EARLEY 510-809-2742
tearley@sahahomes.org Chief Operating Officer 


Tom Earley joined SAHA in 2014 as Chief Operating Officer, bringing more than 23 years of experience in nonprofit 
management and community design, planning and development. During his 13 years at the housing developer BRIDGE 
Housing, Tom worked on a diverse portfolio of mixed-use and mixed-income projects on urban infill sites in the greater 
Bay Area and took on positions of increasing responsibility. In his most recent role as Officer and Senior Vice President 
his focus included divisional and organizational platform building and collaborative interdepartmental work models. 
Tom’s early career included work for national homebuilder Richmond American Homes, infill developer Panoramic 
Interests, and the Office of the City Architect for San Francisco. He holds a Master of Science degree in 
Engineering/Construction Management and a Bachelor of Arts in Architecture degree, both from the University of 
California at Berkeley. 


PROFESSONAL EXPERIENCE 
2014-present Satellite Affordable Housing Associates, Berkeley, CA 


Chief Operating Officer 
Manage the operations of SAHA. Oversee Resident Services, Property Management, Human 
Resources, Information Technology and Facilities/Operations groups. Lead development and 
implementation of strategic plan and development of new programs and business opportunities.  
Responsible for creating and implementing cross-departmental policies and procedures and 
monitoring effectiveness. Oversee development and monitoring of departmental, project, and 
program budgets and forecasting in conjunction with the CFO. 


2000-2014 BRIDGE Housing Corporation, San Francisco, CA 
Senior Vice President 
Progressive levels of authority and management responsibilities for one of the country’s largest 
non-profit housing developers and managers.  Responsibilities have grown from development 
project management through group operations management to current role as group head.  Part 
of five member executive team with broader organizational leadership responsibilities including 
strategic planning, budgeting and forecasting, risk management, information technology and 
human resources. 


1998-2000 Richmond American Homes 
Director of Land and Planning 
Responsible for land acquisition, due diligence and forward planning for publicly traded 
homebuilding company.  Territory included North Bay, East Bay and Sacramento areas. 


EDUCATION 
1994 MS Engineering, Construction Management 


University of California Berkeley 
1991 BA Architecture 


University of California Berkeley 


208
199 of 611







SAHA Organizational Chart


Susan Friedland
Executive 
Director


Tom Earley 
Chief Operating 


Officer


Miriam Benavides
VP of HR & Risk 


Mgmt.


HR 
Manager


Payroll & 
Benefits


Risk Mgmt. 
Specialist Talent Mgr.


HR 
Systems


Sara A.-Hill
VP of Asset 


Mgmt.


Compliance 
Manager


Compliance 
Team


Asset 
Managers


Angela 
Cavanaugh


VP of Property 
Management 


Regional 
Property 
Directors


Property 
Supervisors


Property 
Managers


Associates & 
APM’s 


Maintenance 
& Custodians


AHRCs & 
Desk Clerks


Facilities 
Manager


Facilities 
Project Mgr.


Prop Mgmt. 
& Facilities 


Coord.


Office 
Manager


Operations 
Coordinator


Systems 
Mgmt. 


SpecialistBusiness 
Mgr.


Eve Stewart
VP of Real 


Estate 
Development


Director of 
Real Estate 


Dev.


Project 
Managers 


Associate 
Project 


Manager


Senior PM & 
Project 


Managers


Assist. PMs


Chris Hess
VP of 


Resident 
Services


Director of 
Resident 
Services 


Program 
Mgr. 


Bus Drivers


Resident 
Services 


Supervisors


Service 
Coordinators


Community 
Engagement


Program 
Director 


CE Team


Steve 
Herman 


VP of 
Finance


Senior Acct. 
Manager


Accounting 
Clerks 


Staff 
Accountant 


Accounting 
Manager


Senior 
Property 


Accountants 


Sr. Dev.
Accountant 


209
200 of 611







  
 


   
 


 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 7H 
  


 
 
DATE:   NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR / CITY 


ENGINEER 
     MISHA KAUR, SR. PROJECT MANAGER  
  
SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF THE 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) 
“LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES MANUAL (LAPM) CHAPTER 10 
– CONSULTANT SELECTION” AND AMENDING THE PROCUREMENT 
POLICY TO INCORPORATE THIS REQUIREMENT 


 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution: 
 


1. Authorizing the adoption of the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 
“Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) Chapter 10 – Consultant Selection” 
which describes the consultant selection and procurement process Local Agencies 
must follow to procure architectural and engineering consultant services related to 
federal and state funded transportation projects; and 
 


2. Amending the City of Pinole Procurement Policy to incorporate this requirement.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Pinole manages capital improvement projects that are funded with federal and 
state grants and frequently engages consultants to perform Architectural and Engineering 
(A&E) professional services for such projects. Examples of A&E professional services 
include field surveying, environmental services for compliance with National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and California Environmental Act (CEQA), preliminary 
and final design, preparation of plans and specifications, construction management and 
inspection services, and any other consultant services required for state and federal 
funded projects.  
 
Title 23 of the Code of Federal Regulations section 172.5 (b) requires subrecipients to 
adopt written policies and procedures prescribed by the state transportation agency for 
the procurement, management and administration of engineering and design-related 


201 of 611







City Council Report, 7H  
November 17, 2020   2 


consulting services in accordance with applicable federal and state laws and regulations. 
The federal government has delegated oversight authority of federal funds to Caltrans. 
The funds are administered by Caltrans Office of Local Assistance.  
 
As the administering agency of federal and state funds, Caltrans has developed the Local 
Assistance Procedure Manual (LAPM), Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, which guides, 
directs, and outlines all the policies and procedures for procurement and management of 
contracts for engineering and design related consultant services related to transportation 
projects.  
 
Local agencies must adhere to the selection and contracting procedures described in 
Chapter 10 – Consultant Selection of the Caltrans LAPM, when state and federal funds 
are used for procurement of A&E professional services and other consulting services. 
Chapter 10 of the LAPM sets forth requirements to be included in the Requests for 
Proposals (RFPs) and consultant agreements.  
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
The City has a number of transportation projects in different stages that rely on federal 
and/or state reimbursement. Some of these projects include, but are not limited to, San 
Pablo Ave. Bridge Replacement over BNSF Railroad, San Pablo Avenue Rehabilitation, 
and Local Road Safety Plan. The City followed the Consultant Selection procedures 
detailed in Chapter 10 of the LAPM to select a consultant for the preliminary design of the 
San Pablo Ave. Bridge Replacement over BNSF Railroad. 
 
Following the guidelines and adoption of Chapter 10 – Consultant Selection of Caltrans’ 
LAPM allows the City to meet funding eligibility. The LAPM undergoes frequent updates 
in response to changes in federal law and procedures. The most recent update to the 
LAPM requires the City to specifically adopt Chapter 10 – Consultant Selection for the 
procurement of A&E professional services and other consulting services.  
 
Furthermore, the City of Pinole’s Procurement Policy has been amended to reference 
and reflect the City’s adoption of the LAPM requirements. This amendment will ensure 
that the Procurement Policy is in compliance with Federal and State funding source 
requirements.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Adoption of the resolution would allow the City to continue utilizing federal and state 
reimbursement funds for many transportation projects. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 


A. Resolution 
B. Caltrans’ Local Assistance Procedure Manual, Chapter 10 – Consultant Selection 


202 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX  
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF THE 


CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) “LOCAL 
ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES MANUAL (LAPM) CHAPTER 10 – CONSULTANT 


SELECTION” AND AMENDING THE PROCUREMENT POLICY TO 
INCORPORATE THIS REQUIREMENT 


 
 WHEREAS, the Pinole City Council through the Development Services 
Department is responsible for the execution of state and federal funded project(s); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the provision of 23 CFR 172.5(b), subrecipients shall develop and 
sustain organizational capacity and provide the resources necessary for the 
procurement, management, and administration of engineering and design related 
consultant services, reimbursed in whole or in part with Federal-Aid Highway Program 
funding as specified in 23 U.S.C. 106(g)(4)(A); and 
 
 WHEREAS, 23 CFR 172.5(b)(1) requires subrecipients to adopt written policies 
and procedures prescribed by the awarding State Transportation Agency for the 
procurement, management, and administration of engineering and design related 
consultant services in accordance with applicable Federal and State laws and 
regulations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) has 
developed the Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM), Chapter 10, Consultant 
Selection which sets forth policies and procedures for procurements and 
managements of contracts for engineering and design related consultant services 
contracts on federal and state funded transportation projects to ensure compliance 
with applicable Federal and State laws and regulations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, LAPM Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, describes the consultant 
selection and procurement process local agencies must follow to maintain eligibility 
for federal and state reimbursement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, staff recommends amending the City of Pinole Procurement Policy 
to reference and reflect the City’s adoption of the LAPM requirements as shown in 
attached Exhibit A to this Resolution, with additions shown in double-underline. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Pinole 
hereby adopts Caltrans LAPM Ch. 10, Consultant Selection, and any updates thereto, 
in procurement of A&E services for state and federal funded projects and amends the 
City of Pinole Procurement Policy to reference and reflect the adoption of the LAPM 
requirements as shown in Exhibit A.  
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held 
on the 17th day of November, 2020 by the following vote, to-wit: 


203 of 611







 
 


 
         AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
  


NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
  


ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
  


ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
  
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 17th day of November, 2020 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
3626667.1  
  


204 of 611







 
 


EXHIBIT A 
AMENDMENTS TO PINOLE PROCUREMENT POLICY 


 
Section VII(C) of Pinole Procurement Policy shall be amended as follows with additions 
in double-underline: 
 
 


A. PURCHASES WITH FEDERAL/STATE FUNDS 


When purchasing goods and services involving the use of federal grant funds, 


the City is required to follow the provisions of 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart A 


§200.318 General Procurement Standards through §200.326 Contract 


Provisions. Employees should consult with the City Attorney on any questions 


regarding application of these requirements to particular purchases.  


 


When purchasing goods and services involving the use of state of California 


funds and/or federal funds administered by the state of California, the City may 


be required to follow provisions of state law, regulations, and policy depending 


upon the specific source of the state funds.  The City has adopted the State of 


California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)  Local Assistance 


Procedures Manual (LAPM), Chapter 10, Consultant Selection, which sets forth 


policies and procedures for procurements and managements of contracts for 


engineering and design related consultant services contracts on federal and state 


funded transportation projects to ensure compliance with applicable Federal and 


State laws and regulations. The City shall follow applicable LAPM 


requirements for qualifying transportation projects.  Employees should consult 


with the City Attorney on any questions regarding application of state 


requirements to particular purchases.  


205 of 611







� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


� � �
�


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� � �
� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� � � �
� � � �


� � �
� � � �
� � � � �


� � �
� � � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


&KDSWHU����&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�
&RQWHQWV�


6HFWLRQ�������)('(5$//<�)81'('�$	(�&2175$&76�����������������������������������������������������������������YL�
������ *HQHUDO������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


,QWURGXFWLRQ�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HILQLWLRQ�RI�DQ�$UFKLWHFWXUDO�DQG�(QJLQHHULQJ�&RQVXOWDQW ������������������������������������������������������
$UFKLWHFWXUDO�DQG�(QJLQHHULQJ�&RQVXOWDQWV�����������������������������������������������������������������������������
1RQ�$	(�&RQVXOWDQWV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6HOHFWLQJ�WKH�3URMHFW���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6XEFRQWUDFWHG�6HUYLFHV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2UJDQL]DWLRQDO�DQG�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQIOLFWV�RI�,QWHUHVW ����������������������������������������������������������������
&RQVXOWDQWV�3HUIRUPLQJ�:RUN�RQ�0XOWLSOH�3KDVHV�RI�)HGHUDO�DLG�3URMHFWV������������������������������


������ ,GHQWLI\LQJ�	�'HILQLQJ�D�1HHG�IRU�&RQVXOWDQWV��������������������������������������������������������������������������
$SSRLQWLQJ�WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6HJPHQWLQJ�&RQVXOWDQW�:RUN�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
)LJXUH������ �6HJPHQWLQJ�&RQVXOWDQW�:RUN����������������������������������������������������������������������������
6SHFLI\�3URGXFWV�WR�EH�'HOLYHUHG��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6FRSH�RI�&RQVXOWDQW�:RUN������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
1RQ�'LVFULPLQDWLRQ�&ODXVH�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'LVDGYDQWDJHG�%XVLQHVV�(QWHUSULVH��'%(��3DUWLFLSDWLRQ��������������������������������������������������������
'HWHUPLQH�7\SH�RI�&RQWUDFW����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�3URMHFW�6FKHGXOH������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HWHUPLQH�0HWKRG�RI�3D\PHQW����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RVW�3OXV�)L[HG�)HH��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RVW�3HU�8QLW�RI�:RUN������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6SHFLILHG�5DWHV�RI�&RPSHQVDWLRQ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
/XPS�6XP�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


������ $	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV ����������������������������������������������������������������������������
$SSOLFDEOH�6WDQGDUGV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
$XGLW�*XLGDQFH�$YDLODEOH�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
$OORZDEOH�&RVWV���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
$SSURYDO�RU�$FFHSWDQFH�RI�,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWHV����������������������������������������������������������������������
&RJQL]DQW�/HWWHUV�RI�$SSURYDO������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&DOWUDQV�$FFHSWDQFH�RI�,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWH����������������������������������������������������������������������������
)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�3HUIRUPHG�3ULRU�WR�&RQWUDFW�([HFXWLRQ�������������������������������������������������������
/RFDO�$JHQFLHV¶�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RQVXOWDQWV¶�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV��%RWK�SULPH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV����������������������������


3DJH�L�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


ATTACHMENT B


206 of 611







� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


� � �
� � �


� �
� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � � �


� �
� � � �


� �
� � � �
� � �


�� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � � �


� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�$XGLWV�DQG�,QYHVWLJDWLRQV¶�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV������������������������������������������
$XGLWV�DQG�5HYLHZV�WR�EH�3HUIRUPHG�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWH�$XGLWV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&3$�:RUNSDSHU�5HYLHZV������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RQWUDFW�$XGLWV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,QFXUUHG�&RVW�$XGLWV��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
$XGLW�)LQGLQJV�DQG�5HYLHZ�'HILFLHQFLHV��������������������������������������������������������������������������������


������ &RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�0HWKRGV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2QH�6WHS�5)3�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2QH�6WHS�5)4�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
7ZR�6WHS��5)4�)ROORZHG�E\�5)3�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


������ &RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�8VLQJ�WKH�2QH�6WHS�5)3�0HWKRG ����������������������������������������������������������
$SSRLQW�&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HYHORS�7HFKQLFDO�&ULWHULD�IRU�(YDOXDWLRQ�RI�3URSRVDOV����������������������������������������������������������
'HYHORS�6FKHGXOH�IRU�&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ���������������������������������������������������������������������������
3UHSDUH�5)3�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�$FFRXQWLQJ�6\VWHP�5HTXLUHPHQWV���������������������������������������������
$GYHUWLVH�IRU�&RQVXOWDQWV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,VVXH�3XEOLVK�5)3�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RQGXFW�3URSRVHU¶V�&RQIHUHQFH�RU�$QVZHU�:ULWWHQ�4XHVWLRQV����������������������������������������������
5HFHLYH�DQG�(YDOXDWH�7HFKQLFDO�3URSRVDOV���������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HYHORS�)LQDO�5DQNLQJ�DQG�1RWLI\�&RQVXOWDQWV�RI�5HVXOWV �����������������������������������������������������
1HJRWLDWH�&RQWUDFW�ZLWK�7RS�5DQNHG�&RQVXOWDQW�������������������������������������������������������������������


������� &RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�8VLQJ�WKH�2QH�6WHS�5)4�0HWKRG ��������������������������������������������������� ���
$SSRLQW�&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HYHORS�7HFKQLFDO�&ULWHULD�IRU�(YDOXDWLRQ�RI�4XDOLILFDWLRQV����������������������������������������������������
'HYHORS�6FKHGXOH�IRU�&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ���������������������������������������������������������������������������
3UHSDUH�5)4�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�$FFRXQWLQJ�6\VWHP�5HTXLUHPHQWV���������������������������������������������
$GYHUWLVH�IRU�&RQVXOWDQWV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,VVXH�3XEOLVK�5)4�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
5HFHLYH�(YDOXDWH�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�4XDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�'HYHORS�6KRUWOLVW�����������������������������������
1RWLI\�&RQVXOWDQWV�RI�6KRUWOLVW������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,QWHUYLHZ�7RS�5DQNHG�&RQVXOWDQWV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HYHORS�)LQDO�5DQNLQJ�DQG�1RWLI\�&RQVXOWDQWV�RI�5HVXOWV �����������������������������������������������������
&RQGXFW�6FRSLQJ�0HHWLQJ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
5HTXHVW�&RVW�3URSRVDO����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
1HJRWLDWH�&RQWUDFW�ZLWK�7RS�5DQNHG�&RQVXOWDQW�������������������������������������������������������������������


������&RQVXOWDQW 6HOHFWLRQ�8VLQJ�WKH�7ZR�6WHS�5)4�5)3�0HWKRG������������������������������������������������ ���
&RPELQHG�5)4�DQG�5)3�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


3DJH�LL�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


207 of 611







� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


� � �
� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � � � �
� � �


� � � �
� �


� � �
� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


&DWHJRUL]H�ZRUN���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
(VWDEOLVK�0LQLPXP�4XDOLILFDWLRQV������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,VVXH�5)4�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6HW�8S�(YDOXDWLRQ�3URFHVV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
(YDOXDWH�4XDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�$GG�)LUP�WR�/LVW��������������������������������������������������������������������������
0DLQWDLQ�/LVW��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,VVXH�5)3�WR�3UH�4XDOLILHG�&RQVXOWDQWV�RQ�/LVW���������������������������������������������������������������������
&RQGXFW�3URSRVHU¶V�&RQIHUHQFH�RU�$QVZHU�:ULWWHQ�4XHVWLRQV����������������������������������������������
5HFHLYH�DQG�(YDOXDWH�7HFKQLFDO�3URSRVDOV���������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HYHORS�)LQDO�5DQNLQJ�DQG�1RWLI\�&RQVXOWDQWV�RI�5HVXOWV �����������������������������������������������������
5HTXHVW�&RVW�3URSRVDO�DQG�1HJRWLDWH�&RQWUDFW�ZLWK�7RS�5DQNHG�&RQVXOWDQW�����������������������


������&RPSOHWLQJ�WKH�3URMHFW ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HYHORS�WKH�)LQDO�&RQWUDFW����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
5HYLHZ�DQG�$SSURYDO�RI�&RQWUDFWV�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
([HFXWH�&RQWUDFW�DQG�,VVXH�1RWLFH�WR�3URFHHG�WR�&RQVXOWDQW������������������������������������������������
$GPLQLVWHU�WKH�&RQWUDFW���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6XEVWLWXWLRQ�RI�&RQVXOWDQW�3HUVRQQHO�DQG�6XEFRQVXOWDQWV�����������������������������������������������������
,QYRLFLQJ��RU�3URJUHVV�3D\PHQWV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RQWUDFW�$PHQGPHQWV�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
3HUIRUPDQFH�(YDOXDWLRQ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
3URMHFW�5HFRUGV���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
5HWHQWLRQ�&ODXVHV�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
5HYLHZ�RI�/RFDO�$JHQF\�$FWLRQV��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


������ 0LVFHOODQHRXV�&RQVLGHUDWLRQV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
$JUHHPHQWV�ZLWK�2WKHU�*RYHUQPHQWDO�$JHQFLHV�������������������������������������������������������������������
6PDOO�3XUFKDVH�&RQWUDFWV�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
1RQFRPSHWLWLYH�1HJRWLDWHG�&RQWUDFWV��6ROH�6RXUFH��������������������������������������������������������������
5HWDLQLQJ�D�&RQVXOWDQW�DV�DQ�$JHQF\�(QJLQHHU�RU�LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH������������������
&RQVWUXFWLRQ�(QJLQHHULQJ�6HUYLFHV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


������� 3URJUDP�0DQDJHPHQW ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������� 5HIHUHQFHV ���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������67$7(�21/<�)81'('�$	(�&2175$&76�����������������������������������������������������������������������������
������ *HQHUDO�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������ 'HILQLWLRQ�RI�$	(���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������ 0LQLPXP�$XGLW�5HTXLUHPHQWV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


$��:ULWWHQ�3URFHGXUHV �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
%��&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&��5HFRUGV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'��)XOO�	�2SHQ�FRPSHWLWLRQ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
(��6HOHFWLRQ�%DVLV������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


3DJH�LLL�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


208 of 611







� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


� � �
� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� �
� � �
� � � �
� � � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� �
� � �
� � �
� � � �


� � � �  
 


 


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


)� 3XEOLFDWLRQ�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
*��6ROLFLWDWLRQ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
+� &RVW�$QDO\VLV��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,��1HJRWLDWLRQV �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������


������121�$	(�&2175$&76 ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
6FRSH������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'HWHUPLQLQJ�1RQ�$	(�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
([DPSOH�RI�'HWHUPLQLQJ�1RQ�$	(�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
,QWHOOLJHQW�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP��,76��3URMHFWV��������������������������������������������������������������������
1RQ�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH�3URMHFWV����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
*RYHUQLQJ�5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�&RGHV�IRU�1RQ�$	(�������������������������������������������������������������������
3URFXUHPHQW�RI�1RQ�$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFWV��������������������������������������������������������������������
5)3�%DVLF�5HTXLUHPHQWV ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
$GGLWLRQDO�5HTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�(YDOXDWLRQ�&ULWHULD�������������������������������������������������������������������
&RQVXOWDQW¶V�3URSRVDO������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RVW�3URSRVDO�:RUNVKHHW������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
'%(�&RQVLGHUDWLRQ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�5HTXLUHPHQWV�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
2UDO�3UHVHQWDWLRQV�2SWLRQDO���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
&RVW�(IIHFWLYH���3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
3URWHVW���$SSHDOV���5HLQVWDWHPHQW�3URFHGXUHV ����������������������������������������������������������������������


3DJH�LY�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


209 of 611







� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


�
� � �


����� �
�


� ��
� ��


� �
� � �


� �
� � � � ��


��
��


� ��
�


� ��
��


� � � � �
��


��
 
 


  


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


([KLELWV�
([KLELWV�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKLV�FKDSWHU�FDQ�EH�IRXQG�DW��
KWWSV���GRW�FD�JRY�SURJUDPV�ORFDO�DVVLVWDQFH�IRUPV�ORFDO�DVVLVWDQFH�SURFHGXUHV�PDQXDO�IRUPV�


([KLELW����$��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�)LQDQFLDO�'RFXPHQW�5HYLHZ�5HTXHVW�
([KLELW����%��6XJJHVWHG�&RQVXOWDQW�(YDOXDWLRQ�6KHHW�
([KLELW����*��,QGLYLGXDO�$	(�7DVN�2UGHU�'%(�8WLOL]DWLRQ��QHHGV�OLQNHG��
([KLELW����+��6DPSOH�&RVW�3URSRVDO��([DPSOH���WKUX�����
([KLELW����,��1RWLFH�WR�3URSRVHUV�'%(�,QIRUPDWLRQ�
([KLELW����.��&RQVXOWDQW�$QQXDO�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�RI�,QGLUHFW�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP�
([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�3URSRVDO�'%(�&RPPLWPHQW�
([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFWV�'%(�&RPPLWPHQW�
([KLELW����4��'LVFORVXUH�RI�/REE\LQJ�$FWLYLWLHV�
([KLELW����5��$	(�6DPSOH�&RQWUDFW�/DQJXDJH�
([KLELW����6��&RQVXOWDQW�3HUIRUPDQFH�(YDOXDWLRQ�
([KLELW����7��&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�	�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�6WDWHPHQW�
([KLELW����8��&RQVXOWDQW�LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�&RQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�DQG�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�
6WDWHPHQW�


3DJH�Y�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


210 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/forms/local-assistance-procedures-manual-forms

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10b.pdf

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10g.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10i.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10i.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o2.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o2.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10q.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10q.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10s.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf





� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


      
 


    


� � �
��������������� ���������������� ����������������


       


       


       


       


 


      


 


  


  


  


  


    


�


       


       


       


       


       


�


    


 


       


  


        


 


 


 


       �


 
�  � �


� � � �
�
�


� �
� �


� � �
� �


� �
�


�
�


�
� �
� �


��


�� �


��� ��   !� @�   !�>� @���������!�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


SECTION 10.1: FEDERALLY FUNDED A&E CONTRACTS 


Procurement Planning 


ϭ� Ϯ� ϯ�


>ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ� >ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ� >ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ�


*Select Project 


*Set Project Objectives 


*Determine Project Schedule 


*Obtain CTC Allocation/Federal 


Authorization to Proceed prior to 


beginning reimbursable work 


*LAPM Exhibit 10-U:    


Consultant in Management 


Support Role Conflict of 


Interest and Confidentiality 


Statement, if applicable: 


submit Conflict of Interest 


(COI) and Scope of Work 


(SOW) to DLA-HQ prior to 


contract advertisement. 


*Identify Need for Consultant 


*Appoint Contract Administrator 


*Segment Project Work 


*Define SOW of A&E Consultant 


*Specify Products to be 


delivered 


*Estimate Cost of Consultant Work 


(independent cost estimate) 


*Determine Type of Contract 


(Project Specific or On-Call) 


*Determine Method of Payment: 


Lump Sum; Cost-Plus- Fixed-


Fee; Cost Per Unit of Work; or 


Specific Rate of Compensation 


*Submit Exhibit 9-D to DLAE 


�Θ��с��ƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�
/K�/�с��ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�KĨĨŝĐĞ�ŽĨ��ƵĚŝƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
/ŶǀĞƐƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
�d�с��ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�
����с��ŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞĚ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ��ŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ�
�>��с��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�
�>���с��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌ�
�>�Ͳ,Y�с��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞͲ,ĞĂĚƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ�
>�W'�с�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�'ƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�
>�WD�с�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�WƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�DĂŶƵĂů�
DKW�с�DĞƚŚŽĚ�ŽĨ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�
Z&W�с�ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�WƌŽƉŽƐĂů�
Z&Y�с�ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
^KY�с�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
^Kt�с�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚͬ^ĐŽƉĞ�ŽĨ�tŽƌŬ�


&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϬͲϭ͗� �Θ���ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽĐĞƐƐ�tŽƌŬĨůŽǁ��ŝĂŐƌĂŵ�


3DJH�YL�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


211 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf





� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


 
   


   


       
 


      
 


       
 


    
 


 
  


        
        


  
 


       
      


 
  


   
  


 
 


  
 


        
  


 
 


        
 


 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 


 


�  � �
� � � �


�
�


� �
� �


� � �
�


� �
�


�
�


� �
� �


� �


� � �


�� � �


�� ��   !� �� ��   !� �� ��  !�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


Solicitation Documents and Advertisement 
4 5 6 


>ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ� >ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ� >ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ�


*Determine Solicitation Document; 
RFP or RFQ 


*Appoint Consultant Selection 
Committee 


*Collect signed Conflict of Interest 
forms and Confidentiality 
Statements (see Exhibit 10-T: 
Conflict of Interest & 
Confidentiality Statement) from 
all members involved in process 


*Determine Procurement Schedule 
*Develop Technical Criteria 


with level of importance 
(weights) for Evaluation of 
Proposals or the SOQ 


*Prepare RFP or RFQ documents 
*Include SOW, evaluation 


process/criteria, DBE goals, MOP 
and cost proposal format (see 
Exhibit 10-H: Sample Cost 
Proposal) minimum requirement 
of Proposal or SOQ, Notice to 
Proposers DBE Information (see 
Exhibit 10-I: Notice to Proposers 
DBE Information), submittal 
deadline 


*Advertise RFP or RFQ on public 
forum (newspaper, technical 
publications, Web Hosting Site, 
other local websites) 


*Issue RFP or RFQ (direct mailing, 
web posting) 


*Prepare to respond to RFP/RFQ 
questions 


*Conduct Proposers Conference, if 
applicable 


*Receive Proposals or SOQs 


�Θ��с��ƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�
/K�/�с��ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�KĨĨŝĐĞ�ŽĨ��ƵĚŝƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
/ŶǀĞƐƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
�d�с��ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�
����с��ŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞĚ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ��ŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ�
�>��с��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�
�>���с��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌ�
�>�Ͳ,Y�с��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞͲ,ĞĂĚƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ�
>�W'�с�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�'ƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�
>�WD�с�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�WƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�DĂŶƵĂů�
DKW�с�DĞƚŚŽĚ�ŽĨ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�
Z&W�с�ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�WƌŽƉŽƐĂů�
Z&Y�с�ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
^KY�с�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
^Kt�с�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚͬ^ĐŽƉĞ�ŽĨ�tŽƌŬ�


&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϬͲϭ͗� �Θ���ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽĐĞƐƐ�tŽƌŬĨůŽǁ��ŝĂŐƌĂŵͲ ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚ�


3DJH�YLL�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


212 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10i.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10i.pdf





� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


�
 �
� � �
� � �


      


  


    


 


      


  


   


   


�


        


 


       


 


       


 


 


        


 


       


 


 


  


 


   


 


�


 


 


�


  


  


     


 


 


 


  


  


�


 


�  � �
� � � �


�
�


� �
� �


� � �
�


� �
�


�
� �


�
� �


� �


� �


� �


�� � �


�U� O��    !� ?� @�    !O� -�   !�


�� ��
�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


�ǀĂůƵĂƚŝŽŶ�ĂŶĚ�^ĞůĞĐƚŝŽŶ�ŽĨ��ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚ�
�ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�EĞŐŽƚŝĂƚŝŽŶ�


ϳ� ϴ� ϵ�


>ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ� >ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ� >ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ�


*Distribute Proposals or SOQs to 


Selection Committee members    


*Ensure Committee members receive 


the appropriate score sheet to use 


(see Exhibit 10-B: Suggested 


Consultant Evaluation Sheet)  


*Convene Selection Committee and 


evaluate submittals; Perform 


reference checks 


*Develop Final Ranking or Short List 


*Notify proposers of ranking/Short List 


*Retain all original score sheets and 


summaries 


*Send out RFPs to Short List (two-


step process) 


*Conduct Interview of Short List (if 


needed) 


*Develop Final Ranking of 


Consultants, and notify all 


interviewees 


*Retain all original score sheets 


and summaries 


*Provide a copy of Standard 


Contract language to top 


ranked consultant and 


invite for negotiations 


(see Exhibit 10-R: A&E 


Sample Contract 


Language for standard 


contract language and 


provisions) 


*Open and analyze cost proposal 


from the Highest Ranked firm 


�ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�/K�/�
*Review and evaluate 10-A 


package and supporting 


documents, if applicable 


*Issue Financial Review Letter, if 


applicable 


*Perform contract audits and 


reviews, if applicable, or review 


of CPA audited ICR workpapers 


to issue Cognizant Letter of 


Approval 


�Θ��с��ƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�
/K�/�с��ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�KĨĨŝĐĞ�ŽĨ��ƵĚŝƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
/ŶǀĞƐƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
�d�с��ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�
����с��ŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞĚ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ��ŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ�
�>��с��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�
�>���с��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌ�
�>�Ͳ,Y�с��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞͲ,ĞĂĚƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ�
>�W'�с�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�'ƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�
>�WD�с�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�WƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�DĂŶƵĂů�
DKW�с�DĞƚŚŽĚ�ŽĨ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�
Z&W�с�ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�WƌŽƉŽƐĂů�
Z&Y�с�ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
^KY�с�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
^Kt�с�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚͬ^ĐŽƉĞ�ŽĨ�tŽƌŬ�


&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϬͲϭ͗� �Θ���ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽĐĞƐƐ�tŽƌŬĨůŽǁ��ŝĂŐƌĂŵͲ ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚ�


3DJH�YLLL�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


213 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10b.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10b.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf





� � �
�
�


� � �
� �


�


�  
 �


� � �
� � �


         
  


        
 


        
 


 
  


 
   


       
  


 
        


  
 


       
 


  
  


 
    


     
  


 
       
�


       
        


  
   


      
      


 
 


       
 


    


 
       


�


�
�


       
 


 
  
  


 
     


   
 
   
  


 
 


 
�


 
 


�


� �
� �


� � � �
�
�


� �
� �


� � �
�


� �
�


�
�


� �
� �


� �


� � �


�


�


�� � �


�   !� >�


��


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


�ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�EĞŐŽƚŝĂƚŝŽŶ�
�ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ��ǆĞĐƵƚŝŽŶ�


ϭϬ� ϭϭ� ϭϮ�


>ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ� >ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ� >ŽĐĂů��ŐĞŶĐǇ�


*Negotiate contract costs with the 
most qualified Consultant 


*Prepare and retain record of cost 
negotiations 


*Initiate CT IOAI Financial Review 
Section (LAPM Section 10.1.3) 
and send documents (Exhibit 
10-A: A&E Consultant Financial 
Document Review Request), if 
applicable, to Caltrans IOAI 


*Receive and analyze findings of the 
Financial Review Letter from CT 
IOAI, if any 


*Address and resolve all findings by 
IOAI and incorporate into final 
contract and cost proposal 


*If negotiations with First ranked 
firm is unsuccessful, formally 
terminate cost negotiations with 
Consultant and begin Step 9 with 
next ranked consultant 


�Complete Exhibit 10-C database to 
DLA-HQ prior to award or after 
award, but no later than the first 
invoice 


*Retain Exhibit 10-C 


*Finalize contract, cost proposal 
*Retain copy of contract Financial 


Review Letter with acceptance, 
denial, or adjustment of the ICR 


*Sign and Execute contract 
*Offer and conduct debriefing 


meetings with consultant who 
asked for one 


*Send copies of executed contract 
and DBE Commitment (Exhibits 
10-O1: Consultant Proposal DBE 
Commitment and Exhibit 10-O2: 
Consultant Contract DBE 
Commitment) to DLAE 


*Close out contract procurement 
process 


�>���


*Prior to concurring with invoice 
payment related to consultant 
services, ensure that district 
confirms submittal of Exhibit 10-
C and has a copy of the 
executed consultant contract on 
file and 10-O1 and 10-O2. Also, 
check IOAI database to ensure 
that LAPM Exhibit 10-K:  
Consultant Annual Certification 
of Indirect Costs and Financial 
Management System, if 
applicable, has been received by 
IOAI 


�ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�/K�/�


*Perform Incurred Cost Audit, if 
selected 


�Θ��с��ƌĐŚŝƚĞĐƚƵƌĂů�ĂŶĚ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌŝŶŐ�
/K�/�с��ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�/ŶĚĞƉĞŶĚĞŶƚ�KĨĨŝĐĞ�ŽĨ��ƵĚŝƚƐ�ĂŶĚ�
/ŶǀĞƐƚŝŐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
�d�с��ĂůƚƌĂŶƐ�
����с��ŝƐĂĚǀĂŶƚĂŐĞĚ��ƵƐŝŶĞƐƐ��ŶƚĞƌƉƌŝƐĞ�
�>��с��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�
�>���с��ŝƐƚƌŝĐƚ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ��ŶŐŝŶĞĞƌ�
�>�Ͳ,Y�с��ŝǀŝƐŝŽŶ�ŽĨ�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞͲ,ĞĂĚƋƵĂƌƚĞƌƐ�
>�W'�с�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�WƌŽŐƌĂŵ�'ƵŝĚĞůŝŶĞƐ�
>�WD�с�>ŽĐĂů��ƐƐŝƐƚĂŶĐĞ�WƌŽĐĞĚƵƌĞƐ�DĂŶƵĂů�
DKW�с�DĞƚŚŽĚ�ŽĨ�WĂǇŵĞŶƚ�
Z&W�с�ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�WƌŽƉŽƐĂů�
Z&Y�с�ZĞƋƵĞƐƚ�ĨŽƌ�YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
^KY�с�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚ�ŽĨ�YƵĂůŝĨŝĐĂƚŝŽŶƐ�
^Kt�с�^ƚĂƚĞŵĞŶƚͬ^ĐŽƉĞ�ŽĨ�tŽƌŬ�


&ŝŐƵƌĞ�ϭϬͲϭ͗� �Θ���ŽŶƚƌĂĐƚ�WƌŽĐƵƌĞŵĞŶƚ�WƌŽĐĞƐƐ�tŽƌŬĨůŽǁ��ŝĂŐƌĂŵͲ ĐŽŶƚŝŶƵĞĚ�


3DJH�L[�RI�L[�
-DQXDU\������


214 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/forms/chapter10/10o1.pdf

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/forms/chapter10/10o1.pdf

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/forms/chapter10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o2.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o2.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o2.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o2.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �


�
� � �


� � �
� � �


�


�
� � � �


�
� �


��


�
� �


� � �
� �


��


� � � �
� � �


� � � � �
� � � �


� �
��


� � � � �
� � �


� � � �
��


� �
�


� � �
� �


� � �
� � � � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� �


� �
� � �


� � � ��


�


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


�������*(1(5$/�


,QWURGXFWLRQ�
$�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PD\�HQJDJH�FRQVXOWDQWV�WR�SHUIRUP�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��DQG�UHODWHG�
VHUYLFHV�WR�GHYHORS�D�IHGHUDO�DLG�IXQGHG�SURMHFW��/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�UHTXHVWLQJ�IHGHUDO�IXQGV�WR�
UHLPEXUVH�$	(�&RQVXOWDQWV�PXVW�IROORZ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�DQG�FRQWUDFWLQJ�SURFHGXUHV�GHWDLOHG�LQ�WKLV�
FKDSWHU��


'HILQLWLRQ�RI�DQ�$UFKLWHFWXUDO�DQG�(QJLQHHULQJ�&RQVXOWDQW�
���&RGH�RI�)HGHUDO�5HJXODWLRQV������DQG�&$�6WDWH�/DZ�IXUWKHU�GHILQHV�$	(�VHUYLFHV�DQG�
LQFOXGHV�WKRVH�SULYDWH�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUPV�SURYLGLQJ�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��
HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ��RU�SURJUDP�PDQDJHPHQW�
DUH�WHUPHG�$UFKLWHFWXUDO�DQG�(QJLQHHULQJ��$	(��&RQVXOWDQWV��


$UFKLWHFWXUDO�DQG�(QJLQHHULQJ�&RQVXOWDQWV�
7KH�%URRNV�$FW�����86&��6HFWLRQ�������UHTXLUHV�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�WR�DZDUG�IHGHUDOO\�IXQGHG�
HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�GHVLJQ�UHODWHG�FRQWUDFWV�EDVHG�RQ�IDLU�DQG�RSHQ�FRPSHWLWLYH�QHJRWLDWLRQV��
GHPRQVWUDWHG�FRPSHWHQFH��DQG�SURIHVVLRQDO�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�����&RGH�RI�)HGHUDO�5HJXODWLRQV�
�&)5���3DUW�������DW�D�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�SULFH�����&)5������������


&RVW�SURSRVDOV�VXEPLWWHG�WR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�EH�VHDOHG�DQG�VKDOO�QRW�EH�LQFOXGHG�DV�D�
FULWHULRQ�IRU�UDWLQJ�VXFK�FRQVXOWDQWV��$IWHU�UDQNLQJ��FRVW�QHJRWLDWLRQV�PD\�EHJLQ�ZLWK�WKH�PRVW�
TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW�DQG�RQO\�WKHLU�FRVW�SURSRVDO�ZLOO�EH�RSHQHG��6KRXOG�QHJRWLDWLRQV�IDLO�RU�UHVXOW�
LQ�D�SULFH�WKDW�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�GRHV�QRW�FRQVLGHU�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH��QHJRWLDWLRQV�PXVW�EH�
IRUPDOO\�WHUPLQDWHG�DQG�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�WKHQ�XQGHUWDNH�QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�VHFRQG�
PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��


,I�WKH�QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�VHFRQG�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�ILUP�DUH�QRW�VXFFHVVIXO��QHJRWLDWLRQV�PXVW�EH�
IRUPDOO\�WHUPLQDWHG�DQG�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�WKHQ�XQGHUWDNH�QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�WKLUG�PRVW�
TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��DQG�VR�RQ��XQWLO�WKH�SULFH�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�WR�EH�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�E\�WKH�
ORFDO�DJHQF\��


,Q�VHOHFWLQJ�DQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW��D�GHWDLOHG�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�RU�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�SURSRVDO��DQG�D�
SURSRVHG�FRQWUDFW�ZLOO�EH�UHTXLUHG��


'HSHQGLQJ�XSRQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��WKH�UHTXLUHG�FRQWUDFW�SURYLVLRQV�PD\�QHHG�WR�LQFOXGH�WKH�
&DOLIRUQLD�6WDWH�3UHYDLOLQJ�:DJHV��)HGHUDO�3D\PHQW�RI�3UHGHWHUPLQHG�0LQLPXP�:DJH�DSSOLHV�
RQO\�WR�IHGHUDO�DLG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�FRQWUDFWV���3UHYDLOLQJ�ZDJHV�ZLOO�DSSO\�LI�WKH�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�
SHUIRUPHG�ZLOO�LQYROYH�ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��VXFK�DV�IODJ�SHUVRQV��VXUYH\�SDUW\�FKLHI��URGPDQ�RU�
FKDLQPDQ���PDWHULDOV�VDPSOLQJ�DQG�WHVWLQJ��VXFK�DV�GULOOLQJ�ULJ�RSHUDWRUV��SLOH�GULYLQJ��FUDQH�
RSHUDWRUV���LQVSHFWLRQ�ZRUN��VRLOV�RU�IRXQGDWLRQ�LQYHVWLJDWLRQV��HQYLURQPHQWDO�KD]DUGRXV�
PDWHULDOV�DQG�VR�IRUWK��&DOLIRUQLD�6WDWH�3UHYDLOLQJ�:DJH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�DYDLODEOH�WKURXJK�WKH�
&DOLIRUQLD�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�,QGXVWULDO�5HODWLRQV�ZHEVLWHV�EHORZ��


&RQVXOWDQWV�ZLOO�QHHG�WR�SURYLGH�WKHLU�3UHYDLOLQJ�:DJH�3ROLF\�LI�WKHLU�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�RQ�WKH�SURMHFW�
LQFOXGHV�SUHYDLOLQJ�ZDJH�ZRUN��7KH�SROLF\�ZLOO�LQFOXGH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RQ�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�WUHDWPHQW�RI�
GHOWD�EDVH�DQG�GHOWD�IULQJH��DQG�YHULI\�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�WUHDWPHQW�LV�FRQVLVWHQW�HYHU\�\HDU��


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


215 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �


� � � �
�


� � �
�


�
� � � �


�
� ���


� � � � � �


�
� � �


� � � �
� � � �


� �
� � � � � �


�


�
� � � �


� � � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � � �


� � �


� � � � �


�
� � �


� � �
� �


� � �
� �


� � ���


� �
� � � �


� � � �
� � �


�


�


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


x� ',5�)$4�ZHEVLWH��KWWS���ZZZ�GLU�FD�JRY�235/�)$4B3UHYDLOLQJ:DJH�KWPO�


x� ',5�:DJH�'HWHUPLQDWLRQ�ZHEVLWH��
KWWS���ZZZ�GLU�FD�JRY�RSUO�'3UH:DJH'HWHUPLQDWLRQ�KWP�


x� &DOWUDQV�3UHYDLOLQJ�:DJH�,QWHUSUHWLYH�*XLGDQFH��
KWWSV���LJ�GRW�FD�JRY�UHVRXUFHV�LQWHUSUHWLYH�JXLGDQFH�


1RQ�$	(�&RQVXOWDQWV�
&RQVXOWDQWV�RWKHU�WKDQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQWV�PD\�EH�VHOHFWHG�XVLQJ�FRVW��FRVW�DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�
�EHVW�YDOXH��RU�RWKHU�FULWLFDO�VHOHFWLRQ�FULWHULD��7KH�SURFHGXUHV�RXWOLQHG�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU�FDQ�EH�
PRGLILHG�IRU�VHOHFWLQJ�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQWV�E\�DGGLQJ�D�FRVW�LWHP�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFW�SURSRVDO��


)RU�PRUH�GHWDLOV�RQ�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQWV��VHH�6HFWLRQ�������1RQ�$	(�&RQWUDFWV�RI�WKLV�FKDSWHU��


6HOHFWLQJ�WKH�3URMHFW�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�VHOHFWLQJ�DQG�LQLWLDWLQJ�D�IHGHUDO�DLG�ILQDQFHG�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
SURMHFW��7KH�GHFLVLRQ�WR�EHJLQ�SURMHFW�GHYHORSPHQW�LV�LQIOXHQFHG�E\�WKH�SURMHFW�QHHGV��LWV�
DFFHSWDELOLW\��WKH�WLPLQJ�RI�VWXGLHV��ILQDQFLQJ��DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�LGHQWLI\�
WKH�SURMHFW¶V�REMHFWLYHV�LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�JHQHUDO�OHYHO�RI�LPSURYHPHQW�RU�VHUYLFH��RSHUDWLQJ�
VWDQGDUGV��PD[LPXP�FRVW�DQG�WKH�WDUJHW�GDWH�IRU�SURMHFW�FRPSOHWLRQ�EHIRUH�FRPPHQFLQJ�DQ\�
FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV��


6XEFRQWUDFWHG�6HUYLFHV�
7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�SHUIRUPLQJ�WKH�ZRUN�UHTXLUHG�XQGHU�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LQ�D�PDQQHU�
DFFHSWDEOH�WR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��7KH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�DQG�DOO�DVVRFLDWHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�
DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV�PXVW�EH�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�SURSRVDO��,I�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLVKHV�WR�XVH�D�
VXEFRQVXOWDQW�QRW�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�SURSRVDO��SULRU�ZULWWHQ�DSSURYDO�PXVW�EH�REWDLQHG�IURP�WKH�
ORFDO�DJHQF\��7KH�VXEFRQWUDFW�PXVW�FRQWDLQ�DOO�UHTXLUHG�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�SULPH�FRQWUDFW��$OO�
VXEDZDUGV�PXVW�LQFOXGH�DGHTXDWH�RYHUVLJKW��PDQDJHPHQW��DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�HQJLQHHULQJ�
DQG�GHVLJQ�UHODWHG�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV�DQG�EH�DGPLQLVWHUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�6WDWH�ODZV�DQG�
SURFHGXUHV�VSHFLILHG�LQ����8�6�&�����J�����DQG���&)5����������


2UJDQL]DWLRQDO�DQG�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQIOLFWV�RI�,QWHUHVW�
,Q�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW�RI�FRQWUDFWV�IRU�HQJLQHHULQJ�VHUYLFHV�E\�SULYDWH�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUPV�XVLQJ�
IHGHUDO�DLG�KLJKZD\�IXQGV��ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�PXVW�WDNH�DOO�WKH�VWHSV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�SUHYHQW�IUDXG��
ZDVWH��DQG�DEXVH��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�GHYHORS�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�D�ZULWWHQ�FRGH�RI�FRQGXFW�
JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�LWV�HPSOR\HHV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�DGPLQLVWUDWRU��HQJDJHG�LQ�
WKH�DZDUG�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�IHGHUDO�DLG�KLJKZD\�IXQGHG�FRQWUDFWV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�SUHYHQWLRQ�
RI�FRQIOLFWV�RI�LQWHUHVW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK����&)5�������E������


$�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�RFFXUV�ZKHQ�D�SXEOLF�RIILFLDO¶V�SULYDWH�LQWHUHVWV�DQG�KLV�RU�KHU�SXEOLF�GXWLHV�
DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�GLYHUJH�RU�DUH�QRW�FRQVLVWHQW��&RQIOLFWV�RI�LQWHUHVW�PD\�EH�GLUHFW�RU�LQGLUHFW�
�H�J���DV�UHVXOW�RI�D�SHUVRQDO�RU�EXVLQHVV�UHODWLRQVKLS���7KH�DSSHDUDQFH�RI�D�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�
VKRXOG�EH�DYRLGHG�DV�DQ�DSSDUHQW�FRQIOLFW�PD\�XQGHUPLQH�SXEOLF�WUXVW�LI�QRW�VXIILFLHQWO\�
PLWLJDWHG��


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


216 of 611



http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/FAQ_PrevailingWage.html

http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/FAQ_PrevailingWage.html

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm

https://ig.dot.ca.gov/resources/interpretive-guidance





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � �


� � �
�


� � �
� � � �


� �
�


� �
� � �


� �
�


� �
� � �


� �


� � � �
� � �


�


� � � �


� � � � �
� �


� �
� � � �


� �
� �


� �
� � � � �


� � � � � �
� � �


�
� � � �


�


� � � �
� � � �
� � �


�
� �


� �
�


��


�
� � �


�
� �


� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


)HGHUDO�5HJXODWLRQ�*RYHUQLQJ�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�����&)5�������E������UHTXLUHV�WKDW��


x� /RFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�PDLQWDLQ�D�ZULWWHQ�FRGH�RI�VWDQGDUGV�RI�FRQGXFW�IRU�HPSOR\HHV�
HQJDJHG�LQ�WKH�DZDUG�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�GHVLJQ�VHUYLFH�FRQWUDFWV��


x� 1R�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\�HPSOR\HH�ZKR�SDUWLFLSDWHV�LQ�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��PDQDJHPHQW��RU�
DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�IHGHUDO�IXQGHG�FRQWUDFWV�RU�VXEFRQWUDFWV�VKDOO�KDYH��GLUHFWO\�RU�
LQGLUHFWO\��DQ\�ILQDQFLDO�RU�RWKHU�SHUVRQDO�LQWHUHVW�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�VXFK�FRQWUDFW�RU�
VXEFRQWUDFW��


x� 1R�SHUVRQ�RU�HQWLW\�SHUIRUPLQJ�VHUYLFHV�IRU�D�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�D�
IHGHUDO�IXQGHG�SURMHFW�VKDOO�KDYH��GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\��DQ\�ILQDQFLDO�RU�RWKHU�SHUVRQDO�
LQWHUHVW��RWKHU�WKDQ�HPSOR\PHQW�RU�UHWHQWLRQ�E\�WKH�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\��LQ�DQ\�FRQWUDFW�
RU�VXEFRQWUDFW�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�VXFK�SURMHFW��


x� 1R�SHUVRQ�RU�HQWLW\�SHUIRUPLQJ�VHUYLFHV�IRU�D�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�D�
IHGHUDO�DLG�KLJKZD\�IXQGHG�SURMHFW�VKDOO�KDYH��GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\��DQ\�ILQDQFLDO�RU�RWKHU�
SHUVRQDO�LQWHUHVW�LQ�DQ\�UHDO�SURSHUW\�DFTXLUHG�IRU�WKH�SURMHFW��


x� 1R�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\�HPSOR\HHV�RU�DJHQWV�VKDOO�QHLWKHU�VROLFLW�QRU�DFFHSW�JUDWXLWLHV��
IDYRUV��RU�DQ\WKLQJ�RI�PRQHWDU\�YDOXH�IURP�FRQVXOWDQWV��SRWHQWLDO�FRQVXOWDQWV��RU�SDUWLHV�
WR�VXEDJUHHPHQWV��


x� /RFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�GLVFORVH�LQ�ZULWLQJ�DQ\�SRWHQWLDO�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�WR�)+:$��


&RQVXOWDQWV�3HUIRUPLQJ�:RUN�RQ�0XOWLSOH�3KDVHV�RI�)HGHUDO�DLG�3URMHFWV�
/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�VRPHWLPHV�ZLVK�WR�KLUH�WKH�VDPH�FRQVXOWDQW�ILUP�WR�SHUIRUP�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�
HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�RU�LQVSHFWLRQ�VHUYLFHV�RQ�WKH�VDPH�SURMHFW�RQ�ZKLFK�WKH�ILUP�DOVR�SHUIRUPHG�
GHVLJQ�VHUYLFHV��7KLV�FDQ�FDXVH�SURMHFW�GHOLYHU\�HIILFLHQFLHV��DV�WKH�GHVLJQ�ILUP�LV�ZHOO�VXLWHG�WR�
YHULI\�WKDW�WKH�SURMHFW�LV�EHLQJ�FRQVWUXFWHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�GHVLJQ�DQG�FDQ�UHVROYH�LVVXHV�
UHODWHG�WR�WKH�GHVLJQ�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\��+RZHYHU��WKLV�PD\�DOVR�SRVH�D�
SRWHQWLDO�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�LI�WKH�ILUP�KDV�D�YHVWHG�ILQDQFLDO�LQWHUHVW�LQ�IDLOLQJ�WR�GLVFORVH�
GHILFLHQFLHV�LQ�LWV�GHVLJQ�ZRUN�SURGXFW�DQG�VHHNV�WR�LQVXODWH�LWVHOI�IURP�SHFXQLDU\�OLDELOLW\�LQ�
VXEVHTXHQW�SKDVHV�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��VXFK�DV�PLQLPL]LQJ�RU�LJQRULQJ�GHVLJQ�HUURUV�DQG�RPLVVLRQV��
UDWKHU�WKDQ�VHUYLQJ�WKH�EHVW�LQWHUHVWV�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\�DQG�WKH�SXEOLF��3URFXULQJ�D�
GLIIHUHQW�ILUP�IURP�WKH�GHVLJQ�ILUP�WR�SURYLGH�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�RU�LQVSHFWLRQ�
VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHV�DQRWKHU�OHYHO�RI�UHYLHZ�DQG�UHGXFHV�WKH�ULVN�RI��RU�SRWHQWLDO�IRU��D�FRQIOLFW�RI�
LQWHUHVW��


$OWKRXJK�IHGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV�GR�QRW�H[SUHVVO\�SURKLELW�WKH�VDPH�ILUP�IURP�SURYLGLQJ�VHUYLFHV�RQ�
VXEVHTXHQW�SKDVHV��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�HQVXULQJ�WKH�SXEOLF�LQWHUHVW�LV�
PDLQWDLQHG�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�OLIH�RI�D�SURMHFW�DQG�WKDW�D�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW��UHDO�RU�DSSDUHQW��GRHV�
QRW�RFFXU�RU�LV�VXIILFLHQWO\�PLWLJDWHG�E\�DSSURSULDWH�SXEOLF�DJHQF\�FRQWUROV��3ULRU�WR�DOORZLQJ�D�
FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�WR�SURYLGH�VHUYLFHV�RQ�VXEVHTXHQW�SKDVHV�RI�WKH�VDPH�SURMHFW��WKH�FRQWUDFWLQJ�
DJHQF\�PXVW�HVWDEOLVK�DSSURSULDWH�FRPSHQVDWLQJ�FRQWUROV�LQ�SROLFLHV��SURFHGXUHV��SUDFWLFHV��DQG�
RWKHU�VDIHJXDUGV�WR�HQVXUH�D�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�GRHV�QRW�RFFXU�LQ�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��
PDQDJHPHQW��DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV��


:KHQ�GHVLJQ�DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SKDVH�VHUYLFHV�DUH�SURFXUHG�XQGHU�D�VLQJOH�VROLFLWDWLRQ��WKH�
VHOHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�PXVW�EH�EDVHG�RQ�WKH�RYHUDOO�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�WR�SURYLGH�ERWK�
GHVLJQ�DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SKDVH�VHUYLFHV��ZKLFK�UHTXLUH�GLIIHUHQW�VNLOO�VHWV��H[SHULHQFH��DQG�
UHVRXUFHV��3URFXULQJ�WKHVH�VHUYLFHV�XQGHU�GLIIHUHQW�VROLFLWDWLRQV�PD\�UHVXOW�LQ�VHOHFWLRQ�RI�D�
PRUH�TXDOLILHG�ILUP�WR�SHUIRUP�VHUYLFHV�LQ�HDFK�SKDVH��DV�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�ILUP�WR�SHUIRUP�


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


217 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� � � � �


� �
� � � � � �


�
�


� �
�


� �
� �


� �
� � �


� �
� � �


� � � � �
� � � � �


� � � � � �
� � � � �


� � � � �
� � � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� � � � � �


� � �
� �


� � � �


� � �
� � � � �


� � �


� �
� � � �


� � � �
� �


� �
� � � � � �


� � � � �
� � � �


� � � �
� � � �


� � � � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


GHVLJQ�SKDVH�VHUYLFHV�PD\�QRW�EH�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�ILUP�WR�SURYLGH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SKDVH�
VHUYLFHV��6LPLODUO\��WKH�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�FDSDFLW\�RI�D�ILUP�PD\�FKDQJH�RYHU�WLPH��$V�VXFK��LW�
PD\�QRW�EH�DSSURSULDWH�WR�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�D�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�WR�SURYLGH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SKDVH�VHUYLFHV�
DW�WKH�RXWVHW�RI�D�GHVLJQ�SKDVH��NQRZLQJ�WKDW�WKHVH�VHUYLFHV�PD\�QRW�EH�QHHGHG�IRU�DQ�
H[WHQGHG�SHULRG�XQWLO�WKH�SUHFRQVWUXFWLRQ�SKDVH�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�LV�FRPSOHWH�DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�
IXQGLQJ�DXWKRUL]HG��7KH�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�D�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�SURYLGLQJ�GHVLJQ�SKDVH�VHUYLFHV�RQ�D�
SURMHFW�PD\�QRW�EH�DPHQGHG�WR�LQFOXGH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SKDVH�VHUYLFHV�XQOHVV�WKH�GHVLUHG�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SKDVH�VHUYLFHV�ZHUH�LQFOXGHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�RULJLQDO�DGYHUWLVHG�VFRSH�RI�VHUYLFHV�DQG�
HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD�RI�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�IURP�ZKLFK�D�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�EDVHG�VHOHFWLRQ�ZDV�FRQGXFWHG��
$OO�FRQVXOWDQWV�DFWLQJ�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�PXVW�FRPSOHWH�([KLELW����8��&RQVXOWDQW�LQ�
0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�DQG�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�6WDWHPHQW��VHH�6HFWLRQ�
������� 0LVFHOODQHRXV�&RQVLGHUDWLRQV�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU��DQG�UHWDLQ�LW�LQ�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�ILOHV��


0LVFHOODQHRXV�&RQVLGHUDWLRQV�$XWKRUL]DWLRQ�WR�3URFHHG�
7KH�)HGHUDO�+LJKZD\�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��)+:$��PXVW�JLYH�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQ�$XWKRUL]DWLRQ�WR�
3URFHHG��(�����ZLWK�WKH�ZRUN�SULRU�WR�SHUIRUPLQJ�RI�DQ\�ZRUN�IRU�ZKLFK�IHGHUDO�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�LV�
WR�EH�UHTXHVWHG���VHH�WKH�/$30�&KDSWHU����3URMHFW�$XWKRUL]DWLRQ���(OLJLEOH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�
PD\�EH�SURFXUHG�XVLQJ�ORFDO�IXQGV�SULRU�WR�UHFHLYLQJ�WKH�(�����EXW�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�LV�IRU�ZRUN�
SHUIRUPHG�DIWHU�WKH�(����DXWKRUL]DWLRQ�GDWH��,I�FRQWUDFW�LV�SURFXUHG�XVLQJ�VWDWH�RU�ORFDO�IXQGV��
IHGHUDO�SURFHGXUHV�PXVW�KDYH�EHHQ�IROORZHG�LI�VHHNLQJ�IHGHUDO�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��)RU�VWDWH�IXQGHG�
SURMHFWV�VHH�6HFWLRQ�������6WDWH�2QO\�)XQGHG�$	(�&RQWUDFWV�DQG�WKH�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URJUDP�
*XLGHOLQHV��/$3*���&KDSWHU�����/RFDO�$JHQF\�6WDWH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�,PSURYHPHQW�3URJUDP�
3URMHFWV��IRU�JXLGDQFH�RQ�ZKHQ�ZRUN�PD\�SURFHHG��


&RSLHV�RI�WKH�$XWKRUL]DWLRQ�WR�3URFHHG�DQG�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�PXVW�EH�UHWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�SURMHFW�ILOHV�IRU�IXWXUH�DXGLW��


�������,'(17,)<,1*�	�'(),1,1*�$�1(('�)25�&2168/7$176�
7KH�QHHG�IRU�D�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�LGHQWLILHG�E\�FRPSDULQJ�WKH�SURMHFW¶V�VFKHGXOH�DQG�REMHFWLYHV�ZLWK�
WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�FDSDELOLWLHV��LWV�VWDII�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�WKH�UHTXLUHG�H[SHUWLVH��DQG�LWV�IXQGLQJ�
UHVRXUFHV��,I�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH�VXIILFLHQW�VWDII�FDSDELOLWLHV��LW�PD\�VROLFLW�DVVLVWDQFH�
IURP�DQRWKHU�DJHQF\��RU�XVH�D�TXDOLILHG�SULYDWH�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�SHUIRUP�WKH�UHTXLUHG�ZRUN��


,I�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�D�QHHG�WR�VROLFLW�DVVLVWDQFH�IURP�DQRWKHU�ORFDO�
DJHQF\��RU�WR�XVH�D�FRQVXOWDQW��WKH�'LVWULFW�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�(QJLQHHU��'/$(��VKRXOG�EH�QRWLILHG�
LI�IHGHUDO�DLG�IXQGV�DUH�WR�EH�UHTXHVWHG�IRU�WKH�SURMHFW�VHJPHQW�WR�EH�FRQWUDFWHG�RXW��


$SSRLQWLQJ�WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�HQVXULQJ�WKH�TXDOLW\�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�
SURGXFWV�RU�VHUYLFHV��7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�LV�DSSRLQWHG�DV�VRRQ�DV�WKH�QHHG�IRU�
FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV�LV�LGHQWLILHG��7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�LV�LQYROYHG�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�
GHYHORSPHQW�RI�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�DQG�WKH�FRQWUDFW�SURYLVLRQV��DQG�LQ�WKH�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�
WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ZRUN��7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�PXVW�EH�D�TXDOLILHG�ORFDO�DJHQF\�HPSOR\HH�RU�
KDYH�VWDII�WKDW�LV�TXDOLILHG�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ZRUN�LV�FRPSOHWH��DFFXUDWH��DQG�FRQVLVWHQW�
ZLWK�WKH�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��2Q�IHGHUDO�DLG�FRQWUDFWV��WKH�&RQWUDFW�
$GPLQLVWUDWRU�RU�VWDII�PHPEHUV�PXVW�EH�D�IXOO�WLPH�HPSOR\HH�DQG�IDPLOLDU�ZLWK�WKH�ZRUN�WR�EH�
FRQWUDFWHG�RXW�DQG�WKH�VWDQGDUGV�WR�EH�XVHG��7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�PXVW�DOVR�DELGH�E\�WKH�
ODZV��UHJXODWLRQV�DQG�SROLFLHV�UHTXLUHG�DV�SDUW�RI�DFFHSWLQJ�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�IXQGLQJ�IRU�WKHLU�


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


218 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/ch03.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapg/g23.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapg/g23.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapg/g23.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
�


� � � �


� � �
� �


� � � � �
� �


� � � � � �
� �


� �
�


�


� � � �
� �


� �


� � � �
� �


� �


� � � �
�


� � �


� � �


� � � � �


� � � � �


� � �


� � �


� � �
� �


�


� � � � �


� � � �
� �


�
�


�


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


SURMHFW��1RQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�ODZV��UHJXODWLRQV��DQG�SROLFLHV�PD\�UHVXOW�LQ�ORVV�RI�SURMHFW�
IXQGLQJ��


7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU¶V�GXWLHV�DUH�OLVWHG�LQ����&)5�������G�����DQG�LQFOXGH��


x� &RQWUDFW�QHJRWLDWLRQ��FRQWUDFW�SD\PHQW��DQG�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�FRPSOLDQFH�SHUIRUPDQFH��DQG�
TXDOLW\�RI�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��


x� %HLQJ�IDPLOLDU�ZLWK�WKH�FRQWUDFW�UHTXLUHPHQWV��VFRSH�RI�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG��DQG�
SURGXFWV�WR�EH�SURGXFHG�E\�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��


x� %HLQJ�IDPLOLDU�ZLWK�WKH�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�VWDII�DQG�
HYDOXDWLQJ�DQ\�UHTXHVWHG�FKDQJHV�LQ�NH\�SHUVRQQHO��


x� 6FKHGXOLQJ�DQG�DWWHQGLQJ�SURJUHVV�DQG�SURMHFW�UHYLHZ�PHHWLQJV��FRPPHQVXUDWH�ZLWK�WKH�
PDJQLWXGH��FRPSOH[LW\��DQG�W\SH�RI�ZRUN��WR�HQVXUH�WKH�ZRUN�LV�SURJUHVVLQJ�LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�HVWDEOLVKHG�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�DQG�VFKHGXOH�PLOHVWRQHV��


x� 'RFXPHQWLQJ�FRQWUDFW�PRQLWRULQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�PDLQWDLQLQJ�VXSSRUWLQJ�FRQWUDFW�UHFRUGV�
DV�VSHFLILHG�LQ���&)5����������


x� 3URYLGHV�GLUHFWLRQ�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�SURSRVHG�ZRUN�LV�DGYHUWLVHG�SURSHUO\��


x� 3UHSDUHV�DQG�GLVWULEXWHV�WKH�5HTXHVW�IRU�4XDOLILFDWLRQV��5)4���GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�ZRUN��DQG�
5HTXHVW�IRU�3URSRVDOV��5)3���LI�XVHG��


x� 3UHSDUHV�WKH�GUDIW�FRQWUDFW��


x� $UUDQJHV�IRU�SUHSDUDWLRQ�EHIRUH�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�HVWLPDWH�RI�WKH�YDOXH�RI�WKH�ZRUN�WR�EH�
FRQWUDFWHG�RXW��


x� (QVXUHV�WKDW�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHGXUHV�DUH�IROORZHG��


x� $QDO\]HV�WKH�VHOHFWHG�EHVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRVW�SURSRVDO��


x� (QVXUHV�FRQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�SURFHGXUH�LV�IROORZHG��


x� (QVXUHV�WKDW�IHH�SURILW�QHJRWLDWLRQ�LV�FRQGXFWHG�DQG�NHHSV�UHFRUGV��


x� 6HUYHV�DV�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�SULPDU\�FRQWDFW�SHUVRQ�IRU�WKH�VXFFHVVIXO�FRQVXOWDQW��


x� 0RQLWRUV�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�SURJUHVV�DQG�SURYLGHV�GLUHFWLRQ��


x� (QVXULQJ�FRQVXOWDQW�FRVWV�ELOOHG�DUH�DOORZDEOH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�FRVW�
SULQFLSOHV�DQG�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�FRQWUDFW�WHUPV�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKH�DFFHSWDELOLW\�DQG�
SURJUHVV�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ZRUN��


x� ,GHQWLILHV�RWKHU�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VWDII�IRU�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�FRQWDFW��LI�QHHGHG��


x� &ORVHV�RXW�WKH�FRQWUDFW�DW�FRPSOHWLRQ��E\�SURFHVVLQJ�WKH�ILQDO�LQYRLFH��FRPSOHWLQJ�D�
PDQGDWRU\�FRQVXOWDQW�HYDOXDWLRQ��DQG�ILQDO�'%(�XWLOL]DWLRQ�UHSRUWV��([KLELW����)��)LQDO�
5HSRUW�8WLOL]DWLRQ�RI�'LVDGYDQWDJHG�%XVLQHVV�(QWHUSULVHV��'%(��DQG�)LUVW�7LHU�
6XEFRQWUDFWRUV���


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


219 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c17/17f.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c17/17f.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c17/17f.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� � � � �
� � � � �


� � �
�


� � �
� � � � �


� � � � �
� � � � � �


� �


� � � � �
�


�


� �


�
�


� � �
� �


�


� � ��
� �


�
� �


� � � �


VWUXFWXUHG� :HOO� WUXFWXUHFO� 0RUH� �� HU\�
3URMHFWV� 3URMHFWV� 'LIILFXOW� &RPSOH[�


:LWK�6LPSOH� :LWK�&RPSOH[� 3URMHFWV� 3URMHFWV�
5LJKW�RI�:D\� 5LJKW�RI�:D\�
5HTXLUHPHQWV� 5HTXLUHPHQWV�


3UHOLPLQDU\�(QJLQHHULQJ�


,�
(QYLURQPHQWDO�$QDO\� LV� ,�


,�


3ODQV��6SHFLILFDWLRQV�


,� ,�	(VWLPDWH�


5LJKW�RI�:D\�$FWLYLWLHV�
,� ,�,� ,�


WLOLW\�5HORFDWLRQ�
,� ,�,� ,�,� ,�


&RQVWUXFWLRQ�(QJLQHHULQJ�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


6HJPHQWLQJ�&RQVXOWDQW�:RUN�
&RQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV�DUH�PRVW�HIIHFWLYH�ZKHQ�FRQVXOWDQW�ZRUN�LV�VHJPHQWHG�DSSURSULDWHO\��7KH�
H[WHQW�RI�VHJPHQWLQJ�GHSHQGV�XSRQ�WKH�W\SH�DQG�FRPSOH[LW\�RI�WKH�ZRUN��&RPELQLQJ�SUHOLPLQDU\�
HQJLQHHULQJ�WDVNV�ZLWK�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�UHTXLUHG�HQYLURQPHQWDO�DQDO\VLV�LV�QRUPDOO\�
GHVLUDEOH��3UHSDULQJ�DQ�(QYLURQPHQWDO�$VVHVVPHQW��($��RU�(QYLURQPHQWDO�,PSDFW�6WDWHPHQW�
�(,6��LV�PRUH�WKDQ�VLPSO\�ZULWLQJ�D�UHSRUW��$VVHVVPHQW�DQG�LPSDFW�UHSRUWV�LQFOXGH�SUHOLPLQDU\�
HQJLQHHULQJ�QHHGHG�WR�DQDO\]H�SURMHFW�DOWHUQDWLYHV�DQG�SURGXFH�DQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�SODQQLQJ�
DVVHVVPHQW��,QLWLDO�SURMHFW�VWXGLHV�LQFOXGH�RQO\�DV�PXFK�WUDIILF�DQG�HQJLQHHULQJ�DQDO\VLV�RI�
DOWHUQDWLYHV��DV�LV�QHHGHG�WR�SURGXFH�D�VRXQG�($�RU�(,6��VHH�/$30�&KDSWHU���(QYLURQPHQWDO�
3URFHGXUHV�DQG�6WDQGDUG�(QYLURQPHQWDO�5HIHUHQFH��6(5��&KDSWHUV����� (QYLURQPHQWDO�
$VVHVVPHQW��($��)LQGLQJ�RI�1R�6LJQLILFDQW�,PSDFW��)216,��DQG�&KDSWHU����� (QYLURQPHQWDO�
,PSDFW�6WDWHPHQW��(,6���)LQDO�GHVLJQ�VKDOO�QRW�EHJLQ�XQWLO�1(3$�HQYLURQPHQWDO�DSSURYDO�KDV�
EHHQ�UHFHLYHG�LI�IHGHUDO�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�LV�GHVLUHG��


5HIHU�WR�)LJXUH�������6HJPHQWLQJ�&RQVXOWDQW�:RUN�EHORZ��ZKLFK�LOOXVWUDWHV�VHYHUDO�VDWLVIDFWRU\�
ZD\V�WR�VHJPHQW�FRQVXOWDQW�DFWLYLWLHV��


)LJXUH��������6HJPHQWLQJ�&RQVXOWDQW�:RUN�


6SHFLI\�3URGXFWV�WR�EH�'HOLYHUHG�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�LGHQWLILHV�WKH�SURGXFWV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�GHOLYHUHG�DV�D�UHVXOW�RI�
FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�ZRUN��DQG�PLQLPXP�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�SURIHVVLRQDOV�DQG�VWDII��7KHVH�
YDU\�GHSHQGLQJ�XSRQ�WKH�W\SH�RI�SURMHFWV�DQG�WKH�SKDVH�RI�SURMHFW�GHYHORSPHQW�EHLQJ�
DGGUHVVHG��


6FRSH�RI�&RQVXOWDQW�:RUN�
7KH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��ZKLFK�WKH�FRQWUDFW�PXVW�LQFOXGH��LV�D�GHWDLOHG�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURGXFWV�RU�
VHUYLFHV�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�WR�SURYLGH��)URP�D�GHWDLOHG�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��FRQVXOWDQWV�UHVSRQG�WR�D�
SURMHFW�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��GHWHUPLQH�SHUVRQQHO�DQG�WLPH�UHTXLUHPHQWV��DQG�GHYHORS�D�WHFKQLFDO�
SURSRVDO��7KHUHIRUH��WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�PXVW�EH�FOHDU��FRQFLVH��FRPSOHWH��DQG�GHVFULEH�WKH�


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


220 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/ch06.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/ch06.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/environmental-analysis/standard-environmental-reference-ser/volume-1-guidance-for-compliance/ch-31-environmental-assessment-finding-of-no-significant-impact

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/environmental-analysis/standard-environmental-reference-ser/volume-1-guidance-for-compliance/ch-31-environmental-assessment-finding-of-no-significant-impact

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/environmental-analysis/standard-environmental-reference-ser/volume-1-guidance-for-compliance/ch-32-environmental-impact-statement

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/environmental-analysis/standard-environmental-reference-ser/volume-1-guidance-for-compliance/ch-32-environmental-impact-statement





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
�


�
� �


� � �
�


� �


�
� �


� �
� � �


� � � �


�
� � � � �


� � �
� � �


� �
� � �


� � �
� �


� �
� � � � �


�


� �
� �


� � �
� �


� �
� �


� �


� � �
�


� � � �
� � � � �


��
� ��


� � � �
�
�


� � � �
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


GHOLYHUDEOHV��VWDQGDUGV�IRU�GHVLJQ�DQG�RWKHU�ZRUN��TXDOLW\�FRQWURO�PHDVXUHV��DFFHSWDQFH�FULWHULD�
DQG�GHDGOLQHV��


1RQ�'LVFULPLQDWLRQ�&ODXVH�
7KH�1RQ�'LVFULPLQDWLRQ�&ODXVH��([KLELW����5��$	(�%RLOHUSODWH�$JUHHPHQW�/DQJXDJH��$UWLFOH�
;9,�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSOLDQFH��PXVW�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�HDFK�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�
PXVW�LQFOXGH�WKH�QRQ�GLVFULPLQDWLRQ�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�SURYLVLRQV�RI�WKH�1RQ�'LVFULPLQDWLRQ�
&ODXVH�LQ�DOO�VXEFRQWUDFWV�WR�SHUIRUP�ZRUN�XQGHU�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


'LVDGYDQWDJHG�%XVLQHVV�(QWHUSULVH��'%(��3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�
:KHQ�DGPLQLVWHULQJ�IHGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFWV��IHGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV�����&)5��3DUW�����UHTXLUH�D�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�'%(�SURJUDP��DQG�WDNH�QHFHVVDU\�VWHSV�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�'%(�ILUPV�
KDYH�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKH�SURMHFWV��5HIHU�WR�&KDSWHU����&LYLO�5LJKWV�DQG�
'LVDGYDQWDJHG�%XVLQHVV�(QWHUSULVHV�IRU�'%(�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFWV��


(VWLPDWHG�&RVW�RI�&RQVXOWDQW�:RUN�
$Q�LQGHSHQGHQW�HVWLPDWH�IRU�FRVW�RU�SULFH�DQDO\VLV�LV�QHHGHG�IRU�DOO�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�����
&)5�������D�����Y��%���WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV�DUH�REWDLQHG�DW�D�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�
SULFH��7KH�HVWLPDWH�LV�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�UHTXHVWLQJ�D�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IURP�WKH�WRS�UDQNHG�
FRQVXOWDQW��VR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�QHJRWLDWLQJ�WHDP�KDV�D�FRVW�FRPSDULVRQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�WR�
HYDOXDWH�WKH�UHDVRQDEOHQHVV�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRVW�SURSRVDO��7KH�HVWLPDWH��ZKLFK�LV�
VSHFLILFDOO\�IRU�WKH�XVH�RI�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�QHJRWLDWLQJ�WHDP��LV�WR�EH�NHSW�FRQILGHQWLDO�DQG�
PDLQWDLQHG�IRU�UHFRUGV��


$�JRRG�FRVW�HVWLPDWH�FDQ�EH�SUHSDUHG�RQO\�LI�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�LV�GHILQHG�FOHDUO\��7KH�VFRSH�RI�
ZRUN�PXVW�LQFOXGH�D�OLVW�RI�WKH�SURGXFWV�RU�VHUYLFHV�ZKLFK�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�GHOLYHU��
DQG�D�WLPH�VFKHGXOH�RI�ZKHQ�WKH\�PXVW�EH�GHOLYHUHG��


,W�VKRXOG�EH�VWUHVVHG�WKDW�DOO�ZRUN�WR�EH�GHULYHG�IURP�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV��VXFK�DV�
SUHOLPLQDU\�GHVLJQ��HQYLURQPHQWDO�RU�ILQDO�GHVLJQ��PXVW�EH�FOHDUO\�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�RI�
FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV��5)4�RU�5)3��DQG�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�FRVW�HVWLPDWH��7KH�DGGLWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�WR�WKH�
RULJLQDO�VFRSH�E\�DPHQGPHQW�VKRXOG�EH�DYRLGHG�ZKHQHYHU�SRVVLEOH��&RQWUDFW�PRGLILFDWLRQV�DUH�
UHTXLUHG�IRU�DQ\�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�FRQWUDFW�WKDW�FKDQJH�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�
FRQWUDFW��VLJQLILFDQWO\�FKDQJH�WKH�FKDUDFWHU��VFRSH��FRPSOH[LW\��RU�GXUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ZRUN��RU�
VLJQLILFDQWO\�FKDQJH�WKH�FRQGLWLRQV�XQGHU�ZKLFK�WKH�ZRUN�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG��


6RPH�RI�WKH�FRVWV�HVWLPDWLQJ�WHFKQLTXHV�DUH��
$QDORJRXV�(VWLPDWLQJ��
$QDORJRXV�FRVW�HVWLPDWLQJ�LV�XVLQJ�WKH�DFWXDO�FRVW�RI�D�SUHYLRXV��VLPLODU�FRQWUDFW�DV�WKH�EDVLV�IRU�
HVWLPDWLQJ�WKH�FRVW�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�FRQWUDFW��$QDORJRXV�FRVW�HVWLPDWLQJ�LV�IUHTXHQWO\�XVHG�WR�
HVWLPDWH�FRVWV�ZKHQ�WKHUH�LV�D�OLPLWHG�DPRXQW�RI�GHWDLOHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�SURMHFW��
$QDORJRXV�FRVW�HVWLPDWLQJ�LV�JHQHUDOO\�OHVV�DFFXUDWH�DQG�LW�LV�PRVW�UHOLDEOH�ZKHQ�SUHYLRXV�
SURMHFWV�DUH�VLPLODU�LQ�IDFW��DQG�QRW�MXVW�LQ�DSSHDUDQFH��DQG�LW�XVHV�H[SHUW�MXGJPHQW��
3DUDPHWULF�(VWLPDWLQJ��
3DUDPHWULF�HVWLPDWLQJ�LV�D�WHFKQLTXH�WKDW�XVHV�VWDWLVWLFDO�UHODWLRQVKLS�EHWZHHQ�KLVWRULFDO�GDWD�
DQG�RWKHU�YDULDEOHV�WR�FDOFXODWH�D�FRVW�HVWLPDWH�IRU�DQ�DFWLYLW\�UHVRXUFH��7KLV�WHFKQLTXH�FDQ�
SURGXFH�D�KLJKHU�OHYHO�RI�DFFXUDF\�GHSHQGLQJ�XSRQ�WKH�VRSKLVWLFDWLRQ��DV�ZHOO�DV�XQGHUO\LQJ�


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


221 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �
� � � � � �


�
� � � �


� � � � �
� � �


� ��
� ��


� � � �
� �


� �


� �
� � � � �


�


�
� �


� �
� �


� � � �
�


��


� � � � �
� � � �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
�


� �
� � �


� � � � �
� �


� � �
� � �


� �
� �


� �
� �


� � ��


� � �


� �
� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


UHVRXUFH�TXDQWLW\�DQG�WKH�FRVW�GDWD��$�FRVW�H[DPSOH�ZRXOG�LQYROYH�PXOWLSO\LQJ�WKH�SODQQHG�
TXDQWLW\�RI�ZRUN�E\�WKH�KLVWRULFDO�FRVW�SHU�XQLW�WR�REWDLQ�WKH�HVWLPDWHG�FRVW�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��
%RWWRP�XS�(VWLPDWLQJ��
7KLV�WHFKQLTXH�LQYROYHV�HVWLPDWLQJ�WKH�FRVW�IRU�LQGLYLGXDO�ZRUN�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�WKH�ORZHVW�
OHYHO�RI�GHWDLO��7KLV�GHWDLOHG�FRVW�LV�WKHQ�VXPPDUL]HG�RU�UROOHG�XS�WR�GHWHUPLQH�D�WRWDO�FRVW�RI�
FRQWUDFW��&RVW�GHWDLO�VKRXOG�LQFOXGH�HVWLPDWHG�KRXUV�SHU�WDVN��ODERU�KRXUO\�FRVW�IRU�SURIHVVLRQDO�
DQG�QRQ�SURIHVVLRQDO�FODVVLILFDWLRQV��VXEFRQVXOWDQW�FRVWV��RWKHU�SURMHFW�GLUHFW�FRVWV��DQG�SURILW��
/DERU�FRVWV�VKRXOG�EH�EURNHQ�GRZQ�WR�GLUHFW�ODERU�DQG�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWHV��LI�SRVVLEOH��


,I�PRUH�WKDQ�RQH�SURMHFW�RU�SKDVH�RI�ZRUN�LV�WR�EH�GHYHORSHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��
VHSDUDWH�FRVW�HVWLPDWHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�IRU�HDFK�SURMHFW�RU�SKDVH�RI�ZRUN��6HSDUDWH�FRVW�HVWLPDWHV�
DUH�UHTXLUHG�IRU�HDFK�PLOHVWRQH�DQG�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�ZRUN�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�VXEFRQWUDFWHG��


)RU�RQ�FDOO��DV�QHHGHG��FRQWUDFWV��WKH�FRVW�HVWLPDWH�DQDO\VLV�VKRXOG�LQFOXGH�DW�PLQLPXP��D�
KLVWRULFDO�DQDO\VLV�RI�DQQXDO�QHHGV�IRU�FRQVXOWDQW�ZRUN��SURIHVVLRQDO�ODERU�FRVW�DQG�PDUNHW�
DQDO\VLV��DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�SURILW�DQDO\VLV��


'HWHUPLQH�7\SH�RI�&RQWUDFW�
7\SHV�RI�FRQWUDFWV�WR�EH�XVHG�DUH�GHVFULEHG�DV�IROORZV��


x� 3URMHFW�VSHFLILF�FRQWUDFW�LV�EHWZHHQ�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�FRQVXOWDQW�IRU�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�
RI�VHUYLFHV�DQG�D�GHILQHG�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�UHODWHG�WR�D�VSHFLILF�SURMHFW�RU�SURMHFWV��


x� 0XOWL�SKDVH�FRQWUDFW�LV�D�SURMHFW�VSHFLILF�FRQWUDFW�ZKHUH�WKH�GHILQHG�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�LV�
GLYLGHG�LQWR�SKDVHV�ZKLFK�PD\�EH�QHJRWLDWHG�DQG�H[HFXWHG�LQGLYLGXDOO\�DV�WKH�SURMHFW�
SURJUHVVHV��


x� 2Q�FDOO�FRQWUDFW�LV�D�FRQWUDFW�WKDW�PD\�EH�XWLOL]HG�IRU�D�QXPEHU�RI�SURMHFWV��XQGHU�ZKLFK�
WDVN�RU�ZRUN�RUGHUV�DUH�LVVXHG�RQ�DQ�DV�QHHGHG�EDVLV��IRU�DQ�HVWDEOLVKHG�FRQWUDFW�SHULRG�
DQG�PD[LPXP�WRWDO�FRQWUDFW�GROODU�DPRXQW��2Q�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�W\SLFDOO\�XVHG�ZKHQ�D�
VSHFLDOL]HG�VHUYLFH�RI�LQGHILQLWH�GHOLYHU\�RU�LQGHILQLWH�TXDQWLW\�LV�QHHGHG�IRU�D�QXPEHU�RI�
GLIIHUHQW�SURMHFWV��VXFK�DV�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ��GHVLJQ��HQYLURQPHQWDO�DQDO\VLV��
WUDIILF�VWXGLHV��JHRWHFKQLFDO�VWXGLHV��DQG�ILHOG�VXUYH\LQJ��HWF��0DQ\�DJHQFLHV�XVH�WKHVH�
FRQWUDFWV�WR�DGGUHVV�SHDNV�LQ�ZRUNORDG�RI�LQ�KRXVH�HQJLQHHULQJ�VWDII�DQG�RU�WR�SHUIRUP�D�
VSHFLDOL]HG�VHUYLFH�ZKLFK�WKH�DJHQF\�GRHV�QRW�KDYH��2Q�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV�VKDOO�VSHFLI\�D�
UHDVRQDEOH�PD[LPXP�OHQJWK�RI�FRQWUDFW��QRW�WR�H[FHHG���\HDUV��DQG�D�PD[LPXP�WRWDO�
FRQWUDFW�GROODU�DPRXQW�����&)5�������7KH�PD[LPXP�GROODU�DPRXQW�IRU�DOO�FRQWUDFWV�
DZDUGHG�XQGHU�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�LV�VWDWHG�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ��7KH�PD[LPXP�GROODU�DPRXQW�LV�
WKH�DJJUHJDWH�RI�WKH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR�EH�DZDUGHG��,I�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�OLVWV�
WKDW�XS�WR���FRQWUDFWV�PD\�EH�DZDUGHG��WKH�DJJUHJDWH�DPRXQW�RI�WKHVH���FRQWUDFWV�LV�WKH�
PD[LPXP�FRQWUDFW�GROODU�DPRXQW��+RZ�PDQ\�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR�EH�DZDUGHG�
PXVW�EH�VWDWHG�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ��+RZ�WDVN�RUGHUV�ZLOO�EH�LVVXHG�PXVW�EH�VWDWHG�LQ�WKH�
VROLFLWDWLRQ��WZR�RSWLRQV�H[LVW��JHRJUDSKLFDOO\�GHVLJQDWHG�DUHDV�RU�DGGLWLRQDO�FRPSHWLWLYH�
VROLFLWDWLRQ�WR�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZKR�SURYLGH�WKH�VDPH�W\SH�RI�VHUYLFH�DQG�DZDUGHG�D�
FRQWUDFW�XQGHU�WKH�VDPH�VROLFLWDWLRQ���


o� 7R�PDLQWDLQ�WKH�LQWHQW�RI�WKH�%URRNV�$FW�����86&������������LQ�SURPRWLQJ�RSHQ�
FRPSHWLWLRQ�DQG�VHOHFWLRQ�EDVHG�RQ�GHPRQVWUDWHG�FRPSHWHQFH�DQG�
TXDOLILFDWLRQV��RQ�FDOO�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�HVWDEOLVKHG�WKURXJK�WKH�5)4�SURFHVV�
PXVW�PHHW�WKH�IROORZLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV��


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


222 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
�


� �
�


� �
� � � �


� �


� �
� �


� � �
��


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� �


� �


� � � � �
� � �


� �
� � �


�
�


� � �
�


� � � � �
�


� �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� �


� � �
� � � �
� �


�
� � �


�
� �


� � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


� 0XVW�GHILQH�D�JHQHUDO�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��FRPSOH[LW\��DQG�SURIHVVLRQDO�QDWXUH�
RI�VHUYLFHV��


� 6SHFLI\�D�WDVN�RUGHU�SURFHGXUH�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�XVHV�WR�SURFXUH�SURMHFW�
VSHFLILF�ZRUN�XQGHU�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


� 1R�WDVN�RUGHU�LV�YDOLG�XQOHVV�WKH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFW�LV�VWLOO�HQIRUFHG��)RU�
H[DPSOH��LI�WKH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFW�LV�H[SLUHG��DOO�WDVN�RUGHUV�LVVXHG�DIWHU�WKH�
FRQWUDFW�H[SLUDWLRQ�GDWH�ZLOO�EHFRPH�LQYDOLG��


� ,I�PXOWLSOH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�WR�EH�VHOHFWHG�DQG�PXOWLSOH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV�
DZDUGHG�WKURXJK�D�VLQJOH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�IRU�VSHFLILF�VHUYLFHV��WKH�QXPEHU�RI�
FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�PD\�EH�VHOHFWHG�RU�FRQWUDFWV�WKDW�PD\�EH�DZDUGHG�PXVW�
EH�LGHQWLILHG��


� 6SHFLI\�SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHGXUHV�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFWV�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�ZLOO�XVH�
WR�DZDUG�H[HFXWH�WDVN�RUGHUV�DPRQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQWV��


o� (LWKHU�WKURXJK�DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�EDVHG�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV��VHH�
WKH�7ZR�6WHS�5)4�5)4�SURFHVV�ODWHU�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU���25�


o� 2Q�UHJLRQDO�EDVLV�ZKHUHE\�WKH�UHJLRQ�LV�GLYLGHG�LQWR�DUHDV�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�
WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ��DQG�FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�VHOHFWHG�WR�SURYLGH�RQ�FDOO�
VHUYLFHV�IRU�DVVLJQHG�DUHDV�RQO\��7KH�5)3�PD\�OLVW�PXOWLSOH�UHJLRQV�
WKDW�DOORZ�FRQVXOWDQWV�WR�FURVVRYHU�RU�EH�D�³EDFNXS´�WR�RWKHU�
FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�IRU�VSHFLILFDOO\�GRFXPHQWHG�UHDVRQV�DUH�QRW�DEOH�WR�
SHUIRUP�WKH�ZRUN�LQ�WKHLU�DVVLJQHG�UHJLRQ��3HU����&)5�������
�D�����%������WKH�³EDFNXS´�RSWLRQ�QHHGV�WR�EH�OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�UHVSHFWLYH�
FRQWUDFWV��


o� $Q�H[DPSOH�RI�DFFHSWDEOH�FRQWUDFW�ZRUGLQJ�LQ�PXOWLSOH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV�IRU�WKH�
VDPH�W\SH�RI�VHUYLFH��


x� ³$JHQF\�KDV�RU�ZLOO�HQWHU�LQWR�WKUHH�����WDVN�RUGHU�FRQWUDFWV�IRU�
SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�6FRSH�RI�6HUYLFHV�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�([KLELW�³$´��LQFOXGLQJ�
WKLV�$JUHHPHQW��³&0�6HUYLFHV�7DVN�2UGHU�&RQWUDFWV´���7KH�RWKHU�&0�
6HUYLFHV�7DVN�2UGHU�&RQWUDFWV�DUH�>LGHQWLI\�RWKHU�WZR�FRQWUDFWV�E\�
DJUHHPHQW�QXPEHUV�DQG�FRQVXOWDQW�ILUPV@��7KH�WRWDO�DPRXQW�SD\DEOH�E\�
$JHQF\�IRU�WKH�&0�6HUYLFHV�7DVN�2UGHU�&RQWUDFWV�VKDOO�QRW�H[FHHG�D�
FXPXODWLYH�PD[LPXP�WRWDO�YDOXH�RI�6HYHQ�0LOOLRQ��)LYH�+XQGUHG�
7KRXVDQG�'ROODUV���������������³17(�6XP´���,W�LV�XQGHUVWRRG�DQG�DJUHHG�
WKDW�WKHUH�LV�QR�JXDUDQWHH��HLWKHU�H[SUHVVHG�RU�LPSOLHG�WKDW�WKLV�GROODU�
DPRXQW�ZLOO�EH�DXWKRUL]HG�XQGHU�WKH�&0�6HUYLFHV�7DVN�2UGHU�&RQWUDFWV�
WKURXJK�7DVN�2UGHUV��(DFK�WLPH�D�7DVN�2UGHU�LV�DZDUGHG�XQGHU�DQ\�RI�
WKH�&0�6HUYLFHV�7DVN�2UGHU�&RQWUDFWV��WKH�$JHQF\�VKDOO�VHQG�ZULWWHQ�
QRWLILFDWLRQ�WR�&RQVXOWDQW�DQG�HDFK�RI�WKH�RWKHU�FRQVXOWDQWV�HQWHULQJ�LQWR�
WKH�&0�6HUYLFHV�7DVN�2UGHU�&RQWUDFWV��7KH�QRWLFH�VKDOO�LGHQWLI\�WKH�WRWDO�
IXQGV�DOORFDWHG�XQGHU�LVVXHG�7DVN�2UGHUV��DQG�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�
XQHQFXPEHUHG�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�17(�6XP��&RQVXOWDQW�DFNQRZOHGJHV�DQG�
DJUHHV�WKDW�$JHQF\�VKDOO�QRW�SD\�DQ\�DPRXQW�XQGHU�WKLV�$JUHHPHQW�WKDW�


3DJH���RI����
-DQXDU\������


223 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � �


� � �
� ��


� �


� �


� �


� � �


� �


� �
� �
� � �


� � � � �


� � � � � �


� � �


� � �


� � � � �
� � �


� �


� � �
� � �


�


� � �
� � � � �


� � �
� � � � � �


��


� � � �
� � � � � � �


� � � �
� � �


� �
� � � � � �


� � � � � �
� �


� � �


,�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


ZRXOG�H[FHHG�WKH�17(�6XP��DQG�&RQVXOWDQW�VKDOO�QRW�HQWHU�LQWR�D�7DVN�
2UGHU�WKDW�H[FHHGV�WKH�17(�6XP�´�


'HWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�3URMHFW�6FKHGXOH�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�GHYHORSV�D�VFKHGXOH�IRU�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�ZRUN�DQG�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��
7KH�VFKHGXOH�PXVW�LQFOXGH�VXIILFLHQW�WLPH�WR�DOORZ�IRU��


x� 6HOHFWLQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��


x� 'HYHORSLQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��


x� &RPSOHWLQJ�WKH�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�DXGLW�SURFHVV��


x� &RQGXFWLQJ�PHHWLQJV�DQG�SURMHFW�UHYLHZV��


'HWHUPLQH�0HWKRG�RI�3D\PHQW�
7KH�PHWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW�RI�FRQWUDFW�PXVW�EH�VSHFLILHG��)RXU�PHWKRGV�DUH�SHUPLWWHG�GHSHQGLQJ�
RQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�UHIHUHQFH����&)5�������E���


x� &RVW�3OXV�)L[HG�)HH��VHH�([KLELW����+��6DPSOH�&RVW�3URSRVDO��([DPSOH������


x� &RVW�3HU�8QLW�RI�:RUN��VHH�([KLELW����+��([DPSOH������


x� 6SHFLILF�5DWHV�RI�&RPSHQVDWLRQ��VHH�([KLELW����+��([DPSOH������


x� /XPS�6XP��VHH�([KLELW����+��([DPSOH������


7KH�PHWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW�WR�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VKDOO�EH�VHW�IRUWK�LQ�WKH�RULJLQDO�VROLFLWDWLRQ��FRQWUDFW��
DQG�LQ�DQ\�FRQWUDFW�PRGLILFDWLRQ�WKHUHWR��$�VLQJOH�FRQWUDFW�PD\�FRQWDLQ�GLIIHUHQW�SD\PHQW�
PHWKRGV�DV�DSSURSULDWH�IRU�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�RI�GLIIHUHQW�HOHPHQWV�RI�ZRUN��


7KH�FRVW�SOXV�D�SHUFHQWDJH�RI�FRVW�DQG�SHUFHQWDJH�RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�FRVW�PHWKRGV�RI�SD\PHQW�
VKDOO�QRW�EH�XVHG��%RWK�RI�WKHVH�PHWKRGV�DUH�H[SOLFLWO\�SURKLELWHG�E\�)HGHUDO�5HJXODWLRQV��


&RVW�3OXV�)L[HG�)HH�
7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�UHLPEXUVHG�IRU�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�DQG�UHFHLYHV�DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�SUHGHWHUPLQHG�
DPRXQW�DV�D�IL[HG�IHH��SURILW���)HGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV�UHTXLUH�WKDW�SURILW�EH�VHSDUDWHO\�QHJRWLDWHG�
IURP�FRQWUDFW�FRVWV��7KH�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�WKH�IL[HG�IHH�VKDOO�WDNH�LQWR�DFFRXQW�WKH�
VL]H��FRPSOH[LW\��GXUDWLRQ��DQG�GHJUHH�RI�ULVN�LQYROYHG�LQ�WKH�ZRUN��7KH�IL[HG�IHH�LV�QRW�
DGMXVWDEOH�GXULQJ�WKH�OLIH�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��7KH�IL[HG�IHH�GROODU�DPRXQW�PXVW�EH�FOHDUO\�VWDWHG�LQ�
WKH�FRQWUDFW��


7KLV�PHWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW�LV�DSSURSULDWH�ZKHQ�WKH�H[WHQW��VFRSH��FRPSOH[LW\��FKDUDFWHU��RU�
GXUDWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�FDQQRW�EH�SUHFLVHO\�SUHGLFWHG��7KH�IL[HG�IHH�OLPLW�DSSOLHV�WR�WKH�WRWDO�GLUHFW�DQG�
LQGLUHFW�FRVWV��)L[HG�IHHV�LQ�H[FHVV�RI����SHUFHQW�RI�WKH�WRWDO�GLUHFW�ODERU�DQG�LQGLUHFW�FRVWV�RI�
WKH�FRQWUDFW�PD\�EH�MXVWLILHG�RQO\�ZKHQ�H[FHSWLRQDO�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�H[LVW��7KH�FRQWUDFW�VKDOO�
VSHFLI\�D�UHDVRQDEOH�PD[LPXP�OHQJWK�RI�FRQWUDFW�SHULRG�DQG�D�PD[LPXP�WRWDO�FRQWUDFW�GROODU�
DPRXQW��VHH�([KLELW����+��6DPSOH�&RVW�3URSRVDO�([DPSOH����DQG�([KLELW����5��$	(�6DPSOH�
&RQWUDFW�/DQJXDJH��$UWLFOH�9��2SWLRQ���LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU���7KH�FRQWUDFW�FRVW�SURSRVDO�PXVW�LGHQWLI\�
DOO�NH\�HPSOR\HHV�DQG�RU�FODVVLILFDWLRQV�WR�EH�ELOOHG��1HZ�NH\�HPSOR\HHV�DQG�RU�FODVVLILFDWLRQV�
PXVW�EH�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�EHIRUH�WKH\�LQFXU�ZRUN�RQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�RU�WKH�FRVWV�FDQ�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


224 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
�


�
� � � �


� � ��
� � � �


� � � � �
� �


� � � �
� �


� � � �
� � � � �


� �


�
� � �


�
� � �
� � � �


� �
� � � � � �


� � � �
� � ��


� � � �
� � � �


� � � �
� � � �


� � �
� � � �


� � �
� �


� � � � �


�
� � �


� � � �
�


�
� � �


� �
� �


� � �
� �


� �
�


,�


,�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


EH�TXHVWLRQHG�RU�GLVDOORZHG��/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�QRW�UHTXLUHG�WR�XSGDWH�WKH�([KLELW����&�
GDWDEDVH��)RU�PRUH�GHWDLOV�UHIHUHQFH�6HFWLRQ���������


&RVW�3HU�8QLW�RI�:RUN�
7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�SDLG�EDVHG�RQ�VSHFLILF�LWHP�RI�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG��7KH�LWHP�RI�ZRUN�PXVW�EH�
VLPLODU��UHSHWLWLRXV�DQG�PHDVXUDEOH��VXFK�DV�JHRWHFKQLFDO�LQYHVWLJDWLRQ�DQG�PDWHULDO�WHVWLQJ��
7KLV�PHWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW�LV�DSSURSULDWH�ZKHQ�WKH�FRVW�SHU�XQLW�RI�ZRUN�FDQ�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�ZLWK�
UHDVRQDEOH�DFFXUDF\�LQ�DGYDQFH��EXW�WKH�H[WHQW�RU�TXDQWLW\�RI�WKH�ZRUN�LV�LQGHILQLWH��&RQWUDFW�
SD\PHQW�SURYLVLRQV�PXVW�VSHFLI\�ZKDW�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�SULFH�WR�EH�SDLG�IRU�HDFK�LWHP��$Q\�LWHP�
RI�ZRUN�QRW�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�FRVW�SURSRVDO�LV�QRW�HOLJLEOH�IRU�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��1HZ�LWHPV�
RI�ZRUN��WKRVH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�RULJLQDO�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�RQO\��PXVW�EH�DPHQGHG�LQWR�WKH�FRQWUDFW�EHIRUH�
ZRUN�LV�SHUIRUPHG��7KH�FRQWUDFW�VKDOO�DOVR�VSHFLI\�D�UHDVRQDEOH�PD[LPXP�OHQJWK�RI�FRQWUDFW�
SHULRG�DQG�D�PD[LPXP�WRWDO�FRQWUDFW�GROODU�DPRXQW��VHH�([KLELW����+��([DPSOH����DQG�([KLELW�
���5��$UWLFOH�9�2SWLRQ�����


6SHFLILHG�5DWHV�RI�&RPSHQVDWLRQ�
7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�SDLG�DW�DQ�DJUHHG�DQG�VXSSRUWHG�VSHFLILF�IL[HG�KRXUO\��GDLO\��ZHHNO\�RU�PRQWKO\�
UDWH��IRU�HDFK�FODVV�RI�HPSOR\HH�HQJDJHG�GLUHFWO\�LQ�WKH�ZRUN��6XFK�UDWHV�RI�SD\�LQFOXGH�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW¶V�HVWLPDWHG�FRVWV�DQG�QHW�IHH��SURILW���)HGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV�UHTXLUH�WKDW�SURILW�EH�
VHSDUDWHO\�QHJRWLDWHG�IURP�FRQWUDFW�FRVWV��7KH�VSHFLILF�UDWHV�RI�FRPSHQVDWLRQ��H[FHSW�IRU�DQ�
LQGLYLGXDO�DFWLQJ�DV�D�VROH�SURSULHWRU��DUH�WR�LQFOXGH�DQ�KRXUO\�EUHDNGRZQ��GLUHFW�VDODU\�FRVWV��
IULQJH�EHQHILWV��LQGLUHFW�FRVWV��DQG�QHW�IHH��2WKHU�GLUHFW�FRVWV�PD\�EH�LQFOXGHG��VXFK�DV�WUDYHO�
DQG�HTXLSPHQW�UHQWDOV��LI�QRW�DOUHDG\�FDSWXUHG�LQ�WKH�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWH��2WKHU�GLUHFW�FRVWV�
UHJDUGOHVV�RI�DPRXQW�DUH�WR�EH�OLVWHG�RQ�WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDO��


7KLV�PHWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW�VKRXOG�RQO\�EH�XVHG�ZKHQ�LW�LV�QRW�SRVVLEOH�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�SURFXUHPHQW�
WR�HVWLPDWH�WKH�H[WHQW�RU�WKH�GXUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ZRUN��RU�WR�HVWLPDWH�FRVWV�ZLWK�DQ\�UHDVRQDEOH�
GHJUHH�RI�DFFXUDF\��7KLV�PHWKRG�VKRXOG�QRW�EH�XVHG�IRU�SURMHFW�VSHFLILF�FRQWUDFWV�DQG�LV�
UHFRPPHQGHG�IRU�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV�IRU�VSHFLDOL]HG�RU�VXSSRUW�W\SH�VHUYLFHV��VXFK�DV�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�LQVSHFWLRQ��ZKHUH�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�QRW�LQ�GLUHFW�FRQWURO�RI�WKH�
QXPEHU�RI�KRXUV�ZRUNHG��DQG�LW�DOVR�UHTXLUHV�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�PRQLWRULQJ�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�
OHYHO�RI�HIIRUW�DQG�WKH�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�RI�HPSOR\HHV�XVHG�WR�SHUIRUP�WKH�FRQWUDFWHG�ZRUN��7KH�
FRQWUDFW�VKDOO�DOVR�VSHFLI\�D�UHDVRQDEOH�PD[LPXP�OHQJWK�RI�FRQWUDFW�SHULRG�DQG�D�PD[LPXP�
WRWDO�FRQWUDFW�GROODU�DPRXQW��VHH�([KLELW����+��([DPSOH����DQG�([KLELW����5��$UWLFOH�9�2SWLRQ�����


/XPS�6XP�
7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�SHUIRUPV�WKH�VHUYLFHV�VWDWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�IRU�DQ�DJUHHG�DPRXQW�DV�
FRPSHQVDWLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�D�QHW�IHH�RU�SURILW��7KLV�PHWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW�LV�DSSURSULDWH�RQO\�LI�WKH�
H[WHQW��VFRSH��FRPSOH[LW\��FKDUDFWHU��GXUDWLRQ��DQG�ULVN�RI�WKH�ZRUN�KDYH�EHHQ�VXIILFLHQWO\�
GHILQHG�WR�SHUPLW�IDLU�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�WR�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�DQG�HYDOXDWHG�E\�DOO�SDUWLHV�GXULQJ�
QHJRWLDWLRQV��VHH�([KLELW����+��6DPSOH�&RVW�3URSRVDO��([DPSOH����DQG�([KLELW����5��$	(�
6DPSOH�&RQWUDFW�/DQJXDJH��$UWLFOH�9��2SWLRQ�����1RUPDOO\��D�OXPS�VXP�FRQWUDFW�ZLOO�EH�SDLG�LQ�
IXOO�DW�HQG�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�ZKHQ�FRPSOHWHG��+RZHYHU��D�OXPS�VXP�FRQWUDFW�FDQ�EH�QHJRWLDWHG�
ZLWK�SURJUHVV�SD\PHQW�LI�IHDVLEOH��7KH�SURJUHVV�SD\PHQW�VKDOO�EH�EDVHG�RQ�SHUFHQW�RI�ZRUN�
FRPSOHWH�RU�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�FOHDUO\�GHILQHG�PLOHVWRQHV��7KH�FRQWUDFW�FRVW�SURSRVDO�VKDOO�
GRFXPHQW�WKH�DJUHHG�XSRQ�SURJUHVV�SD\PHQW�DQG�LQFOXGH�WKH�QHFHVVDU\�PLOHVWRQHV�FRVWV��RU�
WKH�SHUFHQW�ZRUN�FRPSOHWH�VFKHGXOH��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


225 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �
�


� � �


� � �


� � �


�
� � �


�
�
� � � � �


�


� � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
��


�
� � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � �


� � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �


�


� � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


�


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


&KDQJHV�WR�([KLELW����+�UHTXLULQJ�UHVXEPLWWDO�WR�,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�$XGLWV�DQG�,QYHVWLJDWLRQV�
IRU�UHYLHZ��


x� &RQVXOWDQW�QDPH�FKDQJH�


x� 1HZ�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�VXEFRQVXOWDQW�


x� &KDQJH�LQ�,&5�UDWH�


6LQFH�WKHVH�FKDQJHV�UHTXLUH�DQ�DPHQGPHQW��ORFDO�DJHQF\�LV�WR�XSGDWH�WKH�([KLELW����&�
GDWDEDVH��


$�ILUP�IL[HG�SULFH�PHWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW�LV�QRW�WKH�VDPH�DV�OXPS�VXP��$�ILUP�IL[HG�SULFH�FRQWUDFW�
VKDOO�QRW�EH�DPHQGHG��


�������$	(�&2168/7$17�$8',7�$1'�5(9,(:�352&(66�
7KLV�VHFWLRQ�RXWOLQHV�WKH�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�SURFHVV�IRU�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�WKDW�DW�DQ\�WLPH� XVH�
VWDWH�RU�IHGHUDO�IXQGV��$OO�SURSRVHG�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWV�DUH� VXEMHFW�WR�
DXGLW�RU�UHYLHZ�E\�&DOWUDQV¶�,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�$XGLWV�DQG�
,QYHVWLJDWLRQV� �,2$,���RWKHU�VWDWH�DXGLW�RUJDQL]DWLRQV��RU�WKH�IHGHUDO�JRYHUQPHQW��1RW�DOO�
SURSRVHG� FRQWUDFWV�ZLOO�EH�DXGLWHG�RU�UHYLHZHG��UDWKHU��WKH\�ZLOO�EH�VHOHFWHG�RQ�D�ULVN�EDVHG�
DSSURDFK��


$SSOLFDEOH�6WDQGDUGV�
6WDWH�DQG�IHGHUDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�OLVWHG�EHORZ��DQG�VSHFLILF�FRQWUDFW�UHTXLUHPHQWV��VHUYH� DV�
WKH�VWDQGDUGV�IRU�DXGLWV�DQG�UHYLHZV�SHUIRUPHG��


/RFDO�DJHQFLHV��FRQVXOWDQWV�� DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�FRPSO\LQJ�ZLWK�VWDWH��
IHGHUDO��DQG�VSHFLILF� FRQWUDFW�UHTXLUHPHQWV��/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�GHWHUPLQLQJ�
WKH�HOLJLELOLW\� RI�FRVWV�WR�EH�UHLPEXUVHG�WR�FRQVXOWDQWV��


$SSOLFDEOH�VWDQGDUGV�LQFOXGH��EXW�DUH�QRW� OLPLWHG�WR��


x� &DOWUDQV�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO��/$30���
x� 6WDWH�DQG�)HGHUDO�DJUHHPHQWV�EHWZHHQ�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�DQG�&DOWUDQV���L�H�� 0DVWHU�


$JUHHPHQWV���


x� 3URMHFW�3URJUDP�6XSSOHPHQWDO�$JUHHPHQWV��
x� ���8QLWHG�6WDWHV�&RGH��8�6�&����6HFWLRQ�����±�/HWWLQJ�RI�&RQWUDFWV��
x� ���8�6�&���&KDSWHU�����WKH�%URRNV�$FW��
x� ���&)5��&KDSWHU����3DUW������ 3URFXUHPHQW��0DQDJHPHQW��DQG�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�


(QJLQHHULQJ�DQG�'HVLJQ�5HODWHG�6HUYLFHV��
x� ���&)5��&KDSWHU��� )HGHUDO�+LJKZD\�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�


7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ��


x� ���&)5��)HGHUDO�$FTXLVLWLRQ�5HJXODWLRQ��)$5���&KDSWHU����3DUW���� &RQWUDFW�&RVW�
3ULQFLSOHV�DQG�3URFHGXUHV��


x� ���&)5��&KDSWHU����±�&RVW�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��&$6���6XESDUW�������
x� ��&)5��3DUW�����±�8QLIRUP�$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�5HTXLUHPHQWV��&RVW�3ULQFLSOHV��DQG� $XGLW�


5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�)HGHUDO�$ZDUGV��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


226 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � �


� � � � � � �
� � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �


� �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � �
�


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � ��
�


�
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � ��


� � � � � � � � �
� � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


x� 8QLWHG�6WDWHV�*RYHUQPHQW�$FFRXQWDELOLW\�2IILFH��*RYHUQPHQW�$XGLWLQJ� 6WDQGDUGV��
*HQHUDOO\�$FFHSWHG�*RYHUQPHQW�$XGLWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��*$*$6���


x� &DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�VHFWLRQV������������DQG�
x� 3URSRVHG�FRQWUDFW�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV��


6HH�6HFWLRQ��������5HIHUHQFHV�RI�WKLV�&KDSWHU�IRU�OLQNV�WR�DERYH�UHIHUHQFHG�VWDQGDUGV��


$XGLW�*XLGDQFH�$YDLODEOH�
7KH�$PHULFDQ�$VVRFLDWLRQ�RI�6WDWH�+LJKZD\�DQG�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�2IILFLDOV��8QLIRUP�$XGLW�	�
$FFRXQWLQJ� *XLGH��$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH���ZKLFK�LV�UHIHUUHG�WR�IUHTXHQWO\�LQ�WKLV�VHFWLRQ��LV�D�
YDOXDEOH�WRRO�WR�JXLGH�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV��FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�&HUWLILHG�3XEOLF�$FFRXQWDQWV� �&3$��
WKURXJK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�HVWDEOLVKLQJ��DQG�DXGLWV�RI�)$5�FRPSOLDQW� ,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWHV�
�,&5��� 7KH�$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH�LV�XVHG�H[WHQVLYHO\�DV�DQ�LQGXVWU\� JXLGH�LQ�WKH�DXGLW�DQG�
UHYLHZ�SURFHVV��


/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�PD\�VHHN�DFFRXQWLQJ�DVVLVWDQFH�IURP�LQWHUQDO�DXGLW�VWDII�DQG�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�
&3$�IRU�FRPSOLDQFH��7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�PD\�VHHN�SURIHVVLRQDO�JXLGDQFH�LQ�VHOHFWLQJ�LWV�
LQGHSHQGHQW�&3$��6HH�DOVR�WKH�$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH��&K����&��6HOHFWLRQ�RI�&3$�)LUP�DV�
2YHUKHDG�$XGLWRU�IRU� JXLGDQFH�LQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV��7UDLQLQJ�LV�DOVR�RIIHUHG�E\�)+:$¶V�
1DWLRQDO� +LJKZD\�,QVWLWXWH��VHH�KWWS���ZZZ�QKL�IKZD�GRW�JRY�GHIDXOW�DVS[���&RXUVHV�RIIHUHG�
LQFOXGH��


x� 8VLQJ�WKH�$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH�IRU�WKH�3URFXUHPHQW�DQG�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�$	(�
&RQWUDFWV��)+:$�1+,���������


x� 8VLQJ�WKH�$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH�IRU�WKH�'HYHORSPHQW�RI�$	(�&RQVXOWDQW� ,QGLUHFW�&RVW�
5DWHV��)+:$� 1+,���������


x� 8VLQJ�WKH�$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH�IRU�WKH�$XGLWLQJ�DQG�2YHUVLJKW�RI�$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�
,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWHV��)+:$�1+,���������


)RU�WUDLQLQJ�DQG�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�SURYLGHG�E\�&DOWUDQV�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH��YLVLW�&DOWUDQV�
/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�%ORJ�DW�KWWS���ZZZ�ORFDODVVLVWDQFHEORJ�FRP���)RU�)+:$¶V�4	$�IRU�,&5V�
DQG�DXGLWV��DQG�$	(�UHODWHG�VHUYLFHV��YLVLW�)+:$�DW�
KWWS���ZZZ�IKZD�GRW�JRY�SURJUDPDGPLQ����TD�FIP��


$OORZDEOH�&RVWV�
���86&������E�����%��VWDWHV�WKDW�DQ\�$	(�FRQWUDFW�RU�VXEFRQWUDFW�DZDUGHG��ZKHWKHU� IXQGHG�
LQ�ZKROH�RU�LQ�SDUW�ZLWK�)HGHUDO�DLG�KLJKZD\�IXQGV�LQ�IXUWKHUDQFH�RI�KLJKZD\�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�
SURMHFWV��VKDOO�EH�SHUIRUPHG�DQG�DXGLWHG�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO� FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��


/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�SHUIRUP�D�FRVW�DQDO\VLV�WR�HQVXUH�DOO�FRVWV�DUH�DOORZDEOH�DQG�
LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�UHWDLQ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�QHJRWLDWLRQ�
DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�UHVRXUFHV��+RXUO\�UDWH�V��IRU�HDFK�NH\� SHUVRQQHO�DQG�RU�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�RI�
HPSOR\HH�V��SURSRVHG�LQ�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�PXVW�EH� UHDVRQDEOH�IRU�WKH�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG�DQG�
DFWXDO��DOORZDEOH��DQG�DOORFDEOH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��&RVWV�VKDOO�
EH�DOORZDEOH�RQO\�LI�WKH�FRVW�LV�LQFXUUHG� DQG�FRVW�HVWLPDWHV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�QHJRWLDWHG�SULFHV�DUH�
DOORZDEOH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH� IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�UHJXODWLRQV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV��DQG�FRQWUDFW�
SURYLVLRQV��([DPSOHV�RI�&RVW�$QDO\VLV�:RUNVKHHWV�DUH�SURYLGHG�DW�([KLELW����+��WKURXJK����


/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�DSSO\�&DOWUDQV�DFFHSWHG�FRQVXOWDQW�RU� VXEFRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5V��
WR�FRQWUDFWV��$Q�,&5�LV� YDOLG�IRU�WKH�RQH�\HDU�DSSOLFDEOH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SHULRG�DFFHSWHG�RU�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


227 of 611



http://sp.audit.transportation.org/Documents/UAAG-3%20FINAL.pdf

http://sp.audit.transportation.org/Documents/UAAG-3%20FINAL.pdf

http://sp.audit.transportation.org/Documents/UAAG-3%20FINAL.pdf

http://www.nhi.fhwa.dot.gov/default.aspx

http://www.localassistanceblog.com/

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/172qa.cfm





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �  


� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � �


� � �
� �


�


�


�
� � �


� �


� �
� ��


� �
�
� � � � � � �


� ��


� � � � � �


� � � � � � � � �
� �


� � � � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


DXGLWHG�E\�&DOWUDQV��&RQVXOWDQWV�VKDOO�XSGDWH��RQ�DQ� DQQXDO�EDVLV��,&5V�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�DQQXDO�DFFRXQWLQJ�SHULRG�DQG�LQ� FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�FRVW�
SULQFLSOHV�� )RU�IXUWKHU�JXLGDQFH��UHIHU�WR����&)5� 3DUW��������E������,I�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�
VXEMHFW�WR�&RVW�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��&$6���WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�XVH�WKH�DSSOLFDEOH� ,&5�IRU�
WKH�FRQWUDFW��


$�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�DFFHSWHG�,&5�IRU�LWV�RQH�\HDU�DSSOLFDEOH�DFFRXQWLQJ�SHULRG�VKDOO�EH� DSSOLHG�WR�
FRQWUDFWV��KRZHYHU��RQFH�DQ�,&5�LV�HVWDEOLVKHG�IRU�D�FRQWUDFW��LW�PD\�EH�H[WHQGHG�EH\RQG�
WKH�RQH�\HDU�DSSOLFDEOH�SHULRG��WKURXJK�WKH�GXUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�VSHFLILF� FRQWUDFW��SURYLGHG�DOO�
FRQFHUQHG�SDUWLHV�DJUHH��$JUHHPHQW�WR�WKH�H[WHQVLRQ�RI�WKH� RQH�\HDU�DSSOLFDEOH�SHULRG�VKDOO�
QRW�EH�D�FRQGLWLRQ�RU�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�WR�EH�FRQVLGHUHG� IRU�WKH�ZRUN�RU�FRQWUDFW�DZDUG�� 7KH�
FRQWUDFW�PXVW�FOHDUO\�VSHFLI\�WKH�,&5�SHULRG�LI�LW� LV�EH\RQG�WKH�RQH�\HDU�DSSOLFDEOH�SHULRG��


&RQVXOWDQWV�VKDOO�DFFRXQW�IRU�FRVWV�DSSURSULDWHO\�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�UHFRUGV��LQFOXGLQJ� VXSSRUWLQJ�
GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��DGHTXDWH�WR�GHPRQVWUDWH�WKDW�FRVWV�FODLPHG�KDYH�EHHQ� LQFXUUHG��DQG�DUH�
DOORZDEOH��UHDVRQDEOH��DQG�DOORFDEOH�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFW��DQG�FRPSO\�ZLWK�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��


,2$,�DQG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV�RI�WKH�)HGHUDO�*RYHUQPHQW�KDYH�WKH�ULJKW�WR�FRQGXFW�DQ�DXGLW�RI�DOO�
FRQWUDFW�FRVWV��,I�WKH�FRVWV�DUH�VXEVHTXHQWO\�GHWHUPLQHG�WR�EH�XQDOORZDEOH��WKHVH�FRVWV�DUH�
VXEMHFW�WR�UHSD\PHQW��)RU�IXUWKHU�JXLGDQFH��UHIHU�WR����&)5�3DUW�����DQG����&)5�3DUW� ����


*HQHUDOO\��ZKHQHYHU�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV��FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�RU�FRQWUDFWRUV�DUH�XQDEOH�WR�SURYLGH�
UHTXHVWHG�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��LW�VKDOO�EH�YLHZHG�WKDW�WKH�VHUYLFHV�ZHUH� HLWKHU�QRW�SHUIRUPHG�RU�
WKH�FRVWV�QRW�SURSHUO\�UHFRUGHG��5HWHQWLRQ�RI�DOO�GRFXPHQWV�LV�UHTXLUHG�DV�LW�UHGXFHV�WKH�
SRVVLELOLW\�RI�DXGLW�ILQGLQJV�DQG�GLVDOORZHG�FRVWV��)RU�PRUH�UHIHUHQFHV��UHIHU�WR�$SSOLFDEOH�
6WDQGDUGV�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU��


$SSURYDO�RU�$FFHSWDQFH�RI�,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWHV�
&RJQL]DQW�/HWWHUV�RI�$SSURYDO�
$�FRJQL]DQW�DSSURYHG�,&5�KDV�EHHQ�DXGLWHG�E\�D�&RJQL]DQW�DJHQF\��D�6WDWH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
DJHQF\�RI�WKH�6WDWH�ZKHUH�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW
V�DFFRXQWLQJ�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�UHFRUGV�DUH�ORFDWHG�RU�D�
6WDWH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�DJHQF\�WR�ZKLFK�FRJQL]DQFH�IRU�WKH�SDUWLFXODU�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWH�V��RI�D�
FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�KDV�EHHQ�GHOHJDWHG�RU�WUDQVIHUUHG�WR�LQ�ZULWLQJ�E\�WKH�6WDWH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
DJHQF\�ZKHUH�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�DFFRXQWLQJ�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�UHFRUGV�DUH�ORFDWHG��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�
ZLWK�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�JRYHUQPHQW�DXGLWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�WR�WHVW�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��SHU����&)5�SDUW�����DQG�WKH�FRJQL]DQW�DJHQF\�KDV�
HLWKHU����LVVXHG�DQ�DXGLW�UHSRUW�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW
V�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWH�RU����FRQGXFWHG�D�UHYLHZ�RI�
DQ�DXGLW�UHSRUW�DQG�UHODWHG�ZRUNSDSHUV�SUHSDUHG�E\�D�FHUWLILHG�SXEOLF�DFFRXQWDQW�DQG�LVVXHG�D�
OHWWHU�RI�FRQFXUUHQFH�ZLWK�WKH�DXGLWHG�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWH�V���7KH�FRJQL]DQW�DJHQF\�DSSURYHV�WKH�
,&5�DQG�D�FRJQL]DQW�DSSURYDO�OHWWHU�LV�LVVXHG��


&DOWUDQV�$FFHSWDQFH�RI�,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWH�
:KHQ�WKH�,&5V�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�HVWDEOLVKHG�E\�D�FRJQL]DQW�DJHQF\��&DOWUDQV�VKDOO�SHUIRUP�DQ�
DXGLW�RU�UHYLHZ�RI�D�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5�V��WR�SURYLGH�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�RI�
FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��


$Q�DXGLW�RU�UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�,&5�PD\�FRQVLVW�RI�RQH�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�IROORZLQJ��


x� 3HUIRUP�D�UHYLHZ�WR�GHWHUPLQH�LI�WKH�,&5�ZDV�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK����&)5������
DQG����&)5��&KDSWHU����3DUW�����


x� 3HUIRUP�DQ�DXGLW�WR�GHWHUPLQH�LI�WKH�,&5�ZDV�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK����&)5������


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


228 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � �
� � � �


� ��


� � � � � �
� � � � �


� � �� �
� � � � �


� � � � � � � �
� �


� � � � �
�  � � �


� � � � � �
� � � � � �


� �������


� � � � � � �
� � �


� � � � �
� � � � �


� � � � �
�


� �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �
�


� � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �


� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


DQG����&)5��&KDSWHU����3DUW�����DQG�LVVXH�DQ�DXGLW�UHSRUW��
x� 5HYLHZ�DQG�DFFHSW�DQ�,&5�DXGLW�UHSRUW�DQG�UHODWHG�ZRUNSDSHUV�SUHSDUHG�E\�D�&3$�RU�


DQRWKHU�6WDWH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�$JHQF\��


7KH�RXWFRPH�RI�DQ�DXGLW�RU�UHYLHZ�LV�IRU�&DOWUDQV�WR�DSSURYH�RU�DFFHSW�WKH�,&5�VR�WKDW�LW�FDQ�EH�
UHOLHG�XSRQ�IRU�IXWXUH�FRQWUDFWV�ZLWK�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�IRU�D�JLYHQ�RQH�\HDU�DFFRXQWLQJ�SHULRG�DQG�
IRU�UHOLDQFH�E\�RWKHU�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQFLHV�XVLQJ�WKH�VDPH�FRQVXOWDQW�� /RFDO�DJHQFLHV�VKDOO�
HQVXUH�WKDW�RQO\�DSSURYHG�RU�DFFHSWHG�,&5V�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV�IRU�WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�RQH�\HDU�
DFFRXQWLQJ�SHULRG�EH�DSSOLHG�WR�FRQWUDFWV��LI�UDWHV�DUH�QRW�XQGHU�GLVSXWH��/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�PD\�
FKHFN�,2$,¶V�ZHEVLWH�IRU�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�DSSURYHG�RU�DFFHSWHG�,&5V��$OO�DSSURYHG�RU�DFFHSWHG�
,&5V�DUH�LVVXHG�DQ�$FFHSWDQFH�,GHQWLILFDWLRQ��,'��QXPEHU�E\�,2$,�WKDW�LV�SRVWHG�WR�,2$,¶V�
ZHEVLWH�DW�KWWSV���LJ�GRW�FD�JRY�DXGLWV���7KLV�,'�QXPEHU�VKRXOG�EH�UHIHUHQFHG�RQ�DOO�IXWXUH�
FRQWUDFWV�WKDW�XVH�WKH�VDPH�ILVFDO�\HDU�,&5��,&5�FDQ�EH�IL[HG�IRU�WKH�OLIH�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LQ�SULRU�
ZULWWHQ�GRFXPHQW�RU�DQQXDOO\�XSGDWHG��2QFH�LW�KDV�EHHQ�XSGDWHG��LW�PXVW�EH�DQQXDOO\�XSGDWHG�
DQG�WKH�PRVW�FXUUHQW�ILVFDO�\HDU�RI�,&5�PXVW�EH�XVHG��


,&5V�WKDW�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�DFFHSWHG�E\�&DOWUDQV�ZLOO�QRW�EH�HOLJLEOH�IRU�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�SD\PHQW��$Q�
,&5�DSSURYHG�E\�D�FRJQL]DQW�DJHQF\�PD\�EH�XVHG�DFURVV�VWDWHV�IRU�WKH�RQH�\HDU�DSSOLFDEOH�
DFFRXQWLQJ�SHULRG��EXW�DQ�,&5�DFFHSWHG�E\�&DOWUDQV�PD\�RQO\�EH�DSSOLHG�WR�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�ZLWK�
&DOWUDQV�RU�ORFDO�DJHQF\�FRQWUDFWV�XVLQJ�SDVV�WKURXJK�&DOWUDQV�IXQGLQJ��/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�LQFOXGH�
&LWLHV��&RXQWLHV��0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ��6SHFLDO�'LVWULFWV��DQG�5HJLRQDO�
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�3ODQQLQJ�$JHQFLHV��


)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�3HUIRUPHG�3ULRU�WR�&RQWUDFW�([HFXWLRQ�
$OO�FRQVXOWDQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�SULPH�DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV��RQ�D�SURSRVHG�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�D� GROODU�
YDOXH�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�����.�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�DQ�,&5�ILQDQFLDO�UHYLHZ�E\�,2$,��7KH�ILQDQFLDO�
GRFXPHQWV�UHTXLUHG�DUH�GHWDLOHG�LQ�([KLELW����$��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�)LQDQFLDO�'RFXPHQW�5HYLHZ�
5HTXHVW�/HWWHU�DQG�([KLELW����$�&KHFNOLVW��,2$,�ZLOO�UHYLHZ�WKH�,&5�ILQDQFLDO�GRFXPHQWV�WR�
HLWKHU�DFFHSW�RU�DGMXVW�WKH�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWH�SULRU�WR�FRQWUDFW�H[HFXWLRQ�XVLQJ�D�ULVN�EDVHG�
DSSURDFK�DV�GLFWDWHG�E\�IDFWRUV�WKDW�LQFOXGH�EXW�DUH�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��


x� +LVWRU\�RI�VDWLVIDFWRU\�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�SURIHVVLRQDO�UHSXWDWLRQ�RI�FRQVXOWDQW��
x� 3ULRU�)$5�FRPSOLDQW�KLVWRU\�DQG�DXGLW�IUHTXHQF\��
x� ([SHULHQFH�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLWK�)$+3�FRQWUDFWV��
x� *HQHUDO�UHVSRQVLYHQHVV�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLW\��
x� 7KH�DSSUR[LPDWH�FRQWUDFW�YROXPH�DQG�GROODU�DPRXQW�RI�DOO�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�DZDUGHG�WR�


WKH�FRQVXOWDQW� E\�&DOWUDQV�RU�D�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LQ�&DOLIRUQLD�ZLWKLQ�WKH�ODVW�WKUHH�
FDOHQGDU�\HDUV��


x� 7KH�QXPEHU�RI�VWDWHV�LQ�ZKLFK�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�GRHV�EXVLQHVV��
x� 7KH�W\SH�DQG�FRPSOH[LW\�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�DFFRXQWLQJ�V\VWHP��


x� 7KH�UHOHYDQW�SURIHVVLRQDO�H[SHULHQFH�RI�DQ\�&3$�SHUIRUPLQJ�DXGLWV�RI�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQWV�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWH��


x� $VVHVVPHQW�RI�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO��5HVSRQVHV�WR�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�
TXHVWLRQQDLUH��VHH�$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH��$SSHQGL[�%��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


229 of 611



https://ig.dot.ca.gov/audits





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � �
� �


� �
� � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � �
� � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � �


� � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � ��


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � ���


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �


� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � �


� � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � ��


�


� � � � � � � � � � � � � � ��
� � �
� � � �


� � � � � �
� � � �


� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


x� )RU�,&5V�WKDW�KDYH�EHHQ�DGMXVWHG�E\�,2$,��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�SURYLGH�D�UHYLVHG�FRVW�
SURSRVDO�WKDW�UHIOHFWV�WKH�DGMXVWHG�,&5��


/RFDO�$JHQFLHV¶�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�
/RFDO�$JHQFLHV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�REWDLQLQJ�DOO�UHTXLUHG�,&5�VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�
IURP�$	(�SULPH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�VXE�FRQVXOWDQWV�DV�RXWOLQHG�LQ�([KLELW����$��$	(�
&RQVXOWDQW�)LQDQFLDO�'RFXPHQW�5HYLHZ�5HTXHVW�DQG�WKH�([KLELW����$�&KHFNOLVW��/RFDO�
$JHQFLHV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�IRUZDUGLQJ�WKHVH�GRFXPHQWV�WR�,2$,�IRU�UHYLHZ��/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�
DUH�DOVR�UHTXLUHG�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�,2$,�KDV�FRSLHV�RI�WKH�([KLELW����.��&RQVXOWDQW�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�
RI�&RQWUDFW�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP�DQG�([KLELW����+��&RVW�3URSRVDO�IRU�DOO�
FRQVXOWDQWV��ERWK�SULPH�DQG�VXE�FRQVXOWDQWV��7KH�,&5�LQFOXGHG�LQ�([KLELW����+�PXVW�PDWFK�
WKH�,&5�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�([KLELW����.�DQG�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5�VFKHGXOH��7KH�SURSRVHG�,&5��
KRZHYHU��FDQ�EH�ORZHU�WKDQ�,&5�LQ�([KLELW����.�DQG�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5�VFKHGXOH�LI�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW�HOHFWV�WR�SURSRVH�D�ORZHU�,&5��)RU�FRQWUDFWV�VSDQQLQJ�PRUH�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU��ORFDO�
DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�HQVXULQJ�WKH�([KLELW����.�DQG�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�DUH�XSGDWHG�DQQXDOO\�
XQOHVV�DOO�FRQFHUQHG�SDUWLHV�DJUHH�WR�IL[�WKH�,&5�IRU�WKH�WHUP�RI�FRQWUDFW��DQG�WKLV�LV�FOHDUO\�
VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH� FRQWUDFW��,&5�XSGDWHV�DUH�QRW�UHTXLUHG�WR�,2$,�LI�WKH�,&5�LV�IL[HG�IRU�WKH�OLIH�
RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��,&5¶V�DUH�RQO\�UHYLHZHG�IRU�FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�DUH�EHLQJ�DZDUGHG�D�FRQWUDFW��
QRW�FRQVXOWDQWV�RQ�D�VKRUWOLVW�RU�SUHTXDOLILHG�OLVW��


7KH�([KLELW����+��&RVW�3URSRVDO�LQFOXGHV�FRQWUDFW�FRVWV��GLUHFW�VDODU\�RU�ZDJH�UDWHV�� IL[HG�
IHHV��RWKHU�GLUHFW�FRVWV��LQGLUHFW�FRVWV��WRWDO�FRVWV��DQG�FHUWLILFDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�FRVWV�� /RFDO�
DJHQFLHV�PXVW�SHUIRUP�DQG�UHWDLQ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�UHVRXUFHV�XVHG� WR�VXSSRUW�
WKDW�D�FRVW�DQDO\VLV�KDV�EHHQ�SHUIRUPHG�WR�HVWDEOLVK�WKDW�FRVWV�DQG�HOHPHQWV�ZHUH�
GHWHUPLQHG�WR�EH�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��


$OO�FRQWUDFW�VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�PXVW�EH�UHWDLQHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LQ�SURMHFW�ILOHV�IRU�
WKH�UHTXLUHG� UHWHQWLRQ�SHULRG��8QVXSSRUWHG�FRVWV�PD\�EH�GLVDOORZHG�DQG�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�
UHWXUQHG�WR�&DOWUDQV�� +DYLQJ�SURSHU�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�SROLF\�DQG�SURFHGXUHV��WUDLQHG�VWDII�DQG�
RUJDQL]HG�SURMHFW�ILOHV�DUH�HVVHQWLDO�IRU�GHPRQVWUDWLQJ�WKDW�FRVWV�FODLPHG�DQG�UHLPEXUVHG�
KDYH�EHHQ�LQFXUUHG��DUH�HOLJLEOH��UHDVRQDEOH��DOORZDEOH��DQG�DOORFDEOH�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFW�DQG�
FRPSO\�ZLWK�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��


&RQWUDFWV�EHORZ����������DUH�QRW�VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�&DOWUDQV�)LQDQFLDO�'RFXPHQW�5HYLHZ�EXW�
ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�HVWDEOLVK�WKDW�DOO�FRVWV�DUH�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�FRVW�
SULQFLSOHV�����&)5��&KDSWHU����3DUW�����DQG�RWKHU�DSSOLFDEOH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DUH�PHW��$OO�
GRFXPHQWV�OLVWHG�DERYH�DQG�FRVW�DQDO\VLV�GRFXPHQWV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�UHWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�
SURMHFW�ILOHV�WR�GHPRQVWUDWH�FRPSOLDQFH��


,QVWUXFWLRQV�DUH�SURYLGHG�LQ�WKH�([KLELW����$�RQ�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�VXEPLWWLQJ�D�FRPSOHWH�
)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�SDFNHW��)LQDQFLDO�SDFNHWV�FDQ�EH�H�PDLOHG�WR��
FRQIRUPDQFH�UHYLHZ#GRW�FD�JRY��


$OWHUQDWLYHO\��LI�\RX�GR�QRW�KDYH�,QWHUQHW�DFFHVV��\RX�FDQ�PDLO�)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�SDFNHWV� WR��
'HSDUWPHQW�RI�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�$XGLWV�DQG�,QYHVWLJDWLRQV�
06���$WWHQWLRQ��([WHUQDO�$XGLW�0DQDJHU�
3�2��%R[��������
6DFUDPHQWR��&$������������


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


230 of 611



mailto:conformance.review@dot.ca.gov





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �
� � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � �


� � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �
� � ��


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �


� � � � � ��


� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � ��


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �


� �


� � � � � � � � � � �
 �


� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � �
� �


� �
� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � �
� � �


� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


&RQVXOWDQWV¶�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV��%RWK�SULPH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV��
$	(�SULPH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV�LQ�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�XVLQJ�VWDWH�RU�
IHGHUDO�DLG�KLJKZD\�IXQGV�VKRXOG�UHIHU�WR�([KLELW����$�DQG�WKH����$�&KHFNOLVW�IRU�WKH�,&5�
ILQDQFLDO�GRFXPHQWV�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�VXEPLWWHG�WR�WKHLU�ORFDO�DJHQF\��&RQVXOWDQWV�PXVW�
FRPSOHWH�WKH�³$QQXDO�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�RI�,QGLUHFW�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP´�
�([KLELW����.��WKDW�DWWHVWV�WKDW�WKH�,&5�UDWH�SURSRVHG�LV�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�)$5�����&)5��
&KDSWHU����3DUW�����DQG�WKDW�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHP�LV�DGHTXDWH�WR�
DFFXPXODWH�DQG�VHJUHJDWH��UHDVRQDEOH��DOORZDEOH��DQG�DOORFDEOH�GLUHFW�DQG�LQGLUHFW�SURMHFW�
FRVWV��7KH�([KLELW����$�DQG����.�VKRXOG�EH�VXEPLWWHG�WR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�ZKR�ZLOO�IRUZDUG�D�
FRS\�WR�,2$,�DORQJ�ZLWK�DOO�RWKHU�UHODWHG�DQG�UHTXLUHG�ILQDQFLDO�GRFXPHQWV�� )RU�DOO�IXWXUH�
FRQWUDFWV�ZLWKLQ�D�VDPH�ILVFDO�\HDU��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�QHHGV�WR�RQO\�SURYLGH�D�FRS\�RI�WKH�([KLELW�
���.�WR�WKH�/RFDO�$JHQF\��


&RQVXOWDQWV�PXVW�IROORZ�DOO�WKH�IHGHUDO��VWDWH��DQG�FRQWUDFW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RXWOLQHG�DERYH�LQ�WKH�
6HFWLRQ�DERYH��³$SSOLFDEOH�6WDQGDUGV´��(DFK�FRQWUDFWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�HQVXUH�LWV�,&5�LV�QRW�
FRPELQHG�ZLWK�DQ\�SDUHQW�FRPSDQ\¶V�RU�VXEVLGLDU\¶V�,&5��


,&5� VFKHGXOHV�IRU�ERWK�SULPH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�VXE�FRQVXOWDQWV�VKRXOG�EH�SUHSDUHG�XVLQJ�WKH�
DFFUXDO�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�DQG�EH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��
)LJXUH������DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKLV�FKDSWHU�SURYLGHV�DQ�H[DPSOH�RI�D�6WDQGDUG�,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWH�
6FKHGXOH�WKDW�FRQVXOWDQWV�FDQ�XVH�ZKHQ�SUHSDULQJ�WKHLU�RZQ��


)RU�SXEOLF�ZRUNV�3UHYDLOLQJ�:DJH�FRQWUDFWV��DOO�ZRUNHUV�PXVW�EH�SDLG�WKH�SUHYDLOLQJ�ZDJH�
UDWH� GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�'LUHFWRU�RI�WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�,QGXVWULDO�5HODWLRQV�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�
W\SH�RI�ZRUN�DQG�ORFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�� KWWS���ZZZ�GLU�FD�JRY�3XEOLF�:RUNV�3UHYDLOLQJ�
:DJH�KWPO��


)RU�JXLGDQFH�VHH�&DOWUDQV¶�3UHYDLOLQJ�:DJH�,QWHUSUHWLYH�*XLGDQFH�DQG�ZHELQDU�RQ�,2$,¶V�
ZHEVLWH�KWWSV���LJ�GRW�FD�JRY�DXGLWV��


:KHQ�GHWHUPLQHG�QHFHVVDU\��,2$,�PD\�UHTXHVW�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ��VXFK�DV�D�ODERU�
GLVWULEXWLRQ�VXPPDU\�DQG�([HFXWLYH�&RPSHQVDWLRQ�$QDO\VLV��(&$���$�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ODERU�
GLVWULEXWLRQ�VXPPDU\�UHSRUW�LV�D�ODERU�H[SHQVH�UHSRUW�WKDW�GHWDLO�DOO� KRXUV�ZRUNHG��SDLG�DQG�
XQSDLG��IRU�D�ILVFDO�\HDU��ZDJHV�HDUQHG��DQG�EHQHILWV�DFFUXHG�E\�DOO�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�
HPSOR\HHV��7KH�ODERU�VXPPDU\�UHSRUW�VKRXOG�LQFOXGH�HPSOR\HH�QDPHV��VDODULHV��KRXUO\�
UDWHV��WRWDO�KRXUV�ZRUNHG�VHJUHJDWHG�E\�GLUHFW�KRXUV��LQGLUHFW�KRXUV��SDLG�WLPH�RII�KRXUV��DQG�
XQFRPSHQVDWHG�KRXUV�DQG�DPRXQWV��


$Q�(&$�LV�DQ�HYDOXDWLRQ�E\�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH� DOORZDELOLW\�DQG�UHDVRQDEOHQHVV�
RI�H[HFXWLYH�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV�DQG�WKH�$$6+72�$XGLW�
*XLGH�WKDW�FDQ�EH�EDVHG�RQ�HLWKHU�WKH�1DWLRQDO�&RPSHQVDWLRQ�0DWUL[�RU�LQGHSHQGHQW�
FRPSHQVDWLRQ� VXUYH\V��


,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�$XGLWV�DQG�,QYHVWLJDWLRQV¶�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�
$IWHU�,2$,�UHFHLYHV�D�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRPSOHWH�ILQDQFLDO�GRFXPHQW�SDFNHW��SHU�([KLELW����$�DQG�
([KLELW����$�&KHFNOLVW��IURP�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��,2$,�ZLOO�UHYLHZ�WKH�SURSRVHG�,&5�DQG�
VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWV�DQG�QRWLI\�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�LQ�ZULWLQJ�ZKHWKHU�WKH�SURSRVHG�,&5V�DUH�
DFFHSWHG�RU�DGMXVWHG��


&RQWUDFWV�ZLOO�EH�H[HFXWHG�DIWHU�,2$,�HLWKHU�DFFHSWV�RU�DGMXVWV�WKH�,&5�DQG�D�UHYLVHG�ILQDO�FRVW�
SURSRVDO��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��LV�UHFHLYHG��&RUUHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�ILQDO�FRVW� SURSRVDO��KRZHYHU��GRHV�127�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


231 of 611



http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html

http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Prevailing-Wage.html

https://ig.dot.ca.gov/audits





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � �


�
� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � ��


�
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� �
� � �


� �
� �


� ��


�
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �


� � � � � �
� � � � � � � �
� � � ��


� � � � � � � � �
� ��


� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �


�
� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � �


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


QHHG�WR�EH�FOHDUHG�WKURXJK�&DOWUDQV�,2$,�EHIRUH� H[HFXWLQJ�WKH�FRQWUDFW��$Q�HPDLO�
QRWLILFDWLRQ�IURP�,2$,�VHUYHV�DV�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�WR�VXSSRUW�DQ�DFFHSWHG�,&5��


$XGLWV�DQG�5HYLHZV�WR�EH�3HUIRUPHG�
$IWHU�FRQWUDFW�H[HFXWLRQ��D�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5�PD\�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�IXUWKHU�GHWDLOHG�UHYLHZ�RU�DXGLW�
E\�,2$,�EDVHG�RQ�FHUWDLQ�ULVN�IDFWRUV��&RVWV�WKDW�DUH�GHWHUPLQHG�WR�EH�XQDOORZDEOH�DV�D�UHVXOW�
RI�WKH�UHYLHZ�RU�DXGLW�ZLOO�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�UHSD\PHQW��


,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWH�$XGLWV�
'XULQJ�DQ�,&5�DXGLW��,2$,�RU�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�&3$�ZLOO�H[DPLQH�WKH� FRQVXOWDQW¶V�SURSRVHG�
,&5�IRU�D�RQH�\HDU�DFFRXQWLQJ�SHULRG�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�XQDOORZDEOH�FRVWV�KDYH�EHHQ�UHPRYHG�
IURP�WKH�LQGLUHFW� FRVWV��WKDW�DOORZDEOH�FRVWV�KDYH�EHHQ�FRUUHFWO\�PHDVXUHG�DQG�SURSHUO\�
FKDUJHG�DQG� DOORFDWHG��DQG�WKDW�WKH�,&5�KDV�EHHQ�GHYHORSHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�
FRVW�SULQFLSOHV��DV�VSHFLILHG�LQ����8�6�&��6HFWLRQ�����E�����%������&)5�3DUW������������&)5�
3DUW� ���DQG�RWKHU�)$5�DQG�6WDWH�UHTXLUHPHQWV��� $V�D�UHVXOW�RI�WKH�DXGLW��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�
ZLOO� ZRUN�ZLWK�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�DGMXVW�WKH�,&5�EDVHG�RQ�DXGLW�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV��


)RU�JXLGDQFH�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV�VHW�IRUWK�LQ�WKH�IHGHUDO�
UHJXODWLRQV��DQG�DFFHSWDEOH�,&5�VFKHGXOHV��UHIHU�WR�WKH�$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH��&KDSWHU����
DQG�)LJXUH������6WDQGDUG�,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWH�6FKHGXOH�LQ�WKLV�&KDSWHU��7KHUH�LV�DOVR�D�UHYLHZ�
SURJUDP�DW�$SSHQGL[�$�ZKLFK�VHUYHV�DV�D�JXLGH�IRU�&3$V�DQG�,2$,�ZKHQ�SHUIRUPLQJ�,&5�
DXGLWV�DQG�FDQ�DOVR�EH�XVHG�DV�D�UHVRXUFH�IRU�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZKHQ�SUHSDULQJ�IRU�DQ�,&5�DXGLW��


&3$�:RUNSDSHU�5HYLHZV�
'XULQJ�D�ZRUNSDSHU�UHYLHZ�RI�D�&3$�DXGLW�RI�DQ�,&5��,2$,�ZLOO�UHYLHZ�WKH�&3$¶V�DXGLW�
ZRUNSDSHUV�WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�WR�LVVXH�D�&RJQL]DQW�/HWWHU�RI�$SSURYDO�IRU�WKH�,&5��7KH�
&3$�:RUNSDSHU�5HYLHZ�GHWHUPLQHV�ZKHWKHU���D��WKH�&3$¶V�DXGLW�RI�WKH�,&5�ZDV�FRQGXFWHG�
LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�*HQHUDOO\�$FFHSWHG�*RYHUQPHQW�$XGLWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��*$*$6����E��WKH�
&3$�DGHTXDWHO\�FRQVLGHUHG�WKH�DXGLWHH¶V�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV�DQG�
UHODWHG�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�ODZV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV��


&KDSWHU����RI�WKH�$$6+72�$XGLW�*XLGH�SURYLGHV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�WKH�&3$�RQ�WKH�UHTXLUHG�
DXGLW�GLVFORVXUHV��


,03257$17�127(�)25�&3$V��&RQWUDFWV�UHFHLYLQJ�VWDWH�RU�IHGHUDO�IXQGV�DUH�KLJKO\�
VFUXWLQL]HG��0DWHULDOLW\�OHYHOV�WHQG�WR�EH�ORZHU�DQG�PRUH�WHVWLQJ�LV�UHTXLUHG��*$*$6�
SURYLGHV�WKDW�DXGLWRUV�PD\�ILQG�LW�DSSURSULDWH�WR�XVH�ORZHU�PDWHULDOLW\�OHYHOV�DV�FRPSDUHG�
ZLWK�WKH�PDWHULDOLW\�OHYHOV�XVHG�LQ�QRQ�*$*$6�DXGLWV�EHFDXVH�RI�WKH�SXEOLF�DFFRXQWDELOLW\�RI�
JRYHUQPHQW�HQWLWLHV�DQG�HQWLWLHV�UHFHLYLQJ�JRYHUQPHQW�IXQGLQJ��YDULRXV�OHJDO�DQG�UHJXODWRU\�
UHTXLUHPHQWV��DQG�WKH�YLVLELOLW\�DQG�VHQVLWLYLW\�RI�JRYHUQPHQW�SURJUDPV��7KH�$$6+72�$XGLW�
*XLGH�VKRXOG�EH�XVHG�DV�D�WRRO�IRU�SHUIRUPLQJ�DXGLWV�DQG�DWWHVWDWLRQV�RI�$	(�ILUPV��


&RQWUDFW�$XGLWV�
'XULQJ�D�&RQWUDFW�$XGLW��DXGLWRUV�ZLOO�UHYLHZ�D�FRQVXOWDQW¶V� ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHP�
DQG�FRQWUDFW�FRVW�SURSRVDO�WR�GHWHUPLQH�LI��


x� 7KH�FRQVXOWDQWV¶�DFFRXQWLQJ�V\VWHP�LV�DGHTXDWH�WR�DFFXPXODWH�DQG�VHJUHJDWH�FRVWV��


x� &RVWV�DUH�UHDVRQDEOH��DOORZDEOH��DOORFDEOH�DQG�VXSSRUWHG� DGHTXDWHO\��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


232 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � �


� �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � �
� � � �


� ��


� � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � �
�


� � � � � � �
�


� � � �
� � �


�
� � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � �


����


� � � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


x� 7KH�FRQWUDFW�FRQWDLQV�DOO�UHTXLUHG�ILVFDO�SURYLVLRQV��


x� 3URSHU�VWDWH�DQG�IHGHUDO�SURFXUHPHQW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�ZHUH�IROORZHG��


,QFXUUHG�&RVW�$XGLWV�
'XULQJ�DQ�,QFXUUHG�&RVW�$XGLW��DXGLWRUV�ZLOO�UHYLHZ�LQFXUUHG�FRQWUDFW�FRVWV�WR� GHWHUPLQH�LI��


x� &RVW�GDWD�DUH�PDLQWDLQHG�LQ�DQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�V\VWHP�WKDW�DGHTXDWHO\�JDWKHUV��UHFRUGV��
FODVVLILHV��VXPPDUL]HV��DQG�UHSRUWV�DFFXUDWH�DQG�WLPHO\�ILQDQFLDO�GDWD�IRU�GLUHFW�DQG�
LQGLUHFW�SURMHFW�FRVWV�E\�DFFRXQW��


x� &RVWV�DUH�DGHTXDWHO\�VXSSRUWHG��UHDVRQDEOH��DOORZDEOH��DQG�DOORFDEOH��


x� &RVWV�LQFXUUHG�DUH�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�VWDWH�DQG�IHGHUDO�ODZV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV��


x� &RVWV�LQFXUUHG�DUH�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�0DVWHU�$JUHHPHQW�DQG�6XSSOHPHQWDO�
$JUHHPHQW��


x� &RVWV�LQFXUUHG�DUH�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�ILVFDO�SURYLVLRQV�VWLSXODWHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW��
DQG�


x� 7KH�WHUPV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�0DVWHU�$JUHHPHQW�DQG�IHGHUDO�ODZV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV�DUH�
LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


$XGLW�)LQGLQJV�DQG�5HYLHZ�'HILFLHQFLHV�
,I�D�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5�LV�DXGLWHG�RU�UHYLHZHG��ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�HQVXULQJ�DOO�
H[HFXWHG�DQG�IXWXUH�FRQWUDFWV�UHIOHFW�WKH�DXGLWHG�DQG�DGMXVWHG�ILVFDO�\HDU�,&5�V���/RFDO�
DJHQFLHV�VKRXOG�UHTXHVW�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�IURP�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�IRU�RYHUSD\PHQW�RQ�UDWHV�WKDW�
ZHUH�DGMXVWHG�GRZQ��


7KH�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�PD\�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�VDQFWLRQV�RXWOLQHG�LQ�/$30�&KDSWHU�����'HILFLHQFLHV�
DQG�6DQFWLRQV�LI�WKH�VWDWH�RU�IHGHUDO�JRYHUQPHQW�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�DQ\�UHLPEXUVHPHQWV� WR�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW�DUH�WKH�UHVXOW�RI�ODFN�RI�SURSHU�FRQWUDFW�SURYLVLRQV��XQDOORZDEOH� FKDUJHV��
XQVXSSRUWHG�DFWLYLWLHV��RU�DQ�LQDGHTXDWH�ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHP��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


233 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/ch20.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/ch20.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


 


���� � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � � � �


 
 


 
 


  
  


 
 


 
 


              
          


              
              


          
        


          
          


       


        
         


 
              


       


         
       


           
 


        


          


        


       
 
       


       


        
       


       


       
  


          


  � �       
  � �    


� �


,� ��


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


([DPSOH�RI�D�)$5�&RPSOLDQW�,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWH�6FKHGXOH�� 6DPSOH�&RQVXOWLQJ�&RPSDQ\�
6WDWHPHQW�RI�'LUHFW�/DERU��)ULQJH�%HQHILWV��DQG�*HQHUDO� 2YHUKHDG�IRU�WKH�<HDU�(QGHG�'HFHPEHU�������[[�


Description 
General 
Ledger 
Balance 


Unallowable FAR 
Reference 


Total 
Proposed 


Home 
Office 


Field 
Office 


Direct Labor $123,456,789 ($934,568) (1)(15) $122,522,221 $85,765,555 $36,756,666 


Fringe Benefits 
Vacation/Paid Leaves $17,283,950 $17,283,950 $12,098,765 $5,185,185 
Payroll Taxes $1,530,864 ($30,617) (15) $1,500,247 $1,050,173 $450,074 
Medical Insurance $10,864,197 $10,864,197 $7,604,938 $3,259,259 
401K Match $4,938,272 $4,938,272 $3,456,790 $1,481,481 
Incentives and Bonus $15,308,642 ($3,123,456) (2) $12,185,186 $8,529,630 $3,655,556 
Other Employee 
Benefits $2,515,280 ($553,433) (3) $1,961,847 $1,373,293 $588,554 
Total Fringe Benefits $52,441,206 ($3,707,506) $48,733,700 $34,113,590 $14,620,110 
General & 
Administrative Overhead 


Indirect Overhead 
Labor $72,696,030 ($4,452,541) (1)(2)(4)(15) $68,243,489 $65,790,948 $2,452,541 
Purchased 
Labor/Subconsultants $22,433,019 ($22,433,019) (5) $ - $ - $ -
Office Rent $12,345,679 ($987,654) (6) $11,358,025 $11,038,025 $320,000 


Supplies & Utilities $5,753,086 $5,753,086 $4,027,160 $1,725,926 
Postage and 


Shipping $1,770,000 $321,456 (5) $2,091,456 $1,464,019 $627,437 


Equipment and 
Maintenance $3,812,346 $3,812,346 $2,512,789 $1,299,557 


Depreciation 
Expense $6,202,469 ($1,345,678) (7) $4,856,791 $3,205,482 $1,651,309 


Interest $123,456 ($123,456) (8) $ - $ - $ -
Dues and 


Subscription $123,456 ($12,345) (9) $111,111 $77,778 $33,333 


Advertising & 
Marketing $427,406 ($45,678) (10) $381,728 $267,210 $114,518 


Vehicles $5,896,123 ($147,403) (5)(11)(14) $5,748,720 $4,024,104 $1,724,616 
Bad debts $12,345 ($12,345) (12) $ - $ - $ -


Legal and 
Accounting Services $3,713,580 ($222,815) (13) $3,490,765 $3,490,765 $ -


Fines and Penalties $80,000 ($80,000) (16) $ - $ - $ -
Total General & 
Admin. Overhead $135,388,995 ($29,541,478) $105,847,517 $95,898,280 $9,949,237 


Total Indirect Costs $154,581,216 $130,011,870 $24,569,347 
Indirect Cost Rates 126.17% 151.59% 66.84% 


)LJXUH�������6WDQGDUG�,QGLUHFW�&RVW�5DWH�6FKHGXOH�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


234 of 611







� � �
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �


� � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


�
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


�
� � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � �
� � �� � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


� � � � � ��� � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � � �


� �
� � � � � � � � � � � �
� � � � � � � � � � � � �


�
� � �


� �
� � � �


� � � � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� �


� �


� � �


� �


� � � �
� �


� � � �
� � � � �


� � � � �
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


)$5�5HIHUHQFHV��


(1) )$5���������8QFRPSHQVDWHG�RYHUWLPH��
(2) )$5�����������3URILW�GLVWULEXWLRQ�DQG�H[FHVV�RI�WKH�UHDVRQDEOH�FRPSHQVDWLRQ��
(3) )$5����������������������	������������0HDOV�QRW�IRU�YDOLG�EXVLQHVV�SXUSRVHV�DQG�


DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�OREE\LQJ�DQG�ODFNLQJ� DGHTXDWH�VXSSRUW�
(4) )$5�����������$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�VWDII�FRVWV�ELOOHG�WR�SURMHFWV�FOLHQWV��
(5) )$5�����������6XEFRQVXOWDQW�ODERU�DQG�RWKHU�GLUHFW�FRVWV�ELOOHG�WR�DQG�SDLG�E\�


FRQWUDFWV�FOLHQWV��
(6) )$5�����������DQG������������&DSLWDO�OHDVH�FRVWV��UHQW�SDLG�LQ�H[FHVV�RI�UHDVRQDEOH�


FRVWV��DQG�LGOH�IDFLOLWLHV�DQG�FDSDFLW\�FRVWV��
(7) )$5����������	�����������&RVWV�UHODWHV�WR�SHUVRQDO�XVH�E\�HPSOR\HHV�DQG�OX[XU\�


YHKLFOHV��
(8) )$5������������,QWHUHVW�DQG�RWKHU�ILQDQFLDO�FRVWV�QRW�DOORZDEOH��
(9) )$5�����������1RQ�EXVLQHVV�UHODWHG�GXHV�DQG�VXEVFULSWLRQV��
(10) )$5�����������&RVWV�IRU�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�DQG�SXEOLF�UHODWLRQV�FRVWV�DQG�WUDGH�VKRZ�


H[SHQVH�LQFOXGLQJ�ODERU��
(11) )$5�����������G��DQG����������P������3HUVRQDO�XVH�RI�YHKLFOH�DQG�ODFN�RI�PLOHDJH�ORJV�


DQG�EXVLQHVV�SXUSRVH��
(12) )$5����������� %DG�GHEWV�DQG�FROOHFWLRQ�FRVWV��
(13) )$5�����������DQG������������5HRUJDQL]DWLRQ�DQG�FDSLWDO�UDLVLQJ�UHODWHG�FRVWV�DQG�FRVWV�


LQFXUUHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK� YLRODWLRQ�RI� D�ODZ�RU�UHJXODWLRQ�E\�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��
(14) )$5������������8QUHDVRQDEOH�FRVWV�DQG�FRVWV�QRW�VXSSRUWHG�E\�GRFXPHQWV�DQG�ODFN�RI�


EXVLQHVV�SXUSRVH��
(15) )$5����������D��	�&$6���������/DERU�FRVWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�XQDOORZDEOH�FRVWV��
(16) )$5������������)LQHV�DQG�SHQDOWLHV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�YLRODWLRQV�RI�ODZV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV��


7KLV�VHFWLRQ�RXWOLQHV�WKH�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�SURFHVV�IRU�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�WKDW�DW�DQ\�WLPH�XVH�IHGHUDO�
DQG�RU�VWDWH�IXQGV��$OO�SURSRVHG�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�DXGLW�
RU�UHYLHZ�E\�&DOWUDQV¶�,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�$XGLWV�DQG�,QYHVWLJDWLRQV�
�,2$,���RWKHU�VWDWH�DXGLW�RUJDQL]DWLRQV��RU�WKH�IHGHUDO�JRYHUQPHQW��1RW�DOO�SURSRVHG�FRQWUDFWV�ZLOO�
EH�DXGLWHG�RU�UHYLHZHG��UDWKHU��WKH\�ZLOO�EH�VHOHFWHG�RQ�D�ULVN�EDVHG�DSSURDFK��


�������&2168/7$17�6(/(&7,21�0(7+2'6�
)LJXUH�������&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�)ORZFKDUW�VKRZV�WKH�WKUHH�PHWKRGV�QRUPDOO\�XVHG�LQ�
VHOHFWLQJ�D�FRQVXOWDQW��7KH\�DUH��


x� 2QH�6WHS�5)3��


x� 2QH�6WHS�5)4��


x� 7ZR�6WHS�5)4�5)3��


7KH�PHWKRG�XVHG�GHSHQGV�XSRQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��WKH�VHUYLFHV�UHTXLUHG��WKH�SURMHFW¶V�
FRPSOH[LW\��DQG�WKH�WLPH�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VHOHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��


%HJLQQLQJ�ZLWK�6HFWLRQ���������&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�8VLQJ�WKH�2QH±6WHS�5)3�0HWKRG��HDFK�RI�
WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�PHWKRGV�LV�H[SODLQHG�LQ�GHWDLO��5HJDUGOHVV�RI�WKH�PHWKRG�XVHG��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�
VKDOO�UHWDLQ�DOO�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�LQ�WKHLU�SURMHFW�ILOHV�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\����&)5�
3DUW������


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


235 of 611







� � �
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
�


�
� �
� ��


�
�


� �
�


� � �
� � �


� � � �
�


�


� �
� �


� �
� � � �
� � �


� � � � �
� � � � �


� � �
� � � � � �


� � � � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


2QH�6WHS�5)3�
7KH�2QH�6WHS�5)3�PHWKRG�PD\�EH�XVHG�IRU�3URMHFW±VSHFLILF�FRQWUDFWV�ZKHQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�
LV�ZHOO�GHILQHG�RU�IRU�0XOWL�SKDVHG�FRQWUDFWV�ZKHUH�WKH�GHILQHG�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�LV�GLYLGHG�LQWR�
SKDVHV��2WKHU�FRQVLGHUDWLRQV�LQFOXGH�ZKHQ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�VHUYLFHV�DUH�KLJKO\�VSHFLDOL]HG�DQG�
WKHUH�DUH�IHZ�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��


2QH�6WHS�5)4�
7KH�2QH�6WHS�5)4�PHWKRG�LV�XVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�UHTXHVWHG�VHUYLFHV�DUH�VSHFLDOL]HG��RU�WKH�VFRSH�
RI�ZRUN�LV�GHILQHG�EURDGO\�DQG�PD\�LQFOXGH�PXOWLSOH�SURMHFWV��7\SLFDO�VHUYLFHV�DUH�SUHOLPLQDU\�
HQJLQHHULQJ��VXUYH\LQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO�VWXGLHV��SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�3ODQV�6SHFLILFDWLRQV�DQG�(VWLPDWH�
�36	(��DQG�HQYLURQPHQWDO�GRFXPHQWV��RU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�PDQDJHPHQW��7KLV�PHWKRG�RU�WKH�WZR�
VWHS�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�LV�XVHG�IRU�SURFXUHPHQW�RI�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFW�V���1RWH�WKDW�VSHFLILFDWLRQV�
DQG�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�5)4�PXVW�FRYHU�DOO�DVSHFWV�RI�WKH�ILQDO�QHHG��$�5)3�VSHFLILF�WR�WKH�
SURMHFW��WDVN��RU�VHUYLFH�PXVW�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�IRU�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�D�FRQVXOWDQW
V�
VSHFLILF�WHFKQLFDO�DSSURDFK�DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��


7ZR�6WHS��5)4�)ROORZHG�E\�5)3��
7KH�7ZR�6WHS�5)4�5)3�PHWKRG�PD\�EH�XVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�LV�FRPSOH[�RU�XQXVXDO��
7KLV�PHWKRG�DOVR�PD\�EH�SUHIHUUHG�E\�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�WKDW�DUH�LQH[SHULHQFHG�DERXW�QHJRWLDWLRQV�
DQG�SURFHGXUHV�IRU�HVWDEOLVKLQJ�FRPSHQVDWLRQ��+RZHYHU��WKH�7ZR�6WHS�5)4�5)3�PHWKRG�LV�
UHFRPPHQGHG�IRU�SURFXUHPHQW�RI�PXOWLSOH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV��RU�RQ�FDOO�OLVW��WKURXJK�D�VLQJOH�
VROLFLWDWLRQ��5HJDUGOHVV�RI�DQ\�SURFHVV�XWLOL]HG�IRU�SUHTXDOLILFDWLRQ�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV�RU�IRU�DQ�LQLWLDO�
DVVHVVPHQW�RI�D�FRQVXOWDQW
V�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�XQGHU�D�5)4��D�5)3�VSHFLILF�WR�WKH�SURMHFW��WDVN��RU�
VHUYLFH�LV�UHTXLUHG�IRU�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�D�FRQVXOWDQW
V�VSHFLILF�WHFKQLFDO�DSSURDFK�DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��
)RU�PRUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��UHIHU�WR�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFW�LQ�6HFWLRQ���������,GHQWLI\LQJ�	�
'HILQLQJ�D�1HHG�IRU�&RQVXOWDQWV��7KLV�PHWKRG�UHTXLUHV�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�PRUH�ZRUN�DQG�WLPH�WKDQ�
WKH�RWKHU�WZR�PHWKRGV�GHVFULEHG�DERYH��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


236 of 611







/R
FD
O�$


VV
LV
WD
QF
H�
3U
RF
HG
XU
HV
�0
DQ
XD
O�


&
KD
SW
HU
��
��


&
RQ


VX
OWD
QW
�6
HO
HF
WLR


Q�


In
it


ia
te


 P
ro


je
ct


 
S


el
ec


t 
C


on
su


lt
an


ts
 


&
RP


SO
HW
H�
)
LU
VW
�6
WH
S�


Y
�


Se
le


ct
 P


ro
je


ct
 


Y
�


Se
t 


P
ro


je
ct


 O
bj


ec
ti


ve
s 


Y
�


A
pp


oi
nt


 C
on


tr
ac


t 
A


dm
in


is
tr


at
or


 
Y
�


D
et


er
m


in
e 


P
ro


je
ct


 S
ch


ed
ul


e 


,G
HQ
WL
I\
�Q
HH
G�


IR
U�
FR
QV
XO
WD
QW
�


'
HI
LQ
H�
6
FR
SH
�


RI
�&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


:
RU
N�


6
SH
FL
I\
�


3
UR
GX
FW
V�
WR
�E
H�


GH
OL
YH
UH
G�


'
HW
HU
P
LQ
H�


0
HW
KR
G�
RI
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


6
HO
HF
WL
RQ
�


6
HJ
P
HQ
W�


3
UR
MH
FW
�:


RU
N�


(
VW
DE
OL
VK
�


'
%
(
�*
RD
OV
�


(
VW
LP
DW
H�
&
RV
W�


RI
�&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


:
RU
N�


'
HW
HU
P
LQ
H�
7
\S
H�
RI
�&
RQ
WU
DF
W�


Y
�


L
um


p 
Su


m
 


Y
�


C
os


t-
P


lu
s-


F
ix


ed
-F


ee
 


Y
�


C
os


t 
P


er
 U


ni
t 


of
 W


or
k 


Y
�


Sp
ec


if
ic


 R
at


es
 o


f 
C


om
pe


ns
at


io
n 


$
SS
RL
QW
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


6
HO
HF
WL
RQ
�


&
RP


P
LW
WH
H�
DQ
G�


'
HY
HO
RS
�6
FK
HG
XO
H�


IR
U�
6
HO
HF
WL
RQ
�


$
SS
RL
QW
P
HQ
W�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


6
HO
HF
WL
RQ
�


&
RP


P
LW
WH
H�
DQ
G�


'
HY
HO
RS
P
HQ
W�


6
FK
HG
XO
H�
IR
U�


6
HO
HF
WL
RQ
�


'
HY
HO
RS
�


7
HF
KQ
LF
DO
�&
UL
WH
UL
D�


IR
U�
(
YD
OX
DW
LR
Q�
RI
�


3
UR
SR
VD
OV
�


3
UH
SD
UH
�


5
HT
XH
VW
�I
RU
�


3
UR
SR
VD
O�


$
GY
HU
WL
VH
�


IR
U�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


�5
)
4
��


$
SS
RL
QW
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


6
HO
HF
WL
RQ
�


&
RP


P
LW
WH
H�
DQ
G�


'
HY
HO
RS
�6
FK
HG
XO
H�


IR
U�
6
HO
HF
WL
RQ
�


$
GY
HU
WL
VH
�


IR
U�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


�5
)
4
��


'
HY
HO
RS
�


4
XD
OL
IL
FD
WL
RQ
�


&
UL
WH
UL
D�
IR
U�


(
YD
OX
DW
LR
Q�
RI
�


3
UR
SR
VD
OV
�


'
HY
HO
RS
�


4
XD
OL
IL
FD
WL
RQ
�


&
UL
WH
UL
D�
IR
U�


(
YD
OX
DW
LR
Q�
RI
�


3
UR
SR
VD
OV
�


5
HF
HL
YH
�


6
WD
WH
P
HQ
WV
�R
I�


4
XD
OL
IL
FD
WL
RQ
V�


5
HF
HL
YH
�


6
WD
WH
P
HQ
WV
�R
I�


4
XD
OL
IL
FD
WL
RQ
V�


$
GY
HU
WL
VH
�I
RU
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


(
YD
OX
DW
H�


6
WD
WH
P
HQ
WV
�R
I�


4
XD
OL
IL
FD
WL
RQ
V�
	
�


'
HY
HO
RS
�6
KR
UW
OL
VW
�


(
YD
OX
DW
H�


6
WD
WH
P
HQ
WV
�R
I�


4
XD
OL
IL
FD
WL
RQ
V�


	
�'
HY
HO
RS
�


6
KR
UW
OL
VW
�,V
VX
H�
5
HT
XH
VW
�


IR
U�
3
UR
SR
VD
O�


�5
)
3
��


1
RW
LI
\�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


RI
�6
KR
UW
OL
VW
�


1
RW
LI
\�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


RI
�6
KR
UW
OL
VW
�


,V
VX
H�
5
HT
XH
VW
�


IR
U�
3
UR
SR
VD
O�


�5
)
3
��


&
RQ
GX
FW
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W¶
V�


&
RQ
IH
UH
QF
H�
RU
�


$
QV
Z
HU
�


:
UL
WW
HQ
�


4
XH
VW
LR
QV
�


5
HF
HL
YH
�D
QG
�


(
YD
OX
DW
H�


7
HF
KQ
LF
DO
�


3
UR
SR
VD
OV
�


,Q
WH
UY
LH
Z
�	
�


'
HY
HO
RS
�)
LQ
DO
�


5
DQ
NL
QJ
�R
I�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


1
RW
LI
\�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


RI
�5
HV
XO
WV
�


5
HT
XH
VW
�&
RV
W�
3
UR
SR
VD
O�
	
�1
HJ
RW
LD
WH
�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�
Z
LW
K�
7
RS
�5
DQ
NH
G�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


'
HY
HO
RS
�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�


,Q
LW
LD
WH
�$
	
(
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�
$
XG
LW
�


3
UR
FH
VV
��
)
LJ
XU
H�
��
��
��


1
HJ
RW
LD
WH
�&
RQ
WU
DF
W�
Z
LW
K�
1
H[
W�


+
LJ
KH
VW
�5
DQ
NH
G�
&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�
XQ
WL
O�


6
XF
FH
VV
IX
O�


(
YD
OX
DW
H�
5
HI
HU
HQ
FH
�&
KH
FN
V�
	
�


2
WK
HU
�,
QI
RU
P
DW
LR
Q�
*
DW
KH
UH
G�


,Q
GH
SH
QG
DQ
WO
\�


(
YD
OX
DW
H�
5
HI
HU
HQ
FH
�&
KH
FN
V�
	
�


2
WK
HU
�,
QI
RU
P
DW
LR
Q�
*
DW
KH
UH
G�


,Q
GH
SH
QG
HQ
WO
\�


,Q
WH
UY
LH
Z
�	
�


'
HY
HO
RS
�)
LQ
DO
�


5
DQ
NL
QJ
�R
I�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


1
RW
LI
\�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


RI
�5
HV
XO
WV
�


5
HT
XH
VW
�&
RV
W�
3
UR
SR
VD
O�
	
�1
HJ
RW
LD
WH
�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�
Z
LW
K�
7
RS
�5
DQ
NH
G�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


'
HY
HO
RS
�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�


,Q
LW
LD
WH
�$
	
(
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�
$
XG
LW
�


3
UR
FH
VV
��
)
LJ
XU
H�


��
��
��


1
HJ
RW
LD
WH
�&
RQ
WU
DF
W�
Z
LW
K�
1
H[
W�


+
LJ
KH
VW
�5
DQ
NH
G�
&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�
XQ
WL
O�


6
XF
FH
VV
IX
O�


,Q
WH
UY
LH
Z
�


7
RS
�5
DQ
NH
G�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


&
RQ
GX
FW
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W¶
V�


&
RQ
IH
UH
QF
H�
RU
�


$
QV
Z
HU
�


:
UL
WW
HQ
�


4
XH
VW
LR
QV
�


5
HF
HL
YH
�D
QG
�


(
YD
OX
DW
H�


7
HF
KQ
LF
DO
�


3
UR
SR
VD
OV
�


'
HY
HO
RS
�


)
LQ
DO
�


,Q
WH
UY
LH
Z
�	
�


5
DQ
NL
QJ
�R
I�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


1
RW
LI
\�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


RI
�5
HV
XO
WV
�


5
HT
XH
VW
�&
RV
W�
3
UR
SR
VD
O�
	
�1
HJ
RW
LD
WH
�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�
Z
LW
K�
7
RS
�5
DQ
NH
G�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


'
HY
HO
RS
�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�


,Q
LW
LD
WH
�$
	
(
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�
$
XG
LW
�


3
UR
FH
VV
��
)
LJ
XU
H�


��
��
��


1
HJ
RW
LD
WH
�&
RQ
WU
DF
W�
Z
LW
K�
1
H[
W�


+
LJ
KH
VW
�5
DQ
NH
G�
&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�
XQ
WL
O�


6
XF
FH
VV
IX
O�


(
YD
OX
DW
H�
5
HI
HU
HQ
FH
�&
KH
FN
V�
	
�


2
WK
HU
�,
QI
RU
P
DW
LR
Q�
*
DW
KH
UH
G�


,Q
GH
SH
QG
HQ
WO
\�


“
O


n
e
-S


te
p


, 
R


F
P


”
 M


e
th


o
d
: 


R
e
q


u
e
st


 f
o


r 
P


ro
p


o
sa


l 
fo


ll
o


w
e
d


 b
y
 N


e
g


o
ti


a
ti


o
n


 
(U


se
 w


h
e
n


 t
h


e
re


 a
re


 f
e
w


 c
o


n
su


lt
a


n
ts


) 


“
O


n
e
-S


te
p


, 
R


F
Q


”
 M


e
th


o
d
: 


R
e
q


u
e
st


 f
o


r 
Q


u
a


li
fi


c
a


ti
o


n
s 


fo
ll


o
w


e
d


 b
y
 I


n
te


rv
ie


w
s 


a
n


d
 N


e
g


o
ti


a
ti


o
n


 
(U


se
 w


h
e
n


 t
h


e
re


 a
re


 m
a


n
y
 c


o
n


su
lt


a
n


ts
) 


“
T


w
o


-S
te


p
, 


R
F


Q
/R


F
P


”
 M


e
th


o
d
: 


R
e
q


u
e
st


 f
o


r 
Q


u
a


li
fi


c
a


ti
o


n
s 


fo
ll


o
w


e
d


 b
y
 R


e
q


u
e
st


 f
o


r 
P


ro
p


o
sa


l 
a


n
d


 N
e
g


o
ti


a
ti


o
n


 
(U


se
 w


h
e
n


 s
c
o


p
e
 o


f 
w


o
rk


 i
s 


c
o


m
p


le
x
) 


'
HY
HO
RS
�


)
LQ
DO
�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�


(
[H
FX
WH
�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�


,V
VX
H�
1
RW
LF
H�


WR
�3
UR
FH
HG
�W
R�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W�


$
GP


LQ
LV
WH
U�


&
RQ
WU
DF
W�


C
om


p
le


te
 


P
ro


je
ct


 


&
RQ
GX
FW
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W¶
V�


&
RQ
IH
UH
QF
H�


RU
�$
QV
Z
HU
�


:
UL
WW
HQ
�


4
XH
VW
LR
QV
�


&
RQ
GX
FW
�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
W¶
V�


&
RQ
IH
UH
QF
H�


RU
�$
QV
Z
HU
�


:
UL
WW
HQ
�


4
XH
VW
LR
QV
�


1
RW
LI
\�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


RI
�6
KR
UW
�/
LV
W�


1
RW
LI
\�


&
RQ
VX
OW
DQ
WV
�


RI
�6
KR
UW
/
LV
W�


6
DP


H�
DV
�³
2
QH
�6
WH
S�


5
)
4
´�
0
HW
KR
G�


6
DP


H�
DV
�³
2
QH
�6
WH
S�
5
)
3
´�
0
HW
KR
G�


5
HF
HL
YH
�&
RQ
IR
UP
DQ
FH
�


/
HW
WH
U�
IU
RP


�$
	
,�
DQ
G�


,P
SO
HP


HQ
W�
)
LQ
GL
QJ
V�


�
�


�
� �


�
�


�
�


�
�                          


 


� �


�
�


� � �


� �


�


� � �
�
�


� � �
� � �


� �


�
�


�
�


� � �
�
�


�
�


� � � � � �


�
�


�
�


�


�
� �


�
� �


� �


�
�


�
�� �


�
� �


� �


�
� �


�
��


�


�
�


�
�


�
�


�
�


�


�


�


�
��


�


�
�


�
�


�
�


�
�


�


�


�
� �


� �


�
� �


� �
�


�
�


�
��
�


�
�


�


�


�


�


� � �


 


�
� � �


�


�
� � �


�


�
�


�
�


�


�


�


��
W�


\
ā� ����


��
L�
��
�


,�
�
��


L�
��
�


L�
��
�


I�
��
�


,�
��
�


I��
��


I��
��


�
��
U�


� �


��
�����


L�
��
�


-�


U�
��


���
��


��

U
�


��
�U
�


�
��
��
�
��
B
�


 �
I�
��
�


BBB
��


�
�


�
��
U�


� �
��


��
,�


�
�� ��


L
�
B
�


W�


U�
$
�


W�
��
��


L��
��


+
�


I��
��


I��
��


I��
��


I��
��


��
��


)L
JX


UH
��
��
��
��&


RQ
VX


OWD
QW
�6
HO
HF
WLR


Q�
)O
RZ


FK
DU
W�


3D
JH
��
��
RI
��
��


-D
QX
DU
\�
��
��
�


237 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � �
�


� �
� � �


� � � �
� � � � �
� �


� �


� � � �
� � � �


� � �
� �


� �
� � � � � �


� � �
� � �


�
� � � �


� � �


� � � �
� � �
� � � � � �


� �


�
�


� � � �
� � �


� � � � �
� � �


�


�
�


� � � �
� � �


� � �
�


�
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


�������&2168/7$17�6(/(&7,21�86,1*�7+(�21(�67(3�5)3�0(7+2'�


2I�WKH�WKUHH�PHWKRGV�GLVFXVVHG��WKLV�RQH�LV�PRVW�HDVLO\�PRGLILHG�IRU�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWLQJ�
FRQWUDFWV��7KLV�SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHGXUH�XVXDOO\�LQYROYHV�D�VLQJOH�VWHS�SURFHVV�ZLWK�LVVXDQFH�RI�D�
UHTXHVW�IRU�SURSRVDO��5)3��WR�DOO�LQWHUHVWHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��)RU�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWLQJ�FRQWUDFWV��D�
FRVW�SURSRVDO�VKDOO�EH�SDUW�RI�WKH�5)3�DQG�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�FULWHULD��)RU�$	(�FRQWUDFWV��WKH�FRVW�
SURSRVDO�LV�QRW�UHTXHVWHG�XQWLO�WKH�FRQVXOWDQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�ILQDO�UDQNHG�EDVHG�XSRQ�WKHLU�
VXEPLWWHG�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO��


$SSRLQW�&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�
$�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�ZLWK�D�PLQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�PHPEHUV�LV�DSSRLQWHG�DW�WKH�
EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV��7KH�FRPPLWWHH�UHYLHZV�PDWHULDOV�VXEPLWWHG�E\�
FRQVXOWDQWV��GHYHORSV�D�VKRUWOLVW�RI�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��DQG�GHYHORSV�D�ILQDO�UDQNLQJ�RI�WKH�
PRVW�TXDOLILHG�SURSRVDOV��5HSUHVHQWDWLRQ�RQ�WKH�FRPPLWWHH�LQFOXGHV�WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�
DQG�VXEMHFW�PDWWHU�H[SHUWV�IURP�WKH�SURMHFW¶V�IXQFWLRQDO�DUHD��7KH�PHPEHUV�VKRXOG�EH�IDPLOLDU�
ZLWK�WKH�SURMHFW�VHJPHQW�WR�EH�FRQWUDFWHG�RXW�DQG�ZLWK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VWDQGDUGV�WKDW�ZLOO�EH�
XVHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW��3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�E\�D�&DOWUDQV�GLVWULFW�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�LV�DW�WKH�RSWLRQ�RI�WKH�
DJHQF\�DQG�VXEMHFW�WR�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�WKH�'/$(�VWDII��&DOWUDQV�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�RQ�WKH�LQWHUYLHZ�SDQHO�
GRHV�QRW�UHOLHYH�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�RI�LWV�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�SURSHU�SURFXUHPHQW�
SURFHGXUHV�DUH�IROORZHG�DQG�DOO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DUH�PHW��


/RFDO�DJHQF\�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�HQVXUHV�WKDW�DOO�FRPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV�PHHW�WKH�FRQIOLFW�RI�
LQWHUHVW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�����&)5������E\�FRPSOHWLQJ�DQG�VLJQLQJ�D�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�VWDWHPHQW�
SULRU�WR�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�LQLWLDWLRQ��$�VDPSOH�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�IRUP�LV�SURYLGHG�LQ�([KLELW����7��
3DQHO�0HPEHU�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�	�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�6WDWHPHQW��


'HYHORS�7HFKQLFDO�&ULWHULD�IRU�(YDOXDWLRQ�RI�3URSRVDOV�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�GHYHORSLQJ�WKH�WHFKQLFDO�FULWHULD��DQG�WKHLU�UHODWLYH�
LPSRUWDQFH�ZKLFK�DUH�XVHG�WR�HYDOXDWH�DQG�UDQN�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�SURSRVDOV��,Q�6WDWH�RU�ORFDO�
SUHIHUHQFH�VKDOO�QRW�EH�XVHG�DV�IDFWRU�LQ�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ��UDQNLQJ��DQG�VHOHFWLRQ�SKDVH��$OO�QRQ�
WHFKQLFDO�HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD��LQFOXGLQJ�'%(�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ��VKDOO�QRW�H[FHHG����SHUFHQW�����&)5�
������D�����LLL��'����$OO�SULFH�RU�FRVW�UHODWHG�LWHPV�ZKLFK�LQFOXGH��EXW�DUH�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��FRVW�
SURSRVDOV��GLUHFW�VDODULHV�ZDJH�UDWHV��LQGLUHFW�FRVW�UDWHV��DQG�RWKHU�GLUHFW�FRVWV�DUH�SURKLELWHG�
IURP�EHLQJ�XVHG�DV�HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD��


7KH�FULWHULD�DQG�UHODWLYH�ZHLJKWV�PXVW�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�5)3��DQG�WKH�VDPH�FULWHULD�DQG�UHODWLYH�
ZHLJKWV�PXVW�EH�XVHG�LQ�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�VKHHWV��)DLOXUH�WR�LQFOXGH�FULWHULD�DQG�UHODWLYH�ZHLJKWV�
DQG�WR�XVH�WKH�VDPH�FULWHULD�DQG�ZHLJKWV�GXULQJ�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�ZLOO�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�FRVWV�
EHLQJ�LQHOLJLEOH�IRU�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��([KLELW����%��6XJJHVWHG�&RQVXOWDQW�
(YDOXDWLRQ�6KHHW�LV�D�UHFRPPHQGHG�HYDOXDWLRQ�VKHHW�ZLWK�FULWHULD�DQG�UDWLQJ�SRLQWV�IRU�$	(�
FRQVXOWDQWV��ZKHUH�FRVW�LV�QRW�XVHG�DV�D�UDWLQJ�IDFWRU��7KLV�IRUPDW�LV�QRW�PDQGDWRU\��EXW�LW�LV�
UHFRPPHQGHG�LQ�WKH�LQWHUHVW�RI�GHYHORSLQJ�FRQVLVWHQF\�DPRQJ�WKH�KXQGUHGV�RI�DJHQFLHV�DQG�
FRQVXOWDQWV�RSHUDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�VWDWH��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKRXOG�FRQVXOW�ZLWK�WKH�'/$(�EHIRUH�
PDNLQJ�PDMRU�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�VXJJHVWHG�DSSURDFK��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


238 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10b.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10b.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� �


� � � � �
� � �


�
�


� � � � �


� �


� � �


� �


� �


� �


� �


� � �


� � � � � �
� � � �


� � �
� � � � � �


� �


� � � �
�


� � �


� �


� � � � � �
� �


� � �


� � �


� � � � � � �
��


� � � � �
� � �


� � �
�


� � � � �
� � �


� �� � � � �
� �


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


'HYHORS�6FKHGXOH�IRU�&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�
%HIRUH�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LV�DGYHUWLVHG��WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�FRPSOHWHV�D�FRQWUDFW�SURFXUHPHQW�
VFKHGXOH�LQFOXGLQJ�NH\�GDWHV�IRU�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�DFWLYLWLHV��7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�
VKRXOG�FRQILUP�NH\�GDWHV�ZLWK�DOO�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV�EHIRUH�FRPSOHWLQJ�WKH�VFKHGXOH��


3UHSDUH�5)3�
7KH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�LQ�DQ�5)3�VROLFLWDWLRQ�LQFOXGHV�WKH�IROORZLQJ��


x� 'HVFULSWLRQ�RI�SURMHFW��


x� &OHDU��DFFXUDWH��GHWDLOHG�6FRSH�RI�ZRUN��WHFKQLFDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��


x� 6HUYLFHV�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG��


x� 'HOLYHUDEOHV�WR�EH�SURYLGHG��


x� 3URFXUHPHQW�VFKHGXOH��


x� $SSOLFDEOH�VWDQGDUGV��VSHFLILFDWLRQV��DQG�SROLFLHV��


x� 6FKHGXOH�RI�ZRUN��LQFOXGLQJ�HVWLPDWHG�VWDUW�DQG�HQG�GDWHV�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW���


x� 0HWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW��DQG�FRVW�SURSRVDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��7KH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�LV�VXEPLWWHG�LQ�D�
VHSDUDWH�FRQFHDOHG�IRUPDW��&RVW�SURSRVDOV�DUH�UHTXHVWHG�IURP�WKH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG�ILUP��
,I�WKHVH�QHJRWLDWLRQV�DUH�IRUPDOO\�WHUPLQDWHG��WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�LV�WKHQ�UHTXHVWHG�IURP�
WKH�QH[W�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG�ILUP��6HH�([KLELW����+��6DPSOH�&RVW�3URSRVDO��([DPSOH����IRU�
VDPSOH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRUPDWV��


x� &RQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�SURFHVV�UHTXLUHPHQWV��VHH�6HFWLRQ�������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�
$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV���


x� 3URSRVDO�IRUPDW�DQG�UHTXLUHG�FRQWHQWV��


x� 0HWKRG��FULWHULD�DQG�ZHLJKWLQJ�IRU�VHOHFWLRQ��


x� 5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�DQ\�GLVFXVVLRQV�WKDW�PD\�EH�FRQGXFWHG�ZLWK�WKUHH�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�PRVW�
KLJKO\�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�IROORZLQJ�VXEPLVVLRQ�DQG�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�SURSRVDOV��


x� 6SHFLI\�FRQWUDFW�W\SH��


x� 6SHFLDO�SURYLVLRQV�RU�FRQWUDFWV�UHTXLUHPHQWV��


x� $�'%(�FRQWUDFW�JRDO�LV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ��VHH�([KLELW����,��1RWLFH�WR�3URSRVHUV�
'%(�,QIRUPDWLRQ���LI�D�IHGHUDO�DLG�FRQWUDFW��


x� &RQVXOWDQWV�DFWLQJ�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�([KLELW����8��&RQVXOWDQW�
LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�DQG�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�6WDWHPHQW��


x� 3URWHVW�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�GLVSXWH�UHVROXWLRQ�SURFHVV�SHU���&)5�3DUW���������N�����&)5�
������F�������


7KH�5)3�VSHFLILHV�WKH�FRQWHQW�RI�D�SURSRVDO��WKH�QXPEHU�RI�FRSLHV�UHTXLUHG��GXH�GDWH��PDLOLQJ�
DGGUHVV��DQG�D�SK\VLFDO�DGGUHVV�ZKHUH�WKH�VXEPLWWDOV�PD\�EH�KDQG�GHOLYHUHG�LI�GLIIHUHQW�IURP�
WKH�PDLOLQJ�DGGUHVV�� $�PLQLPXP�RI�IRXUWHHQ������FDOHQGDU�GD\V�LV�UHTXLUHG�EHWZHHQ�WKH�WLPH�
WKH�5)3�LV�SXEOLVKHG�DQG�WLPH�WKDW�SURSRVDOV�PXVW�EH�VXEPLWWHG��0RUH�WLPH�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�IRU�
FRPSOH[�FRQWUDFWV�RU�SURMHFWV��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


239 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10i.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10i.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �


� � �


� �


� �


� �


� � � �


� � �
� �


� �


� �
� �


� � � �
�


� �


�
� � �


� � ��
� � � �


� �
�


� �
� � �


� � � �
� �


�


� � � �
� �


� � �
� � �


��


� � �
�


� �
�


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


,WHPV�W\SLFDOO\�UHTXLUHG�LQ�D�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�LQFOXGH��


x� :RUN�SODQ��VSHFLI\�ZKDW�LV�WR�EH�FRYHUHG���


x� 2UJDQL]DWLRQDO�FKDUW��


x� 6FKHGXOH�DQG�GHDGOLQHV��


x� 6WDIILQJ�SODQ��


x� 3URSRVHG�7HDP²FRPSOHWH�IRU�SULPH�FRQVXOWDQW�DQG�DOO�NH\�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV��


x� .H\�SHUVRQQHO�QDPHV�DQG�FODVVLILFDWLRQV²NH\�WHDP�PHPEHUV�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�RULJLQDO�
SURSRVDO�FRVW�SURSRVDO�VKDOO�QRW�FKDQJH��EH�GLIIHUHQW�WKDQ��LQ�WKH�H[HFXWHG�FRQWUDFW��


x� 6WDII�UHVXPHV��


x� 1DPHV�RI�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�SURMHFW�PDQDJHU�DQG�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�DXWKRUL]HG�WR�QHJRWLDWH�WKH�
FRQWUDFW�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP��


x� &RQVXOWDQW�'%(�&RPPLWPHQW�GRFXPHQW��VHH�([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�3URSRVDO�'%(�
&RPPLWPHQW��


x� 5HIHUHQFHV��


)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�$FFRXQWLQJ�6\VWHP�5HTXLUHPHQWV�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�HQVXUH�WKDW�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�VROLFLWDWLRQ�DQG�DGYHUWLVLQJ�GRFXPHQWV�
�5)3V��FOHDUO\�VSHFLI\�WKDW�FRQWUDFWV�VKDOO�QRW�EH�DZDUGHG�WR�D�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLWKRXW�DQ�DGHTXDWH�
ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�DFFRXQWLQJ�V\VWHP�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\����&)5�3DUW�������������&)5�3DUW�
�����DQG����&)5�3DUW�����7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�HQVXUH�WKH�VHOHFWHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�KDYH�
DGHTXDWH�ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHPV�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�IHGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV��


$GYHUWLVH�IRU�&RQVXOWDQWV�
7KH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�SURFHVV�IRU�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV�VKDOO�EH�E\�SXEOLF�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��RU�E\�DQ\�RWKHU�
SXEOLF�IRUXP�RU�PHWKRG�WKDW�DVVXUHV�TXDOLILHG�LQ�6WDWH�DQG�RXW�RI�6WDWH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�JLYHQ�D�
IDLU�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�IRU�DZDUG�RI�FRQWUDFW��7KH�PLQLPXP�OHQJWK�RI�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�LV�
���FDOHQGDU�GD\V��


$GYHUWLVHPHQW�RI�WKH�5)3�LQ�D�PDMRU�QHZVSDSHU�RI�JHQHUDO�FLUFXODWLRQ��WHFKQLFDO�SXEOLFDWLRQV�RI�
ZLGHVSUHDG�FLUFXODWLRQ��SURIHVVLRQDO�DVVRFLDWLRQV�DQG�VRFLHWLHV��UHFRJQL]HG�'%(�RUJDQL]DWLRQV��
ZHE�KRVWLQJ�RU�FOHDULQJ�KRXVHV�NQRZQ�IRU�SRVWLQJ�JRYHUQPHQW�FRQWUDFW�VROLFLWDWLRQV�VXFK�DV�
%LG6\QF��3ODQHWELGV��RU�SRVWLQJ�WKH�5)3�RQ�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�RU�RWKHU�ZLGHO\�XVHG�ZHEVLWHV�DUH�
DOO�DFFHSWDEOH�PHWKRGV�RI�VROLFLWDWLRQ��


7R�GRFXPHQW�ZHEVLWH�SRVWLQJV��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKRXOG�UHWDLQ�FRSLHV�RI�VFUHHQ�VKRWV�GLVSOD\LQJ�
WKH�SRVWHG�EHJLQ�HQG�GDWHV��


,VVXH�3XEOLVK�5)3�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�SXEOLVK�WKH�5)3�RQ�OLQH�DQG�DOVR�LVVXH�WKH�5)3�WR�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�
UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�QHZVSDSHU�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�NHHS�D�UHFRUG�RI�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�
WKDW�KDYH�GRZQORDGHG�5)3�RQ�OLQH�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKRVH�UHFHLYLQJ�DQ�5)3�WKURXJK�RWKHU�PHDQV��WR�
HQVXUH�WKDW�DQ\�LQTXLU\�UHVSRQVHV��DGGHQGXPV��RU�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�WKH�5)3�DUH�JLYHQ�WR�DOO�
FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�UHFHLYHG�WKH�5)3��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


240 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � �
�


� �
� � �


� � � �
� � � �
� � � ��


� � �
� �


� � �
� � �


� �
� � �


� ���


� ��
� �


� �
� �


� � �
� � � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � � �


� � � ��


�
� �


� � �
� � � �


� �
� � � �


� � �
� �


� � �
�


� � � � �
� �


� � �
� � �


� �
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


&RQGXFW�3URSRVHU¶V�&RQIHUHQFH�RU�$QVZHU�:ULWWHQ�4XHVWLRQV�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PD\�DOORZ�IRU�FODULILFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�5)3�E\�LQYLWLQJ�VXEPLWWDO�RI�ZULWWHQ�TXHVWLRQV�
RU�E\�FRQGXFWLQJ�D�SURSRVHU¶V�FRQIHUHQFH��RU�E\�GRLQJ�ERWK��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�SXEOLVK�RU�
PDLO�WKHLU�UHVSRQVHV�WR�DQ\�ZULWWHQ�TXHVWLRQV�WR�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�UHFHLYLQJ�WKH�5)3��1R�UHVSRQVH�
VKRXOG�EH�JLYHQ�WR�YHUEDO�TXHVWLRQV��,W�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WKDW�DOO�FRPSHWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQWV�UHFHLYH�WKH�
VDPH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��,I�D�SURSRVHU¶V�FRQIHUHQFH�LV�WR�EH�KHOG��WKH�H[DFW�WLPH�DQG�SODFH�PXVW�EH�
VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�5)3��$WWHQGDQFH�DW�D�SURSRVHU¶V�FRQIHUHQFH�QRUPDOO\�LV�QRW�PDQGDWRU\��
+RZHYHU��FRQVXOWDQWV�QRW�DWWHQGLQJ�WKH�FRQIHUHQFH�GR�QRW�UHFHLYH�QRWHV�IURP�WKH�PHHWLQJ�
XQOHVV�WKH\�UHTXHVW�WKH�QRWHV��


5HFHLYH�DQG�(YDOXDWH�7HFKQLFDO�3URSRVDOV�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�PXVW�YHULI\�WKDW�HDFK�SURSRVDO�FRQWDLQV�DOO�RI�WKH�IRUPV�DQG�RWKHU�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�5)3��,I�DOO�UHTXLUHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�QRW�SURYLGHG��D�SURSRVDO�PD\�EH�
FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�UHMHFWHG�ZLWKRXW�HYDOXDWLRQ��/DWH�VXEPLWWDOV��VXEPLWWDOV�WR�WKH�
ZURQJ�ORFDWLRQ��RU�VXEPLWWDOV�ZLWK�LQDGHTXDWH�FRSLHV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�VKDOO�EH�
UHMHFWHG��6XEPLWWDO�RI�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DIWHU�WKH�GXH�GDWH�VKDOO�QRW�EH�DOORZHG��


'RFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�ZKHQ�HDFK�SURSRVDO�ZDV�UHFHLYHG�PXVW�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�SURMHFW�ILOHV��
&RSLHV�RI�GDWH�VWDPSHG�HQYHORSH�FRYHUV�RU�ER[�WRSV�DUH�UHFRPPHQGHG��7KH�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�PXVW�HYDOXDWH�HDFK�SURSRVDO�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�WHFKQLFDO�FULWHULD�
OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�5)3��0LQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�SURSRVDOV�PXVW�EH�UHFHLYHG�DQG�HYDOXDWHG��,I�RQO\�WZR�
SURSRVDOV�DUH�UHFHLYHG��D�MXVWLILFDWLRQ�PXVW�EH�GRFXPHQWHG�WR�SURFHHG�ZLWK�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��
7KH�MXVWLILFDWLRQ�VKRXOG�VWDWH�WKDW�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�GLG�QRW�FRQWDLQ�FRQGLWLRQV�RU�UHTXLUHPHQWV�WKDW�
DUELWUDULO\�OLPLWHG�FRPSHWLWLRQ�SHU����&)5�����D�����LY���'��DQG�FRPSHWLWLRQ�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�WR�EH�
LQDGHTXDWH�DQG�LW�LV�QRW�IHDVLEOH�RU�SUDFWLFDO�WR�UH�FRPSHWH�XQGHU�D�QHZ�VROLFLWDWLRQ�SHU����&)5�
����D�����LLL��&���,I�RQO\�RQH�SURSRVDO�LV�UHFHLYHG��D�1RQ�&RPSHWLWLYH�SURFHVV�PXVW�EH�MXVWLILHG�
DQG�D�3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ��3,)��PXVW�EH�GRFXPHQWHG�DQG�VLJQHG�E\�WKH�'/$(� �,Q�HLWKHU�
FDVH��WKH�UH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�RI�WKH�5)3�VKRXOG�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�DV�DQ�RSWLRQ��


7KH�FRPPLWWHH�PXVW�DOVR�HYDOXDWH�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�JDWKHUHG�
LQGHSHQGHQWO\��5HIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�VKDOO�EH�FRPSOHWHG�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�JDWKHUHG�EHIRUH�WKH�
LQWHUYLHZV�DUH�FRQGXFWHG��,I�QHFHVVDU\��WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�RU�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
PD\�EH�GLVFXVVHG�ZLWK�WKH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�DW�WKH�LQWHUYLHZV��


'HYHORS�)LQDO�5DQNLQJ�DQG�1RWLI\�&RQVXOWDQWV�RI�5HVXOWV�
7KH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�HYDOXDWHV�HDFK�SURSRVDO��LQWHUYLHZV�WKH�WKUHH�RU�PRUH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG�
FRQVXOWDQWV��VKRUW�OLVWHG��LI�QRWHG�LQ�VROLFLWDWLRQ��DQG�GHYHORSV�D�ILQDO�UDQNLQJ�RI�WKH�KLJKHVW�
UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��$OO�FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�VXEPLWWHG�SURSRVDOV�PXVW�EH�LQIRUPHG�DERXW�WKH�ILQDO�
UDQNLQJ�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV��,W�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WKDW�DOO�FRPSHWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQWV�UHFHLYH�WKH�VDPH�
LQIRUPDWLRQ��


0RVW�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZLOO�UHTXHVW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DV�WR�ZK\�WKH\�ZHUH�QRW�WKH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG��7KH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�PD\�KDYH�DQ�HVWDEOLVKHG�SURFHGXUH�DGRSWHG�IRU�FRQGXFWLQJ�GHEULHILQJV�EXW�PD\�DOVR�
FRQVLGHU�WKH�IROORZLQJ��7KH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�VKRXOG�NHHS�QRWHV�DV�WR�ZK\�D�SDUWLFXODU�
FRQVXOWDQW�ZDV�QRW�VHOHFWHG��:KHQ�D�FRQVXOWDQW�UHTXHVWV�GHEULHILQJ��WKH�UHDVRQV�IRU�QRW�EHLQJ�
VHOHFWHG�PXVW�EH�REMHFWLYH�UHDVRQV��7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�VKRXOG�QRW�EH�FRPSDUHG�WR�RWKHUV�DQG�
VKRXOG�QRW�EH�SURYLGHG�ZLWK�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�RWKHU�FRQVXOWDQWV�GXULQJ�WKLV�GHEULHILQJ��1RUPDOO\��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


241 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�


� � �
� �


� � � � � �
� � � � �


� � � �
� �


� �
� �


�


� � �
� �


� �
� � � �


� � � �
� �


� �


� � � � �
� �


� � �
� �


� � � �
� � � �


� � �
�


� �
� �


� � � �
� �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� �


� � � �
� � � � � � �


�
� � � �


� � �
� �


� �


� �


� � � �


,�
/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����


&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�GRHV�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��KRZHYHU��DQ\�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�
FRPPLWWHH�PD\�EH�GHVLJQDWHG�WR�GR�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��


1HJRWLDWH�&RQWUDFW�ZLWK�7RS�5DQNHG�&RQVXOWDQW�
&RVW�SURSRVDO��IRU�ERWK�3ULPH�DQG�DOO�6XEFRQVXOWDQW���DQG�FRQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�GRFXPHQWV�
VXFK�DV�([KLELW����.��&RQVXOWDQW�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�RI�&RQWUDFW�&RVWV�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�
6\VWHP�RI�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP�DQG�([KLELW����$��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�
)LQDQFLDO�'RFXPHQW�5HYLHZ�5HTXHVW�DQG�&KHFNOLVW��ZKLFKHYHU�LV�DSSOLFDEOH��VHH�6HFWLRQ�
��������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV��VKRXOG�EH�VXEPLWWHG�LQ�D�VHSDUDWH�VHDOHG�
HQYHORSH��7\SLFDOO\��WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�DUH�VXEPLWWHG�E\�WKH�VKRUW�OLVWHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�RQO\��DW�
WLPH�RI�LQWHUYLHZ��+RZHYHU��LI�WLPH�LV�RI�WKH�HVVHQFH�DQG�LW�FDQ�EH�MXVWLILHG��RU�LI�QR�LQWHUYLHZV�DUH�
SODQQHG��WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�FDQ�EH�UHTXHVWHG�IURP�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZLWK�WKHLU�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO��


7KH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLOO�EH�RSHQHG�DQG�XVHG�WR�EHJLQ�
QHJRWLDWLRQV��,I�DJUHHPHQW�FDQQRW�EH�UHDFKHG��WKHQ�QHJRWLDWLRQV�SURFHHGV�WR�WKH�QH[W�PRVW�
TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��(DFK�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRVW�SURSRVDO�PXVW�UHPDLQ�VHDOHG�XQWLO�QHJRWLDWLRQV�
FRPPHQFH�ZLWK�WKDW�SDUWLFXODU�FRQVXOWDQW��7KH�JRDO�RI�QHJRWLDWLRQV�LV�WR�DJUHH�RQ�D�ILQDO�FRQWUDFW�
WKDW�GHOLYHUV�WKH�VHUYLFHV��RU�SURGXFWV�UHTXLUHG�DW�D�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�FRVW�WR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��
$W�WKH�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�VXFFHVVIXO�FRVW�QHJRWLDWLRQV��DOO�UHPDLQLQJ�VHDOHG�HQYHORSHV�FRQWDLQLQJ�
FRVW�SURSRVDOV�VKDOO�EH�UHWXUQHG�WR�FRQVXOWDQWV��


&RVW�SURSRVDOV�LQ�HOHFWURQLF�IRUP�VKDOO�EH�VXEPLWWHG�VHSDUDWHO\�IURP�WKH�5)3�DQG�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�D�
VHFXUH�GDWDEDVH�WKDW�LV�LQDFFHVVLEOH�WR�WKH�PHPEHUV�LQYROYHG�LQ�WKH�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�
SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHVV��2QO\�WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�RI�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLOO�EH�UHTXHVWHG�
WR�EH�VHQW�WR�WKH�PHPEHUV��&RVW�SURSRVDOV�RI�XQVXFFHVVIXO�FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�FRQILGHQWLDO�DQG�
VKDOO�QRW�EH�RSHQHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�RU�DQ\�SULYDWH�HQWLW\�WKDW�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�XVHV�WR�VWRUH�
WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDOV��$Q\�FRQFHDOHG�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�RI�WKH�XQVXFFHVVIXO�FRQVXOWDQWV�PXVW�EH�
UHWXUQHG�XQRSHQHG�RU�SURSHUO\�GLVSRVHG�RI�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�ZULWWHQ�SROLFLHV�
DQG�SURFHGXUHV��


7KH�LQGHSHQGHQW�FRVW�HVWLPDWH��GHYHORSHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�UHTXHVWLQJ�D�FRVW�
SURSRVDO�IURP�WKH�WRS�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW��LV�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�EDVLV�DQG�WRRO�IRU�QHJRWLDWLRQV�RU�
WHUPLQDWLQJ�XQVXFFHVVIXO�QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��,WHPV�QHFHVVDU\�IRU�
WKH�LQGHSHQGHQW�FRVW�HVWLPDWH�LQFOXGH��KRXUV�GHWDLOHG�ZRUN��GLUHFW�ODERU�FRVWV��LQGLUHFW�ODERU�
FRVWV��RWKHU�GLUHFW�FRVWV��DQG�SURILW�IHH��$JHQFLHV�PXVW�UHWDLQ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�KRZ�WKH�FRVW�
HVWLPDWH�ZDV�GHYHORSHG��,W�FDQ�EH�UHYLVHG��LI�QHHGHG��IRU�XVH�LQ�QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�QH[W�PRVW�
TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��$�FRQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG��VHH�6HFWLRQ���������$	(�
&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU���/RFDO�DJHQF\�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�
HQVXUHV�WKDW�DOO�UHTXLUHG�GRFXPHQWDWLRQV�DUH�SURYLGHG�WR�&DOWUDQV�,2$,�ZLWKLQ����GD\V�RI�ZULWWHQ�
UHTXHVW��LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�GRFXPHQWV�IRU�D�)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��&DOWUDQV�,2$,�ZLOO�QRW�
SURFHHG�ZLWK�D�)LQDQFLDO�'RFXPHQW�5HYLHZ�XQWLO�DOO�UHTXLUHG�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�LV�FRPSOHWHG�
FRUUHFWO\�DQG�VXEPLWWHG��1HJRWLDWLRQV�VKRXOG�EH�ILQDOL]HG�DIWHU�DGGUHVVLQJ�DOO�GHILFLHQFLHV�QRWHG�LQ�
WKH�&DOWUDQV�,2$,�)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�/HWWHU�LI�DSSOLFDEOH��$Q�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�DXGLW�PD\�EH�SHUIRUPHG�
ZLWKLQ�WKH�UHFRUG�UHWHQWLRQ�SHULRG�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


,WHPV�W\SLFDOO\�QHJRWLDWHG�LQFOXGH��


x� :RUN�SODQ��


x� 6FKHGXOH�DQG�GHDGOLQHV��IRU�GHOLYHUDEOHV�DQG�ILQDO�GXUDWLRQ�RI�FRQWUDFW���


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


242 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �


� �


� � �� � �
�


� � � �


� � �
� � �


� � �


� � � � �
� �


� � � � �
� � � � ���


� � �
� � � � � �


� �
� �


 


� � � � � �
� � � � �


� � ��
� � � � �


�� � � � � �
�


� � �
�


�
� � �


� � �
� �


� � ��
�


� � � �
� � ���


� � � �
� � �


� �
� �


� � �
� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


x� 3URGXFWV�WR�EH�GHOLYHUHG��


x� &ODVVLILFDWLRQ��ZDJH�UDWHV��DQG�H[SHULHQFH�OHYHO�RI�SHUVRQQHO�WR�EH�DVVLJQHG��


x� &RVW�LWHPV��SD\PHQWV��DQG�IHHV�� )HH�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�QHJRWLDWHG�DV�D�VHSDUDWH�
HOHPHQW��


x� +RXUV��OHYHO�RI�HIIRUW�E\�WDVN�DQG�RU�FODVVLILFDWLRQ��


7KH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5�LV�QRW�D�QHJRWLDEOH�LWHP��$�ORZHU�UDWH�FDQQRW�EH�QHJRWLDWHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLOO�DJUHH�RQ�WKH�ILQDO�FRVW�SURSRVDO�DQG�
LQFRUSRUDWH�LQWR�ILQDO�FRQWUDFW��5HWDLQ�DOO�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�UHODWHG�WR�QHJRWLDWLRQV��


%HIRUH�H[HFXWLQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�UHYLHZ�FRQWUDFW�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�
DOO�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�PHW��VHH�$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�3URFXUHPHQW�&KHFNOLVW��
KWWSV���GRW�FD�JRY�SURJUDPV�ORFDO�DVVLVWDQFH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�DQG�RWKHU�SROLF\�LVVXHV�FRQVXOWDQW�
VHOHFWLRQ�SURFXUHPHQW��DQG�DGMXVWPHQW�RU�GHQLDO�RI�,&5�DV�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�
/HWWHU�KDV�EHHQ�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�ILQDO�FRVW�SURSRVDO��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��


3ULRU�WR�FRQWUDFW�DZDUG��RU�DIWHU�FRQWUDFW�DZDUG�EXW�QR�ODWHU�WKDQ�WKH�ILUVW�LQYRLFH��WKH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�PXVW�VXEPLW�D�FRPSOHWHG�([KLELW����&�IRU�DOO�QHZ�RU�DPHQGHG�IHGHUDO�IXQGHG�$	(�
FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�XVLQJ�WKH�GDWDEDVH�DW�
KWWS���GODDHRYHUVLJKW�GRW�FD�JRY�IPL�ZHEG�([KLELW������&��SOHDVH�XVH�)LUHIR[�RU�&KURPH�LI�QRW�
VXSSRUWHG�E\�\RXU�EURZVHU���


,I�WKHUH�DUH�DQ\�FKDQJHV�UHTXLULQJ�DQ�DPHQGPHQW�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFW�DIWHU�VXEPLWWDO�RI�([KLELW����&��
WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�VXEPLW�DQ�XSGDWHG�([KLELW����&�DQG�DOO�FRQWUDFW�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�
KWWS���GODDHRYHUVLJKW�GRW�FD�JRY�IPL�ZHEG�([KLELW������&��6XEPLVVLRQ�RI�([KLELW����&� WR�
&DOWUDQV�+4�LV�QRW�UHTXLUHG�IRU�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV��


�������&2168/7$17�6(/(&7,21�86,1*�7+(�21(�67(3�5)4�0(7+2'�


7KH�5)4�PHWKRG�LV�XVHG�ZKHQ�WKH�VHUYLFHV�EHLQJ�SURFXUHG�DUH�VSHFLDOL]HG��RU�WKH�VFRSH�RI�
ZRUN�LV�GHILQHG�EURDGO\�DQG�PD\�LQFOXGH�PXOWLSOH�SURMHFWV��


$SSRLQW�&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�
$�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�ZLWK�D�PLQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�PHPEHUV�LV�DSSRLQWHG�DW�WKH�
EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV��7KH�FRPPLWWHH�UHYLHZV�DQG�VFRUHV�WKH�PDWHULDOV�
VXEPLWWHG�E\�FRQVXOWDQWV�LQ�UHVSRQVH�WR�WKH�5)4��GHYHORSV�D�VKRUWOLVW�RI�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��
LQWHUYLHZV�WKRVH�FRQVXOWDQWV��DQG�GHYHORSV�D�ILQDO�UDQNLQJ�RI�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��
5HSUHVHQWDWLRQ�RQ�WKH�FRPPLWWHH�LQFOXGHV�WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�DQG�VXEMHFW�PDWWHU�
H[SHUWV�IURP�WKH�SURMHFW¶V�IXQFWLRQDO�DUHD��7KH�PHPEHUV�VKRXOG�EH�IDPLOLDU�ZLWK�WKH�VFRSH�RI�
ZRUN�WR�EH�FRQWUDFWHG�RXW�DQG�ZLWK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VWDQGDUGV�WKDW�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�E\�D�&DOWUDQV�GLVWULFW�UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�LV�DW�WKH�RSWLRQ�RI�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�VXEMHFW�
WR�WKH�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�WKH�'/$(�VWDII��&DOWUDQV�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�RQ�WKH�LQWHUYLHZ�SDQHO�GRHV�QRW�UHOLHYH�
WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�RI�LWV�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�SURSHU�SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHGXUHV�DUH�IROORZHG�
DQG�DOO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DUH�PHW��


/RFDO�DJHQF\�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�HQVXUHV�WKDW�DOO�FRPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV�PHHW�WKH�FRQIOLFW�RI�
LQWHUHVW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�����&)5������E\�FRPSOHWLQJ�DQG�VLJQLQJ�D�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�VWDWHPHQW�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


243 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/consultant-selection-procurement

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/consultant-selection-procurement

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
� �


�
�


� � � �
� �


�
� �


� � � � �
� � �


� � � � � �
�


� �
�


�
� �


� � � �
� � � �


�


�
� � � �


� �


� �


� � �


� � � � � � �
� � � �


�


� � � � �
�


� � � �


� � �


� � � � � � �
� �


� � � � �
� � � �


� �


� � � � �
� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


SULRU�WR�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�LQLWLDWLRQ��$�VDPSOH�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�IRUP�LV�SURYLGHG�LQ�([KLELW����7��
3DQHO�0HPEHU�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�	�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�6WDWHPHQW��


'HYHORS�7HFKQLFDO�&ULWHULD�IRU�(YDOXDWLRQ�RI�4XDOLILFDWLRQV�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�GHYHORSLQJ�WKH�WHFKQLFDO�FULWHULD��DQG�WKHLU�UHODWLYH�
LPSRUWDQFH�ZKLFK�DUH�XVHG�WR�HYDOXDWH�DQG�UDQN�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��7KH�FULWHULD�DQG�
UHODWLYH�ZHLJKWV�PXVW�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�5)4��DQG�WKH�VDPH�FULWHULD�DQG�UHODWLYH�ZHLJKWV�PXVW�
EH�XVHG�LQ�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�VKHHWV��)DLOXUH�WR�LQFOXGH�FULWHULD�DQG�UHODWLYH�ZHLJKWV�DQG�WR�XVH�WKH�
VDPH�FULWHULD�DQG�ZHLJKWV�GXULQJ�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�ZLOO�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�FRVWV�EHLQJ�LQHOLJLEOH�
IRU�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��([KLELW����%��6XJJHVWHG�&RQVXOWDQW�(YDOXDWLRQ�6KHHW�LV�D�
UHFRPPHQGHG�HYDOXDWLRQ�VKHHW�ZLWK�FULWHULD�DQG�UDWLQJ�SRLQWV�IRU�$	(�FRQVXOWDQWV��ZKHUH�FRVW�LV�
QRW�XVHG�DV�D�UDWLQJ�IDFWRU��7KLV�IRUPDW�LV�QRW�PDQGDWRU\��EXW�LW�LV�UHFRPPHQGHG�LQ�WKH�LQWHUHVW�
RI�GHYHORSLQJ�FRQVLVWHQF\�DPRQJ�WKH�KXQGUHGV�RI�DJHQFLHV�DQG�FRQVXOWDQWV�RSHUDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�
VWDWH��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKRXOG�FRQVXOW�ZLWK�WKH�'/$(�EHIRUH�PDNLQJ�PDMRU�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�
VXJJHVWHG�DSSURDFK��


'HYHORS�6FKHGXOH�IRU�&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�
%HIRUH�D�FRQWUDFW�LV�DGYHUWLVHG��WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�FRPSOHWHV�D�FRQWUDFW�SURFXUHPHQW�
VFKHGXOH�LQFOXGLQJ�NH\�GDWHV�IRU�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�DFWLYLWLHV��7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�
VKRXOG�FRQILUP�WDUJHW�GDWHV�ZLWK�DOO�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV�EHIRUH�FRPSOHWLQJ�WKH�
VFKHGXOH��


3UHSDUH�5)4�
$V�D�PLQLPXP��WKH�5)4�JHQHUDOO\�LQFOXGHV�WKH�IROORZLQJ��


x� *HQHUDO�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�VHUYLFHV�RU�SURMHFW�V���


x� 6FRSH�RI�ZRUN��


x� 6FKHGXOH�RI�ZRUN��LQFOXGLQJ�FRQWUDFW�EHJLQ�DQG�HQG�GDWHV���


x� 0HWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW��DQG�FRVW�SURSRVDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��7KH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�LV�VXEPLWWHG�LQ�D�
VHSDUDWH�VHDOHG�HQYHORSH��6HH�([KLELW����+��6DPSOH�&RVW�3URSRVDO�IRU�VDPSOH�FRVW�
SURSRVDO�IRUPDWV��


x� &RQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�SURFHVV�UHTXLUHPHQWV��VHH�6HFWLRQ���������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�
$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV���


x� 6WDWHPHQW�RI�4XDOLILFDWLRQ��624��IRUPDW�DQG�UHTXLUHG�FRQWHQW�WR�EH�VXEPLWWHG��


x� 0HWKRG�DQG�FULWHULD�DQG�ZHLJKWV�IRU�VHOHFWLRQ��


x� $�'%(�FRQWUDFW�JRDO�LV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ��VHH�([KLELW����,��1RWLFH�WR�3URSRVHUV�
'%(�,QIRUPDWLRQ���LI�D�IHGHUDO�DLG�FRQWUDFW��


x� &RQVXOWDQWV�DFWLQJ�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�([KLELW����8��&RQVXOWDQW�
LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�DQG�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�6WDWHPHQW��3URWHVW�
SURFHGXUHV�DQG�GLVSXWH�UHVROXWLRQ�SURFHVV�SHU���&)5�3DUW���������N���


7KH�5)4�VSHFLILHV�WKH�FRQWHQW�RI�WKH�624��WKH�QXPEHU�RI�FRSLHV�UHTXLUHG��GXH�GDWH��PDLOLQJ�
DGGUHVV��DQG�D�SK\VLFDO�DGGUHVV�ZKHUH�WKH�VXEPLWWDOV�PD\�EH�KDQG�GHOLYHUHG�LI�GLIIHUHQW�IURP�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


244 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10b.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10i.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10i.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� � � �


�


� � � �


� � � �
� �
� �


� �


� � � �


� � �


� �


� � �


� � � �
�


� �


�
�


� � �
� � �
� � �


�


�
� � � �


� � �
� � �


�


� � � �
� � �


� �
� � �


� � �
� �


�


� � � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � � � �


� � � � �
� � �


� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


WKH�PDLOLQJ�DGGUHVV��7ZR�WR�IRXU�ZHHNV�LV�XVXDOO\�DOORZHG�EHWZHHQ�WKH�WLPH�WKH�5)4�LV�
SXEOLVKHG�DQG�WLPH�WKDW�624V�PXVW�EH�VXEPLWWHG��0RUH�WLPH�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�IRU�FRPSOH[�
FRQWUDFWV�RU�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��


,WHPV�W\SLFDOO\�UHTXLUHG�LQ�D�VWDWHPHQW�RI�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�LQFOXGH��


x� 4XDOLILFDWLRQV�RI�NH\�SHUVRQQHO��LQFOXGLQJ�FRQVXOWDQW�SURMHFW�PDQDJHU��SURSRVHG�IRU�WKH�
FRQWUDFW��.H\�WHDP�PHPEHUV�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�RULJLQDO�SURSRVDO�FRVW�SURSRVDO�VKDOO�QRW�
FKDQJH��EH�GLIIHUHQW�WKDQ��LQ�WKH�H[HFXWHG�FRQWUDFW��


x� 6WDII�UHVXPHV��


x� 5HODWHG�SURMHFWV�WKDW�NH\�SHUVRQQHO�KDYH�ZRUNHG�RQ��


x� 4XDOLILFDWLRQV�H[SHULHQFH�RI�WKH�ILUP��


x� 2UJDQL]DWLRQDO�FKDUW��


x� )RUHFDVW�RU�6FKHGXOH�RI�ZRUN��


x� &RQVXOWDQW�'%(�&RPPLWPHQW�GRFXPHQW��VHH�([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�3URSRVDO�'%(�
&RPPLWPHQW��


x� 5HIHUHQFHV��


)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�$FFRXQWLQJ�6\VWHP�5HTXLUHPHQWV�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�HQVXUH�WKDW�&RQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�VROLFLWDWLRQ�DQG�DGYHUWLVLQJ�GRFXPHQWV�
�5)4V��FOHDUO\�VSHFLI\�WKDW�FRQWUDFWV�VKDOO�QRW�EH�DZDUGHG�WR�D�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLWKRXW�DQ�DGHTXDWH�
ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�DFFRXQWLQJ�V\VWHP�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\����&)5�3DUW�������������&)5�3DUW�
�����DQG����&)5�3DUW�����7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�HQVXUH�WKH�VHOHFWHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�KDYH�
DGHTXDWH�ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHPV�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�IHGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV��


$GYHUWLVH�IRU�&RQVXOWDQWV�
7KH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�SURFHVV�IRU�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV�VKDOO�EH�E\�SXEOLF�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�RU�DQ\�RWKHU�
SXEOLF�IRUXP�RU�PHWKRG�WKDW�DVVXUHV�TXDOLILHG�LQ�6WDWH�DQG�RXW�RI�6WDWH�FRQVXOWDQW�DUH�JLYHQ�D�
IDLU�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�IRU�DZDUG�RI�FRQWUDFW��7KH�5)4�PXVW�FRQWDLQ�VXIILFLHQW�SURMHFW�
ZRUN�LQIRUPDWLRQ��VR�WKDW�LQWHUHVWHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�FDQ�VXEPLW�DQ�DSSURSULDWH�624��


$GYHUWLVHPHQWV�IRU�5)4�PD\�WDNH�RQH�RI�WZR�DSSURDFKHV��7KH�PRVW�FRPPRQ�LV�DQ�
DGYHUWLVHPHQW�RU�SXEOLFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�5)4�LQ�D�PDMRU�QHZVSDSHU�RI�JHQHUDO�FLUFXODWLRQ��WHFKQLFDO�
SXEOLFDWLRQ�RI�ZLGHVSUHDG�FLUFXODWLRQ��SURIHVVLRQDO�DVVRFLDWLRQV�DQG�VRFLHWLHV��UHFRJQL]HG�'%(�
RUJDQL]DWLRQV��ZHE�KRVWLQJ�RU�FOHDULQJ�KRXVHV�NQRZQ�IRU�SRVWLQJ�FRQWUDFW�VROLFLWDWLRQV�VXFK�DV�
%LG�6\QF��3ODQHW%LGV��RU�SRVWLQJ�WKH�5)4�RQ�RWKHU�ZLGHO\�XVHG�ZHEVLWHV��7R�GRFXPHQW�ZHEVLWH�
SRVWLQJV��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKRXOG�UHWDLQ�FRSLHV�RI�VFUHHQ�VKRWV�GLVSOD\LQJ�WKH�SRVWHG�EHJLQ�HQG�
GDWHV��


,Q�WKH�VHFRQG�DSSURDFK��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DGYHUWLVHV�WKH�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�WKH�5)4�LQ�D�PDMRU�
QHZVSDSHU�RI�JHQHUDO�FLUFXODWLRQ��WHFKQLFDO�SXEOLFDWLRQV�RI�ZLGHVSUHDG�FLUFXODWLRQ��SURIHVVLRQDO�
DVVRFLDWLRQV�DQG�VRFLHWLHV��UHFRJQL]HG�'%(�RUJDQL]DWLRQV��RU�WKURXJK�D�ZHE�KRVWLQJ�RU�FOHDULQJ�
KRXVHV�NQRZQ�IRU�SRVWLQJ�FRQWUDFW�VROLFLWDWLRQV�VXFK�DV�%LG6\QF�RU�3ODQHW%LGV��DQG�UHTXHVWV�
WKDW�LQWHUHVWHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�VHQG�D�OHWWHU�RI�LQWHUHVW�WR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�IRU�WKH�5)4��7KH�5)4V�
VKDOO�WKHQ�EH�VHQW�WR�WKRVH�ILUPV�ZKR�LQGLFDWHG�LQWHUHVW�LQ�WKH�5)4��,Q�VRPH�FDVHV��LW�PD\�EH�
GHVLUDEOH�WR�DGYHUWLVH�QDWLRQZLGH�IRU�D�SDUWLFXODU�SURMHFW�RU�VHUYLFH��7KLV�DSSURDFK�SURYLGHV�D�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


245 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
�


� �
� �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� �


�
� � � � � �


� � �
�


�
� ��


� ��
��


� �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


�


�
� � � �


� � � � ��
�


� � � � �
�


�
�
� � �


� �
� �


� � � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


�


�
� �


� � � �
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


UHJLVWU\�IRU�ILUPV�ZKR�UHFHLYHG�WKH�5)4�DQG�WKHUHIRUH�IDFLOLWDWHV�WKH�EURDGFDVW�RI�DQ\�UHYLVLRQV�
RU�DGGHQGD�WR�WKH�5)4��LI�QHFHVVDU\��


,VVXH�3XEOLVK�5)4�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�SXEOLVK�WKH�5)4�RQOLQH�DQG�DOVR�LVVXH�WKH�5)4�WR�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�
UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�QHZVSDSHU�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�NHHS�D�UHFRUG�RI�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�
WKDW�KDYH�GRZQORDGHG�WKH�5)4�RQ�OLQH�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKRVH�UHFHLYLQJ�DQ�5)4�WKURXJK�RWKHU�PHDQV��
WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�DQ\�LQTXLU\�UHVSRQVHV��DGGHQGXPV��RU�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�WKH�5)4�DUH�JLYHQ�WR�DOO�
FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�UHFHLYHG�WKH�5)4��


5HFHLYH�(YDOXDWH�6WDWHPHQWV�RI�4XDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�'HYHORS�6KRUWOLVW�
7KH�ILUVW�VWHS�LQ�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�SURFHVV�LV�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKDW�HDFK�624�FRQWDLQV�DOO�IRUPV�DQG�
RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�5)4��2WKHUZLVH��WKH�VXEPLWWDOV�PD\�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�
QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�UHMHFWHG�ZLWKRXW�HYDOXDWLRQ��/DWH�VXEPLWWDOV��VXEPLWWDOV�WR�WKH�ZURQJ�
ORFDWLRQ��DQG�VXEPLWWDOV�ZLWK�LQDGHTXDWH�FRSLHV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�VKDOO�EH�
UHMHFWHG���6XEPLWWDO�RI�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DIWHU�WKH�GXH�GDWH�VKDOO�QRW�EH�DOORZHG��
'RFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�ZKHQ�HDFK�SURSRVDO�ZDV�UHFHLYHG�PXVW�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�SURMHFW�ILOHV��
&RSLHV�RI�GDWH�VWDPSHG�HQYHORSH�FRYHUV�RU�ER[�WRSV�DUH�UHFRPPHQGHG��


0LQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�SURSRVDOV�PXVW�EH�UHFHLYHG�DQG�HYDOXDWHG��,I�RQO\�WZR�SURSRVDOV�DUH�UHFHLYHG��
D�MXVWLILFDWLRQ�PXVW�EH�GRFXPHQWHG�WR�SURFHHG�ZLWK�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��,I�RQO\�RQH�SURSRVDO�LV�
UHFHLYHG��D�1RQ�&RPSHWLWLYH�SURFHVV�PXVW�EH�MXVWLILHG�DQG�D�3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ��3,)��PXVW�
EH�GRFXPHQWHG�DQG�VLJQHG�E\�WKH�'/$(��,Q�HLWKHU�FDVH��WKH�UH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�RI�WKH�5)3�VKRXOG�
EH�FRQVLGHUHG�DV�DQ�RSWLRQ��


7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�UHYLHZV�WKH�VXEPLWWHG�624�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�SXEOLVKHG�
HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD�DQG�ZHLJKWLQJ�IDFWRUV��7KH�FRPPLWWHH�PDNHV�DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�UDQGRP�FKHFN�
RI�RQH�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�UHIHUHQFHV��7KLV�FKHFN�DSSOLHV�WR�PDMRU�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV�DOVR��
7KH�FRPPLWWHH�HVWDEOLVKHV�D�VKRUWOLVW�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZKR�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH�EHVW�TXDOLILHG�WR�
SHUIRUP�WKH�FRQWUDFW�ZRUN��7KH�VKRUWOLVW�LQFOXGHV�HQRXJK�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�DW�
OHDVW�WKUHH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�LQWHUYLHZHG��


1RWLI\�&RQVXOWDQWV�RI�6KRUWOLVW�
$OO�FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�VXEPLWWHG�DQ�624�PXVW�EH�QRWLILHG�RI�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�UHYLHZ��7KH�
QRWLILFDWLRQ�DOVR�LGHQWLILHV�WKRVH�FRQVXOWDQWV��VKRUW�OLVW��WKDW�ZLOO�EH�UHTXHVWHG�WR�DWWHQG�LQWHUYLHZV�
LI�LQWHUYLHZV�ZHUH�DQ�RSWLRQ�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ��0RVW�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZLOO�UHTXHVW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DV�WR�
ZK\�WKH\�ZHUH�QRW�SODFHG�RQ�WKH�VKRUWOLVW��7KHUHIRUH��WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�VKRXOG�NHHS�QRWHV�
ZK\�D�SDUWLFXODU�FRQVXOWDQW�ZDV�QRW�VHOHFWHG�IRU�WKH�VKRUWOLVW��:KHQ�D�FRQVXOWDQW�UHTXHVWV�D�
GHEULHILQJ��WKH�UHDVRQV�JLYHQ�IRU�QRW�EHLQJ�VHOHFWHG�PXVW�EH�REMHFWLYH�UHDVRQV��&RQVXOWDQWV�
VKRXOG�QRW�EH�FRPSDUHG�ZLWK�HDFK�RWKHU�GXULQJ�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��1RUPDOO\��WKH�&RQWUDFW�
$GPLQLVWUDWRU�GRHV�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��KRZHYHU��DQ\�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�PD\�EH�
GHVLJQDWHG�WR�GR�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��


,QWHUYLHZ�7RS�5DQNHG�&RQVXOWDQWV�
(DFK�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�EH�LQWHUYLHZHG�LV�JLYHQ�D�FRS\�RI�WKH�GUDIW�RI�WKH�SURSRVHG�FRQWUDFW��GHILQLQJ�
WKH�GHWDLOHG�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��DQG�RU�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�UHTXLUHG�VHUYLFHV��DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ��7KLV�
VKRXOG�EH�VHQW�ZLWK�WKH�LQLWLDO�QRWLILFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQWHUYLHZ��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


246 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
�


� � � �
� � � �


� � � � � �
� � � �


� �
�


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� �


� �


� � �


� � �


� � �
� �


�


� � �
�
� � �


� � �
� � � � �


�


�
� � � � �


� �


� � � ��
�


� � �


� �


� �
� � �


�
� �


�


�
� � � �


� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


%HWZHHQ�WKH�WLPH�RI�WKH�QRWLILFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�VKRUWOLVW�DQG�LQWHUYLHZV��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PD\�DQVZHU�
DQ\�TXHVWLRQV�FRQFHUQLQJ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�WR�EH�FRQWUDFWHG�RXW��LI�QRW�GRQH�HDUOLHU�GXULQJ�WKH�
VROLFLWDWLRQ��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PD\�FRQGXFW�DGGLWLRQDO�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�IRU�HDFK�
FRQVXOWDQW�WR�EH�LQWHUYLHZHG��&RQVXOWDQWV�VKRXOG�VXEPLW�WKHLU�TXHVWLRQV�DERXW�WKH�5)4�DQG�
UHFHLYH�WKHLU�DQVZHUV�IURP�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LQ�ZULWLQJ��,W�LV�UHTXLUHG�WKDW�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�RQ�WKH�
VKRUWOLVW�UHFHLYH�WKH�TXHVWLRQV�DQG�DQVZHUV�DQG�DUH�JLYHQ�WKH�VDPH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��


7KH�FRPPLWWHH�VKRXOG�HYDOXDWH�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WKDW�LV�JDWKHUHG�
LQGHSHQGHQWO\��5HIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�VKDOO�EH�FRPSOHWHG�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�JDWKHUHG�EHIRUH�WKH�
LQWHUYLHZV�DUH�FRQGXFWHG��,I�QHFHVVDU\��WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�DQG�RWKHU�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�PD\�EH�GLVFXVVHG�ZLWK�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�DW�WKH�LQWHUYLHZ��


,QWHUYLHZV�DUH�WR�EH�VWUXFWXUHG�DQG�FRQGXFWHG�LQ�D�IRUPDO�PDQQHU��(DFK�FRQVXOWDQW�VKDOO�EH�
DOORZHG�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�PDNH�D�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�LI�GHVLUHG��KRZHYHU��D�WLPH�OLPLW�VKRXOG�EH�
VSHFLILHG��,QWHUYLHZ�TXHVWLRQV�DUH�SUHSDUHG�LQ�DGYDQFH��


7ZR�W\SHV�RI�TXHVWLRQV�PD\�EH�DVNHG��


x� 4XHVWLRQV�WKDW�DUH�WR�EH�DVNHG�RI�DOO�FRPSHWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQWV��DQG�


x� 4XHVWLRQV�UHODWLQJ�WR�HDFK�VSHFLILF�FRQVXOWDQW��EDVHG�XSRQ�WKH�UHIHUHQFH�
FKHFNV��DQG�WKH�VWUHQJWKV�DQG�ZHDNQHVVHV�LGHQWLILHG�GXULQJ�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
624�


7KH�DJHQF\�FDQ�UHTXHVW�FRPSHWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQWV�WR�EULQJ�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RU�H[DPSOHV�RI�
WKHLU�ZRUN�WR�WKH�LQWHUYLHZV��LI�WKH�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�IDFLOLWDWHV�WKH�LQWHUYLHZ�RU�HYDOXDWLRQ�
SURFHVV��$GGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXHVWHG�VKRXOG�EH�NHSW�DW�D�PLQLPXP��WKDW�LV��RQO\�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
UHTXLUHG�WR�VHOHFW�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW�IRU�WKH�FRQWUDFW��7KH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�RU�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�VKDOO�QRW�JDWKHU�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�FRQFHUQLQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DIWHU�WKH�LQWHUYLHZV�
DUH�FRPSOHWHG��


'HYHORS�)LQDO�5DQNLQJ�DQG�1RWLI\�&RQVXOWDQWV�RI�5HVXOWV�
$OO�FRQVXOWDQWV�LQWHUYLHZHG�PXVW�EH�LQIRUPHG�DERXW�WKH�ILQDO�UDQNLQJ�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV��,W�LV�
LPSRUWDQW�WKDW�DOO�FRPSHWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQWV�UHFHLYH�WKH�VDPH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��


0RVW�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZLOO�UHTXHVW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DV�WR�ZK\�WKH\�ZHUH�QRW�VHOHFWHG�DV�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG��
7KHUHIRUH��WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�VKRXOG�NHHS�QRWHV�DV�WR�ZK\�D�SDUWLFXODU�FRQVXOWDQW�ZDV�QRW�
VHOHFWHG��:KHQ�D�FRQVXOWDQW�UHTXHVWV�GHEULHILQJ��WKH�UHDVRQV�IRU�QRW�EHLQJ�VHOHFWHG�PXVW�EH�
REMHFWLYH��&RQVXOWDQWV�VKRXOG�QRW�EH�FRPSDUHG�ZLWK�HDFK�RWKHU�RU�SURYLGHG�ZLWK�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
DERXW�RWKHU�FRQVXOWDQWV�GXULQJ�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��


1RUPDOO\��WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�GRHV�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��KRZHYHU��DQ\�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�
FRPPLWWHH�PD\�EH�GHVLJQDWHG�WR�GR�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��7KH�QH[W�WZR�VHFWLRQV�SURYLGH�JXLGDQFH�
ZKHQ�WKH�5)4�LV�VROLFLWHG�IRU�VSHFLDOL]HG�VHUYLFHV�DQG�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�UHTXLUHG�SULRU�WR�
FRVW�QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�FRQVXOWDQW��)RU�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV��VNLS�WKH�QH[W�WZR�VHFWLRQV�DQG�EHJLQ�
1HJRWLDWLRQ�SKDVH��


&RQGXFW�6FRSLQJ�0HHWLQJ�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�PHHWV�ZLWK�WKH�ILUVW�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�SURMHFW�PDQDJHU�WR�UHYLHZ�
WKH�SURMHFW��DQG�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�KDV�D�FRPSOHWH�XQGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�WKH�ZRUN�WKDW�LV�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


247 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
� � �


�
� �


� � � �
� � ��


� � �
� � � � �


� � � �
� � � �


� � � �
� � � �


� �
� � �


� �


� � �
� �


� � � � � �
� � � � � �


� �
� �


� � �
� � �


� �


� � �
� �
� � � �


� � �
�


� �


� � � � �
� � � �


� � �
� � � ���


� �
� ��


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


UHTXLUHG��7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�VKRZQ�DV�PXFK�PDWHULDO�DV�LV�DYDLODEOH�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�SURMHFW��$Q\�
WHFKQLFDO�TXHVWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�SURMHFW�DUH�DQVZHUHG�IRU�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��


5HTXHVW�&RVW�3URSRVDO�
7KH�ILUVW�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�DVNHG�WR�SURYLGH�D�FRVW�SURSRVDO�WR�SHUIRUP�WKH�ZRUN�GHVFULEHG�LQ�
WKH�GUDIW�FRQWUDFW�DQG�GLVFXVVHG�DW�WKH�VFRSLQJ�PHHWLQJ��7KH�ZRUN�LV�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�DFFRUGLQJ�
WR�WKH�FRQGLWLRQV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�GUDIW�FRQWUDFW�XVLQJ�WKH�SD\PHQW�PHWKRG�GHVFULEHG�WKHUHLQ��
$OWHUQDWLYHO\��LI�WLPH�LV�RI�WKH�HVVHQFH�DQG�LW�FDQ�EH�MXVWLILHG��VHDOHG�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�PD\�EH�
UHTXHVWHG�IURP�DOO�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQWV�RQ�WKH�VKRUWOLVW��


,I�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LQYROYHV�PRUH�WKDQ�RQH�SURMHFW��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�SURYLGH�D�VHSDUDWH�FRVW�
SURSRVDO�IRU�HDFK�SURMHFW�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�D�VXPPDU\�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�WKH�WRWDO�FRQWUDFW��,I�WKH�
FRQWUDFW�LQYROYHV�PLOHVWRQHV��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�IXUQLVK�D�VHSDUDWH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�HDFK�
PLOHVWRQH�ZLWK�D�VXPPDU\�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�WKH�WRWDO�FRVWV��,I�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LQYROYHV�
VXEFRQVXOWDQWV��WKH�SULPH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�LQFOXGH�D�VHSDUDWH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�HDFK�
VXEFRQVXOWDQW��(DFK�VXEFRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRVW�SURSRVDO�PXVW�IROORZ�WKH�VDPH�IRUPDW�DV�WKH�SULPH�
FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRVW�SURSRVDO��


1HJRWLDWH�&RQWUDFW�ZLWK�7RS�5DQNHG�&RQVXOWDQW�
&RVW�SURSRVDO��IRU�ERWK�3ULPH�DQG�DOO�6XEFRQVXOWDQW���DQG�FRQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�GRFXPHQWV�
VXFK�DV�([KLELW����.��&RQVXOWDQW�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�RI�&RQWUDFW�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�
6\VWHP�DQG�([KLELW����$��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�)LQDQFLDO�'RFXPHQW�5HYLHZ�5HTXHVW�DQG�&KHFNOLVW��
ZKLFKHYHU�DSSOLFDEOH��VHH�6HFWLRQ���������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV��ZLOO�EH�
VXEPLWWHG�LQ�D�VHSDUDWH�VHDOHG�HQYHORSH��7\SLFDOO\��WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�DUH�VXEPLWWHG�E\�WKH�
VKRUW�OLVWHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�RQO\��DW�WLPH�RI�LQWHUYLHZ��+RZHYHU��LI�WLPH�LV�RI�WKH�HVVHQFH�DQG�LW�FDQ�
EH�MXVWLILHG��RU�LI�QR�LQWHUYLHZV�DUH�SODQQHG��WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�FDQ�EH�UHTXHVWHG�IURP�DOO�
FRQVXOWDQW�ZLWK�WKHLU�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�TXDOLILFDWLRQ��


$IWHU�WKH�WRS�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW�VXEPLWV�D�VHDOHG�FRVW�SURSRVDO��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�UHYLHZV�WKH�
FRVW�SURSRVDO�DQG�FRPSDUHV�LW�ZLWK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�FRQILGHQWLDO�GHWDLOHG�LQGHSHQGHQW�FRVW�
HVWLPDWH�DQG�HQWHUV�LQWR�QHJRWLDWLRQV��7KH�JRDO�RI�QHJRWLDWLRQ�LV�WR�DJUHH�RQ�D�ILQDO�FRQWUDFW�WKDW�
GHOLYHUV�WR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�WKH�VHUYLFHV�RU�SURGXFWV�UHTXLUHG�DW�D�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�FRVW��7KH�
LQGHSHQGHQW�FRVW�HVWLPDWH��GHYHORSHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�UHTXHVWLQJ�D�FRVW�
SURSRVDO�IURP�WKH�WRS�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW��LV�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�EDVLV�DQG�WRRO�IRU�QHJRWLDWLRQV��


1HJRWLDWLRQV�VKRXOG�FRPPHQFH�ZLWK�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��,I�DJUHHPHQW�RQ�D�IDLU�DQG�
UHDVRQDEOH�SULFH�FDQQRW�EH�UHDFKHG��QHJRWLDWLRQV�VKRXOG�WKHQ�EH�IRUPDOO\�WHUPLQDWHG��
1HJRWLDWLRQV�WKHQ�SURFHHG�WR�WKH�QH[W�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��DQG�VR�RQ��(DFK�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�
FRVW�SURSRVDO�PXVW�UHPDLQ�VHDOHG�XQWLO�QHJRWLDWLRQV�FRPPHQFH�ZLWK�WKDW�SDUWLFXODU�FRQVXOWDQW��


$W�WKH�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�VXFFHVVIXO�FRVW�QHJRWLDWLRQV��DOO�UHPDLQLQJ�VHDOHG�HQYHORSHV�FRQWDLQLQJ�
FRVW�SURSRVDOV�VKDOO�EH�UHWXUQHG�WR�FRQVXOWDQWV��


&RVW�SURSRVDOV�LQ�HOHFWURQLF�IRUP�VKDOO�EH�VXEPLWWHG�VHSDUDWHO\�IURP�WKH�5)4�DQG�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�
D�VHFXUH�GDWDEDVH�WKDW�LV�LQDFFHVVLEOH�WR�WKH�PHPEHUV�LQYROYHG�LQ�WKH�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�
SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHVV��2QO\�WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�RI�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLOO�EH�UHTXHVWHG�
WR�EH�VHQW�WR�WKH�PHPEHUV��&RVW�SURSRVDOV�RI�XQVXFFHVVIXO�FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�FRQILGHQWLDO�DQG�
VKDOO�QRW�EH�RSHQHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�RU�DQ\�SULYDWH�HQWLW\�WKDW�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�XVHV�WR�VWRUH�
WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDOV��$Q\�FRQFHDOHG�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�RI�WKH�XQVXFFHVVIXO�FRQVXOWDQWV�PXVW�EH�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


248 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � �
� ����


� � �
� � �


� � � ��
� � � � � �


� � �
� � � � � �


� �
 


� �


� �


� �


� � �


� �


� �


� � �� �
�


� �
� � �


� � � � �
� �


� � �


� � � � �
� �


�
� � �


���


� � � � �
� � � � �


� �
� �


 


� � � � � �
� � �


� � �
�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


UHWXUQHG�XQRSHQHG�RU�SURSHUO\�GLVSRVHG�RI�E\�SHUPDQHQWO\�GHOHWLQJ�WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�ZULWWHQ�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV��


$�FRQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG��VHH�6HFWLRQ���������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�
5HYLHZ�3URFHVV�HDUOLHU�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU���/RFDO�DJHQF\�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�
WKH�VXEPLWWDO�RI�DOO�UHTXLUHG�GRFXPHQWDWLRQV�WR�&DOWUDQV�,2$,�LQ�D�WLPHO\�IDVKLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�
GRFXPHQWV�IRU�D�)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��&DOWUDQV�,2$,�ZLOO�QRW�SURFHHG�ZLWK�D�)LQDQFLDO�
5HYLHZ�XQWLO�DOO�UHTXLUHG�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�LV�FRPSOHWHG�FRUUHFWO\�DQG�VXEPLWWHG��1HJRWLDWLRQV�PD\�
EH�FRPSOHWHG�DIWHU�UHFHLSW�RI�WKH�&DOWUDQV�,2$,�)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�/HWWHU��$Q�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�DXGLW�
PD\�EH�SHUIRUPHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�UHFRUG�UHWHQWLRQ�SHULRG�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


7KH�LWHPV�W\SLFDOO\�QHJRWLDWHG�LQFOXGH��


x� :RUN�SODQ��


x� 6WDIILQJ�SODQ��


x� 6FKHGXOH��LQFOXGLQJ�FRQWUDFW�EHJLQ�DQG�HQG�GDWHV���


x� 3URGXFWV�WR�EH�GHOLYHUHG��


x� &ODVVLILFDWLRQ��ZDJH�UDWHV��DQG�H[SHULHQFH�OHYHO�RI�SHUVRQQHO�WR�EH�DVVLJQHG��


x� &RVW�LWHPV��SD\PHQWV�DQG�IHH�� )HH�LV�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�QHJRWLDWHG�DV�D�VHSDUDWH�
HOHPHQW��


7KH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5�LV�QRW�D�QHJRWLDEOH�LWHP��$�ORZHU�UDWH�FDQQRW�EH�QHJRWLDWHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\��)RU�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV��W\SLFDOO\�D�SULFH�DJUHHPHQW�LV�UHDFKHG�EDVHG�RQ�VSHFLILF�UDWH�RI�
FRPSHQVDWLRQ�IRU�WKH�WHUP�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��7KH�VXEVHTXHQW�WDVN�RUGHUV��RU�PLQL�DJUHHPHQWV�IRU�
LQGLYLGXDO�SURMHFW�ZRUN��LV�QHJRWLDWHG�EDVHG�RQ�FRVW�SOXV�IHH��RU�OXPS�VXP��ZKLFK�LV�GHULYHG�IURP�
WKH�ZDJH�UDWHV�DJUHHG�XSRQ�HDUOLHU�IRU�WKH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFW��


%HIRUH�H[HFXWLQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�UHYLHZ�FRQWUDFW�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�
DOO�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�PHW��VHH�$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�3URFXUHPHQW�&KHFNOLVW�
DW�KWWSV���GRW�FD�JRY�SURJUDPV�ORFDO�DVVLVWDQFH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�DQG�RWKHU�SROLF\�
LVVXHV�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFXUHPHQW���DQG�UHFHLYH�&DOWUDQV�,2$,¶V�)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�
DFFHSWDQFH�OHWWHU��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��


3ULRU�WR�FRQWUDFW�DZDUG��RU�DIWHU�FRQWUDFW�DZDUG�EXW�QR�ODWHU�WKDQ�WKH�ILUVW�LQYRLFH��WKH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�PXVW�VXEPLW�D�FRPSOHWHG�([KLELW����&�IRU�DOO�QHZ�RU�DPHQGHG�IHGHUDO�IXQGHG�$	(�
FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�XVLQJ�WKH�GDWDEDVH�DW�
KWWS���GODDHRYHUVLJKW�GRW�FD�JRY�IPL�ZHEG�([KLELW������&��SOHDVH�XVH�)LUHIR[�RU�&KURPH�LI�QRW�
VXSSRUWHG�E\�\RXU�EURZVHU���


,I�WKHUH�DUH�DQ\�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFW�DIWHU�VXEPLWWDO�RI�([KLELW����&��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�
VXEPLW�DQ�XSGDWHG�([KLELW����&�DQG�DOO�FRQWUDFW�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�
KWWS���GODDHRYHUVLJKW�GRW�FD�JRY�IPL�ZHEG�([KLELW������&. 6XEPLVVLRQ�RI�([KLELW����&�WR�
&DOWUDQV�+4�LV�QRW�UHTXLUHG�IRU�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


249 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/consultant-selection-procurement

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/consultant-selection-procurement

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � �


�
� � �


� � � �
� �
� � �


� � �
� � �


��


� � � �
� �


� �
� � �


�
� � �


� �
� �


�
� � � �


� � � �
� � � � � �


� �
� � � � �


� � � � �
� � � � � �


��


�
� � � �


� � � �
� � � �


� � � � �
�


� �


� � � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


��


� � � � ��


� � � � �
� � �


� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


�������&2168/7$17�6(/(&7,21�86,1*�7+(�7:2�67(3�5)4�5)3�0(7+2'�


&RPELQHG�5)4�DQG�5)3�
6HOHFWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQWV�XVLQJ�WKH�7ZR�6WHS�5)4�5)3�PHWKRG�UHTXLUHV�FRPELQLQJ�FHUWDLQ�VWHSV�
IURP�HDFK�RI�WKH�RWKHU�WZR�PHWKRGV�SUHYLRXVO\�GHVFULEHG��7KH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�UDWHG�EDVHG�XSRQ�
ERWK�WKHLU�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�WKHLU�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDOV��7KLV�SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHGXUH�LQYROYHV�D�
WZR�VWHS�SURFHVV�ZLWK�LVVXDQFH�RI�D�UHTXHVW�IRU�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��5)4��ZKHUHE\�UHVSRQGLQJ�
FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�HYDOXDWHG�DQG�UDQNHG�EDVHG�RQ�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�DQ�5)3�LV�WKHQ�SURYLGHG�WR�
WKUHH�RU�PRUH�RI�WKH�PRVW�KLJKO\�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��7KH�WZR�VWHS�PHWKRG�OHDGV�WR�DQ�
H[HFXWHG�SURMHFW�VSHFLILF�FRQWUDFW��


$�GLIIHUHQW�SURFHVV�PD\�DOVR�EH�XVHG�WKDW�LQFOXGHV�DVVHVVLQJ�PLQLPXP�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�RI�
FRQVXOWDQWV�WR�SHUIRUP�VHUYLFHV�XQGHU�JHQHUDO�ZRUN�FDWHJRULHV�RU�DUHDV�RI�H[SHUWLVH�WKURXJK�D�
SUHTXDOLILFDWLRQ�SURFHVV�ZKHUHE\�DQQXDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�GDWD�DUH�
HQFRXUDJHG��7KHVH�FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�QRW�UDQNHG��DQG�DQ�5)3�PXVW�EH�VXEPLWWHG�WR�WKH�HQWLUH�OLVW�
IRU�HYDOXDWLRQ�DQG�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ��5HJDUGOHVV�RI�DQ\�SURFHVV�XWLOL]HG�IRU�SUHTXDOLILFDWLRQ�RI�
FRQVXOWDQWV�RU�IRU�DQ�LQLWLDO�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�D�FRQVXOWDQW
V�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�XQGHU�D�5)4��D�5)3�
VSHFLILF�WR�WKH�SURMHFW��WDVN��RU�VHUYLFH�LV�UHTXLUHG�IRU�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�D�FRQVXOWDQW
V�VSHFLILF�
WHFKQLFDO�DSSURDFK�DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��


7KH�LQLWLDO�VWHSV�LQ�WKLV�PHWKRG��XS�WR�WKH�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�QRWLILFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�VKRUWOLVW��DUH�
VLPLODU�WR�WKH�VWHSV�IROORZHG�ZKHQ�XVLQJ�WKH�2QH�6WHS�5)4�PHWKRG��$W�WKLV�SRLQW��WKH�
FRQVXOWDQWV�IURP�WKH�VKRUWOLVW�DUH�LVVXHG�DQ�DGGLWLRQDO�5)3��7KH�UHPDLQLQJ�VWHSV�DUH�WKH�VDPH�
DV�WKH�ODWHU�VWHSV�IROORZHG�LQ�WKH�2QH�6WHS�5)3�PHWKRG��7KH�FRPELQDWLRQ�RI�WKHVH�VWHSV�LV�
LQGLFDWHG�LQ�)LJXUH�������&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�)ORZFKDUW��%HFDXVH�LW�LV�D�FRPELQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
2QH�6WHS�5)4�DQG�2QH�6WHS�5)3�PHWKRGV��WKLV�PHWKRG�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�UHTXLUHV�PRUH�
ZRUN�DQG�WLPH�WKDQ�WKH�RWKHU�WZR�PHWKRGV��&RQVHTXHQWO\��WKH�FRPELQHG�5)4�5)3�PHWKRG�LV�
UHFRPPHQGHG�IRU�XVH�RQO\�ZKHQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�LV�QRW�FOHDUO\�NQRZQ��YHU\�FRPSOH[�RU�
XQXVXDO��


7KH�7ZR�6WHS�5)4�5)3�LV�DOVR�ZHOO�VXLWHG�IRU�SURFXULQJ�PXOWLSOH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV�WKURXJK�D�
VLQJOH�VROLFLWDWLRQ��7KH�RXWFRPH�RI�WKH�ILUVW�VWHS�5)4�ZLOO�EH�PXOWLSOH�FRQWUDFWV��RU�RQ�FDOO�OLVW�RI�
FRQVXOWDQWV��)RU�PXOWLSOH�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV��SURMHFW�ZRUN�ZLOO�EH�SURFXUHG�WKUX�VXEVHTXHQW�
FRPSHWLWLRQ�RU�PLQL�5)3V�DPRQJVW�WKH�RQ�FDOO�FRQVXOWDQWV��7KH�PLQL�5)3�RU�WKH�WDVN�RUGHU�ZLOO�
EH�QHJRWLDWHG�ZLWK�ILUVW�UDQNHG�ILUP�IURP�HDFK�FRPSHWLWLRQ��7DVN�RUGHU��PLQL�5)3��FRVW�ZLOO�EH�
EDVHG�RQ�ZDJH�UDWHV�HVWDEOLVKHG�LQ�WKH�PDVWHU�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFW��DQG�WKH�WLPH�DQG�GHOLYHUDEOH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ�WKH�WDVN�RUGHU��


/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�PD\�DOVR�XVH�WKLV�PHWKRG�WR��


��� 'HYHORS�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�D�SUH�TXDOLILHG�ILOH�OLVW�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�ILUPV�E\�VSHFLILF�ZRUN�
FDWHJRULHV�RU�DUHDV�RI�H[SHUWLVH��7KLV�OLVW�LQFOXGHV�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�PHHW�WKH�PLQLPXP�
SXEOLVKHG�SDVV�IDLO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��7KH�SUH�TXDOLILHG�OLVW�FDQ�EH�XSGDWHG�DQQXDOO\�RU�DW�
OHDVW�HYHU\�WZR�\HDUV�DQG�PXVW�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�E\�WKH�DJHQF\��7KLV�OLVW�KDV�QRW�JRQH�
WKURXJK�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�SURFHVV��


��� &UHDWH�D�VKRUW�OLVW�RI�HYDOXDWHG�DQG�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�OHDGV�WR�H[HFXWHG�FRQWUDFWV�


7KH�PLQL�5)3�FRQWDLQV�HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD�WKDW�PDWFKHV�WKH�VWUHQJWKV�RI�WKH�TXDOLILHG�ILUPV�WR�WKH�
VSHFLILFV�RI�WKH�NQRZQ�WDVNV��WKHUHE\�VHOHFWLQJ�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�ILUP�IRU�HDFK�WDVN��7KH�
HYDOXDWLRQ�FDQ�LQFOXGH��DYDLODELOLW\�RI�SHUVRQQHO��VWDII�FDSDELOLWLHV��'%(������RU�OHVV�RI�RYHUDOO�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


250 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� �


� � � �
� �


� � � �
�


�
� � � � �


�


� � �


� �


� �


� �


� �


� �


� �


� �


� �


� � �


� ��


�
� � � �


� �


� � �
� � � �


� �
� � � � �


�


� � �


� � �


� � � � �
� �


� � � � �
�


� � �


� � � � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


VFRUH���FRPSOHWLRQ�WLPH��H[SHULHQFH�RI�FRQVXOWDQW��VSHFLDOL]HG�H[SHUWLVH��DQG�SDVW�SHUIRUPDQFH��
7KH�RYHUDOO�'%(�JRDO�ZDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�DW�WKH�PDVWHU�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFW��


%HFDXVH�LW�LV�D�FRPELQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�2QH�6WHS�5)4�DQG�2QH�6WHS�5)3�PHWKRGV��WKLV�PHWKRG�RI�
FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�UHTXLUHV�PRUH�ZRUN�DQG�WLPH�WKDQ�WKH�RWKHU�WZR�PHWKRGV��&RQVHTXHQWO\��
WKH�FRPELQHG�5)4�5)3�PHWKRG�LV�UHFRPPHQGHG�IRU�XVH�ZKHQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�LV�YHU\�
FRPSOH[�RU�XQXVXDO��


&DWHJRUL]H�ZRUN�
'HVFULSWLRQV�RI�WKH�FDWHJRULHV�RI�ZRUN��GHOLYHUDEOHV�DQG�WKH�PLQLPXP�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�VWDQGDUGV�IRU�
HDFK�FDWHJRU\�PXVW�EH�FOHDUO\�LGHQWLILHG��


7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PD\�SUHTXDOLI\�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUPV�LQ�WKH�IROORZLQJ��RU�PRUH��FDWHJRULHV��


x� 5RDGZD\�'HVLJQ�


x� %ULGJH�'HVLJQ�


x� %ULGJH�,QVSHFWLRQ�


x� 7UDIILF�(QJLQHHULQJ�


x� (QYLURQPHQWDO�6HUYLFHV�


x� 5RDGZD\�&RQVWUXFWLRQ�,QVSHFWLRQ�DQG�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�


x� /DQGVFDSH�$UFKLWHFWXUH�


x� /DQG�6XUYH\LQJ�


x� ,QWHOOLJHQW�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP��,76��


x� )HGHUDO±DLG�+LJKZD\�3URMHFW�'HYHORSPHQW�6XSSRUW�6HUYLFHV�


(VWDEOLVK�0LQLPXP�4XDOLILFDWLRQV�
,Q�DQ�HIIRUW�WR�HQVXUH�TXDOLW\�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�UHVXOWV��D�FRQVXOWDQW�VKRXOG�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�PHHW�
FHUWDLQ�PLQLPXP�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�WR�EH�HOLJLEOH�IRU�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�LQ�WKH�SUH�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�SURFHVV��


*HQHUDO�FULWHULD�JXLGHOLQHV�VKRXOG�EH�HVWDEOLVKHG�IRU�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�IRU�D�SUH�TXDOLILHG�OLVW��
7KH�FULWHULD�PD\�EH�HVWDEOLVKHG�E\�DQ�LQGLYLGXDO�RU�D�SDQHO�RI�VXEMHFW�PDWWHU�H[SHUWV�IRU�WKH�
VSHFLILF�WDVN�RI�GHYHORSLQJ�WKH�FULWHULD��6RPH�DJHQFLHV�DOVR�HVWDEOLVK�DSSURSULDWH�ZHLJKWV�IRU�
HDFK�FULWHULRQ��,W�PD\�EH�QHFHVVDU\�WR�PRGLI\�WKH�FULWHULD�WR�ILW�VSHFLILF�FDVHV��:KHQ�D�5)4�LV�
SXEOLVKHG��LW�VKRXOG�VWDWH�WKH�FULWHULD�WKDW�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�LQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV��


&ULWHULD�IRU�HYDOXDWLQJ�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��PD\�LQFOXGH�EXW�DUH�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��


x� 6SHFLDO�H[SHUWLVH�DQG�H[SHULHQFH�RI�WKH�ILUP¶V�NH\�HPSOR\HHV�


x� 3URSRVHG�VWDIILQJ��LQFOXGH�QXPEHU�RI�OLFHQVHG�DQG�VSHFLDOL]HG�VWDII��IRU�WKH�SURMHFW�DQG�
SUHYLRXV�H[SHULHQFH�RI�WKRVH�LGHQWLILHG�


x� ([SHULHQFH�RI�WKH�ILUP�DQG�WKHLU�SHUVRQQHO�RQ�SUHYLRXV�SURMHFWV�VLPLODU�WR�WKH�RQH�XQGHU�
FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�


x� &RQVXOWDQW�'%(�&RPPLWPHQW�GRFXPHQW��VHH�([KLELW����2���


x� 3URIHVVLRQDO�UHIHUHQFHV�E\�WKH�ILUP�ZLWK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


251 of 611



http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/forms/chapter10/10o1.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� �


� � � � �


� � � �


� � �


� � � � � � � � �
�


�


� � �


� � � � �
�


�
� � � �


� � �
� � �


� �
� � � � �


� �


� �
�


� � � � �
� � �


� �
�


� � �
�


� � �
� � � � �


� � � �
�


� � �
� �


� � � �
�


�
�


� �


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


x� 8QGHUVWDQGLQJ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�E\�WKH�ILUP�DV�GHPRQVWUDWHG�E\�WKHLU�DSSURDFK�WR�RUJDQL]LQJ�
DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�WKH�ZRUN�


x� &XUUHQW�ZRUNORDG�RI�WKH�ILUP�DQG�WKHLU�DELOLW\�WR�PHHW�WKH�SURSRVHG�SURMHFW�VFKHGXOH�


x� 4XDOLW\�RI�SUHYLRXV�SHUIRUPDQFH�E\�WKH�ILUP�ZLWK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�


x� 8VH�RI�VXE�FRQVXOWDQWV�WR�DFFRPSOLVK�ZRUN�RQ�WKH�SURMHFW�


x� (TXLSPHQW� WKH�ILUP�KDV�DYDLODEOH�DQG�SURSRVHV� WR�XVH�DV�FRPSDWLELOLW\�ZLWK�&RPSXWHU�
$LGHG� 'UDIWLQJ� DQG� 'HVLJQ� �&$''�� DQG� RWKHU� HTXLSPHQW� SURSRVHG� WR� EH� XVHG� LQ�
DFFRPSOLVKLQJ�WKH�ZRUN�


x� )DPLOLDULW\�ZLWK�IHGHUDO��VWDWH��DQG�ORFDO�FRGHV��UHTXLUHPHQWV��VWDQGDUGV��DQG�SURFHGXUH�


x� ([DPSOHV�RI�PLQLPXP�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�IRU�ZRUN�FDWHJRULHV�DERYH�DUH�SURYLGHG�KHUH�EDVHG�
RQ�&DOWUDQV�EHVW�SUDFWLFHV�


,VVXH�5)4�
7KH�QHHG�IRU�VHUYLFHV�RI�D�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�PD\�EH�DGYHUWLVHG�LQ�DSSURSULDWH�QDWLRQDO��VWDWH��DQG�
ORFDO�SXEOLFDWLRQV�DQG�ZHE�VLWHV��1RWLFHV�FDQ�DOVR�EH�VHQW�WR�ILUPV�NQRZQ�WR�EH�TXDOLILHG�WR�GR�
VSHFLILF�ZRUN��WR�SURIHVVLRQDO�VRFLHWLHV��DQG�WR�UHFRJQL]HG�'LVDGYDQWDJHG�%XVLQHVV�(QWHUSULVHV�
�'%(��RUJDQL]DWLRQV��7KH�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�DQG�QRWLFHV�VHHN�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�LQWHUHVW�DQG�
TXDOLILFDWLRQV�IURP�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZKR�DUH�LQWHUHVWHG�LQ�WKH�SURMHFW��7KH�'%(�JRDO�LV�HVWDEOLVKHG�DW�
WKH�PDVWHU�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFW�DQG�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�GRFXPHQW��


7KH�624�VKRXOG�OLVW�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�GHWDLOV��QDPHV�RI�SULQFLSDOV��RIILFH�ORFDWLRQV��SHUVRQQHO�E\�
GLVFLSOLQH��SURMHFW�H[SHULHQFH�DQG�H[DPSOHV��FXUUHQW�ZRUNORDG��W\SHV�RI�VHUYLFH�WKH�ILUPV�DUH�
TXDOLILHG�WR�SHUIRUP��DQG�SUHYLRXV�SHUIRUPDQFH��$OVR��UHVXPHV�RI�NH\�SHUVRQV��VSHFLDOLVWV��DQG�
RWKHU�DVVRFLDWHV�WKDW�PD\�EH�DVVLJQHG�WR�WKH�SURMHFW�RU�SURMHFWV�VKRXOG�EH�LQFOXGHG��7KLV�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�VKRXOG�EH�WKH�EDVLV�IRU�HYDOXDWLQJ�DQG�SODFLQJ�D�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�RQ�D�JHQHUDO�SUH�
TXDOLILFDWLRQ�OLVW��


)HGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV�UHTXLUH�WKDW�DQ\�SURFHGXUHV�UHODWHG�WR�SUH�TXDOLI\LQJ�FRQVXOWDQW�FDQQRW�
UHVWULFW�FRPSHWLWLRQ��


3UH�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV�PD\�EH�DOORZHG�DV�D�FRQGLWLRQ�IRU�VXEPLWWLQJ�D�WHFKQLFDO�
SURSRVDO�IRU�D�FRQWUDFW�RQO\�LI�WKH�SHULRG�EHWZHHQ�WKH�GDWH�RI�WKH�LVVXDQFH�RI�WKH�5)3�DQG�WKH�
GHDGOLQH�IRU�VXEPLWWLQJ�D�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�DIIRUGV�VXIILFLHQW�WLPH�WR�HQDEOH�D�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�
REWDLQ�SUH�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�VWDWXV��


$QRWKHU�SUDFWLFH�LV�WR�TXDOLI\�FRQVXOWDQWV�RQ�D�SURMHFW�E\�SURMHFW�EDVLV��7KLV�LV�DFFRPSOLVKHG�IRU�
VRPH�DJHQFLHV�E\�DGYHUWLVLQJ�RU�SXEOLVKLQJ�QRWLFHV�LQ�QDWLRQDO��VWDWH��DQG�ORFDO�SXEOLFDWLRQV�IRU�
QHHGHG�VHUYLFHV�IRU�VSHFLILF��LQGLYLGXDO�SURMHFWV��7KHVH�QRWLFHV�LQFOXGH�D�SUHFLVH�SURMHFW�
ORFDWLRQ��D�GHILQHG�SUHOLPLQDU\�VFRSH�RI�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG��D�VSHFLILF�VFKHGXOH�ZLWKLQ�
ZKLFK�WKH�ZRUN�LV�WR�EH�FRPSOHWHG��DQG�D�OLVW�RI�SURGXFWV�DQG�GHOLYHUDEOHV�WR�EH�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW��6SHFLILF�SURMHFW�DGYHUWLVHPHQWV�XVXDOO\�DUH�SXEOLVKHG�ZKHQ�WKH�SURSRVHG�SURMHFW�LV�
ODUJH�DQG�FRPSOH[��LQ�KRXVH�UHVRXUFHV�DUH�QRW�DYDLODEOH��VSHFLDO�H[SHUWLVH�LV�UHTXLUHG��RU�WKH�
REMHFWLYLW\�RI�DQ�RXWVLGH�DXWKRULW\�LV�GHVLUHG��


$SSURSULDWH�)HGHUDO�DLG�UHTXLUHPHQWV�VKRXOG�EH�FRPSOLHG�ZLWK�RQ�)HGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFWV��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


252 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � � � �


� �
� �


� � �
��


�


� �
� � ���


�
�


� � �
� � � � � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �


� � �
� � � �


� � �


�
� �


�
� � � �


��


� � � �
� � � � �


� �
�


�
� � � �


�
� �


� � ��


� � �
� � � � � � �


� �
��


� �
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


6HW�8S�(YDOXDWLRQ�3URFHVV�
7KH�ILUVW�VWHS�LQ�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�SURFHVV�LV�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKDW�HDFK�624�FRQWDLQV�DOO�IRUPV��
TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�5)4��2WKHUZLVH��WKH�VXEPLWWDOV�PD\�EH�
FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�UHMHFWHG�ZLWKRXW�HYDOXDWLRQ��'RFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�ZKHQ�HDFK�624�
ZDV�UHFHLYHG�PXVW�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�SURMHFW�ILOHV��&RSLHV�RI�GDWH�VWDPSHG�HQYHORSH�FRYHUV�
RU�ER[�WRSV�DUH�UHFRPPHQGHG��


,I�DOO�UHTXLUHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�QRW�SURYLGHG��D�624�PD\�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�
UHMHFWHG�ZLWKRXW�HYDOXDWLRQ��/DWH�VXEPLWWDOV��VXEPLWWDOV�WR�WKH�ZURQJ�ORFDWLRQ��RU�VXEPLWWDOV�ZLWK�
LQDGHTXDWH�FRSLHV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�VKDOO�EH�UHMHFWHG��6XEPLWWDO�RI�DGGLWLRQDO�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�DIWHU�WKH�GXH�GDWH�VKDOO�QRW�EH�DOORZHG��


/RFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�HVWDEOLVK�D�SURFHVV�E\�ZKLFK�624V�DUH�HYDOXDWHG�DQG�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZKR�DUH�
GHHPHG�PHHWLQJ�WKH�PLQLPXP�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DUH�DFFHSWHG�DQG�SODFHG�RQ�D�SHU�TXDOLILHG�OLVW��
:KHWKHU�WKH�/RFDO�DJHQF\�KDV�D�³FRPPLWWHH´�RI�H[SHUWV�HYDOXDWLQJ�WKH�624V�RU�LQGLYLGXDOV�
UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ��WKH�SURFHVV�PXVW�EH�ZHOO�GHILQHG��RSHQ�DQG�WUDQVSDUHQW��7KH�
SUH�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�SURFHVV�PXVW�DOVR�DOORZ�IRU�FRQVXOWDQWV�WR�EH�UH�HYDOXDWHG�LQ�FDVHV�RI�GHQLDOV��
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�VSHFLI\�KRZ�ORQJ�WKH�SUH�TXDOLILHG�OLVW�ODVW��QRW�WR�H[FHHG�WZR�\HDUV��
)HGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQ�UHFRPPHQGV�UHIUHVKLQJ�WKH�624V�RQ�DQ�DQQXDO�EDVLV��


/RFDO�DJHQF\�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�HQVXUHV�WKDW�DOO�FRPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV�PHHW�WKH�FRQIOLFW�RI�
LQWHUHVW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�����&)5������E\�FRPSOHWLQJ�DQG�VLJQLQJ�D�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�VWDWHPHQW�
SULRU�WR�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�LQLWLDWLRQ��$�VDPSOH�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�IRUP�LV�SURYLGHG�LQ�([KLELW����7��


(YDOXDWH�4XDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�$GG�)LUP�WR�/LVW�
$OO�624V�UHFHLYHG�VKRXOG�ILUVW�EH�UHYLHZHG�IRU�FRPSOHWHQHVV��(DFK�UHVSRQVH�PXVW�FRQWDLQ�DOO�
UHTXLUHG�IRUPV�DQG�DQ\�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXHVWHG�LQ�WKH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��7KH�UHVSRQVH�PD\�EH�
FRQVLGHUHG�LQFRPSOHWH�DQG�UHMHFWHG�ZLWKRXW�IXUWKHU�HYDOXDWLRQ�LI�DOO�UHTXLUHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�QRW�
SURYLGHG�RU�LI�WKH�VXEPLWWDO�LV�ODWH��


7KH�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�RI�DOO�UHVSRQGLQJ�ILUPV�DUH�WKHQ�UHYLHZHG�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�HVWDEOLVKHG�HYDOXDWLRQ�
FULWHULD�RU�IDFWRUV��7KH�DJHQF\�WKHQ�HVWDEOLVKHV�D�VKRUW�OLVW�RI�DW�OHDVW�WKUHH�FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�DUH�
GHWHUPLQHG�WR�EH�WKH�PRVW�KLJKO\�TXDOLILHG�WR�SHUIRUP�WKH�UHTXLUHG�ZRUN��)LUPV�QRW�VHOHFWHG�
VKRXOG�EH�QRWLILHG�LQ�ZULWLQJ��


0DLQWDLQ�/LVW�
3UH�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�RI�D�FRQVXOWDQW�H[SLUHV�LQ�WZR�\HDUV��3UH�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�PXVW�UHQHZ�WKHLU�
SUH�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�VWDWXV�HYHU\�WZR�\HDUV��)LUPV�FDQ�DSSO\�WR�EH�RQ�WKH�OLVW�DW�DQ\�WLPH��$IWHU�D�
SHULRG�RI�WZR�\HDUV��ILUPV�VKRXOG�UH�DSSO\��UHSHDW�WKH�SURFHVV�RI�VXEPLWWLQJ�624V��WR�EH�RQ�WKH�
OLVW��,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WR�WKH�UHTXLUHG�WZR�\HDU�UHQHZDO�SURFHVV��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VKRXOG�DOVR�EH�UHTXLUHG�
WR�XSGDWH�WKH�ILUP¶V�RUJDQL]DWLRQDO�VWUXFWXUH�ZLWKLQ�RQH�\HDU�ZKHQ�WKHUH�LV�D�FRUSRUDWH�DIILOLDWH�
FKDQJH��RZQHUVKLS�FRQWURO��W\SH�RI�ZRUN�H[SHUWLVH��FDSDFLW\��RU�DQ\�RWKHU�PDMRU�FKDQJH��


,I�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�GRHV�QRW�PHHW�WKH�PLQLPXP�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�WKHLU�624�LV�UHMHFWHG��WKH�
FRPPLWWHH�PXVW�UHVSRQG�WR�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�H[SODLQLQJ�WKH�UHDVRQ�IRU�WKHLU�UHMHFWLRQ��7KH�
FRQVXOWDQW�LV�DOORZHG�WR�UHDSSO\�WR�EH�RQ�WKH�OLVW�DJDLQ�SURYLGHG�WKH�UHDVRQV�IRU�UHMHFWLRQ�DUH�
FRUUHFWHG��


7KH�OLVW�RI�TXDOLILHG�ILUPV�FDQ�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�RQOLQH�WKURXJK�WKH�DJHQF\¶V�ZHEVLWH��)LUPV�FDQ�DOVR�
DSSO\�WR�EH�RQ�WKH�OLVW�WKURXJK�WKH�DJHQF\�ZHEVLWH�IRU�HDVH�RI�RSHUDWLRQ��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


253 of 611



http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/forms/chapter10/10t.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � � � �


� � �
� � �


�


� �
��


� � �


� �


� �


� � �


� �


� � �


� � �


� �


� � � �


� � �
�


� �
� � � �


� � � � �
� � � �


� �
� � �


� �


�
� � � �


� �
� � �


�
� � �


� � �
��


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � ��


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


,VVXH�5)3�WR�3UH�4XDOLILHG�&RQVXOWDQWV�RQ�/LVW�
$Q�5)3�LV�VHQW�WR�WKH�VKRUW�OLVWHG�ILUPV��7KH�5)3�VKRXOG�LQGLFDWH�WKH�FRQWHQW�RI�WKH�WHFKQLFDO�
SURSRVDO��WHFKQLFDO�UHYLHZ�SURFHGXUHV��DQWLFLSDWHG�VFKHGXOH�RI�DFWLYLWLHV��VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��SURMHFW�
GHVFULSWLRQ��ZKHUH�WKH�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDOV�DUH�WR�EH�GHOLYHUHG��WKH�QXPEHU�RI�FRSLHV�UHTXLUHG��
DQG�WKH�GXH�GDWH��


6RPH�DJHQFLHV�UHFHLYH�WKH�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�RUDOO\�DV�SDUW�RI�DQ�LQWHUYLHZ�FRQGXFWHG�IRU�WKLV�
SXUSRVH��,Q�WKHVH�FDVHV��ZULWWHQ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�PD\�QRW�EH�UHTXLUHG��


,WHPV�W\SLFDOO\�UHTXLUHG�LQ�D�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�LQFOXGH��


x� :RUN�SODQ�


x� 2UJDQL]DWLRQ�SODQ�


x� 6FKHGXOH�IRU�PHHWLQJ�WLPH�IUDPH�


x� $YDLODEOH�FRPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQW�DQG�SURJUDPV�


x� 6WDIILQJ�SODQ�DQG�UHVXPHV�LQFOXGLQJ�VXE�FRQVXOWDQWV�


x� 3UH�DZDUG�DXGLW�ILQDQFLDO�SDFNDJH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��LI�GHHPHG�DSSURSULDWH��


x� ([DPSOHV�RI�VLPLODU�ZRUN�SUHYLRXVO\�FRPSOHWHG�


x� 6XE�FRQVXOWDQWV��'%(��WKHLU�SURSRVHG�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ��DQG�RWKHU�UHODWHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�


&RQGXFW�3URSRVHU¶V�&RQIHUHQFH�RU�$QVZHU�:ULWWHQ�4XHVWLRQV�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PD\�DOORZ�IRU�FODULILFDWLRQ�RI�WKH�5)3�E\�LQYLWLQJ�VXEPLWWDO�RI�ZULWWHQ�TXHVWLRQV�
RU�E\�FRQGXFWLQJ�D�SURSRVHU¶V�FRQIHUHQFH��RU�E\�GRLQJ�ERWK��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�SXEOLVK�RU�
PDLO�WKHLU�UHVSRQVHV�WR�DQ\�ZULWWHQ�TXHVWLRQV�WR�DOO�FRQVXOWDQWV�UHFHLYLQJ�WKH�5)3��1R�UHVSRQVH�
VKRXOG�EH�JLYHQ�WR�YHUEDO�TXHVWLRQV��,W�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WKDW�DOO�FRPSHWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQWV�UHFHLYH�WKH�
VDPH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��,I�D�SURSRVHU¶V�FRQIHUHQFH�LV�WR�EH�KHOG��WKH�H[DFW�WLPH�DQG�SODFH�PXVW�EH�
VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�5)3��$WWHQGDQFH�DW�D�SURSRVHU¶V�FRQIHUHQFH�QRUPDOO\�LV�QRW�PDQGDWRU\��
+RZHYHU��FRQVXOWDQWV�QRW�DWWHQGLQJ�WKH�FRQIHUHQFH�GR�QRW�UHFHLYH�QRWHV�IURP�WKH�PHHWLQJ�
XQOHVV�WKH\�UHTXHVW�WKH�QRWHV��


5HFHLYH�DQG�(YDOXDWH�7HFKQLFDO�3URSRVDOV�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�PXVW�YHULI\�WKDW�HDFK�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�FRQWDLQV�DOO�IRUPV�DQG�RWKHU�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�5)3��,I�DOO�UHTXLUHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�QRW�SURYLGHG��D�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�
PD\�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�UHMHFWHG�ZLWKRXW�HYDOXDWLRQ��/DWH�VXEPLWWDOV��VXEPLWWDOV�
WR�WKH�ZURQJ�ORFDWLRQ��RU�VXEPLWWDOV�ZLWK�LQDGHTXDWH�FRSLHV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�
VKDOO�EH�UHMHFWHG��6XEPLWWDO�RI�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DIWHU�WKH�GXH�GDWH�VKDOO�QRW�EH�DOORZHG��
'RFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�ZKHQ�HDFK�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�ZDV�UHFHLYHG�PXVW�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�SURMHFW�
ILOHV��&RSLHV�RI�GDWH�VWDPSHG�HQYHORSH�FRYHUV�RU�ER[�WRSV�DUH�UHFRPPHQGHG��


$�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�ZLWK�D�PLQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�PHPEHUV�LV�DSSRLQWHG�DW�WKH�
EHJLQQLQJ�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV��7KH�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�
FRPPLWWHH�PXVW�HYDOXDWH�HDFK�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�DFFRUGLQJ�WR�WKH�WHFKQLFDO�FULWHULD�OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�
5)3��$�PLQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDOV�PXVW�EH�UHFHLYHG�DQG�HYDOXDWHG��


,I�RQO\�WZR�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDOV�DUH�UHFHLYHG��D�MXVWLILFDWLRQ�PXVW�EH�GRFXPHQWHG�WR�SURFHHG�ZLWK�
WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��,I�RQO\�RQH�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�LV�UHFHLYHG��D�1RQ�&RPSHWLWLYH�SURFHVV�PXVW�EH�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


254 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
��


�
� � �


� � � �


�
� �


�
� � �


� � �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� �
� � �


�
� � �


�


� �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � � �


� � �
� � � � �


� � � �
� � �


� �
� � �


� �


�
� � � � � �


���


� � �
� � � �


� � � �
� �


� �


� � � � �
� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


MXVWLILHG�DQG�D�3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ��/$30�([KLELW����)��PXVW�EH�GRFXPHQWHG��,Q�HLWKHU�FDVH��
WKH�UH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�RI�WKH�5)3�VKRXOG�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�DV�DQ�RSWLRQ��


7KH�FRPPLWWHH�PXVW�DOVR�HYDOXDWH�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�JDWKHUHG�
LQGHSHQGHQWO\��5HIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�VKDOO�EH�FRPSOHWHG�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�JDWKHUHG�EHIRUH�WKH�
LQWHUYLHZV�DUH�FRQGXFWHG��,I�QHFHVVDU\��WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�RU�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
PD\�EH�GLVFXVVHG�ZLWK�WKH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�DW�WKH�LQWHUYLHZV��


'HYHORS�)LQDO�5DQNLQJ�DQG�1RWLI\�&RQVXOWDQWV�RI�5HVXOWV�
7KH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�GLVFXVVHV�DQG�GRFXPHQWV�WKH�VWUHQJWKV�DQG�ZHDNQHVVHV�RI�HDFK�
WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO��LQWHUYLHZV�WKH�WKUHH�RU�PRUH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��VKRUWOLVWHG���DQG�
GHYHORSV�D�ILQDO�UDQNLQJ�RI�WKH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQWV��$OO�FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�VXEPLWWHG�
WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDOV�PXVW�EH�LQIRUPHG�DERXW�WKH�ILQDO�UDQNLQJ�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV��,W�LV�LPSRUWDQW�WKDW�
DOO�FRPSHWLQJ�FRQVXOWDQWV�UHFHLYH�WKH�VDPH�LQIRUPDWLRQ��


0RVW�FRQVXOWDQWV�ZLOO�UHTXHVW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DV�WR�ZK\�WKH\�ZHUH�QRW�WKH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG��7KHUHIRUH��
WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�VKRXOG�NHHS�QRWHV�DV�WR�ZK\�D�SDUWLFXODU�FRQVXOWDQW�ZDV�QRW�VHOHFWHG��
:KHQ�D�FRQVXOWDQW�UHTXHVWV�GHEULHILQJ��WKH�UHDVRQV�IRU�QRW�EHLQJ�VHOHFWHG�PXVW�EH�REMHFWLYH�
UHDVRQV��7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�VKRXOG�QRW�EH�FRPSDUHG�WR�RWKHUV�DQG�VKRXOG�QRW�EH�SURYLGHG�ZLWK�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�RWKHU�FRQVXOWDQWV�GXULQJ�WKLV�GHEULHILQJ��1RUPDOO\��WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�
GRHV�WKH�GHEULHILQJ��KRZHYHU��DQ\�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�PD\�EH�GHVLJQDWHG�WR�GR�
WKH�GHEULHILQJ��


5HTXHVW�&RVW�3URSRVDO�DQG�1HJRWLDWH�&RQWUDFW�ZLWK�7RS�5DQNHG�&RQVXOWDQW�
7KH�ILUVW�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�DVNHG�WR�SURYLGH�D�FRVW�SURSRVDO�WR�SHUIRUP�WKH�ZRUN�GHVFULEHG�LQ�
WKH�GUDIW�FRQWUDFW�DQG�GLVFXVVHG�DW�WKH�VFRSLQJ�PHHWLQJ��7KH�ZRUN�LV�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�DFFRUGLQJ�
WR�WKH�FRQGLWLRQV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�GUDIW�FRQWUDFW�XVLQJ�WKH�SD\PHQW�PHWKRG�GHVFULEHG�WKHUHLQ��
$OWHUQDWLYHO\��LI�WLPH�LV�RI�WKH�HVVHQFH�DQG�LW�FDQ�EH�MXVWLILHG��VHDOHG�FRVW�SURSRVDOV�PD\�EH�
UHTXHVWHG�IURP�DOO�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQWV�RQ�WKH�VKRUWOLVW��


,I�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LQYROYHV�PRUH�WKDQ�RQH�SURMHFW��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�SURYLGH�D�VHSDUDWH�FRVW�
SURSRVDO�IRU�HDFK�SURMHFW�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�D�VXPPDU\�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�WKH�WRWDO�FRQWUDFW��,I�WKH�
FRQWUDFW�LQYROYHV�PLOHVWRQHV��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�IXUQLVK�D�VHSDUDWH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�HDFK�
PLOHVWRQH�ZLWK�D�VXPPDU\�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�WKH�WRWDO�FRVWV��,I�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LQYROYHV�
VXEFRQVXOWDQWV��WKH�SULPH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�LQFOXGH�D�VHSDUDWH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRU�HDFK�
VXEFRQVXOWDQW��(DFK�VXEFRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRVW�SURSRVDO�PXVW�IROORZ�WKH�VDPH�IRUPDW�DV�WKH�SULPH�
FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRVW�SURSRVDO��


&RVW�SURSRVDO��IRU�ERWK�SULPH�DQG�DOO�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV��DQG�FRQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�GRFXPHQWV��
VXFK�DV�([KLELW����.�DQG�([KLELW����$��ZKLFKHYHU�DSSOLFDEOH��VHH�6HFWLRQ���������$	(�
&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV���ZLOO�EH�VXEPLWWHG�LQ�D�VHSDUDWH�VHDOHG�HQYHORSH��


$IWHU�WKH�WRS�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW�VXEPLWV�D�VHDOHG�FRVW�SURSRVDO��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�UHYLHZV�WKH�
FRVW�SURSRVDO�DQG�HQWHUV�LQWR�QHJRWLDWLRQV��7KH�JRDO�RI�QHJRWLDWLRQ�LV�WR�DJUHH�RQ�D�ILQDO�FRQWUDFW�
WKDW�GHOLYHUV�WR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�WKH�VHUYLFHV�RU�SURGXFWV�UHTXLUHG�DW�D�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�FRVW��
7KH�LQGHSHQGHQW�FRVW�HVWLPDWH��GHYHORSHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�UHTXHVWLQJ�D�FRVW�
SURSRVDO�IURP�WKH�WRS�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW��LV�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�EDVLV�DQG�WRRO�IRU�QHJRWLDWLRQV��


1HJRWLDWLRQV�VKRXOG�FRPPHQFH�ZLWK�WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��,I�DJUHHPHQW�RQ�D�IDLU�DQG�
UHDVRQDEOH�SULFH�FDQQRW�EH�UHDFKHG��QHJRWLDWLRQV�VKRXOG�WKHQ�EH�IRUPDOO\�WHUPLQDWHG��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


255 of 611



http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/forms/chapter10/10k.pdf

http://forms.dot.ca.gov/v2Forms/servlet/FormRenderer?frmid=EXHIBIT10A





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
� � � � �


� �
� � �


� �
� � �


� � � �
� � � � �


� �
�


� �


� �


� � � �


� �


� �


� � � � �


� �
�


� �
�


� � � � � �
� � �


�
�


� ��


�
� � ��


� � � �
� � � � � � � �


� � � � �
� � �


�
� � � � � � � �


� � � �


� �
� � �


� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


1HJRWLDWLRQV�WKHQ�SURFHHG�WR�WKH�QH[W�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQW��DQG�VR�RQ��(DFK�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�
FRVW�SURSRVDO�PXVW�UHPDLQ�VHDOHG�XQWLO�QHJRWLDWLRQV�FRPPHQFH�ZLWK�WKDW�SDUWLFXODU�FRQVXOWDQW��
$W�WKH�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�VXFFHVVIXO�FRVW�QHJRWLDWLRQV��DOO�UHPDLQLQJ�VHDOHG�HQYHORSHV�FRQWDLQLQJ�
FRVW�SURSRVDOV�VKDOO�EH�UHWXUQHG�WR�FRQVXOWDQWV��


$�FRQWUDFW�DXGLW�DQG�UHYLHZ�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG��VHH�6HFWLRQ���������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�
5HYLHZ�3URFHVV���7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�VXEPLWWDO�RI�DOO�
UHTXLUHG�GRFXPHQWDWLRQV�WR�&DOWUDQV�,2$,�LQ�D�WLPHO\�IDVKLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�DOO�GRFXPHQWV�IRU�D�
&RQIRUPDQFH�5HYLHZ��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��1HJRWLDWLRQV�PD\�EH�FRPSOHWHG�DIWHU�UHFHLSW�RI�WKH�&DOWUDQV�
,2$,�&RQIRUPDQFH�/HWWHU��$Q�LQGLUHFW�FRVW�DXGLW�PD\�EH�SHUIRUPHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�UHFRUG�UHWHQWLRQ�
SHULRG�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


,WHPV�W\SLFDOO\�QHJRWLDWHG�LQFOXGH��


x� :RUN�SODQ�


x� 6FKHGXOH�DQG�GHDGOLQHV��IRU�GHOLYHUDEOHV�DQG�ILQDO�GXUDWLRQ�RI�FRQWUDFW��


x� 3URGXFWV�WR�EH�GHOLYHUHG�


x� &ODVVLILFDWLRQ��ZDJH�UDWHV��DQG�H[SHULHQFH�OHYHO�RI�SHUVRQQHO�WR�EH�DVVLJQHG�


x� 2WKHU�'LUHFW�&RVW�LWHPV��DQG�SURILW�RU�IHH�


7KH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�,&5�LV�QRW�D�QHJRWLDEOH�LWHP��$�ORZHU�UDWH�FDQQRW�EH�QHJRWLDWHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\��


7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�ZLOO�DJUHH�RQ�WKH�ILQDO�FRVW�SURSRVDO�DQG�LQFRUSRUDWH�LQWR�
ILQDO�FRQWUDFW��


%HIRUH�H[HFXWLQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�UHYLHZ�FRQWUDFW�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�
DOO�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�PHW��VHH�$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�3URFXUHPHQW�&KHFNOLVW�
DW�KWWSV���GRW�FD�JRY�SURJUDPV�ORFDO�DVVLVWDQFH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�DQG�RWKHU�SROLF\�
LVVXHV�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFXUHPHQW���


������&203/(7,1*�7+(�352-(&7�


'HYHORS�WKH�)LQDO�&RQWUDFW�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�UHTXHVWV�D�UHYLVHG�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IURP�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�DIWHU��
����QHJRWLDWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�FRPSOHWHG������WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�FRQVXOWDQW�KDYH�DJUHHG�WR�D�IDLU�
DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�SULFH��DQG�����D�OHWWHU��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��LV�UHOHDVHG�E\�&DOWUDQV�,2$,�WKDW�DFFHSWV��
GHQLHV�RU�PDNHV�DQ�DGMXVWPHQW�WR�WKH�SURSRVHG�,&5��7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�VKRXOG�UHYLHZ�
WKH�UHYLVHG�FRVW�SURSRVDO�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�DOO�WKH�LWHPV�DQG�FKDQJHV�GLVFXVVHG�GXULQJ�QHJRWLDWLRQ�
ZHUH�LQFOXGHG��7KLV�UHYLVHG�FRVW�SURSRVDO�WKHQ�EHFRPHV�WKH�ILQDO�FRVW�SURSRVDO��LV�DWWDFKHG�WR�
DQG�PDGH�D�SDUW�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��6DPSOH�FRQWUDFW�ODQJXDJH�DQG�IRUPDW�KDYH�EHHQ�
LQFOXGHG�DV�([KLELW����5��$	(�%RLOHUSODWH�$JUHHPHQW�/DQJXDJH��


7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�KDV�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�ILQDO�QHJRWLDWHG�FRQWUDFW�LV�
FRPSOHWH�DQG�KDV�YHULILHG�WKDW�DOO�UHTXLUHG�EDFNXS�GRFXPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�SURYLGHG��&RSLHV�RI�
WKH�FRQWUDFW�DUH�VHQW�WR�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�IRU�VLJQDWXUH�ILUVW��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


256 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/consultant-selection-procurement

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/consultant-selection-procurement

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � � �


� �


� � � �


� � � �


� � � �
� �


� � � � � �
� � � �
� � �


� �


� � � � �
��


� � � � �
���


� � � � � �
� � � � �


�


� � �
�


� � �


� �
� �


� � �
�


� �
�


� � �
�


� � � � �
� � �


�
� �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


�


,�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


5HYLHZ�DQG�$SSURYDO�RI�&RQWUDFWV�
3URSRVHG�FRQWUDFWV�IRU�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV��LQFOXGLQJ�VXEFRQWUDFWHG�ZRUN��PXVW�EH�UHYLHZHG�E\�
WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�WR�YHULI\�WKDW��


x� &RPSHQVDWLRQ�LV�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�DQG�LQFOXGHV�SUHYDLOLQJ�ZDJH�UDWHV��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��


x� :RUN�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�VFKHGXOHV�DUH�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�QDWXUH�DQG�VFRSH�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��


x� '%(�JRDO�([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'%(�&RPPLWPHQW�LV�LQFOXGHG�IRU�DOO�
FRQWUDFWV�UHJDUGOHVV�RI�JRDO���


x� ([KLELW����.��&RQVXOWDQW�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�RI�&RQWUDFW�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�
6\VWHP��IRU�3ULPH�DQG�6XEV���DQG�([KLELW����$��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�)LQDQFLDO�'RFXPHQW�
5HYLHZ�5HTXHVW�DQG�&KHFNOLVW�DQG�DOO�VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWV��LI�DSSOLFDEOH��FRQWUDFWV�
DERYH������������KDYH�EHHQ�VXEPLWWHG�WR�&DOWUDQV�,2$,��


x� ,I�DSSOLFDEOH��DGMXVWPHQW�RU�GHQLDO�RI�WKH�,&5�LGHQWLILHG�LQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�/HWWHU�
KDYH�EHHQ�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�ILQDO�FRVW�SURSRVDO��


x� ([KLELW����&��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'DWDEDVH�PXVW�EH�XVHG�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�UHTXLUHG�
GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�SURYLGHG��


x� $�FRVW�SURSRVDO��VHH�([KLELW����+��6DPSOH�&RVW�3URSRVDO���PXVW�LQFOXGH�WKH�FRVWV�RI�
PDWHULDOV��GLUHFW�VDODULHV��SD\UROO�DGGLWLRQV��RWKHU�GLUHFW�FRVWV��LQGLUHFW�FRVWV��IHHV��DQG�
EDFNXS�FDOFXODWLRQV��


%HIRUH�DSSURYLQJ�D�FRQWUDFW�IRU�FRQVXOWLQJ�VHUYLFHV��WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�PXVW�EH�VDWLVILHG�
WKDW�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�RUJDQL]DWLRQ��


x� ,V�TXDOLILHG�WR�SHUIRUP�WKH�VHUYLFHV�UHTXLUHG��


x� ,V�LQ�D�SRVLWLRQ��FRQVLGHULQJ�RWKHU�ZRUN�FRPPLWPHQWV��WR�SURYLGH�FRPSHWHQW�DQG�
H[SHULHQFHG�SHUVRQQHO�WR�SHUIRUP�WKH�VHUYLFHV�LQ�WKH�WLPH�DOORZHG��


x� ,V�IXOO\�DZDUH�RI�DOO�DSSOLFDEOH�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�ODZV�LQFOXGLQJ�LPSOHPHQWLQJ�UHJXODWLRQV��
GHVLJQ�VWDQGDUGV��VSHFLILFDWLRQV��SUHYLRXV�FRPPLWPHQWV�WKDW�PXVW�EH�LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQWR�
WKH�GHVLJQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�FRQWUROV�LQFOXGLQJ�WKRVH�RI�&DOWUDQV�DQG�
)+:$��


x� +DV�DQ�DGHTXDWH�ILQDQFLDO�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHP�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�DSSOLFDEOH�IHGHUDO�
UHJXODWLRQV��


x� ,V�QRW�GLVEDUUHG�RU�VXVSHQGHG�IURP�VWDWH�RU�IHGHUDOO\�IXQGHG�FRQWUDFWV��3HU����&)5�
������E�����³$�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\�VKDOO�YHULI\�VXVSHQVLRQ�DQG�GHEDUPHQW�DFWLRQV�DQG�
HOLJLELOLW\�VWDWXV�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV�SULRU�WR�HQWHULQJ�LQWR�DQ�DJUHHPHQW�RU�
FRQWUDFW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK���&)5�SDUW������DQG���&)5�SDUW������


7KH�FRQWUDFW�PXVW�SURYLGH�IRU�D�GHILQHG�OHYHO�RI�DFFHSWDELOLW\�DQG�D�VWDWHPHQW�WR�WKH�HIIHFW�WKDW�
WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PD\�EH�UHTXLUHG�WR�PRGLI\�LWV�ZRUN�DV�QHFHVVDU\��WR�PHHW�WKDW�OHYHO�RI�
DFFHSWDELOLW\�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW��7KH�FRQWUDFW�VKDOO�SURYLGH�IRU�ORFDO�DJHQF\�UHYLHZV�DW�
DSSURSULDWH�VWDJHV�GXULQJ�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�ZRUN��WR�GHWHUPLQH�LI�DQ\�FKDQJHV�RU�RWKHU�DFWLRQV�
DUH�ZDUUDQWHG��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


257 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � � �


� � �


�
� �
� � � �


� � �
� � � �


� � �
�


�
� � � �


� �
� � �


�
� � �


� � � � �


� � �


� �


� � �


� � � � �
�


� � � � �
��


� � � ��
�


� � � ��
�


� �
� �


� � � � �
�


� �


� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


7KH�FRQWUDFW�VKDOO�SURYLGH�WKDW�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�DQG�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV�VKDOO�PDLQWDLQ�DOO�ERRNV��
GRFXPHQWV��SDSHUV��DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV��DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG��
6XFK�PDWHULDOV�PXVW�EH�DYDLODEOH�IRU�LQVSHFWLRQ�DQG�DXGLW�E\�IHGHUDO��6WDWH��DQG�ORFDO�DJHQF\�
DXWKRUL]HG�UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV��DQG�FRSLHV�WKHUHRI�VKDOO�EH�IXUQLVKHG��LI�UHTXHVWHG��


)ROORZLQJ�ILQDO�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�DFFRXQWV�ZLWK�WKH�6WDWH�RU�)+:$��VXFK�UHFRUGV�DQG�
GRFXPHQWV�PD\�EH�DUFKLYHG�DW�WKH�RSWLRQ�RI�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�VKDOO�EH�UHWDLQHG�IRU�D�WKUHH�
\HDU�SHULRG�DIWHU�SURFHVVLQJ�RI�WKH�ILQDO�YRXFKHU�E\�)+:$��


([HFXWH�&RQWUDFW�DQG�,VVXH�1RWLFH�WR�3URFHHG�WR�&RQVXOWDQW�
7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�VHQGV�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�D�IXOO\�H[HFXWHG�FRS\�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�DQ�
RULJLQDO�VLJQDWXUH�DQG�LVVXHV�D�QRWLFH�WR�SURFHHG��)XQGV�PD\�QRW�EH�XVHG�WR�UHLPEXUVH�WKH�
DJHQF\�IRU�DQ\�ZRUN�RU�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�EHIRUH�WKH�$XWKRUL]DWLRQ�WR�3URFHHG�LV�LVVXHG��RU�IRU�
FRQVXOWDQW�FRVWV�LQFXUUHG�SULRU�WR�WKH�H[HFXWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��$OO�H[HFXWHG�FRQWUDFWV�
VKDOO�KDYH�D�EHJLQ�DQG�HQG�GDWH��/RFDO�DJHQF\�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�DQG�FRQWUDFW�H[HFXWLRQ�
FRVWV�PD\�EH�UHLPEXUVDEOH��


)RU�RQ�FDOO�FRQWUDFWV��D�IXOO\�H[HFXWHG�FRS\�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�RULJLQDO�VLJQDWXUHV�ZLOO�EH�VHQG�
WR�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��(DFK�VXEVHTXHQW�WDVN�RUGHU��IRU�LQGLYLGXDO�SURMHFW��ZLOO�EH�DFFRPSDQLHG�ZLWK�D�
FRS\�RI�WKH�VLJQHG�WDVN�RUGHU�DQG�D�1RWLFH�WR�3URFHHG��RQFH�LW�LV�QHJRWLDWHG�DQG�DSSURYHG��7DVN�
RUGHU�H[SLUDWLRQ�GDWHV�PD\�QRW�H[FHHG�WKH�0DVWHU�2Q�FDOO�DJUHHPHQW�HQG�GDWH��


$GPLQLVWHU�WKH�&RQWUDFW�
3URMHFW�ZRUN�EHJLQV�DV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�DIWHU�WKH�QRWLFH�WR�SURFHHG�LV�LVVXHG�WR�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW��7KHUHDIWHU��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PDQDJHV�DQG�DGPLQLVWHUV�WKH�FRQWUDFW�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�D�
FRPSOHWH�DQG�DFFHSWDEOH�SURGXFW�LV�UHFHLYHG�RQ�WLPH��ZLWKLQ�VWDQGDUGV��DQG�ZLWKLQ�EXGJHW�DQG�
WHUPV�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


&RQWUDFW�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�DFWLYLWLHV�KHOS�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�FRQWUDFWXDO�REOLJDWLRQV�DUH�FRPSOHWHG�
VDWLVIDFWRULO\��*HQHUDOO\��WKHVH�DFWLYLWLHV�LQFOXGH��


x� 0RQLWRULQJ�SURMHFW�SURJUHVV�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�FRQWUDFW�UHTXLUHPHQWV��


x� 5HFHLYLQJ��UHYLHZLQJ�DQG�DVVHVVLQJ�UHSRUWV��SODQV��DQG�RWKHU�UHTXLUHG�SURGXFWV��
GHOLYHUDEOHV��


x� 5HFHLYLQJ�DQG�UHYLHZLQJ�VWDWH�SUHYDLOLQJ�ZDJHV� ��6HH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�,QGXVWULDO�
5HODWLRQV�ZHEVLWHV�EHORZ��


o� ',5�)$4�ZHEVLWH��KWWS���ZZZ�GLU�FD�JRY�235/�)$4B3UHYDLOLQJ:DJH�KWPO�


o� ',5�:DJH�'HWHUPLQDWLRQ�ZHEVLWH��
KWWS���ZZZ�GLU�FD�JRY�RSUO�'3UH:DJH'HWHUPLQDWLRQ�KWP�


x� 5HYLHZLQJ�LQYRLFHV�WR�HQVXUH�FRVWV�FODLPHG�DUH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�WR�WKH�PHWKRG�RI�SD\PHQW�
DQG�FRQWUDFW�FRVW�SURSRVDO��DSSURYLQJ�SD\PHQWV��


x� ,I�QHZ�FRQVXOWDQW�SHUVRQQHO�DUH�DGGHG�RU�VXEVWLWXWHG��ODERU�UDWHV�PXVW�EH�YHULILHG�SULRU�WR�
DSSURYLQJ�LQYRLFHV��


x� 5HFRUG�NHHSLQJ�DQG�UHSRUWLQJ��


x� &RQWUROOLQJ�FRVWV��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


258 of 611



http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/FAQ_PrevailingWage.html

http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/FAQ_PrevailingWage.html

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm

http://www.dir.ca.gov/oprl/DPreWageDetermination.htm





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
� � � �


� � � �
�


�
� � � �


� � �
� � � �


� � � �
� � � � �


� � � � �
� ���


� � � � �
� � � � � �


�


�
� � � � �


�
�


� � � � �
�


� � � � � �
� � � �


� � � �
�


� �


� � �


� � � �


� � �
� � � �


� � � � �
� � �


� � � �
� �


��
� � �


� �
� � �


� � � � ��
��


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


x� ,GHQWLI\LQJ�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�DQG�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�DPHQGPHQWV��PXVW�HQVXUH�
WKDW�DQ\�FKDQJHV�WR�WKH�VFRSH�LV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�FRQVWUDLQWV�RI�WKH�RULJLQDO�5)3�5)4��


x� &RPSOHWLQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�SHUIRUPDQFH�HYDOXDWLRQV��VHH�([KLELW����6��&RQVXOWDQW�
3HUIRUPDQFH�(YDOXDWLRQ���


6XEVWLWXWLRQ�RI�&RQVXOWDQW�3HUVRQQHO�DQG�6XEFRQVXOWDQWV�
$IWHU�FRQWUDFW�H[HFXWLRQ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VKRXOG�QRW�VXEVWLWXWH�NH\�SHUVRQQHO��SURMHFW�PDQDJHU�
DQG�RWKHUV�OLVWHG�E\�QDPH�LQ�WKH�FRVW�SURSRVDO��RU�VXEFRQVXOWDQWV�ZLWKRXW�SULRU�ZULWWHQ�DSSURYDO�
IURP�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��5HIHU�WR�/$30�&KDSWHU����&LYLO�5LJKWV�	�'LVDGYDQWDJHG�%XVLQHVV�
(QWHUSULVH�DQG�7LWOH����&)5����IRU�'%(�VXEVWLWXWLRQ�UHTXLUHPHQWV��7R�GR�VR�FDQ�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�
FRVWV�EHLQJ�LQHOLJLEOH�IRU�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��7KH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�UHTXHVW�DQG�MXVWLI\�
WKH�QHHG�IRU�WKH�VXEVWLWXWLRQ�DQG�REWDLQ�DSSURYDO�IURP�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�SULRU�WR�XVH�RI�D�GLIIHUHQW�
VXEFRQVXOWDQW�RQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


7KH�SURSRVHG�VXEVWLWXWHG�SHUVRQ�PXVW�EH�DV�TXDOLILHG�DV�WKH�RULJLQDO��DQG�DW�WKH�VDPH�RU�ORZHU�
FRVW��)RU�HQJLQHHULQJ�W\SHV�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�SURMHFW�PDQDJHU�PXVW�EH�D�
UHJLVWHUHG�HQJLQHHU�LQ�WKH�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD��


,QYRLFLQJ��RU�3URJUHVV�3D\PHQWV��
7KH�IUHTXHQF\�DQG�IRUPDW�RI�WKH�LQYRLFHV�SURJUHVV�SD\PHQWV�DUH�WR�EH�GHWHUPLQHG�E\�WKH�
FRQWUDFW��3URJUDP�6XSSOHPHQW�$JUHHPHQWV��VHH�/$30�&KDSWHU����3URMHFW�$XWKRUL]DWLRQ��QHHG�
WR�KDYH�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�SULRU�WR�DQ\�SD\PHQWV�EHLQJ�UHTXHVWHG���3D\PHQWV�WR�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�DUH�
WR�EH�LQ�DUUHDUV��,Q�RWKHU�ZRUGV��WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�KDYH�DFWXDOO\�LQFXUUHG�DQG�SDLG�WKH�FRVWV�
EHIRUH�LQYRLFLQJ�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��


)RU�IHGHUDO�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�FRVWV�RQ�D�SURMHFW��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�VXEPLW�WKH�
IROORZLQJ�WR�WKH�'/$(��IRU�HDFK�FRQVXOWDQW�RU�FRQVXOWLQJ�ILUP�XVHG�RQ�WKH�SURMHFW��IDLOXUH�WR�GR�VR�
ZLOO�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�LQYRLFHV�IRU�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�EHLQJ�UHWXUQHG�WR�WKH�DJHQF\�
XQSURFHVVHG���


x� &RS\�RI�([HFXWHG�&RQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��


x� ([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�3URSRVDO�'%(�&RPPLWPHQW�


x� ([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'%(�,QIRUPDWLRQ�


'/$(�PXVW�FRQILUP�WKDW�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�KDV�VXEPLWWHG�FRSLHV�RI�([KLELW����.��&RQVXOWDQW�
&HUWLILFDWLRQ�RI�&RQWUDFW�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP��IRU�3ULPH�DQG�
6XEFRQVXOWDQWV��WR�&DOWUDQV�,2$,�DQG�DJHQF\�KDV�VXEPLWWHG�([KLELW����&��&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�
'DWDEDVH�WR�&DOWUDQV��


7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LV�WR�IROORZ�WKH�SURFHGXUHV�JLYHQ�LQ�/$30�&KDSWHU����,QYRLFLQJ��WR�REWDLQ�
UHLPEXUVHPHQW�RI�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�IXQGV��


&RQWUDFW�$PHQGPHQWV�
&RQWUDFW�DPHQGPHQWV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�PRGLI\�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�RULJLQDO�FRQWUDFW�IRU�FKDQJHV�VXFK�
DV�H[WUD�WLPH��DGGHG�ZRUN��RU�LQFUHDVHG�FRVWV��2QO\�ZRUN�ZLWKLQ�WKH�RULJLQDO�DGYHUWLVHG�VFRSH�RI�
VHUYLFHV�VKDOO�EH�DGGHG�E\�DPHQGPHQW�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFW��7KH�DGGLWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�RXWVLGH�WKH�RULJLQDO�
DGYHUWLVHG�VFRSH�ZLOO�PDNH�WKDW�ZRUN�LQHOLJLEOH�IRU�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��VHH�4	$V�DW��
KWWS���ZZZ�IKZD�GRW�JRY�SURJUDPDGPLQ����TDB���FIP���


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


259 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10s.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10s.pdf

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/LAPM/ch03.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/ch03.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o2.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/ch05.pdf

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/172qa_01.cfm

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/172qa_01.cfm





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� � � �


�
� � � �


� � �
� � � �


� � � � �
� � �


� �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� �
�


� � � �
�


� � �
� �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� � � �
� � �


� � �
� � � � �


�
� � �


� � � � �
� � �


� � �  


�
� � �


� �
� �


�
� � � �


�


�
�


� � �
� � �


� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


7KHUH�LV�QR�SUHVFULEHG�IRUPDW�IRU�FRQWUDFW�DPHQGPHQWV��7KH\�PD\�WDNH�WKH�IRUP�RI�OHWWHU�W\SH�
DJUHHPHQWV�PHHWLQJ�WKH�OHJDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��FOHDUO\�RXWOLQLQJ�WKH�FKDQJHV�
DQG�FRQWDLQLQJ�D�PXWXDOO\�DJUHHG�XSRQ�PHWKRG�RI�FRPSHQVDWLRQ��6XFK�DJUHHPHQWV�PXVW�
FRQIRUP�WR�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKLV�PDQXDO�ZLWK�UHJDUG�WR�SD\PHQW��


$�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�PD\�EH�DPHQGHG�DW�DQ\�WLPH�SULRU�WR�WKH�H[SLUDWLRQ�GDWH�RI�WKH�RULJLQDO�
FRQWUDFW��7KH�PRVW�FRPPRQ�DPHQGPHQW�LV�WR�H[WHQG�WKH�HQGLQJ�GDWH�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��$OO�
FRQWUDFW�DPHQGPHQWV�PXVW�EH�IXOO\�H[HFXWHG�EHIRUH�WKH�HQGLQJ�GDWH�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW�E\�IRUPDO�
DPHQGPHQW��)DLOXUH�WR�DPHQG�D�FRQWUDFW�SULRU�WR�WKH�HQGLQJ�GDWH�ZLOO�PDNH�WKH�VXEVHTXHQW�
FRVWV�LQHOLJLEOH�IRU�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��7DVN�RUGHUV�DUH�QRW�FRQVLGHUHG�DQ�
DPHQGPHQW�DQG�WKHUHIRUH�QRW�DSSURSULDWH�WR�H[WHQG�WKH�WHUPV�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


$OO�FRQWUDFW�DPHQGPHQWV�VKDOO�EH�QHJRWLDWHG�IROORZLQJ�WKH�VDPH�SURFHGXUHV�DV�WKH�QHJRWLDWLRQ�
RI�WKH�RULJLQDO�FRQWUDFW�DQG�PXVW�EH�LQ�ZULWLQJ�DQG�IXOO\�H[HFXWHG�E\�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�DQG�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�EHIRUH�UHLPEXUVDEOH�ZRUN�EHJLQV�RQ�WKH�DPHQGPHQW��)RU�DQ\�DGGLWLRQDO�HQJLQHHULQJ�
DQG�GHVLJQ�UHODWHG�VHUYLFHV�RXWVLGH�RI�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�HVWDEOLVKHG�LQ�WKH�RULJLQDO�VROLFLWDWLRQ��D�
FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\�VKDOO�HLWKHU�SURFXUH�WKH�VHULHV�XQGHU�D�QHZ�VROLFLWDWLRQ��SHUIRUP�WKH�ZRUN�
LWVHOI�XVLQJ�DJHQF\�VWDII��RU�XVH�D�GLIIHUHQW��H[LVWLQJ�FRQWUDFW�XQGHU�ZKLFK�WKH�VHUYLFHV�ZRXOG�EH�
ZLWKLQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��2YHUUXQV�LQ�WKH�FRVWV�RI�WKH�ZRUN�VKDOO�QRW�DXWRPDWLFDOO\�ZDUUDQW�DQ�
LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�IL[HG�IHH�SRUWLRQ�RI�D�FRVW�SOXV�IL[HG�IHH�UHLPEXUVHG�FRQWUDFW��3HUPLWWHG�FKDQJHV�
WR�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�RU�GXUDWLRQ�PD\�ZDUUDQW�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�IRU�DGMXVWPHQW�RI�WKH�IL[HG�IHH�
SRUWLRQ�RI�FRVW�SOXV�IL[HG�IHH�RU�OXPS�VXP�UHLPEXUVHG�FRQWUDFWV��,I�DQ�HPHUJHQF\�H[LVWV�RI�VXFK�
PDJQLWXGH�WKDW�D�GHOD\�FDQQRW�EH�WROHUDWHG��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�PD\�DJUHH�RQ�
DQ�DPHQGPHQW�LQLWLDWLQJ�WKH�ZRUN��VR�WKDW�UHLPEXUVDEOH�ZRUN�PD\�EHJLQ��7KH�LQLWLDWLQJ�
DPHQGPHQW�LV�WKHQ�IROORZHG�E\�D�ILQDO�DPHQGPHQW�RQFH�WKH�IXOO�VFRSH�RI�WKH�HPHUJHQF\�ZRUN�LV�
NQRZQ�DQG�DJUHHG�WR�E\�ERWK�SDUWLHV��,Q�ERWK�FDVHV��VXIILFLHQW�IXQGLQJ�VKRXOG�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�
DPHQGPHQWV�WR�SD\�IRU�DOO�ZRUN�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�E\�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��7KH�ILQDO�DPHQGPHQW�PXVW�
EH�H[HFXWHG�DV�TXLFNO\�DV�SRVVLEOH��)DLOXUH�WR�IXOO\�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKLV�VHFWLRQ�PD\�UHVXOW�LQ�WKH�
ORVV�RI�ORFDO�DJHQF\�IXQGLQJ��6HFWLRQ���������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV�RI�WKLV�
FKDSWHU�VKDOO�DSSO\�WR�WKH�HQWLUH�FRQWUDFW�DQG�PXVW�EH�FRPSOHWHG�SULRU�WR�H[HFXWLRQ�RI�WKH�
FRQWUDFW�DPHQGPHQW��$OO�DPHQGPHQWV�VKDOO�LQFRUSRUDWH�DQ\�FXUUHQW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�IHGHUDO�
UHJXODWLRQV�LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�IHGHUDO�ILVFDO�SURYLVLRQV�DQG�VXEPLW�([KLELW����&��&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�
5HYLHZHUV�&KHFNOLVW�'DWDEDVH�WR�KWWS���GODDHRYHUVLJKW�GRW�FD�JRY�IPL�ZHEG�([KLELW������&�
�SOHDVH�XVH�)LUHIR[�RU�&KURPH�LI�QRW�VXSSRUWHG�E\�\RXU�EURZVHU���


3HUIRUPDQFH�(YDOXDWLRQ�
3XUVXDQW�WR����&)5��������G�����DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�SUHSDUH�DQ�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW�ZKHQ�WKH�SURMHFW�KDV�EHHQ�FRPSOHWHG��7KH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�HYDOXDWHV�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW¶V�SHUIRUPDQFH�DIWHU�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ILQDO�UHSRUW�KDV�EHHQ�VXEPLWWHG��DQG�WKH�
&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�KDV�FRQGXFWHG�D�GHWDLOHG�HYDOXDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�SURMHFW�
PDQDJHU��6HH�([KLELW����6��&RQVXOWDQW�3HUIRUPDQFH�(YDOXDWLRQ�IRU�D�VXJJHVWHG�IRUPDW�IRU�XVH�
E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��


3URMHFW�5HFRUGV�
)HGHUDO�$LG�+LJKZD\�3URJUDP�IXQGLQJ�UHFLSLHQWV�DQG�VXE�UHFLSLHQWV�PXVW�PDLQWDLQ�DGHTXDWH�
DQG�UHDGLO\�DFFHVVLEOH�SURMHFW�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�UHFRUGV��VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWV��DQG�
RWKHU�UHFRUGV�FRQVLGHUHG�SHUWLQHQW�WR�WKH�JUDQW�DJUHHPHQW�DQG�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�)HGHUDO�ODZV�
DQG�UHJXODWLRQV��H�J������86&���������86&���������������&)5���������&)5�����DQG���&)5�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


260 of 611



http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10s.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � �
� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � � �


�


� �


� � � � �
� � � � �


� � � � � �
� �
�


� �


� �


� � � � �


� � � �
� � � �


�


� � � � �
�


� �
�


� � �


� � � �
�


� � � �
� � � �


� �


� � �
� �


�


� � �
� � �


� �


� �


� � �


� � � � � ,�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


3DUW�������7KHVH�UHFRUGV�VKDOO�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�IRU�D�PLQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�����\HDUV�IROORZLQJ�
LVVXDQFH�RI�WKH�ILQDO�YRXFKHU�IURP�)+:$��IRUZDUGHG�E\�&DOWUDQV��DQG�WKH�FORVXUH�RI�DOO�RWKHU�
SHQGLQJ�PDWWHUV����&)5�3DUW�����������


)RU�DXGLW�SXUSRVHV��SURMHFW�UHFRUGV�DQG�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�NHSW�IRU�WKUHH�����\HDUV�DIWHU�
SD\PHQW�RI�WKH�ILQDO�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�YRXFKHU��$PRQJ�WKH�UHFRUGV�WR�EH�UHWDLQHG�DUH�DV�IROORZV�
�QRW�DQ�DOO�LQFOXVLYH�OLVW���


x� &RSLHV�RI�5)3V�DQG�5)4V��FKDQJHV��DGGHQGXPV��HWF��DQG�ELGGHU¶V�OLVW��


x� 'RFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�'%(�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ��LQFOXGLQJ�([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�3URSRVDO�'%(�
&RPPLWPHQW��([KLELW����2���&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'%(�&RPPLWPHQW���([KLELW����*��
,QGLYLGXDO�$	(�7DVN�2UGHU�'%(�7UDFNLQJ�6KHHW��([KLELW����)��)LQDO�5HSRUW�±�8WLOL]DWLRQ�
RI�'%(�DQG�)LUVW�7LHU�6XEFRQWUDFWRUV��DQG�([KLELW����2��'%(�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�6WDWXV�
&KDQJH��


x� 6ROLFLWDWLRQ�DQG�DGYHUWLVHPHQW�UHFRUGV��


x� ,GHQWLILFDWLRQ�RI�VHOHFWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV��


x� 5HFRUG�RI�UHFHLYLQJ�SURSRVDOV��VWDWHPHQW�RI�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��


x� (YDOXDWLRQ�DQG�UDQNLQJ�UHFRUGV�VXFK�DV�RULJLQDO�VFRUH�VKHHWV�IURP�DOO�SDQHO�PHPEHUV��
VKRUW�OLVW�TXHVWLRQV�DQG�RWKHU�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��VHH�([KLELW����%��6XJJHVWHG�&RQVXOWDQW�
(YDOXDWLRQ�6KHHW���


x� ,QGHSHQGHQW�FRVW�HVWLPDWH��SUHSDUHG�LQ�DGYDQFH�RI�UHTXHVWLQJ�D�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IURP�WKH�
WRS�UDQNHG�FRQVXOWDQW���


x� 5HFRUG�RI�QHJRWLDWLRQV��WR�LQFOXGH�D�VHSDUDWH�QHJRWLDWLRQ�RI�SURILW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�
IHGHUDO�JXLGHOLQHV���


x� )LQDQFLDO�5HYLHZ�/HWWHU�DQG�&RJQL]DQW�$JHQF\�/HWWHU��ZKHQ�DSSOLFDEOH��


x� &3$�DXGLWHG�,&5�$XGLW�5HSRUW�RU�$SSURYHG�6WDWH�'27�&RJQL]DQW�,QGLUHFW�5DWH�/HWWHU��LI�
DQ\��


x� &RQVXOWDQW�&HUWLILFDWLRQ�RI�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW��([KLELW����.��&RQVXOWDQW�
&HUWLILFDWLRQ�RI�&RQWUDFW�&RVWV�DQG�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6\VWHP��IRU�FRQWUDFWV�RYHU�
���������RU�PRUH��


x� $	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�5HTXHVW�/HWWHU�DQG�&KHFNOLVW��([KLELW����$��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�
5HTXHVW�/HWWHU�DQG�&KHFNOLVW��IRU�FRQWUDFWV�RYHU����������DQG�DOO�VXSSRUWLQJ�
GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��


x� ([HFXWHG�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV��FRVW�SURSRVDOV�DQG�DPHQGPHQWV��VHH�([KLELW����5��$	(�
%RLOHUSODWH�$JUHHPHQW�/DQJXDJH�DQG�([KLELW����+��6DPSOH�&RVW�3URSRVDO���


x� &RQWUDFW�RYHUVLJKW�DQG�SURJUHVV�PHHWLQJ�GRFXPHQWV��


x� 3URJUHVV�DQG�ILQDO�SD\PHQWV��DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��


x� 3HUIRUPDQFH�HYDOXDWLRQ��VHH�([KLELW����6��&RQVXOWDQW�3HUIRUPDQFH�(YDOXDWLRQ���


x� &RQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�FKHFNOLVWV��VHH�([KLELW����&��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'DWDEDVH���


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


261 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o1.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10o2.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10g.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10g.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c17/17f.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c17/17f.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c17/17o.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c17/17o.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10b.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10b.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10k.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10a.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10h.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10s.pdf

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
�


� � � � �
�


� �
� � �


� � �
� �


�
� � � ��


� � � �
� � �


� � ��
� �


� � � �
�


�
���


� � � � �
� � � � � � �


� �


�


� �


� �
� � � �


� � �
� � � �


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
� � � �


� �
� � � �


� � �
�


� � �
� �


� � �


,�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


x� $FFRXQWLQJ�UHFRUGV�GRFXPHQWLQJ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�6WDWH�DQG�IHGHUDO�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�
UHTXLUHPHQWV��


x� &HUWLILFDWLRQV�DQG�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�IRUPV��([KLELW����7��&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�	�
&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�6WDWHPHQW��DOO�SHUVRQQHO�LQYROYHG�LQ�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW�RI�WKH�DJUHHPHQW�
VKRXOG�FRPSOHWH�([KLELW����7�([KLELW����8��&RQVXOWDQW�LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�
&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�DQG�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�6WDWHPHQW�DQG�([KLELW����4��'LVFORVXUH�RI�
/REE\LQJ�$FWLYLWLHV��DV�DSSURSULDWH���([KLELW����4�LV�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�DQG�VKDOO�
EH�FRPSOHWHG�LI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�QHHGV�WR�GLVFORVH�DQ\�OREE\LQJ�DFWLYLWLHV��


5HWHQWLRQ�&ODXVHV�
$W�WKH�RSWLRQ�RI�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��D�UHWHQWLRQ�FODXVH�PD\�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��
$�UHWHQWLRQ�FODXVH�LQ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�LV�UHFRPPHQGHG��VHH�([KLELW����5��$	(�%RLOHUSODWH�
$JUHHPHQW�/DQJXDJH��$UWLFOH�;;;,���


5HYLHZ�RI�/RFDO�$JHQF\�$FWLRQV�
)HGHUDO�DLG�RU�VWDWH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�LV�FRQWLQJHQW�RQ�PHHWLQJ�WKH�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�
DQG�FDQ�EH�ZLWKGUDZQ��LI�WKHVH�SURFHGXUHV�DUH�QRW�IROORZHG�DQG�GRFXPHQWHG��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�
ILOHV�DUH�WR�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�LQ�D�PDQQHU�WR�IDFLOLWDWH�IXWXUH�)+:$�RU�&DOWUDQV�SURFHVV�UHYLHZV�DQG�
DXGLWV��$V�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�5HYLHZ�DQG�$SSURYDO�RI�&RQWUDFWV�DERYH��WKH�&RQWUDFW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�
PXVW�UHYLHZ�WKH�SURSRVHG�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�EHIRUH�H[HFXWLRQ��


([KLELW����&��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'DWDEDVH�LV�WR�EH�FRPSOHWHG�SULRU�WR�DZDUG��RU�DIWHU�
FRQWUDFW�DZDUG�EXW�QR�ODWHU�WKDQ�WKH�ILUVW�LQYRLFH��$�FRS\�RI�([KLELW����&�PXVW�EH�UHWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�
ORFDO�DJHQF\�SURMHFW�ILOHV��


�������0,6&(//$1(286�&216,'(5$7,216�


$JUHHPHQWV�ZLWK�2WKHU�*RYHUQPHQWDO�$JHQFLHV�
,QWHUJRYHUQPHQWDO�RU�LQWHU�HQWLW\�DJUHHPHQWV�DUH�HQFRXUDJHG�LI�DSSURSULDWH��,I�DQRWKHU�
JRYHUQPHQWDO�DJHQF\�LV�UHTXHVWHG�WR�GR�ZRUN�RU�SURYLGH�VHUYLFHV�WR�DQ�DJHQF\��DQ�LQWHUDJHQF\�
DJUHHPHQW�LV�QHHGHG��6HH���&)5�����DQG�&$�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGHV�������DQG��������


6PDOO�3XUFKDVH�&RQWUDFWV�
&RQWUDFWV�WKDW�DUH�OHVV�WKDQ����������DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�VPDOO�FRQWUDFWV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�IHGHUDO�
UHJXODWLRQV��+RZHYHU��ZLWKLQ�WKH�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD��WKHUH�LV�QRW�D�UHFRJQL]HG�VPDOO�SXUFKDVH�
SURFHGXUH�DQG�DOO�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�SURFXUHG�XVLQJ�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�EDVHG�VHOHFWLRQ�DQG�QRW�FRVW��
)RU�IHGHUDO�FRQWUDFWV�WKDW�DUH�OHVV�WKDQ����������DQG�DUH�QRW�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR�H[FHHG�WKLV�DPRXQW��
WKH�DJHQF\�VKDOO�XVH�6HFWLRQ�������6WDWH�2QO\�)XQGHG�$	(�&RQWUDFWV�RU�WKH�IHGHUDO�JXLGDQFH�
IRU�FRQWUDFWV�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�����������,I�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LV�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR�H[FHHG�����������XVH�RQH�
RI�WKH�DFFHSWHG�SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHGXUHV�OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�SUHYLRXV�VHFWLRQV��6PDOO�FRQWUDFWV�XVLQJ�
WKH�VLPSOLILHG�DFTXLVLWLRQ�SURFHGXUH��6WDWH�2QO\�IXQGHG�VHFWLRQ��VKDOO�QRW�H[FHHG����������RU�
WKH�DGGLWLRQDO�FRVWV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRW�UHLPEXUVDEOH��7KH�HQWLUH�FRQWUDFW�FRXOG�DOVR�EH�
FRQVLGHUHG�LQHOLJLEOH�E\�)+:$�GHSHQGLQJ�RQ�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��7KH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��SURMHFW�
SKDVHV��DQG�FRQWUDFW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�VKDOO�QRW�EH�EURNHQ�GRZQ�LQWR�VPDOOHU�FRPSRQHQWV�WR�SHUPLW�
WKH�XVH�RI�VPDOO�SXUFKDVH�SURFHGXUH��'%(�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DSSO\�IRU�DOO�IHGHUDOO\�IXQGHG�SURMHFWV��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


262 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10q.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10q.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10r.pdf

http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �
� �


� � �


� �
� � �


� �


� �


� � �


� � �


� � �


�


� � �


� �
�


� � � �


� �
� � �


� �


� � �
� � � �


� � ��


� � � �
� �


� � �


� � � �
� �


� � � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � � �


� � �


� � �
� �


� �
� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


1RQFRPSHWLWLYH�1HJRWLDWHG�&RQWUDFWV��6ROH�6RXUFH��
3URFXUHPHQW�E\�QRQFRPSHWLWLYH�SURSRVDOV�PD\�EH�XVHG�RQO\�ZKHQ�WKH�DZDUG�RI�D�FRQWUDFW�LV�
LQIHDVLEOH�XQGHU�VHDOHG�ELGV�RU�FRPSHWLWLYH�SURSRVDOV�����&)5�������D�������


)+:$�FRQVLGHUV�WKHVH�W\SHV�RI�FRQWUDFWV�DV�6ROH�6RXUFH�FRQWUDFWV�DQG�VKRXOG�EH�XVHG�RQO\�LQ�
YHU\�OLPLWHG�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��$�3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ�SUHSDUHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�
DSSURYHG�E\�&DOWUDQV�LV�UHTXLUHG�EHIRUH�HVWDEOLVKLQJ�WKHVH�VHUYLFHV�����&)5�������D������DOVR�
VHH�([KLELW����)��&RVW�(IIHFWLYHQHVV�3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ��


&RQGLWLRQV�XQGHU�ZKLFK�QRQFRPSHWLWLYH�QHJRWLDWHG�FRQWUDFWV�PD\�EH�DFFHSWDEOH�LQFOXGH��


x� 2QO\�RQH�RUJDQL]DWLRQ�LV�TXDOLILHG�WR�GR�WKH�ZRUN��


x� $Q�HPHUJHQF\�H[LVWV�RI�VXFK�PDJQLWXGH�WKDW�FDQQRW�SHUPLW�GHOD\��


x� &RPSHWLWLRQ�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�WR�EH�LQDGHTXDWH�DIWHU�VROLFLWDWLRQ�RI�D�QXPEHU�RI�VRXUFHV��


7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO��


x� )ROORZ�LWV�GHILQHG�SURFHVV�IRU�QRQFRPSHWLWLYH�QHJRWLDWLRQ��


x� 'HYHORS�DQ�DGHTXDWH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��HYDOXDWLRQ�IDFWRUV��DQG�FRVW�HVWLPDWH�EHIRUH�
VROLFLWDWLRQ��


x� &RQGXFW�QHJRWLDWLRQV�WR�HQVXUH�D�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�FRVW��


7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�FDUHIXOO\�GRFXPHQW�GHWDLOV�RI�WKH�VSHFLDO�FRQGLWLRQV��REWDLQ�&DOWUDQV�
DSSURYDO�RQ�D�3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ�DQG�UHWDLQ�DOO�GRFXPHQWV�LQ�WKH�SURMHFW�ILOHV�IRU�IXWXUH�
&DOWUDQV¶�RU�)+:$¶V�UHYLHZ��


5HWDLQLQJ�D�&RQVXOWDQW�DV�DQ�$JHQF\�(QJLQHHU�RU�LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�
$�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PD\�UHWDLQ�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�RQ�LWV�VWDII�LQ�
SURIHVVLRQDO�FDSDFLWLHV�IRU�IHGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFWV�VXFK�DV��


x� $�&LW\�(QJLQHHU��RU�HTXLYDOHQW��ZKR�PDQDJHV�WKH�HQJLQHHULQJ�XQLW�IRU�WKH�FLW\��SURYLGLQJ�
RYHUVLJKW�RI�D�SURMHFW��VHULHV�RI�SURMHFWV��PDQDJLQJ�RU�GLUHFWLQJ�ZRUN�RI�RWKHU�FRQVXOWDQWV�
RU�FRQWUDFWRUV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�&LW\��


x� $�&RXQW\�(QJLQHHU��RU�HTXLYDOHQW��ZKR�PDQDJHV�WKH�HQJLQHHULQJ�XQLW�IRU�WKH�FRXQW\�
VXFK�DV�GXWLHV�GHVFULEHG�DERYH��


x� $�3URMHFW�0DQDJHU��RU�HTXLYDOHQW��ZKR�PDQDJHV�DQG�RYHUVHHV�D�SURMHFW��VHULHV�RI�
SURMHFWV�RU�WKH�ZRUN�RI�RWKHU�FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�FRQWUDFWRUV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�SXEOLF�DJHQF\��


x� $�3URJUDP�0DQDJHU��RU�HTXLYDOHQW��ZKR�PDQDJHV�DQG�RYHUVHHV�DQ�HOHPHQW�RI�D�
KLJKZD\�SURJUDP��IXQFWLRQ��RU�VHUYLFH�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�SXEOLF�DJHQF\��


+RZHYHU��W\SLFDOO\�D�FRQVXOWDQW�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�LV�QRW��


x� $�FRQVXOWDQW�HQJLQHHU�SHUIRUPLQJ�SURMHFW�VSHFLILF�GHVLJQ��DQG�RU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�FRQWUDFW�
DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�IRU�WKH�SXEOLF�DJHQF\��


x� $�FRQVXOWDQW�SURYLGLQJ�VXSSRUW�WR�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�GXWLHV�VXFK�DV�IHGHUDO�DXWKRUL]DWLRQ�
SURFHVV��ODERU�FRPSOLDQFH�DFWLYLWLHV��DQG�RWKHU�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�WDVNV��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


263 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c12/12f.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � � � � �


� � �
� � � � � � �


��
� � � � � �
� �


� �


� � �
�


� � �
� �


� � � � � � �
� � �


�


� � � �


� � �


� � � � � � �
�
� � � �


� � � � �
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�


� � � � �
� � �


�
� � �


� � �
� � � �


� �
� �


� �
� �


� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


7KH�XVH�RI�D�FRQVXOWDQW�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�VKRXOG�EH�OLPLWHG�WR�XQLTXH�RU�YHU\�
XQXVXDO�VLWXDWLRQV��7KHVH�VLWXDWLRQV�UHTXLUH�D�WKRURXJK�MXVWLILFDWLRQ�DV�WR�ZK\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�
FDQQRW�SHUIRUP�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW��&RQVXOWDQWV�XVHG�LQ�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROHV�PXVW�EH�
VHOHFWHG�XVLQJ�WKH�VDPH�SURFHGXUHV�DV�WKRVH�IRU�RWKHU�FRQVXOWDQWV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU��
&RQVXOWDQWV�LQ�D�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�IXQGHG�E\�ORFDO�RU�VWDWH�IXQGV�PXVW�KDYH�DSSURYDO�
IURP�)+:$�WR�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�TXDOLILHG�WR�PDQDJH�IHGHUDO�SURMHFWV�RU�FRQVXOWDQWV�SURYLGLQJ�
VHUYLFHV�RQ�IHGHUDO�SURMHFWV��
(OLJLELOLW\�IRU�IHGHUDO�RU�VWDWH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�IRU�D�FRQVXOWDQW�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�
UHTXLUHV�WKH�IROORZLQJ��


x� &RPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHGXUHV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU��


x� ([LVWHQFH�RI�D�FRQWUDFW�EHWZHHQ�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DQG�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�VSHFLI\LQJ�WKH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�HQJLQHHULQJ�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG��


x� :ULWWHQ�GHVLJQDWLRQ�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�RI�WKH�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�DQG�DXWKRULW\�RI�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW�DV�DQ�DJHQF\�HQJLQHHU��


x� )RU�D�IHGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFW��FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�([KLELW����7��&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�	�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�
6WDWHPHQW�E\�DOO�PHPEHUV��ERWK�FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�HPSOR\HHV��SULRU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�
$UFKLWHFW�	�(QJLQHHULQJ��$	(��6HOHFWLRQ�3DQHO�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�WKH�VSHFLILF�VHOHFWLRQ�
SURFHVV�DQG�WKH�ILUPV�EHLQJ�FRQVLGHUHG��


x� 6HOHFWLRQ�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV�IRU�$	(�PDQDJHPHQW�SRVLWLRQV�VKDOO�EH�E\�WKH�XVH�RI�
TXDOLILFDWLRQ�EDVHG�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHGXUHV�RQ�DQ�RSHQ�DQG�FRPSHWLWLYH�EDVLV�UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�D�
FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�GHILQHG�EHJLQQLQJ�DQG�HQGLQJ�GDWHV�QRW�WR�H[FHHG�ILYH�����\HDUV��


x� )RU�D�IHGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFW��D�ORFDO�DJHQF\�FRQVXOWDQW�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�VKDOO�
QRW��


o� 3DUWLFLSDWH�LQ��RU�H[HUFLVH�DXWKRULW\�RYHU�WKH�$	(�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV��LI�WKDW�
FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ILUP�LV�RQH�RI�WKH�SURSRVLQJ�ILUPV��RU�VXEFRQVXOWDQW�WR�D�SURSRVLQJ�
ILUP��


o� 3DUWLFLSDWH�LQ��RU�H[HUFLVH�DXWKRULW\�RYHU�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG�E\�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ILUP��RU�WR�D�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�ILUP�RI�ZKLFK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�FRQVXOWDQW�
ILUP�LV�D�VXEFRQVXOWDQW��7KLV�ZRXOG�LQFOXGH��EXW�QRW�EH�OLPLWHG�WR��PDQDJLQJ�RU�
GLUHFWLQJ�WKH�ZRUN��DSSURYLQJ�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�VFKHGXOH��VFRSH��RU�GHOLYHUDEOHV��
DQG�DSSURYLQJ�LQYRLFHV��


o� $SSO\�IRU�RU�UHFHLYH�UHLPEXUVHPHQW�RI�IHGHUDO�DLG�IXQGV�IRU�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\¶V�
IHGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFW�LI�HLWKHU�RI�WKH�IRUHJRLQJ�KDV�RFFXUUHG� �+RZHYHU��
UHLPEXUVHPHQW�IRU�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�FRQWUDFW�SRUWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�ZLOO�VWLOO�EH�
DOORZHG�SURYLGHG�DOO�RWKHU�IHGHUDO�DLG�UHTXLUHPHQWV�KDYH�EHHQ�PHW��


o� :KHUH�EHQHILWLQJ�PRUH�WKDQ�D�VLQJOH�IHGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFW��DOORFDELOLW\�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�
FRQWUDFW�FRVWV�IRU�VHUYLFHV�UHODWHG�WR�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�VKDOO�EH�
GLVWULEXWHG�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�WKH�FRQWUDFWLQJ�DJHQF\�
LQ����&)5�������E������


,I�HQJLQHHULQJ�VHUYLFHV�IRU�D�SURMHFW�DUH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�WKH�VHUYLFHV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKH�
UHWDLQHG�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRQWUDFW��WKHVH�VHUYLFHV�PD\�EH�SHUIRUPHG�E\�WKH�SHUVRQ�RU�ILUP�
GHVLJQDWHG�DV�DQ�DJHQF\�HQJLQHHU��,I�WKH�VHUYLFHV�DUH�QRW�ZLWKLQ�WKH�VFRSH��HOLJLELOLW\�IRU�IHGHUDO�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


264 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10t.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � � �
�


� � �
��


� � �
� � �


� � � �
� � �


� �
� � �


� � � � � �
� � � � �


� � �


� �
�


� � �
� � �


�
� � � � � � � � � � �


� �
�


� � � � �
� � � � �


� � �


� � � �
� � � �


� � �
� � �


� �
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


UHLPEXUVHPHQW�IRU�WKHVH�VHUYLFHV�UHTXLUH�D�QHZ�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�WR�EH�GHYHORSHG�XVLQJ�WKH�
VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHGXUHV�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU��5HWDLQHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�LQYROYHG�LQ�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
5)3�RU�5)4�VKDOO�QRW�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�LQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�RI�FRQVXOWDQWV�IRU�WKH�UHVXOWLQJ�SURMHFW�
VSHFLILF�ZRUN��


:KHQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�RU�DUFKLWHFWXUDO�FRQVXOWDQWV�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�DUH�SURFXUHG�ZLWK�
IHGHUDO�DLG�IXQGV��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��VXEJUDQWHH��VKDOO�IXOO\�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�IROORZLQJ��


x� 6XESDUDJUDSKV�RI���&)5���������PDLQWDLQ�D�FRQWUDFW�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�V\VWHP�DQG�
PDLQWDLQ�D�ZULWWHQ�FRGH�RI�VWDQGDUGV��1R�HPSOR\HH��RIILFHU�RU�DJHQW�RI�WKH�VXEJUDQWHH�
VKDOO�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�VHOHFWLRQ��RU�LQ�WKH�DZDUG�RU�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�D�FRQWUDFW�VXSSRUWHG�E\�
IHGHUDO�IXQGV�LI�D�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW��UHDO�RU�DSSDUHQW��ZRXOG�EH�LQYROYHG��


x� 6XESDUDJUDSK�RI����&)5��������E��UHTXLUHV�WKDW�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�UHFHLYH�DSSURYDO�
IURP�)+:$��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��DQ\�IHGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFWV�GHVLJQDWHG�DV�3URMHFWV�RI�'LYLVLRQ�
,QWHUHVW�PD\�DOVR�QHHG�DSSURYDO�IURP�)+:$��


x� /LDELOLW\�LQVXUDQFH�VKRXOG�QRUPDOO\�EH�UHTXLUHG�IURP�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��HUURUV�DQG�
RPLVVLRQV��HWF����


)RU� IHGHUDOO\� IXQGHG� SURMHFWV�� ORFDO� DJHQFLHV� WKDW� VROLFLW� WR� KLUH� $	(� FRQVXOWDQW�V�� LQ� D�
PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�PXVW�REWDLQ�)+:$�DSSURYDO�SULRU�WR�FRQWUDFW�H[HFXWLRQ��


,Q�RUGHU�IRU�D�FRQWUDFW�IRU�D�FRQVXOWDQW�LQ�D�PDQDJHPHQW�VXSSRUW�UROH�WR�EH�IHGHUDOO\�HOLJLEOH��WKH�
IROORZLQJ�DUH�UHTXLUHG�SULRU�WR�FRQWUDFW�H[HFXWLRQ��


x� 7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�VXEPLW�D�UHTXHVW�IRU�DSSURYDO�YLD�HPDLO��WKH�6FRSH�RI�:RUN�
�62:��DQG�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW��&2,��3ROLF\�WR�WKH�'LYLVLRQ�RI�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�
+HDGTXDUWHUV��'/$�+4��DW�DHRYHUVLJKW#GRW�FD�JRY��SULRU�WR�VROLFLWDWLRQ��


x� 2QFH�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�UHFHLYHV�)+:$¶V�ZULWWHQ�UHVSRQVH��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PD\�QHHG�WR�
UHYLVH�WKH�GRFXPHQWV�UHIOHFWLQJ�)+:$¶V�RSLQLRQV�DQG�FDQ�SURFHHG�ZLWK�WKH�5)4��


x� $IWHU�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�VXEPLW�WKH�FRPSOHWHG�([KLELW����8��
&RQVXOWDQW�LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�DQG�&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�
6WDWHPHQW�WR�WKH�'/$�+4�DW�DHRYHUVLJKW#GRW�FD�JRY��/RFDO�DJHQF\�ZLOO�UHFHLYH�)+:$¶V�
DSSURYHG�([KLELW����8�YLD�HPDLO��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


265 of 611



mailto:aeoversight@dot.ca.gov

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf

mailto:aeoversight@dot.ca.gov

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/lapm/c10/10u.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


 
 


� �


�
� � �


� � � �
�


� � �
�


� �
� � � � �


�
� �


� �
�


� � � �
� � �


� �


� �
� � � � �


� � �
� �


�


'/$(�


'/$�+4�
DHRYHUVLJKW#GRW�FD�JRY�


)+:$�


1R� <(6�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


)LJXUH������� &RQVXOWDQW�LQ�D�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�)ORZFKDUW�


&RQVWUXFWLRQ�(QJLQHHULQJ�6HUYLFHV�
8QGHU�IHGHUDO�DLG�UHJXODWLRQV�DQG�VWDWH�SROLF\��WKH�SULPDU\�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�JHQHUDO�VXSHUYLVLRQ�
RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�PXVW�UHPDLQ�ZLWK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�DOVR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�
ZRUN�LV�SHUIRUPHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYHG�SODQV�DQG�VSHFLILFDWLRQV��E\�HPSOR\LQJ�RU�
UHWDLQLQJ�DV�D�FRQVXOWDQW�D�UHJLVWHUHG�HQJLQHHU�IRU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�VHUYLFHV�RQ�WKH�
SURMHFW��


$OO�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�DFWLYLWLHV�SHUIRUPHG�E\�D�FRQVXOWDQW�PXVW�EH�XQGHU�WKH�RYHUDOO�
VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�D�IXOO�WLPH�HPSOR\HH�RI�WKH�DJHQF\�ZKR�LV�LQ�UHVSRQVLEOH�FKDUJH��7KHVH�DFWLYLWLHV�
PD\�LQFOXGH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�FRQWUDFW�FKDQJH�RUGHUV��FRQVWUXFWLRQ�VXUYH\V��IRXQGDWLRQ�
LQYHVWLJDWLRQV��PHDVXUHPHQW��DQG�FRPSXWDWLRQ�RI�TXDQWLWLHV��WHVWLQJ�RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�PDWHULDOV��
FKHFNLQJ�RI�VKRS�GUDZLQJV��SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�HVWLPDWHV��UHSRUWV��DQG�RWKHU�LQVSHFWLRQ�DFWLYLWLHV�
QHFHVVDU\�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�LV�EHLQJ�SHUIRUPHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�SODQV�DQG�
VSHFLILFDWLRQV��7KH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRQWUDFW�GHILQHV�WKH�UHODWLYH�DXWKRULWLHV�
DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�IXOO�WLPH�HPSOR\HH�RI�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�LQ�FKDUJH�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�DQG�WKH�
FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�VWDII��


,I�D�WHFKQLFDO�LQVSHFWLRQ�FRQVXOWDQW�LV�WR�SURYLGH�SURIHVVLRQDO�DVVLVWDQFH�WR�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��D�
IRUPDO�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW�PXVW�EH�H[HFXWHG�ZKLFK�IROORZV�WKLV�FKDSWHU¶V�UHTXLUHPHQWV��7KH�
FRQWUDFW�VKDOO�SURYLGH�IRU�UHYLHZV�DW�DSSURSULDWH�VWDJHV�GXULQJ�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�ZRUN�WR�
GHWHUPLQH�LI�DQ\�FKDQJHV�RU�RWKHU�DFWLRQV�DUH�ZDUUDQWHG��7KHVH�UHYLHZV�DUH�WR�EH�PDGH�E\�WKH�
ORFDO�DJHQF\��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


266 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� � � �


� � �
� � �


� � � � �
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� �


� �
� � �


�


� � �


� � �
� �


� � � � �
� �


� � �


� �
� � �


� �


� � �
�


 


� �
� �


�
 


� ����
�


 
� �


�
 


� � �
�


 
� �


�
 


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


��������352*5$0�0$1$*(0(17�
$FFRUGLQJ�WR����&)5���������ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�DGRSW�ZULWWHQ�SROLFLHV�DQG�
SURFHGXUHV�SUHVFULEHG�E\�&DOWUDQV��7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�DGRSW�&DOWUDQV�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�
&KDSWHU�����&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ��/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�SURYLGLQJ�DOO�UHVRXUFHV�
QHFHVVDU\�IRU�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��PDQDJHPHQW��DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�
LQFOXGLQJ�VXEFRQWUDFWV��(QVXULQJ�FRQVXOWDQW�FRVWV�ELOOHG�DUH�DOORZDEOH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�
)HGHUDO�FRVW�SULQFLSOHV�DQG�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�WKH�FRQWUDFW�WHUPV�DV�ZHOO�DV�WKH�DFFHSWDELOLW\�DQG�
SURJUHVV�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW
V�ZRUN��


x� 0RQLWRULQJ�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW
V�ZRUN�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�WHUPV��FRQGLWLRQV��DQG�
VSHFLILFDWLRQV�RI�WKH�FRQWUDFW��


x� 3UHSDULQJ�D�FRQVXOWDQW
V�SHUIRUPDQFH�HYDOXDWLRQ�ZKHQ�VHUYLFHV�DUH�FRPSOHWHG�DQG�XVLQJ�
VXFK�SHUIRUPDQFH�GDWD�LQ�IXWXUH�HYDOXDWLRQ�DQG�UDQNLQJ�RI�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�SURYLGH�VLPLODU�
VHUYLFHV��


x� &ORVLQJ�RXW�D�FRQWUDFW��


x� 5HWDLQLQJ�VXSSRUWLQJ�SURJUDPPDWLF�DQG�FRQWUDFW�UHFRUGV��DV�VSHFLILHG�LQ���&)5���������
DQG�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKLV�SDUW��


x� 'HWHUPLQLQJ�WKH�H[WHQW�WR�ZKLFK�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��ZKLFK�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�WKH�SURIHVVLRQDO�
TXDOLW\��WHFKQLFDO�DFFXUDF\��DQG�FRRUGLQDWLRQ�RI�VHUYLFHV��PD\�EH�UHDVRQDEO\�OLDEOH�IRU�
FRVWV�UHVXOWLQJ�IURP�HUURUV�DQG�RPLVVLRQV�LQ�WKH�ZRUN�IXUQLVKHG�XQGHU�LWV�FRQWUDFW��


x� $VVHVVLQJ�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH��FRQWUDFWXDO��RU�OHJDO�UHPHGLHV�LQ�LQVWDQFHV�ZKHUH�FRQVXOWDQWV�
YLRODWH�RU�EUHDFK�FRQWUDFW�WHUPV�DQG�FRQGLWLRQV��DQG�SURYLGLQJ�IRU�VXFK�VDQFWLRQV�DQG�
SHQDOWLHV�DV�PD\�EH�DSSURSULDWH��DQG�


x� 5HVROYLQJ�GLVSXWHV�LQ�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��PDQDJHPHQW��DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�HQJLQHHULQJ�
DQG�GHVLJQ�UHODWHG�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV��


$Q�H[DPSOH�UHVROXWLRQ�LV�ORFDWHG�DW��KWWSV���GRW�FD�JRY�SURJUDPV�ORFDO�DVVLVWDQFH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�
DQG�RWKHU�SROLF\�LVVXHV�FRQVXOWDQW�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFXUHPHQW��


��������5()(5(1&(6�
���&)5��3DUW�����$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�(QJLQHHULQJ�DQG�'HVLJQ�5HODWHG�6HUYLFH�&RQWUDFWV�


KWWS���ZZZ�HFIU�JRY�FJL�ELQ�WH[W�LG["UJQ GLY�	QRGH �������������


���86&��6HFWLRQ������%URRNV�$FW�
KWWS���ZZZ�IKZD�GRW�JRY�SURJUDPDGPLQ��������FIP�


���&)5�3XEOLF�&RQWUDFWV�DQG�3URSHUW\�0DQDJHPHQW�
KWWS���ZZZ�HFIU�JRY�FJL�ELQ�WH[W�LG["WSO �HFIUEURZVH�7LWOH�����WDEB���WSO�


���86&�3XEOLF�&RQWUDFWV�
KWWS���ODZ�RQHFOH�FRP�XVFRGH����LQGH[�KWPO�


���86&�/HWWLQJ�RI�&RQWUDFWV�
KWWS���ZZZ�IKZD�GRW�JRY�PDS���GRFV�WLWOH��XVF�SGI�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


267 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/consultant-selection-procurement

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/environmental-and-other-policy-issues/consultant-selection-procurement

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?rgn=div5&node=23:1.0.1.2.3

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/programadmin/121205.cfm

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title41/41tab_02.tpl

http://law.onecle.com/uscode/41/index.html

http://www.fhwa.dot.gov/map21/docs/title23usc.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �
�


 
� ��


�
 


� �


�
 


� � � � � �
�


�
�


�
 


� �
�


�
�


�
 


� � ��
� �


�
 


� � �
��


�
 


� ��
�


 
� �


�
 


� � �
�


�
 


�
�


 
� � �


�
�


�
� �


� �
 


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


���&)5��&KDSWHU����3DUW��������
KWWSV���ZZZ�DFTXLVLWLRQ�JRY�IDU�KWPO�)$572&3���KWPO�


���&)5��&KDSWHU����3DUW����
KWWSV���ZZZ�DFTXLVLWLRQ�JRY�IDU�KWPO�)$572&3���KWPO�


7LWOH�����3DUW����±�7\SHV�RI�&RQWUDFWV�
KWWS���ZZZ�HODZV�XV�VXEVFULEHU�VLJQLQ"UHWXUQXUO KWWS���IHGHUDO�HODZV�XV�FIU�WLWOH�����������WLWOH���FKDSW�
HU��SDUW��	,V+LVWRU\ �	$VS[$XWR'HWHFW&RRNLH6XSSRUW ��


���&)5�����6XESDUW������±�3DWHQW�5LJKWV�XQGHU�*RYHUQPHQW�&RQWUDFWV�
KWWSV���ZZZ�ODZ�FRUQHOO�HGX�FIU�WH[W����SDUW����VXESDUW������


���&)5����������
KWWSV���ZZZ�JSR�JRY�IGV\V�SNJ�&)5������WLWOH���YRO��SGI�&)5������WLWOH���YRO��VHF���������SGI�


���&)5��&KDSWHU����±�&RVW�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��6XESDUW������
KWWSV���ZZZ�JSR�JRY�IGV\V�JUDQXOH�&)5������WLWOH���YRO��&)5������WLWOH���YRO��FKDS���


��&)5�3DUW�����
KWWS���ZZZ�HFIU�JRY�FJL�ELQ�WH[W�
LG["6,' HE�GE�D��FH��IGF����H�IH�����G�G	PF WUXH	WSO �HFIUEURZVH�7LWOH����FIU���BPDLQB���W�
SO�


���&)5��3DUW����3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�E\�'LVDGYDQWDJHG�%XVLQHVV�(QWHUSULVHV�LQ�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�
7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�)LQDQFLDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URJUDPV�
KWWS���ZZZ�HFIU�JRY�FJL�ELQ�WH[W�LG["WSO �HFIUEURZVH�7LWOH�����FIU��BPDLQB���WSO�


$PHULFDQ�$VVRFLDWLRQ�RI�6WDWH�+LJKZD\�DQG�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�2IILFLDOV��$$6+72��8QLIRUP�$XGLW�
DQG�$FFRXQWLQJ�*XLGH�
KWWS���DXGLW�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�RUJ�3DJHV�GHIDXOW�DVS[�


&DOWUDQV�'LYLVLRQ�RI�3URFXUHPHQW�DQG�&RQWUDFWV�:HEVLWH�
KWWS���ZZZ�GRW�FD�JRY�GSDF�LQGH[�KWPO�


&DOLIRUQLD�/DERU�&RGH��6HFWLRQ������
KWWS���ODZ�RQHFOH�FRP�FDOLIRUQLD�ODERU������KWPO�


*RYHUQPHQW�$XGLWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV��*$6��LVVXHG�E\�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�*RYHUQPHQW�$FFRXQWDELOLW\�
2IILFH�
KWWS���ZZZ�JDR�JRY�\HOORZERRN�RYHUYLHZ�


*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�6HFWLRQV������WKURXJK��������
KWWS���ZZZ�OHJLQIR�FD�JRY�FJL�ELQ�GLVSOD\FRGH"VHFWLRQ JRY	JURXS �����������	ILOH ������������


20%�&LUFXODU�$�����8QLIRUP�$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�*UDQWV�DQG�$JUHHPHQWV�ZLWK�
,QVWLWXWLRQV�RI�+LJKHU�(GXFDWLRQ��+RVSLWDOV��DQG�2WKHU�1RQ�3URILW�2UJDQL]DWLRQV�
KWWSV���ZZZ�ZKLWHKRXVH�JRY�RPE�FLUFXODUVBD����


6WDQGDUG�(QYLURQPHQWDO�5HIHUHQFH��6(5��
KWWS���ZZZ�GRW�FD�JRY�VHU��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


268 of 611



https://www.acquisition.gov/far/html/FARTOCP15.html

https://www.acquisition.gov/far/html/FARTOCP15.html

http://www.elaws.us/subscriber/signin?returnurl=http://federal.elaws.us/cfr/title/4/10/2013/title48/chapter1/part16&IsHistory=1&AspxAutoDetectCookieSupport=1

http://www.elaws.us/subscriber/signin?returnurl=http://federal.elaws.us/cfr/title/4/10/2013/title48/chapter1/part16&IsHistory=1&AspxAutoDetectCookieSupport=1

https://www.law.cornell.edu/cfr/text/48/part-27/subpart-27.3

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/CFR-2011-title48-vol1/pdf/CFR-2011-title48-vol1-sec31-201-6.pdf

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/granule/CFR-2002-title48-vol7/CFR-2002-title48-vol7-chap99

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=eb0db4a32ce93fdc5815e6fe58791d9d&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=eb0db4a32ce93fdc5815e6fe58791d9d&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?SID=eb0db4a32ce93fdc5815e6fe58791d9d&mc=true&tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl

http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title49/49cfr26_main_02.tpl

http://audit.transportation.org/Pages/default.aspx

http://www.dot.ca.gov/dpac/index.html

http://law.onecle.com/california/labor/1775.html

http://www.gao.gov/yellowbook/overview

http://www.leginfo.ca.gov/cgi-bin/displaycode?section=gov&group=04001-05000&file=4525-4529.5

https://www.whitehouse.gov/omb/circulars_a110

http://www.dot.ca.gov/ser/





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � � �
 


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


�


� �


�
�


� ��
� �


 �


 � �


 �


 �


 �


 �


 �


 �


 �


 
 


�


 
 


� �


�


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


������67$7(�21/<�)81'('�$	(�&2175$&76�


$	(�
6WDWH�2QO\�


'LYLVLRQ�RI�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�0LQLPXP�5HTXLUHPHQWV�
IRU�6WDWH�RQO\�IXQGHG�$	(�&RQWUDFWV�


$��:ULWWHQ�3URFHGXUHV�


%��&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�


&��5HFRUGV�


'��)XOO�	�2SHQ�&RPSHWLWLRQ�


(��6HOHFWLRQ�%DVLV�


)��3XEOLFDWLRQ�


*��6ROLFLWDWLRQ�


+��&RVW�$QDO\VLV�


,��1HJRWLDWLRQV�


-��$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV�


.��([KLELW����&��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFWV�'DWDEDVH�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


269 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �
� �


�
� �


� �
� � �
�


� �
� � �


� �
�


� �
� � �


� � �
� �


� � � �


�


�
� � �


� � � �
�


�


�
� � �


�
� �


��


� �


� � �
� � � ��


�
� � � �


� �
�  


 


 


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


�������*(1(5$/�
/RFDO�$JHQFLHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�IROORZ�DOO�DSSOLFDEOH�ORFDO�DQG�VWDWH�UHJXODWLRQV�LQFOXGLQJ�
WKRVH�OLVWHG�LQ�/$30�&KDSWHU����LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKHLU�6WDWH�0DVWHU�$JUHHPHQW��
$OWKRXJK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�OLVWHG�LQ�WKLV�VHFWLRQ�DUH�PLQLPXP�UHTXLUHPHQWV��WKH�ORFDO�
DJHQF\�VKDOO�XVH�JRRG�HQJLQHHULQJ�MXGJPHQW�DQG�EHVW�SUDFWLFHV�WR�GRFXPHQW�WKHLU�
SURFHVVHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV�ZKHQ�SURFXULQJ�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�XWLOL]LQJ�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�EDVHG�
VHOHFWLRQV��


$OO�FRQVXOWDQWV�PXVW�FRPSO\�ZLWK����&RGH�RI�)HGHUDO�5HJXODWLRQV��&)5��3DUW�����
&RQWUDFW�&RVW�3ULQFLSOHV�DQG�3URFHGXUHV��$OVR��FRQVXOWDQWV�DQG�/RFDO�$JHQFLHV�PXVW�
FRPSO\�ZLWK���&)5�3DUW������8QLIRUP�$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�5HTXLUHPHQWV��&RVW�3ULQFLSOHV��
DQG�$XGLW�5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�)HGHUDO�$ZDUGV��H[FOXGLQJ�VHFWLRQV������������������
3URFXUHPHQW�6WDQGDUGV��UHIHUHQFH�)HGHUDO�+LJKZD\�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�'HFHPEHU���������
0HPRUDQGXP�$FWLRQ����&)5�����,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�*XLGDQFH���


$JHQF\�VWDWH�RQO\�IXQGHG��62)��DJUHHPHQWV�PXVW�FRQWDLQ�WKH�UHTXLUHG�IHGHUDO�ILVFDO�
SURYLVLRQV�IURP���&)5�����LQ�DOO�'LYLVLRQ�RI�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�IXQGHG�DJUHHPHQWV��
([KLELW����5��$	(�%RLOHUSODWH�$JUHHPHQW�/DQJXDJH�FRQWDLQV���&)5�����UHTXLUHPHQWV�
DQG�PD\�DOVR�EH�XVHG�LQ�62)�DJUHHPHQWV��'HSHQGLQJ�XSRQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��WKH�
UHTXLUHG�FRQWUDFW�SURYLVLRQV�PD\�QHHG�WR�LQFOXGH�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�6WDWH�3UHYDLOLQJ�:DJHV��


$OO�SURSRVHG�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�GRFXPHQWV��LQFOXGLQJ�VWDWH�RQO\�IXQGHG��DUH�
VXEMHFW�WR�DXGLW�RU�UHYLHZ�E\�&DOWUDQV¶�,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�,QGHSHQGHQW�2IILFH�RI�
$XGLWV�DQG�,QYHVWLJDWLRQV��,2$,���RWKHU�VWDWH�DXGLW�RUJDQL]DWLRQV��RU�WKH�IHGHUDO�
JRYHUQPHQW�DQG�UHTXLUHG�WR�IROORZ�/$30�6HFWLRQ��������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�DQG�
5HYLHZ�3URFHVV��


)RU�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV��SURFXUHG�ZLWK�ORFDO�RU�VWDWH�IXQGV��WR�SURYLGH�VHUYLFHV�IRU�
IHGHUDO�DLG�SURMHFWV��RU�WR�RYHUVHH�RU�PDQDJH�RWKHU�FRQVXOWDQWV�SURYLGLQJ�WKHVH�
VHUYLFHV��WKH�&RQVXOWDQW�LQ�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH�SURFHVV�PXVW�EH�FRPSOHWHG�WR�EH�
HOLJLEOH�IRU�UHLPEXUVHPHQW��5HIHU�WR�&KDSWHU��������0LVFHOODQHRXV�&RQVLGHUDWLRQV��
5HWDLQLQJ�D�&RQVXOWDQW�DV�DQ�$JHQF\�(QJLQHHU�RU�LQ�D�0DQDJHPHQW�6XSSRUW�5ROH��


'%(�FRQWUDFW�JRDOV�DUH�QRW�UHTXLUHG�IRU�VWDWH�RQO\�IXQGHG�FRQWUDFWV��


7KLV�JXLGDQFH�LV�IRU�FRQWUDFWV�XWLOL]LQJ�VWDWH�IXQGV�RQO\��,I�DQ\�IHGHUDO�IXQGV�DUH�DGGHG�RU�
UHLPEXUVHG��WKH�IHGHUDO�SURFHVV�PXVW�EH�IROORZHG��


1RQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�UHIHUHQFH�/$30�6HFWLRQ�������1RQ�$	(�&RQWUDFWV��
5HIHUHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�7LWOH����'LYLVLRQ����&KDSWHU�����&RQWUDFWV�ZLWK�
3ULYDWH�$UFKLWHFWV��(QJLQHHULQJ��/DQG�6XUYH\LQJ��DQG�&RQVWUXFWLRQ�3URMHFW�0DQDJHPHQW�
)LUPV���������������


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


270 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


�


�
� � �


�
� � �


�


� �
� �


�


��
 � �  


� � �
�


� � �
��


� ���
�


�
� �


� �
� �


�
�
��


� �
 


�
� � �
� ��


�
�


�
 


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


�������'(),1,7,21�2)�$	(�
$UFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��DQG�ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ�
VHUYLFHV�LQFOXGHV�WKRVH�SURIHVVLRQDO�VHUYLFHV�RI�DQ�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�
DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��RU�ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ�QDWXUH�DV�ZHOO�DV�LQFLGHQWDO�
VHUYLFHV�WKDW�PHPEHUV�RI�WKHVH�SURIHVVLRQV�DQG�WKRVH�LQ�WKHLU�HPSOR\�PD\�ORJLFDOO\�RU�
MXVWLILDEO\�SHUIRUP��


&RQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�PHDQV�WKRVH�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�E\�D�OLFHQVHG�
DUFKLWHFW��UHJLVWHUHG�HQJLQHHU��RU�OLFHQVHG�JHQHUDO�FRQWUDFWRU��$Q\�LQGLYLGXDO�RU�ILUP�
SURSRVLQJ�WR�SURYLGH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV�VKDOO�SURYLGH�HYLGHQFH�
WKDW�WKH�LQGLYLGXDO�RU�ILUP�DQG�LWV�SHUVRQQHO�FDUU\LQJ�RXW�RQVLWH�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�KDYH�
H[SHUWLVH�DQG�H[SHULHQFH�LQ�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�GHVLJQ�UHYLHZ�DQG�HYDOXDWLRQ��
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�PRELOL]DWLRQ�DQG�VXSHUYLVLRQ��ELG�HYDOXDWLRQ��SURMHFW�VFKHGXOLQJ��FRVW�
EHQHILW�DQDO\VLV��FODLPV�UHYLHZ�DQG�QHJRWLDWLRQ��DQG�JHQHUDO�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�
DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�D�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW��


(QYLURQPHQWDO�VHUYLFHV�PHDQ�WKRVH�VHUYLFHV�SHUIRUPHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�SURMHFW�
GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�SHUPLW�SURFHVVLQJ�LQ�RUGHU�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�
HQYLURQPHQWDO�ODZV��
5HIHUHQFH��CDOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


�������0,1,080�$8',7�5(48,5(0(176�
$��:ULWWHQ�3URFHGXUHV�
/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�VKDOO�IROORZ�WKH�PLQLPXP�UHTXLUHPHQWV�OLVWHG�EHORZ�LQ�DGGLWLRQ�WR�DQ\�
ORFDO�ODZV�DQG�UHJXODWLRQV��


5HIHUHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


%��&RQIOLFW�RI�,QWHUHVW�
7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�GHYHORS�DQG�PDLQWDLQ�D�ZULWWHQ�FRGH�RI�FRQGXFW�JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�
SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�LWV�HPSOR\HHV�HQJDJHG�LQ�WKH�DZDUG�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�VWDWH�IXQGHG�
FRQWUDFWV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�SUHYHQWLRQ�RI�FRQIOLFWV�RI�LQWHUHVW��


5HIHUHQFHV��
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH����������


&� 5HFRUGV�
/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�VKDOO�NHHS�DGHTXDWH�UHFRUGV�RI�DOO�FRQWUDFWV�LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��
SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW��DFFRXQWLQJ�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ��


5HIHUHQFHV��
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH����������
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


271 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � �


�
� �


�
�
�


�
�


�


�
�
�


 
�


� �


�
 


�
�


� �


�
 


� �
� �


� �


 �
 


�
�
� ��


  
 


� � �
� �


� �
� � � �


��
�


�


  


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


'��)XOO�	�2SHQ�FRPSHWLWLRQ
$OO�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�VKDOO�EH�SURFXUHG�WKURXJK�D�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�EDVHG�VHOHFWLRQ�XWLOL]LQJ�
RSHQ�DQG�IDLU�FRPSHWLWLRQ��(YDOXDWH�DW�OHDVW�WKUHH�FRQVXOWDQWV�XVLQJ�SXEOLVKHG�
HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD�DQG�UDQN�WKHVH�ILUPV�LQ�RUGHU�RI�SUHIHUHQFH��,I�OHVV�WKDQ�WKUHH�
FRQVXOWDQWV�DUH�HYDOXDWHG��SURYLGH�MXVWLILFDWLRQ�IRU�DJHQF\�ILOH��


5HIHUHQFHV��
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


(��6HOHFWLRQ�%DVLV�
6HOHFWLRQ�RI�D�ILUP�VKDOO�EH�EDVHG�RQ�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�WKH�RUGHU�RI�UDQNHG�SUHIHUHQFH��


5HIHUHQFHV��
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������
&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


)� 3XEOLFDWLRQ�
6ROLFLWDWLRQV�IRU�$	(�FRQWUDFWV�VKDOO�EH�LQ�D�PDQQHU�WKDW�LV�RSHQ�DQG�FRPSHWLWLYH��


5HIHUHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


*��6ROLFLWDWLRQ�
7KH�VROLFLWDWLRQV�VKDOO�LQFOXGH�SXEOLVKHG�HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD�WR�UDQN�LQ�RUGHU�RI�
SUHIHUHQFH��&OHDUO\�GHILQH�H[SHFWDWLRQV�LQ�WKH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�LQ�RUGHU�WR�HYDOXDWH�ILUPV��


5HIHUHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


+��&RVW�$QDO\VLV�
$Q�LQGHSHQGHQW�FRVW�FRPSDULVRQ�WR�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�FRVW�SURSRVDO�VKDOO�EH�GRQH�LQ�
RUGHU�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�FRQWUDFW�LV�QHJRWLDWHG�DW�D�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�SULFH��


5HIHUHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


,��1HJRWLDWLRQV
1HJRWLDWLRQV�PXVW�EH�GRFXPHQWHG�WR�YHULI\�D�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�FRQWUDFW�KDV�EHHQ�
H[HFXWHG�XVLQJ�SXEOLF�IXQGV��


5HIHUHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�������


-��$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV�
$	(�FRQWUDFWV�SURFXUHG�E\�SXEOLF�DJHQFLHV�VKDOO�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�VWDQGDUG�DFFRXQWLQJ�
SUDFWLFHV�DQG�PD\�UHTXLUH�ILQDQFLDO�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�DXGLWV��$OO�DJHQFLHV�VKDOO�IROORZ�
WKH�$XGLW�DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV�DV�VWDWHG�LQ�/$30�6HFWLRQ�������$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�$XGLW�
DQG�5HYLHZ�3URFHVV��
KWWS���ZZZ�GRW�FD�JRY�KT�/RFDO3URJUDPV�ODP�/$30�FK���SGI�
KWWS���ZZZ�GRW�FD�JRY�KT�/RFDO3URJUDPV�ODP�IRUPV�FKDSWHU�����D�SGI�


5HIHUHQFH��&DOLIRUQLD�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH����������


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


272 of 611



http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/LAPM/ch10.pdf

http://www.dot.ca.gov/hq/LocalPrograms/lam/forms/chapter10/10a.pdf





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � � � �


� � � � �
� �


� � � � �
��


�
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


.��([KLELW����&��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'DWDEDVH�
([KLELW����&��$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'DWDEDVH�PXVW�EH�FRPSOHWHG�DW�
KWWS���GODDHRYHUVLJKW�GRW�FD�JRY�IPL�ZHEG�([KLELW������&��SOHDVH�XVH�)LUHIR[�RU�&KURPH�LI�QRW�
VXSSRUWHG�E\�\RXU�EURZVHU��SULRU�WR�FRQWUDFW�DZDUG��RU�DIWHU�FRQWUDFW�DZDUG�EXW�QR�ODWHU�WKDQ�WKH�
ILUVW�LQYRLFH��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


273 of 611



http://dlaaeoversight.dot.ca.gov/fmi/webd/Exhibit%2010-C





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
��


� � �
� � � � � � ��


� �
� �


� � � � �
�


� � � � � � �
� � � �


�
� � � �


�


���
� �


� � � � � � �
� � �


� �


� � � �
� �


�


� � � � �
� � � � � �


� � �
�


� � �
�


� � �
� �


� � �
� �


� �


� � �
� � �


�
�


���
� � �


� � �
�


�
� �


� �
� � � �


� �
� � � �


� �


� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


&$�*RYHUQPHQW�&RGH�5HIHUHQFHV�
&DOLIRUQLD�*29�������
�D��0HPEHUV�RI�WKH�/HJLVODWXUH��VWDWH��FRXQW\��GLVWULFW��MXGLFLDO�GLVWULFW��DQG�FLW\�RIILFHUV�RU�HPSOR\HHV�VKDOO�QRW�EH�
ILQDQFLDOO\�LQWHUHVWHG�LQ�DQ\�FRQWUDFW�PDGH�E\�WKHP�LQ�WKHLU�RIILFLDO�FDSDFLW\��RU�E\�DQ\�ERG\�RU�ERDUG�RI�ZKLFK�WKH\�


DUH�PHPEHUV��1RU�VKDOO�VWDWH��FRXQW\��GLVWULFW��MXGLFLDO�GLVWULFW��DQG�FLW\�RIILFHUV�RU�HPSOR\HHV�EH�SXUFKDVHUV�DW�DQ\�
VDOH�RU�YHQGRUV�DW�DQ\�SXUFKDVH�PDGH�E\�WKHP�LQ�WKHLU�RIILFLDO�FDSDFLW\��


�E��$Q�LQGLYLGXDO�VKDOO�QRW�DLG�RU�DEHW�D�0HPEHU�RI�WKH�/HJLVODWXUH�RU�D�VWDWH��FRXQW\��GLVWULFW��MXGLFLDO�GLVWULFW��RU�FLW\�
RIILFHU�RU�HPSOR\HH�LQ�YLRODWLQJ�VXEGLYLVLRQ��D���


�F��$V�XVHG�LQ�WKLV�DUWLFOH��³GLVWULFW´�PHDQV�DQ\�DJHQF\�RI�WKH�VWDWH�IRUPHG�SXUVXDQW�WR�JHQHUDO�ODZ�RU�VSHFLDO�DFW��
IRU�WKH�ORFDO�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�JRYHUQPHQWDO�RU�SURSULHWDU\�IXQFWLRQV�ZLWKLQ�OLPLWHG�ERXQGDULHV��


&DOLIRUQLD�*29�������
3ODQV��VSHFLILFDWLRQV��ZRUN�DXWKRUL]DWLRQV�GHVFULELQJ�ZRUN�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG��DQG�DOO�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHIHUUHG�WR�LQ�
WKLV�FKDSWHU�DUH�RSHQ�WR�LQVSHFWLRQ�DQG�H[DPLQDWLRQ�DV�D�SXEOLF�UHFRUG��


&DOLIRUQLD�*29�������
)RU�SXUSRVHV�RI�WKLV�FKDSWHU��WKH�IROORZLQJ�WHUPV�KDYH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�PHDQLQJ��


�D��³)LUP´�PHDQV�DQ\�LQGLYLGXDO��ILUP��SDUWQHUVKLS��FRUSRUDWLRQ��DVVRFLDWLRQ��RU�RWKHU�OHJDO�HQWLW\�SHUPLWWHG�E\�ODZ�
WR�SUDFWLFH�WKH�SURIHVVLRQ�RI�DUFKLWHFWXUH��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUH��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO�VHUYLFHV��ODQG�
VXUYH\LQJ��RU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW��


�E��³6WDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG´�PHDQV�WKH�VHFUHWDU\��DGPLQLVWUDWRU��RU�KHDG�RI�D�GHSDUWPHQW��DJHQF\��RU�EXUHDX�RI�WKH�
6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD�DXWKRUL]HG�WR�FRQWUDFW�IRU�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��
ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV��


�F��³/RFDO�DJHQF\�KHDG´�PHDQV�WKH�VHFUHWDU\��DGPLQLVWUDWRU��RU�KHDG�RI�D�GHSDUWPHQW��DJHQF\��RU�EXUHDX�RI�DQ\�
FLW\��FRXQW\��FLW\�DQG�FRXQW\��ZKHWKHU�JHQHUDO�ODZ�RU�FKDUWHUHG��RU�DQ\�GLVWULFW�ZKLFK�LV�DXWKRUL]HG�WR�FRQWUDFW�IRU�
DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�
PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV��


�G��³$UFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��DQG�ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ�VHUYLFHV´�LQFOXGHV�
WKRVH�SURIHVVLRQDO�VHUYLFHV�RI�DQ�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��RU�ODQG�
VXUYH\LQJ�QDWXUH�DV�ZHOO�DV�LQFLGHQWDO�VHUYLFHV�WKDW�PHPEHUV�RI�WKHVH�SURIHVVLRQV�DQG�WKRVH�LQ�WKHLU�HPSOR\�PD\�
ORJLFDOO\�RU�MXVWLILDEO\�SHUIRUP��


�H��³&RQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW´�PHDQV�WKRVH�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�E\�D�OLFHQVHG�DUFKLWHFW��UHJLVWHUHG�
HQJLQHHU��RU�OLFHQVHG�JHQHUDO�FRQWUDFWRU�ZKLFK�PHHW�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�6HFWLRQ��������IRU�PDQDJHPHQW�DQG�
VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�ZRUN�SHUIRUPHG�RQ�VWDWH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFWV��


�I��³(QYLURQPHQWDO�VHUYLFHV´�PHDQV�WKRVH�VHUYLFHV�SHUIRUPHG�LQ�FRQQHFWLRQ�ZLWK�SURMHFW�GHYHORSPHQW�DQG�SHUPLW�
SURFHVVLQJ�LQ�RUGHU�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�HQYLURQPHQWDO�ODZV��³(QYLURQPHQWDO�VHUYLFHV´�DOVR�LQFOXGHV�
WKH�SURFHVVLQJ�DQG�DZDUGLQJ�RI�FODLPV�SXUVXDQW�WR�&KDSWHU�������FRPPHQFLQJ�ZLWK�6HFWLRQ�����������RI�'LYLVLRQ�
���RI�WKH�+HDOWK�DQG�6DIHW\�&RGH��


&DOLIRUQLD�*29������
1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJ�DQ\�RWKHU�SURYLVLRQ�RI�ODZ��VHOHFWLRQ�E\�D�VWDWH�RU�ORFDO�DJHQF\�KHDG�IRU�SURIHVVLRQDO�VHUYLFHV�RI�
SULYDWH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��RU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�
PDQDJHPHQW�ILUPV�VKDOO�EH�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�GHPRQVWUDWHG�FRPSHWHQFH�DQG�RQ�WKH�SURIHVVLRQDO�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�
QHFHVVDU\�IRU�WKH�VDWLVIDFWRU\�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�WKH�VHUYLFHV�UHTXLUHG��,Q�RUGHU�WR�LPSOHPHQW�WKLV�PHWKRG�RI�
VHOHFWLRQ��VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDGV�FRQWUDFWLQJ�IRU�SULYDWH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��SURIHVVLRQDO�
HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV�VKDOO�DGRSW�E\�
UHJXODWLRQ��DQG�ORFDO�DJHQF\�KHDGV�FRQWUDFWLQJ�IRU�SULYDWH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��SURIHVVLRQDO�
HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV�PD\�DGRSW�E\�
RUGLQDQFH��SURFHGXUHV�WKDW�DVVXUH�WKDW�WKHVH�VHUYLFHV�DUH�HQJDJHG�RQ�WKH�EDVLV�RI�GHPRQVWUDWHG�FRPSHWHQFH�
DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�IRU�WKH�W\SHV�RI�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�DQG�DW�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�SULFHV�WR�WKH�SXEOLF�
DJHQFLHV��)XUWKHUPRUH��WKHVH�SURFHGXUHV�VKDOO�DVVXUH�PD[LPXP�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�RI�VPDOO�EXVLQHVV�ILUPV��DV�GHILQHG�
E\�WKH�'LUHFWRU�RI�*HQHUDO�6HUYLFHV�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQ��������


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


274 of 611



https://25299.10





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � �


� � � �


�
�


�
� �


� �
� �


�
� � � � �


� � � �
� �


� �
� �


�
�


� ��
�


� � � �
� � � �


� � �
� �


�
�


�
� � � � ��
� � � �


� �
�


��


� �
� �


� �
�


�
� ��


� � �
�


� � � ��


� � � � �
� �


�
� � � � �


� �
�


�
� �


� � �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKHVH�SURFHGXUHV�VKDOO�VSHFLILFDOO\�SURKLELW�SUDFWLFHV�ZKLFK�PLJKW�UHVXOW�LQ�XQODZIXO�DFWLYLW\�LQFOXGLQJ��
EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��UHEDWHV��NLFNEDFNV��RU�RWKHU�XQODZIXO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ��DQG�VKDOO�VSHFLILFDOO\�SURKLELW�JRYHUQPHQW�
DJHQF\�HPSOR\HHV�IURP�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�ZKHQ�WKRVH�HPSOR\HHV�KDYH�D�UHODWLRQVKLS�ZLWK�D�
SHUVRQ�RU�EXVLQHVV�HQWLW\�VHHNLQJ�D�FRQWUDFW�XQGHU�WKLV�VHFWLRQ�ZKLFK�ZRXOG�VXEMHFW�WKRVH�HPSOR\HHV�WR�WKH�
SURKLELWLRQ�RI�6HFWLRQ��������


&DOLIRUQLD�*29�������
,Q�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW�RI�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��DQG�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV��WKH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�VKDOO�HQFRXUDJH�ILUPV�HQJDJHG�LQ�WKH�ODZIXO�
SUDFWLFH�RI�WKHLU�SURIHVVLRQ�WR�VXEPLW�DQQXDOO\�D�VWDWHPHQW�RI�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�GDWD��


�D��:KHQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�LV�E\�D�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG��VWDWHZLGH�DQQRXQFHPHQW�RI�DOO�SURMHFWV�UHTXLULQJ�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��
ODQGVFDSH�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��RU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV�
VKDOO�EH�PDGH�E\�WKH�DJHQF\�KHDG�WKURXJK�SXEOLFDWLRQV�RI�WKH�UHVSHFWLYH�SURIHVVLRQDO�VRFLHWLHV��7KH�DJHQF\�
KHDG��IRU�HDFK�SURSRVHG�SURMHFW��VKDOO�HYDOXDWH�FXUUHQW�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�GDWD�RQ�ILOH�
ZLWK�WKH�DJHQF\��WRJHWKHU�ZLWK�WKRVH�WKDW�PD\�EH�VXEPLWWHG�E\�RWKHU�ILUPV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�SURSRVHG�SURMHFW��DQG�
VKDOO�FRQGXFW�GLVFXVVLRQV�ZLWK�QR�OHVV�WKDQ�WKUHH�ILUPV�UHJDUGLQJ�DQWLFLSDWHG�FRQFHSWV�DQG�WKH�UHODWLYH�XWLOLW\�RI�
DOWHUQDWLYH�PHWKRGV�RI�DSSURDFK�IRU�IXUQLVKLQJ�WKH�UHTXLUHG�VHUYLFHV�DQG�WKHQ�VKDOO�VHOHFW�WKHUHIURP��LQ�RUGHU�RI�
SUHIHUHQFH��EDVHG�XSRQ�FULWHULD�HVWDEOLVKHG�DQG�SXEOLVKHG�E\�KLP�RU�KHU��QR�OHVV�WKDQ�WKUHH�RI�WKH�ILUPV�GHHPHG�
WR�EH�WKH�PRVW�KLJKO\�TXDOLILHG�WR�SURYLGH�WKH�VHUYLFHV�UHTXLUHG��


�E��:KHQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�LV�E\�D�ORFDO�DJHQF\�KHDG��WKH�DJHQF\�KHDG�PD\�XQGHUWDNH�WKH�SURFHGXUHV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�
VXEGLYLVLRQ��D���,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKHVH�SURFHGXUHV�VKDOO�VSHFLILFDOO\�SURKLELW�SUDFWLFHV�ZKLFK�PLJKW�UHVXOW�LQ�XQODZIXO�
DFWLYLW\�LQFOXGLQJ��EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR��UHEDWHV��NLFNEDFNV��RU�RWKHU�XQODZIXO�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ��DQG�VKDOO�VSHFLILFDOO\�
SURKLELW�JRYHUQPHQW�DJHQF\�HPSOR\HHV�IURP�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�ZKHQ�WKHVH�HPSOR\HHV�KDYH�D�
UHODWLRQVKLS�ZLWK�D�SHUVRQ�RU�EXVLQHVV�HQWLW\�VHHNLQJ�D�FRQWUDFW�XQGHU�WKLV�VHFWLRQ��


&DOLIRUQLD�*29�������
�D��:KHQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�LV�E\�D�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�SURFHGXUHV�VKDOO�DSSO\��
����7KH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�VKDOO�QHJRWLDWH�D�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�WKH�EHVW�TXDOLILHG�ILUP�IRU�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��ODQGVFDSH�
DUFKLWHFWXUDO��HQJLQHHULQJ��HQYLURQPHQWDO��ODQG�VXUYH\LQJ��DQG�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�PDQDJHPHQW�VHUYLFHV�DW�
FRPSHQVDWLRQ�ZKLFK�WKH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�GHWHUPLQHV�LV�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�WR�WKH�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD�RU�WKH�
SROLWLFDO�VXEGLYLVLRQ�LQYROYHG��


����6KRXOG�WKH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�EH�XQDEOH�WR�QHJRWLDWH�D�VDWLVIDFWRU\�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�WKH�ILUP�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH�
WKH�PRVW�TXDOLILHG��DW�D�SULFH�WKH�DJHQF\�KHDG�GHWHUPLQHV�WR�EH�IDLU�DQG�UHDVRQDEOH�WR�WKH�6WDWH�RI�&DOLIRUQLD�
RU�WKH�SROLWLFDO�VXEGLYLVLRQ�LQYROYHG��QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKDW�ILUP�VKDOO�EH�IRUPDOO\�WHUPLQDWHG��7KH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�
KHDG�VKDOO�WKHQ�XQGHUWDNH�QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�VHFRQG�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�ILUP��)DLOLQJ�DFFRUG�ZLWK�WKH�VHFRQG�
PRVW�TXDOLILHG�ILUP��WKH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�VKDOO�WHUPLQDWH�QHJRWLDWLRQV��7KH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�VKDOO�WKHQ�
XQGHUWDNH�QHJRWLDWLRQV�ZLWK�WKH�WKLUG�PRVW�TXDOLILHG�ILUP��


����6KRXOG�WKH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�EH�XQDEOH�WR�QHJRWLDWH�D�VDWLVIDFWRU\�FRQWUDFW�ZLWK�DQ\�RI�WKH�VHOHFWHG�ILUPV��
WKH�VWDWH�DJHQF\�KHDG�VKDOO�VHOHFW�DGGLWLRQDO�ILUPV�LQ�RUGHU�RI�WKHLU�FRPSHWHQFH�DQG�TXDOLILFDWLRQ�DQG�FRQWLQXH�
QHJRWLDWLRQV�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKLV�FKDSWHU�XQWLO�DQ�DJUHHPHQW�LV�UHDFKHG��


�E��:KHQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�LV�E\�D�ORFDO�DJHQF\�KHDG��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�KHDG�PD\�XQGHUWDNH�WKH�SURFHGXUHV�
GHVFULEHG�LQ�VXEGLYLVLRQ��D���


&DOLIRUQLD�*29�������
7KLV�FKDSWHU�VKDOO�QRW�DSSO\�ZKHUH�WKH�VWDWH�RU�ORFDO�DJHQF\�KHDG�GHWHUPLQHV�WKDW�WKH�VHUYLFHV�QHHGHG�DUH�PRUH�
RI�D�WHFKQLFDO�QDWXUH�DQG�LQYROYH�OLWWOH�SURIHVVLRQDO�MXGJPHQW�DQG�WKDW�UHTXLULQJ�ELGV�ZRXOG�EH�LQ�WKH�SXEOLF�LQWHUHVW��


&DOLIRUQLD�*29����������
$OO�DUFKLWHFWXUDO�DQG�HQJLQHHULQJ�VHUYLFHV�VKDOO�EH�SURFXUHG�SXUVXDQW�WR�D�IDLU��FRPSHWLWLYH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�
ZKLFK�SURKLELWV�JRYHUQPHQWDO�DJHQF\�HPSOR\HHV�IURP�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�VHOHFWLRQ�SURFHVV�ZKHQ�WKH\�KDYH�D�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


275 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �
��


�
�


�
� �


�
��


�
� �


� � � �
� �


�


�
�


� � � � �
� � �


� � � �
�


� � �
� � � �


� � �
� � � � �


� �
�
�
�
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


ILQDQFLDO�RU�EXVLQHVV�UHODWLRQVKLS�ZLWK�DQ\�SULYDWH�HQWLW\�VHHNLQJ�WKH�FRQWUDFW��DQG�WKH�SURFHGXUH�VKDOO�UHTXLUH�
FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�DOO�ODZV�UHJDUGLQJ�SROLWLFDO�FRQWULEXWLRQV��FRQIOLFWV�RI�LQWHUHVW�RU�XQODZIXO�DFWLYLWLHV��


&DOLIRUQLD�*29����������
$UFKLWHFWXUDO�DQG�HQJLQHHULQJ�VHUYLFHV�FRQWUDFWV�SURFXUHG�E\�SXEOLF�DJHQFLHV�VKDOO�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�VWDQGDUG�
DFFRXQWLQJ�SUDFWLFHV�DQG�PD\�UHTXLUH�ILQDQFLDO�DQG�SHUIRUPDQFH�DXGLWV�DV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�HQVXUH�FRQWUDFW�VHUYLFHV�
DUH�GHOLYHUHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�DJUHHG�VFKHGXOH�DQG�EXGJHW��


&DOLIRUQLD�*29����������
7KLV�DFW�VHHNV�WR�FRPSUHKHQVLYHO\�UHJXODWH�WKH�PDWWHUV�ZKLFK�DUH�FRQWDLQHG�ZLWKLQ�LWV�SURYLVLRQV��7KHVH�DUH�
PDWWHUV�RI�VWDWHZLGH�FRQFHUQ�DQG�ZKHQ�HQDFWHG�DUH�LQWHQGHG�WR�DSSO\�WR�FKDUWHU�FLWLHV�DV�ZHOO�DV�DOO�RWKHU�
JRYHUQPHQWDO�HQWLWLHV��


)HGHUDO�+LJKZD\�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�0HPRUDQGXP���&)5�����,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�
*XLGDQFH�����������


$WWDFKPHQW�$��)+:$���&)5�����8QLIRUP�*XLGDQFH�±�4XHVWLRQV�DQG�$QVZHUV�
4XHVWLRQ�����³:LOO�WKH�)+:$�86'27�SURYLGH�D�ZDLYHU�RI�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ���&)5���������IRU�VXEUHFLSLHQWV�WR�
FRPSO\�ZLWK�6WDWH�SURFXUHPHQW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RU�RWKHU�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�6WDWH����������"´�


$QVZHU��<HV��7KH�86'27�UHTXHVWHG�DQG�UHFHLYHG�DQ�20%�ZDLYHU�RI�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ���&)5���������
FRQFHUQLQJ�SURFXUHPHQW�E\�VXEUHFLSLHQWV��7KLV�ZDLYHU�SURYLGHV�DQ�H[FHSWLRQ�WR�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQW�IRU�DOO�
VXEUHFLSLHQWV�RI�D�VWDWH�WR�IROORZ�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LQ�6HFWLRQV���������WKURXJK����������7KH�ZDLYHU�
ZLOO�DOORZ�6WDWHV�DQG�VXEUHFLSLHQWV�WR�FRQWLQXH�WR�XVH�VWDWH�DSSURYHG�SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHGXUHV�DV�WKH\�GLG�XQGHU�
SDUW����SULRU�WR�WKH�DGRSWLRQ�RI�WKH�8QLIRUP�*XLGDQFH��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


276 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� �


 
 
 


  


� � � �


    


  


   


     


    


 


 


 


 


        


    


 
  


 
 


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


)LJXUH������6WDWH�2QO\�)XQGHG�3URFXUHPHQW�&ULWHULD�


To comply with CA Government Code (GC) 4525-4529.5, 48 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 31: Contract Cost Principles and Procedures,  2 CFR Part 
200: Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (excluding sections 200.318-200.326), Caltrans 
Local Assistance Procedures Manual (LAPM) and other applicable STATE and FEDERAL regulations. 


�Θ���ŽŶƐƵůƚĂŶƚƐ�


ZĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ĨŽƌ�>'�Ɛ�ƚŚĂƚ�ƵƐĞ�^ƚĂƚĞ�ĨƵŶĚŝŶŐ� hƐĞ�^ƚĂƚĞ�ƌĞƋƵŝƌĞŵĞŶƚƐ�ďĞůŽǁ�


A. Written Procedures GC 4526 


B. Conflict of Interest GC 1090, GC 4527(b), GC 4529.12 


C. Records GC 4529.14, 4006 


D. Full & Open Competition GC 4526, GC 4527, GC 4529.12 


E. Selection Basis GC 4526*, 4527 


F. Publication GC 4527 


G. Solicitation GC 4527 


H. Cost Analysis GC 4528 


I. Negotiations GC 4528 


J. A&I Audit & Review Process GC 4529.14, LAPM Ch. 10, 2 CFR 200 


K. Exhibit 10-C: A&E Consultant Contract Database LAPM Ch. 10.2 


*Mini Brooks Act -  State regulation requiring the initial selection of  engineering and architecture firms be based upon qualifications and experience 
rather than by price.  Price is then later negotiated. 


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


277 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � �


�
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � �
�


� � �
�


� ��


�


�
� � � �


� �
� �


� �


� � ��


� �
� �


� ��


�
� �


� � � � � �
�


� �
� ��


� �


� �


� � ��


� � �


� � �


� � �


� ��


�


�


���


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


������121�$	(�&2175$&76�


6FRSH�
7KLV�VHFWLRQ�FRYHUV�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�VHUYLFHV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�LQFOXGHG�LQ�
6HFWLRQ������)HGHUDO�DQG�6HFWLRQ������6WDWH�2QO\��7KLV�JXLGDQFH�LV�IRU�FRQWUDFWV�XWLOL]LQJ�
IHGHUDO�DLG�IXQGV�DQG�VWDWH�IXQGV��)HGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV�UHIHU�WR�VWDWH�DQG�ORFDO�UHJXODWLRQV�IRU�
QRQ�$	(�W\SH�FRQWUDFWV��$OWKRXJK�ORFDO�DJHQFLHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�IROORZ���&)5������8QLIRUP�
$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�5HTXLUHPHQWV��&RVW�3ULQFLSOHV��DQG�$XGLW�5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�)HGHUDO�$ZDUGV�IRU�
DOO�FRQWUDFWV��WKH�3URFXUHPHQW�6WDQGDUGV�VHFWLRQ������������������LV�H[HPSW��7KH�JXLGDQFH�LQ�
WKLV�VHFWLRQ�IROORZV�WKH�HVWDEOLVKHG�UHJXODWLRQV�LQ�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�3XEOLF�&RQWUDFW�&RGH��
'HSHQGLQJ�XSRQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN��WKH�UHTXLUHG�FRQWUDFW�SURYLVLRQV�PD\�QHHG�WR�LQFOXGH�WKH�
&DOLIRUQLD�6WDWH�3UHYDLOLQJ�:DJHV��


/RFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�GHVLJQDWH�RQH�SHUVRQ�ZLWKLQ�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�DV�D�FRQWUDFW�PDQDJHU��


�3&&����������


'HWHUPLQLQJ�1RQ�$	(�
$IWHU�LGHQWLI\LQJ�WKDW�WKHUH�LV�D�QHHG�IRU�FRQVXOWLQJ�VHUYLFHV��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�GHWHUPLQH�
WKDW�WKH�VHUYLFHV�QHHGHG�DUH�PRUH�RI�D�WHFKQLFDO�QDWXUH�DQG�LQYROYH�PLQLPDO�SURIHVVLRQDO�
MXGJHPHQW�DQG�WKDW�UHTXLULQJ�D�FRVW�SURSRVDO�ZRXOG�EH�LQ�WKH�SXEOLF¶V�EHVW�LQWHUHVW��7KHVH�W\SH�
RI�FRQVXOWDQW�VHUYLFHV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�GLUHFWO\�UHODWHG�WR�D�KLJKZD\�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�RU�WKDW�DUH�
QRW�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�GHVLJQ�UHODWHG�VHUYLFHV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRQ�
$	(��7KH�VHUYLFHV�PXVW�QRW�EH�LQFOXGHG�LQ�6HFWLRQ��������'HILQLWLRQ�RI�$	(��


7KH�GHWHUPLQLQJ�IDFWRU�LV�ZKHWKHU�WKH�VHUYLFHV�EHLQJ�SURFXUHG�DUH�UHODWHG�WR�D�VSHFLILF�
FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW�DQG�ZKHWKHU�WKH�VHUYLFHV�UHTXLUH�ZRUN�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG��SURYLGHG�E\��RU�
XQGHU�WKH�GLUHFWLRQ�RI�D�UHJLVWHUHG�HQJLQHHU�RU�DUFKLWHFW��


([DPSOH�RI�'HWHUPLQLQJ�1RQ�$	(�
0DWHULDO�WHVWLQJ�KDV�EHHQ�UHTXHVWHG�WR�HQVXUH�TXDOLW\�DVVXUDQFH�RQ�D�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW��7KH�
VHUYLFH�LQFOXGHV�RQO\�SHUIRUPLQJ�WKH�PDWHULDO�WHVW�DQG�SURYLGLQJ�PDWHULDO�WHVW�GDWD��$OWKRXJK�WKH�
VHUYLFH�LV�UHODWHG�WR�D�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�SURMHFW��WKH�RYHUDOO�VHUYLFH�GLG�QRW�SURYLGH�DQ�HYDOXDWLRQ�RU�D�
GLVFLSOLQH�UHSRUW��,Q�WKLV�H[DPSOH��WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�FDQ�GHWHUPLQH�WKDW�WKH�VHUYLFH�SURYLGHG�LV�
PRUH�RI�D�WHFKQLFDO�QDWXUH�DQG�LV�WKHUHIRUH�D�QRQ�$	(�VHUYLFH��


7KH�IROORZLQJ�LV�D�OLVW�RI�WKH�PRUH�FRPPRQ�QRQ�$	(�VHUYLFHV��


x� 5LJKW�RI�:D\�$SSUDLVDO�


x� 5LJKW�RI�:D\�DFTXLVLWLRQ�DFWLYLWLHV�


x� &RQGXFWLQJ�SXEOLF�RXWUHDFK�GXULQJ�HQYLURQPHQWDO�FOHDUDQFH�RU�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�


x� $FWLYH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�3URJUDP�HGXFDWLRQDO�DQG�RXWUHDFK�DFWLYLWLHV�


x� ,QWHOOLJHQW�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP��,76��


x� 1RQ�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH�


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


278 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � � �


�
� � � �


� � � �
� ��


� �
� � � �


��


� � �
� �


� � �
� �


� �
� � �


� � �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� � � �
� � � ��


� ��


� � � �


� � ��


� ��


� � � � �
�


� � �
� � � ��


�
�


� �
� ��


� �
� � �


� � ��


�


�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


,QWHOOLJHQW�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP��,76��3URMHFWV�
,QWHOOLJHQW�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHP��,76��PHDQV�HOHFWURQLF��FRPPXQLFDWLRQV��RU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
SURFHVVLQJ�XVHG�VLQJO\�RU�LQ�FRPELQDWLRQ�WR�LPSURYH�WKH�HIILFLHQF\�RU�VDIHW\�RI�D�VXUIDFH�
WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�V\VWHP��,76�SURMHFWV�DUH�WKRVH�WKDW�LQ�ZKROH�RU�LQ�SDUW��IXQGV�WKH�DFTXLVLWLRQ�RI�
WHFKQRORJLHV�RU�V\VWHPV�RI�WHFKQRORJLHV�WKDW�SURYLGH�VLJQLILFDQW�FRQWULEXWLRQV�WR�WKH�SURYLVLRQ�RI�
RQH�RU�PRUH�,76�XVHU�VHUYLFHV�DV�GHILQHG�LQ�WKH�1DWLRQDO�,76�$UFKLWHFWXUH��


7KH�IHGHUDO�DLG�SURFXUHPHQW�UHJXODWLRQV�LGHQWLI\�WKUHH�SRVVLEOH�FRQWUDFW�SURFXUHPHQW�
SURFHGXUHV�IRU�,76�SURMHFWV�LQFOXGLQJ�HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�GHVLJQ�UHODWHG�VHUYLFHV��$	(���
FRQVWUXFWLRQ��DQG�QRQ�HQJLQHHULQJ�QRQ�DUFKLWHFWXUDO��QRQ�$	(���


,I�,76�SURMHFWV�LQFOXGH�SK\VLFDO�LQVWDOODWLRQ�RI�ILHOG�GHYLFHV�DQG�RU�FRPPXQLFDWLRQV�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��
VXFK�DV�QHZ�WUDIILF�VLJQDOV��QHZ�FRQWUROOHU�FDELQHWV��FKDQJHDEOH�PHVVDJH�VLJQV��UDGLR�DQG�
FRPSXWHUV��YHKLFOH�GHWHFWRUV��DQG�FRQGXLWV�IRU�FDEOLQJ�LQ�WKH�URDGZD\��WKHQ�WKDW�ZRUN�DQG�
UHTXLUHG�HTXLSPHQW�XVXDOO\�PHHWV�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ��7KH�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�FRQWUDFW�PXVW�
EH�SURFXUHG�EDVHG�RQ�FRPSHWLWLYH�ELGGLQJ��,I�WKH�,76�SURMHFW�LQYROYHV�VRIWZDUH�GHYHORSPHQW��
V\VWHP�LQWHJUDWLRQ��KLULQJ�HQJLQHHUV�DQG�VSHFLDOLVWV�IRU�,76�GHVLJQ�DQG�LQVWDOODWLRQ�VXSSRUW��
LQVSHFWLRQ��GHVLJQ�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��WUDLQLQJ�DQG�GHSOR\PHQW��LW�PD\�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�DQ�
HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�GHVLJQ�VHUYLFHV�FRQWUDFW�DQG�WKH�FRQWUDFW�PXVW�EH�SURFXUHG�DV�DQ�$	(�
FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��,I�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�LV�XQFOHDU�DV�WR�ZKHWKHU�LW�LV�DQ�$	(�W\SH�RI�ZRUN��
FRQWDFW�DHRYHUVLJKW#GRW�FD�JRY�IRU�DVVLVWDQFH��


+RZHYHU��LI�DQ�,76�SURMHFW�GRHV�QRW�PHHW�HLWKHU�WKH�GHILQLWLRQ�RI�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RU�HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�
GHVLJQ�VHUYLFHV��WKHQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�PD\�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH�D�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��


([DPSOHV�RI�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�DUH��


x� 7KH�SURFXUHPHQW�RI�KDUGZDUH�DQG�VRIWZDUH�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�LQFLGHQW�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHP��


x� 6RIWZDUH�V\VWHPV�IRU�DUWHULDO�DQG�IUHHZD\�PDQDJHPHQW�V\VWHPV��


x� 2SHUDWLQJ�WKH�����WUDYHOHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�VHUYLFH��


x� 1RQSURIHVVLRQDO� VHUYLFHV� IRU� V\VWHP� VXSSRUW� VXFK� DV� LQGHSHQGHQW� YDOLGDWLRQ� DQG�
YHULILFDWLRQ��WHVWLQJ�DQG�VSHFLILFDWLRQ�GHYHORSPHQW��


)RU�PRUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ� ,QWHOOLJHQW�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHPV��,76��3URJUDP�SURFXUHPHQW�
UHTXLUHPHQWV��UHIHU�WR�/$3*��&KDSWHU����/$3*�&KDSWHU�����,QWHOOLJHQW�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�6\VWHPV��


1RQ�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH�3URMHFWV�
1RQ�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH��1,��SURMHFWV�DUH�WKRVH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�UHODWHG�SURMHFWV�WKDW�GR�QRW�LQYROYH�
HLWKHU�HQJLQHHULQJ�GHVLJQ��5LJKW�RI�:D\�DFTXLVLWLRQ��IRU�DGGLWLRQDO�JXLGDQFH�UHIHU�WR�/$30�
&KDSWHU������RU�WKH�HYHQWXDO�SK\VLFDO�FRQVWUXFWLRQ�RI�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�IDFLOLWLHV��


3URFXUHPHQW�RI�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�QRQ�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�SURMHFWV�PXVW�
IROORZ�1RQ�$	(�SURFXUHPHQW�SURFHGXUHV�GHVFULEHG�LQ�WKLV�FKDSWHU��)RU�PRUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RQ�1,�
SURMHFWV��UHIHU�WR�/$30�&KDSWHU����3URMHFW�$XWKRUL]DWLRQ��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


279 of 611



mailto:aeoversight@dot.ca.gov





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
�


�


�
� �


� � �
� � � �


�


�
� � �


� � � � �


�
�


� � � �


� � � �
�


� �


� � � � � � �
�


� � �
� � � � �


� �


� � � �
� � �


� � � � �


�
� ��


� � �


� � ��


� �


� � � �


� � � � �


� � � � � �
�


� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


*RYHUQLQJ�5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�&RGHV�IRU�1RQ�$	(�
:KHQ�SURFXULQJ�QRQ�$	(�VHUYLFHV�ZLWK�IHGHUDO�DLG�IXQGV��/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�PXVW�FRPSO\�ZLWK���
&)5�3DUW������8QLIRUP�$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�5HTXLUHPHQWV��&RVW�3ULQFLSOHV��DQG�$XGLW�5HTXLUHPHQWV�
IRU�)HGHUDO�$ZDUGV��H[FOXGLQJ�VHFWLRQV������������������3URFXUHPHQW�6WDQGDUGV��UHIHUHQFH�
)HGHUDO�+LJKZD\�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�'HFHPEHU���������0HPRUDQGXP�$FWLRQ����&)5�����
,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�*XLGDQFH��$WWDFKPHQW�$���/RFDO�DJHQFLHV�PXVW�IROORZ�WKH�VDPH�SROLFLHV�DQG�
SURFHGXUHV�WKDW�WKH�6WDWH�XVHV�IRU�SURFXUHPHQW�ZLWK�LWV�QRQ�)HGHUDO�IXQGV��:KHQ�SURFXULQJ�
QRQ�$	(�VHUYLFHV�ZLWK�IHGHUDO�DLG�DQG�VWDWH�RQO\�IXQGV��WKH�JRYHUQLQJ�SURFXUHPHQW�FRGH�LV�
3XEOLF�&RQWUDFW�&RGH��������������


3URFXUHPHQW�RI�1RQ�$	(�&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFWV�
$OO�QRQ�$	(�SURFXUHPHQWV�FRQWUDFWV�PXVW�EH�FRQGXFWHG�LQ�D�PDQQHU�SURYLGLQJ�IXOO�DQG�RSHQ�
FRPSHWLWLRQ�FRQVLVWHQW�ZLWK�IHGHUDO�DQG�VWDWH�VWDQGDUGV��/RFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�PHHW�WKH�FRGH�RI�
FRQGXFW�JRYHUQLQJ�WKH�SHUIRUPDQFH�RI�LWV�HPSOR\HHV�HQJDJHG�LQ�WKH�DZDUG�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�
RI�IHGHUDO�DLG�DQG�VWDWH�IXQGHG�FRQWUDFWV��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�SUHYHQWLRQV�RI�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�LQ�3&&�
�������


7KH�IROORZLQJ�DUH�WKH�IXQGDPHQWDO�UXOHV�ZKHQ�SURFXULQJ�D�QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFW��


��� 7KH�UHTXHVW�IRU�SURSRVDO��5)3��VKDOO�QRW�OLPLW�WKH�FRPSHWLWLRQ�GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\�WR�DQ\�
RQH�FRQVXOWDQW��7KH�5)3�PXVW�EH�SXEOLFL]HG�DQG�DOO�HYDOXDWLRQ�IDFWRUV�DQG�WKHLU�UHODWLYH�
LPSRUWDQFH�LGHQWLILHG���3&&��������


��� 6SOLWWLQJ�D�VLQJOH�WUDQVDFWLRQ�LQWR�D�VHULHV�RI�WUDQVDFWLRQV�IRU�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�HYDGLQJ�WKH�
SURFXUHPHQW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LV�QRW�DOORZHG���3&&��������


��� /RFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�VHFXUH�DW�OHDVW�WKUHH�FRPSHWLWLYH�SURSRVDOV�IRU�HDFK�FRQWUDFW���3&&�
�������:KHQ�UHFHLYLQJ�OHVV�WKDQ�WKUHH�SURSRVDOV��UHIHU�WR�WKH�&RVW�(IIHFWLYH�3XEOLF�
,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ�LQ�WKLV�VHFWLRQ�DV�DQ�DOWHUQDWLYH�WR�UH�DGYHUWLVHPHQW��


��� 1R�SURSRVDOV�VKDOO�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�ZKLFK�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�UHFHLYHG�DW�WKH�SODFH��DQG�SULRU�
WR�WKH�FORVLQJ�WLPH�DV�VWDWHG�LQ�WKH�5)3���3&&�������D���


��� /RFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�KDYH�D�ZULWWHQ�SURFHGXUH�IRU�HYDOXDWLQJ�SURSRVDOV���3&&��������


5)3�%DVLF�5HTXLUHPHQWV�
$�� 7KHUH�DUH�WZR�JHQHUDO�W\SHV�RI�FRQVXOWLQJ�VHUYLFH�FRQWUDFW�VROLFLWDWLRQV��


%�� 5HTXHVW�IRU�3URSRVDO�XVLQJ�&RVW�RQO\�


&�� 5HTXHVW�IRU�3URSRVDO�XVLQJ�&RVW�DQG�4XDOLILFDWLRQV�


7KH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�LQFOXGH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LQ�WKH�UHTXHVW�IRU�SURSRVDO��


$�� $�FOHDU��SUHFLVH�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�ZRUN�WR�EH�SHUIRUPHG�RU�VHUYLFHV�WR�EH�SURYLGHG��


%�� 'HVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�IRUPDW�WKDW�SURSRVDOV�VKDOO�IROORZ�DQG�WKH�HOHPHQWV�WKH\�VKDOO�FRQWDLQ��


&�� 7KH�VWDQGDUGV�WKH�DJHQF\�ZLOO�XVH�LQ�HYDOXDWLQJ�SURSRVDOV��7KLV�LQFOXGHV�TXDOLILFDWLRQV�
DQG�FHUWLILFDWLRQV�LI�DSSOLFDEOH��


'�� 7KH�GDWH�WKH�SURSRVDOV�DUH�GXH��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


280 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


� � � �
�


�


�
� � �


� � � �
��


� � � �
� �


� � � �
� � �


� � � �


�


� � ��


� � �
�


� �


� � � � � �
�


� � �
� � �


�


� � �
� � ��


�


�
� � � � �


�
� �


� � � � �
��


� �
� �


� ��


� � � �
�


�
,�


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


(�� 7KH�SURFXUHPHQW�VFKHGXOH�WKDW�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�ZLOO�IROORZ�LQ�UHYLHZLQJ�DQG�HYDOXDWLQJ�
WKH�SURSRVDOV��


�3&&��������


$GGLWLRQDO�5HTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�(YDOXDWLRQ�&ULWHULD�
$GGLWLRQDO�5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�5HTXHVW�IRU�3URSRVDO�XVLQJ�&RVW�RQO\�


$�� /RFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�UHTXLUH�FRQVXOWDQWV�WR�VXEPLW�WKHLU�SURSRVDOV�DQG�FRVW�LQ�D�VHSDUDWH��
VHDOHG�HQYHORSH��


%�� /RFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�GHWHUPLQH�WKRVH�WKDW�PHHW�WKH�IRUPDW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�WKH�
VWDQGDUGV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�UHTXHVW�IRU�SURSRVDO��


&�� 7KH�VHDOHG�HQYHORSHV�FRQWDLQLQJ�WKH�SULFH�DQG�FRVW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�IRU�WKRVH�SURSRVDOV�WKDW�
PHHW�WKH�IRUPDW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�VWDQGDUGV�VKDOO�WKHQ�EH�SXEOLFO\�RSHQHG�DQG�UHDG��


'�� &RQWUDFW�PXVW�EH�DZDUGHG�WR�WKH�ORZHVW�UHVSRQVLEOH�FRQVXOWDQW�PHHWLQJ�WKH�VWDQGDUGV��


�3&&�������E���


$GGLWLRQDO�5HTXLUHPHQWV�IRU�5HTXHVW�IRU�3URSRVDO�XVLQJ�&RVW�DQG�4XDOLILFDWLRQV�


$�� /RFDO�DJHQF\�PXVW�LQFOXGH�LQ�WKH�SURSRVDO�WKH�GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�DQG�VFRULQJ�
PHWKRG��6XEVWDQWLDO�ZHLJKW�LQ�UHODWLRQVKLS�WR�DOO�RWKHU�FULWHULD�XWLOL]HG�VKDOO�EH�JLYHQ�WR�WKH�
FRVW�DPRXQW�SURSRVHG�E\�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW��


%�� /RFDO�DJHQF\�VKDOO�GHWHUPLQH�WKRVH�WKDW�PHHW�WKH�IRUPDW�UHTXLUHPHQWV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�
5)3��


&�� /RFDO�DJHQF\�HYDOXDWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�PXVW�HYDOXDWH�DQG�VFRUH�WKH�SURSRVDOV�XVLQJ�WKH�
PHWKRGV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�5)3��$OO�HYDOXDWLRQ�DQG�VFRULQJ�VKHHWV�VKDOO�EH�DYDLODEOH�IRU�
SXEOLF�LQVSHFWLRQ�DIWHU�WKH�FRPPLWWHH�VFRULQJ�SURFHVV��(YDOXDWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�VKRXOG�
FRPSO\�WR�WKH�SUHYHQWLRQ�RI�FRQIOLFW�RI�LQWHUHVW�LQ�3&&��������


'�� 7KH�QRQ�$	(�FRQWUDFW�VKDOO�EH�DZDUGHG�WR�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW�ZKRVH�SURSRVDO�LV�JLYHQ�WKH�
KLJKHVW�VFRUH�E\�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH��


�3&&�������F���


:KHQ�XVLQJ�5)3��&RVW�DQG�4XDOLILFDWLRQV���WKH�FULWHULD�XVHG�WR�HYDOXDWH�WKH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�
SURSRVDOV�PXVW�KDYH�D�ORJLFDO�IRXQGDWLRQ�ZLWKLQ�WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�RU�ZLWKLQ�RWKHU�WHFKQLFDO�
UHTXLUHPHQWV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�5)3��(DFK�FULWHULRQ�PXVW�KDYH�D�ZHLJKW�RU�OHYHO�RI�LPSRUWDQFH��
DQG�LW�LV�UHFRPPHQGHG�WKDW�WRWDO�SRVVLEOH�VFRUH�IRU�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD�EH�RQH�KXQGUHG�������
SRLQWV��7KH�SURSRVHG�FRVW�VKRXOG�EH�DW�OHDVW�WKLUW\�SHUFHQW�������RI�WRWDO�SRLQWV�LQ�HYDOXDWLRQ�
FULWHULD��


$Q�H[DPSOH�5)3�IRU�QRQ�$	(�LV�SURYLGHG�RQ�WKH�/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�ZHEVLWH�DW�KWWSV���GRW�FD�JRY��
�PHGLD�GRW�PHGLD�SURJUDPV�ORFDO�DVVLVWDQFH�GRFXPHQWV�DH�ILOHV�UIS�H[DPSOH�QRQ�DH�GRF[�DQG�
PD\�EH�PRGLILHG��


6XEPLVVLRQ�RI�([KLELW����&��&RQVXOWDQW�&RQWUDFW�'DWDEDVH�WR�&DOWUDQV�+4�LV�QRW�UHTXLUHG�IRU�
QRQ�$	(�FRQVXOWDQW�FRQWUDFWV��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


281 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/ae/files/rfp-example-non-ae.docx

https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/local-assistance/documents/ae/files/rfp-example-non-ae.docx





� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�


�
� ��


� � � � ��


� � �
��


� � � �
��


� � � � ��


� � � � �
��


� � � � �
�


��


� � � � � �
��


� �
� � �


� � � � �
��


� �
� �


�
� � ��


�
� � �


� � �
� � � � �


�
� �


��


� �
� �


� � �
� �


� � � �
�


� � ��


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


&RQVXOWDQW¶V�3URSRVDO�
7KH�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�SURSRVDO�VKRXOG�LQFOXGH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ��


x� &RQVXOWDQW�3URMHFW�0DQDJHU�±�TXDOLILFDWLRQV��UROHV�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV��


x� 0HWKRGRORJ\�� GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�DQG�RYHUDOO�DSSURDFK��VSHFLILF�WHFKQLTXHV�WKDW�ZLOO�EH�
XVHG�DQG�VSHFLILF�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�DQG�RSHUDWLRQV�H[SHUWLVH�WR�EH�XVHG��


x� :RUNSODQ�DQG�:RUN�6FKHGXOH�� WKH�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�VKRXOG�LQFOXGH�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�
WDVNV��DQG�WKHLU�GHOLYHU\�VFKHGXOH��


x� 3HUVRQQHO�� /LVW�RI�SHUVRQQHO�ZKR�ZLOO�EH�ZRUNLQJ�RQ�WKH�SURMHFW��DQG�WKHLU�UHVXPHV��


x� )DFLOLWLHV�DQG�UHVRXUFHV��,I�DSSOLFDEOH��� ([SODQDWLRQ�RI�ZKHUH�WKH�VHUYLFHV�ZLOO�EH�
SURYLGHG�DQG�ZKDW�W\SH�RI�HTXLSPHQW�LV�QHHGHG�WR�SHUIRUP�VHUYLFHV��


x� 6XE�FRQWUDFWV�� ,GHQWLI\�DOO�VXE�FRQWUDFWV�WKDW�DUH�WR�EH�XVHG��GHVFULSWLRQ�RI�HDFK�DQG�WKH�
ZRUN�E\�HDFK�VXE�FRQVXOWDQW�VXE�FRQWUDFWRU��1R�ZRUN�VKDOO�EH�VXEFRQWUDFWHG�XQOHVV�
OLVWHG�LQ�WKH�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO��6XE�FRQVXOWDQW�UHVXPHV�VKRXOG�EH�SURYLGHG��


x� 5HIHUHQFHV�� 7KH�WHFKQLFDO�SURSRVDO�VKRXOG�SURYLGH�DW�OHDVW�WKUHH�����FOLHQWV�IRU�ZKRP�
WKH�SURSRVHU�KDV�SHUIRUPHG�ZRUN�RI�VLPLODU�QDWXUH�WR�WKH�UHTXHVW��


&RVW�3URSRVDO�:RUNVKHHW�
7KH�5)3�VKRXOG�SURYLGH�D�VWDQGDUG�IRUPDW�IRU�FRVW�SURSRVDO�WKDW�DOO�SURSRVHUV�PXVW�LQFOXGH�LQ�
WKHLU�SURSRVDO��7KH�FRVW�SURSRVDO�IRUPDW�FDQ�EH�EURNHQ�GRZQ�E\�VSHFLILF�WDVNV��VKRZLQJ�KRXUO\�
ODERU�UDWHV��OHYHO�RI�HIIRUW�DQG�PDWHULDO��DQG�RU�E\�PLOHVWRQHV�DQG�GHOLYHUDEOHV��


/RFDO�DJHQF\�LV�QRW�UHTXLUHG�WR�DZDUG�D�FRQWUDFW�LI�LW�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�WKDW�WKH�FRQWUDFW�SULFH�LV�QRW�
UHDVRQDEOH���3&&�������F���


'%(�&RQVLGHUDWLRQ�
'%(�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�LV�UHTXLUHG�RQ�DOO�IHGHUDO�DLG�IXQGHG�FRQWUDFWV�LQFOXGLQJ�QRQ�$	(��


$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�5HTXLUHPHQWV�
$GYHUWLVHPHQW�IRU�5)3V�PD\�EH�WKURXJK�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\�ZHEVLWH��ORFDO�SXEOLFDWLRQV��DQG�
QDWLRQDO�SXEOLFDWLRQV��0LQLPXP�VROLFLWDWLRQ�WLPH�LV����FDOHQGDU�GD\V��7KH�VROLFLWDWLRQ�VKRXOG�
LQIRUP�SRWHQWLDO�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�WKDW�TXHVWLRQV�PXVW�EH�VXEPLWWHG�LQ�ZULWLQJ�WR�WKH�$JHQF\�
&RQWUDFW�0DQDJHU�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�E\�D�VSHFLILHG�GDWH�DQG�WLPH��$OO�SHUWLQHQW�WHFKQLFDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
DQG�DQVZHUV�WR�FRQVXOWDQW¶V�TXHVWLRQV�VKDOO�EH�SURYLGHG�WR�DOO�SRWHQWLDO�FRQVXOWDQWV��:ULWWHQ�
UHVSRQVHV�WR�DOO�TXHVWLRQV�ZLOO�EH�FROOHFWLYHO\�FRPSLOHG�DQG�SURYLGHG�DV�DQ�DGGHQGXP��


$�SURSRVDO�PD\�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�UHMHFWHG�ZLWKRXW�HYDOXDWLRQ�LI�DOO�UHTXLUHG�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�LV�QRW�SURYLGHG��3URSRVDOV�ZLWKRXW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�UHJDUGLQJ��RU�QRW�PHHWLQJ��WKH�
UHTXLUHG�'%(�XWLOL]DWLRQ�JRDO�RU�ZLWKRXW�D�*RRG�)DLWK�(IIRUW�GRFXPHQWDWLRQ��ODWH�VXEPLWWDOV��
VXEPLWWDOV�WR�WKH�ZURQJ�ORFDWLRQ��RU�VXEPLWWDOV�ZLWK�LQDGHTXDWH�FRSLHV�DUH�FRQVLGHUHG�
QRQUHVSRQVLYH�DQG�VKDOO�EH�UHMHFWHG��6XEPLWWDO�RI�DGGLWLRQDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DIWHU�WKH�GXH�GDWH�VKDOO�
QRW�EH�DOORZHG��'RFXPHQWDWLRQ�RI�ZKHQ�HDFK�SURSRVDO�ZDV�UHFHLYHG�PXVW�EH�PDLQWDLQHG�LQ�WKH�
SURMHFW�ILOHV��&RSLHV�RI�GDWH�VWDPSHG�HQYHORSH�FRYHUV�RU�ER[�WRSV�DUH�UHFRPPHQGHG��


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


282 of 611







� � �
�
�


�
� � �


� �
�


�
� � � � �


� � � �
� �


�
� �
� � �


� � � � � �
� �


� � �
� �


� � � �
� � �


��


�
� � � �


� �
� � �


� � �
� � �


� � � �
��


�
� � �


� � � � ��


�
� �


� � � �
� � �


�
� �


� �
� �


� �
�


�
� � �


� �
� � � �


� � � �
�


� � �
� �


/RFDO�$VVLVWDQFH�3URFHGXUHV�0DQXDO� &KDSWHU����
&RQVXOWDQW�6HOHFWLRQ�


1R�FRQVXOWDQW�ZKR�KDV�EHHQ�DZDUGHG�D�FRQVXOWLQJ�VHUYLFH�FRQWUDFW�PD\�EH�DZDUGHG�D�
VXEVHTXHQW�FRQWUDFW�IRU�WKH�VHUYLFHV�RU�JRRGV�ZKLFK�DUH�UHTXLUHG�DV�DQ�HQG�SURGXFW�RI�WKH�
FRQVXOWLQJ�VHUYLFH�FRQWUDFW��XQOHVV�WKH�VXEFRQWUDFW�LV�QR�PRUH�WKDQ����SHUFHQW�RI�WKH�WRWDO�
PRQHWDU\�YDOXH�RI�WKH�FRQVXOWLQJ�VHUYLFHV�FRQWUDFW��([FOXGHV�$	(�FRQWUDFWV��


�3&&����������
&RQWUDFWV�PD\�EH�PRGLILHG�RU�DPHQGHG�RQO\�LI�WKH�FRQWUDFWV�VR�SURYLGH��$PHQGPHQWV�PXVW�EH�
UHTXHVWHG�DQG�H[HFXWHG�SULRU�WR�WKH�WHUPLQDWLRQ�GDWH�RI�WKH�PRVW�UHFHQWO\�DSSURYHG�RULJLQDO�RU�
DPHQGHG�FRQWUDFW��$OO�UHFRUGV�RI�FRQWUDFW�DFWLYLWLHV�VKDOO�EH�NHSW�IRU�WKUHH�\HDUV�DIWHU�IHGHUDO�
ILQDO�YRXFKHU�(����RU�VWDWH�ILQDO�YRXFKHU�IRU�6WDWH�2QO\�IXQGV��&RVWV�DUH�UHLPEXUVDEOH�DIWHU�VWDWH�
DOORFDWLRQ�E\�WKH�&DOLIRUQLD�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�&RPPLVVLRQ��&7&��DQG�RU�WKH�LVVXDQFH�RI�WKH�IHGHUDO�
(�����7KH�SHU�GLHP�UDWH�VKDOO�QRW�H[FHHG�WKH�VWDWH�UDWH��&RQWUDFW�0DQDJHUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�
PRQLWRULQJ�H[SHQGLWXUHV�RQ�DOO�FRQWUDFWV�DQG�YHULI\LQJ�FDWHJRULHV�RI�ZRUN�WKDW�UHTXLUH�SUHYDLOLQJ�
ZDJH��$�SHUVRQ�LQ�5HVSRQVLEOH�&KDUJH�RI�FRQWUDFW�PDQDJHPHQW�LV�UHTXLUHG�IRU�DOO�IHGHUDOO\�
IXQGHG�SURMHFWV��


2UDO�3UHVHQWDWLRQV�2SWLRQDO�
:KHQ�RUDO�SUHVHQWDWLRQV�DUH�UHTXLUHG�E\�WKH�ORFDO�DJHQF\��WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�FULWHULD�PXVW�LQFOXGH�
IDFWRUV�VXE�IDFWRUV�DQG�ZHLJKWV�XVHG�WR�VFRUH�WKH�SURSRVHUV�SHUIRUPDQFH�DW�WKH�RUDO�
SUHVHQWDWLRQ��7KH�HYDOXDWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�ZLOO�RQO\�EH�DEOH�WR�VFRUH�HDFK�SURSRVHU�EDVHG�XSRQ�
WKHVH�FULWHULD��7KH�&RQWUDFW�0DQDJHU�$GPLQLVWUDWRU�VKRXOG�GHYHORS�D�VHW�RI�TXHVWLRQV�UHODWHG�WR�
WKH�VFRSH�RI�ZRUN�RU�WKH�SURMHFW�WR�EH�DVNHG�GXULQJ�WKH�HYDOXDWLRQ�FRPPLWWHH�TXHVWLRQ�DQG�
DQVZHU��4�	�$��VHFWLRQ�RI�WKH�RUDO�SUHVHQWDWLRQV��$OO�SURSRVHUV�DUH�DVNHG�WKH�VDPH�TXHVWLRQV�
IRU�FRQVLVWHQF\��


7KH�FRPPLWWHH�PXVW�DOVR�HYDOXDWH�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�JDWKHUHG�
LQGHSHQGHQWO\��5HIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�VKDOO�EH�FRPSOHWHG�DQG�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�JDWKHUHG�EHIRUH�WKH�
LQWHUYLHZV�DUH�FRQGXFWHG��,I�QHFHVVDU\��WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�UHIHUHQFH�FKHFNV�RU�RWKHU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�
PD\�EH�GLVFXVVHG�ZLWK�WKH�KLJKHVW�UDQNHG�TXDOLILHG�FRQVXOWDQWV�DW�WKH�LQWHUYLHZV��


&RVW�(IIHFWLYH���3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ�
$�PLQLPXP�RI�WKUHH�SURSRVDO�PXVW�EH�HYDOXDWHG�WR�HVWDEOLVK�HIIHFWLYH�FRPSHWLWLRQ��$Q\�DJHQF\�
WKDW�KDV�UHFHLYHG�OHVV�WKDQ�WKUHH�SURSRVDOV�RQ�D�FRQWUDFW�VKDOO�GRFXPHQW�WKH�QDPHV�DQG�
DGGUHVVHV�RI�WKH�ILUPV�RU�LQGLYLGXDOV�LW�VROLFLWHG�IRU�SURSRVDOV��3UHSDUH�DQ�H[SODQDWLRQ�DV�WR�ZK\�
OHVV�WKDQ�WKUHH�SURSRVDOV�ZHUH�UHFHLYHG��:KHQ�RQO\�WZR�SURSRVDOV�DUH�UHFHLYHG��D�MXVWLILFDWLRQ�
PXVW�EH�GRFXPHQWHG�WR�SURFHHG�ZLWK�WKH�SURFXUHPHQW��:KHQ�RQO\�RQH�SURSRVDO�LV�UHFHLYHG��D�
1RQ�&RPSHWLWLYH�SURFHVV�PXVW�EH�MXVWLILHG�DQG�D�3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ��3,)���/$30�([KLELW����
)� &RVW�(IIHFWLYH�3XEOLF�,QWHUHVW�)LQGLQJ��PXVW�EH�GRFXPHQWHG��,Q�HLWKHU�FDVH��WKH�UH�
DGYHUWLVHPHQW�RI�WKH�5)3�VKRXOG�EH�FRQVLGHUHG�DV�DQ�RSWLRQ��5HWDLQ�GRFXPHQW�DV�VXSSRUWLQJ�
GRFXPHQWDWLRQ�LQ�WKH�FRQWUDFW�ILOH��


�3&&�������F���
3URWHVW���$SSHDOV���5HLQVWDWHPHQW�3URFHGXUHV�
%RWK�VWDWH�DQG�IHGHUDO�UHJXODWLRQV�UHTXLUH�ZHOO�GHILQHG�SURWHVW�UHLQVWDWHPHQW�SURFHGXUHV��,W�LV�
HVVHQWLDO�WKDW�WKH�SURFHGXUHV�LQFOXGH�D�UHDVRQDEOH�RSSRUWXQLW\�IRU�WKH�SURVSHFWLYH�FRQVXOWDQW�WR�
SUHVHQW�KLV�KHU�FDVH��7KH�DSSHDOV�SURFHGXUHV�VWUHQJWKHQ�WKH�SURFHVV�E\�ZKLFK�WKH�FRQWUDFWLQJ�
DJHQF\�UHDFKHV�LWV�XOWLPDWH�JRDO�DQG�KHOSV�GHIHQGV�LWV�DFWLRQ�DJDLQVW�D�FODLP�RI�ODFN�RI�GXH�
SURFHVV��$�WHUPLQDWLRQ�FODXVH�DQG�D�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�FRQWUDFW�GLVSXWHV�DUH�UHTXLUHG��
3URWHVW�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�GLVSXWH�UHVROXWLRQ�SURFHVVHV�VKRXOG�EH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�3&&��������


3DJH����RI����
-DQXDU\������


283 of 611







  
 


   
 


 


 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 8A 
  


 
 
DATE:   NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
 
TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: DAVID HANHAM, PLANNING MANAGER  
  
SUBJECT: HAZEL STREET SUBDIVISION, DESIGN REVIEW, AND 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving a four-lot subdivision 
and conduct a public hearing to introduce an ordinance approving a development agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The proposed project would occur at the south side of the western terminus of Hazel Street. This 
project has had many iterations over the course of the last 10-12 years. At the Planning 
Commission meeting of July 9, 2007, the Planning Commission denied the project over concerns 
regarding the configuration of lots, infrastructure timing, tree protection, and the creation of a 
pedestrian pathway. The applicant filed an appeal that the City Council heard on August 21, 2007. 
The members of the City Council remanded the project back to the Planning Commission with 
three criteria for the applicant to meet: 


1. Present a three-lot subdivision; 
2. Ensure that the private road is at least 28 feet wide; and 
3. Provide a development standard document for the parcel. 


In July 2017, the applicant applied for a four- lot parcel map, design review of four houses, and a 
development agreement to accommodate infrastructure needs that are a part of this project. 
 
The property owner wishes to subdivide two lots consisting of approximately 33,830 square feet 
into four lots.  The proposed minor subdivision would occur at a property that is located on the 
south side of the western terminus of Hazel Street, Pinole, CA, 94564 (APNs 402-013-060 & 061).  
The proposed four parcels would each have single-family residences developed on them, all 
requiring design review approval and building permits. The area of the proposed parcels is as 
follows: 
 


284 of 611







City Council Report, 8A  
November 17, 2020  2 


 


Parcel Area 


Parcel A 6001 sq. ft. 


Parcel B 6001 sq. ft. 


Parcel C 6001 sq. ft. 


Parcel D 6569 sq.  ft 
 


The remaining area of 9,258 sq. ft will be converted into road right-of-way, and the applicant will 
be responsible for constructing the roadway to connect the two existing sections of Hazel Street. 
Also, as a part of this project, the City is contributing new storm drain infrastructure. 
 
The subject property is currently undeveloped and is relatively flat along the northern portion of 
the project site.  The southern portion of the site has a significant existing upslope.  To address 
this issue, significant grading as well as the addition of a retaining wall is proposed along the 
bottom of this slope on parcels A and B. In addition, none of the proposed single-family structures 
would be constructed on this hillside area. 
 
The project would also include dedication of an “L” shaped parcel to the City for the extension of 
Hazel Street, as well as curb, gutter and the sidewalk along the south side of the street. These 
improvements will be constructed by the applicant.  This dedicated parcel is currently located on 
the eastern end of the existing northern parcel.  If the subdivision is approved, the dedicated 
parcel would be located along the northern end of the east property line of Parcel “C”.  
 
With the current proposal, both the existing Coast live Oak and the Walnut trees on the property 
are preserved. 
 
A sewer pump station currently exists near the northwest corner of the project site.  This pump 
station would remain.  However, if the subdivision is approved, the applicant would be required to 
make specific improvements related to this facility.  A more detailed discussion of the required 
roadway and sewer improvements is provided under the Department and Agency Comments 
Section of this report.   
 
Finally, the applicant has submitted Development Standards for the project. Please see 
Attachment 5. In the standards, the applicant has identified setbacks, future design information, 
and the maximum footprint of future dwellings. These criteria presented meet or surpass the 
Single-Family Residential Standards (R-1). 
 
DEPARTMENT AND AGENCY COMMENTS 
 
Police Department 


The Pinole Police Department has offered standard comments pertaining to construction of the 
future dwellings. These comments include adequate security lighting, low landscaping near the 


285 of 611







City Council Report, 8A  
November 17, 2020  3 


 


front doors, the need for safely constructed doors at both the front entry and if the garage is 
attached, at the main door for the garage as well.  
 
Fire Department 


No comments have been received. 
 
Public Works 


Hazel Avenue will be put through so that that you will be able to drive from Sunnyview Drive all 
the way to Pinon Avenue. Hazel Avenue will meet local street standards.  
 
Pump Station 


The existing sewer pump station on the northwest corner of the project site currently receives 
electrical service from an overhead electrical line.  The proposed project would remove this 
overhead line and provide electric service to the pump station and the proposed single-family 
homes via underground electric transmission lines.  Prior to any construction, the applicant must 
provide a detailed plan to the Public Works Department of how the existing sewer pump station 
would be converted from being served by an overhead electrical line to an underground service.  
The plan must include details of how this change will be completed without an interruption of 
existing sewer service. 
 
Grading and Drainage 


As a part of this project, the Applicants will be paying into the storm drain fee for the 
undergrounding and realignment of the Storm Drain line and vault. As a part of the Development 
Agreement, the City will be planning and building the storm drain infrastructure for the regional 
storm drain system. 
 
The developer paying storm drain fees. must also include an all-weather roadway from the 
proposed Hazel Avenue to the existing pump station. 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
General Plan Goals and Policies 
Policies 
 
The proposed project meets the following goals from the General Plan: 
 
LU1.1 Variety of Land Uses 
 
Maintain land use designations for a variety of residential, commercial, light industrial, 
recreational, open space and public purposes which: 1) protect environmental resources; 2) 
provides a mix of housing types, density, and tenure; 3) ensure that a variety of commercial and 
industrial goods, services and employment opportunities area available; and 4) offer a range of 
recreational and public facilities to meet the needs of residents.  


286 of 611







City Council Report, 8A  
November 17, 2020  4 


 


 
LU1.2 General Plan Land Uses and the Zoning Ordinance 
 
Require all proposed projects to be consistent with the General Plan and other applicable 
development standards established by the City’s Zoning Ordinance.  
 
LU 3.1 Site Planning and Design 
 
Ensure high quality site planning, architecture, and landscaping for all new development, 
renovation or remodeling. 
 
LU3.4 Design Review of Residential Projects.  Require design review of residential projects to 
ensure compatibility with adjacent or nearby land uses, including architectural style, mass, bulk, 
color, materials, lot coverage and setbacks. 
 
LU4.1 Quality of Pinole’s Residential Neighborhoods. Assure all new development, renovation or 
remodeling preserves and strengthens Pinole’s residential neighborhoods by requiring projects 


to be harmoniously designed and integrated with the existing neighborhood. 
 
Inclusionary Housing Ordinance Compliance 
 
Chapter 17.32 of the City of Pinole Zoning Code establishes policies and incentives, design 
standards, and alternative methods of meeting the City’s affordable housing needs. This chapter 
determines the minimum standards and identifies the administrative procedures related to 
affordable housing. 
 
The Project is proposing to construct four (4) single-family residential units. Section 17.32.020 (A) 
states that all residential development of 4 or more dwelling units located in the City at least 15% 
of the total units must be constructed as affordable housing units, rounded up to the nearest whole 
number. One (1) of the single-family residences constructed as part of the project will be restricted 
as affordable to meet this provision of the code.  
 
Table 17.32.020-1 of the Pinole Zoning Code specifies the level of affordability based on whether 
the affordable unit is a rental or ownership unit. For units that will be owner-occupied, the unit 
must be sold to and affordable to moderate income households (defined as households with an 
income of 120% of the Area Median Income). Section 17.32.050 of the Pinole Zoning Code 
defines the affordable housing development requirements. Those requirements include, design, 
size, availability, affordable housing agreement, and the duration of the affordability requirement. 
Staff is working with the Dhaliwal Family to fulfill these requirements. All of the proposed houses 
meet the design, size, availability requirements. An affordable housing agreement will be signed 
by the City and applicant and recorded on the Property prior to the construction of the first house, 
to restrict occupancy of the affordable unit in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 17.32 
for a term of 45 years. 
 


287 of 611







City Council Report, 8A  
November 17, 2020  5 


 


Pursuant to Section 17.12.050 of the Pinole Zoning Ordinance requires that we make four (4) 
findings to approve the comprehensive design review. I have listed the findings below: 
 
1. The proposed project is consistent with the objectives of the general plan and complies with 
applicable zoning regulations, planned development, master plan or specific plan provisions, 
improvement standards, and other applicable standards and regulations adopted by the city; 
 
As stated above, this project is consistent with the General Plan and all the applicable plans and 


zoning regulations. 


 
Staff deemed that this finding has been met. 
 
2. The proposed project will not create conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian 
transportation modes of circulation; 
 


This project will connect Hazel Avenue into one roadway, which includes the construction of curb, 


gutter, and sidewalk. By connecting these two pieces, conflicts will be minimized. 


 
Staff deemed that this finding has been met. 
 
3.  The site layout (orientation and placement of buildings and parking areas), as well as the 
landscaping, lighting, and other development features, are compatible with and complement the 
existing surrounding environment and ultimate character of the area under the general plan and 
applicable specific plans; and 
 
The development of this project will be compatible and complement the existing surrounding 


single-family residential area. 


 
Staff deemed that this finding has been met. 
 
4. Qualifying single-family residential, multi-family residential, and residential mixed-use projects 
shall comply with all relevant standards and guidelines in the city's currently adopted design 
guidelines for residential development. 
 
Staff reviewed the Residential Guidelines and found that the single-family residential units that 


are being proposed complies with all the relevant standards and guidelines base on what has 


been proposed. 


 
Staff deemed that this finding has been met. 
 
  


288 of 611







City Council Report, 8A  
November 17, 2020  6 


 


PLANNING COMMISSION REVIEW 
 
The Planning Commission reviewed this project at their regular meetings of September 
28, 2020 and October 26, 2020. At that meeting there was a lot of discussion regarding 
the size of the lots as well as the size of the houses. Based on the deliberations of the 
Planning Commission, the Commission voted to modify Condition 11 (note: Staff 
highlighted the change in the Conditions of Approval in the Council packet. The 
Commission voted 4-0-1 with one abstention due to the proximity of one Commissioner’s 
residence to the project. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There will not be any significant fiscal impact from the project. The City will receive 
building fees from the four houses, and there will be an incremental increase of property 
taxes with the reassessment of lots. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 


 
A. Draft City Council Resolution for the Design Review and Tentative Map 


w/Attachment A – Conditions of Approval 
B. Draft City Council Ordinance for the Development Agreement, w/Exhibit A 


Development Agreement 
C. Parcel Map MS-652-20 
D. Lot 1 Elevations 
E. Lot 2 Elevations 
F. Lot 3 Elevations 
G. Lot 4 Elevations 
H. Environmental Memo Dated September 20, 2020 
I. Resale Restriction Agreement 


289 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


RESOLUTION NO.  2020-XX 


 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING A 
TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP (TSM 17-01), COMPREHENSIVE DESIGN REVIEW (DR 
17-10) FOR A FOUR-LOT RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT LOCATED AT SOUTH 
SIDE OF THE WESTERN TERMINUS OF HAZEL AVENUE (APN 402-013-060 & 061)  


 
WHEREAS, Baljit Dhaliwal has filed an application for a Tentative Parcel Map (TSM 17-
01), Comprehensive Design Review (DR17-10), and a Development Agreement (DA 
17-01) for a four-lot residential development located on south side of the western 
terminus of Hazel Avenue (the “Project); and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Pinole has considered a Minor Subdivision 
652-20, the applicant is Baljit Dhaliwal, 1068 Turquoise Drive, Hercules, CA 94547; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered the site layout, the orientation of and location 
of the four (4) homes and other pertinent development features in relation to the 
physical characteristics, zoning, and land use of the site and surrounding properties; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered traffic, safety, and traffic congestion, including 
the effect of the proposed project on traffic conditions abutting streets, the layout of the 
site with respect to driveways and walkways; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council considered the availability of city services and adequacy 
based upon City Standards; and  
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), the 
City of Pinole City Council has determined that approval of the Project is Categorical 
Exempt from CEQA pursuant to Sections 15315, Minor Land Subdivision and 15332 In-
fill Developments, and that none of the exceptions specified in CEQA Guidelines section 
15300.2 are applicable to the Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing related to the 
proposed Project on October 26, 2020, and voted 4-0-1 to recommend the City Council 
approve the Tentative Parcel Map and Comprehensive Design Review; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a duly noticed public hearing related to the proposed 
Project, including the project design components and the draft development agreement, 


290 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


on November 17, 2020 at which time all interested parties has the opportunity to be 
heard; and  
 
WHEREAS, after the close of public hearing, the City Council considered all public 
comments received both before and during the public hearing, the presentation by City 
Staff, the Staff Report, and all other pertinent documents regarding the proposed 
development. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council hereby finds that: 
 
1. Approval of the Project is Categorical Exempt from CEQA pursuant to Sections 
15315, Minor Land Subdivision and 15332 In-fill Developments, and that none of the 
exceptions specified in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 are applicable to the Project. 
 
2. The tentative parcel map is consistent with the City of Pinole General Plan in that 
the subdivision of the lots does not change the uses on site and is consistent with 
General Plan Goals and Policies found in the Land Use and Community Character 
Elements. 
 
3. The project complies with applicable regulatory requirements for a minor 
subdivision, and all four proposed parcels will have sufficient access to a public street. 
 
4. The tentative parcel map, as conditioned is consistent with the Zoning Code, in 
that the zoning designation for the parcels remains unchanged and the current 
allowable uses remains unchanged. 
 
5. The Design Review is consistent with the applicable polices of the General Plan 
and complies with standards as conditioned. The proposed project will not create 
conflicts with vehicular, bicycle, or pedestrian transportation modes of circulation; 
 
6. The site layout including the orientation of the buildings and parking areas, as 
well as landscaping, lighting, and other development features are compatible with and 
complement the existing surrounding environment and ultimate character of the area 
under the General Plan. 
 
7. Based on the depth and variety of architectural components, including colors and 
materials, the proposed designs as conditioned will not be unsightly, obnoxious or 
undesirable in appearance, and will not hinder the harmonious development of the area, 
impair the desirability of the area for the uses permitted, nor limit the opportunity to 


291 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


attain optimum use and value of the land and improvements ,or otherwise adversely 
affect the general public. 
 
8. The proposed development as conditioned creates a well-composed urban 
design harmoniously related to the other existing development within the immediate 
area and is consistent with the City's currently adopted design guidelines for residential 
development.  
 
9. The proposed development as conditioned will not be detrimental to health, 
safety, and general welfare of the City. 
 
10. Recommends that the City Council approves Design Review DR 17-10 and 
Tentative Parcel Map TSM17-01 as provided in the staff report, and subject to the 
Conditions of Approval attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution. 
 
11. Chapter 17.32 of the City of Pinole Zoning Code requires one of the four homes 
to be built as part of the Project to be sold to and affordable to a moderate income 
household (defined as households with an income of 120% of the Area Median 
Income). The City Manager is authorized and directed to execute the Resale Restriction 
Agreement attached to the staff report dated November 17, 2020, in a form approved by 
the City Attorney.  


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Pinole on this 17th day of 
November 2020, by the following vote: 
 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 


       
 ______________________________  
 Roy Swearingen , Mayor 2019-2020 


ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________ 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


292 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


 


_________________________ 


Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 
  


293 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


 


294 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        1 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


1.  The project shall be constructed in substantial compliance with the 
approved Design Review, Tentative Parcel Map, and Development 
Agreement request for the subdivision and four-lot residential 
development project at Hazel Street (APN 402-013-060 and -061), 
approved by the City Council as shown on the project plans date-
stamped received June 20, 2018, unless otherwise conditioned.  
 
The proposed project shall be built in a manner consistent with all 
applicable federal, State, and local regulations. 
 


On-Going Development 
Services 


Department 


 


2.  
 


The Applicant shall hold harmless the City, its Council Members, its 
Planning Commission, officers, agents, employees, and representatives 
from liability for any award, damages, costs and fees incurred by the City 
and/or awarded to any plaintiff in an action challenging the validity of this 
permit or any environmental or other documentation related to approval 
of this permit.  Applicant further agrees to provide a defense for the City 
in any such action. 
     


On-Going Development 
Services 


Department 


 


3.  All building permit drawings and subsequent construction shall 
substantially conform to the approved planning application drawings and 
application materials.  Any modifications must be reviewed by the 
Planning Manager who shall determine whether the modification requires 
additional approval of the Planning Commission. 
  


On-Going Development 
Services 


Department 


 


295 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        2 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


 Prior to Issuance of Building Permits    
4.  CONDITIONS ON PLANS - These project conditions of approval shall 


appear on the project building plans. 
Prior to 


Issuance of 
Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


5.  FINAL PARCEL MAP - The applicant shall have a Final Parcel Map, 
prepared by a person authorized to practice land surveying in California, 
delineating all parcels created or deleted and all changes in lot lines (as 
per Section 16.12.190 of the Municipal Code). The Final Parcel Map shall 
be submitted for review and approval by the City Engineer. The Final 
Parcel Map shall be recorded with the County after City Engineer 
approval. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits; and 


Prior to Building 
Permit Final 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


6.  CULTURAL RESOURCES - Prior to the issuance of any construction 
permit, construction plans shall include a requirement (via notation) 
indicating that if historic and/or cultural resources or human remains are 
encountered during construction or other site work, all such work shall be 
halted immediately within the area of discovery and the contractor shall 
immediately notify the City of the discovery. In such case, the applicant 
shall retain, at their own cost, the services of a qualified archaeologist for 
the purpose of recording, protecting, or curating the discovery as 
appropriate. The archaeologist shall be required to submit to the City for 
review and approval a report of the findings and method of curation or 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


296 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        3 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


protection of the resources. Further construction work within the vicinity 
of the discovery, as identified by the qualified archaeologist, shall not be 
allowed until the preceding steps have been taken. 
 


7.  PLAN SET REVISIONS – The applicant shall make the following 
revisions to the building permit plan set prior to issuance of building 
permits: 
 
General 
• On Sheet A5, include a partial outline of the neighboring residences 


for lots east and west of the project site and their window locations 
to show that window placement of proposed residences would not 
have a straight view into the windows of neighboring residences.  


 
• In the landscape plan, provide a calculation showing that the front 


yard area (the area 20 feet back from the front property line) is not 
covered by impervious surfaces for more than 40% of this front yard 
area. 
 


Lot #3 
• Reduce the front porch projection into the foot front yard area, or 


shift the residence back, so that a minimum 18-foot separation is 
maintained between the front property line and any point along the 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


297 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        4 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


porch, including the eaves and overhangs of the porch area.  
 


• The eave over the garage needs to maintain a minimum 18-foot 
separation from the front property line. Show the measurement on 
Sheet A1.1 Site Plan. 
 


• Ensure the front yard setback is consistent on all applicable plan 
sheets, including the site plan and landscape plan. 


 
Lot #4 
• Identify the separation distance between the rear deck and the 


retaining wall. 
 


8.  GEOTECHNICAL AND SOILS REPORT – The applicant shall re-submit 
the geotechnical and soils report prepared by GeoEngineering 
Consultants, dated February 17, 2017, and R.A. McGuire 
Civil/Environmental Engineering, dated October 4, 2006, to the Building 
Division as part of the Building Permit application. The project shall 
implement the recommendations of the report, in compliance with all 
current building code standards. Required modifications to the 
recommendations and the plans may be identified through the Building 
Permit plan check process. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


298 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        5 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


9.  LANDSCAPE PLAN – The applicant shall prepare and submit a full 
detailed landscape and irrigation plan for review and approval by the 
Development Services Department prior to issuance of building permits. 
 
The landscape and irrigation plan shall include the number, type, and 
size of all proposed new trees, shrubs, and groundcover specimens. All 
proposed plantings shall be drought-tolerant and well-suited to the City’s 
climate zone. The landscape plan shall reflect the latest approved site 
plan. 
 
The detailed landscape plan and irrigation plan shall be consistent with all 
applicable requirements of the Municipal Code including Chapter 17.44. 
The detailed landscape plan shall ensure that: 
 


a. All shrubs shall be a minimum 5-gallon size.  
 


b. Light-colored, high albedo materials or vegetation shall be 
installed for at least fifty percent of all sidewalks, patios, and 
driveways. Specific design material information and specifications 
for the permeable pavers and crushed rock shall be included 
within the final landscape plan. 
 


c. High water use turf grasses and other similar plantings shall only 
be utilized in high-use areas with high visibility or functional 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


299 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        6 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


needs. When only drought-tolerant turf grasses are used, the turf 
area shall be limited to twenty-five percent (25%) of all irrigated, 
landscaped areas. When non-drought-tolerant turf grasses or a 
combination of non-drought-tolerant and drought-tolerant turf 
grasses is used, the turf area shall be limited to fifteen percent 
(15%) of all irrigated, landscaped areas. 
 


d. At least twenty-five percent (25%) of the lot area and no more 
than forty percent (40%) of the front yard area shall be non-
pervious surface. Additionally, at least ninety percent (90%) of the 
plants selected in non-turf areas shall be well suited to the climate 
of the region and require minimal water once established. Up to 
ten percent (10%) of the plants may be of a non-drought-tolerant 
variety, provided they are grouped together and can be irrigated 
separately 
 


e. Tree protection measures provided by a certified arborist shall be 
included in the landscape plan, if applicable.   


10.  WATER EFFICIENT LANDSCAPING – The landscape plans shall 
identify the total landscaped area for each of the lots and demonstrate 
compliance with the State Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance 
requirements (California Code of Regulations Title 23, Division 2, Chapter 
2.7), including any required documentation based on the Ordinance. 
Projects with an aggregate landscape area of 2,500 square feet or less 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


300 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        7 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


may show compliance by conforming to the requirements of and 
completing Appendix D under California Code of Regulations Title 23, 
Division 2, Chapter 2.7. The landscape plans shall also include a table 
showing proposed plants and their water use designation based on the 
Water Use Classification of Landscape Species (WUCOLS) database. 
 


11.  TREE PROTECTION - The applicant shall implement the recommended 
tree protection measures in the arborist reports prepared by Arborwell, 
dated January 14, 2016 and April 18, 2018. Any revisions to tree 
protection and tree removal details described in the arborist reports shall 
be submitted to the Planning Manager for review prior to work affecting 
trees in the field consistent with Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 17.96  


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


12.  LIGHTING PLAN - The applicant shall prepare and submit a lighting plan 
for review and approval to the Development Services Department prior to 
the issuance of the building permit. The lighting plan shall include 
specifications for all proposed exterior light fixtures. Light fixtures 
selected shall include shields to project light downward and to prevent 
light spill-over onto adjacent properties. All proposed exterior lighting 
specifications and cut sheet details and finishes shall be included on the 
building plans. The Lighting Plan shall include the road and 100 ft in each 
direction to determine if a streetlight is warranted.  
 
  


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


301 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        8 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


13.  DRAINAGE PLANS - The applicant shall prepare a construction drainage 
plan and final drainage plan for Development Services Department 
review and approval. The construction drainage plan will show how 
drainage will be handled during construction. The final drainage plan will 
show how drainage will be handled from impervious surfaces after 
construction is completed. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


14.  UNDERGROUNDING UTILITIES – The developer shall underground all 
utility services, if feasible, including telephone facilities, electric power, 
fire alarm conduits, street lighting wiring, cable television and other wiring 
conduits, and similar facilities, as per Chapter 17.50 of the Municipal 
Code. Undergrounding utilities shall be acknowledged in the plan set 
prior to building permit issuance and completed during construction/prior 
to occupancy. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits; and 


During 
Construction  


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


15.  PERMITS REQUIRED BY OTHER AGENCIES - The applicant shall 
obtain all permits that may be required by any other agencies, which may 
include pipeline and utility companies. If the project is within jurisdiction of 
any of these agencies, verification of permit or waiver of permit must be 
given to the Development Services Department prior to issuance of any 
City permits. If the City is required to be party to the permit and an 
application and fee is required, the applicant shall reimburse the City for 
its cost. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


302 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        9 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


16.  STAGING PLAN - Prior to the issuance of a construction permit, the 
applicant shall submit staging plan detailing how the applicant shall 
comply with storage of all materials, truck deliveries and all other 
appropriate sections of the Pinole Municipal Code and conditions of 
approval, as appropriate. This plan shall be submitted to the Planning 
Manager for review and approval. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of a 
Construction 


Permit 
 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


17.  PRE-CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN - The applicant 
shall complete a pre-construction waste management plan prior to the 
issuance of the building permit.   


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


18.  MATERIAL HAULING   - The applicant shall submit a proposed material 
hauling route and schedule, if needed, for City Engineer review and 
approval. The hauling route shall be included on the building construction 
plans. The City Engineer prior to issuance of a building or site 
development permit shall review and approve said submittal. All material 
hauling activities including, but not limited to, adherence to approved 
route, hours of operation, dust control and street maintenance shall be 
the responsibility of the applicant (as per Section 15.36.080 of the 
Municipal Code). Violation of the applicable may be cause for suspension 
of work. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


303 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        10 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


19.  PERMITS, BONDS, AND INSURANCE - The applicant shall obtain an 
encroachment permit, posting the required bonds and insurance, for any 
work to be done in the City’s right-of-way. This encroachment permit shall 
be obtained prior to the issuance of a building permit and prior to any 
work being done in the City’s right-of-way. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department  


 


20.  WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM   - Prior to issuance of a building permit there 
shall be an approved and tested water supply system capable of 
supplying the required fire flow as determined by the Fire Chief or Fire 
Marshall. Water supply system for staged construction, if applicable, shall 
provide required fire flows at all stages. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Fire 
Department 


 


21.  DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES AND SCHOOL FEES– The applicant 
shall pay all applicable development impact fees and show payment of 
school fees to the school district, prior to issuance of the building permit.  


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


22.  INFRASTRUCTURE WORK - Prior to the issuance of the first building 
permit for a new dwelling, the plans for infrastructure improvements, 
including road and utility work, shall be reviewed and approved by the 
City Engineer. 
 


Prior to 
Issuance of 


Building 
Permits 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


23.  PUMP STATION - Prior to the approval of a Final Parcel Map, the 
applicant shall submit to the Development Service Director, a detailed 
plan as to how the existing sewer pump station will be converted from 


Prior to Final 
Parcel Map 


Development 
Services 


 


304 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        11 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


being served from an overhead electrical line to an underground service. 
The plan shall include details of how this change over and all site 
construction will be completed without an interruption of sewer service. 
 


Approval 
 


Department 


 During Construction and Prior to Occupancy 
 


24.  CONSTRUCTION CONTACT – A construction contact person’s name, 
mobile phone number, and email address shall be posted on the project 
site during the duration of construction.  
 


During 
Construction  


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


25.  ADDRESS MARKING - The property address shall be clearly marked 
during the project construction process. 
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


26.  INSPECTIONS - The applicant shall notify the Development Services  
Department at least forty-eight (48) hours prior to starting any work  
pertaining to on-site drainage facilities, grading, or paving, as well as   
any work in the City’s right-of-way as per Section 15.36.230 of the 
Municipal Code.  
 
The applicant shall arrange all inspections with the Building Division, Fire 
Department, and Public Works Division.  All Building Division inspection 
requests shall be made at least 24 hours in advance. 
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


305 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        12 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


27.  CERTIFIED GRADED PAD - A California-Licensed Engineer shall certify 
that the graded construction pad for the proposed dwelling unit has been 
adequately compacted and designed to support the proposed dwelling 
unit to the satisfaction of the City Engineer. 
 


During 
Construction 


 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


28.  CONSTRUCTION SITE MANAGEMENT - The building permit holder 
shall ensure the following provisions to control noise, dust, and 
construction debris nuisance occur during construction: 
 
A. Building construction activities shall occur only between 7:00A.M. and 


5:00 P.M., Monday through Friday on non-federal holidays. Interior 
construction work may occur between 9:00A.M. and 6:00P.M. on 
weekends if requested and approved by the City as allowed under 
Chapter 15.02 of the City Municipal Code. 


 
B. All construction vehicles shall be properly maintained and equipped 


with exhaust mufflers and meet State and Federal standards. 
 


C. Newly disturbed soil surfaces shall be watered down regularly 
throughout the day and any construction grading activity shall be 
discontinued in wind conditions greater than 10 miles per hour. 


 
D. Construction activities shall be scheduled so that paving and 


foundation placement begin immediately upon completion of grading 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


306 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        13 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


operation. 
 


E. All excavated or silty materials shall be covered with a tarp during 
transit to and from the site. 
 


F. All construction debris shall be covered with a tarp during transit from 
the site.  


 
G. The construction site shall be maintained in an orderly fashion and 


litter shall be contained and properly disposed of on a daily basis. 
 


29.  SITE MAINTENANCE - The construction site shall be cleaned of garbage 
and debris on a daily basis and maintained in an orderly fashion. All 
construction equipment shall be secured at the end of each day of 
construction. 
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


30.  ACCESS TO HAZEL STREET - Project construction vehicles and 
vehicles belonging to construction workers shall not block access to 
Hazel Street or any other public roadway.  
 


During 
Construction 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


31.  POST-CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT Report - The applicant 
shall complete a post-construction waste management report prior to 
issuance of a certificate of occupancy.   


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Development 
Services 


Department  


 


307 of 611







 


                           
 


Exhibit A 
CITY COUNCIL RESOLUTION 2020-XX EXHIBIT A 


CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL: TENTATIVE MAP 17-01 & DESIGN REVIEW 17-10 
 


As Recommended by Planning Commission                                        14 of 14 Four-Lot Subdivision and Residential Development                                                                             
November 17, 2020  Design Review (DR) 17-10, Tentative Subdivision Map (TSM) 17-01 &  
  Development Agreement (DA) 17-01                                             
 


 
 


 
Timing/ 


Implementation 
 


 
Monitoring 


Department / 
Division 


 
Verification 


(date 
and sign) 


32.  FIRE PROTECTION - Prior to issuance of a “Certificate of Occupancy” or 
final building inspection, approved fire prevention features shall be 
installed as required by the Fire Prevention Bureau. 
 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Fire 
Department 


 


33.  FIRE PREVENTION FEES AND INSPECTION - Prior to issuance of a 
“Certificate of Occupancy” or final building inspection, the applicant shall 
pay all applicable fees in accordance with the Master Fee Schedule 
adopted by the City of Pinole and obtain all required inspections from the 
Fire Prevention Bureau.   


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Fire 
Department 


 


34.  ADDRESSING - Prior to issuance of a “Certificate of Occupancy” or final 
building inspection approved illuminated numbers and addresses shall be 
installed on the new residence in compliance with Section 15.02.050 of 
the Municipal Code. 
 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Development 
Services 


Department 


 


35.  SIDEWALK, CURB AND GUTTER REPAIR - The applicant shall repair 
and replace to existing City standards, any sidewalk, curb and gutter 
abutting the project site. 


Prior to 
Occupancy 


Development 
Services 


Department  


 


36.  Timing of construction shall be coordinated with City off-site drainage 
improvement. Such improvements must be completed prior to building of 
applicant furnished infrastructure 


   


 


308 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


ORDINANCE NO.2020-XX 


CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF PINOLE 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING A 
DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND BALJIT & 
ANAND DHALIWAL, RELATIVE TO THE USE AND DEVELOPMENT OF PROPERTY 
LOCATED IN THE CITY OF PINOLE (APN 402-013-059 & 060) 


WHEREAS, Baljit Dhaliwal has filed an application for a Tentative Parcel Map 
(TSM 17-01), Comprehensive Design Review (DR17-10), and a Development Agreement 
(DA 17-01) for a four-lot residential development located on south side of the western 
terminus of Hazel Avenue (the “Project”); and 


WHEREAS, the lack of certainty in the approval of development projects can result 
in a waste of resources, escalate the cost of housing and other development, and 
discourage investment in and commitment to comprehensive planning that would make 
maximum efficient utilization of resources at the least economic cost to the public; and 


WHEREAS, in order to strengthen the public planning process, encourage private 
participation in comprehensive planning and reduce the economic costs and risk of 
development, the Legislature of the State of California enacted Section 65864 et seq. of
the Government Code (the “Development Agreement Legislation”), which authorizes 
City to enter into a development agreement for real property with any person having a 
legal or equitable interest in such property in order to establish certain development rights 
in the property; and 


WHEREAS, in compliance with California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), the 
City retained Raney Planning and Management Inc. to prepare a categorical exemption 
memorandum regarding the Project. Based on this memorandum, the City of Pinole City 
Council has determined that approval of the Project is Categorical Exempt from CEQA 
pursuant to Sections 15315, Minor Land Subdivision and 15332 In-fill Developments, and 
that none of the exceptions specified in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 are applicable 
to the Project.   


WHEREAS, as part of the Project, the City and Developer have negotiated a draft 
Development Agreement in accordance with Government Code section 65864 et seq. 
and Pinole Municipal Code section 17.12.160, which agreement is attached as Exhibit A 
and incorporated herein by reference; and 


WHEREAS, Government Code section 65867 and Pinole Municipal Code Section 
17.12.160.C require the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing on the proposed 
development agreement and make a recommendation to the City Council; and 


WHEREAS, a staff report, dated October 26, 2020 and incorporated herein by 
reference, described and analyzed the Project, including the Development Agreement, 


309 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


for the Planning Commission.  Pursuant to Government Code section 65867.5(b), the 
Development Agreement must be found consistent with the City’s general plan and any 
applicable specific plan, which includes the Three Corridors Specific Plan; and 


WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing related 
to the proposed Project, including the Development Agreement, on October 26, 2020, at 
which time all interested parties had the opportunity to be heard; and 


WHEREAS, following the public hearing, the Planning Commission adopted 
Resolution 20-18 recommending approval of the Development Agreement, and 


WHEREAS, on November 17, 2020, the City Council held a duly noticed public 
hearing to consider the Development Agreement, at which time all interested parties 
had the opportunity to be heard.  The City Council considered the CEQA memorandum 
prepared by Raney Planning & Management, Inc., the staff report, the Planning 
Commission recommendation, the presentation by city staff, all public comments 
received, and all other pertinent documents regarding the Development Agreement, 
prior to taking action on the Development Agreement; and 


WHEREAS, City has determined that by entering into the proposed Development 
Agreement: (1) City will ensure the productive use of property and foster orderly growth 
and quality development in City; (2) development will proceed in accordance with the 
goals and policies set forth in the City of Pinole General Plan (the “General Plan”) and 
the Three Corridors Specific Plan (the “Specific Plan”) will implement City’s stated 
General Plan policies;  


NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Pinole does hereby ordain as 
follows: 


SECTION 1. Findings. 


That based on the entirety of the record before it the City Council of the City of 
Pinole hereby finds as follows: 


A. The foregoing Recitals are true and correct and made a part of this 
Ordinance. 


B. Approval of the Project  and Development Agreement is Categorical 
Exempt from CEQA pursuant to Sections 15315, Minor Land Subdivision and 15332 
In-fill Developments, and that none of the exceptions specified in CEQA Guidelines 
section 15300.2 are applicable to the Project. 


C. The proposed Development Agreement (attached as Exhibit A), is 
incorporated by reference and made a part of this Ordinance, as if set forth fully herein. 


310 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


D. The documents and other material constituting the record for these 
proceedings are located at the Planning Division for the City of Pinole, 2131 Pear Street, 
Pinole, CA 94564. 


E. The proposed Project, including the Development Agreement, is consistent 
and compatible with all elements in the General Plan and the Specific Plan. The land 
uses, development standards, densities and intensities, buildings and structures 
proposed for the Project are compatible with the goals, policies, and land use 
designations established in the General Plan,  


F. The City Council has independently reviewed the proposed Development 
Agreement, the General Plan, the Pinole Municipal Code, and applicable state and 
federal law, including Government Code section 65864, et seq., and has determined that
the proposed Development Agreement complies with all applicable zoning, subdivision, 
and building regulations and with the General Plan. This finding is based upon all 
evidence in the record as a whole, including, but not limited to: the City Council’s 
independent review of these documents, oral and written evidence submitted at the public 
hearings on the Project, including advice and recommendations from City staff. 


G.  The Development Agreement is consistent with the objectives, policies, and 
general land uses specified in the general plan and any applicable specific plans; is 
compatible and in conformity with public convenience, general welfare, and good land 
use and zoning practice; will not be detrimental to health, safety, and general welfare of 
the city; and will not adversely affect the orderly development of property or the 
preservation of property values. 


SECTION 2. Approval of Development Agreement. 


A. The City Council of the City of Pinole hereby approves the proposed 
Development Agreement with Baljit and Anand Dhaliwal, attached hereto as Exhibit A 
and incorporated herein by reference.  


B. The City Council further authorizes the City Manager to execute the 
Development Agreement, on behalf of the City, in substantially the form attached as 
Exhibit A, and to make revisions to such Agreement, subject to the approval of the City 
Attorney, which do not materially or substantially increase the City’s obligations 
thereunder. 


SECTION 3. Severability. 


If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid or unconstitutional, the remainder of this Ordinance, including 
the application of such part or provision to other persons or circumstances shall not be 
affected thereby and shall continue in full force and effect. To this end, provisions of this 
Ordinance are severable. The City Council of the City of Pinole hereby declares that it 
would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, sentence, clause, 


311 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


or phrase hereof irrespective of the fact that any one or more sections, subsections, 
subdivisions, paragraphs, sentences, clauses, or phrases be held unconstitutional, 
invalid, or unenforceable. 


SECTION 4. Publication and Effective Date. 


Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 36933, a summary of this 
Ordinance shall be prepared by the City Attorney. At least five (5) days prior to the Council 
meeting at which this Ordinance is scheduled to be adopted, the City Clerk shall (1) 
publish the Summary, and (2) post in the City Clerk’s Office a certified copy of this 
Ordinance. Within fifteen (15) days after the adoption of this Ordinance, the City Clerk 
shall (1) publish the summary, and (2) post in the City Clerk’s Office a certified copy of 
the full text of this Ordinance along with the names of those City Council members voting 
for and against this Ordinance or otherwise voting. This Ordinance shall become effective 
no sooner than thirty (30) days from and after its adoption, and only after the LRPMP has 
been approved by the Department. 


Introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Pinole, held the 17th day 
of November, 2020. 


Adopted as an Ordinance of the City of Pinole at a regular meeting of the City Council 
held the _____ day of _________, 2020, by the following vote: 


AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


__________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


312 of 611







ATTACHMENT B 


Exhibit A 


Development Agreement 


313 of 611







3598308.1 


RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 


WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 


City of Pinole 


2131 Pear Street 


Pinole, CA  94564 


Attn: City Manager 


Exempt from Recording Fees 


Pursuant to Government 


Code Sections 6103 and 27383 


______________________________________________________________________________ 
APN: 402-013-060 (Space Above This Line Reserved for Recorder’s Use Only) 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 


BY AND BETWEEN 


THE CITY OF PINOLE 


AND 


BALJIT DHALIWAL 


EXHIBIT A


314 of 611







 
 


1 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 


THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Development Agreement” or this 


“Agreement”) is entered into as of ________________, 2020 (the “Agreement Date”) by and 


between the City of Pinole, a municipal corporation (“City”), and Bajit Dhaliwal, an individual 


(“Developer”).  City and Developer are referred to individually as “Party,” and collectively as 


the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


This Agreement is entered upon the basis of the following facts, understandings and 


intentions of City and Developer. 


A. The lack of certainty in the approval of development projects can result in a waste 


of resources, escalate the cost of housing and other development, and discourage investment in 


and commitment to comprehensive planning that would make maximum efficient utilization of 


resources at the least economic cost to the public. 


B. In order to strengthen the public planning process, encourage private participation 


in comprehensive planning and reduce the economic costs and risk of development, the 


Legislature of the State of California enacted Section 65864 et seq. of the Government Code (the 


“Development Agreement Legislation”), which authorizes City to enter into a development 


agreement for real property with any person having a legal or equitable interest in such property 


in order to establish certain development rights in the property. 


C. The Developer is the owner of certain property located in the City, known as 


County Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 402-013-060 and 402-013-061_(the “Property”), as more 


particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 


D. Developer intends to construct four (4) homes on the Property (the “Project”).  


Construction of the Project includes construction of a number of public improvements, including 


but not limited to design and construction of a new vault and pump station, the extension of Hazel 


Street, storm drain construction and curb and gutter improvements. 


E. The complexity, magnitude and long-range nature of the Project would be 


difficult for Developer to undertake if City had not determined, through this Development 


Agreement, to inject a sufficient degree of certainty in the land use regulatory process to justify 


the substantial financial investment associated with development of the Project.  As a result of 


the execution of this Development Agreement, both Parties can be assured that the Project can 


proceed without disruption caused by a change in City planning and development policies and 


requirements, which assurance will thereby reduce the actual or perceived risk of planning, 


financing and proceeding with construction of the Project. 


F. City has determined that by entering into this Development Agreement: (1) City 


will ensure the productive use of property and foster orderly growth and quality development in 


City; (2) development will proceed in accordance with the goals and policies set forth in the City 


of Pinole General Plan (the “General Plan”) and will implement City’s stated General Plan 


315 of 611







 
 


2 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


policies; (3) City will receive increased property tax revenues; and (4) City will benefit from 


increased housing for residents of City that are created by the Project. 


G. Developer has applied for, and City has granted, the Project Approvals (as defined 


in Section 1.6) in order to protect the interests of its citizens in the quality of their community 


and environment. 


City has also undertaken, pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act (Public 


Resources Code Section 21000 et seq., hereinafter “CEQA”), the required analysis of the 


environmental effects that would be caused by the Project and has determined that the Project is 


categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15332, and that none of 


the exceptions to this exemption specified in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 are applicable to 


the Project.  


 


H. In addition to the Project Approvals, the Project may require various additional 


land use and construction approvals, termed Subsequent Approvals (as defined in Section 1.6.4), 


in connection with development of the Project. 


I. City has given the required notice of its intention to adopt this Development 


Agreement and has conducted public hearings thereon pursuant to Government Code 


Section 65867.  As required by Government Code Section 65867.5, City has found that the 


provisions of this Development Agreement and its purposes are consistent with the goals, 


policies, standards and land use designations specified in City’s General Plan. 


J. On ________, 2020, the City of Pinole’s Planning Commission (the “Planning 


Commission”), the initial hearing body for purposes of development agreement review, 


recommended approval of this Development Agreement pursuant to Resolution No. ____. 


K. On ________, 2020, the City of Pinole City Council (the “City Council”) 


adopted its Ordinance No. ____ (the “Approving Ordinance”) approving this Development 


Agreement and authorizing its execution.  The Approving Ordinance will take effect on 


______________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”). 


L. For the reasons recited herein, City and Developer have determined that the 


Project is a development for which this Development Agreement is appropriate.  This 


Development Agreement will eliminate uncertainty regarding Project Approvals (including the 


Subsequent Approvals), thereby encouraging planning for, investment in and commitment to 


develop the Property in a manner beneficial to the City and surrounding properties.  Continued 


use and development of the Property will in turn provide substantial employment and property 


tax benefits, and contribute to the provision of needed infrastructure enhancements and public 


benefits, thereby achieving the goals and purposes for which the Development Agreement 


Legislation was enacted and ensuring consistency with the City’s General Plan. 


M. The terms and conditions of this Development Agreement have undergone 


extensive review by City staff, the Planning Commission and the City Council at publicly 


noticed meetings and have been found to be fair, just and reasonable and in conformance with 


the City General Plan and the Development Agreement Legislation, and, further, the City 


316 of 611







 
 


3 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Council finds that the economic interests of City’s residents and the public health, safety and 


welfare will be best served by entering into this Development Agreement. 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises set forth 


herein, City and Developer agree as follows: 


ARTICLE 1. 


GENERAL PROVISIONS 


1.1. Parties. 


1.1.1. City.  City is a California municipal corporation, with offices located at 


2131 Pear Street, Pinole, CA 94564.  “City,” as used in this Development Agreement, includes 


the City of Pinole and any assignee of or successor to its rights, powers and responsibilities. 


1.1.2. Developer.  Developer is an individual located at 1068 Turquoise Drive, 


Hercules, CA 94547.  “Developer,” as used in this Development Agreement, includes any 


permitted assignee or successor-in-interest as herein provided. 


1.2. Property Subject to this Development Agreement. 


The Property known as APN 402-013-060 and 402-013-061, as more particularly 


described in Exhibit A, is subject to this Development Agreement. 


1.3. Term of the Agreement. 


The term (“Term”) of this Development Agreement will commence upon the Effective 


Date and shall continue in full force and effect for a period of ten (10) years, unless earlier 


terminated as provided in this Agreement.  The Term has been established by the Parties as a 


reasonable estimate of the time required to develop the Project and obtain the benefits of the 


Project. 


1.4. The Project. 


1.4.1. General.  Developer intends to subdivide the Property and construct four 


(4) homes on the Property (the “Project”).  Construction of the Project includes construction of a 


number of public improvements, including but not limited to design and construction of a new 


vault and pump station, the extension of Hazel Street, storm drain construction and curb and 


gutter improvements and other ancillary improvements described in this Section 1.4. 


1.4.2. Improvements.  


a. Homes. The Project consists of subdividing that portion of the 


Property known as Contra Costa APN 402-013-060 into four (4) parcels and constructing one (1) 


single family homes on each of the four (4) lots. The four single family homes will range in size 


from 2,000 square feet to 2,600 square feet.  The homes will be constructed in accordance with 


the Project Approvals. In accordance with the City’s inclusionary housing ordinance, Pinole 


Municipal Code Chapter 17.32, one (1) of the homes shall be deed restricted as an affordable 


317 of 611







 
 


4 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


unit to be sold to a moderate-income household restricted to sale at a price affordable to 


households earning up to 120% of the Area Median Income. Prior to the issuance of a building 


permit for any of the homes, the Developer shall execute and record on the one of the newly 


created parcels a resale restriction agreement, in substantially the form contained in Exhibit C, 


attached hereto and incorporated herein, to ensure the affordability of the home built on that 


parcel. Developer agrees that the affordable home shall be no later than the third of the four 


homes built on the Property, and Developer agrees that City may refuse to issue building permits 


that would result in the affordable unit not being the third home built.  


b. Vault and Pump Station.  There is an existing sewer pump station 


vault located on the northwest corner of the Property. The sewer pump station currently receives 


electric service from an overhead electrical line. As part of the Project, the Developer will be 


responsible for, with the approval of the relevant utility companies, removing this overhead 


electrical line and replacing it with underground electric service serving the sewer pump station. 


c. Storm Drain.  On the northwest corner of the property there is 


currently an open-air ditch that collects storm water and channels it into the City’s storm water 


system. The City will replace these existing storm drain facilities with an underground storm 


drainpipe that is located underneath the future Hazel Street extension described below. In 


addition, the City will install a surface level storm drain inlet located on Hazel Street. 


d. Hazel Street Extension.  Hazel Street is a public road located near 


the Property. Hazel Street currently terminates just east of Woy Circle and just west of Hazel 


Lane, resulting in no direct access to the Property from Hazel Street, or any other public road. At 


its sole cost and expense, Developer will design and construct, in accordance with City 


standards, a road, with curb, gutter, and sidewalk, to connect the two existing sections of Hazel 


Street and provide direct access to the Property. These improvements will be located on that 


portion of the Property commonly known as 402-013-061. Upon completion of these 


improvements, the Developer will dedicate the Improvements, and the property on which they 


are located, to the City. A portion of the Developer’s cost to construct the improvements 


described in this Section 1.4.2 (d) shall be $9,937.33 per single-family unit against the 


transportation development impact mitigation fee..  


e. Landscaping.  There is no public landscaping associated with this 


Project. Developer will be required to install landscaping when constructing the new single- 


family homes in accordance with the Project Approvals. 


 


1.4.3. Nuisance.  Developer shall not use or permit the use of any portion of the 


Project for any offensive, noisy or dangerous trade, business manufacturing activity or 


occupation; for any activity which constitutes a nuisance or violated public policy; in violation of 


any law, ordinance rule or regulation of any governmental authority with jurisdiction over any 


portion of the Project. 


1.5. RESERVED. 


318 of 611







 
 


5 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


1.6. Project Approvals. 


Developer has applied for and obtained various environmental and land use approvals 


and entitlements related to the development of the Project, as described below.  For purposes of 


this Development Agreement, the term “Project Approvals” means all of the approvals, plans 


and agreements described in this Section 1.6 and shall include all Project Approvals to (i) 


subdivide that portion of the Property known as Contra Costa APN 402-013-060 into four (4) 


parcels (ii) construct four (4) new single-family homes on such newly created parcels, (iii) 


construct certain infrastructure improvements to serve the four (4) new single-family residences, 


and (iv) construct those other improvements as more fully set forth and described in that certain 


City of Pinole Development Application submitted by Developer to the City on July 17, 2017, 


together with those plans and other information approved by the City Council on ________, 


2020 by Resolution No. ______________.  City and Developer agree to work diligently and in 


good faith toward appropriate planning entitlements and building permit approvals for each 


phase of construction.   


1.6.1. CEQA Exemption.  The City Council determined that the Project is 


categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15332, and that none of 


the exceptions to this exemption specified in CEQA Guidelines section 15300.2 are applicable to 


the Project, on ___________, 2020 by Resolution No. _________. 


1.6.2. Development Agreement.  On ________, 2020, following Planning 


Commission review and recommendation, and after a duly noticed public hearing, the City 


Council, by Ordinance No. _____, approved this Development Agreement and authorized its 


execution. 


1.6.3. Other Concurrent Project Approvals. In order to develop the Project as 


contemplated in this Development Agreement, the following land use approvals shall be required 


a. Tentative Parcel Map. A tentative parcel map will be required for 


the creation of the new parcels. The tentative parcel map shall be approved by the City Council 


and the Final Parcel Map shall be reviewed and approved by the City Engineer and City 


Surveyor pursuant Sections 16.12.220 and 16.12.280 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code; 


b. Comprehensive Design Review. Comprehensive Design Review is 


required for the construction of the four (4) single family residences pursuant to Section 


17.12.150 of the City of Pinole Zoning Code; . 


1.6.4. Subsequent Approvals.  In order to develop the Project as contemplated in 


this Development Agreement, the Project may require land use approvals, entitlements, 


development permits, and use and/or construction approvals other than those listed in Section 1.6 


above, which may include, without limitation:  development plans, amendments to applicable 


conditional use permits, variances, subdivision approvals, street abandonments, design review 


approvals, demolition permits, improvement agreements, infrastructure agreements, grading 


permits, building permits, right-of-way permits, lot line adjustments, design review, lot line 


adjustments, site plans, sewer and water connection permits, certificates of occupancy, parcel 


maps, lot splits, landscaping plans, master sign programs, transportation demand management 


319 of 611







 
 


6 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


programs, encroachment permits, and amendments thereto and to the Project Approvals 


(collectively, “Subsequent Approvals”).  At such time as any Subsequent Approval applicable 


to the Property is approved by the City, then such Subsequent Approval shall become subject to 


all the terms and conditions of this Development Agreement applicable to Project Approvals and 


shall be treated as a “Project Approval” under this Development Agreement. 


ARTICLE 2. 


DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY 


2.1. Project Development. 


Developer shall have a vested right to develop the Project on the Property, in accordance 


with the Vested Elements (defined in Section 2.2). 


2.2. Vested Elements. 


The permitted uses of the Property, the minimum and maximum density, number of 


commercial and retail square footage, the intensity of use, the maximum height and size of the 


proposed buildings, provisions for reservation or dedication of land for public purposes, the 


conditions, terms, restrictions, and requirements for subsequent discretionary actions, the 


provisions for public improvements and financing of public improvements, and the other terms 


and conditions of development applicable to the Property are as set forth in: 


a. The City of Pinole General Plan as of the Effective Date, including any 


General Plan Amendments (“Applicable General Plan”); 


b. The Zoning Ordinance of City on the Effective Date (“Applicable Zoning 


Ordinance”); 


c. Other rules, regulations, ordinances and policies of City applicable to 


development of the Property on the Effective Date, except for any and all fees applicable to the 


development, which shall be vested as set forth in Section 2.6.3 of this Agreement, (collectively, 


together with the Applicable General Plan and the Applicable Zoning Ordinance, the 


“Applicable Rules”); and 


d. The Project Approvals, as they may be amended from time to time with 


Developer’s consent; 


and are hereby vested in Developer, subject to, and as provided in, the provisions of this 


Development Agreement (the “Vested Elements”).  City hereby agrees to be bound with respect 


to the Vested Elements, subject to Developer’s compliance with the terms and conditions of this 


Development Agreement. 


2.3. Development Construction Completion. 


2.3.1. Timing of Development; Pardee Finding.  Because the California 


Supreme Court held in Pardee Construction Co. v. City of Camarillo, 37 Cal.3d 465 (1984), that 


the failure of the parties therein to provide for the timing of development resulted in a later-


320 of 611







 
 


7 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


adopted initiative restricting the timing of development to prevail over the parties’ agreement, it 


is the Parties’ intent to cure that deficiency by acknowledging and providing that, subject to any 


infrastructure phasing requirements that may be required by the Project Approvals, Developer 


shall have the right (without obligation) to develop the Property in such order and at such rate 


and at such times as Developer deems appropriate within the exercise of its subjective business 


judgment. 


2.3.2. Moratorium.  No City-imposed moratorium or other limitation (whether 


relating to the rate, timing or sequencing of the development or construction of all or any part of 


the Property, whether imposed by ordinance, initiative, resolution, policy, order or otherwise, 


and whether enacted by the City Council, an agency of City, the electorate, or otherwise) 


affecting parcel or subdivision  maps (whether tentative, vesting tentative or final), building 


permits, occupancy certificates or other entitlements to use or service (including, without 


limitation, water and sewer) approved, issued or granted within City, or portions of City, shall 


apply to the Property to the extent such moratorium or other limitation is in conflict with this 


Development Agreement; provided, however, the provisions of this Section 2.3.2 shall not affect 


City’s compliance with moratoria or other limitations mandated by other governmental agencies 


or court-imposed moratoria or other limitations. 


2.3.3. No Other Requirements.  Nothing in this Development Agreement is 


intended to create any affirmative development obligations to develop the Project at all, or 


liability in Developer under this Development Agreement if the development fails to occur. 


2.4. Effect of Project Approvals and Applicable Rules; Future Rules. 


2.4.1. Governing Rules.  Except as otherwise explicitly provided in this 


Development Agreement, development of the Property shall be subject to (a) the Project 


Approvals and (b) the Applicable Rules. 


2.4.2. Changes in Applicable Rules; Future Rules. 


a. To the extent any changes in the Applicable Rules, or any 


provisions of future General Plans, Specific Plans, Zoning Ordinances or other rules, regulations, 


ordinances or policies (whether adopted by means of ordinance, initiative, referenda, resolution, 


policy, order, moratorium, or other means, adopted by the City Council, Planning Commission, 


or any other board, commission, agency, committee, or department of City, or any officer or 


employee thereof, or by the electorate) of City (collectively, “Future Rules”) are not in conflict 


with the Vested Elements, such Future Rules shall be applicable to the Project. 


b. To the maximum extent permitted by law, City shall prevent any 


Future Rules from invalidating or prevailing over all or any part of this Development Agreement, 


and City shall cooperate with Developer and shall undertake such actions as may be necessary to 


ensure this Development Agreement remains in full force and effect.  City shall not support, 


adopt or enact any Future Rule, or take any other action which would violate the express 


provisions or spirit and intent of this Development Agreement or the Project Approvals.  


Developer reserves the right to challenge in court any Future Rule that would conflict with the 


321 of 611







 
 


8 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Vested Elements or this Development Agreement or reduce the development rights provided by 


this Development Agreement. 


c. A Future Rule that conflicts with the Vested Elements shall 


nonetheless apply to the Property if, and only if (i) consented to in writing by Developer; (ii) it is 


determined by City and evidenced through findings adopted by the City Council confirming that 


the change or provision is reasonably required in order to prevent a condition dangerous to the 


public health or safety, that there are no feasible alternatives to the imposition of such change or 


provision and how such change or provision would alleviate the dangerous condition; (iii) it is 


required by changes in State or Federal law as set forth in Section 2.4.3 below; (iv) it consists of 


changes in, or new fees permitted by, Section 2.6; or (v) it is otherwise expressly permitted by 


this Development Agreement. 


d. Prior to the Effective Date, the Parties shall have prepared two (2) 


sets of the Project Approvals and Applicable Rules, one (1) set for City and one (1) set for 


Developer.  If it becomes necessary in the future to refer to any of the Project Approvals or 


Applicable Rules, the contents of these sets are presumed for all purposes of this Development 


Agreement, absent clear clerical error or similar mistake, to constitute the Project Approvals and 


Applicable Rules. 


2.4.3. Changes in State or Federal Laws.  In accordance with California 


Government Code Section 65869.5, in the event that state or federal laws or regulations enacted 


after the Effective Date (“State or Federal Law”) prevent or preclude compliance with one or 


more provisions of this Development Agreement, the Parties shall meet in good faith to 


determine the feasibility of any modification or suspension of this Development Agreement that 


may be necessary to comply with such State or Federal Law and to determine the effect such 


modification or suspension would have on the purposes and intent of this Development 


Agreement and the Vested Elements.  Following the meeting between the Parties, the provisions 


of this Development Agreement may, to the extent feasible, and upon mutual agreement of the 


Parties, be modified or suspended, but only to the minimum extent necessary to comply with 


such State or Federal Law.  In such an event, this Development Agreement, together with any 


required modifications, shall continue in full force and effect.  In the event that the State or 


Federal Law operates to frustrate irremediably and materially the vesting of development rights 


to the Project as set forth in this Agreement, Developer may terminate this Agreement.  In 


addition, Developer shall have the right to challenge (by any method, including litigation) the 


State or Federal Law preventing compliance with, or performance of, the terms of this 


Development Agreement and, in the event that such challenge is successful, this Development 


Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect, unless (i) Developer fails to 


commence construction under valid permits within two (2) years of the commencement of the 


Term of this Development Agreement, or (ii) Developer fails to submit a written request to City 


prior to the expiration date of any construction permits for an extension of time as allowed under 


the Zoning Ordinance. 


2.4.4. Conflicts.  In the event of an irreconcilable conflict between the provisions 


of the Project Approvals (on the one hand) and the Applicable Rules (on the other hand), the 


provisions of the Project Approvals shall apply.  In the event of a conflict between the Project 


322 of 611







 
 


9 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Approvals (on the one hand) and this Development Agreement, in particular, (on the other hand), 


the provisions of this Development Agreement shall control. 


2.5. Processing Subsequent Approvals.City will accept, make completeness 


determinations, and process, promptly and diligently, to completion all 


applications for Subsequent Approvals for the Project, in accordance with the 


terms of this Development Agreement. 


2.5.2. Scope of Review of Subsequent Approvals.  By approving the Project 


Approvals, City has made a final policy decision that the Project is in the best interests of the 


public health, safety and general welfare.  Accordingly, City shall not use its authority in 


considering any application for a discretionary Subsequent Approval to change the policy 


decisions reflected by the Project Approvals or otherwise to prevent or delay development of the 


Project as set forth in the Project Approvals.  Instead, the Subsequent Approvals shall be deemed 


to be tools to implement those final policy decisions.  The scope of the review of applications for 


Subsequent Approvals shall be limited to a review of substantial conformity with the Vested 


Elements and the Applicable Rules (except as otherwise provided by Section 2.4), and 


compliance with CEQA.  Where such substantial conformity/compliance exists, City shall not 


deny an application for a Subsequent Approval for the Project. 


2.6. Development Fees, Exactions; and Conditions.General.  All fees, exactions, 


dedications, reservations or other impositions to which the Project would be 


subject, but for this Development Agreement, are referred to in this Development 


Agreement either as “Processing Fees” (as defined in Section 2.6.2) or “Impact 


Fees” (as defined in Section 2.6.3). 


2.6.2. Processing Fees.  “Processing Fees” mean fees charged on a citywide 


basis to cover the cost of City review of applications for any permit or other review by City 


departments.  Applications for Subsequent Approvals for the Project shall be charged Processing 


Fees to allow City to recover its actual and reasonable costs of processing Developer’s 


Subsequent Approvals with respect to the Project. 


2.6.3. Impact Fees.  “Impact Fees” means monetary fees, exactions or 


impositions, other than taxes or assessments, whether established for or imposed upon the 


Project individually or as part of a class of projects, that are imposed by City on the Project in 


connection with any Project Approval for the Project for any purpose, including, without 


limitation, defraying all or a portion of the cost of public services and/or facilities construction, 


improvement, or operation and maintenance attributable to the burden created by the Project.  


Any fee, exaction or imposition imposed on the Project which is not a Processing Fee is an 


Impact Fee.  Subject to the Impact Fee credits provided to Developer in Section 1.4, the 


Developer agrees to pay the specific Impact Fees listed in Exhibit B, attached hereto and 


incorporated herein.  


2.6.4. Conditions of Subsequent Approvals.In connection with any Subsequent 


Approvals, City shall have the right to impose reasonable conditions including, without 


limitation, normal and customary dedications for rights of way or easements for public access, 


utilities, water, sewers, and drainage necessary for the Project; provided, however, such 


323 of 611







 
 


10 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


conditions and dedications shall not be inconsistent with the Applicable Rules or Project 


Approvals, nor inconsistent with the development of the Project as contemplated by this 


Agreement. 


b. No conditions imposed on Subsequent Approvals shall require 


dedications or reservations for, or construction or funding of, public infrastructure or public 


improvements beyond those already included in the Project Approvals.  In addition, any and all 


conditions imposed on Subsequent Approvals for the Project must comply with Sections 2.6.2 


and 2.6.3 herein. 


2.7. Life of Project Approvals and Subdivision Maps. 


2.7.1. Life of Tentative Map.  The terms of any tentative map for the Property, 


any amendment or reconfiguration thereto, or any subsequent tentative map, shall be 


automatically extended such that such tentative maps remain in effect for a period of time 


coterminous with the Term of this Development Agreement. 


2.7.2. Life of Other Project Approvals.  The term of all other Project Approvals, 


shall be automatically extended such that these Project Approvals remain in effect for a period of 


time at least as long as the Term of this Development Agreement. 


2.7.3. Termination of Agreement.  In the event that this Development Agreement 


is terminated prior to the expiration of the Term of the Development Agreement, the term of any 


tentative map or any other Project Approval and the vesting period for any final subdivision map 


approved as a Project Approval shall be the term otherwise applicable to the approval (including 


any extensions), which shall commence to run on the date that the termination of this 


Development Agreement takes effect. 


2.8. Further CEQA Environmental Review. 


2.8.1. Reliance on  CEQA Exemption.  The City has determined that the Project 


is categorically exempt from CEQA pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15332. It is agreed 


that, in acting on any discretionary Subsequent Approvals for the Project, City will rely on this 


exemption to satisfy the requirements of CEQA to the fullest extent permissible by CEQA and 


City will not require a new initial study, negative declaration, EIR or subsequent or supplemental 


EIR unless required by CEQA. 


2.8.2. Subsequent CEQA Review.  In the event that any additional CEQA 


documentation is legally required for any discretionary Subsequent Approval for the Project, 


then the scope of such documentation shall be focused, to the extent possible consistent with 


CEQA, on the specific subject matter of the Subsequent Approval, and the City shall conduct 


such CEQA review as expeditiously as possible. 


2.9. Developer’s Right to Rebuild. Developer may renovate or rebuild the Project 


within the Term of this Agreement should it become necessary due to natural 


disaster, changes in seismic requirements, or should the buildings located within 


the Project become functionally outdated, within Developer’s sole discretion, due 


to changes in technology.  Any such renovation or rebuilding shall be subject to 


324 of 611







 
 


11 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


the Vested Elements, shall comply with the Project Approvals, the building 


regulations existing at the time of such rebuilding or reconstruction, and the 


requirements of CEQA. 


ARTICLE 3. 


ANNUAL REVIEW 


3.1. Annual Review.The annual review required by California Government Code 


Section 65865.1 will be conducted for the purposes and in the manner stated in 


those laws as further provided herein.  As part of that review, City and Developer 


shall have a reasonable opportunity to assert action(s) that either Party believes 


have not been undertaken in accordance with this Development Agreement, to 


explain the basis for such assertion, and to receive from the other Party a 


justification for the other Party’s position with respect to such action(s), and to 


take such actions as permitted by law.  The procedure set forth in this Article shall 


be used by Developer and City in complying with the annual review requirement.  


The City and Developer agree that the annual review process will review 


compliance by Developer and City with the obligations under this Development 


Agreement but will not review compliance with other Project Approvals or other 


agreements between City and Developer. 


3.2. Intentionally omitted. 


3.3. Commencement of Process; Developer Compliance Letter. 


At least fifteen (15) days prior to the anniversary of the Effective Date each year, 


Developer shall submit a letter to the Director of City’s Development Services Director/City 


Engineer demonstrating Developer’s good faith compliance with the material terms and 


conditions of this Development Agreement and shall include in the letter a statement that the 


letter is being submitted to City pursuant to the requirements of Government Code 


Section 65865.1. 


3.4. Development Services Director/City Engineer Review. 


Within thirty (30) days after the receipt of Developer’s letter, the Development Services 


Director/City Engineer shall review Developer’s submission and determine whether Developer 


has, for the year under review, demonstrated good faith compliance with the material terms and 


conditions of this Development Agreement.  If Developer has demonstrated good faith 


compliance, than the Development Services Director/City Engineer shall make such a finding 


and send a letter back to Developer describing the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer’s finding and any comments. 


3.5. Development Services Director/City Engineer Noncompliance Finding. 


If the Development Services Director/City Engineer finds and determines that there is 


substantial evidence that Developer has not complied in good faith with the material terms and 


conditions of this Development Agreement and that Developer is in material breach of this 


Development Agreement for the year under review, the Development Services Director/City 


325 of 611







 
 


12 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Engineer shall issue and deliver to Developer a written “Notice of Default” specifying in detail 


the nature of the failures in performance that the Development Services Director/City Engineer 


claims constitutes material noncompliance, all facts demonstrating substantial evidence of 


material noncompliance, and the manner in which such noncompliance may be satisfactorily 


cured in accordance with the Development Agreement.  In the event that the material 


noncompliance is an Event of Default pursuant to ARTICLE 5 herein, the Parties shall be 


entitled to their respective rights and obligations under both ARTICLE 3 and 5 herein, except 


that the particular entity allegedly in default shall be accorded only one of the 60-day cure 


periods referred to in Sections 3.6 and 5.1 herein. 


3.6. Cure Period. 


If the Development Services Director/City Engineer finds that Developer is not in 


compliance, the Development Services Director/City Engineer shall grant a reasonable period of 


time for Developer to cure the alleged noncompliance.  The Development Services Director/City 


Engineer shall grant a cure period of at least sixty (60) days and shall extend the sixty (60) day 


period if Developer is proceeding in good faith to cure the noncompliance and additional time is 


reasonably needed.  At the conclusion of the cure period, the Development Services 


Director/City Engineer shall either (i) find that Developer is in compliance; or (ii) find that 


Developer is not in compliance. 


3.7. Referral of Noncompliance to City Council. 


The Development Services Director/City Engineer shall refer the alleged default to the 


City Manager or her designee who then shall discuss the matter with the City Council.  If 


Developer fails to cure the alleged noncompliance to the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer’s reasonable satisfaction during the prescribed cure period and any extensions thereto.  


The Development Services Director/City Engineer shall refer the alleged noncompliance to the 


City Manager who shall forward to the City Council if Developer requests a hearing before the 


City Council.  The Development Services Director/City Engineer shall prepare a staff report to 


the City Council which shall include, in addition to Developer’s letter, (i) demonstration of 


City’s good faith compliance with the terms and conditions of this Development Agreement; 


(ii) the Notice of Default; and (iii) a description of any cure undertaken by Developer during the 


cure period. 


3.8. Delivery of Documents. 


At least five (5) days prior to any City hearing regarding Developer’s compliance with 


this Development Agreement, City shall deliver to Developer all staff reports and all other 


relevant documents pertaining to the hearing. 


3.9. City Council Compliance Finding. 


If the City Council, following a noticed public hearing pursuant to Section 3.7, 


determines that Developer is in compliance with the material terms and conditions of this 


Development Agreement, the annual review shall be deemed concluded.  City shall, at 


Developer’s request, issue and have recorded a Certificate of Compliance indicating Developer’s 


compliance with the terms of this Development Agreement. 


326 of 611







 
 


13 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


3.10. City Council Noncompliance Finding. 


If the City Council, at a properly noticed public hearing pursuant to Section 3.7, finds and 


determines, on the basis of substantial evidence, that Developer has not complied in good faith 


with the material terms or conditions of this Development Agreement and that Developer is in 


material breach of this Development Agreement, Developer will have a reasonable time 


determined by the City Council to meet the reasonable terms of compliance approved by the City 


Council, which time shall be not less than fifteen (15) days.  If Developer does not complete the 


terms of compliance within the time specified, the City Council shall hold a public hearing 


regarding termination or modification of this Development Agreement.  Notification of intention 


to modify or terminate this Development Agreement shall be delivered to Developer by certified 


mail containing:  (i) the time and place of the City Council hearing; (ii) a statement as to whether 


City proposes to terminate or modify this Development Agreement and the terms of any 


proposed modification; and (iii) any other information reasonably necessary to inform Developer 


of the nature of the proceedings.  At the time of the hearing, Developer shall be given an 


opportunity to be heard.  The City Council may impose conditions to the action it takes as 


necessary to protect the interests of City; provided that any modification or termination of this 


Development Agreement pursuant to this provision shall bear a reasonable nexus to, and be 


proportional in severity to the magnitude of, the alleged breach, and in no event shall termination 


be permitted except in accordance with ARTICLE 5 herein. 


3.11. Relationship to Default Provisions. 


The above procedures supplement and do not replace that provision of Section 5.1 of this 


Development Agreement whereby either City or Developer may, at any time, assert matters 


which either Party believes have not been undertaken in accordance with this Development 


Agreement by delivering a written Notice of Default and following the procedures set forth in 


Section 5.1. 


3.12.  Reimbursement of City's Costs Incurred in Bringing About Cure. 


Developer shall be obligated to reimburse to City all costs, expenses, damages and 


attorneys’ fees incurred as a result of any Developer default including all costs incurred in 


bringing about Developer's cure of any such default. 


ARTICLE 4. 


AMENDMENTS 


4.1. Amendments to Development Agreement Legislation. 


This Development Agreement has been entered into in reliance upon the provisions of the 


Development Agreement Legislation as those provisions existed at the Effective Date.  No 


amendment or addition to those provisions or any other federal or state law and regulation that 


would materially adversely affect the interpretation or enforceability of this Development 


Agreement or would prevent or preclude compliance with one or more provisions of this 


Development Agreement shall be applicable to this Development Agreement unless such 


amendment or addition is specifically required by the change in law, or is mandated by a court of 


competent jurisdiction.  In the event of the application of such a change in law, the Parties shall 


327 of 611







 
 


14 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


meet in good faith to determine the feasibility of any modification or suspension that may be 


necessary to comply with such new law or regulation and to determine the effect such 


modification or suspension would have on the purposes and intent of this Development 


Agreement and the Vested Elements.  Following the meeting between the Parties, the provisions 


of this Development Agreement may, to the extent feasible, and upon mutual agreement of the 


Parties, be modified or suspended but only to the minimum extent necessary to comply with such 


new law or regulation.  If such amendment or change is permissive (as opposed to mandatory), 


this Development Agreement shall not be affected by same unless the Parties mutually agree in 


writing to amend this Development Agreement to permit such applicability.  Developer and/or 


City shall have the right to challenge any new law or regulation preventing compliance with the 


terms of this Development Agreement, and in the event such challenge is successful, this 


Development Agreement shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect.  The Term of this 


Development Agreement may be extended for the duration of the period during which such new 


law or regulation precludes compliance with the provisions of this Development Agreement. 


4.2. Amendments to or Cancellation of Development Agreement. 


This Development Agreement may be amended from time to time or canceled in whole 


or in part by mutual consent of both Parties in writing in accordance with the provisions of the 


Development Agreement Legislation.  Review and approval of an amendment to this 


Development Agreement shall be strictly limited to consideration of only those provisions to be 


added or modified.  No amendment, modification, waiver or change to this Development 


Agreement or any provision hereof shall be effective for any purpose unless specifically set forth 


in a writing that expressly refers to this Development Agreement and signed by the duly 


authorized representatives of both Parties.  All amendments to this Development Agreement 


shall be recommended for approval by the Planning Commission and approved by the City 


Council  and, upon such approval, will become part of the Project Approvals. 


4.3. Operating Memoranda. 


The provisions of this Development Agreement require a close degree of cooperation 


between City and Developer and development of the Property hereunder may demonstrate that 


refinements and clarifications are appropriate with respect to the details of performance of City 


and Developer.  If and when, from time to time, during the Term of this Development 


Agreement, City and Developer agree that such clarifications are necessary or appropriate, City 


and Developer shall effectuate such clarifications through operating memoranda approved by 


City and Developer, which, after execution, shall be attached hereto as addenda and become a 


part hereof, and may be further clarified from time to time as necessary with future approval by 


City and Developer.  No such operating memoranda shall constitute an amendment to this 


Development Agreement requiring public notice or hearing.  The City Manager, in consultation 


with the City Attorney, shall make the determination on behalf of City whether a requested 


clarification may be effectuated pursuant to this Section 4.3 or whether the requested 


clarification is of such a character to constitute an amendment hereof pursuant to Section 4.2 


above.  The City Manager shall be authorized to execute any operating memoranda hereunder on 


behalf of City. 


328 of 611







 
 


15 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


4.4. Amendments to Project Approvals. 


Notwithstanding any other provision of this Development Agreement, Developer may 


seek and City may review and grant amendments or modifications to the Project Approvals 


(including the Subsequent Approvals) subject to the following (except that the procedures for 


amendment of this Development Agreement are set forth in Section 4.2 herein). 


4.4.1. Amendments to Project Approvals.  Project Approvals (except for this 


Development Agreement the amendment process for which is set forth in Section 4.2) may be 


amended or modified from time to time, but only at the written request of Developer or with the 


written consent of Developer (at its sole discretion) and in accordance with Section 2.4.  All 


amendments to the Project Approvals shall automatically become part of the Project Approvals, 


except to the extent such amendments are considered by the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer, in his or her sole discretion, to constitute a major amendment.  In such case, Developer 


consents to any major amendment’s review before the Planning Commission for approval or 


recommendation to the City Council, whose review and approval or denial shall be final.  The 


permitted uses of the Property, the maximum height and size of the proposed buildings, 


provisions for reservation or dedication of land for public purposes, the conditions, terms, 


restrictions and requirements for subsequent discretionary actions, the provisions for public 


improvements and financing of public improvements, and the other terms and conditions of 


development as set forth in all such amendments, except those considered by the Development 


Services Director/City Engineer to be a major amendment, shall be automatically vested 


pursuant to this Development Agreement, without requiring an amendment to this Development 


Agreement.  Amendments to the Project Approvals shall be governed by the Project Approvals 


and the Applicable Rules, subject to Section 2.4.  City shall not request, process or consent to 


any amendment to the Project Approvals that would affect the Property or the Project without 


Developer’s prior written consent unless a Project Approval has not been activated within two 


(2) years of commencement of the Term of this Development Agreement or a Project Approval 


has expired. 


4.4.2. Administrative Amendments.  Upon the request of Developer for an 


amendment or modification of any Project Approval, the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer or his/her designee shall determine:  (a) whether the requested amendment or 


modification is minor when considered in light of the Project as a whole; and (b) whether the 


requested amendment or modification substantially conforms with the material terms of this 


Development Agreement and the Applicable Rules.  If the Development Services Director/City 


Engineer or his/her designee finds that the requested amendment or modification is both minor 


and substantially conforms with the material terms of this Development Agreement and the 


Applicable Rules, the amendment or modification shall be determined to be an “Administrative 


Amendment,” and the Development Services Director/City Engineer or his or her designee may 


approve the Administrative Amendment, without public notice or a public hearing.  Without 


limiting the generality of the foregoing, lot line adjustments, minor alterations in vehicle 


circulation patterns or vehicle access points, variations in the location of structures that do not 


substantially alter the design concepts of the Project, substitution of comparable landscaping for 


any landscaping shown on any development plan or landscape plan, variations in the location or 


installation of utilities and other infrastructure connections and facilities that do not substantially 


alter design concepts of the Project, and minor adjustments to the Property legal description shall 


329 of 611







 
 


16 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


be deemed to be minor amendments or modifications.  Any request of Developer for an 


amendment or modification to a Project Approval that is determined not to be an Administrative 


Amendment as set forth above shall be subject to review, consideration and action pursuant to 


the Applicable Rules and this Agreement. 


ARTICLE 5. 


DEFAULT, REMEDIES AND TERMINATION 


5.1. Events of Default. 


Subject to any extensions of time by mutual consent of the Parties in writing, and subject 


to the provisions of Section 9.2 hereof regarding permitted delays and a Mortgagee’s right to 


cure pursuant to Section 8.3 hereof, any failure by either Party to perform any material term or 


provision of this Development Agreement (not including any failure by Developer to perform 


any term or provision of any other Project Approvals) shall constitute an “Event of Default,” 


(i) if such defaulting Party does not cure such failure within sixty (60) days (such sixty (60) day 


period is not in addition to any (60) day cure period under Section 3.7, if Section 3.7 is 


applicable) following written notice of default from the other Party, where such failure is of a 


nature that can be cured within such sixty (60) day period, or (ii) if such failure is not of a nature 


which can be cured within such sixty (60) day period, the defaulting Party does not within such 


sixty (60) day period commence substantial efforts to cure such failure, or thereafter does not 


within a reasonable time prosecute to completion with diligence and continuity the curing of 


such failure.   


Any notice of default given hereunder shall specify in detail the nature of the failures in 


performance that the noticing Party claims constitutes the Event of Default, all facts constituting 


substantial evidence of such failure, and the manner in which such failure may be satisfactorily 


cured in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Development Agreement.  During the 


time periods herein specified for cure of a failure of performance, the Party charged therewith 


shall not be considered to be in default for purposes of (a) termination of this Development 


Agreement, (b) institution of legal proceedings with respect thereto, or (c) issuance of any 


approval with respect to the Project.  The waiver by either Party of any default under this 


Development Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or 


any other provision of this Development Agreement. 


5.2. Meet and Confer. 


During the time periods specified in Section 5.1 for cure of a failure of performance, the 


Parties shall meet and confer in a timely and responsive manner, to attempt to resolve any 


matters prior to litigation or other action being taken, including without limitation any action in 


law or equity; provided, however, nothing herein shall be construed to extend the time period for 


this meet and confer obligation beyond the 60-day cure period referred to in Section 5.1 (even if 


the 60-day cure period itself is extended pursuant to Section 5.1) unless the Parties agree 


otherwise in writing. 


330 of 611







 
 


17 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


5.3. Remedies and Termination. 


If, after notice and expiration of the cure periods and procedures set forth in Sections 5.1 


and 5.2, the alleged Event of Default is not cured, the non-defaulting Party, at its option, may 


institute legal proceedings pursuant to Section 5.4 of this Development Agreement and/or 


terminate this Development Agreement pursuant to Section 5.5 herein.  In the event that this 


Development Agreement is terminated pursuant to Section 5.5 herein and litigation is instituted 


that results in a final decision that such termination was improper, then this Development 


Agreement shall immediately be reinstated as though it had never been terminated. 


5.4. Legal Action by Parties. 


5.4.1. Remedies.  Either Party may, in addition to any other rights or remedies, 


institute legal action to cure, correct or remedy any default, enforce any covenant or agreement 


herein, enjoin any threatened or attempted violation thereof, enforce by specific performance the 


obligations and rights of the Parties hereto or to obtain any remedies consistent with the purpose 


of this Development Agreement.  All remedies shall be cumulative and not exclusive of one 


another, and the exercise of any one or more of these remedies shall not constitute a waiver or 


election with respect to any other available remedy.  Without limiting the foregoing, Developer 


reserves the right to challenge in court any Future Rules that would conflict with the Vested 


Elements or the Subsequent Approvals for the Project or reduce the development rights provided 


by the Project Approvals. 


5.4.2. No Damages.  In no event shall either Party, or its boards, commissions, 


officers, agents or employees, be liable in damages for any default under this Development 


Agreement, it being expressly understood and agreed that the sole legal remedy available to 


either Party for a breach or violation of this Development Agreement by the other Party shall be 


an action in mandamus, specific performance or other injunctive or declaratory relief to enforce 


the provisions of this Development Agreement by the other Party, or to terminate this 


Development Agreement.  This limitation on damages shall not preclude actions by a Party to 


enforce payments of monies or the performance of obligations requiring an obligation of money 


from the other Party under the terms of this Development Agreement including, but not limited 


to obligations to pay attorneys’ fees and obligations to advance monies or reimburse monies.  In 


connection with the foregoing provisions, each Party acknowledges, warrants and represents that 


it has been fully informed with respect to, and represented by counsel of such Party’s choice in 


connection with, the rights and remedies of such Party hereunder and the waivers herein 


contained, and after such advice and consultation has presently and actually intended, with full 


knowledge of such Party’s rights and remedies otherwise available at law or in equity, to waive 


and relinquish such rights and remedies to the extent specified herein, and to rely to the extent 


herein specified solely on the remedies provided for herein with respect to any breach of this 


Development Agreement by the other Party. 


5.5. Termination. 


5.5.1. Expiration of Term.  Except as otherwise provided in this Development 


Agreement, this Development Agreement shall be deemed terminated and of no further effect 


upon the expiration of the Term of this Development Agreement as set forth in Section 1.3. 


331 of 611







 
 


18 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


5.5.2. Survival of Obligations.  Upon the termination or expiration of this 


Development Agreement as provided herein, neither Party shall have any further right or 


obligation with respect to the Property under this Development Agreement except with respect to 


any obligation that is specifically set forth as surviving the termination or expiration of this 


Development Agreement.  The termination or expiration of this Development Agreement shall 


not affect the validity of the Project Approvals (other than this Development Agreement) for the 


Project. 


5.5.3. Termination by City.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 


Development Agreement, City shall not have the right to terminate this Development Agreement 


with respect to all or any portion of the Property before the expiration of its Term unless City 


complies with all termination procedures set forth in the Development Agreement Legislation 


and there is an alleged Event of Default by Developer and such Event of Default is not cured 


pursuant to ARTICLE 3 herein or this ARTICLE 5 and Developer has first been afforded an 


opportunity to be heard regarding the alleged default before the City Council and this 


Development Agreement is terminated only with respect to that portion of the Property to which 


the default applies. 


ARTICLE 6. 


COOPERATION AND IMPLEMENTATION 


6.1. Further Actions and Instruments. 


Each Party to this Development Agreement shall cooperate with and provide reasonable 


assistance to the other Party and take all actions necessary to ensure that the Parties receive the 


benefits of this Development Agreement, subject to satisfaction of the conditions of this 


Development Agreement.  Upon the request of any Party, the other Party shall promptly execute, 


with acknowledgment or affidavit if reasonably required, and file or record such required 


instruments and writings and take any actions as may be reasonably necessary under the terms of 


this Development Agreement to carry out the intent and to fulfill the provisions of this 


Development Agreement or to evidence or consummate the transactions contemplated by this 


Development Agreement. 


6.2. Regulation by Other Public Agencies. 


Other public agencies not within the control of City may possess authority to regulate 


aspects of the development of the Property separately from or jointly with City, and this 


Development Agreement does not limit the authority of such other public agencies.  


Nevertheless, City shall be bound by, and shall abide by, its covenants and obligations under this 


Development Agreement in all respects when dealing with any such agency regarding the 


Property.  To the extent that City, the City Council, the Planning Commission or any other board, 


agency, committee, department or commission of City constitutes and sits as any other board, 


agency, commission, committee, or department, it shall not take any action that conflicts with 


City’s obligations under this Agreement unless required to by any State or Federal law. 


332 of 611







 
 


19 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


6.3. Other Governmental Permits and Approvals; Grants. 


Developer shall apply in a timely manner in accordance with Developer’s construction 


schedule for the permits and approvals from other governmental or quasi-governmental agencies 


having jurisdiction over the Project as may be required for the development of, or provision of 


services to, the Project.  Developer shall comply with all such permits, requirements and 


approvals.  City shall cooperate with Developer in its endeavors to obtain (a) such permits and 


approvals and (b) any grants for the Project for which Developer applies. 


6.4. Cooperation in the Event of Legal Challenge. 


6.4.1. The filing of any third party lawsuit(s) against City or Developer relating 


to this Agreement, the Project Approvals or other development issues affecting the Property shall 


not delay or stop the development, processing or construction of the Project or approval of any 


Subsequent Approvals, unless the third party obtains a court order preventing the activity.  City 


shall not stipulate to or cooperate in the issuance of any such order. 


6.4.2. In the event of any administrative, legal or equitable action instituted by a 


third party challenging the validity of any provision of this Development Agreement, the 


procedures leading to its adoption, the Project Approvals for the Project or the portions of the 


LRPMP applicable to the Property and this Project (“Initial Litigation Challenge”), Developer 


and City each shall have the right, in its sole discretion, to elect whether or not to defend such 


action, to select its own counsel, and to control its participation and conduct in the litigation in 


all respects permitted by law.  If an Initial Litigation Challenge is filed, upon receipt of the 


petition, the Parties will have 20 days to meet and confer regarding the merits of such Initial 


Litigation Challenge and to determine whether to defend against the Initial Litigation Challenge, 


which period may be extended by the Parties’ mutual agreement so long as it does not impact 


any litigation deadlines.   


If, after meeting and conferring, the Parties mutually agree to defend against the Initial 


Litigation Challenge, then the following shall apply:  (i) the Parties hereby agree to affirmatively 


cooperate in defending said action and to execute a joint defense and confidentiality agreement 


in order to share and protect information, under the joint defense privilege recognized under 


applicable law; (ii) for the purposes of cost-efficiency and coordination, the Parties shall first 


consider defending the Initial Litigation Challenge jointly, with counsel and under terms of joint 


representation mutually acceptable to the City and Developer (each in its sole discretion), at the 


Developer’s sole cost and expense; and (iii) if the Parties cannot reach timely and mutual 


agreement on a joint counsel, and Developer continues to elect (in its sole discretion) to defend 


against the Initial Litigation Challenge, then Developer shall take the lead role defending such 


Initial Litigation Challenge and may, in its sole discretion, elect to be represented by the legal 


counsel of its choice, in which case, City, at its expense, may elect to be separately represented 


by the outside legal counsel of its choice in any such action or proceeding.  The City Manager is 


authorized to negotiate and enter into a joint defense agreement in a form acceptable to the City 


Attorney.  Such joint defense agreement shall also provide that any proposed settlement of an 


Initial Litigation Challenge shall be subject to City’s and Developer’s approval, each in its 


reasonable discretion.   


333 of 611







 
 


20 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


As part of the cooperation in defending an action, City and Developer shall coordinate 


their defense in order to make the most efficient use of legal counsel and to share and protect 


information.  Developer and City shall each have sole discretion to terminate its defense at any 


time.  If Developer elects, in its sole and absolute discretion, not to defend against the Initial 


Litigation Challenge, it shall deliver written notice to the City regarding such decision.  If 


Developer elects not to defend, the City has the right, but not the obligation, to proceed to defend 


against the Initial Litigation Challenge and shall take the lead role defending such Initial 


Litigation Challenge and may, in its sole discretion, elect to be represented by the legal counsel 


of its choice, at its sole cost and expense.  If Developer elects not to defend, the City has the 


right, but not the obligation, to terminate this Agreement and consider the Developer’s 


application for any related Project Approvals withdrawn.  The City shall not settle any third party 


litigation of Project Approvals without Developer’s consent, which consent shall not be 


unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 


6.5. Revision to Project. 


In the event of a court order issued as a result of a successful legal challenge, City shall, 


to the extent permitted by law or court order, in good faith seek to comply with the court order in 


such a manner as will maintain the integrity of the Project Approvals and avoid or minimize to 


the greatest extent possible (i) any impact to the development of the Project as provided for in, 


and contemplated by, the Vested Elements, or (ii) any conflict with the Vested Elements or 


frustration of the intent or purpose of the Vested Elements. 


6.6. State, Federal or Case Law. 


Where any state, federal or case law allows City to exercise any discretion or take any act 


with respect to that law, City shall, in an expeditious and timely manner, at the earliest possible 


time, (a) exercise its discretion in such a way as to be consistent with, and carry out the terms of, 


this Development Agreement and (b) take such other actions as may be necessary to carry out in 


good faith the terms of this Development Agreement. 


6.7. Defense of Agreement. 


City shall take all actions that are necessary or advisable to uphold the validity and 


enforceability of this Development Agreement.  If this Development Agreement is adjudicated or 


determined to be invalid or unenforceable, City agrees, subject to all legal requirements, to 


consider modifications to this Development Agreement to render it valid and enforceable to the 


extent permitted by applicable law.  Developer shall pay all of City’s costs, including attorneys’ 


fees and experts’ costs, incurred to modify or defend this Development Agreement. 


ARTICLE 7. 


TRANSFERS AND ASSIGNMENTS 


7.1. Right to Assign. 


Provided City or Successor Agency is the owner of the Property, Developer may not sell, 


assign or transfer (“Transfer”) in whole or in part its rights, duties and obligations under this 


Development Agreement, to any person or entity at any time during the Term of this 


334 of 611







 
 


21 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Development Agreement without the prior consent of City, which consent shall not be 


unreasonably withheld.  If Developer has exercised its option to purchase, and owns the Property 


in fee, Developer may Transfer its rights, duties and obligations under this Development 


Agreement without the prior consent of City; provided, however, in no event shall the rights, 


duties and obligations conferred upon Developer pursuant to this Development Agreement be at 


any time so transferred except through a transfer of the Property.  In the event of a transfer of a 


portion of the Property, Developer shall have the right to Transfer its rights, duties and 


obligations under this Development Agreement that are applicable to the transferred portion, and 


to retain all rights, duties and obligations applicable to the retained portions of the Property.  


Upon Developer’s request, City shall cooperate with Developer and any proposed transferee to 


allocate rights, duties and obligations under this Development Agreement and the Project 


Approvals among the transferred Property and the retained Property. 


7.2. Release upon Transfer. 


Upon the Transfer of Developer’s rights and interests under this Development Agreement 


pursuant to Section 7.1, Developer shall automatically be released from its obligations and 


liabilities under this Development Agreement with respect to that portion of the Property 


transferred, and any subsequent default or breach with respect to the transferred rights and/or 


obligations shall not constitute a default or breach with respect to the retained rights and/or 


obligations under this Development Agreement, provided that (i) Developer has provided to City 


written notice of such Transfer, and (ii) the transferee executes and delivers to City a written 


agreement in which (a) the name and address of the transferee is set forth and (b) the transferee 


expressly and unconditionally assumes all of the obligations of Developer under this 


Development Agreement with respect to that portion of the Property transferred.  Upon any 


transfer of any portion of the Property and the express assumption of Developer’s obligations 


under this Development Agreement by such transferee, City agrees to look solely to the 


transferee for compliance by such transferee with the provisions of this Development Agreement 


as such provisions relate to the portion of the Property acquired by such transferee.  A default by 


any transferee shall only affect that portion of the Property owned by such transferee and shall 


not cancel or diminish in any way Developer’s rights hereunder with respect to any portion of the 


Property not owned by such transferee.  The transferor and the transferee shall each be solely 


responsible for the reporting and annual review requirements relating to the portion of the 


Property owned by such transferor/transferee, and any amendment to this Development 


Agreement between City and a transferor or a transferee shall only affect the portion of the 


Property owned by such transferor or transferee.  Failure to deliver a written assumption 


agreement hereunder shall not affect the running of any covenants herein with the land, as 


provided in Section 7.3 below, nor shall such failure negate, modify or otherwise affect the 


liability of any transferee pursuant to the provisions of this Development Agreement. 


7.3. Covenants Run with the Land. 


All of the provisions, agreements, rights, powers, standards, terms, covenants and 


obligations contained in this Development Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties and their 


respective successors (by merger, reorganization, consolidation, or otherwise) and assigns, 


devisees, administrators, representatives, lessees, and all of the persons or entities acquiring the 


Property or any portion thereof, or any interest therein, whether by operation of law or in any 


335 of 611







 
 


22 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


manner whatsoever, and shall inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors 


(by merger, consolidation or otherwise) and assigns.  All of the provisions of this Development 


Agreement shall be enforceable as equitable servitudes and constitute covenants running with the 


land pursuant to applicable law, including but not limited to, Section 1468 of the Civil Code of 


the State of California.  Each covenant to do, or refrain from doing, some act on the Property 


hereunder (i) is for the benefit of such Property and is a burden upon such Property, (ii) runs with 


such Property, (iii) is binding upon each Party and each successive owner during its ownership of 


such Property or any portion thereof, and (iv) each person or entity having any interest therein 


derived in any manner through any owner of such Property, or any portion thereof, and shall 


benefit the Property hereunder, and each other person or entity succeeding to an interest in such 


Property. 


ARTICLE 8. 


MORTGAGEE PROTECTION; CERTAIN RIGHTS OF CURE 


8.1. Mortgagee Protection. 


This Development Agreement shall not prevent or limit Developer in any manner, at 


Developer’s sole discretion, from encumbering the Property or any portion thereof or any 


improvement thereon by any mortgage, deed of trust or other security device securing financing 


with respect to the Property (“Mortgage”).  This Development Agreement shall be superior and 


senior to any lien placed upon the Property or any portion thereof after the date of recording this 


Development Agreement, including the lien of any Mortgage.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, 


no breach hereof shall defeat, render invalid, diminish or impair the lien of any Mortgage made 


in good faith and for value, but all of the terms and conditions contained in this Development 


Agreement shall be binding upon and effective against and inure to the benefit of any person or 


entity, including any deed of trust beneficiary or mortgagee (“Mortgagee”) who acquires title to 


the Property, or any portion thereof, by foreclosure, trustee’s sale, deed in lieu of foreclosure, or 


otherwise. 


8.2. Mortgagee Not Obligated. 


Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 8.1 above, no Mortgagee shall have any 


obligation or duty under this Development Agreement to perform Developer’s obligations or 


other affirmative covenants of Developer hereunder; provided, however, that a Mortgagee shall 


not be entitled to devote the Property to any uses or to construct any improvements thereon other 


than those uses or improvements provided for or authorized by this Development Agreement, or 


by the Project Approvals and Applicable Rules. 


8.3. Notice of Default to Mortgagee; Right of Mortgagee to Cure. 


If City receives a notice from a Mortgagee requesting a copy of any Notice of Default 


given to Developer hereunder and specifying the address for service thereof, then City shall 


deliver to such Mortgagee, concurrently with service thereon to Developer, any notice given to 


Developer with respect to any claim by City that Developer has committed a default, and if City 


makes a determination of noncompliance hereunder, City shall likewise serve notice of such 


noncompliance on such Mortgagee concurrently with service thereof on Developer.  Each 


336 of 611







 
 


23 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


Mortgagee shall have the right (but not the obligation) during the same period available to 


Developer to cure or remedy, or to commence to cure or remedy, the Event of Default claimed or 


the areas of noncompliance set forth in City’s notice. 


8.4. No Supersedure. 


Nothing in this ARTICLE 8 shall be deemed to supersede or release a Mortgagee or 


modify a Mortgagee’s obligations under any subdivision improvement agreement or other 


obligation incurred with respect to the Project outside this Development Agreement, nor shall 


any provision of this ARTICLE 8 constitute an obligation of City to such Mortgagee, except as 


to the notice requirements of Section 8.3. 


8.5. Technical Amendments. 


City agrees to reasonably consider and approve interpretations and/or technical 


amendments to the provisions of this Agreement that are required by lenders for the acquisition 


and construction of the improvements on the Property or any refinancing thereof and to 


otherwise cooperate in good faith to facilitate Developer’s negotiations with lenders. 


ARTICLE 9. 


MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 


9.1. Limitation on Liability. 


Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Development Agreement, in 


no event shall any member, officer, agent or employee of City be personally liable for any breach 


of this Development Agreement by City or for any amount which may become due to Developer 


under the terms of this Development Agreement. 


9.2. Force Majeure. 


The Term of this Development Agreement and the Project Approvals and the time within 


which Developer shall be required to perform any act under this Development Agreement shall 


be extended by a period of time equal to the number of days during which performance of such 


act is delayed unavoidably and beyond the reasonable control of the Party seeking the delay by 


strikes, lock-outs and other labor difficulties, Acts of God, inclement weather, failure or inability 


to secure materials or labor by reason of priority or similar regulations or order of any 


governmental or regulatory body, changes in local, state or federal laws or regulations, any 


development moratorium or any action of other public agencies that regulate land use, 


development or the provision of services prevents, prohibits or delays construction of the Project, 


enemy action, civil disturbances, wars, terrorist acts, fire, unavoidable casualties, litigation 


involving this Agreement or the Project Approvals, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 


control of Developer which substantially interferes with carrying out the development of the 


Project.  Such extension(s) of time shall not constitute an Event of Default and shall occur at the 


request of any Party.  In addition, the Term of this Development Agreement and any subdivision 


map or any of the other Project Approvals shall not include any period of time during which (i) a 


development moratorium including, but not limited to, a water or sewer moratorium, is in effect; 


(ii) the actions of public agencies that regulate land use, development or the provision of services 


337 of 611







 
 


24 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


to the Property prevent, prohibit or delay either the construction, funding or development of the 


Project; or (iii) there is any mediation, arbitration, litigation or other administrative or judicial 


proceeding pending involving the Vested Elements, or Project Approvals.  The Term of the 


Project Approvals shall therefore be extended by the length of any development moratorium or 


similar action; the amount of time any actions of public agencies prevent, prohibit or delay the 


construction, funding or development of the Project; or the amount of time to finally resolve any 


mediation, arbitration, litigation or other administrative or judicial proceeding involving the 


Vested Elements, or Project Approvals.  Furthermore, in the event the issuance of a building 


permit for any part of the Project is delayed as a result of Developer’s inability to obtain any 


other required permit or approval, then the Term of this Development Agreement shall be 


extended by the period of any such delay. 


9.3. Notices, Demands and Communications Between the Parties. 


Formal written notices, demands, correspondence and communications between City and 


Developer shall be sufficiently given if delivered personally (including delivery by private 


courier), dispatched by certified mail, postage prepaid and return receipt requested, or delivered 


by nationally recognized overnight courier service, or by electronic facsimile transmission 


followed by delivery of a “hard” copy to the offices of City and Developer indicated below.  


Such written notices, demands, correspondence and communications may be sent in the same 


manner to such persons and addresses as either Party may from time-to-time designate in writing 


at least fifteen (15) days prior to the name and/or address change and as provided in this 


Section 9.3. 


City:    City of Pinole 


    2131 Pear Street 


    Pinole, CA 94564 


    Attn:  City Manager 


 


with copies to:   City of Pinole 


    2131 Pear Street 


    Pinole, CA 94564 


    Attn:  City Attorney 


 


Developer:   Baljit Dhaliwal 


    1068 Turquoise Drive 


    Hercules, CA 94547 


 


 


Notices personally delivered shall be deemed to have been received upon delivery.  


Notices delivered by certified mail, as provided above, shall be deemed to have been given and 


received on the first to occur of (i) actual receipt by any of the addresses designated above as the 


Party to whom notices are to be sent, or (ii) within five (5) days after a certified letter containing 


such notice, properly addressed, with postage prepaid, is deposited in the United States mail.  


Notices delivered by overnight courier service as provided above shall be deemed to have been 


received twenty-four (24) hours after the date of deposit.  Notices delivered by electronic 


338 of 611







 
 


25 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


facsimile transmission shall be deemed received upon receipt of sender of electronic 


confirmation of delivery, provided that a “hard” copy is delivered as provided above. 


9.4. Project as a Private Undertaking; No Joint Venture or Partnership.The Project 


constitutes private development, neither City nor Developer is acting as the agent 


of the other in any respect hereunder, and City and Developer are independent 


entities with respect to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Nothing 


contained in this Development Agreement or in any document executed in 


connection with this Development Agreement shall be construed as making City 


and Developer joint venturers or partners. 


9.5. Severability. 


If any terms or provision(s) of this Development Agreement or the application of any 


term(s)or provision(s) of this Development Agreement to a particular situation, is (are) held by a 


court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of this 


Development Agreement or the application of this Development Agreement to other situations, 


shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by mutual consent of the 


Parties.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if any material provision of this Development 


Agreement, or the application of such provision to a particular situation, is held to be invalid, 


void or unenforceable, Developer (in its sole and absolute discretion) may terminate this 


Development Agreement by providing written notice of such termination to City. 


9.6. Section Headings. 


Article and Section headings in this Development Agreement are for convenience only 


and are not intended to be used in interpreting or construing the terms, covenants or conditions of 


this Development Agreement. 


9.7. Construction of Agreement. 


This Development Agreement has been reviewed and revised by legal counsel for both 


Developer and City, and no presumption or rule that ambiguities shall be construed against the 


drafting Party shall apply to the interpretation or enforcement of this Development Agreement. 


9.8. Entire Agreement. 


This Development Agreement, including the Recitals, and exhibits attached hereto and 


incorporated by reference herein, together with the Project Approvals, constitutes the entire 


understanding and agreement of the Parties and supersedes all negotiations or previous 


agreements between the Parties with respect to all or any part of the subject matter hereof.  The 


exhibits and appendices are as follows: 


Exhibit A Legal Description of the Property 


Exhibit B Impact Fees 


Exhibit C Resale Restriction Agreement 


339 of 611







 
 


26 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


 


 


9.9. Estoppel Certificates. 


Either Party may, at any time during the Term of this Development Agreement, and from 


time to time, deliver written notice to the other Party requesting such Party to certify in writing 


that, to the knowledge of the certifying Party, (i) this Development Agreement is in full force and 


effect and a binding obligation of the Parties, (ii) this Development Agreement has not been 


amended or modified either orally or in writing, or if amended; identifying the amendments, 


(iii) the requesting Party is not in default in the performance of its obligations under this 


Development Agreement, or if in default, to describe therein the nature and amount of any such 


defaults, and (iv) any other information reasonably requested.  The Party receiving a request 


hereunder shall execute and return such certificate or give a written, detailed response explaining 


why it will not do so within twenty (20) days following the receipt thereof.  The failure of either 


Party to provide the requested certificate within such twenty (20) day period shall constitute a 


confirmation that this Agreement is in full force and effect and no modification or default exists.  


Either the City Manager or her designee shall have the right to execute any certificate requested 


by Developer hereunder.  City acknowledges that a certificate hereunder may be relied upon by 


transferees and Mortgagees. 


9.10. Recordation. 


Pursuant to California Government Code Section 65868.5, within ten (10) days after the 


later of the Parties’ execution of this Development Agreement or the Effective Date, the City 


Clerk shall record this Development Agreement with the Contra Costa County Recorder.  


Thereafter, if this Development Agreement is terminated, modified or amended, the City Clerk 


shall record notice of such action with the Contra Costa County Recorder. 


9.11. No Waiver. 


No delay or omission by either Party in exercising any right or power accruing upon 


noncompliance or failure to perform by the other Party under any of the provisions of this 


Development Agreement shall impair any such right or power or be construed to be a waiver 


thereof.  A waiver by either Party of any of the covenants or conditions to be performed by the 


other Party shall be in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the Party against 


whom enforcement of a waiver is sought, and any such waiver shall not be construed as a waiver 


of any succeeding breach or non-performance of the same or other covenants and conditions 


hereof. 


9.12. Time Is of the Essence. 


Time is of the essence for each provision of this Development Agreement for which time 


is an element. 


340 of 611







 
 


27 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


9.13. Applicable Law. 


This Development Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the 


laws of the State of California. 


9.14. Attorneys’ Fees. 


Should any legal action be brought by either Party because of a breach of this 


Development Agreement or to enforce any provision of this Development Agreement, the 


prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees and such other costs as may be 


found by the court. 


9.15. Third Party Beneficiaries. 


Except as otherwise provided herein, City and Developer hereby renounce the existence 


of any third party beneficiary to this Development Agreement and agree that nothing contained 


herein shall be construed as giving any other person or entity third party beneficiary status.   


9.16. Constructive Notice and Acceptance. 


Every person who now or hereafter owns or acquires any right, title or interest in or to 


any portion of the Property is and shall be conclusively deemed to have consented and agreed to 


every provision contained herein, whether or not any reference to this Development Agreement 


is contained in the instrument by which such person acquired an interest in the Property. 


9.17. Counterparts. 


This Development Agreement may be executed by each Party on a separate signature 


page, and when the executed signature pages are combined, shall constitute one single 


instrument. 


9.18. Authority. 


The persons signing below represent and warrant that they have the authority to bind their 


respective Party and that all necessary board of directors’, shareholders’, partners’, city councils’ 


or other approvals have been obtained. 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, City and Developer have executed this Development 


Agreement as of the date first set forth above. 


 


DEVELOPER: 


BAJIT DHALIWAL 


an individual 


341 of 611







 
 


28 Development Agreement 


Dhaliwal 
 


 


 


By: __________________________________ 


Name: Bajit Dhaliwal 


 


Title: __________________________________ 


 


 


 


CITY: 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 


a municipal corporation 


 


 


By: __________________________________ 


 


Name: __________________________________ 


 


Title: __________________________________ 


 


ATTESTATION: 


 


 


By: ________________________  


 City Clerk 


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


 


By: ________________________  


 Eric S. Casher 


 City Attorney 


 


 


SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED 


 


342 of 611







 


 


3598308.1   
 


 


EXHIBIT A 


 


LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


343 of 611







344 of 611







 
 
 
 


  


 


 


EXHIBIT B 


IMPACT FEES 


345 of 611







346 of 611







 
 
 
 


  


 


 


EXHIBIT C 


RESALE RESTRICTION 


 
  


347 of 611







 
 
 
 


  


 


 


 
 


3598308.1  


348 of 611







ATTACHMENT C


349 of 611







HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL   B
36 PM 16


19


18


SUBDIVISION   3319
MB 104  PG 40


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


LOT  1 LOT  2 LOT  3 LOT  4


AERIAL VIEW FRONT VIEW


CODE COMPLIANCE & BLDG DATA


1. PROPOSED 1,205 SF LIVING SPACE AT GROUND FLOOR & 1,025 SF AT SECOND FLOOR


SCOPE OF WORK


2. PROPOSED 2-CAR GARAGE WITH APPROX. AREA OF 434 SF.


3. PROPOSED 90 SF FRONT PATIO, 171 SF BACK PATIO


1068 TURQUOISE DR., HERCULES, CA


BALJIT DHALIWAL


OWNER


APN


6,001 SFPROPERTY AREA


402-013-060


ZONING R1- SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL


V - NTYPE CONSTRUCTION


R-1, U-1
OCCUPANCY GROUPS


6,000


F.A.R. 2,172


=  0.362


GARAGE AREA


434


FIRST FLOOR LEVEL 1,205


SECOND FLOOR LEVEL 1,025


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 1ST FLOOR LEVEL 261


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 2ND FLOOR LEVEL NA


GENERAL NOTES


A1.0


A1.2


COVER SHEET, AREA MAP/ PARCEL MAP & OTHER INFO


PLOT PLAN & PROFILE SECTION


A2.0


A3.0


A4.0


GROUND & SECOND FLOOR PLANS


ELEVATIONS


L1.0 CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN, FENCING PLAN


VICINITY MAP


LOCATION MAP


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


A1.0


G
E


N
E


R
A


L 
N


O
TE


S
,


VI
C


IN
IT


Y 
M


A
P


, I
N


FO
,


E
TC


.


LOT - 1


SF


SF


SF


SF


2016 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC 2016)


A1.1 OVERALL SITE PLAN


C1


C2


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


GRADING, DRAINAGE, & UTILITY PLAN


DRAWING INDEX


SECTIONS / ROOF PLAN


C3 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


A0.1 PERSPECTIVE (LOTS #1,2,3 & 4)


DHALI-BALI DEVELOPMENT
LOT #1 - MODEL #1


HAZEL ST., PINOLE, CA. 94564


A5.0
WINDOW VISIBILITY LOCATION PLANS (LOTS 1,2,3,4)


ATTACHMENT D


350 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS IN INFORMATION OR REQUIREMENTS  WITHIN THE DRAWINGS, WITHIN THE SPECIFICATIONS, OR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS  AND THE SPECIFICATIONS, THE MOST EXPENSIVE REQUIREMENT SHOWN OR SPECIFIED SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHOULD CONFLICTS OCCUR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS,  DRAWINGS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF DIMENSION OR QUANTITY; SPECIFICATIONS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF MATERIALS OR FINISHES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE EVENT CERTAIN FEATURES OF THE CONSTRUCTION ARE NOT FULLY SHOWN  ON THE DRAWINGS OR CALLED FOR IN THE NOTES OR SPECIFICATIONS, THEN THEIR  CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE OF THE SAME CHARACTER AS FOR SIMILAR CONDITIONS  THAT ARE SHOWN OR CALLED FOR.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN ON WORKING DRAWINGS.  DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2. %%UREADING THE PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL CONTRACTORS WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, AND FIRE CODES, AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT,  AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, OR THOSE ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA.  GOVERNING AUTHORITIES AND CODES TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER DRAWINGS  AND SPECIFICATIONS.  REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1. %%UCODES



AutoCAD SHX Text

VERIFY DIMENSIONS, GRADES, ELEVATIONS AND CRITICAL LOCATIONS, SUCH AS  STRUCTURAL SUPPORTS, BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AFFECTED BY THEM.  THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CIVIL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE FOLLOWING  INFORMATION:



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY REVIEW PLANS AND EXISTING SITE  CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND GRADING, VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND  CONTACT UTILITY COMPANIES AND AFFECTED CITY AGENCIES.  CONTACT  "UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT" PHONE: (800) 642-2444.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4) SITE DIMENSION AND SETBACKS



AutoCAD SHX Text

3) SIZES AND TYPE OF CURB AND GUTTERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

2) ALL SITE DRAINAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

1) FINISHED AND EXISTING GRADES



AutoCAD SHX Text

4. %%USITE WORK



AutoCAD SHX Text

3. %%UPRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR SAFETY ON OR ABOUT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND CODE, AND SHALL OBSERVE SAFETY PROVISIONS OF THE LATEST MANUAL OF ACCIDENT PREVENTION PUBLISHED BY THE ASSOCIATION OF GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXTERIOR OPENINGS OF THE WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS AS OUTLINED IN ALL LOCAL BUILDING CODES AND ORDINANCES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM ALL WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL.  THE APPROVED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS SHALL NOT BE CHANGED OR MODIFIED WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL PER SECTION 106 OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO THE ARCHITECT INCONSISTENCIES HE MAY DISCOVER.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY ERROR AFTER THE START OF CONSTRUCTION WHICH HAS NOT BEEN BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT.  THE MEANS OF CORRECTING ANY ERROR SHALL BE FIRST APPROVED BY THE OWNER.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH  MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION AND APPLICABLE ICBO REPORTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PERFORMING ALL WORK REQUIRED  FOR A COMPLETELY FINISHED PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WORK FURNISHED BY SUBCONTRACTORS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEITHER THE ARCHITECT, NOR THE ENGINEERS, NOR THE OWNER SHALL BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR:  CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCES, OR  PROCEDURES OF THE CONTRACTOR; SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS OF THE  CONTRACTOR; THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF CONTRACTOR; OR THE FAILURE OF  CONTRACTOR TO CARRY OUT THE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

H)



AutoCAD SHX Text

G)



AutoCAD SHX Text

F)



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5. %%UCONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO STRUCTURAL MEMBERS SHALL BE CUT TO ACCEPT PIPES, VENTS, DUCTS, ETC.,  EXCEPT AS DETAILED OR SPECIFIED HEREIN OR AS APPROVED BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER IN WRITING.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY PROJECT OFFICE, TELEPHONE, FAX MACHINE, SECURITY FENCE, WATER, POWER, AND TOILET FACILITIES.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH ALL APPROPRIATE AGENCIES.  CONTRACTOR'S FIELD OFFICE SHALL ALSO CONTAIN A CURRENT COPY OF GOVERNING BUILDING CODE(S).



AutoCAD SHX Text

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING  UTILITIES, WHETHER SHOWN HEREIN OR NOT, AND TO PROTECT THEM FROM DAMAGE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BEAR ALL THE EXPENSE FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF UTILITIES AND/OR OTHER PROPERTY DAMAGED BY OPERATIONS IN CONJUNCTIONS WITH THE EXECUTION OF WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

6. %%UJOB SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE SITE IN A CLEAN AND ORDERLY MANNER.  NO  RADIOS, ALCOHOL, OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ARE ALLOWED ON THE JOB SITE.  ALL DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM PREMISES, AND ALL AREAS SHALL BE LEFT IN A BROOM-CLEAN CONDITION ON A DAILY BASIS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETE SECURITY OF THE SITE  WHILE THE JOB IS IN PROGRESS AND UNTIL THE JOB IS COMPLETE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY APPROVED PLANS SHALL BE KEPT IN A PLAN BOX IN THE FIELD OFFICE AND SHALL NOT BE USED BY WORKERS.  ALL CONSTRUCTION SETS SHALL BE KEPT UP TO DATE, AND REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SETS SHALL REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO MAINTAIN, IN GOOD CONDITION, ONE COMPLETE SET OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS WITH ALL REVISIONS, ADDENDA, AND CHANGE ORDERS ON THE PREMISES AT ALL TIMES.  THESE ARE TO BE UNDER THE  CARE OF THE JOB SUPERINTENDENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE OR MAKE AVAILABLE A COMPLETE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (INCLUDING DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS)  TO EVERY SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING ANY PORTION OF THIS PROJECT.  THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE SEPARATED INTO DISCIPLINES (ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, ETC.), FOR PURPOSE OF SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUIRE BIDDING SUBCONTRACTOR TO REVIEW THE ENTIRE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS TO OBTAIN CLARITY ON THE COMPLETE SCOPE OF THEIR WORK AND REFER TO CROSS DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS FOR FULL COORDINATION OF WORK WITH OTHER TRADES, AND TO BE AWARE OF ALL WORK WHICH DOES NOT APPEAR WITHIN THE PARTICULAR DISCIPLINE'S DRAWINGS FOR THE PARTICULAR TRADE.  FURTHERMORE, THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE THAT EACH SUBCONTRACTOR WORKING ON THE PROJECT MAINTAINS A FULL SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIELD CONFIRMATION OF DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE RECORDED ON A REPRODUCIBLE  DOCUMENT AND IMMEDIATELY TRANSMITTED TO ARCHITECT FOR PROJECT RECORD,  COORDINATION, AND NECESSARY RESOLUTION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

7. %%UCOMMUNICATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST OWNER IN OBTAINING "CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY"  OR "OCCUPANCY PERMIT" AS NECESSARY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ONE SET OF EQUIPMENT OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS PER UNIT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF PROJECT, PRIOR TO REQUEST FOR FINAL PAYMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

8. %%UCOMPLETION



AutoCAD SHX Text

THESE NOTES ARE ARRANGED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING DIVISIONS AS A CONVENIENCE TO THE CONTRACTOR.  GENERAL NOTES ARE NOT LIMITED BY THEIR DIVISION HEADING AND APPLY AS NECESSARY THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


FRONT ELEVATIONS


AT STREET ELEVATION


AERIAL PERSPECTIVE
A0.1


PE
R


SP
EC


TI
V


E


NOTE:


THE DRAWINGS / PERSPECTIVE SHOWN HERE


ARE GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION ONLY &


NOT TO SCALE.


FOR ACTUAL SIZE OF LOT DEVELOPMENT, SEE


SHEET A.1


351 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)


PARCEL   B
AREA = 24,572 SF.


36 PM 16


N 4996.4253
E 5386.0234


N 4968.2376
E 5190.1768


N 4967.6270
E 5256.1212


N 4977.6265
E 5256.2138


N 4978.0870
E 5206.2487


N 5018.0871
E 5206.4097


6" SS 


2


34


5


6


7


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E)(E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


PARCEL   C
36 PM 1615' SEWER EASEMENT


3628 O.R. 38


SEWER EASEMENT
3628 O.R. 354'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


AREA = 10,688 SF.


S00°31'50"W
40.00'


NORTH


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY RECORDS TAKEN AS NORTH 00°31'50" EAST.
THE  MONUMENT LINE ALONG DUTRA COURT AS SHOWN ON TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
BASIS OF BEARINGS


0 10 20 30


SCALE   1" = 10'


1. PARCEL MAP  36 PM 16
REFERENCES


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS


3. TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
2. PARCEL MAP  23 PM 17


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-1


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


SHEET INDEX


SHEET NO SHEET CONTENT


C-1


C-2


TOPOGRAPHIC PLAN


GRADING AND
DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


ELECT ELECTRIC  BOX


TELEPHONETEL


FS FIRE SERVICE RISER


FIRE HYDRANTFH


WV WATER VALVE
WM WATER METER


TRAFFIC LIGHTTLGT


BOLLARDBLD


TRAFFIC CONTROL BOXTCB


UTILITY BOXUBX


PST POST


LP, LPST LIGHT POST


HANDICAPPEDHC


CATCH BASINCB


STREET SIGNSSN


PRCH PORCH


IRV IRRIGATION VALVE


PLANTERPLT


FACE OF SIDEWALKFW


YL YELLOW LINE (STRIPING)


BUILDING CORNER, BACK OF CURBBC


SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESSMH


FLOW LINEFL


SS SANITARY SEWER
STRIPINGSTR


AC   ASPHALT CONCRETE
AP   ANGLE POINT


FOUNDFND


FENCE CORNERFC
FENCEF


TREE & DIAMETER


WOOD


CONCRETE


WD


T-12"Ø


CC


RIGHT OF WAYROW
RAILROAD SPIKERRS


GROUNDG


CALC CALCULATED


EP EDGE OF PAVEMENT


CL CENTER LINE


san pablo ave


hazel ave.


80 FREEWAY


AP
PI


AN
 W


AY


PINON AVESITE


VICINITY PLAN


CITY OF PINOLE


NTS


NORTH


C-3 STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT PLAN


SHEET   1  OF  3


021918


352 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.92



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


PARCEL   A
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


PARCEL   4


PARCEL   3


PARCEL   2


PARCEL   1


PARCEL   C
36 PM 16


47.40' 47.40' 47.40' 47.61'


47.40'
47.40'


56.17'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


RESIDENCE #3


RESIDENCE #2


RESIDENCE #1


RESIDENCE #4


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


20' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY
20'CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4' (N) CONCRETE WALK


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


PORCHPORCH


PORCH


PORCH


DECK


DECK


DECK


DECK


5.00


5.00


6.40
5'


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


47.40'


38
'


6.40'


5'


20' 20' 20'
20'


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


END OF (E)
SIDEWALK BEGIN OF (N)


SIDEWALK


4' (N) CONC SIDEWALK (N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


(E) CURB & GUTTER


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E)(E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CURB & GUTTER


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


SS SS
SS SS SS


SS S


SS


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6569 SF


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


BEGIN OF (N)
CURB & GUTTER


37.83'


SSCO


65
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T.


SSCO


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


SSCO


(E) PP


SSCO


51
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


43
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


42
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


W W W W W W W


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


WM
1"FS


1"WS


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


WM
1"FS


1"WS


WM
1"fs


1"WS


WM
1" FS


1" WS


E


G


E


G


E


G
E


G


(TO BE REMOVE)


G G G G


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 30.00


FF 30.00


FC TO FC


( TO BE PIPE BY DEVELOPER )


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(TO BE REINFORCED)S


FF 27.85


FF 27.85


FF 28.85


FF 28.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


19.78'
TRANSITION


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


END OF (E)
AC PAVEMENT


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


6.40'


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


BEGIN (N) AC 
 PAVEMENT


DRAINAGE TRENCH
TO BE PIPE BY 
DEVELOPER


 ± 38' WIDE HAZEL STREET WITH 3"
THICK AC PAVEMENT WITH SUB BASE
AT 95% RC PER SOIL'S REPORT
RECOMMENDATION


(E) VENTILATION
PIPE ( TO BE RELOCATED)


(E) EBMUD


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


VERIFY LOCATION OF GAS LINE


6.17'
6'


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE
FF 27.00


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 29.00


(TO BE REMOVE)
(TO BE RELOCATED)


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


8.48'


47.34
SIDE


SETBACK


NO SIDEWALK
ON THIS SIDE


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


33
.2


0


23
.0


4


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
23


.3
2


31
.9


4


42
.1


6


50
.1


0
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


46
.4


7


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND :


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-2


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


GRADING PLAN


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


KLC CONSULTING ENGINEERS
ENGINEER


TEL  (510) 232-0300
11100 SAN PABLO AVENUE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530


FAX  (510) 232-0303


BALJIT DHALIWAL
OWNER / APPLICANT


1068 TORQUISE DRIVE, HERCULES, CA 94547


HAZEL STREET, PINOLE, CA
PROPERTY ADDRESS


402-013-060
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.


RESIDENTIAL
EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING


WEST COUNTY WASTE WATER DISTRICT
SANITARY SEWER


EAST BAY MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
WATER SERVICE


PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
GAS AND ELECTRIC


PINOLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIRE PROTECTION


PARCEL B ( 36 PM 16 )  A = 24,572 SF
TOTAL AREA TO BE DIVIDED


SHEET  2  OF  3


38'
PL PL


6' 6'


SECTION 
HAZEL STREET


SCALE  1"=10'


AC PAVEMENT


SUB BASE SHALL CONFORM TO SOIL'S
REPORT RECOMMENDATION AND
COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS


2%


& GUTTER
CONC. CURB


021918


353 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E)(E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


DMA #1 = 1863 SF


DMA #3 = 1861 SF


DMA #5 = 1836 SF


DMA #7 = 1858 SF


DMA #2 = 862 SF
DMA #4 = 602 SF


DMA #6 = 450 SF


DMA #8 = 680 SF


landscape landscape landscape landscape


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


C-3


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


STORM WATER


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


MANAGEMENT PLAN


SURFACE TYPE


IMPERVIOUS AREA CALCULATIONS


DMA #2 =  862 SF
DMA #1 = 1,863 SF


PARCEL 2  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #4 =  602 SF
DMA #3 = 1,861 SF


PARCEL 3  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #6 =  450 SF
DMA #5 = 1,836 SF


PARCEL 4  A = 6,568 SF


DMA #8 =  680 SF
DMA #7 = 1,858 SF


TOTAL LOT AREA = 24,572 ~ 0.564 AC. 


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


2,725 SF


2,462 SF


2,286 SF


2,538 SF


PARCEL 1  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #


SHEET  3  OF  3 


IMPERVIOUS AREA


NOTE


PARCEL 2, PARCEL 3 AND PARCEL 4 SHALL BE DIVERTED TO THEIR RESPECTIVE
ALL RUNOFF WATER COMING FROM THE ROOF AND DRIVEWAYS FOR PARCEL 1, 


LANDSCAPE AREAS AND OTHER PERVIOUS AREA LOCATION.


PERVIOUS AREA


3,276 SF


3,539 SF


3,715 SF


4,030 SF


354 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N
05°08'30"E


50.16'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL B
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


LOT #1


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


4' CONCRETE WALK


CONC CURB & GUTTER


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'
PROPERTY LINE 47.61'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


N
05°08'30"E


   127.01'


PROPERTY LINE 56.17'


LOT #2 LOT #3


LOT #4
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE NEW 2-STORY


RESIDENCE


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


A1.1


S
IT


E
 P


LA
N


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


355 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS TREE CONDITION



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILL BE UPDATED



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY THEE ARBORIST 



AutoCAD SHX Text

(E) TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO REMAIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPOSED LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

OF %%P4'-0" HIGH RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

(OWNERS OPTION - WOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

OR CONCRETE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







1


LOT - 1   PLOT PLAN


28


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE  S89°28'10"E 47.40'


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE   N89°28'10"W  47.40'


2
-


1
-


1


2


A1.2


P
LO


T 
P


LA
N


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


356 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:27.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:27.20



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) 2-STORY RESIDENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALKWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALKWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONCRETE OR



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOOD RET. WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'-2" HIGH MAX.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:27.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:27.20



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

GAZEBO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







3680


A2.0


FL
O


O
R


 P
LA


N
S


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


357 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

SETTEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

3680



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

6048 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EGRESS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING W/  ARCH TOP



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

WH



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

CU



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET BAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

154



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

51 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

57 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

TWO CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

458 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

DINING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

90 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATTIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

171 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

DW



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAMILY ROOM 



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

90 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640 SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

3648 SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3636SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3648SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6060 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4836 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

5050 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

1248 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

1248 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

416 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

65 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

65 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

382 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

134 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

139 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

136 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

15 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

290 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

100 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

97 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

62 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

PANTRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

UNDER STAIRS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A3.0


E
LE


VA
TI


O
N


S


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


358 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CULTURED STONE BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BORAL (OR EQUIVALENT)



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHARDONAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIGHT SIDE  ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATHROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

REAR ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TOFEE CRUNCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHESTNUT BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS 



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: COBBLESTONE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BOOTHBAY BLUE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARCADIA SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BARKWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SANTA FE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A4.0


S
E


C
TI


O
N


S
 / 


R
O


O
F


P
LA


N


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


359 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

UPPER ROOF PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM-3



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION A



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION B



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOSET



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A5.0


W
IN


D
O


W
 V


IS
IB


IL
IT


Y
P


R
IV


A
C


Y 
FR


O
M


N
E


IG
H


B
O


R
IN


G
 U


N
IT


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4
2ND FLOOR
PLAN


GROUND
FLOOR PLAN


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


360 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







28


LOT -1


CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN


1


28


FENCING PLAN


2


TYPICAL FENCE DETAIL


3 L.1


C
O


N
C


E
P


TU
A


L
LA


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 P


LA
N


.


LOT - 1


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


361 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEXICAN BEACH PEBBLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULTICOLORED COLEUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDY BLUE PLUMBAGO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SWEET WOODRUFF



AutoCAD SHX Text

CASCADES IN PLANTBOXES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEXICAN BEACH PEBBLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

REDWOOD RUBBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

REDWOOD RUBBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLAGSTONE OR PAVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERVIOUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMPED CONCRETE DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIVACY TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLUE SAPPHIRE CYPRES



AutoCAD SHX Text

(5'-0" DIA MAX EACH TREE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EXTREMELY DROUGHT TOLERANT &



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAST GROWING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT JAPANESE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOXWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

PALM TREE (CYCAS REVOLUTA) 4'-0" HT



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT LAVENDER



AutoCAD SHX Text

(LAVANDULA ANGUSTIFOLIA)



AutoCAD SHX Text

& MIXTURE OF SUCCULENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYPICAL WOODEN TERRACES



AutoCAD SHX Text

GAZEBO



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/2"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE
LOT #1


HAZEL ST.,


PINOLE, CA., 94564


362 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TOFEE CRUNCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARCADIA SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BARKWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CULTURED STONE BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BORAL (OR EQUIVALENT)



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHARDONAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SANTA FE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHESTNUT BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS 



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: COBBLESTONE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#1



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: WHITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BOOTHBAY BLUE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY STYROTRIM







HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL   B
36 PM 16


19


18


SUBDIVISION   3319
MB 104  PG 40


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


LOT  1 LOT  2 LOT  3 LOT  4


AERIAL VIEW FRONT VIEW


CODE COMPLIANCE & BLDG DATA


SCOPE OF WORK GENERAL NOTES


VICINITY MAP


LOCATION MAP


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


A1.0


G
E


N
E


R
A


L 
N


O
TE


S
,


VI
C


IN
IT


Y 
M


A
P


, I
N


FO
,


E
TC


.


LOT - 2


DRAWING INDEX


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


1. PROPOSED 1,205 SF LIVING SPACE AT GROUND FLOOR & 1,025 SF AT SECOND FLOOR


2. PROPOSED 2-CAR GARAGE WITH APPROX. AREA OF 461 SF.


3. PROPOSED 90 SF FRONT PATIO, 117 SF BACK PATIO


1068 TURQUOISE DR., HERCULES, CA


BALJIT DHALIWAL


OWNER


APN


6,001 SFPROPERTY AREA


402-013-060


ZONING R1- SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL


V - NTYPE CONSTRUCTION


R-1, U-1
OCCUPANCY GROUPS


6,001


F.A.R. 2,165


=  0.360


GARAGE AREA


461


FIRST FLOOR LEVEL 1,205


SECOND FLOOR LEVEL 1,025


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 1ST FLOOR LEVEL 207


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 2ND FLOOR LEVEL NA


SF


SF


SF


SF


2016 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC 2016)


L
O


T
 
#
2


DHALI-BALI DEVELOPMENT
LOT #2 - MODEL #2


HAZEL ST., PINOLE, CA. 94564


A1.0


A1.2


COVER SHEET, AREA MAP/ PARCEL MAP & OTHER INFO


PLOT PLAN & PROFILE SECTION


A2.0


A3.0


A4.0


GROUND & SECOND FLOOR PLANS


ELEVATIONS


L1.0 CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN, FENCING PLAN


A1.1 OVERALL SITE PLAN


C1


C2


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


GRADING, DRAINAGE, & UTILITY PLAN


SECTIONS / ROOF PLAN


C3 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN


A0.1 PERSPECTIVE (LOTS #1,2,3 & 4)


A5.0
WINDOW VISIBILITY LOCATION PLANS (LOTS 1,2,3,4)


ATTACHMENT E


363 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS IN INFORMATION OR REQUIREMENTS  WITHIN THE DRAWINGS, WITHIN THE SPECIFICATIONS, OR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS  AND THE SPECIFICATIONS, THE MOST EXPENSIVE REQUIREMENT SHOWN OR SPECIFIED SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHOULD CONFLICTS OCCUR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS,  DRAWINGS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF DIMENSION OR QUANTITY; SPECIFICATIONS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF MATERIALS OR FINISHES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE EVENT CERTAIN FEATURES OF THE CONSTRUCTION ARE NOT FULLY SHOWN  ON THE DRAWINGS OR CALLED FOR IN THE NOTES OR SPECIFICATIONS, THEN THEIR  CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE OF THE SAME CHARACTER AS FOR SIMILAR CONDITIONS  THAT ARE SHOWN OR CALLED FOR.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN ON WORKING DRAWINGS.  DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2. %%UREADING THE PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL CONTRACTORS WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, AND FIRE CODES, AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT,  AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, OR THOSE ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA.  GOVERNING AUTHORITIES AND CODES TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER DRAWINGS  AND SPECIFICATIONS.  REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1. %%UCODES



AutoCAD SHX Text

VERIFY DIMENSIONS, GRADES, ELEVATIONS AND CRITICAL LOCATIONS, SUCH AS  STRUCTURAL SUPPORTS, BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AFFECTED BY THEM.  THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CIVIL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE FOLLOWING  INFORMATION:



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY REVIEW PLANS AND EXISTING SITE  CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND GRADING, VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND  CONTACT UTILITY COMPANIES AND AFFECTED CITY AGENCIES.  CONTACT  "UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT" PHONE: (800) 642-2444.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4) SITE DIMENSION AND SETBACKS



AutoCAD SHX Text

3) SIZES AND TYPE OF CURB AND GUTTERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

2) ALL SITE DRAINAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

1) FINISHED AND EXISTING GRADES



AutoCAD SHX Text

4. %%USITE WORK



AutoCAD SHX Text

3. %%UPRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR SAFETY ON OR ABOUT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND CODE, AND SHALL OBSERVE SAFETY PROVISIONS OF THE LATEST MANUAL OF ACCIDENT PREVENTION PUBLISHED BY THE ASSOCIATION OF GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXTERIOR OPENINGS OF THE WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS AS OUTLINED IN ALL LOCAL BUILDING CODES AND ORDINANCES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM ALL WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL.  THE APPROVED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS SHALL NOT BE CHANGED OR MODIFIED WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL PER SECTION 106 OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO THE ARCHITECT INCONSISTENCIES HE MAY DISCOVER.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY ERROR AFTER THE START OF CONSTRUCTION WHICH HAS NOT BEEN BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT.  THE MEANS OF CORRECTING ANY ERROR SHALL BE FIRST APPROVED BY THE OWNER.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH  MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION AND APPLICABLE ICBO REPORTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PERFORMING ALL WORK REQUIRED  FOR A COMPLETELY FINISHED PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WORK FURNISHED BY SUBCONTRACTORS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEITHER THE ARCHITECT, NOR THE ENGINEERS, NOR THE OWNER SHALL BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR:  CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCES, OR  PROCEDURES OF THE CONTRACTOR; SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS OF THE  CONTRACTOR; THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF CONTRACTOR; OR THE FAILURE OF  CONTRACTOR TO CARRY OUT THE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

H)



AutoCAD SHX Text

G)



AutoCAD SHX Text

F)



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5. %%UCONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO STRUCTURAL MEMBERS SHALL BE CUT TO ACCEPT PIPES, VENTS, DUCTS, ETC.,  EXCEPT AS DETAILED OR SPECIFIED HEREIN OR AS APPROVED BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER IN WRITING.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY PROJECT OFFICE, TELEPHONE, FAX MACHINE, SECURITY FENCE, WATER, POWER, AND TOILET FACILITIES.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH ALL APPROPRIATE AGENCIES.  CONTRACTOR'S FIELD OFFICE SHALL ALSO CONTAIN A CURRENT COPY OF GOVERNING BUILDING CODE(S).



AutoCAD SHX Text

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING  UTILITIES, WHETHER SHOWN HEREIN OR NOT, AND TO PROTECT THEM FROM DAMAGE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BEAR ALL THE EXPENSE FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF UTILITIES AND/OR OTHER PROPERTY DAMAGED BY OPERATIONS IN CONJUNCTIONS WITH THE EXECUTION OF WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

6. %%UJOB SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE SITE IN A CLEAN AND ORDERLY MANNER.  NO  RADIOS, ALCOHOL, OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ARE ALLOWED ON THE JOB SITE.  ALL DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM PREMISES, AND ALL AREAS SHALL BE LEFT IN A BROOM-CLEAN CONDITION ON A DAILY BASIS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETE SECURITY OF THE SITE  WHILE THE JOB IS IN PROGRESS AND UNTIL THE JOB IS COMPLETE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY APPROVED PLANS SHALL BE KEPT IN A PLAN BOX IN THE FIELD OFFICE AND SHALL NOT BE USED BY WORKERS.  ALL CONSTRUCTION SETS SHALL BE KEPT UP TO DATE, AND REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SETS SHALL REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO MAINTAIN, IN GOOD CONDITION, ONE COMPLETE SET OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS WITH ALL REVISIONS, ADDENDA, AND CHANGE ORDERS ON THE PREMISES AT ALL TIMES.  THESE ARE TO BE UNDER THE  CARE OF THE JOB SUPERINTENDENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE OR MAKE AVAILABLE A COMPLETE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (INCLUDING DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS)  TO EVERY SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING ANY PORTION OF THIS PROJECT.  THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE SEPARATED INTO DISCIPLINES (ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, ETC.), FOR PURPOSE OF SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUIRE BIDDING SUBCONTRACTOR TO REVIEW THE ENTIRE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS TO OBTAIN CLARITY ON THE COMPLETE SCOPE OF THEIR WORK AND REFER TO CROSS DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS FOR FULL COORDINATION OF WORK WITH OTHER TRADES, AND TO BE AWARE OF ALL WORK WHICH DOES NOT APPEAR WITHIN THE PARTICULAR DISCIPLINE'S DRAWINGS FOR THE PARTICULAR TRADE.  FURTHERMORE, THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE THAT EACH SUBCONTRACTOR WORKING ON THE PROJECT MAINTAINS A FULL SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIELD CONFIRMATION OF DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE RECORDED ON A REPRODUCIBLE  DOCUMENT AND IMMEDIATELY TRANSMITTED TO ARCHITECT FOR PROJECT RECORD,  COORDINATION, AND NECESSARY RESOLUTION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

7. %%UCOMMUNICATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST OWNER IN OBTAINING "CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY"  OR "OCCUPANCY PERMIT" AS NECESSARY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ONE SET OF EQUIPMENT OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS PER UNIT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF PROJECT, PRIOR TO REQUEST FOR FINAL PAYMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

8. %%UCOMPLETION



AutoCAD SHX Text

THESE NOTES ARE ARRANGED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING DIVISIONS AS A CONVENIENCE TO THE CONTRACTOR.  GENERAL NOTES ARE NOT LIMITED BY THEIR DIVISION HEADING AND APPLY AS NECESSARY THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


FRONT ELEVATIONS


AT STREET ELEVATION


AERIAL PERSPECTIVE
A0.1


PE
R


SP
EC


TI
V


E


NOTE:


THE DRAWINGS / PERSPECTIVE SHOWN HERE


ARE GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION ONLY &


NOT TO SCALE.


FOR ACTUAL SIZE OF LOT DEVELOPMENT, SEE


SHEET A.1


364 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)


PARCEL   B
AREA = 24,572 SF.


36 PM 16


N 4996.4253
E 5386.0234


N 4968.2376
E 5190.1768


N 4967.6270
E 5256.1212


N 4977.6265
E 5256.2138


N 4978.0870
E 5206.2487


N 5018.0871
E 5206.4097


6" SS 


2


34


5


6


7


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E)(E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


PARCEL   C
36 PM 1615' SEWER EASEMENT


3628 O.R. 38


SEWER EASEMENT
3628 O.R. 354'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


AREA = 10,688 SF.


S00°31'50"W
40.00'


NORTH


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY RECORDS TAKEN AS NORTH 00°31'50" EAST.
THE  MONUMENT LINE ALONG DUTRA COURT AS SHOWN ON TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
BASIS OF BEARINGS


0 10 20 30


SCALE   1" = 10'


1. PARCEL MAP  36 PM 16
REFERENCES


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS


3. TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
2. PARCEL MAP  23 PM 17


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-1


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


SHEET INDEX


SHEET NO SHEET CONTENT


C-1


C-2


TOPOGRAPHIC PLAN


GRADING AND
DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


ELECT ELECTRIC  BOX


TELEPHONETEL


FS FIRE SERVICE RISER


FIRE HYDRANTFH


WV WATER VALVE
WM WATER METER


TRAFFIC LIGHTTLGT


BOLLARDBLD


TRAFFIC CONTROL BOXTCB


UTILITY BOXUBX


PST POST


LP, LPST LIGHT POST


HANDICAPPEDHC


CATCH BASINCB


STREET SIGNSSN


PRCH PORCH


IRV IRRIGATION VALVE


PLANTERPLT


FACE OF SIDEWALKFW


YL YELLOW LINE (STRIPING)


BUILDING CORNER, BACK OF CURBBC


SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESSMH


FLOW LINEFL


SS SANITARY SEWER
STRIPINGSTR


AC   ASPHALT CONCRETE
AP   ANGLE POINT


FOUNDFND


FENCE CORNERFC
FENCEF


TREE & DIAMETER


WOOD


CONCRETE


WD


T-12"Ø


CC


RIGHT OF WAYROW
RAILROAD SPIKERRS


GROUNDG


CALC CALCULATED


EP EDGE OF PAVEMENT


CL CENTER LINE


san pablo ave


hazel ave.


80 FREEWAY


AP
PI


AN
 W


AY


PINON AVESITE


VICINITY PLAN


CITY OF PINOLE


NTS


NORTH


C-3 STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT PLAN


SHEET   1  OF  3


021918


365 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.92



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


PARCEL   A
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


PARCEL   4


PARCEL   3


PARCEL   2


PARCEL   1


PARCEL   C
36 PM 16


47.40' 47.40' 47.40' 47.61'


47.40'
47.40'


56.17'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


RESIDENCE #3


RESIDENCE #2


RESIDENCE #1


RESIDENCE #4


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


20' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY
20'CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4' (N) CONCRETE WALK


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


PORCHPORCH


PORCH


PORCH


DECK


DECK


DECK


DECK


5.00


5.00


6.40
5'


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


47.40'


38
'


6.40'


5'


20' 20' 20'
20'


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


END OF (E)
SIDEWALK BEGIN OF (N)


SIDEWALK


4' (N) CONC SIDEWALK (N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


(E) CURB & GUTTER


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CURB & GUTTER


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


SS SS
SS SS SS


SS S


SS


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6569 SF


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


BEGIN OF (N)
CURB & GUTTER


37.83'


SSCO


65
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T.


SSCO


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


SSCO


(E) PP


SSCO


51
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


43
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


42
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


W W W W W W W


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


WM
1"FS


1"WS


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


WM
1"FS


1"WS


WM
1"fs


1"WS


WM
1" FS


1" WS


E


G


E


G


E


G
E


G


(TO BE REMOVE)


G G G G


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 30.00


FF 30.00


FC TO FC


( TO BE PIPE BY DEVELOPER )


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(TO BE REINFORCED)S


FF 27.85


FF 27.85


FF 28.85


FF 28.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


19.78'
TRANSITION


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


END OF (E)
AC PAVEMENT


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


6.40'


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


BEGIN (N) AC 
 PAVEMENT


DRAINAGE TRENCH
TO BE PIPE BY 
DEVELOPER


 ± 38' WIDE HAZEL STREET WITH 3"
THICK AC PAVEMENT WITH SUB BASE
AT 95% RC PER SOIL'S REPORT
RECOMMENDATION


(E) VENTILATION
PIPE ( TO BE RELOCATED)


(E) EBMUD


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


VERIFY LOCATION OF GAS LINE


6.17'
6'


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE
FF 27.00


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 29.00


(TO BE REMOVE)
(TO BE RELOCATED)


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


8.48'


47.34
SIDE


SETBACK


NO SIDEWALK
ON THIS SIDE


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


33
.2


0


23
.0


4


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
23


.3
2


31
.9


4


42
.1


6


50
.1


0
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


46
.4


7


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND :


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-2


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


GRADING PLAN


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


KLC CONSULTING ENGINEERS
ENGINEER


TEL  (510) 232-0300
11100 SAN PABLO AVENUE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530


FAX  (510) 232-0303


BALJIT DHALIWAL
OWNER / APPLICANT


1068 TORQUISE DRIVE, HERCULES, CA 94547


HAZEL STREET, PINOLE, CA
PROPERTY ADDRESS


402-013-060
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.


RESIDENTIAL
EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING


WEST COUNTY WASTE WATER DISTRICT
SANITARY SEWER


EAST BAY MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
WATER SERVICE


PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
GAS AND ELECTRIC


PINOLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIRE PROTECTION


PARCEL B ( 36 PM 16 )  A = 24,572 SF
TOTAL AREA TO BE DIVIDED


SHEET  2  OF  3


38'
PL PL


6' 6'


SECTION 
HAZEL STREET


SCALE  1"=10'


AC PAVEMENT


SUB BASE SHALL CONFORM TO SOIL'S
REPORT RECOMMENDATION AND
COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS


2%


& GUTTER
CONC. CURB


021918


366 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


DMA #1 = 1863 SF


DMA #3 = 1861 SF


DMA #5 = 1836 SF


DMA #7 = 1858 SF


DMA #2 = 862 SF
DMA #4 = 602 SF


DMA #6 = 450 SF


DMA #8 = 680 SF


landscape landscape landscape landscape


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


C-3


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


STORM WATER


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


MANAGEMENT PLAN


SURFACE TYPE


IMPERVIOUS AREA CALCULATIONS


DMA #2 =  862 SF
DMA #1 = 1,863 SF


PARCEL 2  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #4 =  602 SF
DMA #3 = 1,861 SF


PARCEL 3  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #6 =  450 SF
DMA #5 = 1,836 SF


PARCEL 4  A = 6,568 SF


DMA #8 =  680 SF
DMA #7 = 1,858 SF


TOTAL LOT AREA = 24,572 ~ 0.564 AC. 


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


2,725 SF


2,462 SF


2,286 SF


2,538 SF


PARCEL 1  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #


SHEET  3  OF  3 


IMPERVIOUS AREA


NOTE


PARCEL 2, PARCEL 3 AND PARCEL 4 SHALL BE DIVERTED TO THEIR RESPECTIVE
ALL RUNOFF WATER COMING FROM THE ROOF AND DRIVEWAYS FOR PARCEL 1, 


LANDSCAPE AREAS AND OTHER PERVIOUS AREA LOCATION.


PERVIOUS AREA


3,276 SF


3,539 SF


3,715 SF


4,030 SF


367 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N
05°08'30"E


50.16'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL B
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


LOT #1


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


4' CONCRETE WALK


CONC CURB & GUTTER


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'
PROPERTY LINE 47.61'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


N
05°08'30"E


   127.01' 


PROPERTY LINE 56.17'


LOT #2 LOT #3


LOT #4
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE NEW 2-STORY


RESIDENCE


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


A1.1


S
IT


E
 P


LA
N


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2


368 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

(E) TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO REMAIN



AutoCAD SHX Text

THIS TREE CONDITION



AutoCAD SHX Text

WILL BE UPDATED BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARBORIST



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) RETAINING WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) RETAINING WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4'-4" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

%%P3'-10" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







1


LOT - 2   PLOT PLAN


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE  S89°28'10"E 47.40'


2
-


1
-


A1.2


P
LO


T 
P


LA
N


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2


369 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) 2-STORY RESIDENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

24'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:28.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

EL=28.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

EL=30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

EL=%%P34.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINE EDGE OF LOT#2 RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO EDGE OF LOT#3 RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







3680


A2.0


FL
O


O
R


 P
LA


N
S


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2


370 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

SETTEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4030



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

3680



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

6048 SL (EGRESS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2030 SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING W/  ARCH TOP



AutoCAD SHX Text

W



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

WH



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

CU



AutoCAD SHX Text

2030



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET BAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

153 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

50 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

50 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

TWO CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

461 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

DINING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

90 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATTIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

117 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

DW



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAMILY ROOM 



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

90 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4848



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6080 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

65 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

380 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAIRWELL



AutoCAD SHX Text

63 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

408 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL (EGRESS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

2436



AutoCAD SHX Text

SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EGRESS)



AutoCAD SHX Text

SH



AutoCAD SHX Text

6048



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6048



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3636SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

3648SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

5448



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

5448



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

139 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

134 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

137 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

61 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

103 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

95 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

287  SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

15 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

PANTRY UNDER STAIRS



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A3.0


E
LE


VA
TI


O
N


S


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2


371 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: WHITE CLAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRICK VENEER PANEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TERRA COTTA/ RED



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: ARABIAN SANDS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CASTLE PATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SANDSTONE COVE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

(PELLA CARRIAGE SERIES)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIGHT SIDE  ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIN GR LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

REAR ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

"RUSTIC STYLE"



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARCADIA SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BARKWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: OFF WHITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A4.0


S
E


C
TI


O
N


S
 &


 R
O


O
F


P
LA


N
M


R.
 B


A
LJ


IT
 D


H
A


LI
W


A
L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2


372 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

UPPER ROOF PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM-3



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION A



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION B



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOSET



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A5.0


W
IN


D
O


W
 V


IS
IB


IL
IT


Y
P


R
IV


A
C


Y 
FR


O
M


N
E


IG
H


B
O


R
IN


G
 U


N
IT


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4
2ND FLOOR
PLAN


GROUND
FLOOR PLAN


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


373 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


FENCING PLAN


2


TYPICAL FENCE DETAIL


3 L.1


C
O


N
C


E
P


TU
A


L
LA


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 P


LA
N


.
M


R.
 B


A
LJ


IT
 D


H
A


LI
W


A
L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 2


374 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULTICOLORED COLEUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDY BLUE PLUMBAGO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SWEET WOODRUFF



AutoCAD SHX Text

CASCADES IN PLANTBOXES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEXICAN BEACH PEBBLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

REDWOOD RUBBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLAGSTONE OR PAVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERVIOUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMPED CONCRETE DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIVACY TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLUE SAPPHIRE CYPRES



AutoCAD SHX Text

(5'-0" DIA MAX EACH TREE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT JAPANESE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOXWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT LAVENDER



AutoCAD SHX Text

(LAVANDULA ANGUSTIFOLIA)



AutoCAD SHX Text

& MIXTURE OF SUCCULENTS



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

FP



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PALM TREE (CYCAS REVOLUTA) 4'-0" HT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EXTREMELY DROUGHT TOLERANT & FAST GROWING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/2"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE
LOT #2


HAZEL ST.,


PINOLE, CA., 94564


375 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRICK VENEER PANEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TERRA COTTA/ RED



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN. LEVEL 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TRABUCO



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: KHAKI BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: EVENING BLUE



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

(PELLA CARRIAGE SERIES)



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

"RUSTIC STYLE"



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CHARCOAL BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SANDSTORM



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARCADIA SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2







HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL   B
36 PM 16


19


18


SUBDIVISION   3319
MB 104  PG 40


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


LOT  1 LOT  2 LOT  3 LOT  4


AERIAL VIEW FRONT VIEW


CODE COMPLIANCE & BLDG DATA


SCOPE OF WORK GENERAL NOTES


VICINITY MAP


LOCATION MAP


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


SITE


HAZEL ST., PINOLE,


CA. 94564


A1.0


G
E


N
E


R
A


L 
N


O
TE


S
,


VI
C


IN
IT


Y 
M


A
P


, I
N


FO
,


E
TC


.


LOT - 3


DRAWING INDEX


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


2016 CALIFORNIA RESIDENTIAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ENERGY CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC CODE


2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE (CBC 2016)


1. PROPOSED 1,206 SF LIVING SPACE AT GROUND FLOOR & 1,064 SF AT SECOND FLOOR


2. PROPOSED 2-CAR GARAGE WITH APPROX. AREA OF 434 SF.


3. PROPOSED 87 SF FRONT PATIO, 171 SF BACK PATIO & 39 SF UPPER BALCONY


1068 TURQUOISE DR., HERCULES, CA


BALJIT DHALIWAL


OWNER


APN


6,001 SFPROPERTY AREA


402-013-060


ZONING R1- SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL


V - NTYPE CONSTRUCTION


R-1, U-1
OCCUPANCY GROUPS


6,001


F.A.R. 2,214


=  0.369


GARAGE AREA


434


FIRST FLOOR LEVEL 1,206


SECOND FLOOR LEVEL 1,064


PORCHES & BALCONIES- 1ST FLOOR LEVEL 258


LOOKOUT AREA - 2ND FLOOR LEVEL 39


SF


SF


SF


SF


SF


LO
T 


#
3


DHALI-BALI DEVELOPMENT
LOT #3 - MODEL #3


HAZEL ST., PINOLE, CA. 94564


A1.0


A1.2


COVER SHEET, AREA MAP/ PARCEL MAP & OTHER INFO


PLOT PLAN & PROFILE SECTION


A2.0


A3.0


A4.0


GROUND & SECOND FLOOR PLANS


ELEVATIONS


L1.0 CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN, FENCING PLAN


A1.1 OVERALL SITE PLAN


C1


C2


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


GRADING, DRAINAGE, & UTILITY PLAN


SECTIONS / ROOF PLAN


C3 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT PLAN


A0.1 PERSPECTIVE (LOTS #1,2,3 & 4)


A5.0
WINDOW VISIBILITY LOCATION PLANS (LOTS 1, 2, 3, 4)


ATTACHMENT F


376 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN CASE OF DISCREPANCIES OR CONFLICTS IN INFORMATION OR REQUIREMENTS  WITHIN THE DRAWINGS, WITHIN THE SPECIFICATIONS, OR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS  AND THE SPECIFICATIONS, THE MOST EXPENSIVE REQUIREMENT SHOWN OR SPECIFIED SHALL BE THE BASIS OF THE CONTRACT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHOULD CONFLICTS OCCUR BETWEEN THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS,  DRAWINGS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF DIMENSION OR QUANTITY; SPECIFICATIONS SHALL GOVERN IN MATTERS OF MATERIALS OR FINISHES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

IN THE EVENT CERTAIN FEATURES OF THE CONSTRUCTION ARE NOT FULLY SHOWN  ON THE DRAWINGS OR CALLED FOR IN THE NOTES OR SPECIFICATIONS, THEN THEIR  CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE OF THE SAME CHARACTER AS FOR SIMILAR CONDITIONS  THAT ARE SHOWN OR CALLED FOR.



AutoCAD SHX Text

DIMENSIONS SHALL GOVERN ON WORKING DRAWINGS.  DO NOT SCALE DRAWINGS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

2. %%UREADING THE PLANS



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL CONTRACTORS WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE 2016 CALIFORNIA BUILDING, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, AND FIRE CODES, AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT,  AND ALL OTHER APPLICABLE CODES, OR THOSE ADOPTED BY THE CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA.  GOVERNING AUTHORITIES AND CODES TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER DRAWINGS  AND SPECIFICATIONS.  REPORT DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

1. %%UCODES



AutoCAD SHX Text

VERIFY DIMENSIONS, GRADES, ELEVATIONS AND CRITICAL LOCATIONS, SUCH AS  STRUCTURAL SUPPORTS, BEFORE COMMENCING WORK AFFECTED BY THEM.  THE  CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE ARCHITECT IMMEDIATELY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CIVIL ENGINEER IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING THE FOLLOWING  INFORMATION:



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL THOROUGHLY REVIEW PLANS AND EXISTING SITE  CONDITIONS AND NOTIFY ARCHITECT OF ANY DISCREPANCIES, ERRORS OR OMISSIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND GRADING, VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND  CONTACT UTILITY COMPANIES AND AFFECTED CITY AGENCIES.  CONTACT  "UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT" PHONE: (800) 642-2444.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

4) SITE DIMENSION AND SETBACKS



AutoCAD SHX Text

3) SIZES AND TYPE OF CURB AND GUTTERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

2) ALL SITE DRAINAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

1) FINISHED AND EXISTING GRADES



AutoCAD SHX Text

4. %%USITE WORK



AutoCAD SHX Text

3. %%UPRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSUME SOLE RESPONSIBILITY FOR SAFETY ON OR ABOUT THE CONSTRUCTION SITE IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND CODE, AND SHALL OBSERVE SAFETY PROVISIONS OF THE LATEST MANUAL OF ACCIDENT PREVENTION PUBLISHED BY THE ASSOCIATION OF GENERAL CONTRACTORS OF AMERICA.



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXTERIOR OPENINGS OF THE WORK SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL SECURITY  REQUIREMENTS AS OUTLINED IN ALL LOCAL BUILDING CODES AND ORDINANCES.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM ALL WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS APPROVED BY THE BUILDING OFFICIAL.  THE APPROVED PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS SHALL NOT BE CHANGED OR MODIFIED WITHOUT THE APPROVAL OF THE BUILDING OFFICIAL PER SECTION 106 OF THE CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPORT TO THE ARCHITECT INCONSISTENCIES HE MAY DISCOVER.  THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR CORRECTING ANY ERROR AFTER THE START OF CONSTRUCTION WHICH HAS NOT BEEN BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION OF THE ARCHITECT.  THE MEANS OF CORRECTING ANY ERROR SHALL BE FIRST APPROVED BY THE OWNER.



AutoCAD SHX Text

INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND PRODUCTS IN STRICT ACCORDANCE WITH  MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION AND APPLICABLE ICBO REPORTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PERFORMING ALL WORK REQUIRED  FOR A COMPLETELY FINISHED PROJECT.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL WORK FURNISHED BY SUBCONTRACTORS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

NEITHER THE ARCHITECT, NOR THE ENGINEERS, NOR THE OWNER SHALL BE  RESPONSIBLE FOR:  CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS, TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCES, OR  PROCEDURES OF THE CONTRACTOR; SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS OF THE  CONTRACTOR; THE ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF CONTRACTOR; OR THE FAILURE OF  CONTRACTOR TO CARRY OUT THE WORK IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONTRACT  DOCUMENTS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

H)



AutoCAD SHX Text

G)



AutoCAD SHX Text

F)



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

5. %%UCONSTRUCTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

NO STRUCTURAL MEMBERS SHALL BE CUT TO ACCEPT PIPES, VENTS, DUCTS, ETC.,  EXCEPT AS DETAILED OR SPECIFIED HEREIN OR AS APPROVED BY THE STRUCTURAL ENGINEER IN WRITING.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY PROJECT OFFICE, TELEPHONE, FAX MACHINE, SECURITY FENCE, WATER, POWER, AND TOILET FACILITIES.  COORDINATE LOCATIONS WITH ALL APPROPRIATE AGENCIES.  CONTRACTOR'S FIELD OFFICE SHALL ALSO CONTAIN A CURRENT COPY OF GOVERNING BUILDING CODE(S).



AutoCAD SHX Text

IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR TO LOCATE ALL EXISTING  UTILITIES, WHETHER SHOWN HEREIN OR NOT, AND TO PROTECT THEM FROM DAMAGE.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BEAR ALL THE EXPENSE FOR REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF UTILITIES AND/OR OTHER PROPERTY DAMAGED BY OPERATIONS IN CONJUNCTIONS WITH THE EXECUTION OF WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

6. %%UJOB SITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN THE SITE IN A CLEAN AND ORDERLY MANNER.  NO  RADIOS, ALCOHOL, OR CONTROLLED SUBSTANCES ARE ALLOWED ON THE JOB SITE.  ALL DEBRIS SHALL BE REMOVED FROM PREMISES, AND ALL AREAS SHALL BE LEFT IN A BROOM-CLEAN CONDITION ON A DAILY BASIS.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE COMPLETE SECURITY OF THE SITE  WHILE THE JOB IS IN PROGRESS AND UNTIL THE JOB IS COMPLETE.



AutoCAD SHX Text

CITY APPROVED PLANS SHALL BE KEPT IN A PLAN BOX IN THE FIELD OFFICE AND SHALL NOT BE USED BY WORKERS.  ALL CONSTRUCTION SETS SHALL BE KEPT UP TO DATE, AND REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SETS SHALL REFLECT THE SAME INFORMATION.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ALSO MAINTAIN, IN GOOD CONDITION, ONE COMPLETE SET OF PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS WITH ALL REVISIONS, ADDENDA, AND CHANGE ORDERS ON THE PREMISES AT ALL TIMES.  THESE ARE TO BE UNDER THE  CARE OF THE JOB SUPERINTENDENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

E)



AutoCAD SHX Text

D)



AutoCAD SHX Text

C)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE OR MAKE AVAILABLE A COMPLETE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS (INCLUDING DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS)  TO EVERY SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING ANY PORTION OF THIS PROJECT.  THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS SHALL NOT BE SEPARATED INTO DISCIPLINES (ARCHITECTURAL, MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, ETC.), FOR PURPOSE OF SUBCONTRACTOR BIDDING.  THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL REQUIRE BIDDING SUBCONTRACTOR TO REVIEW THE ENTIRE SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS TO OBTAIN CLARITY ON THE COMPLETE SCOPE OF THEIR WORK AND REFER TO CROSS DISCIPLINE DRAWINGS FOR FULL COORDINATION OF WORK WITH OTHER TRADES, AND TO BE AWARE OF ALL WORK WHICH DOES NOT APPEAR WITHIN THE PARTICULAR DISCIPLINE'S DRAWINGS FOR THE PARTICULAR TRADE.  FURTHERMORE, THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL INSURE THAT EACH SUBCONTRACTOR WORKING ON THE PROJECT MAINTAINS A FULL SET OF CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS THROUGHOUT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIELD CONFIRMATION OF DISCREPANCIES SHALL BE RECORDED ON A REPRODUCIBLE  DOCUMENT AND IMMEDIATELY TRANSMITTED TO ARCHITECT FOR PROJECT RECORD,  COORDINATION, AND NECESSARY RESOLUTION PRIOR TO CONTINUING WORK.



AutoCAD SHX Text

7. %%UCOMMUNICATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONTRACTOR SHALL ASSIST OWNER IN OBTAINING "CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY"  OR "OCCUPANCY PERMIT" AS NECESSARY.



AutoCAD SHX Text

ONE SET OF EQUIPMENT OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS PER UNIT SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO OWNER UPON COMPLETION OF PROJECT, PRIOR TO REQUEST FOR FINAL PAYMENT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

B)



AutoCAD SHX Text

A)



AutoCAD SHX Text

8. %%UCOMPLETION



AutoCAD SHX Text

THESE NOTES ARE ARRANGED ACCORDING TO THE FOLLOWING DIVISIONS AS A CONVENIENCE TO THE CONTRACTOR.  GENERAL NOTES ARE NOT LIMITED BY THEIR DIVISION HEADING AND APPLY AS NECESSARY THROUGHOUT THE ENTIRE PROJECT.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


FRONT ELEVATIONS


AT STREET ELEVATION


AERIAL PERSPECTIVE
A0.1


PE
R


SP
EC


TI
V


E


NOTE:


THE DRAWINGS / PERSPECTIVE SHOWN HERE


ARE GRAPHICAL REPRESENTATION ONLY &


NOT TO SCALE.


FOR ACTUAL SIZE OF LOT DEVELOPMENT, SEE


SHEET A.1


377 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)


PARCEL   B
AREA = 24,572 SF.


36 PM 16


N 4996.4253
E 5386.0234


N 4968.2376
E 5190.1768


N 4967.6270
E 5256.1212


N 4977.6265
E 5256.2138


N 4978.0870
E 5206.2487


N 5018.0871
E 5206.4097


6" SS 


2


34


5


6


7


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


PARCEL   C
36 PM 1615' SEWER EASEMENT


3628 O.R. 38


SEWER EASEMENT
3628 O.R. 354'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


AREA = 10,688 SF.


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


NORTH


CONTRA COSTA COUNTY RECORDS TAKEN AS NORTH 00°31'50" EAST.
THE  MONUMENT LINE ALONG DUTRA COURT AS SHOWN ON TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
BASIS OF BEARINGS


0 10 20 30


SCALE   1" = 10'


1.   PARCEL MAP  36 PM 16
REFERENCES


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS


3.   TRACT 3319 BK 104 PG 40
2.   PARCEL MAP  23 PM 17


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-1


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


SHEET INDEX


SHEET NO SHEET CONTENT


C-1


C-2


TOPOGRAPHIC PLAN


GRADING AND
DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


ELECT ELECTRIC  BOX


TELEPHONETEL


FS FIRE SERVICE RISER


FIRE HYDRANTFH


WV WATER VALVE
WM WATER METER


TRAFFIC LIGHTTLGT


BOLLARDBLD


TRAFFIC CONTROL BOXTCB


UTILITY BOXUBX


PST POST


LP, LPST LIGHT POST


HANDICAPPEDHC


CATCH BASINCB


STREET SIGNSSN


PRCH PORCH


IRV IRRIGATION VALVE


PLANTERPLT


FACE OF SIDEWALKFW


YL YELLOW LINE (STRIPING)


BUILDING CORNER, BACK OF CURBBC


SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESSMH


FLOW LINEFL


SS SANITARY SEWER
STRIPINGSTR


AC   ASPHALT CONCRETE
AP   ANGLE POINT


FOUNDFND


FENCE CORNERFC
FENCEF


TREE & DIAMETER


WOOD


CONCRETE


WD


T-12"Ø


CC


RIGHT OF WAYROW
RAILROAD SPIKERRS


GROUNDG


CALC CALCULATED


EP EDGE OF PAVEMENT


CL CENTER LINE


san pablo ave


hazel ave.


80 FREEWAY


AP
PI


AN
 W


AY


PINON AVESITE


VICINITY PLAN


CITY OF PINOLE


NTS


NORTH


C-3 STORM WATER
MANAGEMENT PLAN


SHEET   1  OF  3


021918


378 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.92



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


PARCEL   A
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


PARCEL   4


PARCEL   3


PARCEL   2


PARCEL   1


PARCEL   C
36 PM 16


47.40' 47.40' 47.40' 47.61'


47.40'
47.40'


56.17'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


RESIDENCE #3


RESIDENCE #2


RESIDENCE #1


RESIDENCE #4


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


20' CONCRETE DRIVEWAY
20'CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4' (N) CONCRETE WALK


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


PORCHPORCH


PORCH


PORCH


DECK


DECK


DECK


DECK


5.00


5.00


6.40
5'


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


47.40'


38
'


6.40'


5'


20' 20' 20'
20'


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


END OF (E)
SIDEWALK BEGIN OF (N)


SIDEWALK


4' (N) CONC SIDEWALK (N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


(E) CURB & GUTTER


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CURB & GUTTER


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


SS SS
SS SS SS


SS S


SS


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6001 SF


A = 6569 SF


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


BEGIN OF (N)
CURB & GUTTER


37.83'


SSCO


65
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T.


SSCO


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


SSCO


(E) PP


SSCO


51
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


43
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


42
 L


F 
4"


 S
S 


LA
T


W W W W W W W


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


WM
1"FS


1"WS


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


1-
1/
2"


 W
S


WM
1"FS


1"WS


WM
1"fs


1"WS


WM
1" FS


1" WS


E


G


E


G


E


G
E


G


(TO BE REMOVE)


G G G G


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 30.00


FF 30.00


FC TO FC


( TO BE PIPE BY DEVELOPER )


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(TO BE REINFORCED)S


FF 27.85


FF 27.85


FF 28.85


FF 28.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


FF 29.85


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


NE
W


 P
RO


PE
RT


Y 
LI


NE


19.78'
TRANSITION


(E) UTILITY COVER
TO BE TRAFFIC RATED


(E) PP TO BE
RELOCATED


END OF (E)
AC PAVEMENT


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


6.40'


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


SIDE
SETBACK


BEGIN (N) AC 
 PAVEMENT


DRAINAGE TRENCH
TO BE PIPE BY 
DEVELOPER


 ± 38' WIDE HAZEL STREET WITH 3"
THICK AC PAVEMENT WITH SUB BASE
AT 95% RC PER SOIL'S REPORT
RECOMMENDATION


(E) VENTILATION
PIPE ( TO BE RELOCATED)


(E) EBMUD


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


VERIFY LOCATION OF GAS LINE


6.17'
6'


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE


GARAGE
FF 27.00


FF 28.00


FF 29.00


FF 29.00


(TO BE REMOVE)
(TO BE RELOCATED)


(N) CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W
40.00'


8.48'


47.34
SIDE


SETBACK


NO SIDEWALK
ON THIS SIDE


(N) CONC CURB & GUTTER


33
.2


0


23
.0


4


FR
ON


T 
SE


TB
AC


K
23


.3
2


31
.9


4


42
.1


6


50
.1


0
RE


AR
 S


ET
BA


CK


46
.4


7


RE
AR


 S
ET


BA
CK


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


MONUMENT LINE


PROPERTY LINE


LEGEND :


ADJACENT PROPERTY LINE


C-2


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


GRADING PLAN


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


DRAINAGE PLAN
UTILITY PLAN


KLC CONSULTING ENGINEERS
ENGINEER


TEL  (510) 232-0300
11100 SAN PABLO AVENUE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530


FAX  (510) 232-0303


BALJIT DHALIWAL
OWNER / APPLICANT


1068 TORQUISE DRIVE, HERCULES, CA 94547


HAZEL STREET, PINOLE, CA
PROPERTY ADDRESS


402-013-060
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.


RESIDENTIAL
EXISTING AND PROPOSED ZONING


WEST COUNTY WASTE WATER DISTRICT
SANITARY SEWER


EAST BAY MUNICIPAL DISTRICT
WATER SERVICE


PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC
GAS AND ELECTRIC


PINOLE FIRE DEPARTMENT
FIRE PROTECTION


PARCEL B ( 36 PM 16 )  A = 24,572 SF
TOTAL AREA TO BE DIVIDED


SHEET  2  OF  3


38'
PL PL


6' 6'


SECTION 
HAZEL STREET


SCALE  1"=10'


AC PAVEMENT


SUB BASE SHALL CONFORM TO SOIL'S
REPORT RECOMMENDATION AND
COMPACTION REQUIREMENTS


2%


& GUTTER
CONC. CURB


021918


379 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E


50
.16


'


S89°28'10"E   201.76'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


S00°31'50"W


10.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


N0
5°


08
'3


0"
E 


  
12


7.
01


'


HAZEL STREET   ( 50' R.O.W.)
6" SS 


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PA
RC


EL
  
 A


23
 P


M
 1
7


S0
1°
16


'5
0"


E 
  
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


50


35


30


40


28


40


45


(E) SSMH


W W


SS
SS


FORCE LINE


29


30


31


(E) DRIVEWAY


(E) DRIVEWAY4.50'(E) CONC SIDEWALK


(E) C & G


CURB & GUTTER
END OF (E) 


SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


(E) CONC SIDEWALK


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) (E) PP


PAVEMENT
END OF (E) AC 


PP


(E) SSMH


UTILITY
VAULT


UTILITY
VAULT


ENCLOSED


CONC SIDEWALK
END OF (E) 


N89°28'10"W   189.81' (TOTAL)


S


5'-10' WIDE OPEN 


4'Ø CORR STEEL
DRAINAGE PIPE


CONC WING WALL


DRAINAGE TRENCH


0+00 0+50 1+00 1+50
1+90.82


(E) CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


CURB & GUTTER


24" TREE


(e) 24" TREE


27


26


25


24


(E) PP


4'-2" RETAINING WALL


4'-4" RETAINING WALL


S


(E) PP
(E) CONC WINGWALL


(E) CONC SIDEWALK 


DMA #1 = 1863 SF


DMA #3 = 1861 SF


DMA #5 = 1836 SF


DMA #7 = 1858 SF


DMA #2 = 862 SF
DMA #4 = 602 SF


DMA #6 = 450 SF


DMA #8 = 680 SF


landscape landscape landscape landscape


4'-5' WIDE OPEN


DRAINAGE TRENCH


S00°31'50"W


40.00'


3'-10" RETAINING WALL


7'-0" RETAINING WALL


6'-0" RETAINING WALL


3'-0" RETAINING WALL 5'-0" RETAINING WALL


NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


C-3


SHEET NO:


PROJ. NO.


REVISIONS:


07/06/17


The information, plans, designs, notes &


arrangements shown on this drawing are


confidential and may not be reproduced in whole


or in part without the written permission of KLC


Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as


Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain


information that is conceptual and subject to


verification and / or change. The  Engineer makes


no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or


information supplied by others.


DATE:


DRAWN:


SCALE:


CHECKED: RBC


16-513


B
A


L
JI


T
 D


H
A


L
IW


A
L


A
DD


R
E
SS


: 
H
A
Z
E
L 


ST
R
E
E
T


C
IT


Y 
: 
PI


N
O
LE


T
E


N
T


A
T


IV
E


 P
A


R
C


E
L


 M
A


P


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


11
10


0 
S


A
N


 P
A


B
LO


 A
V


E
, S


U
IT


E
 2


07
, E


L 
C


E
R


R
IT


O
, C


A
 9


45
30


TE
L.


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


0 
; F


A
X


: 5
10


-2
32


-0
30


3
ht


tp
/w


w
w


//k
lc


ce
a.


co
m


AM


STORM WATER


PR
OJ


EC
T 


/ 
OW


NE
R


CO
NS


UL
TA


NT
:


A
PN


  4
02


-0
13


-0
60


070617


MANAGEMENT PLAN


SURFACE TYPE


IMPERVIOUS AREA CALCULATIONS


DMA #2 =  862 SF
DMA #1 = 1,863 SF


PARCEL 2  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #4 =  602 SF
DMA #3 = 1,861 SF


PARCEL 3  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #6 =  450 SF
DMA #5 = 1,836 SF


PARCEL 4  A = 6,568 SF


DMA #8 =  680 SF
DMA #7 = 1,858 SF


TOTAL LOT AREA = 24,572 ~ 0.564 AC. 


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


ROOF, DRIVEWAY


2,725 SF


2,462 SF


2,286 SF


2,538 SF


PARCEL 1  A = 6,001 SF


DMA #


SHEET  3  OF  3 


IMPERVIOUS AREA


NOTE


PARCEL 2, PARCEL 3 AND PARCEL 4 SHALL BE DIVERTED TO THEIR RESPECTIVE
ALL RUNOFF WATER COMING FROM THE ROOF AND DRIVEWAYS FOR PARCEL 1, 


LANDSCAPE AREAS AND OTHER PERVIOUS AREA LOCATION.


PERVIOUS AREA


3,276 SF


3,539 SF


3,715 SF


4,030 SF


380 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.54



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP1.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.95



AutoCAD SHX Text

TP2.NL



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.35



AutoCAD SHX Text

BWDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

28.11



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.30



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.31



AutoCAD SHX Text

FL



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.27



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.56



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.42



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

EP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

26.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSN



AutoCAD SHX Text

27.40



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.39



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.49



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.51



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.12



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

20.58



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

18.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

INV



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.67



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.29



AutoCAD SHX Text

J



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

95.07



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.80



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

21.41



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.62



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.65



AutoCAD SHX Text

WW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.23



AutoCAD SHX Text

EWW



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.37



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.66



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.50



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.19



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.99



AutoCAD SHX Text

WL



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

VNT



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.21



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.47



AutoCAD SHX Text

PIPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.61



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

23.44



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.15



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.33



AutoCAD SHX Text

EBMD



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.26



AutoCAD SHX Text

MON



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.77



AutoCAD SHX Text

SSMH



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.88



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.87



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

22.86



AutoCAD SHX Text

UBX



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.38



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.28



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.69



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.74



AutoCAD SHX Text

BC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.83



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.90



AutoCAD SHX Text

TCDI



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.57



AutoCAD SHX Text

LP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.79



AutoCAD SHX Text

TC



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

BW



AutoCAD SHX Text

25.76



AutoCAD SHX Text

PP



AutoCAD SHX Text

24.84



AutoCAD SHX Text

E*AC



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#2



AutoCAD SHX Text

C4







N
05°08'30"E


50.16'


S89°28'10"E   50.00'


N89°28'10"W   198.37' (TOTAL)


HAZEL STREET 


PARCEL B
36 PM 16


SUBDIVISION   3309
MB 98  PG 32


PARCEL  A
23 PM 17


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S89°28'10"E   68.70'


LOT #1


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


50


35


30


40


28


25


40


45


4' CONCRETE WALK


CONC CURB & GUTTER


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'
PROPERTY LINE 47.61'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40' PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


N
05°08'30"E


   127.01' 


PROPERTY LINE 56.17'


LOT #2 LOT #3


LOT #4
CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE NEW 2-STORY


RESIDENCE


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


A1.1


S
IT


E
 P


LA
N


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3


381 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

3'-0" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET. WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

7'-0" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET. WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







1


LOT - 3   PLOT PLAN


35


30


40


45


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


A1.2


P
LO


T 
P


LA
N


 &
P


R
O


FI
LE


 S
E


C
TI


O
N


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3


382 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

SIDEWALK



AutoCAD SHX Text

LANDSCAPING



AutoCAD SHX Text

(N) 2-STORY RESIDENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

48'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.20



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOCATION OF (E) TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO REMAIN (BEYOND),



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE SHEET A1.1 FOR LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

28'



AutoCAD SHX Text

30'



AutoCAD SHX Text

32'



AutoCAD SHX Text

34'



AutoCAD SHX Text

36'



AutoCAD SHX Text

38'



AutoCAD SHX Text

26'



AutoCAD SHX Text

40'



AutoCAD SHX Text

42'



AutoCAD SHX Text

44'



AutoCAD SHX Text

46'



AutoCAD SHX Text

48'



AutoCAD SHX Text

50'



AutoCAD SHX Text

EXISTING  GRADE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.85



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:30.00



AutoCAD SHX Text

FF:29.20



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOCATION OF (E) TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TO REMAIN (BEYOND),



AutoCAD SHX Text

SEE SHEET A1.1 FOR LOCATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT CROSS SECTION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

1



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

-



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







171 SF


PATTIO


U
P


2880


2
0
3
0


4
0
4
0


4
0
4
0


3
6
8
0


2
8
8
0


4
0
4
0


4
0
4
0


3680


4040


3630 3630


4
0
4
0


4
0
4
0


4
0
4
0


2880


2
0
3
0


2
0
3
0


2
0
3
0


2
0
3
0


A2.0


FL
O


O
R


 P
LA


N
S


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3


383 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

LIVING



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

37 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

54 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

TWO CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

434 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

WET BAR



AutoCAD SHX Text

DINING



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

COATS



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAMILY RM



AutoCAD SHX Text

48"  WALLNUT



AutoCAD SHX Text

PANTRY UNDER



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAIRS



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOOK SHELVES



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOSET



AutoCAD SHX Text

WH



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

CU



AutoCAD SHX Text

4030



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROPERTY LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

458 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

95 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

315 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAIRWELL



AutoCAD SHX Text

63 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

167 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

SETTEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

42" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

3040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

131 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

135 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

138 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

18 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

62 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

105 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

119 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

306 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

32  SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2280



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

SETTEE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LINEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLO



AutoCAD SHX Text

WIC



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 2



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 3



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

2880



AutoCAD SHX Text

3640



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

6040 SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

42" HIGH



AutoCAD SHX Text

3040



AutoCAD SHX Text

SL



AutoCAD SHX Text

131 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

135 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

138 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

18 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

62 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

105 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

119 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

306 SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

32  SF



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A3.0


E
LE


VA
TI


O
N


S


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3


384 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CULTURED STONE BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BORAL (OR EQUIVALENT)



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CREAM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

LAUNDRY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATHROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM 1



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

RIGHT SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

REAR SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

LEFT SIDE ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MONTEREY



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAUPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBERBARK



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: GRACEFUL GRAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MILK SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPOSITE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE HD



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MISSION BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A4.0


S
E


C
TI


O
N


S
 &


 R
O


O
F


P
LA


N
M


R.
 B


A
LJ


IT
 D


H
A


LI
W


A
L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3


385 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4:12



AutoCAD SHX Text

SLOPE DN



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

feet



AutoCAD SHX Text

UPPER ROOF PLAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BEDROOM-3



AutoCAD SHX Text

HALLWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

MASTER BEDROOM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION A



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

KITCHEN



AutoCAD SHX Text

DINING



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

12



AutoCAD SHX Text

4



AutoCAD SHX Text

8



AutoCAD SHX Text

0



AutoCAD SHX Text

2



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECTION B



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAMILY RM.



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOILET & BATH



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOSET



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF PLATE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BATH-1



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







A5.0


W
IN


D
O


W
 V


IS
IB


IL
IT


Y
P


R
IV


A
C


Y 
FR


O
M


N
E


IG
H


B
O


R
IN


G
 U


N
IT


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4
2ND FLOOR
PLAN


GROUND
FLOOR PLAN


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


386 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







LOT -3


CONCEPTUAL LANDSCAPE PLAN


1


35


30


40


45


P
R


O
P


E
R


TY
 L


IN
E


 S
01


°1
6'


50
"E


   
12


6.
61


'


PROPERTY LINE 47.40'


35


30


40


45


FENCING PLAN


2


TYPICAL FENCE DETAIL


3
L.1


C
O


N
C


E
P


TU
A


L
LA


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 P


LA
N


.
M


R.
 B


A
LJ


IT
 D


H
A


LI
W


A
L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS
UL
TI
NG
 E
NG
IN
EE
RS
, 
IN
C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


LOT - 3


387 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/8"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE: 1/8" = 1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULTICOLORED COLEUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDY BLUE PLUMBAGO



AutoCAD SHX Text

SWEET WOODRUFF



AutoCAD SHX Text

CASCADES IN PLANTBOXES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MEXICAN BEACH PEBBLES



AutoCAD SHX Text

MULCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

REDWOOD RUBBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

FLAGSTONE OR PAVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

PERVIOUS



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMPED CONCRETE DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

PRIVACY TREE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BLUE SAPPHIRE CYPRES



AutoCAD SHX Text

(5'-0" DIA MAX EACH TREE)



AutoCAD SHX Text

(EXTREMELY DROUGHT TOLERANT &



AutoCAD SHX Text

FAST GROWING)



AutoCAD SHX Text

DROUGHT TOLERANT JAPANESE



AutoCAD SHX Text

BOXWOOD



AutoCAD SHX Text

PALM TREE (CYCAS REVOLUTA) 4'-0" HT



AutoCAD SHX Text

UP



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRIVEWAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HAZEL ST.



AutoCAD SHX Text

PATIO



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONC RET WALL



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

WOODEN FENCE



AutoCAD SHX Text

NOT TO SCALE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:1/2"=1'-0"



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

0'



AutoCAD SHX Text

8'



AutoCAD SHX Text

16'



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE
LOT #3


HAZEL ST.,


PINOLE, CA., 94564


388 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBER BARK



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE:  FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPOSITE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MONTEREY



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MILK SHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

CULTURED STONE BY



AutoCAD SHX Text

BORAL (OR EQUIVALENT)



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: CREAM



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

CLOPAY VALUE SERIES- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: GRACEFUL GRAY



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDI SIDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAGGERED EDGE PANEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: NAVAJO BEIGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPOSITE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE HD



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MISSION BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: DESERT TAN



AutoCAD SHX Text

TIMBERLINE HD



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: MISSION BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

TAUPE



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#3







ATTACHMENT G


XXXXXXXXXXX


389 of 611







390 of 611







NORTH


BASIS OF BEARINGS


0 10 20 30


SCALE   1" = 10'


REFERENCES


LEGEND & ABBREVIATIONS


SHEET INDEX


ELECT ELECTRIC  BOX


TELEPHONETEL


FS FIRE SERVICE RISER


FIRE HYDRANTFH


WV WATER VALVE
WM WATER METER


TRAFFIC LIGHTTLGT


BOLLARDBLD


TRAFFIC CONTROL BOXTCB


UTILITY BOXUBX


PST POST


LP, LPST LIGHT POST


HANDICAPPEDHC


CATCH BASINCB


STREET SIGNSSN


PRCH PORCH


IRV IRRIGATION VALVE


PLANTERPLT


FACE OF SIDEWALKFW


YL YELLOW LINE (STRIPING)


BUILDING CORNER, BACK OF CURBBC


SANITARY SEWER MANHOLESSMH


FLOW LINEFL


SS SANITARY SEWER
STRIPINGSTR


AC   ASPHALT CONCRETE
AP   ANGLE POINT


FOUNDFND


FENCE CORNERFC
FENCEF


TREE & DIAMETER


WOOD


CONCRETE


WD


CC


RIGHT OF WAYROW
RAILROAD SPIKERRS


GROUNDG


CALC CALCULATED


EP EDGE OF PAVEMENT


CL CENTER LINE


391 of 611







NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


LEGEND :


392 of 611







NORTH


0 20 40 60


SCALE   1" = 10'


393 of 611







CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE


NEW 2-STORY
RESIDENCE NEW 2-STORY


RESIDENCE


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


CONCRETE DRIVEWAY


S
IT


E
 P


LA
N


394 of 611







PROPERTY LINE 56.17'


P
LO


T 
P


LA
N


395 of 611







3680


FL
O


O
R


 P
LA


N
S


396 of 611







R
O


O
F 


P
LA


N


397 of 611







E
LE


VA
TI


O
N


S


398 of 611







A5.0


W
IN


D
O


W
 V


IS
IB


IL
IT


Y
P


R
IV


A
C


Y 
FR


O
M


N
E


IG
H


B
O


R
IN


G
 U


N
IT


M
R.


 B
A


LJ
IT


 D
H


A
LI


W
A


L


N
EW


 T
W


O
-S


TO
R


EY
 R


ES
ID


EN
C


E


CO
NS


UL
TI


NG
 E


NG
IN


EE
RS


, 
IN


C


The information, plans, designs, notes & arrangements shown on this drawing are confidential and may not be reproduced in whole or in part without the written permission of KLC Consulting Engineers , Inc. Drawings noted as Preliminary, Schematic and / or Concept contain information that is conceptual and subject to verification and / or change. The Engineer makes no claim for accuracy of conceptual information or information supplied by others.


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4


UNIT #1 UNIT #2 UNIT #3 UNIT #4
2ND FLOOR
PLAN


GROUND
FLOOR PLAN


LOT #1 LOT #2 LOT #3 LOT #4


399 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJ. NO.



AutoCAD SHX Text

REVISIONS:



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/12/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

DATE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

MTC



AutoCAD SHX Text

DRAWN:



AutoCAD SHX Text

SCALE:



AutoCAD SHX Text

CHECKED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

RBC



AutoCAD SHX Text

16-574



AutoCAD SHX Text

PROJECT & OWNER (S):



AutoCAD SHX Text

CONSULTANT



AutoCAD SHX Text

1068 TORQUOISE DR.,



AutoCAD SHX Text

HERCULES CA



AutoCAD SHX Text

11100 SAN PABLO AVE, SUITE 207, EL CERRITO, CA 94530



AutoCAD SHX Text

TEL.: 510-232-0300 ; FAX: 510-232-0303



AutoCAD SHX Text

http/www//klccea.com



AutoCAD SHX Text

STAMP



AutoCAD SHX Text

12/22/16



AutoCAD SHX Text

SHEET NO:



AutoCAD SHX Text

TITLE SHEET



AutoCAD SHX Text

AS NOTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

S 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

O 



AutoCAD SHX Text

F 



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E 



AutoCAD SHX Text

V



AutoCAD SHX Text

T 



AutoCAD SHX Text

A 



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

T



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

C



AutoCAD SHX Text

M



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

S



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

F



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

L



AutoCAD SHX Text

B.



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

O



AutoCAD SHX Text

D



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

A



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

P



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

Exp. 09-30-18



AutoCAD SHX Text

No. 66714



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

I



AutoCAD SHX Text

G



AutoCAD SHX Text

R



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

E



AutoCAD SHX Text

N



AutoCAD SHX Text

02/15/18



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT RESUBMITTAL



AutoCAD SHX Text

PLANNING. PERMIT SUBMITTAL







C
O


N
C


E
P


TU
A


L
LA


N
D


S
C


A
P


E
 &


FE
N


C
IN


G
 P


LA
N


400 of 611







DHALI-BALI
DEVELOPMENT
LOT #4


HAZEL ST.,


PINOLE, CA., 94564


401 of 611



AutoCAD SHX Text

FRONT ELEVATION



AutoCAD SHX Text

LOT#4



AutoCAD SHX Text

FOAM LOUVERS



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL NFD 303L



AutoCAD SHX Text

BY NEW FOAM DESIGN



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SILVER DROP



AutoCAD SHX Text

SECOND FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIRST FLOOR LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2ND FLR CEILING LINE



AutoCAD SHX Text

TOP OF ROOF RIDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COMPOSITE ASPHALT



AutoCAD SHX Text

ROOF SHINGLES 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ARMOURSHAKE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: GREYSTONE



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALL EXTERIOR LIGHTINGS



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL MOUNTED:



AutoCAD SHX Text

BRIMFIELD OUTDOOR WALL LANTERN



AutoCAD SHX Text

Y37029A-151



AutoCAD SHX Text

MODEL: 



AutoCAD SHX Text

ENTRY PORCH



AutoCAD SHX Text

2 CAR GARAGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIPLANK



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBERBARK



AutoCAD SHX Text

STUCCO TYP AT



AutoCAD SHX Text

GROUND FLOOR EXT



AutoCAD SHX Text

WALL FIN.



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: HACIENDA



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE TRIM ALL AROUND WDW



AutoCAD SHX Text

OPENING- HZ10x3.5x144 FIBER



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEMENT RUSTIC GRAIN TRIM BD,



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: SILVER DROP



AutoCAD SHX Text

ALTERNATE: FOAM TRIMS BY STYROTRIM



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

FIBER CEMENT SELECT



AutoCAD SHX Text

TYP AT 2ND FLR



AutoCAD SHX Text

CEDARMILL LAP, PAINTED



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: KHAKI BROWN



AutoCAD SHX Text

GARAGE LEVEL



AutoCAD SHX Text

2-CAR GARAGE DOOR



AutoCAD SHX Text

W/ PLAIN WINDOW



AutoCAD SHX Text

GALLERY COLLECTION- 16'x7'



AutoCAD SHX Text

T.O.P.



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINTED: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

METAL RAILING



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: BLACK



AutoCAD SHX Text

PAINT FINISH: WHITE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBERBARK



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDIE PLANK HZ10 5/16x8.25x144



AutoCAD SHX Text

HARDI SHINGLE SIDING



AutoCAD SHX Text

STRAIGHT EDGE



AutoCAD SHX Text

COLOR: TIMBERBARK







City of Pinole 
Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


September 2020 


Prepared By 


1501 Sports Drive, Suite A, Sacramento, CA 95834


ATTACHMENT H


402 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


i 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 


A. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY .......................................................................................... 1 


B. PROJECT DESCRIPTION ........................................................................................................... 1 


C. DISCUSSION .................................................................................................................................. 8 


D. EXCEPTIONS TO CATEGORICAL EXEMPTIONS ANALYSIS ....................................... 19 


E.  CONCLUSION ............................................................................................................................. 12 


Appendices 
 


Appendix A: Tree Memo 


Appendix B: Wetlands and Biological Resources Assessment 


Appendix C: Air Quality Modeling Results 


 


 


 


 


403 of 611







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


1 


September 2020 


A. INTRODUCTION AND SUMMARY 


 


The City of Pinole has requested that Raney Planning & Management, Inc. (Raney) conduct a 


review of the Hazel Street Project (proposed project) to determine if the project could be 


considered exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). Generally, the 


proposed project consists of two components: 1) subdivision of APN 402-013-060 into four lots 


to accommodate the future construction of four, two-story single-family residences and associated 


improvements; and 2) piping the existing drainage ditch located within the unpaved portion of 


Hazel Street and paving the connection of the roadway to complete the City’s planned circulation 


network in the residential community.  


 


Section 21084 of the Public Resources Code requires the CEQA Guidelines to include a list of 


classes of projects which have been determined not to have a significant effect on the environment 


and which shall, therefore, be exempt from the provisions of CEQA. In response to that mandate, 


the Secretary of the Natural Resources Agency has found that several classes of projects listed in 


Article 19 do not have a significant effect on the environment and, thus, are declared to be 


categorically exempt from the requirement for the preparation of environmental documents. 


 


As will be demonstrated below, the proposed project is considered exempt from CEQA, consistent 


with CEQA Guidelines Section 15332, In-Fill Development Projects. In addition, none of the 


exceptions specified by CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2 are applicable to the proposed project. 


 


B. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 


 
The following sections provide a description of the current environmental setting of the project 
area, as well as the components of the proposed project. 
 
Project Location and Setting 


 


The 0.81-acre project site is located at the western terminus of Hazel Street in the City of Pinole, 


California, and identified by the Contra Costa County Assessor as Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 


(APNs) 402-013-060 and 402-013-061 (see Figure 1 and Figure 2). The approximately 0.56-acre 


southern parcel, identified as APN 402-013-060, is currently vacant and undeveloped. The parcel 


contains several trees, including two protected coast live oaks, in addition to ground cover brush 


consisting of Himalayan blackberry and English ivy. The approximately 0.25-acre northern parcel, 


identified as APN 402-013-061, consists of an unpaved portion of the Hazel Street right-of-way 


(ROW), which contains a gravel path and surrounding vegetated areas. A four- to five-foot-wide, 


open drainage ditch extends in a westerly direction from the southeastern edge of the parcel. The 


drainage ditch crosses underneath the gravel path by way of an approximately 44-foot-long culvert, 


before resurfacing into a five- to 10-foot-wide open drainage trench that extends for another 36 


feet at the northwest corner of the parcel, near an existing sewer lift station.  


 


The project site is surrounded by residential development that include an apartment complex to 


the west and single-family residences to the north, east, and south. Access to APN 402-013-060 is 


currently provided by way of the unpaved portion of the Hazel Street ROW within the northern 


parcel.  


 


404 of 611







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


2 


September 2020 


Figure 1 


Regional Project Location 


 


Project Location 


405 of 611







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


3 


September 2020 


Figure 2 


Project Vicinity Map 


 


Project Site  


 


406 of 611







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


4 


September 2020 


Project Components 


 


The following sections provide details on components associated with implementation of the 


proposed residential lot subdivision and Hazel Street roadway improvements.  


 


Residential Lot Subdivision (APN 402-013-060) 


 


The proposed project would subdivide APN 402-013-060 (proposed development area) into four 


lots to accommodate the future construction of four, two-story single-family residences (see Figure 


3 and Figure 4). The parcel has an area of approximately 24,572 sf. Lots 1, 2, and 3 would each be 


approximately 6,000 sf and Lot 4 would be approximately 6,568 sf. The proposed two-story single-


family residences would range in size from 2,165 sf to 2,664 sf and each include garage areas and 


first floor porches and balconies. The individual lots would be separated by eight-foot-tall wooden 


fences placed along the property lines.  


 


The proposed residences would tie into existing utility infrastructure within the Hazel Street ROW. 


Water service would be provided by the East Bay Municipal Utility District and serve each of the 


four residences by way of a new water line extension within the Hazel Street ROW, and individual 


north-south connections to each lot. Wastewater service would be provided by the City of Pinole. 


A new six-inch sanitary sewer line would extend along the northern portion of the site to connect 


with the existing sanitary sewer hub at the eastern edge of the site in the Hazel Street ROW. New 


north-south connections to the sanitary sewer main in Hazel Street would be made to each of the 


four proposed residences. For drainage, water from impervious surfaces such as roofs and concrete 


driveways would be routed to front yard landscape areas for treatment and infiltration. 


 


Given that the proposed development area is located on a slight slope, the proposed project would 


require minor cuts within the southern portion of the site to accommodate the proposed building 


pads. For the purposes of this analysis, grading activities associated with the proposed project are 


estimated to require approximately 7,778 cubic yards (CY) of soil export. 


 


Hazel Street Roadway Improvements (APN 402-013-061) 


 


As part of the proposed project, the open sections of the existing drainage ditch within the 


southeastern and northwestern portions of APN 402-013-061 (roadway improvement area) would 


be piped underground (see Figure 5 ). The undergrounding of the open sections of the drainage 


ditch would include the removal of a concrete wingwall in the southeastern portion of the site, 


where the ditch daylights, as well as reinforcement of the existing four-foot-wide, 44-foot-long 


corrugated steel culvert. The proposed drainage improvements would not increase capacity relative 


to existing conditions. 


 


The required circulation improvements would consist of roadway improvements that would 


include grading and paving of approximately 200 feet of the unpaved portion of the Hazel Street 


ROW to complete circulation throughout the neighborhood. 


407 of 611







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


5 


September 2020 


Figure 3 


Proposed Residential Subdivision Site Layout 


 


408 of 611







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


6 


September 2020 


Figure 4 


Proposed Residential Lot Subdivision 


409 of 611







 Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


7 


September 2020 


Figure 5 


Proposed Hazel Street Improvements 


410 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


8 


September 2020 


Upon completion, the newly paved portion of the Hazel Street ROW would be 38 feet wide and 


the southern portion would include a four-foot-wide concrete pedestrian sidewalk that would 


connect to existing sidewalks located along the adjacent portions of Hazel Street to the east and 


west. The improvements would also include the addition of a concrete roadside curb and gutter on 


the southern end of the Hazel Street ROW. The northern portion of Hazel Street would include a 


concrete curb and gutter, but would not be inclusive of a pedestrian sidewalk. The existing sewer 


lift station located in the northwestern corner of the site would be modified to match the grade of 


the new pavement and the access panel would be relocated to be within the back of the proposed 


curb. Two existing power poles would be relocated during the street improvements.  


 


The aforementioned roadway improvements would provide paved access to the adjacent, proposed 


residential lots, and serve to complete the City’s planned street system in this residential 


neighborhood. 


 


Tree Removal 


 


Two protected mature coast live oak trees are located in the southern portion of the project site 


(see Figure 6). As part of the proposed project, Tree 1, a 40-foot-tall live oak with a 31.5-inch 


diameter at breast height (DBH), is recommended by the consulting arborist to be removed due to 


indicators that the structure of the roots has been compromised. Tree 2, a 40-foot-tall coast live 


oak with a 38.5-inch DBH, shows good health and high vigor and would be retained with 


implementation of the proposed project.  


 


Required Entitlements  


 


The residential lot subdivision project would require the following discretionary entitlements from 


the City of Pinole:  


 


• Development Agreement; 


• Tentative Subdivision Map; 


• Design Review; and 


• Tree Removal Permit. 


 


The Hazel Street roadway connection project would be a component part of the Development 


Agreement and require subsequent improvement plan approval by the City of Pinole Development 


Services Department.  


 


C. DISCUSSION 


 


The following section contains substantial evidence showing that the proposed project can be 


considered exempt from CEQA and is not subject to any of the exceptions set forth in Section 


15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines. As demonstrated in the analysis below, the proposed project 


qualifies for exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15332, Class 32.   


411 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


9 


September 2020 


Figure 6 


On-site Trees 


 


412 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


10 


September 2020 


In-Fill Development Project Exemption  


 


Article 19 of the CEQA Guidelines, Sections 15300 through 15333, includes a list of classes of 


projects that have been determined to not have a significant effect on the environment, and are 


therefore exempt from CEQA. Section 15332 of the CEQA Guidelines provides a categorical 


exemption for infill development projects that meet the following criteria: 


 


(a) The project is consistent with the applicable general plan designation and all applicable 


general plan polices as well as with applicable zoning designation and regulations.  


(b) The proposed development occurs within the city limits on the project site of no more than 


five acres substantially surrounded by urban uses.  


(c) The project site has no value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species.  


(d) Approval of the project would not result in any significant effects relating to traffic, noise, 


air quality, or water quality.  


(e) The site can be adequately served by all required utilities and public services.  


 


The applicability of the above criteria to the proposed project is described in the following sections.  


 


Criterion 15332(a): General Plan and Zoning Consistency 


 


With regard to criterion ‘a’, the Pinole General Plan designates the proposed development area as 


Suburban Residential (SR) and the area is zoned as R-1. The proposed development area is 


currently vacant, and the proposed construction of four single-family residences would be 


consistent with the General Plan land use designation and zoning for the site.  


 


Furthermore, the proposed project would comply with applicable General Plan policies and zoning 


regulations adopted for the purpose of avoiding and/or mitigating adverse environmental effects. 


For example, the project would be required to comply with the City of Pinole’s Tree Removal 


Ordinance, as included in Chapter 17.96 of the Municipal Code, which defines “protected” trees 


as follows:  


 


• Trees with a single perennial stem of 12 inches or larger in circumference (four inches in 


diameter) measured at 4.5 feet above grade, of the following species: Coast live oak, 


Madrone, Buckeye, Black Walnut, Redwood, Big Leafed Maple, Redbud, California Bay, 


Toyon; and 


• Any other tree with a single stem greater than 56” or larger in circumference (18” in 


diameter) and 4.5 feet above the natural grade; nut and fruit trees, palms, and eucalyptus 


are not protected. 


 


Per a technical memorandum prepared for the proposed project by Arborwell Professional Tree 


Management (Tree Memo) (see Appendix A), the project site contains two coast live oaks that are 


considered protected trees per the Tree Removal Ordinance.1 Per the Tree Memo, one of the 


existing trees is recommended for removal (i.e., Tree 1 in Figure 6 above), as the tree’s root system 


appears to be failing due to root failure within overly saturated soils. The safety-risk for whole-


                                                 
1  Arborwell Professional Tree Management. Oak Tree Update at Hazel Street at Pinole. April 18, 2018. 


413 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


11 


September 2020 


tree failure, given that the roots are already failing, is high. Consistent with Chapter 17.96 of the 


City’s Municipal Code, the project applicant would be required to obtain a tree removal permit 


prior to removal of the tree, as well as replacement of the tree at a ratio of 1:1. The second protected 


tree is proposed for preservation as part of the proposed project; and the project applicant would 


be required to implement tree protection measures for this tree, as generally outlined in Section 


17.96.070 of the Pinole Municipal Code and, more specifically, in the oak tree protection 


guidelines prepared for the site by Arborwell (January 14, 2016). Thus, the proposed project would 


comply with local policies and ordinances protecting biological resources, particularly related to 


Chapter 17.96 of the Municipal Code. 


 


Based on the above, the proposed project meets Criterion 15332(a). 


 


Criterion 15332(b): Project Location, Size, and Context 


 


The project site consists of approximately 0.81-acre located within an urbanized area in the City 


of Pinole. The site is surrounded by existing residential development on all sides. Thus, the 


proposed project meets Criterion 15332(b). 


 


Criterion 15332(c): Endangered, Rare, or Threatened Species 


 


The project site is located in an urbanized area of the City of Pinole and is bordered on all sides 


by existing residential development. The proposed roadway improvement area in the northern 


portion of the site is currently vacant and consists of an approximately 200-foot gravel portion of 


the Hazel Street ROW. The roadway improvement area has been previously disturbed through the 


placement of gravel and installation of the existing 44-foot corrugated steel culvert, as well as 


other utility infrastructure such as a City sewer main, sewer lift station, and telecommunications 


and power poles. The proposed development area within the southern portion of the site is also 


vacant, and consists primarily of ruderal grasses and scattered trees. 


 


As part of a Wetlands & Biological Resources Assessment prepared for the proposed project by 


Barnett Environmental (see Appendix B),2 the following online resources were queried for 


information on the project site’s potential plant and wildlife resources:  


 


• California Department of Fish & Wildlife’s (CDFW) Natural Diversity Database 


(CNDDB) for observations of special status plant and animal species within five miles of 


the project site;  


• U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service’s (USFWS) iPac Database of federally-listed special status 


species in Contra Costa County; and 


• The California Native Plant Society’s (CNPS) Inventory of Rare & Endangered Plants in 


California. 


 


In addition, a Barnett Environmental biologist surveyed the project site on November 15, 2018 for 


special status plant and wildlife species and their habitats that could be supported on-site.  


 


                                                 
2  Barnett Environmental. Wetlands and Biological Resources Assessment of the Proposed Hazel Street Residential 


Subdivision & Road Improvement. December 19, 2018.   


414 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


12 


September 2020 


Based on the results of the data queries and site survey, Barnett Environmental concluded that only 


one endangered, rare, or threatened species has the potential to occur in the greater project area: 


California red-legged frog. It should be noted that per the Wetlands & Biological Resources 


Assessment, fragrant fritillary has a very low potential of occurrence due to marginal habitat on-


site; however, the species does not have a federal or State status and, thus, is not covered by 


Criterion 15332(c). In addition, fragrant fritillary was not detected during the November 2018 field 


survey, and CNDDB occurrences of the species have not been recorded within five miles of the 


project site. 


 


California red-legged frog is a Federal Threatened species and is a California Species of Concern. 


CNDDB occurrences for California red-legged frog were identified within five miles of the project 


site. However, based on the lack of breeding ponds or perennially slow-moving waters on the 


project site, the species does not have the potential to occur on the project site. In addition, 


California red-legged frogs were not identified on-site during the November 2018 site survey.  


 


Generally, due to the highly disturbed nature of the area surrounding the project site, the project 


site does not provide value as habitat for endangered, rare or threatened species. Thus, the proposed 


project meets Criterion 15332(c). 


 


Criterion 15332(d): Traffic, Noise, Air Quality, and Water Quality 


 


The following sections present analysis regarding potential effects related to traffic, noise, air 


quality, and water quality resulting from implementation of the proposed project. 


 


Traffic 


 


During construction of the proposed project, vehicle traffic would be added to local roadways 


associated with the transport of construction equipment to and from the site, construction worker 


commutes, and haul truck traffic due to the export of approximately 8,000 CY of soil from the site. 


However, such traffic would be temporary, and would be typical of other small-scale residential 


construction projects.  


 


Upon buildout, the proposed project would consist of four single-family residences. Per the 


Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, the proposed residences would 


generate approximately 38 average daily vehicle trips, including three trips during the AM peak 


hour and four trips during the PM peak hour. Due to the relatively minimal vehicle trip generation 


associated with the proposed uses, the project would not be expected to degrade peak period LOS 


at any nearby intersections or roadway sections. In addition, the proposed project is consistent with 


the project site’s existing General Plan land use and zoning designations. Therefore, vehicle trip 


generation associated with the project site and associated effects on local transportation facilities 


have been anticipated by the City and accounted for in regional planning efforts. 


 


415 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


13 


September 2020 


Noise 


 


The proposed project has the potential to generate temporary noise level increases associated with 


construction activities. During operation, the primary source of noise associated with the proposed 


project would be vehicle traffic noise generated on local roadways.  


 


The Pinole General Plan does not include noise standards applicable to transportation noise 


increases attributable to new development. Other jurisdictions often use standards developed by 


the Federal Interagency Committee on Noise (FICON) to determine whether a project would result 


in a substantial permanent increase in noise levels. According to the FICON, in areas where the 


without project noise levels range from 60 to 65 dBA, a 3 dBA barely perceptible noise level 


increase appears to be appropriate for most people. When the without project noise levels already 


exceed 65 dBA, any increase in community noise louder than 1.5 dBA or greater is considered a 


significant impact if the noise criteria for a given land use is exceeded, given that the noise increase 


likely contributes to an existing noise exposure exceedance. Given that the proposed project is 


consistent with the site’s existing land use and zoning designations, traffic noise level increases 


associated with development of the project site with residential uses have been previously 


anticipated by the City. As such, the project would not result in traffic noise level increases beyond 


what has been analyzed in the General Plan EIR. In addition, given that the proposed project is 


estimated to generate only 38 average daily vehicle trips, the increase in traffic noise would not be 


sufficient to trigger FICON standards on nearby roadways, along which are located residential 


receptors. 


 


With respect to construction, Section 15.02.070 of the City’s Municipal Code includes the 


following hourly restrictions and nuisance provisions related to construction activities:  


 


• Work is allowed from 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM on non-federal holidays, but no inspections 


would be performed.  


• Saturday work is allowed in commercial zones only, from 9:00 AM to 6:00 PM, as long as 


it is interior work and does not generate significant noise. 


• The City Council designates the City Manager (or his/her designee) to further modify on a 


case-by-case basis the hours of construction in commercial zones. Additionally, the City 


Manager (or his/her designee) has the ability to modify the construction hours on a case-


by-case basis based on inclement weather conditions or certain construction procedures 


(such as setting up from a concrete pour) that may require working beyond 5:00 PM on 


weekdays or 6:00 PM on Saturday.  


• Administrative citations and penalties penalize responsible parties who fail or refuse to 


comply with any City ordinance or fail to promptly abate a public nuisance.  


 


During construction activities associated with the proposed residences, as well as the proposed 


Hazel Street improvements, the proposed project would result in short-term noise level increases 


in the project vicinity. However, the City’s Municipal Code does not specify any short-term 


construction noise level limits. In addition, construction of the proposed project would be required 


to comply with the restrictions established by Section 15.02.070(A) of the City’s Municipal Code. 


Per Section 15.02.070(F), construction activities related to the proposed project would include the 


use of sound-dampening equipment such as mufflers, air-inlet silencers, shrouds, shields, or other 


416 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


14 


September 2020 


noise-reducing features where appropriate in order to ensure that nuisance related to noise or 


vibration does not occur.  


 


Based on the above, the proposed project would not generate substantial temporary or permanent 


noise level increases during construction or operation that would be considered to have the 


potential to result in significant effects on the environment. 


 


Air Quality 


 


The City of Pinole is located in the San Francisco Bay Area Air Basin (SFBAAB), which is under 


the jurisdiction of the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). The SFBAAB is 


currently designated as a nonattainment area for State and federal ozone, State and federal fine 


particulate matter 2.5 microns in diameter (PM2.5), and State respirable particulate matter 10 


microns in diameter (PM10) ambient air quality standards (AAQS). The SFBAAB is designated 


attainment or unclassified for all other AAQS. It should be noted that on January 9, 2013, the U.S. 


Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) issued a final rule to determine that the Bay Area has 


attained the 24-hour PM2.5 federal AAQS. Nonetheless, the Bay Area must continue to be 


designated as nonattainment for the federal PM2.5 AAQS until such time as the BAAQMD submits 


a redesignation request and a maintenance plan to the USEPA, and the USEPA approves the 


proposed redesignation. The USEPA has not yet approved a request for redesignation of the 


SFBAAB; therefore, the SFBAAB remains in nonattainment for 24-hour PM2.5. 


 


In compliance with regulations, due to the nonattainment designations of the area, the BAAQMD 


periodically prepares and updates air quality plans that provide emission reduction strategies to 


achieve attainment of the AAQS, including control strategies to reduce air pollutant emissions 


through regulations, incentive programs, public education, and partnerships with other agencies. 


The current air quality plans are prepared in cooperation with the Metropolitan Transportation 


Commission (MTC) and the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG).  


 


The most recent federal ozone plan is the 2001 Ozone Attainment Plan, which was adopted on 


October 24, 2001 and approved by the California Air Resources Board (CARB) on November 1, 


2001. The plan was submitted to the USEPA on November 30, 2001 for review and approval. The 


most recent State ozone plan is the 2017 Clean Air Plan (CAP), adopted on April 19, 2017. The 


2017 CAP was developed as a multi-pollutant plan that provides an integrated control strategy to 


reduce ozone, PM, toxic air contaminants (TACs), and greenhouse gases (GHGs). Although a plan 


for achieving the State PM10 standard is not required, the BAAQMD has prioritized measures to 


reduce PM in developing the control strategy for the 2017 CAP. The control strategy serves as the 


backbone of the BAAQMD’s current PM control program. 


 


The aforementioned air quality plans contain mobile source controls, stationary source controls, 


and transportation control measures to be implemented in the region to attain the State and federal 


AAQS within the SFBAAB. Adopted BAAQMD rules and regulations, as well as the thresholds 


of significance, have been developed with the intent to ensure continued attainment of AAQS, or 


to work towards attainment of AAQS for which the area is currently designated nonattainment, 


consistent with applicable air quality plans. For development projects, BAAQMD establishes 


significance thresholds for emissions of the ozone precursors reactive organic gases (ROG) and 


417 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


15 


September 2020 


oxides of nitrogen (NOX), as well as for PM10, and PM2.5, expressed in pounds per day (lbs/day) 


and tons per year (tons/yr). The thresholds are listed in Table 1. Thus, by exceeding the 


BAAQMD’s mass emission thresholds for operational emissions of ROG, NOX, or PM10, a project 


would be considered to conflict with or obstruct implementation of the BAAQMD’s air quality 


planning efforts.  


 


Table 1 


BAAQMD Thresholds of Significance 


Pollutant 


Construction Operational 


Average Daily 


Emissions (lbs/day) 


Average Daily 


Emissions (lbs/day) 


Maximum Annual 


Emissions (tons/year) 


ROG 54 54 10 


NOX 54 54 10 


PM10 (exhaust) 82 82 15 


PM2.5 (exhaust) 54 54 10 
Source: BAAQMD, CEQA Guidelines, May 2017. 


 


The proposed project’s construction and operational emissions were quantified using the 


California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEMod) software version 2016.3.2 - a Statewide model 


designed to provide a uniform platform for government agencies, land use planners, and 


environmental professionals to quantify air quality emissions, including GHG emissions, from 


land use projects. The model applies inherent default values for various land uses, including 


construction data, vehicle mix, trip length, average speed, etc. Where project-specific information 


is available, such information is applied in the model. The proposed project’s modeling assumed 


the following: 


 


• Construction would commence in April of 2020 and occur over approximately six months; 


• Approximately 7,778 CY of soil would be exported during grading activities;  


• The proposed project would comply with all applicable provisions of the 2019 CBSC 


related to energy efficiency; and 


• Consistent with the 2109 CBSC, the proposed project would include installation of solar 


panels capable of meeting 100 percent of the project’s energy demands. 


 


The proposed project’s estimated emissions associated with construction and operations and the 


project’s contribution to cumulative air quality conditions are provided below. All CalEEMod 


results are included as Appendix C to this Memorandum. 


 


Construction Emissions 


 


According to the CalEEMod results, the proposed project would result in maximum construction 


criteria air pollutant emissions as shown in Table 2. The proposed project’s construction emissions 


would be below the applicable thresholds of significance.  


  


418 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


16 


September 2020 


Table 2 


Maximum Construction Emissions (lbs/day) 


Pollutant 


Proposed Project 


Emissions 


Threshold of 


Significance Exceeds Threshold? 


ROG 2.19 54 NO 


NOX 35.74 54 NO 


PM10 (exhaust) 0.92 82 NO 


PM10 (fugitive) 2.62 None N/A 


PM2.5 (exhaust) 0.85 54 NO 


PM2.5 (fugitive) 0.91 None N/A 
Source: CalEEMod, February 2020 (see Appendix C). 


 


Although thresholds of significance for mass emissions of fugitive dust PM10 and PM2.5 have not 


been identified by the City of Pinole or BAAQMD, the proposed project’s estimated fugitive dust 


emissions have been included for informational purposes. All projects within the jurisdiction of 


the BAAQMD are required to implement all of the BAAQMD’s Basic Construction Mitigation 


Measures, which would be included in the project approval as Conditions of Approval:  


 


1. All haul trucks transporting soil, sand, or other loose material off-site shall be covered.  


2. All visible mud or dirt track-out onto adjacent public roads shall be removed using wet 


power vacuum street sweepers at least once per day. The use of dry power sweeping is 


prohibited.  


3. All vehicle speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 mph.  


4. All roadways, driveways, and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as possible. 


Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seeding or soil binders 


are used.  


5. Idling times shall be minimized either by shutting equipment off when not in use or 


reducing the maximum idling time to five minutes (as required by the California airborne 


toxics control measure Title 13, Section 2485 of California Code of Regulations [CCR]). 


Clear signage shall be provided for construction workers at all access points.  


6. All construction equipment shall be maintained and properly tuned in accordance with 


manufacturer‘s specifications. All equipment shall be checked by a certified visible 


emissions evaluator.  


7. Post a publicly visible sign with the telephone number and person to contact at the lead 


agency regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective action 


within 48 hours. The Air District’s phone number shall also be visible to ensure compliance 


with applicable regulations.  


 


The proposed project’s required implementation of the BAAQMD’s Basic Construction 


Mitigation Measures listed above for the project’s construction activities, would help to further 


minimize construction-related emissions. 


 


Because the proposed project would be below the applicable thresholds of significance for 


construction emissions, project construction would not result in a significant air quality impact. 


 


419 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


17 


September 2020 


Operational Emissions 


 


According to the CalEEMod results, the proposed project would result in maximum operational 


criteria air pollutant emissions as shown in Table 3. The proposed project’s operational emissions 


would be below the applicable thresholds of significance. As such, the proposed project would not 


result in a significant air quality impact during operations. 


 


Table 3 


Unmitigated Maximum Operational Emissions 


Pollutant 


Proposed Project Emissions 


Threshold of 


Significance 


Exceeds Threshold? lbs/day tons/yr lbs/day tons/yr 


ROG 4.41 0.07 54 10 NO 


NOX 0.41 0.06 54 10 NO 


PM10 (exhaust) 0.77 0.01 82 15 NO 


PM10 (fugitive) 0.19 0.03 None None N/A 


PM2.5 (exhaust) 0.77 0.01 54 10 NO 


PM2.5 (fugitive) 0.05 0.01 None None N/A 
Source: CalEEMod, February 2020 (see Appendix C). 


 


Conclusion 


 


As discussed above, the proposed project is not anticipated to result in short-term construction-


related or long-term operational emissions of air quality pollutants that would be considered to 


have the potential to result in significant effects on the environment. 


 


Water Quality 


 


Water quality degradation is regulated by the federal National Pollutant Discharge Elimination 


System (NPDES) Program, established by the Clean Water Act, which controls and reduces 


pollutants to water bodies from point and non-point discharges. In California, the NPDES 


permitting program is administered by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) 


through nine Regional Water Quality Control Boards (RWQCBs). New development within the 


City that disturbs one or more acres of land is required to comply with the NPDES General 


Construction Permit and prepare a SWPPP incorporating BMPs to control sedimentation, erosion, 


and hazardous materials contamination of runoff during construction. The proposed project would 


disturb approximately 0.81-acres, and, thus, would be exempt from the State NPDES General 


Permit conditions. However, the project would be subject to Section 15.36.190 of the City’s 


Municipal Code, which would require the project to include preparation of an Erosion and 


Sediment Control Plan, capable of effectively minimizing soil erosion and sedimentation from the 


project site during and after construction. Thus, adverse effects to water quality associated with 


construction of the proposed project, including construction of the proposed drainage 


improvements within Hazel Street, would not occur. 


 


Following completion of project construction, the site would be covered with landscaping and 


impervious surfaces and topsoil would not be exposed. All municipalities within Contra Costa 


County are required to develop more restrictive surface water control standards for new 


420 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


18 


September 2020 


development projects as part of the renewal of the Countywide NPDES permit. Known as the “C.3 


Standards”, new development and redevelopment projects that create or replace 10,000 or more 


square feet of impervious surface area must contain and treat stormwater runoff from the site. 


Because the proposed project would create more than 10,000 square feet of impervious surface 


area, the project would be considered a C.3 regulated project and is required to include appropriate 


site design measures, source controls, and stormwater treatment measures.  


 


Consistent with applicable C.3 Standards, water from impervious surfaces within the proposed 


residential development area, such as roofs and concrete driveways, would be routed to front yard 


landscape areas for treatment and infiltration. In addition, the proposed Hazel Street roadway 


improvements would include paving of the existing gravel roadway and installation of new curbs 


and gutters along both sides of the roadway; thus, stormwater runoff from the roadway would 


cease to flow directly into the open portions of the drainage channel, as currently occurs.  


 


Based on the above, the proposed project would not violate any water quality standards or waste 


discharge requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or groundwater quality during 


construction and operations. 


 


Criterion 15332(a): Utilities and Public Services 


 


The proposed residences would tie into existing utility infrastructure within the Hazel Street ROW. 


Water service would be provided by the East Bay Municipal Utility District and serve each of the 


four residences by way of a new water line extension within the Hazel Street ROW, and individual 


north-south connections to each lot. Wastewater service would be provided by the City of Pinole 


Public Works Department. A new six-inch sanitary sewer line would extend along the northern 


portion of the site to connect with the existing sanitary sewer hub at the eastern edge of the site in 


the Hazel Street ROW. New north-south connections to the sanitary sewer main in Hazel Street 


would be made to each of the four proposed residences. For drainage, water from impervious 


surfaces such as roofs and concrete driveways would be routed to front yard landscape areas for 


treatment and infiltration. Given the presence of existing utilities in the immediate project vicinity, 


the proposed project would not require substantial off-site utility improvements. It should be noted 


that the improvements to the open portions of the drainage ditch would not increase the capacity 


of the storm system.3 Similarly, the proposed lift station improvements would not increase the 


capacity of the existing sewer system. 


 


In addition, given that the proposed project is consistent with the site’s current General Plan land 


use and zoning designations, increases in demand on existing utilities and public services 


associated with the project have been previously anticipated in the General Plan and accounted for 


in local planning efforts. The project would be subject to payment of applicable development fees 


levied by the City on new development, including fees used to fund fire protection, police, parks 


and recreation, and other public facilities and equipment. Payment of such fees would help to offset 


any potential increases in demand for public services occurring as a result of development of the 


four proposed single-family residences. Thus, the project site would be adequately served by all 


required utilities and public services.  


                                                 
3  Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer, City of Pinole. Personal communication email 


with Nick Pappani, Vice President, Raney Planning and Management. June 17, 2019. 


421 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


19 


September 2020 


D. EXCEPTIONS TO CATEGORICAL EXEMPTIONS ANALYSIS 


 


Even if a project is ordinarily exempt under any of the potential categorical exemptions, CEQA 


Guidelines Section 15300.2 provides specific instances where exceptions to otherwise applicable 


exemptions apply. Exceptions to a categorical exemption apply in the following circumstances:  


 
(a)  Location. Classes 3, 4, 5, 6, and 11 are qualified by consideration of where the project 


is to be located – a project that is ordinarily insignificant in its impact on the 


environment may in a particularly sensitive environment be significant. Therefore, 


these classes are considered to apply all instances, except where the project may impact 


on an environmental resource of hazardous or critical concern where designated, 


precisely mapped, and officially adopted pursuant to law by federal, state, or local 


agencies. 


(b) Cumulative Impact. All exemptions for these classes are inapplicable when the 


cumulative impact of successive projects of the same type in the same place, over time 


is significant. 


(c)  Significant Effect. A categorical exemption shall not be used for an activity where there 


is a reasonable possibility that the activity will have a significant effect on the 


environment due to unusual circumstances. 


(d) Scenic Highways. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which may 


result in damage to scenic resources, including but not limited to, trees, historic 


buildings, rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially 


designated as a state scenic highway. This does not apply to improvements which are 


required as mitigation by an adopted negative declaration or certified EIR. 


(e)  Hazardous Waste Sites. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project located 


on a site which is included on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the 


Government Code. 


(f)  Historical Resources. A categorical exemption shall not be used for a project which 


may cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource. 


 


The following analysis addresses whether any of the exceptions to the CEQA exemption apply to 


the proposed project.  


 
Criterion 15300.2(a): Location 


 


CEQA exemptions 3, 4, 5, 6, or 11, are qualified by consideration of where the project is to be 


located. Given that the proposed project qualifies for exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 


15332, Class 32, an exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(a) does 


not apply to the proposed project.  


 


Criterion 15300.2(b): Cumulative Impact 


 


Per CEQA Section 15300.2(b), in applying this exception, the cumulative impact must result from 


“successive projects of the same type in the same place.” Both the “same type” and “same place” 


limitations restrict the scope of this exception.4 The project site is located within a residential area, 


                                                 
4  Stephen L. Kostka and Michael H. Zischke. Practice Under the California Environmental Quality Act, Second 


Edition [pg. 5-68]. March 2019 Update.  


422 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


20 


September 2020 


which is mostly developed. The nearest vacant property is located approximately 0.25-mile south 


of the site, along San Pablo Avenue, and no development application has been submitted to the 


City for said site. Thus, the potential for successive future residential projects within the immediate 


project area is limited; and there would be no significant cumulative impacts from successive 


projects of the same type in the same place. 


 


The proposed roadway improvement area currently consists of a gravel pedestrian walkway that 


does not permit vehicle through traffic. Within the southeast and northwest portions of the roadway 


improvement area, the open sections of the drainage ditch would be piped underground. As noted 


previously, the proposed drainage improvements would not increase the capacity of the existing 


stormwater infrastructure in the project area and, thus, would not have the potential to result in 


cumulative growth-inducing impacts.  


 


The proposed roadway improvements to the unpaved portion of the Hazel Street ROW would 


complete the City planned circulation network and allow for vehicle traffic to pass through the 


project site to the existing paved sections of Hazel Street to the east and west. While the proposed 


roadway improvements would allow for vehicle through traffic, the improvements would not be 


anticipated to result in an increase in traffic in the area. In addition, because the proposed project 


would complete a City planned circulation network, the environmental impacts of the proposed 


roadway improvements have already been contemplated in the City’s General Plan EIR.  


 


Based on the above, an exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(b) 


does not apply to the proposed project.  


 


Criterion 15300.2(c): Significant Effect  


 


In listing a class of projects as exempt, the Secretary has determined that the environmental 


changes typically associated with projects in that class are not significant effects within the 


meaning of CEQA, even though an argument might be made that they are potentially significant. 


The plain language of Guidelines Section 15300.2, subdivision (c), requires that a potentially 


significant effect must be “due to unusual circumstances” for the exception to apply. 


 


The determination as to whether there are “unusual circumstances” (Guidelines, § 15300.2, subd. 


(c)) is reviewed under PRC Section 21168.5’s substantial evidence prong. Whether a particular 


project presents circumstances that are unusual for projects in an exempt class is an essentially 


factual inquiry. As to this question, the lead agency serves as “the finder of fact”. 


 


As the courts have noted, local conditions are relevant in determining whether the environmental 


effects of a proposed project are unusual or typical. While the project site contains a drainage ditch 


that conservatively may be subject to the jurisdiction of the Army Corps of Engineers under 


Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, it is instructive that the open drainage ditch that traverses the 


project site is part of a larger system that also daylights on other properties throughout the 


surrounding residential area. It is for this reason that the City of Pinole does not consider the 


presence of the drainage ditch to be an unusual circumstance. The City has not identified any 


unusual circumstances associated with the proposed residential development area. 


 


423 of 611







Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


21 


September 2020 


Even if the on-site ditch was to be considered an unusual circumstance, it is not compelling to 


conclude, applying the fair argument standard, that there is a reasonable possibility that such an 


unusual circumstance will produce a significant effect on the environment (see Berkeley Hillside 


Preservation v. City of Berkeley, 203 Cal. App. 4th 656). An agency may rely on generally 


applicable regulations to conclude an environmental impact will not be significant and therefore 


does not require mitigation.5 Here, the Army Corps of Engineers has regulations of general 


applicability that will prevent a significant impact from occurring; specifically, the proposed 


undergrounding of the ditch and Hazel Street roadway connection must comply with the applicable 


criteria set forth in Nationwide Permit 14, Linear Transportation Projects. Section 23 of NWP 14 


includes measures ensuring that adverse effects would not occur to aquatic features. Thus, an 


exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(c) does not apply to the 


proposed project. 


 


Criterion 15300.2(d): Scenic Highway 


 


According to the California Department of Transportation’s California Scenic Highway Mapping 


System, the nearest officially designated State scenic highway to the project site is a portion of 


State Route (SR) 24 connecting to Interstate 680, located approximately 10.75 miles south of the 


project site.6 Due to the topography of the area and the substantial distance between the project 


site and SR 24, the proposed project would not be visible from the roadway. Therefore, the 


proposed project would not substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, 


trees, rock outcroppings, or similar resources, within a highway officially designated as a state 


scenic highway. An exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(d) does 


not apply to the proposed project.  


 


Criterion 15300.2(e): Hazardous Waste Sites 


 


The California Environmental Protection Agency provides a list of data resources that provide 


information regarding the facilities or sites identified as meeting the “Cortese List” requirements, 


pursuant to Government Code 65962.5. Based on a search of the Department of Toxic Substances 


Control EnviroStor Hazardous Waste and Substances Site List (Cortese), the project site is not 


located on any list compiled pursuant to Section 65962.5 of the Government Code.7 Thus, an 


exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 15300.2(e) does not apply to the 


proposed project.  


 


Criterion 15300.2(f): Historical Resources  


 


The project site is located in an urbanized area of the City of Pinole and is surrounded by existing 


residential development. The site does not contain any existing buildings or other features that 


could be considered historic. In addition, the proposed roadway improvement area has been 


                                                 
5  See Kostka and Zischke, Practice Under the California Environmental Quality Act, Second Edition, Vol 1 


(March 2019 Update), Section 5.75.; San Francisco Beautiful v City & County of San Francisco (2014) 226 


CA4th. 
6  California Department of Transportation. Scenic Highways. Available at: https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/lap-


landscape-architecture-and-community-livability/lap-liv-i-scenic-highways. Accessed January 2020. 
7  Department of Toxic Substances Control. EnviroStor. Available at: https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/. 


Accessed February 2020. 


424 of 611



https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/lap-landscape-architecture-and-community-livability/lap-liv-i-scenic-highways

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/design/lap-landscape-architecture-and-community-livability/lap-liv-i-scenic-highways

https://www.envirostor.dtsc.ca.gov/public/





Hazel Street Project 


Categorical Exemption Memorandum 


 


22 


September 2020 


previously disturbed through the installation of the existing gravel roadway and 44-foot corrugated 


steel culvert, as well as other utility infrastructure such as a City sewer main, sewer lift station, 


and telecommunications and power poles. Because the project site does not contain any existing 


structures, the proposed project would not result in a substantial adverse change in the significance 


of a historical resource. Thus, an exception to the exemption under CEQA Guidelines Section 


15300.2(f) does not apply to the proposed project.  


 


E. CONCLUSION 


 


This Memorandum provides substantial evidence that the proposed project can be considered 


exempt from CEQA under Section 15332, and does not meet any of the exceptions to categorical 


exemptions set forth in Section 15300.2 of the CEQA Guidelines. 


425 of 611







 


 


 


 


 


Appendix A 


 


 


Tree Memo  


426 of 611







 


 


 


 


 


Appendix B 


 


 


Wetlands and Biological Resources Assessment  


427 of 611







 


 


 


 


 


Appendix C 


 


 


Air Quality Modeling Results 


 


428 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 1 


 
Recording requested by and when  


recorded mail to: 


 


City of Pinole 


2131 Pear St 


Pinole, CA 94564 


Attn: Planning Manager 
 


EXEMPT FROM RECORDING FEES PER 


GOVERNMENT CODE §§6103, 27383  


 


 


APNs       Space above this line for Recorder’s use. 


 


 


 


 


AFFORDABLE HOUSING REGULATORY AGREEMENT 


 


AND 


 


DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS 


 


by and between 


 


 


THE CITY OF PINOLE 


a California Municipal Corporation  


 


and 


 


Baljit Dhaliwal and _______,  


a married couple  


 


 


429 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 2 


 


THIS AFFORDABLE HOUSING REGULATORY AGREEMENT AND 


DECLARATION OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS (this “Agreement”) is entered into 


effective as of _____________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the City of Pinole, 


a California municipal corporation (the “City”) and Bajit Dhaliwal & _________, a married 


couple  (“Developer”).  Developer and City are hereinafter collectively referred to as the 


“Parties.” 


 


RECITALS 


 


A. The Developer is the owner of certain property located in the City on western side 


of Hazel Street between Woy Circle and Hazel Lane (the “Project Site”). 


 


B. On ________, 2020 the City Council for the City of Pinole adopted Resoluntion 


No. _____(the “Resolution”) approving Tentative Parcel Map (TSM 17-01) and Comprehensive 


Design Review (DR17-10) for a four-lot residential development located on south side of the 


western terminus of Hazel Avenue (the “Project”).  


 


C. Development of the Project is subject to a Development Agreement enetered into 


by City and Developer, and approved by the City Council pursuant to Ordinance No. _______ 


(the “Development Agrement”).  


 


D. Chapter 17.32 of the Pinole Municipal Code requires that a residential 


development of 4 or more dwelling units located in the City must restrict at least 15% of the total 


units must be constructed as affordable housing units, rounded up to the nearest whole number.  


 


E. Pursuant to the Development Agreement and conditions of approval for the 


Project incorporated into the Resolution, one affordable units were to be sold with resale controls 


and restrictions provided by the City (the “Restricted Unit”). Pursuant to Chapter 17.32, the 


Restricted Unit is required to be affordable for a household with an annual household income of 


not greater than one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the Area Median Income (“Moderate 


Inocme”). 


 


F. Pursuant to the approved Tentative Parcel Map, the Project Site was eventually 


subdivided into four separate legal lots on which single family homeas are to be constructed.  


 


G. Developer is the owner of that certain parcel of real property located at the Project 


Site and also known as Contra Costa County APN_____________ as more particularly described 


and depicted in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein (collectively, the 


“Property”).   


 


H. Pursuant to the Resolution and the conditions of the approval for the Project, the 


Property and Restricted Unit located thereon, are to be sold to an Eligible Buyer at an affordable 


purchase price determined pursuant to the terms set forth herein.  


430 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 3 


I. The Parties intend the covenants set forth in this Agreement to run with the land 


and to be binding upon all parties having or acquiring any right, title or interest in the Property or 


any part thereof, their heirs, successors and assigns. 


 NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 


which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties declare, covenant and agree by and for themselves, 


administrators and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through them, that the Property 


shall be held, transferred, encumbered, hypothecated, used, sold conveyed, improved, leased, and 


occupied subject to the covenants, conditions and restrictions hereinafter set forth, and further 


agree as follows.   


 


1. Definitions.  The following terms shall have the meanings set forth below whenever such 


terms are used in this Agreement and the Exhibits attached hereto.  Additional terms are defined 


in the Recitals and text of this Agreement. 


 


1.1 “Area Median Income” or “AMI” means the area median income for Contra 


Costa California, adjusted for household size, published periodically by the California 


Department of Housing and Community Development (“HCD”) in Section 6932 of Title 25 


of the California Code of Regulations or successor provision published pursuant to 


California Health and Safety Code Section 50093(c).   If HCD ceases to make such 


determination, Area Median Income shall be the median income applicable to Contra Costa 


County, with adjustments for household size, as determined from time to time by the U.S. 


Department of Housing and Urban Development ("HUD") pursuant to the United States 


Housing Act of 1937 as amended, or such other method of median income calculation 


applicable to the City of Pinole that HUD may hereafter adopt in connection with such Act.   


 1.2 “Eligible Buyer” means a prospective purchaser of a Restricted Unit who has 


been pre-qualified by the City or its designee and who satisfies all of the following requirements: 


 


  (a) gross income for the prospective purchaser’s household does not exceed 


Moderate Income, and has not exceeded such amount for the full calendar year immediately 


preceding the date of purchase. 


 


  (b) The prospective purchaser certifies that he or she intends to occupy the 


Restricted Unit as his or her principal residence. 


 


  (c)  The prospective purchaser does not own any other residential real 


property at the time of the purchase. 


 


  (d) The prospective purchaser meets all other applicable eligibility 


requirements of the City in effect at the time of the purchase. 


 


 1.3 “Maximum Initial Sale Price” means the maximum initial price for a Restricted 


Unit as described in Sections 3 and 3.1. 


431 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 4 


 1.4 “Moderate-Income” means an annual household gross income of not greater 


than one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the Area Median Income, adjusted for household 


size. 


 


 1.5 “Restricted Unit” means the residential unit located on the Property which is 


reserved for sale to an Eligible Buyer at a price that will result in an Affordable Housing Cost in 


accordance with and as set forth in Sections 3 and 3.1.  


 


2. Marketing; Qualification of Eligible Buyers.  Developer shall market the Restricted Unit 


to Eligible Buyers in compliance with all applicable fair housing laws. In City’s discretion, the 


City shall pre-qualify Eligible Buyers or shall delegate such responsibility to another entity or to 


Developer.  Developer shall provide to the City proof that prospective purchasers of the 


Restricted Unit qualify as Eligible Buyers at such time and in such form as City may reasonably 


require.  


 


3. Sale of Restricted Unit.  Developer shall sell the Restricted Unit in accordance with all of 


the following terms and conditions: 


 


(i)  The Property, and the Restricted Unit located thereon, shall be sold only to an 


Eligible Buyer who has been pre-qualified by City or its designee at a price not in excess of the 


Maximum Initial Sale Price.  


 


(ii) The Property, and the Restricted Unit located thereon, shall be sold at a price not 


in excess of the Maximum Initial Sale Price to an Eligible Buyer whose household gross income 


does not exceed Moderate-Income.  


 


(iii) The Restricted Unit shall be of the same general design as the other units in the 


Project and shall be comparable to such units in size, amenities and quality of construction.  


 


(iv) In connection with the sale of the Property, and the Restricted Unit located 


thereon, Developer shall require the purchaser to execute a Homebuyer Resale Restriction 


Agreement and Option to Purchase (“Hombuyer Resale Agreement”) in a form provided by 


City and shall cause such Hombuyer Resale Agreement to be recorded in the Official Records of 


Contra Costa County concurrently with the recordation of the grant deed conveying title to the 


Property.  The Hombuyer Resale Agreement shall provide that the Property may only be sold to 


Eligible Households at an affordable price as specified in the Homebuyer Resale Agreement, and 


will further provide that the City shall have a right of first offer to purchase the Restricted Unit 


and an option to purchase such unit upon the occurrence of specified triggering events.   City 


may, in City’s discretion, require the execution, delivery and recordation of additional 


documents in connection with the sale of the Restricted Unit, including without limitation 


disclosure documents and a performance deed of trust securing the homebuyer’s obligations 


under the Homebuyer Resale Agreement. 


 


432 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 5 


3.1 Maximum Initial Sale Price.  Developer shall sell the Property, and the Restricted 


Unit located thereon, to an Eligible Buyer at a price that is not in excess of the Maximum Initial 


Sale Price as determined by the City. The Parties acknowledge that the Maximum Initial Sale 


Price is intended to enable Eligible Buyers to purchase the Property, and the Restricted Unit 


located thereon, at a price that will result in affordable housing costs for such Eligible Buyers. 


 


 (i) Area Median Income for Eligible Buyers shall be determined at the time 


the Eligible Buyer is pre-qualified for purchase in accordance with Section 2 hereof;  


 


  (ii) The Maximum Initial Sale Price means a home purchase price resulting in 


an average monthly housing cost (including mortgage loan principal and interest, mortgage 


insurance fees, property taxes and assessments, an allowance for property maintenance and 


repairs established by the City based on the initial cost and size of the home, homeowner’s 


insurance premiums, a reasonable utility allowance, and homeowner’s association dues) which is 


equal to or less than:   


 


   (a) for Moderate-Income Households:  one-twelfth (1/12th) of thirty-


five percent (35%) of one hundred twenty percent (120%) of Area Median Income, adjusted for 


household size.  


 


 (b) Amounts for utility allowances and other monthly housing cost 


factors including assumed mortgage interest rates, mortgage insurance fees, maintenance and 


repair allowances, homeowners' insurance, and homeowner’s association dues, shall be 


reasonably established by the City in consultation with guidance and regulations published by 


Contra Costa County, the California Department of Housing and Community Development 


and/or the United Stated Department of Housing and Urban Development.   


  


3.2 Compliance Monitoring.  Prior to the close of escrow for the initial sale of the 


Property, Developer shall forward to the City evidence of the purchaser’s status as an Eligible 


Buyer, copies of the buyer’s and seller’s settlement statements, and executed copies of all closing 


documents, including the Homebuyer Resale Agreement and such other documents as City may 


require.  


 


4. Enforcement. The City is deemed to be the beneficiary of  this Agreement and the 


covenants herein, both for and in its own right and for the purpose of protecting the interests of 


the community and other parties, public or private, for whose benefit this Agreement and the 


covenants set forth herein have been provided. If any such covenants are breached, the City shall 


have the right to exercise all rights and remedies at law or in equity, expressly including the 


remedy of specific performance, and to maintain any actions or suits at law or in equity or other 


proper proceedings to enforce the curing of such breaches.  Except as otherwise expressly stated 


in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the parties hereunder are cumulative. 


 


433 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 6 


5.  Default and Remedies.   


 


5.1 Events of Default.  The occurrence of any one or more of the following events 


shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event of Default"): 


(a) Developer’s failure to maintain insurance on the Property and the Project 


as required hereunder, and the failure of Developer to cure such default within ten (10) business 


days. 


(b) Subject to Developer’s right to contest the following charges, Developer’s 


failure to pay taxes or assessments due on the Property or the Project or failure to pay any other 


charge that may result in a lien on the Property or the Project, and Developer’s failure to cure 


such default within ten (10) business days.  


 (c) Developer’s default in the performance of any term, provision or covenant 


under this Agreement, and unless such provision specifies a shorter cure period for such default, 


the continuation of such default for ten (10) business days in the event of a monetary default or 


thirty (30) days in the event of a non-monetary default following the date upon which City shall 


have given written notice of the default to Developer, or if the nature of any such non-monetary 


default is such that it cannot be cured within thirty (30) days, Developer’s failure to commence 


to cure the default within thirty (30) days and thereafter prosecute the curing of such default with 


due diligence and in good faith, but in no event longer than sixty (60) days from receipt of the 


notice of default. 


 


5.2  Remedies.  If within the applicable cure period, Developer fails to cure a default 


or fails to commence to cure and diligently pursue completion of a cure, as applicable, or if a 


cure is not possible, City may bring an action for equitable relief seeking the specific 


performance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and/or enjoining, abating, or 


preventing any violation of such terms and conditions, and/or seeking declaratory relief; or 


exercise any rights and remedies available to City under applicable law or in equity. 


5.3 Liquidated Damages.  In the event the that Developer sells the Property, and 


the restricted unit located thereon, in violation of this Agreement, the City shall retain or 


recover from Developer the surplus, if any, as its property without any deduction, offset or 


recoupment whatsoever.  For the purposes of this section, the surplus shall be the 


difference between the actual sales price net of reasonable and customary real estate 


commissions paid, and the Maximum Initial Sales Price as applicable under the terms of 


this Agreement at the time of sale of the Property. If the Developer should sell the Property 


at market rate to an individual who shall receive title free and clear of the provisions of this 


Agreement, then the damages suffered by the City by reason thereof would be uncertain.  


Such damages would involve the replacement costs for another affordable unit, and the 


expenses of continuing the ownership and control of the Property by the City; 


postponement of tax revenues therefrom to the community; and the failure of the City to 


effect its purposes and objectives within a reasonable time, resulting in additional 


immeasurable damage and loss to the City and the community.  It is impractical and 


434 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 7 


extremely difficult to fix the amount of such damages to the City, but the Parties are of the 


opinion, upon the basis of all information available to them, that such damages would 


exceed the amount of any projected surplus as the total of all liquidated damages and not 


as a penalty.  In the event that this section should be held to be void for any reason by a 


court of law, the City shall be entitled to seek the full extent of damages otherwise provided 


by law.   


5.4 No Waiver.  No failure or delay by the City in the assertion of any of its rights 


and remedies as to any default shall operate as a waiver of any default or of any such rights or 


remedies.  


 


  5.5 Limitation on Damages.  In no event shall damages be awarded against City upon 


an event of default or upon termination of this Agreement 


 


 5.6 Mortgagee Right to Cure Default.  This Agreement shall be recorded in the 


Official Records of Contra Costa County and shall be superior and senior to any lien thereafter 


placed upon the Property, or any portion thereof, including the lien for any loan, deed of trust, or 


mortgage ("Mortgage").  Notwithstanding the foregoing, no breach hereof shall defeat, render 


invalid, diminish or impair the lien of any Mortgage made in good faith and for value, but all the 


terms and conditions contained in this Agreement shall be binding upon and effective against any 


person or entity, including any lender, deed of trust beneficiary, or mortgagee ("Mortgagee") 


who acquires title to the Property, or any portion thereof, by foreclosure, trustee's sale, deed in 


lieu of foreclosure, or otherwise. 


 


6. Covenants to Run with the Land.  Developer hereby subjects the Property to the 


covenants, conditions and restrictions set forth in this Agreement.  The Parties hereby declare 


their express intent that all such covenants, conditions and restrictions shall be deemed covenants 


running with the land and shall pass to and be binding upon the Developer’s successors in title to 


the Property.  All covenants without regard to technical classification or designation shall be 


binding for the benefit of the City, and such covenants shall run in favor of the City for the entire 


term of this Agreement.  Each and every contract, deed or other instrument hereafter executed 


applicable to or conveying the Property or any portion thereof shall conclusively be held to have 


been executed, delivered and accepted subject to such covenants, conditions and restrictions, 


regardless of whether such covenants, conditions and restrictions are set forth in such contract, 


deed or other instrument. 


 


7. Nondiscrimination. 


 


 7.1 Nondiscrimination.  There shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any 


person, or group of persons, on account of any basis listed in subdivision (a) or (d) of Section 


12955 of the Government Code, as those bases are defined in Sections 12926, 12926.1, 


subdivision (m) and paragraph (1) of subdivision (p) of Section 12955, and Section 12955.2 of 


the Government Code, in the sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment 


of the Property or the Project, or any part thereof, nor shall Developer, or any party or person 


435 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 8 


claiming under or through Developer, establish or permit any such practice or practices of 


discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or occupancy 


of tenants, lessees, subtenants, sublessees or vendees of the Property, or any part thereof. 


 


 7.2 Anti-Discrimination Clauses in Agreements.  Developer and its successors and 


assigns shall refrain from restricting the rental, sale, or lease of any portion of the Property or the 


Project to any person on account of any basis listed in subdivision (a) or (d) of Section 12955 of 


the Government Code, as those bases are defined in Sections 12926, 12926.1, subdivision (m) 


and paragraph (1) of subdivision (p) of Section 12955, and Section 12955.2 of the Government 


Code.  All such deeds, leases or contracts shall contain or be subject to substantially the 


following nondiscrimination or nonsegregation clauses: 


 


8. Term; Release of Property from Agreement.  


 


  (a) Subject to paragraph (b) below, the term of this Agreement shall 


commence upon the Effective Date, and shall, without regard to technical classification or 


designation, shall run with the land and be binding on Developer and its successors and assigns 


for the benefit of the City and the City.  The covenants contained in this Agreement shall remain 


in effect for the longest feasible time, but not less than forty-five (45) years.  


 


  (b) Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, this Agreement shall be 


terminated and the lien hereof shall be extinguished and released from title to the Property upon 


the occurrence of all the following:  (i) the issuance of final certificates of occupancy for the 


Restricted Unit, (ii) the sale of all of the Property, and the Restricted Unit located thereon, to an 


Eligible Buyer, and (iii) the recordation of the Homebuyer Resale Agreement and City Deed of 


Trust for all Restricted Unit.  Provided that conditions (i) through (iii) above have been satisfied 


with regards to an entire building with the Project, then that specific building will be released 


from this Agreement. 


 


9. Insurance and Indemnity.   


 


 9.1 Indemnity.  Developer shall indemnify, defend (with counsel approved by City) 


and hold City, its elected and appointed officers, officials, employees, agents, and representatives 


(collectively, the “Indemnitees”) harmless from and against all liability, loss, cost, expense 


(including without limitation attorneys’ fees and costs of litigation), claim, demand, action, suit, 


judicial or administrative proceeding, judgment, penalty, deficiency, fine, order, and damage (all 


of the foregoing collectively “Claims”) arising directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as a 


result of or in connection with Developer’s development, sale or ownership of the Restricted 


Unit and/or the Project, or Developer’s performance or nonperformance under this Agreement.  


Developer’s indemnification obligations under this Section 10.1 shall not extend to Claims 


resulting solely from the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Indemnitees.  The provisions 


of this Section 9.1 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement and the 


release of the Property or any part thereof from the burdens of this Agreement.  It is further 


agreed that City and City do not and shall not waive any rights against Developer that they may 


436 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 9 


have by reason of this indemnity and hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by 


City, or the deposit with City by Developer, of any of the insurance policies described in this 


Agreement. 


 


 9.2 Insurance.  For so long as Developer maintains an interest in the Restricted Unit, 


Developer shall maintain at Developer’s expense, comprehensive general liability insurance and 


property damage insurance with such coverage and limits as may be reasonably requested by 


City from time to time, but in no event less than the sum of Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) 


per occurrence combined single limit.  Such policies shall be issued by insurers licensed to issue 


such policies in California and having a rating of A-VII or better in Best’s Insurance Guide, shall 


be primary coverage not contributing with and not in excess of any coverage that City may carry, 


and shall name the Indemnitees (defined in Section 10.1) as additional insureds.  Upon City 


request, Developer shall provide City with such proof of insurance as City shall reasonably 


request. 


 


10. Miscellaneous. 


 


 10.1 Notices.  Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all notices required to 


be sent pursuant to this Agreement shall be made by personal delivery or by deposit in the 


United States mail, first-class, postage prepaid, and shall be deemed to have been delivered and 


received on the date of personal delivery or five (5) days after deposit in the mail, if sent to the 


following address: 


 


 City:   City of Pinole 


  2131 Pear Street 


  Pinole, CA 94564 


    Attn:  Planning Manager 


 


Developer:   Baljit Dhaliwal 


  1068 Turquoise Drive 


    Hercules, CA 94547 


     


 10.2 Attorneys’ Fees.  If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an 


action for declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the 


prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to 


which that party may be entitled.  The court may set such fees in the same action or in a separate 


action brought for that purpose. 


 


 10.3 Waivers; Modification. No waiver of any breach of any covenant or provision of 


this Agreement shall be deemed a waiver of any other covenant or provision hereof, and no 


waiver shall be valid unless in writing and executed by the waiving party.  An extension of time 


for performance of any obligation or act shall not be deemed an extension of the time for 


performance of any other obligation or act, and no extension shall be valid unless in writing and 


executed by the waiving party.  This Agreement may be amended or modified only by a written 


437 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 10 


instrument executed by the Parties and duly recorded in the Official Records of Contra Costa 


County. 


 10.4 Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent 


jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall continue in full 
force and effect.  


 10.5 Captions; Construction.  Each party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to 


participate in the drafting of the agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore, the 
usual construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply hereto.   


 


 10.6 Action or Approval.  Whenever action and/or approval by City is required under 


this Agreement, the City Manager or his or her designee may act on and/or approve such matter 


unless specifically provided otherwise, or unless the City Manager determines in his or her 


discretion that such action or approval requires referral to City Council consideration.  


 


 10.7 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including Exhibits A, B and C attached hereto 


and incorporated herein by this reference contains the entire agreement of the Parties with respect 


to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements, understandings, 


representations or statements with respect to the subject matter hereof.   


 


 10.8 Binding on Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 


benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns. Each reference in this 


Agreement to a specifically named Party shall be deemed to apply to any successor or assign of 


such Party who has acquired an interest in the Property. 


 


 10.9 Due Authorization.  Developer hereby represents and warrants that all actions 


necessary on the part of Developer to authorize the execution of this Agreement and to undertake 


the actions contemplated hereby have been undertaken and the persons executing this Agreement 


on behalf of Developer have been duly authorized to do so. 


  


10.10 Parties Not Co-Venturers.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to or shall 


establish the Parties as partners, co-venturers, or principal and agent with one another. 


 


10.11 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of 


which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument. 


 


10.12 Further Assurances.  The Parties agree to execute such instruments and to 


undertake such actions, as may be necessary to effectuate the intent of this Agreement.  


 


 10.13 Governing Law; Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 


accordance with the laws of the State of California without regard to principles of conflicts of 


laws. Any action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall be filed in the Superior Court of 


438 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 11 


Contra Costa County, California or in the Federal District Court for the Northern District of 


California. 


 


 10.14 Time is of the Essence.  In all matters under this Agreement, the Parties agree that 


time is of the essence.  


 


   


 


SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 


 


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and Developer have executed this Regulatory Agreement 


and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants as of the date first written above.  


 


CITY 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 


a municipal corporation 


 


 


By:_________________________________ 


 Andrew Murray, City Manager 


 


 


 


ATTESTATION: 


 


 


By: ________________________  


 Heather Iopu, City Clerk 


 


APPROVED AS TO FORM: 


 


 


By: ________________________  


DEVELOPER: 


BAJIT DHALIWAL 


an individual 


By:_________________________________ 


 Bajit Dhaliwal 


 


By:_________________________________ 


Bajit Dhaliwal 


Eric Casher, City Atotrney  


 


 


 


 


SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED. 


3624341.1 


439 of 611







 ATTACHMENT I AT 
 


3624341.1 2 


  


A Notary Public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 


individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, 


accuracy, or validity of that document. 


 


State of California 


County of __________________ 


On ___________________before me, _________________________________,  a Notary 


Public, personally appeared ______________________________________________, who 


proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are 


subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same 


in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signatures(s) on the instrument 


the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.  


I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 


foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 


WITNESS my hand and official seal. 


______________________________________ 


Signature of Notary


440 of 611







 


 


Exhibit A 
 


PROPERTY 
 


(Attach legal description) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


441 of 611







   


 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 9A 
 


 
DATE: NOVEMBER 17, 2020 
 
TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  


FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
 HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE FARIA HOUSE AD 


HOC COMMITTEE AND CONSIDERATION OF A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING (MOU) REGARDING THE RENOVATION OF THE 
FARIA HOUSE AND LEASE TO THE PINOLE HISTORY MUSEUM 


 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council receive the findings and recommendations 
of the Faria House Ad Hoc Committee (“Committee”) and consider a resolution 
(Attachment A) approving a memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) between the City 
and the Pinole History Museum (“PHM”) regarding the renovation of the Faria House 
and lease to PHM. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The building commonly referred to as the “Faria House” is a two-story residence 
constructed in about 1890 and originally located at what is now 1301 Pinole Valley 
Road. Over the past few decades, the former Pinole Redevelopment Agency 
(“Redevelopment Agency”) and the City have considered various options for the use of 
the property at 1301 Pinole Valley Road and the house itself. 
 
In June 2020, the City Council created the Faria House Ad Hoc Committee 
(“Committee”) to provide recommendations to the City Council on the use of the house. 
The Committee was specifically charged with providing recommendations on matters 
related to the Faria House’s renovation for use as a local history museum, including the 
site and building renovation designs and specifications, lease provisions and/or cost 
sharing agreements between the City and PHM, and options to fund the City’s share of 
the cost to renovate and maintain the Faria House building and site. 
 
Below find a summary of the history of the house and property, and of the 
redevelopment of the property. Also find a summary of plans for the reuse of the house 
and renovation designs and cost estimates. Finally, find information regarding a 
potential MOU between the City and PHM addressing the renovation of the Faria House 
and lease to PHM that the Committee recommends that the City Council consider for 
approval. 
 


442 of 611







City Council Report, 9A 
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  2 


History of the Faria Farmstead 
 
The property at 1301 Pinole Valley Road was historically known as the Faria Farmstead 
and consisted of seven buildings including a house, barn, and additional outbuildings. 
The house sat atop a knoll with a view of Pinole Valley. It was built by carpenter William 
Allen in 1891 for his daughter Louise, as a wedding gift when she married James H. 
Tennent, son of Samuel Tennent, one of Pinole’s early settlers. The Tennents soon sold 
the house along with 4.5 acres to a Mr. Morgan, who soon thereafter sold it to Joseph 
Dutra Faria, an immigrant from the Azores Islands. The Farias were one of the early 
families to settle in the area. The family eventually expanded the farmstead from the 
original 4.5 acres to over 280 acres. Joseph ran the farm alongside his son William, who 
remained at the ranch his entire life. The acreage once filled much of Pinole Valley and 
part of Hercules. The farm grew tomatoes, hay, and grain and raised cattle. William was 
a well-known local figure and landowner. He continued to run the farm and ranch 
through the 1950s, and passed away in the mid-1980s. 
 
Redevelopment of the Faria Property and House 
 
The site on which the Faria House was located was incorporated into the Pinole Vista 
Redevelopment Area in 1981. In 1996, the Redevelopment Agency purchased the then 
6.5-acre parcel, including the house and other buildings, for $2.1 million (Attachment B). 
A Feasibility Study Committee had identified in 1992 that a 47,000 square foot 
community center serving a variety of community meeting and recreational needs would 
be desirable within the Redevelopment Project Area. In 1994, a Municipal Services 
Task Force recommended that the center be built with redevelopment funds within the 
Redevelopment Project Area. City records indicate that the Faria House property was 
acquired by the Redevelopment Agency in part so that the Redevelopment Agency 
could preserve the option of building a community center on the site. Prior to and 
subsequent to the Redevelopment Agency’s acquisition of the property, various options 
were considered for the redevelopment of the site, including renovating the Faria House 
on the site for a future use to be determined, but no improvements were made. 
 
In 2003, the Redevelopment Agency approved the acquisition of 2100 San Pablo 
Avenue, utilizing affordable housing funds, and hired an architect to create a vision for a 
“Heritage Park,” possibly including the Faria House, on the site. The vision included two 
phases, the relocation of the Faria House and related site improvements and the 
construction of three single-family cottages on the site. 
 
The Redevelopment Agency sold a portion (4.9 acres) of 1301 Pinole Valley Road to 
Kaiser in 2005 for $5.2 million for the development of the Kaiser Pinole Medical Offices, 
which were completed in 2009. In 2015 and 2020, the City sold the two remaining 
portions, for $348,500 and $470,000, respectively. 
 
The Faria House was relocated to 2100 San Pablo Avenue in 2005. The cost of the 
move and ancillary improvements was paid with Redevelopment Agency affordable 
housing funds. Therefore, the property underlying the Faria House and the building itself 
became the property of the Redevelopment Agency Affordable Housing Fund. 


443 of 611







City Council Report, 9A 
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  3 


 
In 2005 and 2006, the Redevelopment Agency considered various reuse options for the 
Faria House, including mixed commercial, residential, and public or nonprofit uses. In 
September 2006, following a presentation from the Pinole Historical Society (“PHS”), 
the Redevelopment Agency directed staff to create potential deal points for the use of 
the Faria House as a local history museum. Staff presented the potential deal points on 
October 17, 2006 (Attachment C). The Redevelopment Agency board moved to accept 
the deal points presented by PHS and directed staff to create the final documents.  
 
In October 2007, the Council adopted a resolution approving expenditure of $400,000 to 
renovate the Faria House and a lease and grant agreement with PHS (Attachments D 
and E). Pursuant to the proposed lease, the City would contribute $400,000 to the 
renovation and PHS was required to raise the additional money needed to complete the 
renovation. In August 2008, the City received a letter from PHS stating that the PHS 
Board would not approve the lease and considered it “null and void.” It also stated that 
“given the ‘clean slate’, we have now entered new negotiations with City/RDA staff 
regarding use of the Faria House as a museum.” 
 
In 2008, the Redevelopment Agency hired a professional museum consultant to 
conduct a study to determine the feasibility of PHS operating a museum in the Faria 
House. The results of the study were presented to the Redevelopment Agency in 
November 2009 (Attachment F). Discussion of reuse of the Faria House was then put 
on hold due to the Great Recession. 
 
Post-Redevelopment Plans for the Faria House 
 
When the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved in 2012 and the City of Pinole elected 
to become the Housing Successor Agency, responsible for the affordable housing 
assets of the Redevelopment Agency, the Faria House and the underlying parcel 
became the property of the City’s Housing Successor Agency. The Housing Successor 
Agency is responsible for using its assets to create or sustain affordable housing. 
 
So that the City could use the Faria House for a purpose other than affordable housing, 
the City purchased the Faria House, excluding the underlying parcel, from the Housing 
Successor Agency in July 2016 for $30,000, which was the fair market value based on 
an appraisal and the cost of renovation. The City Council directed staff to identify 
possible uses of the property. In September 2016, staff presented the Council with a 
report on possible uses (Attachment G). Following a discussion, the City Council 
approved a motion to use the Faria House as a museum. The City Council also directed 
staff to obtain an estimate of the cost to renovate the Faria House to be suitable to 
serve as a public museum. 
 
In September 2016, the City issued a letter of intent to dedicate the Faria House as a 
location and future venue for the Pinole History Museum (Attachment H). In August 
2018, the City issued a letter of intent to establish an agreement with PHM for use of the 
Faria House as a technology-rich museum, noting that production of the project is 
conditional on obtaining sufficient financial resources (Attachment I). 


444 of 611







City Council Report, 9A 
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  4 


 
Renovation Design and Cost Estimate 
 
In June 2018, the City executed a contract with Interactive Resources (IR, Attachment 
J), an architecture firm with extensive experience renovating historic structures, to 
design the improvements that would be required for the building to serve as a public 
museum. IR consulted with City staff as well as representatives of PHM to create a 
building program, which consisted of interior spaces for exhibits, an archive, a gift shop, 
and meeting spaces. IR completed 95% construction documents in December 2019. 
These included an elevator to provide access to the second floor and were compliant 
with the California Historical Building Code, which is an adjunct to the California Building 
Code. IR’s subconsultant, Silva Cost Consulting (“Silva”), created an estimate for the 
renovation construction cost in January 2020, which was $1,419,837, including some 
improvements specific to a museum use and assuming a construction start date of 
summer 2020. 
 
In June 2020, the City Council created the Faria House Ad Hoc Committee (Attachment 
K, “Committee”), which was specifically charged with providing recommendations on 
matters related to the Faria House’s renovation for use as a local history museum, 
including the site and building renovation designs and specifications, lease provisions 
and/or cost sharing agreements between the City and the Pinole History Museum 
(PHM), and options to fund the City’s share of the cost to renovate and maintain the 
Faria House building and site. 
 
The Committee met on several occasions to review IR’s 95% construction documents 
and Silva’s estimate, as well as to receive input from PHM on the renovation design and 
cost estimate. The Committee and City staff engaged with IR and Silva to create an 
updated renovation design. The updated renovation scope does not include any 
updates to the building exterior or to the site (except potentially site modifications that 
might be required to meet recent ADA requirements). The design includes an elevator, 
the reuse of as much historic building material as feasible, and a multi-split HVAC 
system. Based on the updated renovation scope, Silva provided a revised renovation 
construction cost estimate on September 17, 2020 (Attachment L). The September 17, 
2020 renovation construction cost estimate is $1,165,435 plus $66,326 for tenant 
improvements (special museum electrical work) and assumes construction in summer 
2021. Note that the project has not yet completed the City’s planning or building review 
and permitting processes. As such, the design might need to be modified to meet City 
requirements. 
 
The renovation construction cost is just one component of the project’s total project 
cost. In addition to the cost of the renovation construction, the project has also required 
architecture and engineering and will require construction project management, permits, 
and possibly site improvements. Together, those could amount to a total project cost of 
approximately $1,400,000 or more. This total project cost estimate does not include the 
furniture, fixtures, and equipment (FFE) that a museum would need to open. The total 
project cost estimate also does not include the cost of ongoing maintenance and 


445 of 611







City Council Report, 9A 
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  5 


renewal of the building and site, which City staff estimates could cost approximately 
$50,000 annually. 
 
Cost Sharing Agreements and/or Lease Provisions Between the City and PHM 
 
The Committee was specifically charged with providing recommendations to the City 
Council on lease provisions and/or cost sharing agreements between the City and PHM. 
The Committee met on several occasions to consider different cost sharing and lease 
options. The Committee sought the input of PHM on approaches and options. The 
Committee directed City staff to draft some form of agreement that would address the 
issues of the renovation and lease. Staff proposed a framework that involves a MOU 
between the two parties as well as a lease between the two parties. The Committee and 
staff worked together to create a draft MOU, which was reviewed by the City Council in 
closed session on November 3, 2020. At that meeting, the City Council provided 
direction to staff on the proposed MOU (Attachment M). The Council directed staff to 
share the proposed MOU with PHM for review and feedback. 
 
The Committee is recommending that the City Council consider a resolution approving 
the proposed MOU. The MOU establishes that if PHM can raise funding sufficient to pay 
for tenant improvements and FFE, the City will complete the renovation of the Faria 
House if the total project cost is less than or equal to $1,200,000 million (including 
architecture, costs of entitlements and CEQA, construction management, construction, 
and site improvements, excluding tenant improvements and FFE). If those conditions 
are met, the City would also execute a lease with PHM for the Faria House with certain 
parameters. 
 
Options to Fund the City’s Share of the Faria House Renovation and Maintenance 
 
In July 2020, City staff presented Council with information on potential funding sources 
for the Faria House renovation (Attachment N). One of the potential funding sources 
noted was unassigned General Fund balance, which includes the City’s share of the 
proceeds of the sale of former Redevelopment Agency properties. Note that on October 
6, 2020, City staff presented the five-year forecast for the General Fund and Measure S 
Funds for fiscal year (FY) 2020/21 through FY 2024/25 (Attachment O). The forecast 
contains updated information on expected unassigned fund balance in the General 
Fund and Measure S Funds. The General Fund balance is now forecasted to be $3.9 
million at the end of FY 2020/21, decline to $3.3 million at the end of FY 2022/23, then 
increase to $3.7 million at the end of FY 2024/25. Those totals include amounts from 
the sale of the Pinole Assisted Living Community (PALC) and the City’s share of 
proceeds from the sale of former Redevelopment Agency properties at Henry Avenue 
and Pinole Valley Road and the seven-acre parcel located at the Pinole Shores II 
Business Park. (Recall that aside from the unassigned General Fund balance discussed 
above, the City currently has and plans to maintain a distinct General Reserve equal to 
50% of General Fund ongoing operating expenditures.) 
 


446 of 611







City Council Report, 9A 
Meeting Date: November 17, 2020  6 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
The City has made numerous incremental investments in and statements of intent 
regarding the Faria House’s restoration and use as a local history museum over the 
years. The City now has information on the estimated one-time and ongoing cost to 
renovate and maintain the property upon which to base a decision regarding whether to 
renovate the building and lease it to PHM. The proposed MOU is fairly binding on the 
City. If the bids for project costs come in such that the total project cost to the City as 
defined is less than $1.2 million, and PHM meets the fundraising threshold, the City is 
obligated to carry out the renovation and enter a lease with PHM. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Were the City Council to approve the execution of the MOU with PHM, the City would 
be obligated, if certain conditions precedent were met, to seek bids for the renovation. If 
the bids for the elements comprising the total project cost (architecture and engineering, 
construction management, environmental review and permits, construction, and 
possibly site improvements) totaled $1.2 million or less, the City would be obligated to 
conduct the renovation, provide up to 500 hours of City staff time for project 
management, lease the facility to PHM, and maintain the building and site. PHM would 
be required to pay for the tenant improvements, FFE, and operational expenses of 
running a museum. Note that if the total project cost totaled more than $1.2 million, the 
City would have the option of proceeding with the renovation if PHM offered to make up 
the funding gap. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution 
B. Faria House Purchase and Sale Agreement 
C. Redevelopment Agency Potential Deal Points for the Use of the Faria House as 


a Local History Museum 
D. Resolution Approving Expenditure of $400,000 to Renovate the Faria House 
E. Resolution Approving a Lease and Grant Agreement with PHS 
F. Feasibility Study Regarding PHS Operating a Museum in the Faria House 
G. Report to City Council on Possible Uses of the Faria House 
H. City Letter of Intent to Dedicate the Faria House as a Location and Future Venue 


for the Pinole History Museum 
I. City Letter of Intent to Establish an Agreement with PHM for Use of the Faria 


House as a Museum 
J. Contract with Interactive Resources 
K. Resolution Creating the Faria House Ad Hoc Committee 
L. Revised Renovation Construction Cost Estimate of September 17, 2020 
M. Proposed MOU between the City and the Pinole History Museum Regarding the 


Renovation of the Faria House and Lease to PHM 
N. City Council Staff Report on Potential Funding Sources for the Faria House 


Renovation 
O. Five-Year Forecast for the General Fund and Measure S Funds for Fiscal Year 


(FY) 2020/21 through FY 2024/25 


447 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


RESOLUTION 2020-XX 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING A MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING AND COOPERATION AGREEMENT WITH 


THE PINOLE HISTORY MUSEUM 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City owns that certain building located at 2100 San Pablo 
Avenue known as the Faria House; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Pinole History Museum (“PHM”) was formed as a nonprofit 
corporation in 2017 in order to fund, construct, and operate a local history museum; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Faria House is in need of renovation in order to house a 
museum; and 
 
 WHEREAS, renovation will require architecture and engineering, environmental 
review, permits, construction management, construction, and site improvements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Faria House Ad Hoc Committee has directed City staff to draft a 
cooperation agreement that sets forth an understanding of the City’s and PHM’s 
responsibilities for the renovation of the Faria House and the operation of the museum; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City, in consultation with PHM, has prepared a Memorandum of 
Understanding and Cooperation Agreement (the “Agreement”), substantially in the form 
on file with the City Clerk; and 
 
 WHEREAS, execution of the Agreement will assist PHM in its fund raising goals 
for its share of the costs of the museum. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
hereby: 
 
Section 1. Declares the above recitals are true and correct and incorporated by this 
reference. 
 
Section 2.  Approves the Agreement, substantially in the form on file with the City 
Clerk with such changes as are approved by the City Manager and the City Attorney, 
provided that such changes do not constitute a material change to the Agreement.  
 
Section 3. Authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the Agreement 
and to take all actions and execute all documents necessary to carry out the intent of 
this Resolution.  


448 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Pinole 
held on the 17th day of November 2020 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on 
this 17th day of November 2020. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
3626552.1  


449 of 611







BUYER/BORROWER
ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS


TO CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY
3575 San Pablo Dam Road, Suite 100, El Sobrante, California 94803
Telephone No	 (510) 222-4750	 FAXNo (510) 222-4786


Escrow No 207314	 - DJS	 Escrow Officer Dee Schuman	 Date January 12, 1996
Property Address


I/We the undersigned buyer(s) hand you a Cashiers Check or we will wire transfer
funds in the amount of $2,112,351 00 as shown on the enclosed estimated
settlement statement, signed, read and approved escrow instructions, additional
escrow instructions, preliminary report, and additional supporting documentation
as required,


which you are instructed to use when you can obtain a CLTA OWNERS
form policy of title Insurance containing the insuring clauses, exceptions exclusions, provisions and stipulations customarily


contained in the printed provisions of such form with liability not less than $ 2,100,000 00
describing the land in the City of Pinole	 County of Contra Costa
and described in the Preliminary Report dated November 20, 1995


showing the A FEE


in said land vested in


PINOLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY


Subject to


County and/or City taxes paid to 1-1-96 Covenants, conditions, restrictions,
rights of way, easements and reservations of record Specifically, items No
1, 2 (1ST PAID) , 3(1ST PAID) , 4 (1ST PAID) , 5, 6,7,8,9,16, in the Preliminary Title
Report dated 11/20/95


ANY POLICY AND/OR ENDORSEMENTS REQUESTED HEREIN, WHICH WILL BE ISSUED AFTER
THE DATE OF THE INITIAL POLICY CONTEMPLATED BY THIS TRANSACTION, WILL BE
SUBJECT TO THE COMPANY'S STANDARD UNDERWRITING PRACTICES AND REVIEW


You are to prorate as of CLOSE OF ESCROW	 the following COUNTY AND CITY TAXES AND, RENT ON SIGN


You are instructed to make deductions, adjustments and disbursements in accordance with the statement attached hereto and


made a part hereof Estimated amounts may be adjusted dependent upon date of close of escrow


NOTICE THE GENERAL PROVISIONS OF THIS ESCROW ARE PRINTED ON THE ATTACHMENT MADE A PART HEREOF BUYER


ACKNOWLEDGES THAT THE LIMITED AGENCY OF THE ESCROW AND THE RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES HERETO SHALL BE
CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE THEREWITH


If the escrow is not in condition to close by January 19, 1996	 , and demand or cancellation is received by you from
any principal to this escrow after said date, you shall act in accordance with the General Provisions attached hereto and made
a part hereof If no demand for cancellation is made, you will proceed to close this escrow when the principals have


complied with the escrow instructions


Received	 Time


CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY


ATTACHMENT B


450 of 611







451 of 611







452 of 611







453 of 611







454 of 611







455 of 611







CHT'AGO TITLE COMPANY


ESTIMATED BUYER'S/BORROWER'S SETTLEMENT STATEMENT


ESCROW NUMBER 00634-000207314-001 	 ORDER NUMBER 00634-000207314


CLOSING DATE 01/31/96 	 CLOSER Dee Schuman


BUYER	 PINOLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY


SELLER	 DOLORES A LUCAS
DEANNA M BROWNLEE
MARGARET E PRATHER
DELORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE
DELORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE
DOLORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE


PAGE 01


PROPERTY
	 Henry Avenue,Pinole Valley,Road,(Vacant, 1301 Pinole ValleyRd, Pinole,


California


CHARGE BUYER	 CREDIT BUYER


Sales Price


Prorations And Adjustments
County Taxes from 01/01/96 to 01/20/96
Total amount $	 2,274 61 for 180 days


$	 2,100,000 00


Rent - Sign from 01/01/96 to 01/20/96
Total amount $	 50 00 for	 30 days


Settlement or Closing Fee To Chicago Title 425 00
Document Preparation To Chicago Title 75 00
Title Insurance To Chicago Title 4,995 00
Recording Fees 22 00
City/County Tax/Stamps 6,930 00
Monument Fee 5 00


Notary Fees	 50/50 25 00
Change of Ownership Fee	 50/50 10 00
Document Review Fee	 50/50 50 00


Funds Due From Buyer At Closing


TOTALS $	 2,112,537 00


$


164 35


21 65


2,112,351 00


$ 2,112,537 00


PINOLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY


DATE 01/18/96 09 57 53 456 of 611







ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS (Continued)
	TO 	CHICAGO TITLE CO & -kNY


	
Escrow No 2 0 73 14 - DJS
Date	 January 12, 1996


1	 PRORATE as of CLOSE OF ESCROW	 the following COUNTY AND CITY TAXES AND RENT ON SIGN
2
3


	


4	 Assume a 30 day month in any proration herein provided and unless otherwise instructed you are to use the information contained in


	


5	 the latest available tax statement including any supplemental taxes of record, rental statement as provided by seller and beneficiary s


	


6	 or association statements delivered into escrow for proration purposes


	


7	 Upon close of escrow you are instructed to charge our respective accounts the costs attributable to each, including but not limited to


	


8	 the following as indicated below and/or in accordance with our respective estimated statements attached hereto and made a part


	


9	 hereof


10
11	 BUYER agrees to pay


	


12	 FEES AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED ESTIMATED SETTLEMENT STATEMENT
13
14
15
16
17


	


18	 SELLER agrees to pay


	


19	 FEES AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED ESTIMATED SETTLEMENT STATEMENT
20
21
22
23
24
25


	


26	 Time is of the essence of these instructions If this escrow is not in a condition to close by the TIME LIMIT DATE of


	


27	 JANUARY 1 9 , 1996 	 and written demand for cancellation is received by you from any principal to


	


28	 this escrow after said date you shall act in accordance with paragraph 7 of the Additional Provisions If no conflicting instruction or
demand for cancellation is made, you will proceed to close this escrow when the principals have complied with the escrow


	


29	 instructions In the event one or more of the General Provisions are held to be invalid in judicial proceedings, those remaining will


	


30	 continue to be operative Any amendments of or supplements to any instructions affecting escrow must be in writing The principals
31	 will hand you any funds and instruments required from each respectively to complete this escrow
32	 If any check submitted to escrow is dishonored when presented for payment you are authorized to notify all principals and/or their


	


33	 respective agents of such non payment
34
35	 You are instructed to deliver and/or record all documents and disburse all funds when you can comply with these instructions and


insure title as called for herein These instructions may be executed in counterparts and together shall constitute one and the same36	 document If these instructions relate to a sale buyer agrees to buy and seller agrees to sell upon the terms and conditions hereof All
37	 documents, balances and statements due the undersigned are to be mailed to the respective addresses shown herein, unless
38	 otherwise directed In the event that any party to this escrow utilizes facsimile transmitted signed documents, all parties hereby agree


to accept and hereby instruct the escrowholder to rely upon such documents as if they bore original signatures Buyer and seller39	 further acknowledge that any documents to be recorded bearing non original (facsimile) signatures will not be accepted for recording
40	 by the county recorder


GENERAL PROVISIONS
	1	 The phrase close of escrow (or COE) as used in this escrow means the date on which documents are recorded unless otherwise


specified


	


2	 Recordation of any instruments delivered through this escrow, if necessary or proper for the issuance of the policy of title insurance
called for, is authorized


	


3	 No examination or insurance as to the amount or payment of personal property taxes is required unless specifically requested


4 You and any of your affiliates or employees are authorized to use the information and documents in this escrow for any purpose You
are further authorized to furnish to any broker or lender identified with this transaction or anyone acting on behalf of such broker or
lender any instructions amendments statements or notices of cancellation given in connection with this escrow


_


	5	 All written notices, communications, change of instructions and documents are required to be delivered timely at the office of Chicago
Title Company as set forth herein


	


6	 All funds received in this escrow shall be deposited with other escrow funds in one or more escrow (demand) accounts of Chicago Title
Company in any state or national bank The parties to this escrow understand that the escrow accounts you maintain with the


457 of 611







ESCROW INSTRUCTIONF continued)
TO CHICAGO TITLE COMr ANY


	
Escrow No 2 073 1 4 - DJS
Date	 January 1 2 , 1996


GENERAL PROVISIONS CONTINUED
8 In the event that this escrow is canceled any fees or charges due Chicago Title Company including cancellation fees and any


expenditures incurred or authorized shall be paid from funds on deposit unless otherwise specifically agreed to or determined by a court
of competent jurisdiction Upon payment thereof return documents and monies to the respective parties depositing same, or as ordered
by the court and void any executed instruments


9 If there is no written activity by a principal to this escrow within any six month period after the Time Limit Date set forth herein, Chicago
Title Company may at its option terminate its agency obligation and cancel this escrow returning all documents monies or other items
held to the respective parties entitled thereto less any fees and charges as provided herein


10	 If for any reason funds are retained or remain in escrow after the closing date you may deduct therefrom a reasonable charge as
custodian of not less than $25 00 per month unless otherwise specified


11 In the event that you should receive or become aware of conflicting demands or claims with respect to this escrow or the rights of any of
the parties hereto or any money or property deposited herein you shall have the absolute right at your option to discontinue any or all
further acts until such conflict is resolved to your satisfaction


12 In the event that any Offer to Purchase Deposit Receipt, or any other form of Purchase Agreement is deposited in this escrow it is
understood that such document will be effective only as among the parties signing said document You as escrow holder are not to be
concerned with the terms of such document and are relieved of all responsibility in connection therewith You are to be concerned only
with the directives specifically set forth in these escrow instructions and amendments thereto Further you are not to be concerned or
liable for items designated as memoranda in these escrow instructions nor with any other agreement or contract between the parties


13 You are released from and shall have no liability obligation or responsibility with respect to (a) withholding of funds pursuant to Section
1445 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and to Sections 18662 and 18668 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code
(b) advising the parties as to the requirements of said Section 1445 (c) determining whether the transferor is a foreign person or a
non resident under such Section nor (d) obtaining a non foreign affidavit or other exemption from withholding under said Sections nor
otherwise making any inquiry concerning compliance with such Sections by any party to the transaction


14	 The parties hereto by execution of these instructions acknowledge that the escrowholder assumes no responsibility or liability whatsoever
for the supervision of any act or the performance of any condition which is a condition subsequent to the closing of this escrow


15	 In the absence of instructions to the contrary you are hereby authorized to utilize wire services, overnight next day or other expedited
delivery services (as opposed to the regular U S Mail) and to charge the respective party s account accordingly


16	 If you pay a demand to reconvey a revolving line of credit or equityline deed of trust you are hereby instructed on my behalf and for my
benefit, to request that the lender issuing said demand cancel said revolving line or equitylme of credit


17 You are authorized to destroy or otherwise dis pose of any and all documents, papers instructions correspondence and other material
pertaining to this escrow at the expiration of six (6) years from the close of escrow or cancellation thereof without liability and without
further notice


IMPORTANT NOTICE
Except for wire transfers funds remitted to this escrow are subject to availability requirements imposed by Section 12413 1 of the California
Insurance Code CASHIERS, CERTIFIED or TELLER S checks payable to CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY are generally available for disbursement
on the next business day following the date of deposit


Other forms of payment may cause extended delays in the closing of your transaction pursuant to the requirements imposed by State Law


(wire transfer information available upon request)


ALL PARTIES TO THIS ESCROW ACKNOWLEDGE THAT CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY DOES NOT PROVIDE LEGAL
ADVICE NOR HAS IT MADE ANY INVESTIGATION, REPRESENTATIONS OR ASSURANCES WHATSOEVER
REGARDING THE LEGAL ASPECTS OR COMPLIANCE OF THIS TRANSACTION WITH ANY TAX, SECURITIES OR
ANY OTHER STATE OR FEDERAL LAWS IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE PARTIES OBTAIN INDEPENDENT
LEGAL COUNSEL AS TO SUCH MATTERS


DOLORES A LUCAS	 PINOLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY


DEANNA M BROWNLEE
SEE ADDITIONAL SIGNATURES PAGE ATTACHED
HERETO AND MADE A PART HEREOF BY REFERENCE


Current Address	 Current Address 458 of 611







ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS ADDITIONAL SIGNATURES


TO CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY Escrow No	 2 0 7 3 14 	 - DJS
Date	 January 12, 1996 


1 SELLERS (Continued) BUYERS (Continued)
2


3
4
5
6 MARGARET E PRATHER
7
8
9 DELORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE
10
11
12
13
14 DELORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE
15
16
17 DOLORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
ao


41
42
43
44


45
46
47
as


49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58


459 of 611







UPPLEMENTAL ESCROW INSTF ;TIONS


CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY
3575 San Pablo Dam Road, Suite 100, El Sobrante, California 94803


Escrow No 207314	 - DJS	 Escrow Officer Dee Schuman	 Date 01/15/96


1 ******************************************************************************
2
3 The undersigned hereby acknowledge and agree that the disbursement of funds
4 deposited to the within escrow shall be governed by Chapter 598, Statutes of 1989,
5 which provide, in part, that funds may be disbursed on the day they are deposited if
6 such funds have been wired into the escrow holder's account In the event that
7 funds deposited with the escrow holder are in the form of a cashier, certified, or
8 teller check, disbursement will occur no earlier than the business day following the
9 deposit of such funds In the event that funds other than those identified above
10 are deposited to escrow, the undersigned understand and agree that the closing of
11 escrow and the disbursement of funds shall be delayed until the escrow holder can
12 comply with Chapter 598, Statutes of 1989, with no liability to Chicago Title
13 Company for any additional fees, expenses, or costs incurred as a result of such
14 delay
15
18 *******************************************************************************
19
20 We understand that the current taxes may be increased pursuant to a revaluation by
21 the assessor's office as follows
22 "Escrow holder shall not be concerned with, or liable for payment, adjustment or
23 proration of, Supplemental Taxes assessed pursuant to Chapter 498, Statutes of 1983,
24 State of California, unless specifically reflected on the Tax Assessor's rolls All
25 assessments not shown on the tax rolls are to be adjusted outside of escrow The
26 title policy will contain an exception for the lien of any assessment of
27 Supplemental Taxes assessed pursuant to Chapter 498, Statutes of 1983
28 FURTHER, CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY MAY REQUIRE BUYER TO TAKE TITLE SUBJECT TO THE
29 POSSIBLE LIEN OF SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES INCURRED BY SELLER UNLESS SAID SUPPLEMENTAL
30 TAXES ARE SPECIFICALLY REFLECTED ON THE TAX ASSESSOR'S ROLLS, CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY
31 IS NOT TO BE LIABLE OR RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PAYMENT, ADJUSTMENT OR PRORATION OF THESE
32 SUPPLEMENTAL TAXES, AS THEY ARE TO BE HANDLED OUTSIDE OF ESCROW BY THE PARTIES AS
33 THEY MAY DEEM NECESSARY


35 *******************************************************************************
36
37 Enclosed herewith is a preliminary change of ownership report which effective July
38 1, 1985 is required to be COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED by the buyers of all
39 properties located in the County of Contra Costa This form must accompany all deeds
40 transferring ownership on properties in the County of Contra Costa or a fine of
41 $20 00 will be levied against the buyer or seller in the recording fees
42 PLEASE RETURN THE COMPLETED FORM TO THE ATTENTION OF THE UNDERSIGNED SO AS NOT TO
43 CAUSE DELAY AT CLOSING OR ADDITIONAL FEES TO BUYER OR SELLER
44
45 *******************************************************************************
46
47 We have read the Preliminary Report No 000207314 dated 11/20/95, and approve the
48 policy of title Insurance to be issued to the buyer as required by our instructions
49 in your escrow No 000207314 to include as encumbrances therein exceptions No
50 1,2(1st paid),3(1st paid), 4(1st paid), 5,6,7,8,9,16, of said report, in addition to
51 those specific items described in our escrow instructions or created by us
52
63 *******************************************************************************
54
55
56	 SEE NEXT PAGE FOR ADDITIONAL
57
58
59
60	 INSTRUCTIONS AND SIGNATURES


460 of 611







SUPPLEMENTAL ESCROW STRUCTIONS (continued)
TO CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY


EscrowNo 207314	 -DJS
Date January 15, 1996


1
2
3	 PROPERTY BEING PURCHASED IN "AS IS" CONDITION
4
5	 THE UNDERSIGNED BUYER AND SELLER HEREBY AGREE THAT THE PROPERTY BEING PURCHASED AT
6	 1301 PINOLE VALLEY ROAD, PINOLE, CALIF , IS BEING PURCHASED IN ITS "AS IS" PRESENT
7	 CONDITION THE UNDERSIGNED HAVE NOT OBTAINED OR REQUESTED A TERMITE REPORT ON
8	 SUBJECT PROPERTY AS OF THIS DATE AND HEREBY STATE THAT THEY WAIVE ANY REPORT BEING
9	 MADE THE UNDERSIGNED ALSO AGREE TO HOLD HARMLESS AND WITHOUT LIABILITY CHICAGO


10	 TITLE COMPANY AND ALL BROKERS AND AGENTS, IF ANY, AND EACH OTHER AS A RESULT OF THIS
11	 WAIVER
12
13
14
15	 THE UNDERSIGNED UNDERSTAND AND AGREE THAT THESE INSTRUCTIONS WILL BECOME A PART OF
18	 THEIR BUYER'S AND SELLER'S ESCROW INSTRUCTIONS UPON EXECUTION
19
20
21	 PINOLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
22
23
24
25	 BY
26
27
28	 DATE 	
29
30
31
32	 DOLORES A LUCAS
33
34
35
38	 DEANNA M BROWNLEE
37
38
39
40	 MARGARET E PRATHER
41
42
43
44	 DELORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE
45
46
47


48	 DELORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE
49
50
51
52	 DOLORES A LUCAS, TRUSTEE
53
54
55	 DATE 	
56
57
58
59
60
61
62


461 of 611







Escrow #207314


IMPORTANT NOTICE TO NEW PROPERTY OWNERS


SUBJECT AVOIDING PROPERTY TAX PENALTIES


Your Tax Collector's experience has shown that many tax delinquencies occur during the
first year of property ownership As a new property owner you should be aware of the
following


A) Tax bills are prepared and assessed against the owner as a
lien on the property as of March 1st The bills are mailed by the Tax
Collector on or immediately prior to November 1st of each year If your deed
was recorded after March 1st, the bill will be mailed to the prior owner If
for any reason a property owner does not receive a tax bill for each parcel of
property in which he has an interest by the 15th of November he should contact
the Tax Collector's office An exception to this would be arrangements made
for an agent or lender to receive and pay a tax bill on the property owner's
behalf


B) The fiscal year for which taxes are levied is July 1st
through June 30th Taxes become a lien as of 12 01 A M March 1st preceeding
the fiscal year


C) THE FIRST installment is due and payable in the Tax
Collector's office on November 1st and delinquent after 5 00 P M December
10th A 10% penalty attaches thereafter


D) THE SECOND installment is due and payable in the Tax
Collector's office on February 1st and delinquent after 5 00 P M April 10th
A 10% penalty attaches thereafter Also a $10 00 redemption charge is due when
the second installment becomes delinquent


E) If a delinquent date falls on Saturday, Sunday or legal
holiday, the time of delinquency is 5 00 P M on the next business day


F) The taxpayer, at his discretion, may pay both installments
on or before December 10th No additional bill is sent for the second
installment The second installment cannot be paid unless the first
installment has been paid


G) It is the property owner's responsibility to obtain and pay
this bill Non-receipt of a tax bill does not relieve the imposition of
penalties after the delinquent date The Tax Collector has no discretion
regarding penalties


WE SUGGEST THAT YOU READ YOUR TITLE REPORT AND/OR ESCROW PAPERS CAREFULLY TO ASCERTAIN
WHICH TAXES WERE PAID IN CLOSING, AND WHICH TAXES YOU WILL BE CALLED UPON TO PAY TO
AVOID UNNECESSARY PENALTIES DUE TO THE FACT THAT YOU DID NOT RECEIVE YOUR BILL, YOU
SHOULD WRITE TO ALFRED P LOMELI,'CONTRA COSTA TAX COLLECTOR, P 0 BOX 631, MARTINEZ,
CALIFORNIA 94553, AND GIVE HIM YOUR NAME, MAILING ADDRESS, AND YOUR TAX BILL NUMBER
(PARCEL NO ) AND REQUEST THAT THE BILL BE MAILED IN YOUR CARE IN THE EVENT THAT YOU ARE
IN DOUBT ABOUT THE AMOUNT OR THE STATUS OF YOUR TAXES, CALL THE TAX COLLECTOR'S OFFICE
AT (510) 646-4122


We also want you to be aware that recent legislation will allow the County to reassess
the property and levy increased taxes effective on the date of transfer of title to a
new owner


Escrow holder shall not be concerned with, or liable for payment, adjustment, or
proration of Supplemental Taxes assessed pursuant to Chapter 498, Statutes of 1983,


462 of 611







CHICAGO TITLE COMP
3575 San Pablo Dam Road, Suite 100, El Sobrante, California 94803
Rxme (510) 222-4750	 Fax (510) 222-4786


Escrow No 207314	 - DJS	 Escrow Officer Dee Schuman	 Date 01/15/96


NOTICE OF TAX WITHHOLDING REQUIREMENTS


1	 In accordance with Sections 18662 and 18668 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code, a buyer
2 may be required to withhold an amount equal to THREE AND ONE-THIRD percent (3-1/3%) of
3	 the total sales price in the case of a disposition of California real property interest by either
4
5	 1	 A seller who is an individual with a last known street address outside of California or
6	 when the disbursement instructions authorize the proceeds be sent to a "financial
7	 intermediary" of the seller, OR
8
9	 2	 A corporate seller which has no permanent place of business in California
10
11 The buyer may become subject to penalty for failure to withhold in an amount equal to the greater
12 of Ten percent (10%) of the amount required to be withheld or five hundred dollars ($500)
13
14 However, notwithstanding any other provisions included in the California statutes referenced above,
15 no buyer will be required to withhold any amount or be subject to penalty for failure to withhold if
16
17 1	 The sales price of the California real property conveyed does NOT exceed one
18	 hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), OR
19
20 2	 The seller executes a written certificate, under the penalty of perjury, certifying that
21	 the seller is a resident of Califorma, or if a corporation, has a permanent place of


, 22	 business in California, OR
23
24 3	 The seller, who is an individual, executes a wntten certificate, under the penalty of
25	 perjury, that the California real property being conveyed is the seller's "principal
26	 residence" (as used in Section 1034 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986), OR
27
28 4	 The seller is a "partnership" as determined in accordance with Subchapter K of
29	 Chapter 1 of Subtitle A of the U S Internal Revenue Code
30
31 The seller is subject to penalty for knowingly filing a fraudulent certificate for the purpose of
32 avoiding the withholding requirement
33
34 Additionally, under the federal "Foreign Investment in Real Property Tax Act" (FIRPTA) as
35 amended and related laws, a buyer may be required to withhold, and could be liable for, an
36 additional tax equal to TEN percent (10%) of the sales price of the real property being conveyed, in
37 the case of a seller who may also be classified as a "foreign person" under Section 1445 of the
38 Internal Revenue Code of 1986
39
40 The Federal and California statutes referenced above include provisions which authonze the IRS
41 and Franchise Tax Board to grant reduced withholding and waivers from withholding on a
42 case-by-case basis The parties herein may wish to investigate these options with their own legal or
43 financial advisors, the Franchise Tax Board or the Internal Revenue Service
44
45 The escrow holder will not undertake to withhold or remit funds to any taxing authority, unless
46 specifically instructed in writing to do so In the event escrow is so requested, appropriate mutual
47 instructions will be required
48 --


463 of 611







5..c ACD /if 552 A Filo! T 2 9
PRELIMINARY CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP REPORT


[To be com leted b transferee bu or •nor to transfer of sub ect •ro e in accordance with Section 480 3
o the Revenue and Taxation Code) A Preliminary Change of Ownership Report must be filed with each
conveyance in the County Rccorder s otfico for the county where the property is located this particular form
may be used in all 58 counties of California


THIS PEPOPT IS NOT A PUBLIC DOCUMENT


FOR RECORDER S USC ON..Y


SELLERrfRANSFEROR Dolores A. Lucas, et al
BUYER/TRANSFEREE Pinole Redevt..lopment Agency
ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER(S) 401-211-016, 017; 018
PROPERTY ADDRESS OR LOCATION Henry Avenue, Pinole Valley Rd & 1301 Pinol
MAIL TAX INFORMATION TO Name Valley Road, Pinole, CA


Address


NOTICE A lien for property taxes applies to your property on March 1 of each year lo the taxes owing in the following fiscal year July 1 throw
June 30 One nail of these taxes is due November 1 and one half is duo February 1 The first installment becomes delinquent on December 11
and the second installment becomes delinquent on April 10 One tax bill is mailed before rovember 1 to the owner of record IF THIS TRANSFE


OCCURS AFTER MARCH 1 AND ON OR BEFORE DECEMBER 31, YOU MAY BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SECOND INSTALLMENT C
TAXES DUE FEBRUAR) 1


The property which you acquired may be subject to a supplemental assessment in an amount to be dete mined by the 	


County Assessor For further information on your supplemental roll obligation please call the CCnt_Ta C.C6ta 	County Assess,


at (510) 313-7400 


PART I TRANSFER INFORMATION	 Please answer all questions
YES NO/-


O re/ A Is this transfer solely between husband and wife (Addition of a spouse death of a spouse divorce settlement etc)'
0 GI' B Is this transaction only a cor rection of the name(s) of the person(s) holding title to the property (For example a


name change upon marriage)?
O C7/ C Is this document recorded to create terminate or reconvey a lender s interest in the property?
O 104/ D Is this transaction recorded only to create terminate or reconvey a securit interest (e g cosigner)?
O ley E Is this document reco rded to substitute a trustee under a deed of trust mortgage or other similar document?
O 0'	 F Did this transfer result in the creation of a joint tenancy in which the seller (transferor) remains as one of the joint


tenants?
O t3' 	 Does this transfer return proper ty to the person who created the joilt tenancy (original transferor)?


H Is this transfer of property
O Z.;	 1 to a trust for the benefit of the grantor or gr-mtor s spouse?
O 161,,	 2 to a trust revocable by the transferor?
O elVi.	3 to a trust from which the property reverts to the grantor within 12 years?
O DIII,‘ I If this property is subtect to a lease is the remaining lease term 35 years or more including written options?
O Orz, J Is this a transfer from parents to children or from children to parents?
O Diz K Is this transaction to replace a principal residence by a person 55 years of age or older?
O ta	 L Is this transaction to replace a principal residence by a person who is severely disaoled as defined by Revenue a


Code Section 69 5?
If you checked yes to J K or L an applicable claim form must be filed with the County Assessor
Please provide any other information that would help the Assessor to understand the nature of the transfer


IF YOU HAVE ANSWERED "YES TO ANY OF THE ABOVE QUESTIONS EXCEPT J K OR L PLEASE SIGN AND DATE
OTHERWISE COMPLETE BALANCE OF THE FORM


PART II OTHER TRANSFER INFORMATION
A Date of transfer if other than recording date 	
B Typ4r, "of transfer Please check appropriate box


ti Purchase	 0 Foreclosure	 0 Gift
O Contract of Sale — Date of Contract


0 Trade or Exchange	 0 Merger Stock or Panne ship Acquisition


O Inhen ance — Date of Death 	 0 Other Please explain 	
O Creation of Lease	 0 Assignment of a Lease 	 0 Termination of a Lease


Date lease began 	
Original term in years (including written options) 	
Remaining term in years (including writter options) 	


• Was only a partial interest in the property transferred ?	0 Yes	 No
If yes indicate the percentage transferred tO


464 of 611







years Pymts IMo


Duo Date


= 	
 
(Prm & kit only)	 Amount $ 	


O Nev% Loan
O Assumed Exicting Loan Balance


Amount $ 	


SEE ASO AN -.02 A BAC,' 52 91


PRELIMINARY CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP REPORT
Please answer to the best of your knowledge all applicable questions sign and date If a question does not apply indicate with N/A


PART III PURCHASE PRICE AND TERMS OF SALE
A CASH DOWN PAYMENT OR Value of Trade or Exchange (excluding closing costs) Amount $(93 /04000 


Pymts /Mo	 $ 	 (Prin Z. Int only)	 Amount $ 	
O New Loan
O Assumed Existing Loan Balance


	 Wrapped) 0 Bank or Savings & Loan
O Finance Company


Amount $ 	


B FIRST DEED OF TRUST g 	
O FHA
O Conventional
O VA
O Cal Vet
Canoon Payment	 0 Yes


C SECOND DEED OF TRUST g
O Bank or Savings & Loan
O Loan Carried by Seller
Bailoon Payment	 0 Yes


"/.. interest for 	 years
O Fixed Rate
O Vanablo Rite
O All inclusovo D T ($
O Loan Carried by Seller
C) No	 Duo Date


% interest for 	
O Fixed Rate
O Variable Rate
O No


D O'ER FINANCING Is other


Type 	
O Bank or Savings & Loan
O Loan Carried by Seller
Balloon Payment	 0 Yes


financing involved not covered in


	 % interest for 	
O Fixed Rate
O Vanable Rate
• ro


(b) or (c) above ?	0


years Pymts /Mo = 	


Due Date


Yes 0 No	 Amount $ 	


(Prm & Int only)
O New Loan
O Assumed Existing Loan Balance


Amount $ 	


G PROPERTY PURCHASED	 0 Through a broker


Outstanding Balance


if traded or exchanged include real estate commission if paid ) 	


Total Items A through E


0 Direct from seller 	 0 Other (explain) 	


E IMPROVEMENT BOND 0 Yes
	 O No


F TOTAL PURCHASE PRICE (or acquisition pnce


Amount $ 	


$	 /6'0,60004'22


If purchased through a broker provide broker's name and phone number 	


Please explain any special terms or firancing and any other information that would help the Assessor understand the purchase price and term
of sale


PART IV PROPERTY INFORMATION


" IS PERSONAL PROPERTY INCLUDED IN PUPCHASE PRICE
Co t ner than a mobtlehome subject to local property tax)? 	 0 Yes	 0 No
If yes enter the value of me personal property included in the purchase price $ 	 (Attach itemized list of personal propel),


6 IS THIS PROPERTY INTENDED AS YOUR PRINCIPAL RESIDENCE? 	 0 Yes	 0
If yes enter date of occupancy 	 / 	  19 	 or Intended occupancy


	


MONTH	 DAY


No
	 19


MONTH
	


DAY


C TYPE OF PROPERTY TRANSFERRED
3 Single family residence	 0 Agricultural	 0 Timeshare
O Multiple family residence (no of units 	 ) 0 Co op/Own your own	 0 Mobilehome
O Commercial/Industrial	 0 Condominium	 0 Unimproved lot
O Other (Descnption 	
DOES THE PROPERTY PRODUCE INCOME? 	 0 Yes	 0 No


IF THE ANSWER TO QUESTION D IS YES IS THE INCOME FROM
O Lease/Rent	 0 Contract	 0 Mineral Rights	 0 Other — Explain 	


WHAT WAS THE COND ITION OF PROPERTY AT THE TIME OF SALE?
O Good	 0 Average	 0 Fair	 0 Poor
Enter here or on an attached sheet, any other information that would assist the Assessor in determining the value of the property such as the physic
condition of the property restrictions etc


I certify that the foregoing is true correct and complete to the best of my knowledge and belie'


Date 	Siened
NEW OWNER/CORPORATE OFFICER


Please Print Name of New Owner/Corporate Officer 	


sne Number where you are available from 8 00 a m — 5 00 p m (


(NOTE The Assessor may contact you for further Information)


If a document evidencing a ch,..nge of ownership is presented to the recorder for recordation without the concurrent filing of a preliminary
•


465 of 611







466 of 611







467 of 611







468 of 611







469 of 611







470 of 611







471 of 611







472 of 611







473 of 611







474 of 611







475 of 611







ATTACHMENT A


ATTACHMENT C


476 of 611







ATTACHMENT A477 of 611







ATTACHMENT A478 of 611







REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY  
 REPORT 2007-67 8A


OCTOBER 2, 2007 


TO: CHARLES A. LONG, INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 


FROM: FRANCINE KUYKENDALL, REDEVELOPMENT ANALYST 


SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LEASE AND GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE PINOLE HISTORICAL SOCIETY FOR 
THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2100 SAN PABLO AVENUE IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $400,000 


RECOMMENDATION 
To adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Interim Executive Director to execute a Lease and 
Grant Agreement with the Pinole Historical Society (Society) for the property located at 
2100 San Pablo Avenue (also known as the “Faria House”) in an amount not to exceed 
$400,000. 


BACKGROUND 
On October 17, 2006, the Agency Board accepted terms of a draft agreement with the 
Society to lease the property. 


Staff and the Society have agreed on the attached Grant and Lease Agreement. 


DISCUSSION 
The attached Lease & Grant Agreement is substantially complete and includes the following 
terms: 


• Five-year lease, with 3 automatic 5-year renewals (20 years).
• Society responsible for interior restoration.
• Agency will contribute, on a matching basis, an amount not to exceed $400K toward


restoration.  The match will be at $4 of Agency contribution to every $1 raised by the
Society.


• Society is responsible for all cost overruns.  Costs in excess of $500K ($400K from
Agency and $100K from Society) are the sole responsibility of the Society.  If
Society completes the renovations for less than $400K, the Agency will contribute
remaining funds towards museum improvements.


• Triple Net Lease – The Society is responsible for all expenses associated with the
property.


ATTACHMENT D


479 of 611







Redevelopment Agency Report #2006-67 
October 2, 2007  2 


C:\Documents and Settings\kuykendall\Desktop\8A.doc 


• Society will contribute $500/month to the Agency to a Replacement Reserve account, 
which will cover capital costs such as roofing, plumbing, and electrical. 


• Museum hours will be 10 am – 3 pm Tuesday through Sundays. 
• No fee to museum visitors. 
• City/Agency may use the facility during off-term hours. 
• Society is responsible for observing all laws including, but not limited to prevailing 


wage and competitive bidding, and obtaining all necessary permits. 
 
As of mid-September, the Society had received contributions of $10,000.  The Society is 
currently involved in fundraising efforts and seeking volunteer assistance. 
 
 
BLIGHT ALLEVIATION 
This project meets the original redevelopment objective of upgrading the downtown of 
Pinole to encourage activities and public uses that meet the needs of Pinole residents. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Funding for the above is provided for in the Agency’s adopted FY 2007-08 Capital Budget, 
Line Item Heritage Park Improvements, Account # 334-41310-8853. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 


A. Resolution 
B. Lease & Grant Agreement 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


480 of 611







Attachment A 


REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY RESOLUTION NO. ____-2007 
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AUTHORIZING THE 
INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE AGENCY TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AND GRANT 
AGREEMENT WITH THE PINOLE HISTORICAL SOCIETY FOR THE PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2100 
SAN PABLO AVENUE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $400,000 
 


WHEREAS, on November 22, 1972, the City Council of the City of Pinole (the “City”) adopted 
Ordinance No. 313, establishing the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pinole (the “Agency”) and 
approving the Redevelopment Plan for the Pinole Vista Redevelopment Project (the “Project Area”), as 
amended and restated by Ordinance No. 2004-05 on May 5, 2004, and as may be further amended from 
time to time; (the “Plan”); and 
 


WHEREAS, pursuant to California Community Redevelopment Law (Health and Safety Code 
Section 33000 et. seq.) (the “Redevelopment Law”), the Agency is authorized to engage in redevelopment 
activities that alleviate blighting conditions within the Project Area and that primarily benefit the Project 
Area, within the territorial jurisdiction of the Agency; and  
 


WHEREAS, the Agency owns the property located at 2100 San Pablo Avenue; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinole Historical Society agrees to cause interior renovations to the property to be 


constructed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinole Historical Society agrees to establish and maintain a first-class historical 


museum on said property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Pinole Historical Society agrees to a 4-to-1 financial matching program, through 


which the Agency matches $4 for every $1 earned or donated to the Society for the renovation project with 
an Agency contribution not to exceed $400,000; and 


 
WHEREAS, on October 17, 2006, the Board accepted terms and a draft agreement with the Pinole 


Historical Society to lease the property. 
 
 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF 
PINOLE AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 Section 1. The Agency hereby finds that all recitals are true and correct. 
 


Section 2. The Agency hereby authorizes the expenditure of Redevelopment Agency Funds 
in an amount not to exceed $400,000. 
 


Section 3. The Executive Director of the Agency or his designee is hereby authorized to 
execute any and all documents in substantially the form on file with the City Clerk and to take such other 
action as necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 
 


481 of 611







 Attachment A 


PASSED AND ADOPTED this 2nd day of October 2007 by the following vote. 
 


AYES:    
NOES:    


    ABSENT:    
  ABSTAIN:    
 
______________________ 
Patricia Athenour, CMC 
City Clerk/Agency Secretary 


482 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
 


LEASE AND GRANT AGREEMENT 
 


THIS LEASE AND GRANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) made and entered into this _____ day of 
______________, 2007 (“Execution Date”) by and between the Redevelopment Agency of the 
City of Pinole, a public body corporate and politic (hereinafter referred to as “Agency”), and The 
Pinole Historical Society, Inc., a California nonprofit corporation (hereinafter referred to as 
“Society”) and together, with agency, the “Parties”. 


 
RECITALS 


 
 A. On November 22, 1972, the City Council of the City of Pinole (“City”) adopted 
Ordinance No. 313, approving the Redevelopment Plan (as amended and restated by Ordinance 
No. 2004-05 on May 5, 2004, and as may be amended from time to time, “Redevelopment Plan”) 
for the Pinole Vista Redevelopment Project (“Project Area”); and  
 
 B. The Agency has heretofore adopted an Implementation Plan (“Implementation 
Plan”) setting forth programs and activities for the Project Area, including redeveloping the City’s 
downtown area and encouraging activities and public uses that meet the needs of City residents; 
and  
 
 C. On March 5, 2003, the Agency acquired real property located within the Project 
Area at 2100 San Pablo Avenue, APN 401-120-029, as more specifically described in Exhibit A 
hereto (“Property”); and  
 
 D. Agency has prepared a conceptual and preliminary master plan for development 
of the Property, including creation of a phased conceptual “Heritage Park,” relocation of the 
historical “Faria House” owned by the Agency to the Property, and inclusion of an initial 
architectural renovation plan detailing all renovation and tenant improvements to be completed on 
the Property (the “Preliminary Master Plan”), attached as Exhibit C and incorporated herein; and  
 
 E. Society shall work with an architect to complete the final architectural renovation 
plan detailing all renovation and tenant improvements to be completed on the Property.  Such final 
plan shall be added to the Preliminary Master Plan and referred to as the Final Master Plan (“Final 
Master Plan”) and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 F. On March 5, 2005, Faria House was relocated to the Property; and  
 
 G. Society desires to operate the “Pinole Historical Museum” in the Faria House in 
order to showcase the City’s local history; and 
 


H. Agency intends to provide a grant to fund a portion of the cost of improving the 
Faria House for use as the Pinole Historical Museum (the “Project”) in order to facilitate the 
Redevelopment Plan; and  
 


1012339-6  Lease Agreement 
  Faria House 


1


483 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


I. Society will complete the Project by installing and constructing those certain tenant 
improvements set forth in the architectural renovation section of the Final Master Plan (the 
“Improvements’); and  
 


J. The Agency and Society have agreed to enter into this Agreement subject to its 
terms, conditions and covenants. 
 


AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set forth herein, 
the Parties agree as follows: 
 


ARTICLE I: Lease 
 
1. Lease of Premises.  Agency hereby leases to Society, and Society leases from Agency, 
Faria House (approximately 2,495 square feet of leasable area), all parking areas, and all 
landscaped areas located on the Property (collectively, the “Premises”), as approximately shown 
on the architectural plans attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Site Plan”). Except as set forth in this 
Agreement to the contrary, Society shall have the right to exclusively use the Premises for 
operation of the Pinole Historical Museum and related uses.    
 
2. Commencement of Lease; Term.  The lease term shall commence (“Commencement 
Date”) on the first day following the Execution Date of this Agreement.  The lease term shall 
continue for five (5) years from the Commencement Date (“Initial Lease Term”).  The Initial Lease 
Term shall automatically extend for three (3) additional terms of five (5) years each (each a “Lease 
Term”) unless terminated by either Party upon not less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to 
the other Party before the expiration of the applicable Lease Term.  The Initial Lease Term shall be 
rent-free.  Upon establishment of the Commencement Date, the Parties shall execute a 
memorandum acknowledging such date.  Unless otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, the 
Parties have no obligation hereunder prior to the Commencement Date. 
 
3. Society Obligations.   
 
 3.1. Museum.  No later than eighteen (18) months of the Commencement Date 
(“Establishment Period”), Society shall establish, operate, and maintain on the Premises the 
following:  the Pinole Historical Museum (including but not limited to a gallery documenting the 
history of the City, the Agency, and the Faria family; historical reference and research materials 
and facilities; and graphic and historical documentation). 
 
 3.2 Rent.  During the Initial Lease Term, Agency shall allow Society to occupy the 
Premises rent-free (“Rent-Free Period”).  After the Rent-Free Period, Society shall pay rent to 
Agency in an amount equal to comparable rent paid at that time by similar nonprofit corporations 
within the City for occupancy of retail and office space (“Rent”), as determined by the sole 
discretion of Agency. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


2 


484 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


 3.3 Public Use.  Agency and City may use the Premises up to four (4) times per year 
for special events at which Society and its members agree to dress in period clothing and staff the 
event.  Additionally, Agency and City shall be given priority of the use of the Premises during Off-
Term Hours (defined in Section 3.7). Use of the Premises by entities other than Society, City or 
Agency shall be in accordance with policies and procedures of the Agency governing public use of 
Agency facilities.    
 
 3.4 Sublease.  Society may sublease a portion of the Premises only upon written 
approval of the Agency.  After the Rent-Free period, Society shall provide Agency with ten percent 
(10%) of all total revenue received as a result of Society’s activities on the Premises (except 
fundraising revenue), less the cost of the goods sold and all additional expenses related to such 
goods (“Net Profits”).   
 
 3.5 Improvements.   
 
  a. Society.  Notwithstanding the Improvements required by Section 4 and 
movement of the caboose onto the Property upon retention of all applicable City permits, Society 
may install and make other improvements on the Property only upon prior written approval of the 
Agency and receipt of all necessary City approvals (i.e., building permits and design review).  The 
improvements shall preserve the Property in compliance with Section 13 of this Agreement.   
 
  b. Agency.  Agency shall have a right of entry onto the Premises to make 
such improvements to the Premises and the Property as the Agency determines reasonable, 
including but not limited to the Improvements required by Section 4.  
 
 3.6 Utilities and Maintenance.  Society shall be responsible for all utility costs and day-
to-day maintenance of the Premises, including but not limited to: commercial liability and property 
insurance; security alarm system; electricity; water; garbage; groundskeeper; janitorial services 
and supplies; museum telephone system; insurance; utilities; maintenance; and landscaping.  
Additionally, each month Society shall provide the Agency with Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00)  
which the Agency shall place into a special account to pay costs of capital projects to maintain the 
Premises (the “Replacement Reserve”) including but not limited to: roofing, plumbing; heating; 
ventilation; and  paving. 
 
 3.7 Operation.  
 
  a. Hours.  After the Establishment Period through each Lease Term, Society 
shall operate and maintain the Pinole Historical Museum and retail use for a minimum of thirty (30) 
hours per week which shall include the hours of 10:00 A.M. to 3:00 P.M Tuesday through Sunday.  
If Society wishes to change hours of operation for a temporary period of time, it shall request 
written approval from Agency, which request shall not be unreasonably withheld. Agency and City 
shall have priority of use of the Premises on Mondays and outside the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 
3:00 p.m. Tuesday though Sunday (collectively, “Off-Term Hours”). Use of the second floor 
Premises during Off-Term Hours (whether by Agency, City, or other party) is prohibited. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


3 


485 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


  b. Standards.  Society shall operate and maintain the “Pinole Historical 
Museum” in a first-class manner similar to that of other museums within West Contra Costa 
County, including but not limited to the City of Richmond’s historical museum. 
 
  c. Admissions.  Society shall not charge any fee to the museum visitors. 
 
 3.8 Responsibility for Artifacts.  Society shall provide a curator to monitor and ensure 
proper treatment of the Pinole Historical Museum pieces. The curator shall be properly certified or 
otherwise qualified and may be a member of the Pinole Historical Society.  Agency shall not be 
responsible for the Society’s artifacts or any artifacts loaned to the Society, or any fixtures or 
personal property located therein.   
 
 3.9 Annual Report.  Each February, the Society shall provide to the Agency: (i) a 
report of activities and programs undertaken by the Society during the immediate prior fiscal year 
(January – December); (ii) a certified audit of activities during the immediate prior fiscal year; and 
(iii) proposed plans of activities and programs of the Society for the next  then – current  fiscal year. 
 
 3.10 Insurance.   
 
  a. Agency shall add the Premises to its existing insurance pool covering all 
City and Agency buildings.  Within thirty (30) days following Agency payment of its insurance bill, 
Agency shall notify Society in writing of the incremental costs attributable to the Premises 
(“Insurance Costs”).  The determination of the Insurance Costs shall be within the Agency’s 
reasonable discretion. Within ten (10) days of receipt of such notification, Society shall reimburse 
Agency for the Insurance Costs.   
 
  b. Society shall, if applicable, provide Agency with proof that Society carries 
and maintains full Worker’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability with an insurance 
carrier satisfactory to the Agency. 
 
 3.12 Possessory Interest.  Society recognizes and understands that this Agreement 
may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation and the Society may be subject to 
the payment of property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
 3.13 Triple Net Lease.  This is a triple net lease to Agency.  It is the intent of the Parties 
that Society pay all costs and expenses relating to the Premises of any kind or nature whatsoever, 
to the extent that such costs and expenses are proportionate to Society’s use of the Premises as 
set forth in Section 3.3 and pursuant to Section 3.6.  Such costs and expenses shall include, 
without limitation, all amounts attributable to, paid or incurred in connection with the ownership, 
operation, repair, restoration, maintenance and management of the Premises; real property taxes, 
rent taxes; gross receipt taxes (whether assessed against  Agency or assessed against Society 
and collected by Agency, or both); water and sewer charges; insurance premiums (including 
earthquake); utilities; refuse disposal; lighting (including outside lighting); fire detection systems 
including monitoring, maintenance and repair; security; janitorial services; labor; air-conditioning 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


4 


486 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


and heating; maintenance and repair costs and service contracts; costs of licenses, permits and 
inspections; and all other costs and expenses paid or incurred with respect to the Premises.   
 
 3.14 Supervision.  During its use of the Premises, each Party shall be solely 
responsible for supervision and control of the Premises, whether or not that Party has delegated 
use of the Premises at that time to another individual or organization.  Each Party shall supply any 
and all special equipment necessary for carrying out any of its programs.  The salaries and other 
expenses of all personnel of a Party, either as an employee or under contract, shall be the sole 
responsibility of that Party.  The Parties may agree to retain the employees of the other Party to 
provide services at the Premises for a fee to be agreed to by the Parties.  Each Party shall provide 
workers’ compensation insurance coverage for all of its employees involved in the use of the 
Premises. 
 
 3.15 Closure of Premises.  The Parties recognize that the Premises, or any portion 
thereof, may need to be closed from time to time in the interest of public safety or for repairs and 
maintenance.  Agency shall immediately notify Society of any conditions necessitating a closure of 
the Premises or any portion thereof. 
 


ARTICLE II: Grant 
 


4. Construction of the Improvements. 
 
 4.1. Commencement of Construction.  Not later than thirty (30) days after the 
Execution Date of this Agreement, the Society shall promptly begin and thereafter diligently 
prosecute to completion the installation and/or construction of the Improvements.  Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Executive Director of the Agency may authorize, in 
writing, an extension of time for commencement of construction. 
 
 4.2. Completion of Construction.  The Society hereby agrees to complete the 
construction and installation of all Improvements. 
 
5 Grant Provisions. 
 
 5.1 The Grant.  The Agency agrees to provide a grant to the Society in an amount not 
to exceed Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000.00) (the “Grant”) to fund a portion of the 
costs incurred by the Society as a result of design, permitting, installation and/or construction of the 
Improvements.  All costs incurred by the Society in connection with the design, permitting, 
installation and/or construction of the Improvements in excess of the Grant shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Society. 
 
 5.2 Conditions Precedent to All Grant Disbursements.  Disbursement of all Grant 
funds are conditioned upon Agency’s receipt and approval of a written request for each 
disbursement in accordance with Section 6. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


5 


487 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


6. Disbursement and Accounting; Use of Funds.  
 


 6.1 Disbursement Procedures, Requirements, and Retention. 
 
  6.1.1. Requests for Disbursement.   
 
   (a) 1:4 Ratio.  The Agency shall disburse Grant funds in relation to 
donated dollars and volunteer labor hours.  For each dollar donation the Society receives, the 
Agency shall provide Society with $4.00 of Grant funds.  For each hour of volunteer labor that 
Society obtains (valued by this Agreement at $10/hour), Agency shall provide Society with $40.00 
of Grant funds. 
 
   (b)  Requisitions.  Society shall submit separate written requests for 
each disbursement of Grant funds, each in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D 
(each a “Requisition”).  Society shall submit each Requisition to the Agency with attached copies 
of any documents supporting the Requisition, including volunteer logs, proof of cash donations, 
invoices, bids, contracts, and payment schedules, and evidence of Society’s payment of 
predevelopment and construction expenses (as applicable) required to have been paid from non-
Agency sources under all prior Requisitions.  The supporting documents shall state the time period 
in which work was performed, and the expenses to be funded with the Grant proceeds. 
 
   (b) Each Requisition shall be numbered.   Requisitions shall each 
specifically include volunteer logs, indicate Improvement items for which payment is requested, the 
percentage of the item requested, and the cumulative amount of Grant funds paid to date.   
 
  6.1.2 Disbursement.  The Agency shall disburse Grant funds as follows: 
 
   (a) Agency shall review each Requisition and determine whether the 
matching amount will be approved for disbursement or whether any additional supporting evidence 
may be required to support a disbursement.  Provided that Agency has accepted the volunteer 
labor hours for which payment is requested, the Agency shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of 
each acceptable and complete Requisition to disburse Grant funds. 
 
   (b) Agency shall not expend more than Two Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($200,000) in Grant funds for volunteer labor hours until Society has provided proof to 
Agency of the receipt of receipt of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) in cash donations and 
Agency has expended Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) in matching funds for such cash 
donations,  
 
 6.2 Use of Grant Funds.  Society agrees to expend Grant funds only for costs incurred 
in connection with the construction of the Improvements as detailed in the Requisition. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


6 


488 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


 6.3 Remaining Grant Funds.   
 
  (a)  Upon completion of the Improvements, Agency shall disburse any 
remaining Grant funds to Society to pay for additional improvements to the Museum, including but 
not limited to procurement and maintenance of historical artifacts and creation of displays. 
 
  (b) If Grant funds remain upon termination of the Agreement before 
completion of the Improvements, those undisbursed Grant funds shall be retained by the Agency. 
 
 6.4 Quarterly Reports.  No less than every three (3) months, Society shall provide 
Agency with financial reports reporting how Society has spent money (including Grant, Society, 
and other funds), income and disbursements, and previously submitted Requisitions. 


 
ARTICLE III: General Provisions 


 
7. Indemnity.  Society shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Agency and the City, 
along with their agents, officers and employees, from and against any and all liability, claims, suits, 
actions, damages, penalties and/or causes of action arising during the term of this Agreement out 
of any personal injury, loss of life or damage to the property of others, violation of any federal, state 
or municipal law or ordinance or other cause in connection with Society’s operations under this 
Agreement and from and against all costs, counsel fees, expenses and liability incurred in and 
about any such claim, the investigation thereof or the defense of any action or proceedings brought 
thereon and from and against any orders, judgments or decrees which may be entered therein.  
Any individual volunteer must release the City and Agency from liability for any work on the 
Property in conjunction with the Final Master Plan or the Improvements. 
 
8. Authority. Society has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement, including any 
necessary authorization by the Board of Directors, and shall be bound by the terms of this 
Agreement when executed and delivered.  
 
9. Applicable Law; Prevailing Wages; Competitive Bidding. 
 
 (a) Agency and Society shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 
regulations, including but not limited to the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et 
seq.   
 
 (b) Society and its contractors and agents shall comply with California Health and 
Safety Code Section 33422.1, and shall comply with California Labor Code Section 1720 et seq., 
the regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and Agency’s Prevailing Wages Policy (attached hereto 
as Exhibit E and incorporated herein) (collectively, referred to herein as, “Prevailing Wage Laws”), 
and shall be responsible for carrying out the requirements of such provisions. 
 
 (c) Society shall indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably approved by Agency) 
and hold the Agency, the City, and their respective elected and appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and representatives (collectively, the “Indemnitees”) harmless from and 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


7 


489 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


against all liability, loss, cost, expense (including without limitation attorneys’ fees and costs of 
litigation), claim, demand, action, suit, judicial or administrative proceeding, penalty, deficiency, 
fine, order, and damage (all of the foregoing collectively “Claims”) which directly or indirectly, in 
whole or in part, are caused by, arise in connection with, result from, relate to, or are alleged to be 
caused by, arise in connection with, or relate to, the payment or requirement of payment of 
prevailing wages or the requirement of competitive bidding in the construction of the 
Improvements, the failure to comply with any state or federal labor laws, regulations or standards in 
connection with this Agreement, including but not limited to the Prevailing Wage Laws, or any act 
or omission of Society related to this Agreement with respect to the payment or requirement of 
payment of prevailing wages or the requirement of competitive bidding, whether or not any 
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such Claims.  It is further 
agreed that Agency and City do not and shall not waive any rights against Society which they may 
have by reason of this indemnity and hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by 
Agency or City, or Society’s deposit with Agency of any of the insurance policies described in this 
Agreement.  The provisions of this Section shall survive the completion of the Improvements and 
the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 
 
10. Assignment.  The Society shall not cause or permit any voluntary transfer, assignment or 
conveyance of this Agreement, other than a transfer from the Society to a partnership in which the 
Society is the managing general partner or to a corporate or limited liability corporation or company 
in which the Society is the majority shareholder, and only with the prior written consent of the 
Agency, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Any other transfer, assignment or 
conveyance shall be voidable and, at the Agency’s election, shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement.  Any initial Agency consent to any transfer, assignment or conveyance shall not 
constitute Agency consent to any subsequent transfer, assignment or conveyance. 
 
11. Notification.  Until construction of the Improvements has been completed, the Society 
covenants that it will promptly notify the Agency in writing of the occurrence of any event which 
might materially and adversely affect its ability to construct the Improvements, or which constitutes, 
or with the giving of notice or passage of time or both would constitute, an Event of Default under 
this Agreement. 
 
12. Fundraising.  Any revenue resulting from Society fundraising events, after expenses, shall 
be used to offset the costs incurred by the Parties in connection with the Premises and the 
Property in the proportion to the amount each Party has spent.  All revenue remaining from 
fundraising conducted exclusively by the Society shall be retained by the Society subject to the 
provisions of Section 3.4. All revenue derived by Society from such fundraising events at or on the 
Premises shall be used solely and exclusively for the Pinole Historical Museum.  
 
13. Alterations and Preservation.  Society shall make no major alterations or additions to the 
Property without the prior written consent of the other party.  The following items shall be preserved 
onsite by Society in a weather-proof manner:  doors; molding; trim; fireplace mantel; hardware; 
light fixtures; doorknobs; and door hinges. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


8 


490 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


14. Inspection of Premises.  The Agency shall have the right from time to time, at reasonable 
hours, to enter the Premises to inspect the same, and to perform any inspection or public duty or 
responsibility of the Agency. 
 
15. Return of Premises. Upon the termination of this Agreement, Society shall return the 
Premises to Agency and personal property of the Agency located therein in good and serviceable 
condition, damage by the elements and ordinary wear and tear excepted. 
 
16. Non-Discrimination.  Society covenants by and for itself and any successors in interest that 
there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons on 
account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, national origin or ancestry in the sale, 
lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the Premises, nor shall the 
Society itself or any person claiming under or through it establish or permit any such practice or 
practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or 
occupancy of tenants, Societys, subtenants, subconsultants or vendees of the Premises or any 
portion thereof.  The foregoing covenants shall run with the land. 
 
 All deeds, leases, and contracts for the sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, 
tenure, or enjoyment of the Property, or any portion thereof made or entered into by Developer, its 
successors or assigns, shall contain therein the following language: 
 
     (a) In Leases:  "The Society herein covenants by and for himself or herself, his or 
her heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through him or 
her, and this lease is made and accepted upon and subject to the following conditions that there 
shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons, on account of 
any basis listed in subdivision (a) or (d) of Section 12955 of the Government Code, as those bases 
are defined in Sections 12926, 12926.1, subdivision (m) and paragraph (1) of subdivision (p) of 
Section 12955, and Section 12955.2 of the Government Code, in the leasing, subleasing, 
transferring, use, occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of the premises  herein leased nor shall the 
Society himself or herself, or any person claiming under or through him or her, establish or permit 
any such practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection,  
location, number, use, or occupancy, of tenants, Societys, subconsultants , subtenants, or vendees 
in the premises  herein leased.” 
 
 (b) In Contracts: "The contractor herein covenants by and for himself or herself, 
his or her heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through 
it, and this contract is made and accepted upon and subject to the conditions that there shall be no 
discrimination against or segregation of any person or of a group of persons on account of any 
basis listed in subdivision (a) or (d) of Section 12955 of the Government Code, as those bases are 
defined in Sections 12926, 12926.1, subdivision (m) and paragraph (1) of subdivision (p) of Section 
12955, and Section 12955.2 of the Government Code, in the leasing, subleasing, transferring, use, 
occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the property herein transferred nor shall the contractor or any 
person claiming under or through it establish or permit any such practice or practices of 
discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or occupancy of 
tenants, Societys, subconsultants, subtenants, or vendee s in the property herein transferred.  The 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


9 


491 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


foregoing provisions shall be binding upon and shall obligate the contractor and any subcontracting 
parties, successors, assigns and other transferees under the contract." 
 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to familial status, nothing herein shall be 
construed to apply to housing for older persons, as defined in Section 12955.9 of the Government 
Code nor shall be construed to affect Sections 51.2, 51.3, 51.4, 51.10, 51.11, and 799.5 of the Civil 
Code, relating to housing for senior citizens. Subdivision (d) of Section 51 and Section 1360 of the 
Civil Code and subdivisions (n), (o), and (p) of Section 12955 of the Government Code shall apply 
to this Section. 
 
17. Arbitration.  Arbitration, if necessary, shall be used to settle any unresolved problems.  
 
18. Termination.  The Agreement may be terminated for cause by either party upon sixty (60) 
days written notice to the other party. 
 
19. Default.   
 
 19.1 Events of Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an event 
of default (“Event of Default”) of this Agreement by Society: 
 


 (a). Failure to Construct Improvements.  Society's failure, neglect or refusal to 
commence construction of the Improvements within the time set forth in Section 4.1 of this 
Agreement, or such extension of time as may be granted by the Executive Director. 
 
  (b). Noncompliance with Governmental Requirements.  Society's failure to 
timely comply with any written governmental requirements, including but not limited to obtaining 
licenses and permits. 
 


 (c). Bankruptcy.  The filing by or against the Society of a voluntary or 
involuntary petition in bankruptcy or the adjudication of the Society as bankrupt or insolvent, or the 
filing of any petition or answer seeking any reorganization, arrangement, composition, 
readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief under present or any future federal 
bankruptcy act or any other present or future applicable federal, state or other statute or law, or the 
seeking or consenting to or acquiescing in the appointment of any trustee, receiver, liquidator of 
the Society or any substantial part of or all of the property of the Society, and if any such 
proceeding is not dismissed within sixty (60) days; the Society is named in any such proceeding 
and the same is not dismissed within one hundred twenty (120) days.  


 
  (d), The abandonment or the vacation of the Premises by Society for a period 
of more than fifteen (15) consecutive days. 
 
  (e). A failure by Society to observe any other provision of this Agreement.  
Agency shall make the final determination whether Society complies with this Agreement. 
   


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


10


492 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


 19.2 Declaring Default.  Whenever any Event of Default has occurred, other than failure 
to pay any sums due, the Agency shall give written notice of default to the Society.  If Society has 
not made reasonable steps to cure the Event of Default within thirty (30) business days after the 
Date of Default (defined herein), or any extension approved in writing by the Agency, the Agency 
may enforce its rights and remedies under Section 19.3.  Any default that has occurred shall be 
deemed to commence on the date that written notice of default is effective per Section 19.1 of this 
Agreement (the "Date of Default"). 
 
 19.3 Remedies.  In the event of a Default by Society, Agency, may at any time 
thereafter: 
 
  (a). Terminate Society's right to possession of the Premises by any lawful 
means, in which case this Agreement shall terminate and Society shall immediately surrender 
possession of the Leased Premises to Agency. In such event Agency shall be entitled to recover 
from Society the sum of all amounts set forth in California Civil Code Section 1951.2(a), including 
without limitation, the worth at the time of award of the amount by which all unpaid rent for the 
balance of the Term of this Agreement after the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental 
loss that Society proves could be reasonably avoided, and all other damages incurred by Agency 
by reason of Society's Default including, without limitation, the cost of recovering possession of the 
Leased Premises, and expenses of re-letting such as renovation of the Premises and real estate 
commissions and finder's fees actually paid for such re-letting. The "worth at the time of award" 
shall be computed in the manner provided in California Civil Code Section 1951.2(b) or its 
successor statute.  For the purpose of determining unpaid rent under this paragraph, the rent 
reserved in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the sum of all then unpaid monetary obligations 
owed under this Agreement. 
 
  (b). Terminate the Agreement and withhold the disbursement of any remaining 
Grant funds.  Termination of this Agreement under this Section or for any reason whatsoever shall 
not release either party from any liability or obligation arising from an event which may have 
occurred before termination, or from actions that, under the expressed terms of this Agreement, 
must be performed. 
 
  (c). Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Agency under the 
laws of the State of California. 
 
 19.4. Waiver.  The waiver by Agency of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition 
shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, or condition or any subsequent breach 
of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition. 
 
20. Waiver of Relocation Benefits.  As a partial consideration for the benefits provided to the 
Society by the Agency under the terms of this Agreement, Society does hereby voluntarily and 
knowingly release and forever discharge Agency, its successors and assigns from any and all 
claims or demands for relocation assistance benefits which may arise by reason of Chapter 16 of 
Division 7 of Title I of the Government Code of the State of California, or by reason of the federal 
act entitled “Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970” 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


11


493 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


(Public Act 91-646), as amended, or by reason of any other law or regulations of the United States 
of America or the State of California. 
 
21. Notices.  Except as otherwise specified herein, all notices to be sent pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be made in writing, and sent to the Parties at their respective addresses specified 
below or to such other address as a Party may designate by written notice delivered to the other 
part in accordance with this Section.  All such notices shall be sent by: 
 
  (1) personal delivery, in which case notice is effective upon delivery; 
 
  (2) certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, in which case notice 
shall be deemed delivered on receipt if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt; 
 
  (3) nationally recognized overnight courier, with charges prepaid or charged 
to the sender’s account, in which case notice is effective on delivery if delivery is confirmed by the 
delivery service; 
 
  (4) facsimile transmission, in which case notice shall be deemed delivered 
upon transmittal, provided that (a) a duplicate copy of the notice is promptly delivered by first-class 
or certified mail or by overnight delivery, or (b) a transmission report is generated reflecting the 
accurate transmission thereof.  Any notice given by facsimile shall be considered to have been 
received on the next business day if it is received after 5:00 p.m. recipient’s time or on a 
nonbusiness day. 
 
 AGENCY: Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pinole 
   2131 Pear Street 
   Pinole, CA  94564 
   Phone:  510.724.9000 
   Attn: Executive Director 
    
 SOCIETY: Pinole Historical Society 
   P. O. Box 285 
   Pinole, CA  94564 
   Phone: 925.252.4850 
   Attn: President 
 
22. Independent Contractor Status.  This Agreement is by and between two independent 
entities and is not intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, 
servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or association.  Society and Society’s agents or 
employees shall at all times be wholly responsible for the manner in which it or its agents, or both, 
perform under this Agreement. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


12


494 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


23. No Third Party Claims.  Except to the extent set forth in Section 3, nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall create or justify any claim against the Agency by any third person whom the 
Society may have employed or contracted or may employ or contract relative to the purchase of 
any material, supplies or equipment, or the furnishing or the performance of any work or services 
with respect to any programs or projects being undertaken by Society. 
 
24. Conflict of Interest.  Except for approved eligible administrative or personnel costs, no 
employee, agent, consultant, officer or official of the City, the Agency or the Society who exercises 
or has exercised any function or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted by tax increment 
funds in whole or in part, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain 
inside information with regard to such activities assisted under this Agreement, may obtain a 
personal or financial interest in or benefit from the activities assisted under this Agreement, or have 
an interest, direct or indirect, in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or in 
the proceeds thereunder either for himself/herself or for those with whom he/she has family or 
business ties, during his/her tenure and for one year thereafter.  
 
25. Attorneys' Fees.  If any action is instituted by any party to this Agreement to enforce the 
terms of this Agreement or to collect any sums due hereunder, the prevailing party in such action 
shall be entitled to recover its costs and reasonable attorneys' fees as awarded by the court in that 
action. 
 
26. Severability.  If one or more provisions of this Agreement are found invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
not in any way be affected, prejudiced, disturbed or impaired thereby, and all other provisions of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
27. Joint and Several Liability.  If the Society consists of more than one person or entity, each 
shall be jointly and severally liable to the Agency for the performance of this Agreement. 
 
28. Time.  Time is of the essence in the performance of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 
 
29. Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 
 
30. Non-Liability of Agency and Agency Officials, Employees and Agents.  No member, official, 
employee or agent of the Agency or the City shall be personally liable to the Society, or any 
successor in interest to the Society, in the event of any default or breach by the Agency or for any 
amount which may become due to Society or any successor under the terms of this Agreement. 
 
31. Agency’s Rights and Consent.  No forbearance, failure or delay by the Agency in 
exercising any right, power or remedy, nor any single or partial exercise by the Agency of any right 
or remedy hereunder shall preclude the further exercise of such right, power or remedy.  The 
Agency’s consent to any act or omission by the Society may not be construed as the Agency’s 
consent to any other or subsequent act or omission or as a waiver of the requirement to obtain the 
Agency’s consent in any other instance.  All of the Agency's rights, powers and remedies are 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


13


495 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


cumulative and shall continue in full force and effect until specifically waived in writing by the 
Agency. 
 
32. Duration/Survival.  This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until the 
Improvements have been accepted by the Agency, which acceptance shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 
 
33. Headings.  The headings within this Agreement are for the purpose of reference only and 
shall not limit or otherwise affect any of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
34. Counterparts, Facsimile Copies.  This Agreement shall be executed in counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
agreement.  This Agreement shall be effective upon transmission by any party to the other parties 
of a fully signed facsimile copy of the Agreement after the formal approval by the governing body of 
the Agency, so long as a copy of the Agreement signed by the transmitting party is delivered to the 
other parties within five (5) business days thereafter.  In case of any conflict, the counterpart 
maintained by the Agency shall be deemed to be determinative.   
 
35. Amendments/Complete Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties and there are no conditions, agreements or representations between the 
parties except as expressed in said document.  It is not the intent of the parties to this agreement 
to form a partnership or joint venture.  The Agency and Society reserve the right to amend this 
Agreement by mutual consent.  No amendment, modification, alteration or variation of the terms of 
this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed and acknowledged and approved by 
both parties. 
 
 


SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


14


496 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 


Execution Date set forth above. 
 
 
      PINOLE HISTORICAL SOCIETY, 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      By: Marc Grisham 
      Its: President 
 
       
      REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF  
      PINOLE, 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      By: Charlie Long 
      Its: Interim Executive Director 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
By: Patricia Athenour 
Its: Agency Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
By: Benjamin T. Reyes, II 
Its: Redevelopment Counsel 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


15


497 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT A 
 


Legal Description - Underlying Property 


1012339-5
    Legal Description  


  Faria House 


 A-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


498 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT B 
 


Site Plan- Faria House 
 


1012339-5
    Site Plan  


  Faria House 


 B-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


499 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT C 
 


Preliminary Master Plan 
 


1012339-6
Preliminary Master Plan 


  Faria House 


 C-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


500 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT D 
 


Form of Requisition 
 


1012339-6
Form of Requisition 


  Faria House 


 D-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


501 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT E 
 


Prevailing Wages Policy 
 


 


1012339-6
Prevailing Wages 


  Faria House 


 E-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


502 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 


LEASE AND GRANT AGREEMENT 


THIS LEASE AND GRANT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) made and entered into this _____ day of 
______________, 2007 (“Execution Date”) by and between the Redevelopment Agency of the 
City of Pinole, a public body corporate and politic (hereinafter referred to as “Agency”), and The 
Pinole Historical Society, Inc., a California nonprofit corporation (hereinafter referred to as 
“Society”) and together, with agency, the “Parties”. 


RECITALS 


A. On November 22, 1972, the City Council of the City of Pinole (“City”) adopted 
Ordinance No. 313, approving the Redevelopment Plan (as amended and restated by Ordinance 
No. 2004-05 on May 5, 2004, and as may be amended from time to time, “Redevelopment Plan”) 
for the Pinole Vista Redevelopment Project (“Project Area”); and  


B. The Agency has heretofore adopted an Implementation Plan (“Implementation 
Plan”) setting forth programs and activities for the Project Area, including redeveloping the City’s 
downtown area and encouraging activities and public uses that meet the needs of City residents; 
and  


C. On March 5, 2003, the Agency acquired real property located within the Project 
Area at 2100 San Pablo Avenue, APN 401-120-029, as more specifically described in Exhibit A 
hereto (“Property”); and  


D. Agency has prepared a conceptual and preliminary master plan for development 
of the Property, including creation of a phased conceptual “Heritage Park,” relocation of the 
historical “Faria House” owned by the Agency to the Property, and inclusion of an initial 
architectural renovation plan detailing all renovation and tenant improvements to be completed on 
the Property (the “Preliminary Master Plan”), attached as Exhibit C and incorporated herein; and  


E. Society shall work with an architect to complete the final architectural renovation 
plan detailing all renovation and tenant improvements to be completed on the Property.  Such final 
plan shall be added to the Preliminary Master Plan and referred to as the Final Master Plan (“Final 
Master Plan”) and is incorporated herein by reference. 


F. On March 5, 2005, Faria House was relocated to the Property; and  


G. Society desires to operate the “Pinole Historical Museum” in the Faria House in 
order to showcase the City’s local history; and 


H. Agency intends to provide a grant to fund a portion of the cost of improving the 
Faria House for use as the Pinole Historical Museum (the “Project”) in order to facilitate the 
Redevelopment Plan; and  


1012339-6  Lease Agreement 
Faria House 


1


ATTACHMENT E


503 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


I. Society will complete the Project by installing and constructing those certain tenant 
improvements set forth in the architectural renovation section of the Final Master Plan (the 
“Improvements’); and  
 


J. The Agency and Society have agreed to enter into this Agreement subject to its 
terms, conditions and covenants. 
 


AGREEMENT 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter set forth herein, 
the Parties agree as follows: 
 


ARTICLE I: Lease 
 
1. Lease of Premises.  Agency hereby leases to Society, and Society leases from Agency, 
Faria House (approximately 2,495 square feet of leasable area), all parking areas, and all 
landscaped areas located on the Property (collectively, the “Premises”), as approximately shown 
on the architectural plans attached hereto as Exhibit B (the “Site Plan”). Except as set forth in this 
Agreement to the contrary, Society shall have the right to exclusively use the Premises for 
operation of the Pinole Historical Museum and related uses.    
 
2. Commencement of Lease; Term.  The lease term shall commence (“Commencement 
Date”) on the first day following the Execution Date of this Agreement.  The lease term shall 
continue for five (5) years from the Commencement Date (“Initial Lease Term”).  The Initial Lease 
Term shall automatically extend for three (3) additional terms of five (5) years each (each a “Lease 
Term”) unless terminated by either Party upon not less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to 
the other Party before the expiration of the applicable Lease Term.  The Initial Lease Term shall be 
rent-free.  Upon establishment of the Commencement Date, the Parties shall execute a 
memorandum acknowledging such date.  Unless otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, the 
Parties have no obligation hereunder prior to the Commencement Date. 
 
3. Society Obligations.   
 
 3.1. Museum.  No later than eighteen (18) months of the Commencement Date 
(“Establishment Period”), Society shall establish, operate, and maintain on the Premises the 
following:  the Pinole Historical Museum (including but not limited to a gallery documenting the 
history of the City, the Agency, and the Faria family; historical reference and research materials 
and facilities; and graphic and historical documentation). 
 
 3.2 Rent.  During the Initial Lease Term, Agency shall allow Society to occupy the 
Premises rent-free (“Rent-Free Period”).  After the Rent-Free Period, Society shall pay rent to 
Agency in an amount equal to comparable rent paid at that time by similar nonprofit corporations 
within the City for occupancy of retail and office space (“Rent”), as determined by the sole 
discretion of Agency. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


2 


504 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


 3.3 Public Use.  Agency and City may use the Premises up to four (4) times per year 
for special events at which Society and its members agree to dress in period clothing and staff the 
event.  Additionally, Agency and City shall be given priority of the use of the Premises during Off-
Term Hours (defined in Section 3.7). Use of the Premises by entities other than Society, City or 
Agency shall be in accordance with policies and procedures of the Agency governing public use of 
Agency facilities.    
 
 3.4 Sublease.  Society may sublease a portion of the Premises only upon written 
approval of the Agency.  After the Rent-Free period, Society shall provide Agency with ten percent 
(10%) of all total revenue received as a result of Society’s activities on the Premises (except 
fundraising revenue), less the cost of the goods sold and all additional expenses related to such 
goods (“Net Profits”).   
 
 3.5 Improvements.   
 
  a. Society.  Notwithstanding the Improvements required by Section 4 and 
movement of the caboose onto the Property upon retention of all applicable City permits, Society 
may install and make other improvements on the Property only upon prior written approval of the 
Agency and receipt of all necessary City approvals (i.e., building permits and design review).  The 
improvements shall preserve the Property in compliance with Section 13 of this Agreement.   
 
  b. Agency.  Agency shall have a right of entry onto the Premises to make 
such improvements to the Premises and the Property as the Agency determines reasonable, 
including but not limited to the Improvements required by Section 4.  
 
 3.6 Utilities and Maintenance.  Society shall be responsible for all utility costs and day-
to-day maintenance of the Premises, including but not limited to: commercial liability and property 
insurance; security alarm system; electricity; water; garbage; groundskeeper; janitorial services 
and supplies; museum telephone system; insurance; utilities; maintenance; and landscaping.  
Additionally, each month Society shall provide the Agency with Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00)  
which the Agency shall place into a special account to pay costs of capital projects to maintain the 
Premises (the “Replacement Reserve”) including but not limited to: roofing, plumbing; heating; 
ventilation; and  paving. 
 
 3.7 Operation.  
 
  a. Hours.  After the Establishment Period through each Lease Term, Society 
shall operate and maintain the Pinole Historical Museum and retail use for a minimum of thirty (30) 
hours per week which shall include the hours of 10:00 A.M. to 3:00 P.M Tuesday through Sunday.  
If Society wishes to change hours of operation for a temporary period of time, it shall request 
written approval from Agency, which request shall not be unreasonably withheld. Agency and City 
shall have priority of use of the Premises on Mondays and outside the hours of 10:00 a.m. and 
3:00 p.m. Tuesday though Sunday (collectively, “Off-Term Hours”). Use of the second floor 
Premises during Off-Term Hours (whether by Agency, City, or other party) is prohibited. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


3 


505 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


  b. Standards.  Society shall operate and maintain the “Pinole Historical 
Museum” in a first-class manner similar to that of other museums within West Contra Costa 
County, including but not limited to the City of Richmond’s historical museum. 
 
  c. Admissions.  Society shall not charge any fee to the museum visitors. 
 
 3.8 Responsibility for Artifacts.  Society shall provide a curator to monitor and ensure 
proper treatment of the Pinole Historical Museum pieces. The curator shall be properly certified or 
otherwise qualified and may be a member of the Pinole Historical Society.  Agency shall not be 
responsible for the Society’s artifacts or any artifacts loaned to the Society, or any fixtures or 
personal property located therein.   
 
 3.9 Annual Report.  Each February, the Society shall provide to the Agency: (i) a 
report of activities and programs undertaken by the Society during the immediate prior fiscal year 
(January – December); (ii) a certified audit of activities during the immediate prior fiscal year; and 
(iii) proposed plans of activities and programs of the Society for the next  then – current  fiscal year. 
 
 3.10 Insurance.   
 
  a. Agency shall add the Premises to its existing insurance pool covering all 
City and Agency buildings.  Within thirty (30) days following Agency payment of its insurance bill, 
Agency shall notify Society in writing of the incremental costs attributable to the Premises 
(“Insurance Costs”).  The determination of the Insurance Costs shall be within the Agency’s 
reasonable discretion. Within ten (10) days of receipt of such notification, Society shall reimburse 
Agency for the Insurance Costs.   
 
  b. Society shall, if applicable, provide Agency with proof that Society carries 
and maintains full Worker’s Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability with an insurance 
carrier satisfactory to the Agency. 
 
 3.12 Possessory Interest.  Society recognizes and understands that this Agreement 
may create a possessory interest subject to property taxation and the Society may be subject to 
the payment of property taxes levied on such interest. 
 
 3.13 Triple Net Lease.  This is a triple net lease to Agency.  It is the intent of the Parties 
that Society pay all costs and expenses relating to the Premises of any kind or nature whatsoever, 
to the extent that such costs and expenses are proportionate to Society’s use of the Premises as 
set forth in Section 3.3 and pursuant to Section 3.6.  Such costs and expenses shall include, 
without limitation, all amounts attributable to, paid or incurred in connection with the ownership, 
operation, repair, restoration, maintenance and management of the Premises; real property taxes, 
rent taxes; gross receipt taxes (whether assessed against  Agency or assessed against Society 
and collected by Agency, or both); water and sewer charges; insurance premiums (including 
earthquake); utilities; refuse disposal; lighting (including outside lighting); fire detection systems 
including monitoring, maintenance and repair; security; janitorial services; labor; air-conditioning 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


4 


506 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


and heating; maintenance and repair costs and service contracts; costs of licenses, permits and 
inspections; and all other costs and expenses paid or incurred with respect to the Premises.   
 
 3.14 Supervision.  During its use of the Premises, each Party shall be solely 
responsible for supervision and control of the Premises, whether or not that Party has delegated 
use of the Premises at that time to another individual or organization.  Each Party shall supply any 
and all special equipment necessary for carrying out any of its programs.  The salaries and other 
expenses of all personnel of a Party, either as an employee or under contract, shall be the sole 
responsibility of that Party.  The Parties may agree to retain the employees of the other Party to 
provide services at the Premises for a fee to be agreed to by the Parties.  Each Party shall provide 
workers’ compensation insurance coverage for all of its employees involved in the use of the 
Premises. 
 
 3.15 Closure of Premises.  The Parties recognize that the Premises, or any portion 
thereof, may need to be closed from time to time in the interest of public safety or for repairs and 
maintenance.  Agency shall immediately notify Society of any conditions necessitating a closure of 
the Premises or any portion thereof. 
 


ARTICLE II: Grant 
 


4. Construction of the Improvements. 
 
 4.1. Commencement of Construction.  Not later than thirty (30) days after the 
Execution Date of this Agreement, the Society shall promptly begin and thereafter diligently 
prosecute to completion the installation and/or construction of the Improvements.  Notwithstanding 
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the Executive Director of the Agency may authorize, in 
writing, an extension of time for commencement of construction. 
 
 4.2. Completion of Construction.  The Society hereby agrees to complete the 
construction and installation of all Improvements. 
 
5 Grant Provisions. 
 
 5.1 The Grant.  The Agency agrees to provide a grant to the Society in an amount not 
to exceed Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($400,000.00) (the “Grant”) to fund a portion of the 
costs incurred by the Society as a result of design, permitting, installation and/or construction of the 
Improvements.  All costs incurred by the Society in connection with the design, permitting, 
installation and/or construction of the Improvements in excess of the Grant shall be the sole 
responsibility of the Society. 
 
 5.2 Conditions Precedent to All Grant Disbursements.  Disbursement of all Grant 
funds are conditioned upon Agency’s receipt and approval of a written request for each 
disbursement in accordance with Section 6. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


5 


507 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


6. Disbursement and Accounting; Use of Funds.  
 


 6.1 Disbursement Procedures, Requirements, and Retention. 
 
  6.1.1. Requests for Disbursement.   
 
   (a) 1:4 Ratio.  The Agency shall disburse Grant funds in relation to 
donated dollars and volunteer labor hours.  For each dollar donation the Society receives, the 
Agency shall provide Society with $4.00 of Grant funds.  For each hour of volunteer labor that 
Society obtains (valued by this Agreement at $10/hour), Agency shall provide Society with $40.00 
of Grant funds. 
 
   (b)  Requisitions.  Society shall submit separate written requests for 
each disbursement of Grant funds, each in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit D 
(each a “Requisition”).  Society shall submit each Requisition to the Agency with attached copies 
of any documents supporting the Requisition, including volunteer logs, proof of cash donations, 
invoices, bids, contracts, and payment schedules, and evidence of Society’s payment of 
predevelopment and construction expenses (as applicable) required to have been paid from non-
Agency sources under all prior Requisitions.  The supporting documents shall state the time period 
in which work was performed, and the expenses to be funded with the Grant proceeds. 
 
   (b) Each Requisition shall be numbered.   Requisitions shall each 
specifically include volunteer logs, indicate Improvement items for which payment is requested, the 
percentage of the item requested, and the cumulative amount of Grant funds paid to date.   
 
  6.1.2 Disbursement.  The Agency shall disburse Grant funds as follows: 
 
   (a) Agency shall review each Requisition and determine whether the 
matching amount will be approved for disbursement or whether any additional supporting evidence 
may be required to support a disbursement.  Provided that Agency has accepted the volunteer 
labor hours for which payment is requested, the Agency shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of 
each acceptable and complete Requisition to disburse Grant funds. 
 
   (b) Agency shall not expend more than Two Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($200,000) in Grant funds for volunteer labor hours until Society has provided proof to 
Agency of the receipt of receipt of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) in cash donations and 
Agency has expended Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) in matching funds for such cash 
donations,  
 
 6.2 Use of Grant Funds.  Society agrees to expend Grant funds only for costs incurred 
in connection with the construction of the Improvements as detailed in the Requisition. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


6 


508 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


 6.3 Remaining Grant Funds.   
 
  (a)  Upon completion of the Improvements, Agency shall disburse any 
remaining Grant funds to Society to pay for additional improvements to the Museum, including but 
not limited to procurement and maintenance of historical artifacts and creation of displays. 
 
  (b) If Grant funds remain upon termination of the Agreement before 
completion of the Improvements, those undisbursed Grant funds shall be retained by the Agency. 
 
 6.4 Quarterly Reports.  No less than every three (3) months, Society shall provide 
Agency with financial reports reporting how Society has spent money (including Grant, Society, 
and other funds), income and disbursements, and previously submitted Requisitions. 


 
ARTICLE III: General Provisions 


 
7. Indemnity.  Society shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Agency and the City, 
along with their agents, officers and employees, from and against any and all liability, claims, suits, 
actions, damages, penalties and/or causes of action arising during the term of this Agreement out 
of any personal injury, loss of life or damage to the property of others, violation of any federal, state 
or municipal law or ordinance or other cause in connection with Society’s operations under this 
Agreement and from and against all costs, counsel fees, expenses and liability incurred in and 
about any such claim, the investigation thereof or the defense of any action or proceedings brought 
thereon and from and against any orders, judgments or decrees which may be entered therein.  
Any individual volunteer must release the City and Agency from liability for any work on the 
Property in conjunction with the Final Master Plan or the Improvements. 
 
8. Authority. Society has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement, including any 
necessary authorization by the Board of Directors, and shall be bound by the terms of this 
Agreement when executed and delivered.  
 
9. Applicable Law; Prevailing Wages; Competitive Bidding. 
 
 (a) Agency and Society shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 
regulations, including but not limited to the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.S.C. §§ 12101 et 
seq.   
 
 (b) Society and its contractors and agents shall comply with California Health and 
Safety Code Section 33422.1, and shall comply with California Labor Code Section 1720 et seq., 
the regulations adopted pursuant thereto, and Agency’s Prevailing Wages Policy (attached hereto 
as Exhibit E and incorporated herein) (collectively, referred to herein as, “Prevailing Wage Laws”), 
and shall be responsible for carrying out the requirements of such provisions. 
 
 (c) Society shall indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably approved by Agency) 
and hold the Agency, the City, and their respective elected and appointed officers, officials, 
employees, agents, and representatives (collectively, the “Indemnitees”) harmless from and 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


7 


509 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


against all liability, loss, cost, expense (including without limitation attorneys’ fees and costs of 
litigation), claim, demand, action, suit, judicial or administrative proceeding, penalty, deficiency, 
fine, order, and damage (all of the foregoing collectively “Claims”) which directly or indirectly, in 
whole or in part, are caused by, arise in connection with, result from, relate to, or are alleged to be 
caused by, arise in connection with, or relate to, the payment or requirement of payment of 
prevailing wages or the requirement of competitive bidding in the construction of the 
Improvements, the failure to comply with any state or federal labor laws, regulations or standards in 
connection with this Agreement, including but not limited to the Prevailing Wage Laws, or any act 
or omission of Society related to this Agreement with respect to the payment or requirement of 
payment of prevailing wages or the requirement of competitive bidding, whether or not any 
insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such Claims.  It is further 
agreed that Agency and City do not and shall not waive any rights against Society which they may 
have by reason of this indemnity and hold harmless agreement because of the acceptance by 
Agency or City, or Society’s deposit with Agency of any of the insurance policies described in this 
Agreement.  The provisions of this Section shall survive the completion of the Improvements and 
the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 
 
10. Assignment.  The Society shall not cause or permit any voluntary transfer, assignment or 
conveyance of this Agreement, other than a transfer from the Society to a partnership in which the 
Society is the managing general partner or to a corporate or limited liability corporation or company 
in which the Society is the majority shareholder, and only with the prior written consent of the 
Agency, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  Any other transfer, assignment or 
conveyance shall be voidable and, at the Agency’s election, shall constitute a breach of this 
Agreement.  Any initial Agency consent to any transfer, assignment or conveyance shall not 
constitute Agency consent to any subsequent transfer, assignment or conveyance. 
 
11. Notification.  Until construction of the Improvements has been completed, the Society 
covenants that it will promptly notify the Agency in writing of the occurrence of any event which 
might materially and adversely affect its ability to construct the Improvements, or which constitutes, 
or with the giving of notice or passage of time or both would constitute, an Event of Default under 
this Agreement. 
 
12. Fundraising.  Any revenue resulting from Society fundraising events, after expenses, shall 
be used to offset the costs incurred by the Parties in connection with the Premises and the 
Property in the proportion to the amount each Party has spent.  All revenue remaining from 
fundraising conducted exclusively by the Society shall be retained by the Society subject to the 
provisions of Section 3.4. All revenue derived by Society from such fundraising events at or on the 
Premises shall be used solely and exclusively for the Pinole Historical Museum.  
 
13. Alterations and Preservation.  Society shall make no major alterations or additions to the 
Property without the prior written consent of the other party.  The following items shall be preserved 
onsite by Society in a weather-proof manner:  doors; molding; trim; fireplace mantel; hardware; 
light fixtures; doorknobs; and door hinges. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


8 


510 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


14. Inspection of Premises.  The Agency shall have the right from time to time, at reasonable 
hours, to enter the Premises to inspect the same, and to perform any inspection or public duty or 
responsibility of the Agency. 
 
15. Return of Premises. Upon the termination of this Agreement, Society shall return the 
Premises to Agency and personal property of the Agency located therein in good and serviceable 
condition, damage by the elements and ordinary wear and tear excepted. 
 
16. Non-Discrimination.  Society covenants by and for itself and any successors in interest that 
there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons on 
account of race, color, creed, religion, sex, marital status, national origin or ancestry in the sale, 
lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the Premises, nor shall the 
Society itself or any person claiming under or through it establish or permit any such practice or 
practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or 
occupancy of tenants, Societys, subtenants, subconsultants or vendees of the Premises or any 
portion thereof.  The foregoing covenants shall run with the land. 
 
 All deeds, leases, and contracts for the sale, lease, sublease, transfer, use, occupancy, 
tenure, or enjoyment of the Property, or any portion thereof made or entered into by Developer, its 
successors or assigns, shall contain therein the following language: 
 
     (a) In Leases:  "The Society herein covenants by and for himself or herself, his or 
her heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through him or 
her, and this lease is made and accepted upon and subject to the following conditions that there 
shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of persons, on account of 
any basis listed in subdivision (a) or (d) of Section 12955 of the Government Code, as those bases 
are defined in Sections 12926, 12926.1, subdivision (m) and paragraph (1) of subdivision (p) of 
Section 12955, and Section 12955.2 of the Government Code, in the leasing, subleasing, 
transferring, use, occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of the premises  herein leased nor shall the 
Society himself or herself, or any person claiming under or through him or her, establish or permit 
any such practice or practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection,  
location, number, use, or occupancy, of tenants, Societys, subconsultants , subtenants, or vendees 
in the premises  herein leased.” 
 
 (b) In Contracts: "The contractor herein covenants by and for himself or herself, 
his or her heirs, executors, administrators, and assigns, and all persons claiming under or through 
it, and this contract is made and accepted upon and subject to the conditions that there shall be no 
discrimination against or segregation of any person or of a group of persons on account of any 
basis listed in subdivision (a) or (d) of Section 12955 of the Government Code, as those bases are 
defined in Sections 12926, 12926.1, subdivision (m) and paragraph (1) of subdivision (p) of Section 
12955, and Section 12955.2 of the Government Code, in the leasing, subleasing, transferring, use, 
occupancy, tenure or enjoyment of the property herein transferred nor shall the contractor or any 
person claiming under or through it establish or permit any such practice or practices of 
discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use or occupancy of 
tenants, Societys, subconsultants, subtenants, or vendee s in the property herein transferred.  The 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


9 


511 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


foregoing provisions shall be binding upon and shall obligate the contractor and any subcontracting 
parties, successors, assigns and other transferees under the contract." 
 
 Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect to familial status, nothing herein shall be 
construed to apply to housing for older persons, as defined in Section 12955.9 of the Government 
Code nor shall be construed to affect Sections 51.2, 51.3, 51.4, 51.10, 51.11, and 799.5 of the Civil 
Code, relating to housing for senior citizens. Subdivision (d) of Section 51 and Section 1360 of the 
Civil Code and subdivisions (n), (o), and (p) of Section 12955 of the Government Code shall apply 
to this Section. 
 
17. Arbitration.  Arbitration, if necessary, shall be used to settle any unresolved problems.  
 
18. Termination.  The Agreement may be terminated for cause by either party upon sixty (60) 
days written notice to the other party. 
 
19. Default.   
 
 19.1 Events of Default.  The occurrence of any of the following shall constitute an event 
of default (“Event of Default”) of this Agreement by Society: 
 


 (a). Failure to Construct Improvements.  Society's failure, neglect or refusal to 
commence construction of the Improvements within the time set forth in Section 4.1 of this 
Agreement, or such extension of time as may be granted by the Executive Director. 
 
  (b). Noncompliance with Governmental Requirements.  Society's failure to 
timely comply with any written governmental requirements, including but not limited to obtaining 
licenses and permits. 
 


 (c). Bankruptcy.  The filing by or against the Society of a voluntary or 
involuntary petition in bankruptcy or the adjudication of the Society as bankrupt or insolvent, or the 
filing of any petition or answer seeking any reorganization, arrangement, composition, 
readjustment, liquidation, dissolution, or similar relief under present or any future federal 
bankruptcy act or any other present or future applicable federal, state or other statute or law, or the 
seeking or consenting to or acquiescing in the appointment of any trustee, receiver, liquidator of 
the Society or any substantial part of or all of the property of the Society, and if any such 
proceeding is not dismissed within sixty (60) days; the Society is named in any such proceeding 
and the same is not dismissed within one hundred twenty (120) days.  


 
  (d), The abandonment or the vacation of the Premises by Society for a period 
of more than fifteen (15) consecutive days. 
 
  (e). A failure by Society to observe any other provision of this Agreement.  
Agency shall make the final determination whether Society complies with this Agreement. 
   


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


10


512 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


 19.2 Declaring Default.  Whenever any Event of Default has occurred, other than failure 
to pay any sums due, the Agency shall give written notice of default to the Society.  If Society has 
not made reasonable steps to cure the Event of Default within thirty (30) business days after the 
Date of Default (defined herein), or any extension approved in writing by the Agency, the Agency 
may enforce its rights and remedies under Section 19.3.  Any default that has occurred shall be 
deemed to commence on the date that written notice of default is effective per Section 19.1 of this 
Agreement (the "Date of Default"). 
 
 19.3 Remedies.  In the event of a Default by Society, Agency, may at any time 
thereafter: 
 
  (a). Terminate Society's right to possession of the Premises by any lawful 
means, in which case this Agreement shall terminate and Society shall immediately surrender 
possession of the Leased Premises to Agency. In such event Agency shall be entitled to recover 
from Society the sum of all amounts set forth in California Civil Code Section 1951.2(a), including 
without limitation, the worth at the time of award of the amount by which all unpaid rent for the 
balance of the Term of this Agreement after the time of award exceeds the amount of such rental 
loss that Society proves could be reasonably avoided, and all other damages incurred by Agency 
by reason of Society's Default including, without limitation, the cost of recovering possession of the 
Leased Premises, and expenses of re-letting such as renovation of the Premises and real estate 
commissions and finder's fees actually paid for such re-letting. The "worth at the time of award" 
shall be computed in the manner provided in California Civil Code Section 1951.2(b) or its 
successor statute.  For the purpose of determining unpaid rent under this paragraph, the rent 
reserved in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the sum of all then unpaid monetary obligations 
owed under this Agreement. 
 
  (b). Terminate the Agreement and withhold the disbursement of any remaining 
Grant funds.  Termination of this Agreement under this Section or for any reason whatsoever shall 
not release either party from any liability or obligation arising from an event which may have 
occurred before termination, or from actions that, under the expressed terms of this Agreement, 
must be performed. 
 
  (c). Pursue any other remedy now or hereafter available to Agency under the 
laws of the State of California. 
 
 19.4. Waiver.  The waiver by Agency of any breach of any term, covenant, or condition 
shall not be deemed to be a waiver of such term, covenant, or condition or any subsequent breach 
of the same or any other term, covenant, or condition. 
 
20. Waiver of Relocation Benefits.  As a partial consideration for the benefits provided to the 
Society by the Agency under the terms of this Agreement, Society does hereby voluntarily and 
knowingly release and forever discharge Agency, its successors and assigns from any and all 
claims or demands for relocation assistance benefits which may arise by reason of Chapter 16 of 
Division 7 of Title I of the Government Code of the State of California, or by reason of the federal 
act entitled “Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970” 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


11


513 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


(Public Act 91-646), as amended, or by reason of any other law or regulations of the United States 
of America or the State of California. 
 
21. Notices.  Except as otherwise specified herein, all notices to be sent pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be made in writing, and sent to the Parties at their respective addresses specified 
below or to such other address as a Party may designate by written notice delivered to the other 
part in accordance with this Section.  All such notices shall be sent by: 
 
  (1) personal delivery, in which case notice is effective upon delivery; 
 
  (2) certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, in which case notice 
shall be deemed delivered on receipt if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt; 
 
  (3) nationally recognized overnight courier, with charges prepaid or charged 
to the sender’s account, in which case notice is effective on delivery if delivery is confirmed by the 
delivery service; 
 
  (4) facsimile transmission, in which case notice shall be deemed delivered 
upon transmittal, provided that (a) a duplicate copy of the notice is promptly delivered by first-class 
or certified mail or by overnight delivery, or (b) a transmission report is generated reflecting the 
accurate transmission thereof.  Any notice given by facsimile shall be considered to have been 
received on the next business day if it is received after 5:00 p.m. recipient’s time or on a 
nonbusiness day. 
 
 AGENCY: Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pinole 
   2131 Pear Street 
   Pinole, CA  94564 
   Phone:  510.724.9000 
   Attn: Executive Director 
    
 SOCIETY: Pinole Historical Society 
   P. O. Box 285 
   Pinole, CA  94564 
   Phone: 925.252.4850 
   Attn: President 
 
22. Independent Contractor Status.  This Agreement is by and between two independent 
entities and is not intended to and shall not be construed to create the relationship of agent, 
servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or association.  Society and Society’s agents or 
employees shall at all times be wholly responsible for the manner in which it or its agents, or both, 
perform under this Agreement. 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


12


514 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


23. No Third Party Claims.  Except to the extent set forth in Section 3, nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall create or justify any claim against the Agency by any third person whom the 
Society may have employed or contracted or may employ or contract relative to the purchase of 
any material, supplies or equipment, or the furnishing or the performance of any work or services 
with respect to any programs or projects being undertaken by Society. 
 
24. Conflict of Interest.  Except for approved eligible administrative or personnel costs, no 
employee, agent, consultant, officer or official of the City, the Agency or the Society who exercises 
or has exercised any function or responsibilities with respect to activities assisted by tax increment 
funds in whole or in part, or who is in a position to participate in a decision-making process or gain 
inside information with regard to such activities assisted under this Agreement, may obtain a 
personal or financial interest in or benefit from the activities assisted under this Agreement, or have 
an interest, direct or indirect, in any contract, subcontract or agreement with respect thereto, or in 
the proceeds thereunder either for himself/herself or for those with whom he/she has family or 
business ties, during his/her tenure and for one year thereafter.  
 
25. Attorneys' Fees.  If any action is instituted by any party to this Agreement to enforce the 
terms of this Agreement or to collect any sums due hereunder, the prevailing party in such action 
shall be entitled to recover its costs and reasonable attorneys' fees as awarded by the court in that 
action. 
 
26. Severability.  If one or more provisions of this Agreement are found invalid, illegal or 
unenforceable in any respect by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions shall 
not in any way be affected, prejudiced, disturbed or impaired thereby, and all other provisions of 
this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
27. Joint and Several Liability.  If the Society consists of more than one person or entity, each 
shall be jointly and severally liable to the Agency for the performance of this Agreement. 
 
28. Time.  Time is of the essence in the performance of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 
 
29. Governing Law.   The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 
 
30. Non-Liability of Agency and Agency Officials, Employees and Agents.  No member, official, 
employee or agent of the Agency or the City shall be personally liable to the Society, or any 
successor in interest to the Society, in the event of any default or breach by the Agency or for any 
amount which may become due to Society or any successor under the terms of this Agreement. 
 
31. Agency’s Rights and Consent.  No forbearance, failure or delay by the Agency in 
exercising any right, power or remedy, nor any single or partial exercise by the Agency of any right 
or remedy hereunder shall preclude the further exercise of such right, power or remedy.  The 
Agency’s consent to any act or omission by the Society may not be construed as the Agency’s 
consent to any other or subsequent act or omission or as a waiver of the requirement to obtain the 
Agency’s consent in any other instance.  All of the Agency's rights, powers and remedies are 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


13


515 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


cumulative and shall continue in full force and effect until specifically waived in writing by the 
Agency. 
 
32. Duration/Survival.  This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect until the 
Improvements have been accepted by the Agency, which acceptance shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. 
 
33. Headings.  The headings within this Agreement are for the purpose of reference only and 
shall not limit or otherwise affect any of the terms of this Agreement. 
 
34. Counterparts, Facsimile Copies.  This Agreement shall be executed in counterparts, each 
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
agreement.  This Agreement shall be effective upon transmission by any party to the other parties 
of a fully signed facsimile copy of the Agreement after the formal approval by the governing body of 
the Agency, so long as a copy of the Agreement signed by the transmitting party is delivered to the 
other parties within five (5) business days thereafter.  In case of any conflict, the counterpart 
maintained by the Agency shall be deemed to be determinative.   
 
35. Amendments/Complete Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement 
between the parties and there are no conditions, agreements or representations between the 
parties except as expressed in said document.  It is not the intent of the parties to this agreement 
to form a partnership or joint venture.  The Agency and Society reserve the right to amend this 
Agreement by mutual consent.  No amendment, modification, alteration or variation of the terms of 
this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed and acknowledged and approved by 
both parties. 
 
 


SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


14


516 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the 


Execution Date set forth above. 
 
 
      PINOLE HISTORICAL SOCIETY, 
 
 
 
      _____________________________________ 
      By: Marc Grisham 
      Its: President 
 
       
      REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY OF THE CITY OF  
      PINOLE, 
 
 
 
      ______________________________________ 
      By: Charlie Long 
      Its: Interim Executive Director 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
By: Patricia Athenour 
Its: Agency Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
By: Benjamin T. Reyes, II 
Its: Redevelopment Counsel 
 


1012339-6  Lease & Grant Agreement 
  Faria House 


15


517 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT A 
 


Legal Description - Underlying Property 


1012339-5
    Legal Description  


  Faria House 


 A-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


518 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT B 
 


Site Plan- Faria House 
 


1012339-5
    Site Plan  


  Faria House 


 B-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


519 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT C 
 


Preliminary Master Plan 
 


1012339-6
Preliminary Master Plan 


  Faria House 


 C-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


520 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT D 
 


Form of Requisition 
 


1012339-6
Form of Requisition 


  Faria House 


 D-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


521 of 611







DRAFT 9/27/2007 
  


EXHIBIT E 
 


Prevailing Wages Policy 
 


 


1012339-6
Prevailing Wages 


  Faria House 


 E-1 Lease & Grant Agreement 


522 of 611







ATTACHMENT F


523 of 611







524 of 611







525 of 611







526 of 611







527 of 611







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 9A 


DATE: SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS  


FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 


SUBJECT: DISCUSS FUTURE USES OF THE FARIA HOUSE LOCATED AT 
2100 SAN PABLO AVENUE 


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council of the City of Pinole review, discuss and 
provide direction to Staff as to the future use of the Faria House located at 2100 San 
Pablo Avenue. 


BACKGROUND 


Following the purchase of the Faria property in 2003 discussion commenced 
regarding relocating the Faria House to an alternative site for potential use as a 
historical museum and developing affordable housing. 


Following the relocation of the home, in June 2005 and in June 2006, staff made 
presentations to the City Council, serving as the then Redevelopment Agency 
Board, on possible reuse option of the Faria House.  These uses ranged from a mix 
of commercial and residential uses, to public uses such as a museum or Chamber of 
Commerce offices.  On September 19, 2006, the Pinole Historical and Museum 
Society made a presentation to the City Council regarding a possible use of the 
house as a museum and/or combination retail outlet (Attachment A).  On October 
17, 2006 staff presented the City Council with a report based on direction received at 
the September 19, 2006 meeting (Attachment B).    


In 2008, the Agency published a Request for Proposal for a professional museum 
consultant to conduct a study to determine the feasibility of the Pinole Historical 
Society establishing and maintaining a museum in the Faria House. The report was 
completed in 2009, with the results presented to the Agency Board for discussion on 
November 17, 2009 (Attachment C & D). 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


With the recent discussion on the sale of the Faria house, the issue of its use as a 
museum has been raised by the public.  On July 19, 2016, the City Council 


ATTACHMENT G


528 of 611







City Council Report  
September 6, 2016  2 


 


approved Resolution No. 2016-56, transferring the title of 2100 San Pablo Avenue 
from the Housing Successor Agency Fund to the City of Pinole in exchange for the 
fair market value of $30,000.  At the City Council meeting, members of the public 
expressed support for the purchase of the property by the City and reiterated their 
support to convert the house to a museum.  One speaker also inquired about use as 
office space for community non-profit entities.  The City Council directed staff to 
prepare a report on the possible uses of the property. 
 
2100 San Pablo Avenue – Faria House/Property 


The size of the property is approximately 100,624 sq. ft with the bulk of the property 
located on a tree covered hillside, which would be very difficult to develop. There is 
also a narrow pathway that leads from San Pablo Avenue through the property to 
Buena Vista Avenue.  The site is zoned as Residential Mixed Use (RMU) & 
Commercial Mixed Use Districts (CMU). Attachment E outlines the permitted, 
conditioned and non-uses of the zoning.   
 
The property improvements consist of a two story 2576 sq. ft. wood frame residential 
building with wood siding and composition roof. The structure was originally built in 
1880 and partially modernized in 2005 when it was relocated from its original 
location to this property.   
 
The home will require some significant renovations before any future use can occur, 
as it has been vacant for several years (Attachment F). There are sheetrock and 
plastered walls and ceilings, with wood and linoleum flooring throughout. The kitchen 
has a few countertops and cupboards. The first floor plan consists of five rooms and 
a half bath in the rear. The second level consists of three bedrooms and one full 
bathroom.  
 
The first floor was partially renovated with a new 200 square foot space that includes 
a storage room and an ADA compliant restroom that was added in 2005 after the 
house was moved. The interior of both floors require numerous renovations 
including new interior paint, new fixtures, repaired walls, electrical, plumbing and 
renovated flooring.  Moreover, the property would be subject to compliance with 
Americans with Disability Act (ADA) requirements, which will require significant 
renovations to provide access to the second floor. 
 
In years past, there has been discussion regarding possible organizations that can 
benefit from use of the property, including the Pinole Artisans, Chamber of 
Commerce, and the Pinole Historical Society.   
 
Other factors for discussion include who will be responsible for the necessary 
improvements to the interior of the house and exterior property, annual maintenance 
costs which includes utilities and maintaining the hillside, related property taxes, and 
other unanticipated costs. 
 


529 of 611







City Council Report 
September 6, 2016 3 


With the proper renovations, the Faria House can be used as a museum or office 
space, as have been discussed as possible options in the past.  Again, a full list of 
available uses based on the zoning is provided in Attachment E.  


Now that the transfer of the property from the Housing Successor Agency to the City 
is complete, Staff is seeking Council direction on the desired future use(s).   


FISCAL IMPACT 


No impact at this time.  However, Staff has obtained a rough estimate of the costs to 
repair the house and make the first and second floors ADA compliant.  The 
estimated cost is in excess of $400,000.  The improvements include repairs to the 
inside of the house, as well as the outside and grounds.  Prior to any work 
commencement, it is recommended that an architect be hired to prepare 
improvement plans which would be used to bid the project.  Through this process a 
refined cost estimate will be obtained. 


Given Council’s most recent discussions on this subject, it seems that alternative 
funding sources will need to be identified to pay for the required improvements. 
Depending on the future use determination and direction, perhaps grants and other 
funding opportunities can be pursued in partnership with the new user(s).  


ATTACHMENTS 


A September 19, 2006 Pinole Historical & Museum Society Presentation 
B October 17, 2006 Redevelopment Agency Report 
C November 17, 2009 Redevelopment Agency Report  
D November 17, 2009 Redevelopment Agency Minutes 
E Zoning for RMU & CMU 
F Photos of Faria House 


530 of 611







ATTACHMENT A


531 of 611







532 of 611







533 of 611







534 of 611







535 of 611







536 of 611







537 of 611







538 of 611







539 of 611







ATTACHMENT B


540 of 611







541 of 611







542 of 611







ATTACHMENT C


543 of 611







544 of 611







545 of 611







546 of 611







547 of 611







ATTACHMENT D


548 of 611







549 of 611







550 of 611







CITY OF PINOLE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION AND USES 


Land Use \ Zoning District RMU CMU 


Adult Day Care Home P P 


Caretaker Housing N N 


Dwelling, Multifamily P P 


Dwelling, Second Unit (1) P N 
Dwelling, Single Family P N 
Dwelling, Two-Family N N 
Dwelling, Three- and Four-Family P P 
Emergency Shelter (2) N N 
Family Day Care Home, Large C C 
Family Day Care Home, Small P P 
Group Residential C C 
Home Occupations (3) P P 
Manufactured Home N N 
Mobile Home Park N N 
Residential Care Facilities P P 
Single Room Occupancy Facilities C C 
Supportive Housing (located in housing Of  a type permitted in the zone) P P 
Transitional Housing (2) (located in housing  of a type permitted in the zone) P P 
Cemeteries, Mausoleums N N 
Clubs, Lodges, and Private Meeting Halls N C 
Community Centers/Civic Uses C C 


Community Garden P P 


Indoor Amusement/Entertainment Facility N C 


Indoor Fitness and Sports Facility C N 


Libraries and Museums C C 


Outdoor Commercial Recreation N N 


Parks and Public Plazas P P 


Public Safety Facility C C 


Recreational Vehicle Parks N N 


Religious Institutions N C 


Resource Protection and Restoration N N 


Resource-Related Recreation N N 


Schools, Private and Special/Studios N C 


Schools, Public P P 


ATTACHMENT E


551 of 611







CITY OF PINOLE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION AND USES 


Theaters and Auditoriums N N 


Adult Oriented Business (7) N N 


Adult Day Care Facility P C 


Alcoholic Beverage Sales C C 


Ambulance Service C N 


Animal Sales and Grooming C C 


Art, antique, collectable. P P 


Artisan Shops P P 


Artist Studio C C 


Banks and Financial Services P P 


Bars and Nightclubs C C 


Bed and Breakfast Inns C C 


Building Materials Store and Yard N C 


Business Support Services P P 


Call Centers C C 


Card Room C C 


Check Cashing Business N C 


Child Day Care Facility P P 


Convenience Stores P P 


Drive-in and Drive-through Sales and  Service (8) N C 


Equipment Sales and Rental N P 


Firearm or Firearm Ammunition Sales N C 


Furniture, Furnishings, and Appliance  Stores C P 


Garden Center/Plant Nursery N C 


Grocery Stores/Supermarket P P 


Home Improvement Supplies C C 


Hotels and Motels C C 


Hotels and Motels, Extended Stay C C 


Kennels, Commercial N C 


Maintenance and Repair, Small Equipment C C 


Massage Therapy Establishment (9) P P 


Medical Marijuana Cultivation(11) N N 


Medical Marijuana Delivery(12) N N 
552 of 611







CITY OF PINOLE 
ZONING CLASSIFICATION AND USES 


Medical Marijuana Dispensary(10) N N 


Medical Services, General C C 


Medical Services, Extended Care C C 


Medical Services, Hospitals N C 


Mortuaries and Funeral Homes N C 


Neighborhood Market P P 


Office, Temporary N C 


Offices, Business and Professional P P 


Offices, Accessory P P 


Pawn Shop N C 


Personal Services P P 


Restaurants C P 


Retail, Accessory P P 


Retail, General P P 


Retail, Warehouse Club N C 


Smoke Shop N C 


Temporary Real Estate C C 


Thrift Store C C 


Veterinary Facility C C 
 


553 of 611







FARIA HOUSE - FIRST FLOOR 
ATTACHMENT F


554 of 611







FARIA HOUSE - SECOND FLOOR 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


555 of 611







ATTACHMENT H


556 of 611







CITY OF PINOLE 
2131 Pear Street Phone: (510) 741-3864 
Pinole, CA  94564 FAX: (510) 724-9826 


www.ci.pinole.ca.us 


 
 
 


August 16, 2018 


To Whom It May Concern: 


It was with great excitement that the City of Pinole, at its September 6, 2016 meeting, 
voted unanimously to affirm its commitment to dedicate the Historical Faria House, 
located at 2100 San Pablo Ave., as a location and future venue for the Pinole History 
Museum.   


The Faria house, a farmhouse built around 1880 is one of the City’s most historic 
buildings.  In 1996, the City committed to protect its heritage through preservation of this 
architectural landmark.   At its relocated site near Pinole’s downtown, the Faria house 
museum will appeal to all people in our community — school children, young and 
middle-age adults, senior residents — a museum that people of all ages will want to visit 
repeatedly. 


Through this letter of intent, the City of Pinole and the Pinole History Museum, a 
501(c)(3) non-profit corporation, agree to establish a common agreement, for use of the 
City’s 3,000 sq foot home (Faria house) to produce a technology-rich museum, with 
multi-media presentations, interactive exhibits and history games, video screens, 
wireless access to recorded oral histories, and access to video-recorded programs 
presented by the Pinole Historical Society.  


The City of Pinole and the Pinole History Museum understand and agree that 
production of the project is conditional on obtaining sufficient financial resources. 


The Pinole History Museum, a 501(c)(3), is hereby authorized to begin raising 
necessary funds that will be dedicated to the development of this future museum. 


Sincerely, 


Tim Banuelos 
Mayor, City of Pinole 


ATTACHMENT I


557 of 611







ATTACHMENT J


558 of 611







559 of 611







560 of 611







561 of 611







562 of 611







563 of 611







564 of 611







565 of 611







566 of 611







567 of 611







568 of 611







569 of 611







570 of 611







571 of 611







572 of 611







573 of 611







574 of 611







575 of 611







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT  11B


DATE: JUNE 16, 2020 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 


SUBJECT: RESOLUTION FORMING THE FARIA HOUSE ADHOC COMMITTEE TO 
PROVIDE GUIDANCE TO CITY STAFF ON THE RENOVATION OF THE 
FARIA HOUSE FOR USE AS A LOCAL HISTORY MUSEUM 


RECOMMENDTION 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution forming the Faria House 
AdHoc Committee to provide guidance to City staff on the renovations of the Faria 
House for use as a local history museum. 


BACKGROUND 


In July 2016, the City, following the purchase of the Faria House from the Housing 
Successor Agency, directed staff to identify possible uses of the property. In September 
2016, staff presented the Council with a report on possible uses. Following a 
discussion, the City Council approved a motion to use the Faria House as a museum. 
The City Council also directed staff to obtain an estimate of the cost to renovate the 
Faria House to be suitable to serve as a public museum. 


In January 2020, the City received the estimate of the cost to conduct the renovation. 
The estimated construction cost (excluding the elevator) is $683,541. The estimated 
total cost (including construction and soft costs) is $1,101,340. In addition, the 
estimated total cost for the elevator is $318,497. As noted above, these are planning 
level cost estimates. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


At the June 2, 2020 Council meeting, the Council discussed the proposed vision for the 
Faria House including but not limited to use as a museum, concept of an event center, 
and inquired as to the funding source for the needed improvements. While no decision 
was made regarding the funding for the improvements, questions were raised as to how 
the improvements would be funded.   


ATTACHMENT K


576 of 611







City Council Report, 11B  
June 16, 2020   2 


 


By motion, the City Council approved the formation of an AdHoc Committee to provide 
guidance to staff to on the renovation of the Faria house for use as a local history 
museum.  The Committee is to be comprised of two City Councilmembers with support 
by the City Manager or his/her designee.  
 
The Committee will be tasked with, but not limited to, assessing and making 
recommendations to the City Council on matters related to the Faria House’s 
renovation, including the building programing (i.e. outside space and uses), and building 
renovation designs and specifications, recommendations on lease provisions and/or 
cost sharing agreements between the City and the Pinole History Museum, and options 
to fund the City’s share of the cost to renovate and maintain the Faria House building 
and site   
 
The AdHoc Committee shall determine its schedule of meetings, but at a minimum, a 
meeting shall occur at least once every other month. Meeting will not be open to the 
public.  
 
It is anticipated that the Committee would remain in existence until it presents its final 
recommendations to the City Council or until the Council dissolves the Committee.   
 
FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS 
 
None.  There would be no City funds expended on this project except for incidental staff 
time to assist the Committee when necessary. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
A. Resolution  
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


577 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


 1 


RESOLUTION NO.  
 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE FORMING  
THE FARIA HOUSE AD-HOC COMMITTEE TO PROVIDE GUIDANCE TO CITY 
STAFF ON THE RENOVATION OF THE FARIA HOUSE FOR USE AS A LOCAL 


HISTORY MUSEUM 
 
 


WHEREAS, in July 2016, the City purchased the Faria House, which is located 
at 2100 San Pablo Avenue, from the Housing Successor Agency; and 
 


WHEREAS, in September 2016, the City Council approved a motion to use the 
Faria House as a local history museum; and 
 


WHEREAS, on June 2, 2020, the City Council received an update on the status 
of plans for the renovation and reuse of the Faria House; and  


 
WHEREAS, at the meeting on June 2, 2020, the City Council approved a motion 


to create a committee of Council Members to provide guidance to City staff on the 
renovation of the Faria House for use as a local history museum. 
 


NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF PINOLE as follows: 
 


1. That the City Council hereby creates the Faria House Ad-Hoc Committee, to be 
comprised of two Council Members.   


 
2. The expectations and responsibilities of the Committee are as follows:  


 
a. The Committee is tasked with, among other things, assessing and making 


recommendations to the City Council on matters related to the Faria 
House’s renovation for use as a local history museum, including the 
building program (outside space and uses), site and building renovation 
designs and specifications, lease provisions and/or cost sharing 
agreements between the City and the Pinole History Museum, and options 
to fund the City’s share of the cost to renovate and maintain the Faria 
House building and site. 


 
b. The Committee is an ad-hoc committee, therefore, not open to the public 


pursuant to the Brown Act.  
 
c. The Committee shall determine its schedule of meetings, but at a 


minimum, there should be a meeting at least once every other month.   
 
d. The Committee shall select the chairperson of the Committee at the first 


meeting.  
 


578 of 611







ATTACHMENT A 


 2 


3. The City Manager or his/her designee will support the Committee by providing 
requested documents and other support as appropriate.  


 
4. The City Council anticipates that the Committee shall remain in existence until it 


presents final recommendations to the City Council or until the City Council 
decides to dissolve the Committee. 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 


Pinole held on June 16, 2020 by the following vote: 
 


AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on this 16th day of June, 2020. 
  
 
______________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 


579 of 611







SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC.
1521 Corporate Way, Suite 210


Sacramento, CA 95831


P: 916.444.1130


F: 916.444.1131


Faria House Interior Rehabilitation
Pinole, CA


Construction Document Cost Estimate


September 17, 2020


Prepared for:
Interactive Resources


117 Park Place
Point Richmond, CA 94564


ATTACHMENT L


580 of 611







SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC.
1521 Corporate Way, Suite 210


Sacramento, CA 95831


P: 916.444.1130


F: 916.444.1131


Charlie Duncan
Interactive Resources
117 Park Place
Point Richmond, CA 94564


Reference: Faria House Interior Rehabilitation


Subject: Construction Document Cost Estimate


Dear Charlie,


Thank you for the opportunity to provide you with this Cost Estimate for the above
referenced project. The estimate is broken up into several sections as follows:


The narrative portion, which lists:
•   The information used in preparing the estimate
•   The estimate qualifications and assumptions
•   The exclusions to the estimate


The estimate portion, which contains:
•   The Project Summary (which summarizes the estimate items in the estimate)
•   The Estimate Summary (which summarizes the various sections for each item)
•   The Estimate Detail (which lists the line items and unit prices for the estimate)


Once again I would like to thank you for this opportunity to offer my services. Please
review the attached estimate and comment. Feel free to call me at 916-444-1130
should you have any questions, comments or concerns. Thank you.


Sincerely,
SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC.


Javier Silva
Principal


September 17, 2020


581 of 611







ITEMS USED IN PREPARING THE ESTIMATE


Specifications: None


Reports: None


Civil Drawings: None


Landscape 
Drawings: None


Architectural 
Drawings:


A000, A001, A002, A003, A101, A102, A103, A104, A106, 
A201, A202, A203, A204, A301, A401, A402, A501, A502, 
A503, A601, prepared by Interactive Resources


12/16/2019


Structural 
Drawings: S104, S105, S501, S502, prepared by Interactive Resources 12/16/2019


Mechanical 
Drawings:


M0.0, M0.1, M1.0, M2.0, M2.1, M2.2, M2.3, prepared by 
MHC Engineers 12/16/2019


Plumbing 
Drawings: P0.0, P0.1, P1.0, prepared by MHC Engineers 12/16/2019


Electrical 
Drawings:


E0.1, E0.2, E1.0, Additional Electrical Drawing, prepared 
by MHC Engineers 12/16/2019


582 of 611







ESTIMATE QUALIFICATIONS


-     The project is located in Pinole, CA.


-     The estimate was priced using prevailing wage rates.


-     The delivery method for this project is Design-Bid-Build.
      If the delivery method changes, then this estimate is null and void.


-     Start date of construction is assumed to be in the summer of 2021.


-     Construction duration is assumed to be 6 months.


-     The project will be done in one continuous phase.


-     Work areas are to be un-occupied during construction.


-     Work to be performed during normal business hours, 8 hours per day, 40 hours
      per week


-     We include a design contingency of 5%.


-     The estimate is escalated 5.79%.


-     Due to the nature of construction pricing this estimate is deemed to be accurate
      for a period of 90 days. After 90 days, please contact us to see if the estimate
      needs a pricing update.


583 of 611







ITEMS SPECIFICALLY EXCLUDED FROM THE ESTIMATE


-     Fees for architectural, structural, civil, mechanical, electrical, or other design fees.


-     Permit fees, or inspection fees.


-     Utility hook up fees.


-     Premiums for overtime work.


-     Off-site work.


-     Hazardous materials abatement.


-     Seismic retrofitting of the main building.


-     Equipment


-     Furnishings


-     Special Construction


-     Fire sprinkler system.


-     Electronic Safety & Security


-     Items not specifically shown in estimate.


584 of 611







PREFACE TO THE ESTIMATE


1 bid +15% to +40%
2-3 bids +5% to +15%
4-5 bids +5% to -5%
6-7 bids -5% to -15%
7+ bids -15% or more


Estimates based on a competitive bid situation, involving 4 or more bidders with 4 sub 
bids per trade, is considered a normalized estimate. Costs may increase or decrease 
significantly depending on the actual number of bidders. Use the following percentages 
as a guide:


The estimate hereunder has been compiled from drawings and specifications (if 
available) believed to be an accurate portrayal of the project as drawn and indicated 
by the architect and/or engineers. If said drawings and specifications are incomplete, 
the project cost engineer has included those items as would usually appear in final 
drawings and specifications for a complete project in a manner ordinarily prudent under 
the circumstances. Specialty items unknown to the cost engineer will not normally be 
included unless communicated through the architect and/or engineer.


The user is cautioned that changes in the scope of the project or the drawings and 
specifications after the estimate has been submitted can cause cost changes and the 
cost engineer should be notified for appropriate addenda to be issued to the estimate.


The estimate has also been adjusted for geographical location based on local material 
and labor rates as well as local construction practice.


585 of 611







PROJECT SUMMARY
PROJECT: Faria House Interior Rehabilitation DATE: 9/17/2020


LEVEL: Construction Document ESTIMATOR: Javier Silva


CLIENT: Interactive Resources SCHEDULE: 6 Months


ITEM NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION AREA (SF) ITEM COST $/SF


1 Interior Rehabilitation 2,495 839,174 336


2


3


TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST: 2,495 839,174 336


ALT. NO. ALTERNATE DESCRIPTION AREA (SF) ALT COST $/SF


1 Elevator 326,261


2 Museum Electrical 66,326


3


TOTAL ALTERNATES COST:


SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC. 7 of 12586 of 611







ESTIMATE DETAIL
PROJECT: Faria House Interior Rehabilitation DATE: 9/17/2020
LEVEL: Construction Document ESTIMATOR: Javier Silva
CLIENT: Interactive Resources SCHEDULE: 6 Months
LOCATION: Interior Rehabilitation AREA (SF): 2,495


ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL AMOUNT


1.0 SITEWORK $/SF: 2.75 6,863
2.0 DEMOLITION $/SF: 11.70 29,186
3.0 CONCRETE $/SF:
4.0 MASONRY $/SF: 4.01 10,000
5.0 METALS $/SF: 1.00 2,495
6.R ROUGH CARPENTRY $/SF: 1.99 4,962
6.F FINISH CARPENTRY $/SF: 40.92 102,103
7.0 THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION $/SF: 15.01 37,443
8.0 OPENINGS $/SF: 3.71 9,251
9.0 FINISHES $/SF: 48.29 120,488
10.0 SPECIALTIES $/SF: 2.05 5,122
11.0 EQUIPMENT $/SF:
12.0 FURNISHINGS $/SF:
13.0 SPECIAL CONSTRUCTION $/SF:
14.0 CONVEYING $/SF:
21.0 FIRE SUPPRESSION $/SF:
22.0 PLUMBING $/SF: 3.50 8,737
23.0 MECHANICAL $/SF: 67.78 169,105
26.0 ELECTRICAL $/SF: 16.34 40,775
27.0 COMMUNICATIONS $/SF:
28.0 ELECTRONIC SAFETY & SECURITY $/SF:


SUBTOTAL 546,531
GENERAL CONDITIONS 21.0% 114,771
BONDS & INSURANCE 2.0% 13,226
OVERHEAD AND PROFIT 12.0% 80,943
DESIGN CONTINGENCY 5.0% 37,774
ESCALATION 5.8% 45,929
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 839,174


TOTAL $/SF: 336.34


SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC. 8 of 12587 of 611







ESTIMATE DETAIL
PROJECT: Faria House Interior Rehabilitation DATE: 9/17/2020
LEVEL: Construction Document ESTIMATOR: Javier Silva
CLIENT: Interactive Resources SCHEDULE: 6 Months
LOCATION: Interior Rehabilitation AREA (SF): 2,495


ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL AMOUNT


1.0 SITEWORK


Paint curb red for FIRE LANE 226 lf 24.00 5,424
Fire lane pole mounted sign 2 ea 719.55 1,439


Subtotal Sitework $/SF: 2.75 6,863


2.0 DEMOLITION


Interior demolition 2,495 sf 11.70 29,186


Subtotal Demolition $/SF: 11.70 29,186


4.0 MASONRY


Faux brick firebox 1 ls 10,000.00 10,000


Subtotal Masonry $/SF: 4.01 10,000


5.0 METALS


Miscellaneous metal, angle supports 2,495 sf 1.00 2,495


Subtotal Metals $/SF: 1.00 2,495


6.R ROUGH CARPENTRY


Interior wall framing 120 sf 20.56 2,467
Miscellaneous rough carpentry 2,495 sf 1.00 2,495


Subtotal Rough Carpentry $/SF: 1.99 4,962


6.F FINISH CARPENTRY


Remove, catalog & reinstall door, window, wall trim 1 ls 92,102.96 92,103
Fireplace trim 1 ls 10,000.00 10,000


Subtotal Finish Carpentry $/SF: 40.92 102,103


7.0 THERMAL & MOISTURE PROTECTION


R15 wall insulation 5,790 sf 3.08 17,855
R30 floor and roof insulation 2,968 sf 6.17 18,305
Sealants and caulking 2,495 sf 0.51 1,282


Subtotal Thermal & Moisture Protection $/SF: 15.01 37,443


SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC. 9 of 12588 of 611







ESTIMATE DETAIL
PROJECT: Faria House Interior Rehabilitation DATE: 9/17/2020
LEVEL: Construction Document ESTIMATOR: Javier Silva
CLIENT: Interactive Resources SCHEDULE: 6 Months
LOCATION: Interior Rehabilitation AREA (SF): 2,495


ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL AMOUNT


8.0 OPENINGS


Hardware group 1 1 ea 925.14 925
Hardware group 2 3 ea 719.55 2,159
New door, frame and hardware 2 ea 3,083.80 6,168


Subtotal Openings $/SF: 3.71 9,251


9.0 FINISHES


5/8" type x gypsum board, walls 7,920 sf 5.14 40,706
5/8" type x gypsum board, ceilings 2,606 sf 5.65 14,733
Paint 10,526 sf 2.57 27,050
Flooring 973 sf 20.56 20,013
Clean flooring 1,522 sf 2.00 3,043
Wall base 120 lf 20.56 2,467
Miscellaneous patching and repairing 2,495 sf 5.00 12,475


Subtotal Finishes $/SF: 48.29 120,488


10.0 SPECIALTIES


Address numbers 1 ls 500.00 500
Fire extinguishers 2 ea 822.35 1,645
Signage 8 ea 372.11 2,977


Subtotal Specialties $/SF: 2.05 5,122


22.0 PLUMBING


Water heater, electric, 20 gallons 1 ea 1,027.93 1,028
Condensate drain piping 150 lf 51.40 7,710


Subtotal Plumbing $/SF: 3.50 8,737


23.0 MECHANICAL


Mechanical demolition 1 ls 14,906.87 14,907


HP-1, 5 ton 1 ea 20,558.70 20,559
HP-2, 5 ton 1 ea 20,558.70 20,559
Fan coil unit, 2 ton 2 ea 8,223.48 16,447
Fan coil unit, 1.5 ton 1 ea 6,167.61 6,168
Fan coil unit, 1.25 ton 4 ea 5,139.67 20,559
Fan coil unit, 1 ton 2 ea 4,111.74 8,223
EF-1, 80 cfm 1 ea 822.35 822
EF-2, 110 cfm 1 ea 1,130.73 1,131


SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC. 10 of 12589 of 611







ESTIMATE DETAIL
PROJECT: Faria House Interior Rehabilitation DATE: 9/17/2020
LEVEL: Construction Document ESTIMATOR: Javier Silva
CLIENT: Interactive Resources SCHEDULE: 6 Months
LOCATION: Interior Rehabilitation AREA (SF): 2,495


ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL AMOUNT


48x60x4" equipment pad 1 ea 5,920.90 5,921
Refrigerant piping 214 lf 51.40 11,005
Thermostats 9 ea 719.55 6,476
Controls 1 ls 31,200.00 31,200
Testing, adjusting and balancing 1 ls 5,129.39 5,129


Subtotal Mechanical $/SF: 67.78 169,105


26.0 ELECTRICAL


Panel A, 125A 1 ea 6,424.59 6,425
Circuit breaker, 125A 1 ea 1,284.92 1,285
Feeder, 125A 50 lf 85.66 4,283
Power to mechanical equipment 14 ea 2,055.87 28,782


Subtotal Electrical $/SF: 16.34 40,775


SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC. 11 of 12590 of 611







ESTIMATE SUMMARY
PROJECT: Faria House Interior Rehabilitation DATE: 9/17/2020
LEVEL: Construction Document ESTIMATOR: Javier Silva
CLIENT: Interactive Resources SCHEDULE: 6 Months
LOCATION: Alternates AREA (SF):


ITEM DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT COST TOTAL AMOUNT


1 Elevator


Elevator 1 ea 100,000.00 100,000
Drilled pier 4 ea 2,500.00 10,000
Floor framing modifications 1 ls 25,000.00 25,000


Elevator shaft wall, metal studs, shaft liner, complete 1,920 sf 30.00 57,600
Enclosed circuit breaker, 100A 1 ea 1,027.93 1,028
Elevator disconnect 1 ea 719.55 720
Elevator wire and conduit 50 lf 68.53 3,426


SUBTOTAL 197,774
GENERAL CONDITIONS 30.0% 59,332
BONDS & INSURANCE 2.0% 5,142
OVERHEAD AND PROFIT 12.0% 31,470
DESIGN CONTINGENCY 5.0% 14,686
ESCALATION 5.8% 17,857
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 326,261


TOTAL $/SF:


2 Museum Electrical


Duplex receptacles 19 ea 256.98 4,883
LED track lighting 94 lf 150.00 14,094
Recessed light fixture 17 ea 500.00 8,500
Wire and conduit 500 lf 20.56 10,279
Data receptacle 7 ea 350.00 2,450


SUBTOTAL 40,206
GENERAL CONDITIONS 30.0% 12,062
BONDS & INSURANCE 2.0% 1,045
OVERHEAD AND PROFIT 12.0% 6,398
DESIGN CONTINGENCY 5.0% 2,986
ESCALATION 5.8% 3,630
TOTAL CONSTRUCTION COST 66,326


TOTAL $/SF: 3.71


SILVA COST CONSULTING, INC. 12 of 12591 of 611







1 


DRAFT 11-3-20 


MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND THE PINOLE HISTORY MUSEUM  


This Memorandum of Understanding and Cooperative Agreement (this “Agreement”), is 
entered into as of _______________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the City of 
Pinole (the “City”), a California municipal corporation, and the Pinole History Museum, a 
California nonprofit corporation (“PHM”).  The City and PHM are collectively referred to herein 
as the “Parties.” 


RECITALS 


A.   The City owns that certain building located at 2100 San Pablo Avenue known as 
the “Faria House.” 


B.  The Faria family sold the Faria House to the City as part of a redevelopment 
project with the understanding that the Faria House would be renovated and used as a local 
history museum (the “Museum”) for the City of Pinole.  


C. PHM was formed as a nonprofit corporation in 2017 in order to fund, construct, 
and operate the Museum. 


D. The Faria House is in need of renovation in order to fulfill the City’s commitment 
to house the Museum (the “Project”). 


E. Renovation will require architecture and engineering, environmental review, 
permits, construction management, construction, and possibly site improvements. 


F. The purpose of this Agreement is to show cooperation between the Parties in 
order to assist the Parties in their efforts to raise funding for the Project and Museum operations 
and to set forth the roles and responsibilities of each Party for its contribution to the Project.  


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set 
forth the Parties agree as follows: 


1. TERM.  The term of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and will end on
December 31, 2023 (the “Term”).  The Term can be extended for one (1) additional year to 
December 31, 2024 at the mutual agreement of the Parties. 


2. RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY.


A. Architecture and Design.  The City has contracted for and has received 
architecture plans for the renovation of the Faria House to serve as the Museum.  


ATTACHMENT M


592 of 611







 


2 


 


DRAFT 11-3-20 


 B. CEQA; Entitlements.  The City will undertake all steps for environmental review 
and CEQA compliance.  The City is responsible for obtaining approval of all entitlement and 
planning requirements for the Project.  The City is also responsible for ensuring that the 
architecture and construction for the Museum complies with any relevant State historical 
requirements or standards.  


 C. City Project Funding.  The City will work in conjunction with PHM in best efforts 
to use grant funding and proceeds from former redevelopment programs for the Project. The City 
will determine whether there is any available City funding to apply to the construction of the 
Project.  The City is not obligated to provide funding for the Project in excess of One Million 
Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,200,000) (“Total City Funding”), including grant funding 
secured by the City.  The Total City Funding includes all amounts approved for architecture, 
costs of entitlements and CEQA, construction management, construction, and site improvements 
for the Project. 


 D. Construction.  The City has entered into a contract with Interactive Resources for 
architectural design and construction cost estimates (the “Cost Estimate”) for the construction of 
the base building requirements for the Project.  Based on the report received on September 17, 
2020 from Interactive Resources’ subcontractor, Silva Cost Consulting, Inc., the Cost Estimate 
for the Project is One Million One Hundred Sixty-Five Thousand Four Hundred Thirty-Five 
Dollars ($1,165,435) plus. The cost estimate for special museum electrical work (the “Tenant 
Improvements”) is Sixty-Six Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-Six Dollars ($66,326).  Once 
the conditions precedent set forth in Section 4 below have been satisfied, the City will timely 
solicit bids for the construction of the Project and Tenant Improvements.  Subject to the terms of 
this Agreement, the City will identify a preferred responsible bidder for the Project and Tenant 
Improvements, award the bid and provide project management for the Project and Tenant 
Improvements. 


 E. Use of City Staff.  The City shall provide the services of City personnel on an as-
needed basis to perform the project management services needed for the obligations of the City 
under this Agreement; provided however, that City personnel shall not spend more than 500 
hours from the Effective Date onward (“City Personnel Hours Limit”). In the event that the 
hours for City personnel to perform project management for the Project exceeds the City 
Personnel Hours Limit, the City will invoice PHM for reimbursement of the excess hours on an 
actual cost reimbursement basis, and will expect receipt of payment within ninety days of 
invoicing.  The City Personnel Hours Limit does not include City personnel time related to 
CEQA or the entitlement process, the hours for which will be paid through the Project permits. 


 F. Limitation on City Obligations.  The City is under no obligation to fund the 
furniture, fixtures and equipment (the “FFE”), Tenant Improvements, or to provide any funds for 
the operation of the Museum. 


593 of 611







 


3 


 


DRAFT 11-3-20 


3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF PHM.   


 A. PHM Project Funding.  PHM will raise funding to pay for the Tenant Improvements, 
estimated to be Sixty-Six Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-Six Dollars ($66,326), and to 
purchase the FFE, estimated to be One Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($175,000).  In 
addition, in the event that the costs of the Project exceed the Total City Funding, PHM shall fund 
the cost difference. 


 B. Taxes.  PHM shall be responsible for obtaining tax exempt status from the Internal 
Revenue Service and State Franchise Tax Board. If PHM fails to obtain tax exempt status, payment 
of all applicable federal, state and local taxes shall be PHM’s sole responsibility. 


 C. Operating Expenses.  PHM will be solely responsible for all costs of operating the 
Museum.  Failure to have sufficient funds to operate the Museum will be a default under the lease 
for the Faria House. 


4. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO CONSTRUCTION.  The City is under no obligation to 
solicit bids for the construction of the Project until PHM has documented and established, to the 
satisfaction of the City: 


 A.   PHM has obtained a minimum of Two Hundred Forty-One Thousand Three 
Hundred and Twenty-Six Dollars ($241,326) in funding to pay the City to construct the Tenant 
Improvements and procure the FFE for the Museum. 


 B. PHM has transferred the total amount of the cost of the Tenant Improvements to 
the City. 


5. LEASE TERMS.  Following construction of the Project, the City will enter into a lease 
with PHM (the “Lease”) for the use of the Faria House for the Museum.  Minimum terms to be 
included in the Lease are as follows: 


 (a) The Museum must be open to the public for a minimum of 20 hours each week on 
a set schedule and must provide a minimum of three exhibits at all times and at least four new 
exhibits each year. 


 (b) PHM shall pay $500 monthly rent for the first five years of tenancy. The monthly 
rent shall be renegotiated at that point based on PHM’s ability to pay and City needs. 


 (c) The term of the lease will be ten (10) years with an option to extend the lease 
twice for five (5) years each at the mutual agreement of the Parties. 


 (d) PHM will be responsible for all routine maintenance of the interior of the Faria 
House. 


594 of 611







 


4 


 


DRAFT 11-3-20 


 (e) The City will be responsible for routine maintenance of the exterior of the Faria 
House and for major maintenance of exterior walls, windows and the HVAC system. 


 (f) PHM will maintain a catalog of donated and loaned artifacts and materials and 
insure and secure those items. 


 (g) PHM will have the right to make alterations to the interior of the Faria House that 
are approved by the City. 


 (h) The City will have the right to use the Faria House up to five (5) times per year 
for City functions, with no rent to PHM and at a time that does not interfere with the normal 
hours of business for the Museum. 


 (i) PHM will be permitted to sublease a portion of the Faria House, subject to any 
restrictions imposed by the funding sources for the Project, and provided that the use 
complements the use and purpose of the Museum. 


 (j) PHM will provide the City with the Museum financial records. 


 (k) City will be responsible for exterior landscaping and site maintenance. 


6. INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, PHM shall indemnify, 
defend with counsel acceptable to the City, and hold harmless the City and its officers, officials, 
employees, agents and volunteers (collectively, “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all 
liability, loss, damage, claims, expenses, and costs, including without limitation, attorney’s fees, 
costs and fees of litigation, (collectively, “Liability”) of every nature arising out of or in 
connection with any activities undertaken by PHM and the duties required of PHM under this 
Agreement, or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, or its 
failure to comply with any applicable law or regulation, except such Liability caused by the sole 
negligence or willful misconduct of the City. 


7. OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All reports, data, maps, models, charts, studies, 
surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, records, files, or any other 
documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that PHM prepares or obtains pursuant 
to this Agreement and that relate to the Museum shall be the property of the City.  PHM hereby 
agrees to deliver those documents to the City upon termination of this Agreement.  It is 
understood and agreed that the documents and other materials, including, but not limited to, 
those described above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City 
and are not necessarily suitable for any future or other use.  The City and PHM agree that, until 
final approval by the City, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are 
confidential and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both parties. 


595 of 611







 


5 


 


DRAFT 11-3-20 


8. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  PHM covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall 
not have any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with performance of 
the duties required under this Agreement.  


9. NOTICES.  Any notice, demand, request, consent or approval that either party is required 
to give the other pursuant to this Agreement, shall be in writing and may be given by either 
(i) personal service, (ii) electronic notice, or (iii) certified United States mail, postage prepaid, 
return receipt requested. Notice shall be effective upon personal delivery or delivery to the 
addresses specified below, as reflected on the receipt of delivery or return receipt, as applicable.   


PHM:    Pinole History Museum 
   __________________ 
   __________________ 
   Attn: Secretary  
 
City:   City of Pinole 
   2131 Pear St. 
   Pinole, CA  94564 
   Attn: City Manager 


 


10. RECORDS ACCESS.  PHM shall make available to the City, its authorized agents, 
officers, or employees, for examination any and all ledgers, books of accounts, bank statements 
invoices, vouchers, cancelled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or relating to 
the fundraising and receipt of funding for the Project.  City must provide twenty-four (24) hours 
notice prior to review of the financial information.  In addition, during the term of this 
Agreement PHM will provide a report to City quarterly that includes the amount of funds raised 
to date and the fund raising activities undertaken by PHM. 


11. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the 
relationship between the parties hereto, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. 
In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this Agreement, the parties 
agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the 
County of Contra Costa. 


12. MISCELLANEOUS.  


 A.   This Agreement, including all attachments, exhibits, and any other documents 
specifically incorporated into this Agreement, shall constitute the entire agreement between the 
City and PHM relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes and 
merges all previous understandings, and all other agreements, written or oral, between the Parties 
and sets forth the entire understanding of the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof.   


596 of 611







 


6 


 


DRAFT 11-3-20 


 B. This Agreement may not be modified except by a written document signed by 
both Parties.   


C.   This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be 
an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 


D.   Each Party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to participate in the drafting 
of the agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore, the construction of an 
agreement against the drafting party shall not apply to the Parties.   


E.   This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto, with no intent 
to benefit any third parties.   


F.   If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 
Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so adjudged 
shall remain in full force and effect.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this 
Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement. 


G.   PHM may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein. 


H. By entering into this Agreement, the Parties do not intend to create a joint venture 
between them.  The purpose of this Agreement is as indicated in the Recitals, to provide 
cooperation for the construction of the Museum. 


I. This Agreement may be terminated by the mutual agreement of the Parties as 
evinced by a written document signed by both Parties. 


SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE  


  


597 of 611







 


7 


 


DRAFT 11-3-20 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the 


date first written above.    


 


CITY  


 


By: _______________________________ 
 Andrew Murray 
 City Manager  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 Heather Iopu, CMC 
 City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 Eric S. Casher 
 City Attorney  
 
 
 
PINOLE HISTORY MUSEUM, 
 
By:  _______________________________ 
 Name 
 Title 
 


3612543.4  


 


598 of 611







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 9B 


DATE  JULY 7, 2020 


TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 


SUBJECT: POTENTIAL FUNDING SOURCES FOR THE FARIA HOUSE 
RENOAVTION 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council accept a report on potential funding sources for 
the Faria House renovation and provide input to the Faria House Ad-Hoc Committee on 
the matter. 


BACKGROUND 


At the June 2, 2020 City Council meeting, during the discussion of the City’s commitment 
to use the Faria House as a local history museum, Council Member Salimi requested 
information on funding sources available for the Faria House renovation and the impacts 
to other City projects if funding is redirected from those projects to the Faria House.  


At the June 16, 2020 City Council meeting, the Council created a Faria House Ad-Hoc 
Committee. One of the specific responsibilities of the Committee is to assess and provide 
recommendations to the full City Council on options to fund the City’s share of the cost to 
renovate and maintain the Faria House building and site. The information provided in this 
report will feed into the Committee’s more detailed examination of this issue. 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 


In response to Council Member Salimi’s request, staff is providing the Council with an 
overview of possible funding options for the Faria House improvements, which have been 
estimated to cost $1.5 million. Funding options generally include using existing 
unrestricted financial assets (such as fund balance), obtaining new financial assets (such 
as grants or loans), and reducing planned expenditures in order to redirect those 
appropriations to the Faria House. 


Using Existing Unrestricted Financial Assets 


• General Fund Balance – Per the City’s Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operating Budget,
the General Fund balance is expected to be $7.1 million at year end, comprised of
$5.1 million in unrestricted funds and $2 million from the proceeds of the sale of
PALC. Historically, unrestricted fund balance has been used for unanticipated


ATTACHMENT N


599 of 611







City Council Report  
July 7, 2020  2 


expenditures and/or as working capital for the initial five months of the fiscal year 
(July – November), before the City receives property tax revenues from the 
County. 


   
• Use of $1.5 Million from the Sale of the Pinole Assisted Living Community 


(PALC) – On November 13, 2018, the Council approved a motion to place $1.5 
million of General Fund revenue that the City received from the sale of PALC into 
either the City’s 115 Pension Trust or an unfunded OPEB liability trust. The $1.5 
million is a portion of the $7.1 million General Fund balance noted above. While 
the previous City Council designated the $1.5 million for a specific purpose, the 
current City Council has the authority to redirect those funds to a different purpose, 
such as the Faria House renovation. 


 
• Use of $500,000 from PALC – Similar to the $1.5 million discussed above, in FY 


2019-20 PALC made another payment to the City, in the amount of $500,000.  
These funds could be allocated towards the improvements at the Faria House. 


 
• Proceeds from the Sale of Redevelopment Successor Agency Property – Due 


to the dissolution of redevelopment agencies, any property that was owned by the 
former City of Pinole Redevelopment Agency (RDA) must be disposed of. The 
proceeds of any sale of such property is distributed to the local taxing agencies.  
The City, as a taxing agency, will receive, as property tax revenue, approximately 
19% of the proceeds of the sale of any former RDA property. Earlier this month, 
the City, as the Successor Agency to the RDA, sold a former RDA property, located 
at Henry Avenue and Pinole Valley Road, which was a portion of the former Faria 
House parcel, for $470,000.  The City estimates that it will receive $89,000 from 
the sale.  These funds were not included in the FY 2020-21 budget and can be 
designated for any purpose by the City Council. The City is also currently in 
negotiations for the sale of a 7-acre parcel located at the Pinole Shores II Business 
Park.  When the property is sold, it is estimated that the City will receive $580,000 
in property tax revenues. Those revenues are also not included in the FY 2020-21 
budget and can be designated for any purpose by the City Council. 


 
Obtaining New Financial Assets 
 


• Grant Funding – Grant funding might be available for the Faria House renovation 
through State, federal, or nonprofit sources.  In May, the City received a notice 
from the California Natural Resources Agency of future grant opportunities.  The 
grants would provide funding for Museum and for Youth Community Access 
Programs. 


 
The California Museum grant program, funded by the proceeds from the Snoopy 
Special Interest License Plate sales, will fund capital projects and program projects 
that assist the California Cultural and Historical Endowment (CCHE) in supporting 
and enhancing museum services. The grant awards range from $50,000 to 
$250,000 and require a match of at least 20%The Youth Community Access 
Program will fund small capital projects or program projects that increase youth 


600 of 611







City Council Report  
July 7, 2020  3 


access to natural and cultural resources. The grant awards range from $50,000 to 
$300,000 and require a match of at least 20% These two grants have limited 
funding and will be awarded on a competitive basis. 
 
It might be possible to obtain grant funding through other State, federal, or 
nonprofit programs. 
 


• Private Financing – In prior years, the City has obtained private financing to 
purchase equipment when the need was immediate and full funding for the item 
was limited.  One advantage of private financing is that it offers the City a pool of 
funds to purchase equipment or expedite a construction project. 


 
Staff has obtained a proposal from a capital financing firm for a loan of $1,000,000.  
At the City’s request, the firm has provided the City with three repayment plan 
options as listed below. 


 
 
 
 
 
 


As a condition of the financing, the City will be required to provide collateral. If this 
option is exercised, a new obligation of the General Fund will exist, and the City 
will need to budget the payment, either from new revenue or expenditure savings, 
each year through the term of the loan agreement. 


 
Reducing Planned Expenditures 
 


• Reducing Budgeted Expenditures - The City recently completed an extensive 
review of its revenues and expenditures as part of the creation of the FY 2020-21 
Operating Budget. The budget includes $15,792,577 of General Fund (including 
Measures S 2006 and 2014) expenditures on personnel and $3,430,633 of other 
operating expenses, including services and supplies. These General Fund 
appropriations could be redirected to the Faria House. Staff only included in the 
Proposed FY 2020-21 Operating Budget expenditures that it considered 
necessary to maintain service levels and meet critical operational and community 
needs. Staff does not have any specific recommendations at this time for 
appropriations contained in the Adopted FY 2020-21 Operating Budget that should 
be re-appropriated to the Faria House. Staff can provide detailed information on 
appropriations contained in the Adopted FY 2020-21 Operating Budget to the Faria 
House Ad-Hoc Committee. 


 
• Property Tax from Developed RDA Properties – Under State law, cities are 


exempt from paying property tax on city-owned property.  However, once a city 
sells a piece of city-owned property, the new owner is generally required to pay 
property tax on the property. Based on the construction value of the project that is 
anticipated to be built at Henry and Pinole Valley Road, the City is expecting to 


601 of 611







City Council Report  
July 7, 2020  4 


receive annual property tax revenues in the amount of $893. The City receives 
approximately $2,277 annually in property tax revenue from the other redeveloped 
portions of the former Faria parcel (Kaiser, Starbucks, and DaVita). The City does 
not segregate the property tax revenue that it receives from the former Faria 
parcel. That revenue is simply a portion of the overall property tax that the City 
receives, and is appropriated at such. The City could redirect the appropriation of 
these revenues specifically to the Faria House renovation. That would require 
backfilling the other projects or services that those funds are currently supporting. 


 
One factor to consider in identifying potential funding sources is the timing of the 
improvements.  The cost estimate of the proposed improvements to the Faria House are 
based on 2019 costs.  Deferring this project for another year or longer could result in 
increased construction costs.  According to the Department of General Services, 
construction costs have increased at a rate of 4.4% annually over recent years. 
 
Impact to Other City Projects and Services 
 
Whichever funding option is selected, other than grant funding, there will be an impact to 
the City. 
 


• Reduction in Interest Revenues – Utilizing $1.5 million from the General Fund 
balance would result in a reduction in interest revenues that would have been 
earned on those funds.  The current interest rate paid through Local Agency 
Investment Funds (LAIF) is 1.15%, which would equate to $17,500 per year of 
reduced interest earnings.  


 
• 115 Retirement Trust – In June 2018, the City approved funding of a 115 Pension 


Trust to mitigate the City’s pension cost over the next 20 years and to smooth 
annual contributions.  Based on the amount placed in the Trust, projected interest 
rates, anticipated drawdown of funds to pay annual retirement contributions, and 
expected rates of return on CalPERS investments, the current funding was 
projected to carry the City through the peak employer contribution periods. 
However, it was not expected to completely address the City’s unfunded pension 
liability. Any assets that are currently in the General Fund balance, including the 
proceeds from the sale of PALC, and are spent on the Faria House renovation will 
no longer be available to spend on the City’s unfunded pension liability in excess 
of what is contained in the 115 Pension Trust. 


 
• Increase in Debt Service – Should the City obtain private financing for the Faria 


House improvements, the City will have to budget the annual debt service 
payments.  Depending on the repayment period and interest rates, the annual debt 
service could range from $122,517 to $219,436 per year. This amount will be a 
new expenditure in the General Fund. 
 


• Deferral of Capital Improvement Projects – Until such time as it is determined 
which expenditures in the General Fund are to be reduced or eliminated, the 
impact to Capital Improvement Projects are unknown. 


602 of 611







City Council Report  
July 7, 2020  5 


 
• Reduction in Service Levels to Community – On an annual basis, departments 


propose expenditures to maintain certain basic service levels and/or complete 
projects which staff does not have the bandwidth to accomplish.  As expenditure 
reductions are considered and/or are proposed, services levels or project 
completion may be impacted. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact to receiving a report of funding options for the Faria House 
improvements. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 


603 of 611







 CITY COUNCIL  REVISED 
 REPORT 10A


DATE: OCTOBER 6, 2020 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 


SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE FIVE-YEAR FORECAST FOR THE GENERAL FUND 
AND MEASURE S FUNDS FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2020/21 THROUGH FY 
2024/25 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive the five-year forecast for fiscal year (FY) 
2020/21 through FY 2024/25. 


BACKGROUND 


The City has historically included a five-year financial forecast in the adopted Operating 
Budget. Due to the unusual challenges presented by COVID-19, City staff was unable 
to create a five-year forecast for inclusion in the FY 2020/21 Operating Budget. Rather, 
the budget, which was approved by the City Council on June 16, 2020, included just a 
two-year financial forecast. City staff has conducted additional analysis and is now 
presenting a five-year forecast for FY 2020/21 through FY 2024/25. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


The five-year forecast for the General Fund and Measure S Funds has been prepared 
using conservative assumptions for both revenues and expenditures. Based on analysis 
of historical trends and anticipated future issues, staff forecasted the fiscal impacts to 
the operating budgets and ending fund balance for the General Fund and Measure S 
Funds for five years. The Five-Year Forecast Summary Schedule for the General Fund 
and Measure S Funds for FY 2020/21 Through FY 2024/25 is included as Attachment 
A to this report. 


General Fund 


Revenue Forecast 


The General Fund revenue forecast anticipates a recovery from the impact of the 
COVID-19 Shelter-In-Place (SIP) in FY 2021/22. The forecast also includes some one-
time revenues, as noted below. Overall, the revenues are forecasted to increase from 
$14.7 million in FY 2020/21 to $17.8 million in FY 2024/25. When including the 
anticipated transfers in from the Pension Trust Fund to the General Fund as another 


ATTACHMENT O


604 of 611







City Council Report, 10A 
October 6, 2020  2 


funding source, total revenues are forecasted to be $16.1 million in FY 2020/21 and 
$19.0 million in FY 2024/25, as shown in the table below. 
 


 
 
Revenue Assumptions 
 
The forecast assumes that base Property Tax revenue will grow at 2% to 3% per year. 
The residual property tax revenue that has resulted from the dissolution of the former 
redevelopment agency is forecasted to increase by approximately $908,000 in FY 
2023/24, after outstanding redevelopment bonds are retired. The forecast also assumes 
additional residual property tax revenue of $86,000 in FY 2021/22 and $575,500 in FY 
2022/23 for the anticipated sale of former RDA property. 
 
The forecast assumes that Sales Tax revenue will rebound in FY 2021/22 to the FY 
2019/20 level, and thereafter grow at 3% annually. The estimates on the recovery are 
conservative, but staff will continue to monitor sales tax revenue activity on a quarterly 
basis. 
 
Franchise Tax and Utility Users Tax (UUT) revenues are forecasted to grow at 1% to 
2% annually. 
 
Other Taxes revenue includes Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) and Business License. 
These revenues are forecasted to rebound in FY 2021/22 to the FY 2018/19 level, and 
thereafter grow at 2% annually. 
 
Intergovernmental Tax revenues, Vehicle License Fees and Homeowner Property Tax 
Relief, are forecasted to increase at 2% to 3% annually. 
 
Transfers from the Pension Trust Fund to the General Fund are equivalent to the 
difference between the City’s base year (FY 2018/19) contribution toward employee 
pensions and the forecasted required City contribution in future years. 
 
 
 
 


General Fund - 100 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Actual Actual Original Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected


REVENUE:
PROPERTY TAX 3,837,167       4,514,755    4,146,109         4,156,491    5,067,165    5,490,109       5,630,182       
SALES TAX 3,994,720       3,788,080    3,345,879         3,788,080    3,901,722    4,018,774       4,139,337       
UTILITY USERS TAX 1,812,844       1,809,832    1,896,000         1,914,960    1,953,259    1,992,324       2,032,171       
FRANCHISE TAX 735,311           750,001        750,000             757,500        772,650        788,103          803,865          
INTERGOVERNMENTAL TAX 1,836,501       1,952,717    2,006,163         2,046,286    2,107,675    2,170,905       2,236,032       
OTHER TAXES 884,757           826,359        785,000             884,757        902,453        920,502          938,912          
OTHER REVENUE 3,274,296       2,280,423    1,795,187         1,869,216    1,944,362    2,015,230       2,024,531       


     Total Revenue 16,375,597     15,922,167  14,724,338       15,417,291  16,649,286  17,395,947    17,805,031    
TRANSFERS IN 6,290,688       


PENSION TRANSFER IN  (FY 19/20 alloc) 476,366             
PENSION TRANSFER IN 882,013             743,686        947,272        1,040,806       1,180,322       


     Total Sources 22,666,285     15,922,167  16,082,717       16,160,977  17,596,558  18,436,753    18,985,353    


605 of 611







City Council Report, 10A 
October 6, 2020  3 


Expenditure Forecast 
 
Overall, General Fund expenditures are forecasted to increase from $17.6 million in FY 
2020/21 to $18.8 in FY 2024/25. Personnel and other operating costs are forecasted to 
increase at a modest amount in order to maintain existing levels of staffing and service. 
 


 
 
Expenditure Assumptions 
 
Salaries are forecasted to increase at 3% annually. 
 
Other Benefits have been forecasted to increase at 4% annually. 
 
The City’s required pension contribution is forecasted based on the most recent actuarial 
valuation reports provided by the California Public Employees' Retirement System 
(CalPERS). 
 
Retiree Health Benefits are forecasted to increase from 4% to 7% annually based on 
the actuarial valuation report provided by the City’s consultant, Bartel Associates, LLC. 
 
General operating costs are forecasted to increase at 2.8% annually over the five-year 
period, based on four-year average. 
 
One-time expenditures have been specifically identified and incorporated into the 
forecast as appropriate. 
 
Transfers Out have been adjusted in FY 2021/22 to the spending level of FY 2019/20. 
The FY 2020/21 transfers out were budgeted at higher levels than normal to offset the 
loss of revenue to the Recreation Fund due to the SIP. 
 
Net Results and Fund Balance 
 
As seen in the table below, the General Fund is forecasted to be generally balanced 
over the upcoming five-year period. This is primarily due to modestly increasing 
revenues and the Pension Trust Fund’s coverage of increasing pension costs. 
 
The City’s unassigned General Fund Balance is forecasted to be $3.9 million at June 
30, 2021 and $3.7 million at June 30, 2025. The unassigned General Fund Balance 
forecast accounts for deposits into the General Reserve per the General Reserve Policy. 


General Fund - 100 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Actual Actual Original Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected


EXPENDITURES:
SALARIES 7,140,412       7,217,115    8,197,748         8,443,680    8,696,991    8,957,901       9,226,638       
BENEFITS & INSURANCE 4,378,221       4,646,517    5,181,603         5,195,660    5,551,921    5,806,894       6,077,392       
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 1,791,295       2,649,852    1,949,122         2,031,197    2,088,071    2,146,537       2,206,640       
EXPENDITURES - One time 1,022,500         22,500          22,500             
DEBT SERVICE 520,000           536,120        555,000             575,000        595,000        610,000          610,000          
TRANSFERS OUT 21,225,833     562,558        702,955             562,558        579,435        596,818          614,722          


Total Expenditures 35,055,762     15,612,162  17,608,928       16,808,096  17,533,918  18,118,150    18,757,891    


606 of 611







City Council Report, 10A 
October 6, 2020  4 


 
The General Reserve, which represents 50% of the General Fund operating budget for 
each year, is forecasted to be $8.3 million at June 30, 2021 and $9.4 million at June 30, 
2025. The General Reserve is funded by forecasted interest earnings of 3% annually 
and transfers from the General Fund to maintain the required reserve level per City 
Policy. 
 
The Pension Trust Fund balance is forecasted at $17.1 million at June 30, 2021 and 
$15.1 million at June 30, 2025. The Pension Trust is funded by forecasted interest 
earnings of 5.8% annually. The forecast does not assume a deposit of any portion of the 
proceeds of the sale of the Pinole Assisted Living Community (PALC) into the Pension 
Trust Fund. 
 


  
 
Measure S 2006 
 
The Measure S 2006 FY 2020/21 budget is projecting a $157,297 surplus. These funds 
continue to support Police and Fire operations. The remaining fund balance is projected 
to be $1.9 million at June 30, 2021 and $2.21 million at June 30, 2025.  
 
Measure S 2006 expenditures and available fund balance will be reviewed with the 
annual budget process. Use of fund balance may be budgeted to address additional 
public safety needs identified through the budget process.  
 


 
 
General assumptions for revenue and expenditure forecasts for Measure S 2006 are 
consistent with the assumptions for the General Fund noted above. 
 


General Fund - 100 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Actual Actual Original Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected


     Total Revenues and Sources 22,666,285     15,922,167  16,082,717       16,160,977  17,596,558  18,436,753    18,985,353    
     Total Expenditures 35,055,762     15,612,162  17,608,928       16,808,096  17,533,918  18,118,150    18,757,891    


     Net Results (12,389,477)   310,005        (1,526,211)       (647,119)      62,641          318,603          227,461          
Fund Balance, July 1 18,203,473     5,813,996    6,124,001         3,865,991    3,346,468    3,280,193       3,547,695       


 Preliminary Fund Balance, June 30 5,813,996 6,124,001 4,597,790 3,218,872 3,409,108 3,598,796 3,775,157
Adjust for General Reserves Policy (731,799)           127,596        (128,915)      (51,101)           (71,625)           


Fund Balance, June 30 3,865,991 3,346,468 3,280,193 3,547,695 3,703,531


General Reserve Balance, June 30 7,137,963 7,352,102 8,304,464 8,404,048 8,766,959 9,059,075 9,378,946


Pension Fund Balance, June 30 17,159,258 18,088,812 17,144,938 16,941,586 16,476,394 15,900,747 15,087,504


MEASURE S-2006 - 105 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Actual Actual Original Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected


     Total Revenues and Sources 2,170,860       1,981,425    2,322,897         2,279,673    2,365,041    2,426,136       2,498,495       
     Total Expenditures 2,172,561       2,499,588    2,165,524         2,191,565    2,290,103    2,365,244       2,450,594       


     Net Results (1,702)              (518,163)      157,373             88,108          74,938          60,892             47,901             
Fund Balance, July 1 2,300,654       2,298,952    1,780,790         1,938,162    2,026,271    2,101,209       2,162,101       
Fund Balance, June 30 2,298,952       1,780,790    1,938,162         2,026,271    2,101,209    2,162,101       2,210,002       


607 of 611







City Council Report, 10A 
October 6, 2020  5 


Measure S 2014  
 
FY 2020/21 marks the sixth full year that the City will receive revenue from Measure S 
2014. The City Council approved a new Five-Year Funding Plan for the use of these 
funds on September 17, 2019, which has been incorporated into the Five-Year Forecast. 
The funds are used to address some of the City’s operational and capital improvement 
needs. 
 
The Measure S 2014 FY 2020/21 budget is projecting a $1.6 million use of fund balance 
due to planned and approved capital projects. Including all of the capital projects 
incorporated into the FY 2020/21 through FY 2024/25 Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP), the Measure S 2014 fund balance is forecasted to be $2.2 million at June 30, 
2021 and $3.5 million at June 30, 2025. 
 
Staff intends to incorporate the Measure S 2014 Five-Year Funding Plan into the normal 
annual budget beginning in FY 2021/22, to better align the programming of Measure S 
2014 expenditures with the General Fund operating budget process and the CIP 
process. This will facilitate the evaluation of the use of available Measure S 2014 funds 
for capital projects. 
 


 
 
General assumptions for revenue and expenditure forecasts for Measure S 2014 are 
consistent with the assumptions for the General Fund noted above. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The Five-Year Forecast for the General Fund and Measure S Funds reflects a combined 
total unassigned fund balance of $8 million atJune 30, 2021 and $9.4 million at June 30, 
2025.  In addition, General  Reserves are forecasted to increase from $8.3 million to 
$9.4 million in at June 30, 2025. 
 
The Pension Section 115 Trust Fund is forecasted to decrease from $17.1 million at 
June 30, 2021 to $15.1 million at June 30, 2025. 
   
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A .     Year Forecast Summary Schedule for the General Fund and Measure S Funds 


for FY 2020/21 Through FY 2024/25 


MEASURE S-2014 - 106 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Actual Actual Original Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected


     Total Revenues and Sources 2,175,803       2,016,848    1,953,088         2,076,235    2,125,364    2,169,807       2,217,330       
     Total Expenditures 1,278,117       2,139,737    3,522,274         1,967,755    1,744,573    1,784,880       1,802,171       


     Net Results 897,686           (122,889)      (1,569,186)       108,480        380,791        384,927          415,159          
Fund Balance, July 1 2,974,321       3,872,007    3,749,117         2,179,931    2,288,411    2,669,202       3,054,130       
Fund Balance, June 30 3,872,007       3,749,117    2,179,931         2,288,411    2,669,202    3,054,130       3,469,289       


608 of 611







GENERAL FUND SUMMARY
INCLUDES MEASURE S 2006 & 2014


2018-19
Actual


2019-20
Actual


2020-21
Original Budget


2021-22
Forecast


2022-23
Forecast


2023-24
Forecast


2024-25
Forecast


REVENUE
PROPERTY TAX 3,837,167        4,514,755     4,146,109         4,156,491     5,067,165     5,490,109       5,630,182       
SALES TAX 3,994,720        3,788,080     3,345,879         3,788,080     3,901,722     4,018,774       4,139,337       
MEAS S 2006 & 2014 LOCAL SALES TAX 4,286,328        3,901,837     3,651,338         3,901,837     3,979,874     4,059,471       4,140,661       
UTILITY USERS TAX 1,812,844        1,809,832     1,896,000         1,914,960     1,953,259     1,992,324       2,032,171       
FRANCHISE TAX 735,311           750,001        750,000             757,500        772,650        788,103           803,865           
INTERGOVERNMENTAL TAX 1,836,501        1,952,717     2,006,163         2,046,286     2,107,675     2,170,905       2,236,032       
OTHER TAXES 884,757           826,359        785,000             884,757        902,453        920,502           938,912           
OTHER REVENUE 3,334,631        2,376,859     1,845,187         1,919,216     1,994,362     2,065,230       2,074,531       


     Total Revenue 20,722,259 19,920,440 18,425,676 19,369,128 20,679,160 21,505,418 21,995,691
TRANSFERS IN 6,290,688
PENSION TRANSFER IN  (FY 19/20 alloc) 659,567
PENSION TRANSFER IN 1,273,458 1,147,758 1,407,804 1,527,278 1,705,486


     Total Sources 27,012,947 19,920,440 20,358,701 20,516,886 22,086,964 23,032,696 23,701,177


EXPENDITURES
SALARIES 8,593,887 9,184,283 9,662,236 9,952,103 10,250,666 10,558,186 10,872,963
BENEFITS - PERS RETIRE 1,792,051 2,451,619 3,077,528 2,939,809 3,199,855 3,319,329 3,497,537
BENEFITS - OTHER 3,079,527 2,864,038 3,052,813 3,185,911 3,350,257 3,523,834 3,667,438
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 2,506,418 3,460,467 2,477,902 2,631,536 2,669,881 2,758,607 2,823,995
EXPENDITURES - One time 1,022,500 22,500 22,500
FF&E 138,550 55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000
DEBT SERVICE 590,433 606,553 555,000 575,000 595,000 610,000 610,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS 211,292 429,470 1,914,242 315,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
TRANSFERS OUT 21,732,833 1,255,058 1,395,955 1,313,058 1,275,435 1,293,318 1,311,222


Total Expenditures 38,506,441 20,251,487 23,296,726 20,967,416 21,568,594 22,268,273 23,010,656


Surplus/Deficit (11,493,493)    (331,047)      (2,938,025)        (450,530)       518,370        764,423          690,521          


Fund Balance, July 1 23,478,448 11,984,955 11,653,908 7,984,084 7,661,150 8,050,604 8,763,926
Preliminary Fund Balance, June 30 11,984,955 11,653,908 8,715,883 7,533,554 8,179,520 8,815,027       9,454,448       


General Reserves Adjustment (731,799)           127,596        (128,915)       (51,101)           (71,625)           
Fund Balance, June 30 11,984,955     11,653,908  7,984,084         7,661,150     8,050,604     8,763,926       9,382,822       


Revenues - Transfers In 16,287,510     
Revenues - Interest 924,669           1,010,988     1,049,151         994,406        982,612        955,631           922,243           
Expenditure - Transfers Out 1,933,025         1,147,758     1,407,804     1,527,278       1,705,486       
Expenditures 52,921             81,434          60,000               50,000           40,000          4,000               30,000             


Pension Fund Balance, June 30 17,159,258 18,088,812 17,144,938 16,941,586 16,476,394 15,900,747 15,087,504


General Reserve Balance, June 30 7,137,963 7,352,102 8,304,464 8,404,048 8,766,959 9,059,075 9,378,946


Other GF Fund Balances 18,376


CAFR ending June 30, 2019 36,300,552


FIVE-YEAR FORECAST
CITY OF PINOLE


609 of 611







FIVE-YEAR FORECAST
CITY OF PINOLE


General Fund - 100 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Actual Actual Original Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected


REVENUE:
PROPERTY TAX 3,837,167        4,514,755     4,146,109         4,156,491     5,067,165     5,490,109       5,630,182       
SALES TAX 3,994,720        3,788,080     3,345,879         3,788,080     3,901,722     4,018,774       4,139,337       
UTILITY USERS TAX 1,812,844        1,809,832     1,896,000         1,914,960     1,953,259     1,992,324       2,032,171       
FRANCHISE TAX 735,311           750,001        750,000             757,500        772,650        788,103           803,865           
INTERGOVERNMENTAL TAX 1,836,501        1,952,717     2,006,163         2,046,286     2,107,675     2,170,905       2,236,032       
OTHER TAXES 884,757           826,359        785,000             884,757        902,453        920,502           938,912           
OTHER REVENUE 3,274,296 2,280,423 1,795,187 1,869,216 1,944,362 2,015,230 2,024,531


     Total Revenue 16,375,597 15,922,167 14,724,338 15,417,291 16,649,286 17,395,947 17,805,031
TRANSFERS IN 6,290,688
PENSION TRANSFER IN [FY19/20 Alloc) 476,366
PENSION TRANSFER IN 882,013 743,686 947,272 1,040,806 1,180,322


     Total Sources 22,666,285 15,922,167 16,082,717 16,160,977 17,596,558 18,436,753 18,985,353


EXPENDITURES:
SALARIES 7,140,412 7,217,115     8,197,748         8,443,680     8,696,991     8,957,901       9,226,638       
BENEFITS & INSURANCE 4,378,221        4,646,517     5,181,603         5,195,660     5,551,921     5,806,894       6,077,392       
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 1,791,295 2,649,852 1,949,122 2,031,197 2,088,071 2,146,537 2,206,640
EXPENDITURES - One time 1,022,500 22,500 22,500
DEBT SERVICE 520,000 536,120 555,000 575,000 595,000 610,000 610,000
TRANSFERS OUT 21,225,833 562,558 702,955 562,558 579,435 596,818 614,722


Total Expenditures 35,055,762 15,612,162 17,608,928 16,808,096 17,533,918 18,118,150 18,757,891


Net Results (12,389,477)    310,005        (1,526,211)        (647,119)       62,641          318,603           227,461           
Fund Balance, July 1 18,203,473     5,813,996     6,124,001         3,865,991     3,346,468     3,280,193       3,547,695       


Preliminary Fund Balance, June 30 5,813,996       6,124,001     4,597,790         3,218,872     3,409,108     3,598,796       3,775,157       


General Reserves Adjustment (731,799)           127,596        (128,915)       (51,101)           (71,625)           
Fund Balance, June 30 5,813,996       6,124,001     3,865,991         3,346,468     3,280,193     3,547,695       3,703,531       


Measure S -2006 Fund - 105 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Actual Actual Original Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected


REVENUE:
SALES TAX 2,146,708 1,951,039     1,825,669         1,951,039     1,990,060     2,029,861       2,070,458       
OTHER REVENUE 24,151 30,386          20,000               20,000           20,000          20,000             20,000             


     Total Revenue 2,170,860 1,981,425 1,845,669 1,971,039 2,010,060 2,049,861 2,090,458
PENSION TRANSFER IN (FY 19/20 Alloc) 182,670
PENSION TRANSFER IN 294,558 308,634 354,981 376,275 408,036


     Total Sources 2,170,860 1,981,425 2,322,897 2,279,673 2,365,041 2,426,136 2,498,495


EXPENDITURES:
SALARIES 1,248,787 1,596,577     1,200,993         1,237,023     1,274,133     1,312,357       1,349,760       
BENEFITS & INSURANCE 446,992           619,423        790,777             775,923        832,349        864,124           906,787           
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 406,349 213,154 173,754 178,619 183,620 188,762 194,047
EXPENDITURES - One time
DEBT SERVICE 70,433 70,433


Total Expenditures 2,172,561 2,499,588 2,165,524 2,191,565 2,290,103 2,365,244 2,450,594


Net Results (1,702)              (518,163)       157,373             88,108           74,938          60,892             47,901             
Fund Balance, July 1 2,300,654 2,298,952 1,780,790 1,938,162 2,026,271 2,101,209 2,162,101


Fund Balance, June 30 2,298,952 1,780,790 1,938,162 2,026,271 2,101,209 2,162,101 2,210,002


610 of 611







FIVE-YEAR FORECAST
CITY OF PINOLE


MEASURE S-2014 - 106 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25
Actual Actual Original Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected


REVENUE:
SALES TAX 2,139,620        1,950,798     1,825,669         1,950,798     1,989,814     2,029,610       2,070,202       
OTHER REVENUE 36,183             66,050          30,000               30,000           30,000          30,000             30,000             


     Total Revenue 2,175,803       2,016,848     1,855,669         1,980,798     2,019,814     2,059,610       2,100,202       
PENSION TRANSFER IN FY 19/20 Alloc) 532                    
PENSION TRANSFER IN 96,887               95,437           105,550        110,197           117,128           


     Total Sources 2,175,803 2,016,848 1,953,088 2,076,235 2,125,364 2,169,807 2,217,330


EXPENDITURES:
SALARIES 204,687           370,590        263,495             271,400        279,542        287,928           296,566           
BENEFITS & INSURANCE 46,364             49,716          157,961             154,136        165,842        172,144           180,797           
OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 308,774           597,461        355,026             421,719 398,190 423,308 423,308
EXPENDITURES - One time
FF&E 138,550             55,000 55,000 55,000 55,000
CAPITAL PROJECTS 211,292           429,470        1,914,242 315,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
TRANSFERS OUT 507,000           692,500        693,000             750,500        696,000        696,500           696,500           


Total Expenditures 1,278,117       2,139,737     3,522,274         1,967,755     1,744,573     1,784,880       1,802,171       


Net Results 897,686           (122,889)       (1,569,186)        108,480        380,791        384,927           415,159           
Fund Balance, July 1 2,974,321 3,872,007 3,749,117 2,179,931 2,288,411 2,669,202 3,054,130


Fund Balance, June 30 3,872,007 3,749,117 2,179,931 2,288,411 2,669,202 3,054,130 3,469,289


611 of 611





		2020-11-17 Agenda Final

		7A

		7B

		7C

		Pinole - SR - Confirming Continued Existence of Emergency 11.17.20

		Pinole- Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Emergency 11.17.20



		7D

		FY 2020-21 Q1 Agenda(11-17-20)GR AM comms

		DATE: NOVEMBER 17, 2020

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		Revised Budget Report

		Summary



		2020-21 Q1 Resolution



		7E

		QtrlyInvRep_2020-21 Q1(11-17-20)GR AM comms

		DATE: NOVEMBER 17, 2020

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		Investment Report FY 20-21

		September 2020 Summary

		September 2020 Detail





		7F

		SR Management Compensation Plan 11-17-20 FINAL

		City Council Resolution Management Compensation Plan 11-17-20 -F

		EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT TEMPLATE - Exec Mgmt

		EXHIBIT A



		Pinole Mgmnt Comp Benf Plan Final 11-06-2020

		Section 1. ESTABLISHMENT AND PURPOSE

		Section 2. ADMINISTRATION OF THE PLAN

		Section 3. CLASSIFICATIONS

		Section 4. AT-WILL STATUS

		Section 5. TRANSITION TO THE PLAN

		Section 6. EFFECTIVE DATE

		Section 7. MANAGEMENT SALARY RANGES

		A. Initial Salary

		B. Base Compensation Structure



		Section 8. COST OF LIVING AND PAY RANGE ADJUSTMENTS

		Section 9. MERIT INCREASES AND PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

		A. Basis for Merit Increases

		B. Performance Evaluation Process

		(1) the employee’s performance of their regular duties and responsibilities; and

		(2) the employee’s attainment of specific goals and objectives established for the employee at the beginning of the review period (i.e. one year earlier).



		C. Merit Adjustment Guidelines

		D. Cap on Merit Increases



		Section 10. EQUITY ADJUSTMENTS

		Section 11. SEVERANCE PAY

		Section 12. SICK LEAVE

		A. Rate of Sick Leave Earned

		B. Sick Leave Incentive

		C. Other Use of Sick Leave



		Section 13. HOLIDAYS

		Section 14. ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE

		A. Department Heads

		B. All Other Classifications



		Section 15. OTHER LEAVES

		Section 16. VACATION

		A. Rate of Vacation Earned



		Section 17. MEDICAL BENEFITS

		A. Health Insurance

		B. Retiree Medical Insurance

		C. Medical In-Lieu



		Section 18. DENTAL INSURANCE

		A. Dental Insurance Provided

		B. Orthodontic Insurance Provided



		Section 19. VISION INSURANCE

		A. Vision Insurance Provided



		Section 20. LIFE INSURANCE

		A. Life Insurance Provided



		Section 21. DISABILITY INSURANCE

		A. Disability Insurance Provided

		B. Disability Insurance Premium Rates

		C. Disability Insurance Option for Upgrade



		Section 22. DOMESTIC PARTNER MEDICAL COVERAGE

		A. Domestic Partnership and Coverage Defined



		Section 23. INCENTIVE BENEFITS

		A. Educational Degree



		Section 24. RETIREMENT PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES

		A. Retirement Plan Defined

		B. CalPERS Contract Benefits – Classic Employees

		C. CalPERS Employer Contribution Rate Sharing Formula for Classic Employees

		D. CalPERS Contract Benefits – PEPRA Employees



		Section 25. DEFERRED COMPENSATION – 457 PLAN

		Section 26. CLOTHING AND EQUIPMENT ALLOWANCE

		A. Uniform and Safety Equipment Allowance for Public Safety Employees

		B. Safety Shoe Allowance



		Section 27. AUTO ALLOWANCE

		A. Police and Fire

		B. All Other Employees

		C. Elimination of Auto Allowance



		Section 28. CELLPHONE ALLOWANCE

		Section 29. FIRE BATTALION CHIEF BACKFILL FOR PARTNER AGENCY

		EXHIBIT “A”

		MANAGEMENT GROUP SALARY RANGES  EFFECTIVE NOVEMBER 17, 2020





		7G

		SR Pinole 811 SPA ENA with SAHA 11.17.20

		Pinole - RESO Approving SAHA ENA 11-17-20

		Attachment B_Pinole-SAHA ENA for 811 San Pablo Ave-11-17-20

		1. Good Faith Efforts to Negotiate.  The Parties will use their best efforts to successfully negotiate  Disposition Agreements and any other documents required by the City for the Property that will describe the terms and conditions governing the purc...

		a. If Developer has not continued to negotiate diligently and in good faith, City will give written notice thereof to Developer who will then have ten (10) business days to commence negotiating in good faith.  Following the failure of Developer to the...

		b. If City has not continued to negotiate diligently and in good faith, Developer will give written notice thereof to City which will then have ten (10) business days to commence negotiating in good faith.  Following the failure of City to thereafter ...

		c. If, notwithstanding City's and Developer's mutual diligent, good faith negotiations, the Parties have not entered into at least one Disposition Agreement  on or before expiration of the Term of this Agreement (as defined in Section 3 of this Agreem...

		d. If performance of this Agreement results in execution of Disposition Agreements, the remaining Deposit will be transferred to the Reimbursement Agreement to be negotiated in conjunction with the Disposition Agreements.



		2. Developer’s Exclusive Right to Negotiate With City.  City agrees that it will not, during the term of this Agreement, directly or indirectly, through any officer, employee, agent, or otherwise, solicit, initiate or encourage the submission of bids,...

		3. Term.

		a. The term of this Agreement (“Term”) commences on the Effective Date and will terminate two hundred forty (240) days thereafter, unless extended or earlier terminated as provided herein.

		b. The Term of this Agreement may be extended for up to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) additional days upon the mutual written agreement of Developer and City acting through and in the discretion of its City Manager, or their designee (“City Ma...



		4. Relationship of the Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement creates between the Parties the relationship of lessor and lessee, of buyer and seller, or of partners or joint venturers.

		5. Deposit for City Costs.

		a. In consideration for this Agreement and the costs the City has and will incur in furtherance of this Agreement and the negotiation of the Disposition Agreements, Developer will, within five (5) days of the Effective Date, submit to City a good fait...

		b. On or before expiration of the Term of this Agreement, the City may, in accordance with the provisions of Section 1(c) of this Agreement, draw on the Deposit to reimburse the City’s cost for third-party assistance and staff time in the negotiations...



		6. Terms and Conditions of the Disposition Agreements.  The Parties agree to use their best efforts to successfully negotiate the terms of the Disposition Agreements including, but not limited to (i) the purchase price for the sale of, or ground lease...

		7. Developer’s Studies; Right of Entry.

		a. During the Term of this Agreement, Developer will use its best efforts to prepare, at Developer’s expense, any studies, surveys, plans, specifications and reports (“Developer’s Studies”) that the Developer deems necessary or desirable in Developer’...

		b. Developer hereby agrees to notify the City twenty-four (24) hours in advance of its intention to enter the Property.

		c. Developer will provide the City with workplans, drawings, and descriptions of any intrusive sampling it intends to do and any additional items stated in this section.  Developer must keep the Property in a safe condition during its entry.  Develope...

		i. On January 31, 2020, the City released a RFP to solicit proposals from qualified developers for the development of the Project. On March 31, 2020,  in response to the RFP, the Developer submitted a “Preliminary Development Package,” consisting of t...

		(1) Cover letter providing a general overview of the Project including details on the management and operation of the Project;

		(2) Design concept narrative including the proposed improvements, target population, supportive services, and other onsite amenities;

		(3) Developer team breakdown identifying the members of the team, the team’s experience, including the Developer’s organizational documents;

		(4) Project cutsheets for developments that the Developer has completed in the past; and

		(5) The Developer’s financial capacity consisting of the financing plan for the project, the Developer’s financials, and the proposed Project’s pro forma.



		ii. Within ninety (90) days from the Effective Date, Developer shall submit to the City “Final Development Package,” consisting of the following:

		(1) Fully updated information in each category and every item set forth under the heading “Preliminary Development Package”;

		(2) A well-defined site plan generally describing the Project using schematic drawings, and which depicts in detail the proposed design, density, and configuration thereof;

		(3) Square footages of all improvements; total gross building area (GBA) of the Proposed Project, with the GBA of the affordable units, with size and floor plan/configuration of each of the affordable units;

		(4) The circulation areas and GBA thereof;

		(5) Description of the common area amenities and common areas and GBA thereof;

		(6) Configuration of onsite parking, including residents’, guests’ and handicapped users’ parking spaces with number and type of parking spaces;

		(7) A detailed and updated pro forma for the Project that identifies all sources and uses of funds including but not limited to design of the Project and supporting infrastructure, along with initial estimates of development costs, including hard and ...

		(8) Proposed identification of all sources of financing, including predevelopment, construction, and permanent financing with a description of the terms and conditions of such financings; and

		(9) An updated timeline that includes, based upon consultation with City staff, as well as the best professional judgment of Developer, the provision of necessary onsite and offsite improvements for the Project.





		d. If upon expiration of the Term of this Agreement and or any extensions, the Parties have not successfully negotiated the Disposition Agreements, Developer will provide City within fifteen (15) days following said date of expiration, electronic copi...



		8. City’s Reports and Studies.  Within ten (10) days following the Effective Date, City will make available to Developer for review or copying at Developer’s expense all nonprivileged studies, surveys, plans, specifications, reports, and other documen...

		9. Developer’s Pro Forma and Evidence of Financing.  Prior to the execution of the Disposition Agreements contemplated by this Agreement, Developer will provide City with a pro forma for the Project that confirms the financial feasibility of Developer...

		10. Full Disclosure.  Developer is required to make full disclosure to City of its principals; officers; major stockholders, partners or members; joint venturers; negotiators; development managers; consultants and directly involved managerial employee...

		11. Expenses.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, third-party costs and expenses (including, without limitation, all legal fees and expenses) incurred in connection with this Agreement and the activities contemplated hereby will be paid by...

		12. Confidentiality; Dissemination of Information.  To the extent permitted by law, during the term of this Agreement, each Party will obtain the consent of the other Party prior to issuing or permitting any of its officers, employees or agents to iss...

		13. Execution of Disposition Agreements.  If the Parties successfully negotiate Disposition Agreements, City agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state legal requirements, including the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).  The C...

		14. Termination.

		a. This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual consent of the Parties.

		b. City will have the right to terminate this Agreement upon its good faith determination that Developer is not proceeding diligently and in good faith to carry out its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  City will exercise such right in accordan...

		c. Developer will have the right to terminate this Agreement, in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement, if the results of its investigation of the Property are unsatisfactory, in Developer’s sole and absolute discreti...

		d. Neither Party will have the right to seek an award of damages as a result of the termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section.



		15. Effect of Termination.  Upon termination as provided herein, or upon the expiration of the Term and any extensions thereof without the Parties having successfully negotiated Disposition Agreements , this Agreement will forthwith be void, and there...

		16. Notices.  Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all notices to be sent pursuant to this Agreement will be made in writing, and sent to the Parties at their respective addresses specified below or to such other address as a Party may des...

		a. Personal delivery, in which case notice is effective upon delivery;

		b. Certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, in which case notice will be deemed delivered on receipt if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt;

		c. Nationally recognized overnight courier, with charges prepaid or charged to the sender’s account, in which case notice is effective on delivery if delivery is confirmed by the delivery service;

		d. Electronic transmission, in which case notice will be deemed delivered upon transmittal, provided that duplicate copy of the notice is promptly delivered by first-class or certified mail or by overnight delivery.



		17. Indemnification.  Developer hereby covenants, on behalf of itself and its permitted successors and assigns, to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City and its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents, representatives and employees (“...

		18. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof will, to any extent, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, such term or provision will be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability witho...

		19. Entire Agreement; Amendments In Writing; Counterparts.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, oral and ...

		20. Successors and Assigns; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns; provided however, that neither Party will transfer or assign any of suc...

		21. Brokers.  Each Party warrants and represents to the other that no brokers have been retained or consulted in connection with this transaction.  Each Party agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other Party from any claims, expenses, cos...

		22. Approvals.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City Manager will be authorized to enter into all written approvals, consents or waivers by the City without further authorization by the City Council.  Nothing herein, however, will be ...

		23. Captions.  The captions of the sections and articles of this Agreement are for convenience only and are not intended to affect the interpretation or construction of the provisions hereof.

		24. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.

		SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE



		Attachment C_RSG Proposal Evaluation_811 San Pablo Pinole 11.17.20

		Attachment D_City of Pinole RFP - SAHA Submittal VR

		TABLE OF CONTENTS

		INTRODUCTORY LETTER

		SECTION 1: PROPOSAL OVERVIEW &INITIAL DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT

		Proposed Project Schedule

		Conceptual Design



		SECTION 2: DEVELOPER IDENTIFICATION

		SAHA Real Estate Development Staff Resumes

		Studio T-Square Firm Bio & Staff Resumes

		Gubb & Barshay Firm Bio



		SECTION 3: DEVELOPER EXPERIENCE & QUALIFICATIONS

		Comparable Project Profiles



		SECTION 4: FINANCIAL CAPACITY OF THE DEVELOPER & PROPOSED FINANCIAL STRUCTURE

		Financing Plan

		Unit Mix

		20 Year Cash Flow



		SECTION 5: SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

		SAHA Award List

		SAHA Board of Directors

		SAHA Communities – List of Properties

		SAHA Resumes

		SAHA Organizational Chart









		7H

		staffreport_ch10lapm_revised

		DATE:   NOVEMBER 17, 2020

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR / CITY ENGINEER

		SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) “LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES MANUAL (LAPM) CHAPTER 10 – CONSULTANT SELECTION” AND AMENDING THE PROCUREMENT POLICY TO INCORPORATE THIS REQUIREMENT

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS

		FISCAL IMPACT



		ATTACHMENT(S)



		Reso_ch10lapm (CAO edits)

		ATTACHMENT A

		RESOLUTION NO. 2020-XX

		RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING ADOPTION OF THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (CALTRANS) “LOCAL ASSISTANCE PROCEDURES MANUAL (LAPM) CHAPTER 10 – CONSULTANT SELECTI...

		A. PURCHASES WITH FEDERAL/STATE FUNDS



		attachment_b_lapm



		8A

		2CCStaff Report nov 5 2020 AM comms

		2CC Resolution 17  Hazel Street Development (11.11.20 Edits)

		1DRAFT Attachment A - COAs for CC Resolution nov 17 2020

		The project shall be constructed in substantial compliance with the approved Design Review, Tentative Parcel Map, and Development Agreement request for the subdivision and four-lot residential development project at Hazel Street (APN 402-013-060 and -061), approved by the City Council as shown on the project plans date-stamped received June 20, 2018, unless otherwise conditioned. 



		2CC Ordinance - Development Agreement for Dhaliwal (11.11.20 Edit)

		WHEREAS, the lack of certainty in the approval of development projects can result in a waste of resources, escalate the cost of housing and other development, and discourage investment in and commitment to comprehensive planning that would make maxim...

		WHEREAS, in order to strengthen the public planning process, encourage private participation in comprehensive planning and reduce the economic costs and risk of development, the Legislature of the State of California enacted Section 65864 et seq. of ...

		WHEREAS, in compliance with California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”), the City retained Raney Planning and Management Inc. to prepare a categorical exemption memorandum regarding the Project. Based on this memorandum, the City of Pinole City Cou...

		WHEREAS, as part of the Project, the City and Developer have negotiated a draft Development Agreement in accordance with Government Code section 65864 et seq. and Pinole Municipal Code section 17.12.160, which agreement is attached as Exhibit A and i...

		WHEREAS, Government Code section 65867 and Pinole Municipal Code Section 17.12.160.C require the Planning Commission to hold a public hearing on the proposed development agreement and make a recommendation to the City Council; and

		WHEREAS, a staff report, dated October 26, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference, described and analyzed the Project, including the Development Agreement, for the Planning Commission.  Pursuant to Government Code section 65867.5(b), the Developme...

		WHEREAS, the Planning Commission held a duly noticed public hearing related to the proposed Project, including the Development Agreement, on October 26, 2020, at which time all interested parties had the opportunity to be heard; and



		Attachment B-F. Plans

		Attachment C - Lot 1.pdf

		A10

		Sheets and Views

		A1.0





		A01

		Sheets and Views

		Model





		C1

		Sheets and Views

		Topo C-1 Lot#1





		C2

		Sheets and Views

		Pre Grading C-2 Lot#1





		C3

		Sheets and Views

		SWMP C-3 Lot#1





		A11

		Sheets and Views

		A1.1





		A12

		Sheets and Views

		A1.2





		A20

		Sheets and Views

		A2.0





		A30

		Sheets and Views

		A3.0





		A40

		Sheets and Views

		A4.0





		A50

		Sheets and Views

		A5.0





		L1

		Sheets and Views

		L.1





		LOT#1 COLOR BOARD.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Color Board







		Attachment D - Lot 2.pdf

		A10

		Sheets and Views

		A1.0





		A01

		Sheets and Views

		Model





		C1

		Sheets and Views

		Topo C-1 Lot#2





		C2

		Sheets and Views

		Pre Grading C-2 Lot#2





		C3

		Sheets and Views

		SWMP C-3 Lot#2





		A11

		Sheets and Views

		A1.1





		A12

		Sheets and Views

		A1.2





		A20

		Sheets and Views

		A2.0





		A30

		Sheets and Views

		A3.0





		A40

		Sheets and Views

		A4.0





		A50

		Sheets and Views

		A5.0





		L1

		Sheets and Views

		L.1





		LOT#2 COLOR BOARD.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Color Board







		Attachment E - Lot 3.pdf

		A10

		Sheets and Views

		A1.0





		A01

		Sheets and Views

		Model





		C1

		Sheets and Views

		Topo C-1 Lot#3





		C2

		Sheets and Views

		Pre Grading C-2 Lot#3





		C3

		Sheets and Views

		SWMP C-3 Lot#3





		A11

		Sheets and Views

		A1.1





		A12

		Sheets and Views

		A1.2





		A20

		Sheets and Views

		A2.0





		A30

		Sheets and Views

		A3.0





		A40

		Sheets and Views

		A4.0





		A50

		Sheets and Views

		A5.0





		L1

		Sheets and Views

		L.1





		LOT#3 COLOR BOARD.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Color Board







		Attachment F - Lot 4.pdf

		A50.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		A5.0





		LOT#4 COLOR BOARD.pdf

		Sheets and Views

		Color Board









		Attachment H. Hazel Street Exemption Memo_3.18.20 (1)

		A. INTRODUCTION AND summary

		B. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

		C. discussion

		D. Exceptions to Categorical Exemptions analysis

		E. Conclusion



		Pinole - Hazel Street Subdivision Resale Restriction Agreement 11.4.20 (003)



		9A

		SR Faria House Ad Hoc Comm Rep to Council and MOU 11-17-20 - FINAL

		Pinole - Resolution Appproving Faria House Agreement 11-12-20 - FINAL

		Att B. Faria Deed Sale to City 1996

		Att C. Faria House Uses 10-2006

		Att D. Faria Funding and Reso 10-2007

		OCTOBER 2, 2007

		TO: CHARLES A. LONG, INTERIM EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

		RECOMMENDATION



		BACKGROUND

		DISCUSSION

		BLIGHT ALLEVIATION





		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		Att E. Lease Agreement with PHM 10-2007

		Att F. Museum Feasibility Report Presentation 11-2009 

		Att G. Faria House Reuse 9-6-2016

		Att H. Letter of Intent - Signed

		Att I. Letter of Intent - Faria House 8-16-18

		Att J. IR Faria house Contract signed and sent 7-16-18 - Signed

		Att K. SR Faria Ad Hoc Committeee 6-16-20

		SR RESO establishing the Faria House Ad Hoc Committee - Final

		RESO Committee on Faria House 6-16-20



		Att L. Silva estimate-faria house interior rehab-95cd-091720-2

		Att M. Pinole - MOU and Cooperative Agreement for Faria House - 11-3-20 CLEAN

		2131 Pear St.

		Pinole, CA  94564



		Att N. SR Funding Options for Faria House Improvements  -2020

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER



		Recommendation

		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		Att O. 5 Yr Forecast 10-6-2020 Revised

		City Council_Proposed Five Year FY 2020-21 to FY 2024-25 Budget(10-06-20) Revised

		5-Year Forecast_FY2020-21_Rev_Alt View_10-06-2020

		2019-20 Projections_REV 












































EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT





by and among





SATELLITE AFFORDABLE HOUSING ASSOCIATES








and





THE CITY OF PINOLE, CALIFORNIA














DATED ______________________

















13





EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT


City of Pinole and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates 						Page 6 of 13








THIS EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into by and between the City of Pinole, a California municipal corporation (the “City”) and Satellite Affordable Housing Associates, a California non-profit corporation (the “Developer”) dated as of _______________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”).  The City and the Developer are each referred to herein as “Party” or collectively referred to as the “Parties.”





WHEREAS, the City is the owner of certain property (the “Property”) located at 811 San Pablo Ave. in the City of Pinole, California, known as County Assessor’s Parcel Number 402-166-030, as more particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference; and





WHEREAS, the Property was originally purchased by the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Pinole (the “Former Agency”) with funds from the Former Agency’s low- and moderate-income housing fund; and





WHEREAS, on June 29, 2011 the legislature of the State of California adopted Assembly Bill x1 26 (as amended by AB 1484 and SB 107, the “Dissolution Law”), which amended provisions of the redevelopment law; and





WHEREAS, pursuant to the Dissolution Law the Former Agency was dissolved on February 1, 2012 and the housing assets owned by the Former Agency were transferred to the City as housing successor to the Former Agency; and





WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to build a 32-unit affordable rental housing project affordable to households earning sixty percent (60%) or less of area median income (the “Project”); and





WHEREAS, 	the intent of both City and Developer under this Agreement is to establish a specific, limited period of time to negotiate mutually acceptable governing documents for the potential disposition of the Property and undertaking of the Project on the Property by the Developer; and 





WHEREAS, the City desires to negotiate a disposition and development agreement, an affordable housing agreement, and a financial assistance agreement (the “Disposition Agreements”) for the Project with Developer; and





WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 54221(f)(1)(H), the Property is not subject to the State Lands Act because it is required to be used for affordable housing, which is a condition established by statute.   





NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows.





Good Faith Efforts to Negotiate.  The Parties will use their best efforts to successfully negotiate  Disposition Agreements and any other documents required by the City for the Property that will describe the terms and conditions governing the purchase of the Property by Developer.  The Parties will diligently and in good faith pursue such negotiations.  Furthermore, the Parties will use their best efforts to obtain any third-party consent, authorization, approval, or exemption required in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby.  This Agreement does not impose a binding obligation on City to convey any interest in the Property to Developer, nor does it obligate City to grant any approvals or authorizations required for the Property or any project or improvements constructed thereon.


If Developer has not continued to negotiate diligently and in good faith, City will give written notice thereof to Developer who will then have ten (10) business days to commence negotiating in good faith.  Following the failure of Developer to thereafter commence negotiating in good faith within such ten (10) business day period, this Agreement may be terminated by City.  If this Agreement is terminated by City pursuant to the above sentence, Developer acknowledges and agrees that City will suffer damages, including lost opportunities to pursue other development alternatives for the Property and delayed receipt of property tax revenues from the Property, and that it is impracticable and infeasible to fix the actual amount of such damages.  Therefore, the Parties agree that if this Agreement is terminated as provided above, City will retain the Deposit (as defined in Section 5 of this Agreement, infra), plus any interest thereon, as fixed and liquidated damages and not as a penalty, and following such termination neither Party will have any further rights against or liability to the other under this Agreement.


If City has not continued to negotiate diligently and in good faith, Developer will give written notice thereof to City which will then have ten (10) business days to commence negotiating in good faith.  Following the failure of City to thereafter commence negotiating in good faith within such ten (10) business-day period, this Agreement may be terminated by Developer.  In the event of such termination by Developer, City will return the Deposit to Developer in accordance with the provisions of Section 5 of this Agreement and neither Party will have any further rights against or liability to the other under this Agreement.


If, notwithstanding City's and Developer's mutual diligent, good faith negotiations, the Parties have not entered into at least one Disposition Agreement  on or before expiration of the Term of this Agreement (as defined in Section 3 of this Agreement) or any extension thereof, City will return the Deposit after taking into account any expenditures made for costs incurred by the City pursuant to this Agreement, and neither Party will have any further rights against or liability to the other under this Agreement.


If performance of this Agreement results in execution of Disposition Agreements, the remaining Deposit will be transferred to the Reimbursement Agreement to be negotiated in conjunction with the Disposition Agreements.


Developer’s Exclusive Right to Negotiate With City.  City agrees that it will not, during the term of this Agreement, directly or indirectly, through any officer, employee, agent, or otherwise, solicit, initiate or encourage the submission of bids, offers or proposals by any person or entity with respect to the acquisition of any interest in the Property or the development of the Property, and City will not engage any broker, financial adviser or consultant to initiate or encourage proposals or offers from other parties with respect to the disposition or development of the Property or any portion thereof.


Furthermore, City will not, directly or indirectly, through any officer, employee, agent or otherwise, engage in negotiations concerning any such transaction with, or provide information to, any person other than Developer and its representatives with a view to engaging, or preparing to engage, that person with respect to the disposition or development of the Property or any portion thereof.  


Term.  


The term of this Agreement (“Term”) commences on the Effective Date and will terminate two hundred forty (240) days thereafter, unless extended or earlier terminated as provided herein.  


The Term of this Agreement may be extended for up to a maximum of one hundred twenty (120) additional days upon the mutual written agreement of Developer and City acting through and in the discretion of its City Manager, or their designee (“City Manager”).  


Relationship of the Parties.  Nothing in this Agreement creates between the Parties the relationship of lessor and lessee, of buyer and seller, or of partners or joint venturers.


Deposit for City Costs.  


In consideration for this Agreement and the costs the City has and will incur in furtherance of this Agreement and the negotiation of the Disposition Agreements, Developer will, within five (5) days of the Effective Date, submit to City a good faith deposit (“Deposit”) in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000) in immediately available funds.  City will deposit the Deposit in a non-interest bearing account, when received by City.


On or before expiration of the Term of this Agreement, the City may, in accordance with the provisions of Section 1(c) of this Agreement, draw on the Deposit to reimburse the City’s cost for third-party assistance and staff time in the negotiations for any of the Disposition Agreements. The City will provide Developer a written account of such reimbursement.


Terms and Conditions of the Disposition Agreements.  The Parties agree to use their best efforts to successfully negotiate the terms of the Disposition Agreements including, but not limited to (i) the purchase price for the sale of, or ground lease terms for, the Property; (ii) the proposed Project to be constructed on the Property; and (iii) the schedule of performance for the construction of the Project.  


Developer’s Studies; Right of Entry.  


During the Term of this Agreement, Developer will use its best efforts to prepare, at Developer’s expense, any studies, surveys, plans, specifications and reports (“Developer’s Studies”) that the Developer deems necessary or desirable in Developer’s sole discretion, to complete its due diligence for the Property.  Developer’s Studies may include, without limitation, title investigation, relocation analyses, marketing, feasibility, soils, seismic and environmental studies, financial feasibility analyses and design studies.  The Developer will have rights of access to the Property to prepare the Developer’s Studies.


Developer hereby agrees to notify the City twenty-four (24) hours in advance of its intention to enter the Property. 


Developer will provide the City with workplans, drawings, and descriptions of any intrusive sampling it intends to do and any additional items stated in this section.  Developer must keep the Property in a safe condition during its entry.  Developer shall repair, restore and return the Property to its condition immediately preceding Developer’s entry thereon at Developer’s sole expense.


On January 31, 2020, the City released a RFP to solicit proposals from qualified developers for the development of the Project. On March 31, 2020,  in response to the RFP, the Developer submitted a “Preliminary Development Package,” consisting of the following:


Cover letter providing a general overview of the Project including details on the management and operation of the Project;


Design concept narrative including the proposed improvements, target population, supportive services, and other onsite amenities;


Developer team breakdown identifying the members of the team, the team’s experience, including the Developer’s organizational documents;


Project cutsheets for developments that the Developer has completed in the past; and


The Developer’s financial capacity consisting of the financing plan for the project, the Developer’s financials, and the proposed Project’s pro forma.


Within ninety (90) days from the Effective Date, Developer shall submit to the City “Final Development Package,” consisting of the following:


Fully updated information in each category and every item set forth under the heading “Preliminary Development Package”;


A well-defined site plan generally describing the Project using schematic drawings, and which depicts in detail the proposed design, density, and configuration thereof;


Square footages of all improvements; total gross building area (GBA) of the Proposed Project, with the GBA of the affordable units, with size and floor plan/configuration of each of the affordable units;


The circulation areas and GBA thereof;


Description of the common area amenities and common areas and GBA thereof;


Configuration of onsite parking, including residents’, guests’ and handicapped users’ parking spaces with number and type of parking spaces;   


A detailed and updated pro forma for the Project that identifies all sources and uses of funds including but not limited to design of the Project and supporting infrastructure, along with initial estimates of development costs, including hard and soft construction and non-construction costs, and the remediation costs, if any, for development of the Property for rental housing;


Proposed identification of all sources of financing, including predevelopment, construction, and permanent financing with a description of the terms and conditions of such financings; and


An updated timeline that includes, based upon consultation with City staff, as well as the best professional judgment of Developer, the provision of necessary onsite and offsite improvements for the Project.


If upon expiration of the Term of this Agreement and or any extensions, the Parties have not successfully negotiated the Disposition Agreements, Developer will provide City within fifteen (15) days following said date of expiration, electronic copies of the Developer’s Studies completed by such date.  Developer will also provide City with copies of any Developer’s Studies completed after the expiration of the Term within fifteen (15) days following completion of such studies, or if Developer intends not to complete any Developer Studies, Developer will provide City with copies of such uncompleted studies.


City’s Reports and Studies.  Within ten (10) days following the Effective Date, City will make available to Developer for review or copying at Developer’s expense all nonprivileged studies, surveys, plans, specifications, reports, and other documents with respect to the Property that City has in its possession or control, which have not already been provided.  Studies or documents prepared by City and its agents solely for the purpose of negotiating the terms of Disposition Agreements are not required to be provided by City to Developer and are excluded from this requirement.


Developer’s Pro Forma and Evidence of Financing.  Prior to the execution of the Disposition Agreements contemplated by this Agreement, Developer will provide City with a pro forma for the Project that confirms the financial feasibility of Developer’s proposed development of the Property. The pro forma shall include the names and amounts from each funding source. Developer will provide monthly progress reports to the City on the status of preparing the Final Development Package and general progress on the Project. City is not obligated to seek approval of Disposition Agreements from the City Council unless and until the documents required by this Section have been provided.


Full Disclosure.  Developer is required to make full disclosure to City of its principals; officers; major stockholders, partners or members; joint venturers; negotiators; development managers; consultants and directly involved managerial employees, if any, (collectively, “Developer Parties”); and all other material information concerning Developer. Any change in the identity of the Developer Parties will be subject to the approval of City, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  Developer will make and maintain full disclosure to City of its methods of financing to be used in the acquisition and development of the Property.


Expenses.  Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, third-party costs and expenses (including, without limitation, all legal fees and expenses) incurred in connection with this Agreement and the activities contemplated hereby will be paid by the Party incurring the same.


Confidentiality; Dissemination of Information.  To the extent permitted by law, during the term of this Agreement, each Party will obtain the consent of the other Party prior to issuing or permitting any of its officers, employees or agents to issue any press release or other information to the press with respect to this Agreement; provided however, no Party will be prohibited from supplying any information to its representatives, agents, attorneys, advisors, financing sources and others to the extent necessary to accomplish the activities contemplated hereby so long as such representatives, agents, attorneys, advisors, financing sources and others are made aware of the terms of this Section.  Nothing contained in this Agreement will prevent either Party at any time from furnishing any required information to any governmental entity or authority pursuant to a legal requirement or from complying with its legal or contractual obligations.


Execution of Disposition Agreements.  If the Parties successfully negotiate Disposition Agreements, City agrees to comply with all applicable federal and state legal requirements, including the California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”).  The City has no legal obligation to grant any approvals or authorizations for the sale of the Property or any development thereon until the Disposition Agreements have been approved by the City Council.


Termination.  


This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual consent of the Parties. 


City will have the right to terminate this Agreement upon its good faith determination that Developer is not proceeding diligently and in good faith to carry out its obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  City will exercise such right in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement.  


Developer will have the right to terminate this Agreement, in accordance with the provisions set forth in Section 1 of this Agreement, if the results of its investigation of the Property are unsatisfactory, in Developer’s sole and absolute discretion, with respect to Developer’s desired development activities or if Developer is unable to obtain other necessary approvals, rights or interests.  


Neither Party will have the right to seek an award of damages as a result of the termination of this Agreement pursuant to this Section.


Effect of Termination.  Upon termination as provided herein, or upon the expiration of the Term and any extensions thereof without the Parties having successfully negotiated Disposition Agreements , this Agreement will forthwith be void, and there will be no further liability or obligation on the part of either of the Parties or their respective officers, employees, agents or other representatives; provided however, the provisions of Section 11 (Expenses), Section 12 (Confidentiality; Dissemination of Information), Section 17 (Indemnification), and Section 21 (Brokers) will survive such termination.  Provided further, that upon termination or expiration of this Agreement without the Parties having successfully negotiated Disposition Agreements, Developer will deliver to City all of the Developer’s Studies pursuant to the provisions of Section 7 of this Agreement.


Notices.  Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, all notices to be sent pursuant to this Agreement will be made in writing, and sent to the Parties at their respective addresses specified below or to such other address as a Party may designate by written notice delivered to the other parties in accordance with this Section.  All such notices will be sent by:


Personal delivery, in which case notice is effective upon delivery; 


Certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, in which case notice will be deemed delivered on receipt if delivery is confirmed by a return receipt;


Nationally recognized overnight courier, with charges prepaid or charged to the sender’s account, in which case notice is effective on delivery if delivery is confirmed by the delivery service;


Electronic transmission, in which case notice will be deemed delivered upon transmittal, provided that duplicate copy of the notice is promptly delivered by first-class or certified mail or by overnight delivery.





		City:		City of Pinole


				2131 Pear Street


				Pinole, Ca 94564


				Attn:  City Manager


				Tel (510) 724-9000


				Fax (510) 724-9826





	with a copy to:		Meyers Nave


				555 – 12th Street, Suite 1500


				Oakland, Ca 94564


				Attn: Pinole City Attorney


				Tel (510) 808-2000


				Fax (510) 444-1108





		Developer:	Satellite Affordable Housing Associates


				1835 Alcatraz Ave. 


				Berkeley, Ca 94703


				Attn: Chief Executive Officer


				Tel (510) 647-0700


				Fax (510) 647-0820





Indemnification.  Developer hereby covenants, on behalf of itself and its permitted successors and assigns, to indemnify, hold harmless and defend the City and its elected and appointed officials, officers, agents, representatives and employees (“Indemnitees”) from and against all claims, costs (including without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees and litigation costs) and liability, arising out of or in connection with this Agreement and/or arising out of or in connection with claims resulting from or arising in connection with Developer or Developer’s agents, employees, consultants, contractors or subcontractors access to and entry on the Property pursuant to Section 7 of this Agreement; provided however, Developer will have no indemnification obligation with respect to the gross negligence or willful misconduct of any Indemnitee.  


Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof will, to any extent, be held to be invalid or unenforceable, such term or provision will be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or unenforceability without invalidating or rendering unenforceable the remaining terms and provisions of this Agreement or the application of such terms and provisions to circumstances other than those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable unless an essential purpose of this Agreement would be defeated by loss of the invalid or unenforceable provision.


Entire Agreement; Amendments In Writing; Counterparts.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous agreements and understandings, oral and written, between the Parties with respect to such subject matter.  This Agreement may be amended only by a written instrument executed by the Parties or their successors in interest.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which will be an original and all of which together will constitute one agreement.


Successors and Assigns; No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the Parties and their respective successors and assigns; provided however, that neither Party will transfer or assign any of such Party’s rights hereunder by operation of law or otherwise without the prior written consent of the other Party, and any such transfer or assignment without such consent will be void.  Subject to the immediately preceding sentence, this Agreement is not intended to benefit, and will not run to the benefit of or be enforceable by, any other person or entity other than the Parties and their permitted successors and assigns. 


Brokers.  Each Party warrants and represents to the other that no brokers have been retained or consulted in connection with this transaction.  Each Party agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other Party from any claims, expenses, costs or liabilities arising in connection with a breach of this warranty and representation.  The terms of this Section will survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement. 


Approvals.  Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, the City Manager will be authorized to enter into all written approvals, consents or waivers by the City without further authorization by the City Council.  Nothing herein, however, will be deemed to prevent the City Manager from requesting formal approval by the City Council if the City Manager, in their sole discretion, determines to seek such approval.


Captions.  The captions of the sections and articles of this Agreement are for convenience only and are not intended to affect the interpretation or construction of the provisions hereof. 


Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of California.


SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE



	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.   





CITY 





By:	_______________________________


Andrew Murray


	City Manager 





ATTEST:





By: 	_______________________________


	Heather Iopu, CMC


	City Clerk





APPROVED AS TO FORM:





By: 	_______________________________


	Eric S. Casher


	City Attorney 











DEVELOPER 





By: 	_______________________________


	Susan Friedland


	Chief Executive Officer








	









Exhibit A





811 San Pablo Avenue





Legal Description

















































































































3603254.1 


EXCLUSIVE NEGOTIATING RIGHTS AGREEMENT


City of Pinole and ___________________					Page 1 of 13
















DRAFT 11-3-20





MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND THE PINOLE HISTORY MUSEUM 





	This Memorandum of Understanding and Cooperative Agreement (this “Agreement”), is entered into as of _______________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) by and between the City of Pinole (the “City”), a California municipal corporation, and the Pinole History Museum, a California nonprofit corporation (“PHM”).  The City and PHM are collectively referred to herein as the “Parties.”


RECITALS 


A.  	The City owns that certain building located at 2100 San Pablo Avenue known as the “Faria House.”


B. 	The Faria family sold the Faria House to the City as part of a redevelopment project with the understanding that the Faria House would be renovated and used as a local history museum (the “Museum”) for the City of Pinole. 


C.	PHM was formed as a nonprofit corporation in 2017 in order to fund, construct, and operate the Museum.


D.	The Faria House is in need of renovation in order to fulfill the City’s commitment to house the Museum (the “Project”).


E.	Renovation will require architecture and engineering, environmental review, permits, construction management, construction, and possibly site improvements.


F.	The purpose of this Agreement is to show cooperation between the Parties in order to assist the Parties in their efforts to raise funding for the Project and Museum operations and to set forth the roles and responsibilities of each Party for its contribution to the Project. 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants and agreements hereinafter set forth the Parties agree as follows:


1.	TERM.  The term of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date and will end on December 31, 2023 (the “Term”).  The Term can be extended for one (1) additional year to December 31, 2024 at the mutual agreement of the Parties.


2.	RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY.  


	A.	Architecture and Design.  The City has contracted for and has received architecture plans for the renovation of the Faria House to serve as the Museum.  


	B.	CEQA; Entitlements.  The City will undertake all steps for environmental review and CEQA compliance.  The City is responsible for obtaining approval of all entitlement and planning requirements for the Project.  The City is also responsible for ensuring that the architecture and construction for the Museum complies with any relevant State historical requirements or standards. 


	C.	City Project Funding.  The City will work in conjunction with PHM in best efforts to use grant funding and proceeds from former redevelopment programs for the Project. The City will determine whether there is any available City funding to apply to the construction of the Project.  The City is not obligated to provide funding for the Project in excess of One Million Two Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,200,000) (“Total City Funding”), including grant funding secured by the City.  The Total City Funding includes all amounts approved for architecture, costs of entitlements and CEQA, construction management, construction, and site improvements for the Project.


	D.	Construction.  The City has entered into a contract with Interactive Resources for architectural design and construction cost estimates (the “Cost Estimate”) for the construction of the base building requirements for the Project.  Based on the report received on September 17, 2020 from Interactive Resources’ subcontractor, Silva Cost Consulting, Inc., the Cost Estimate for the Project is One Million One Hundred Sixty-Five Thousand Four Hundred Thirty-Five Dollars ($1,165,435) plus. The cost estimate for special museum electrical work (the “Tenant Improvements”) is Sixty-Six Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-Six Dollars ($66,326).  Once the conditions precedent set forth in Section 4 below have been satisfied, the City will timely solicit bids for the construction of the Project and Tenant Improvements.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement, the City will identify a preferred responsible bidder for the Project and Tenant Improvements, award the bid and provide project management for the Project and Tenant Improvements.


	E.	Use of City Staff.  The City shall provide the services of City personnel on an as-needed basis to perform the project management services needed for the obligations of the City under this Agreement; provided however, that City personnel shall not spend more than 500 hours from the Effective Date onward (“City Personnel Hours Limit”). In the event that the hours for City personnel to perform project management for the Project exceeds the City Personnel Hours Limit, the City will invoice PHM for reimbursement of the excess hours on an actual cost reimbursement basis, and will expect receipt of payment within ninety days of invoicing.  The City Personnel Hours Limit does not include City personnel time related to CEQA or the entitlement process, the hours for which will be paid through the Project permits.


	F.	Limitation on City Obligations.  The City is under no obligation to fund the furniture, fixtures and equipment (the “FFE”), Tenant Improvements, or to provide any funds for the operation of the Museum.


3.	RESPONSIBILITIES OF PHM.  


	A.	PHM Project Funding.  PHM will raise funding to pay for the Tenant Improvements, estimated to be Sixty-Six Thousand Three Hundred Twenty-Six Dollars ($66,326), and to purchase the FFE, estimated to be One Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand Dollars ($175,000).  In addition, in the event that the costs of the Project exceed the Total City Funding, PHM shall fund the cost difference.


	B.	Taxes.  PHM shall be responsible for obtaining tax exempt status from the Internal Revenue Service and State Franchise Tax Board. If PHM fails to obtain tax exempt status, payment of all applicable federal, state and local taxes shall be PHM’s sole responsibility.


	C.	Operating Expenses.  PHM will be solely responsible for all costs of operating the Museum.  Failure to have sufficient funds to operate the Museum will be a default under the lease for the Faria House.


4.	CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO CONSTRUCTION.  The City is under no obligation to solicit bids for the construction of the Project until PHM has documented and established, to the satisfaction of the City:


	A.  	PHM has obtained a minimum of Two Hundred Forty-One Thousand Three Hundred and Twenty-Six Dollars ($241,326) in funding to pay the City to construct the Tenant Improvements and procure the FFE for the Museum.


	B.	PHM has transferred the total amount of the cost of the Tenant Improvements to the City.


5.	LEASE TERMS.  Following construction of the Project, the City will enter into a lease with PHM (the “Lease”) for the use of the Faria House for the Museum.  Minimum terms to be included in the Lease are as follows:


	(a)	The Museum must be open to the public for a minimum of 20 hours each week on a set schedule and must provide a minimum of three exhibits at all times and at least four new exhibits each year.


	(b)	PHM shall pay $500 monthly rent for the first five years of tenancy. The monthly rent shall be renegotiated at that point based on PHM’s ability to pay and City needs.


	(c)	The term of the lease will be ten (10) years with an option to extend the lease twice for five (5) years each at the mutual agreement of the Parties.


	(d)	PHM will be responsible for all routine maintenance of the interior of the Faria House.


	(e)	The City will be responsible for routine maintenance of the exterior of the Faria House and for major maintenance of exterior walls, windows and the HVAC system.


	(f)	PHM will maintain a catalog of donated and loaned artifacts and materials and insure and secure those items.


	(g)	PHM will have the right to make alterations to the interior of the Faria House that are approved by the City.


	(h)	The City will have the right to use the Faria House up to five (5) times per year for City functions, with no rent to PHM and at a time that does not interfere with the normal hours of business for the Museum.


	(i)	PHM will be permitted to sublease a portion of the Faria House, subject to any restrictions imposed by the funding sources for the Project, and provided that the use complements the use and purpose of the Museum.


	(j)	PHM will provide the City with the Museum financial records.


	(k)	City will be responsible for exterior landscaping and site maintenance.


6.	INDEMNIFICATION.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, PHM shall indemnify, defend with counsel acceptable to the City, and hold harmless the City and its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers (collectively, “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, claims, expenses, and costs, including without limitation, attorney’s fees, costs and fees of litigation, (collectively, “Liability”) of every nature arising out of or in connection with any activities undertaken by PHM and the duties required of PHM under this Agreement, or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, or its failure to comply with any applicable law or regulation, except such Liability caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct of the City.


7.	OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS.  All reports, data, maps, models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that PHM prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the Museum shall be the property of the City.  PHM hereby agrees to deliver those documents to the City upon termination of this Agreement.  It is understood and agreed that the documents and other materials, including, but not limited to, those described above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City and are not necessarily suitable for any future or other use.  The City and PHM agree that, until final approval by the City, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are confidential and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both parties.


8.	CONFLICTS OF INTEREST.  PHM covenants that it presently has no interest, and shall not have any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner with performance of the duties required under this Agreement. 


9.	NOTICES.  Any notice, demand, request, consent or approval that either party is required to give the other pursuant to this Agreement, shall be in writing and may be given by either (i) personal service, (ii) electronic notice, or (iii) certified United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. Notice shall be effective upon personal delivery or delivery to the addresses specified below, as reflected on the receipt of delivery or return receipt, as applicable.  


PHM:  		Pinole History Museum


			__________________


			__________________


			Attn: Secretary 





City:			City of Pinole


			2131 Pear St.


			Pinole, CA  94564


			Attn: City Manager





10.	RECORDS ACCESS.  PHM shall make available to the City, its authorized agents, officers, or employees, for examination any and all ledgers, books of accounts, bank statements invoices, vouchers, cancelled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or relating to the fundraising and receipt of funding for the Project.  City must provide twenty-four (24) hours notice prior to review of the financial information.  In addition, during the term of this Agreement PHM will provide a report to City quarterly that includes the amount of funds raised to date and the fund raising activities undertaken by PHM.


11.	GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE.  This Agreement, and any dispute arising from the relationship between the parties hereto, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California. In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this Agreement, the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the state courts of California in the County of Contra Costa.


12.	MISCELLANEOUS. 


	A.  	This Agreement, including all attachments, exhibits, and any other documents specifically incorporated into this Agreement, shall constitute the entire agreement between the City and PHM relating to the subject matter of this Agreement.  This Agreement supersedes and merges all previous understandings, and all other agreements, written or oral, between the Parties and sets forth the entire understanding of the Parties regarding the subject matter hereof.  


	B.	This Agreement may not be modified except by a written document signed by both Parties.  


C.  	This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement.


D.  	Each Party hereto has had an equivalent opportunity to participate in the drafting of the agreement and/or to consult with legal counsel. Therefore, the construction of an agreement against the drafting party shall not apply to the Parties.  


E.  	This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the Parties hereto, with no intent to benefit any third parties.  


F.  	If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so adjudged shall remain in full force and effect.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this Agreement.


G.  	PHM may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein.


H.	By entering into this Agreement, the Parties do not intend to create a joint venture between them.  The purpose of this Agreement is as indicated in the Recitals, to provide cooperation for the construction of the Museum.


I.	This Agreement may be terminated by the mutual agreement of the Parties as evinced by a written document signed by both Parties.


SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 






	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above.   





CITY 





By:	_______________________________


	Andrew Murray


	City Manager 





ATTEST:








By: 	_______________________________


	Heather Iopu, CMC


	City Clerk





APPROVED AS TO FORM:








By: 	_______________________________


	Eric S. Casher


	City Attorney 











PINOLE HISTORY MUSEUM,





By: 	_______________________________


	Name


	Title





3612543.4 











7







			CITY COUNCIL 


	REPORT	?





City Council Report 


July 7, 2020		3











DATE 	JULY 7, 2020





TO:		MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS





FROM:	HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER





SUBJECT:	POTENTIAL FUNDING SOURCES FOR THE FARIA HOUSE RENOAVTION








Recommendation





Staff recommends that the City Council accept a report on potential funding sources for the Faria House renovation and provide input to the Faria House Ad-Hoc Committee on the matter.





BACKGROUND





At the June 2, 2020 City Council meeting, during the discussion of the City’s commitment to use the Faria House as a local history museum, Council Member Salimi requested information on funding sources available for the Faria House renovation and the impacts to other City projects if funding is redirected from those projects to the Faria House. 





At the June 16, 2020 City Council meeting, the Council created a Faria House Ad-Hoc Committee. One of the specific responsibilities of the Committee is to assess and provide recommendations to the full City Council on options to fund the City’s share of the cost to renovate and maintain the Faria House building and site. The information provided in this report will feed into the Committee’s more detailed examination of this issue.





REVIEW & ANALYSIS





In response to Council Member Salimi’s request, staff is providing the Council with an overview of possible funding options for the Faria House improvements, which have been estimated to cost $1.5 million. Funding options generally include using existing unrestricted financial assets (such as fund balance), obtaining new financial assets (such as grants or loans), and reducing planned expenditures in order to redirect those appropriations to the Faria House.





Using Existing Unrestricted Financial Assets





· General Fund Balance – Per the City’s Fiscal Year 2020-21 Operating Budget, the General Fund balance is expected to be $7.1 million at year end, comprised of $5.1 million in unrestricted funds and $2 million from the proceeds of the sale of PALC. Historically, unrestricted fund balance has been used for unanticipated expenditures and/or as working capital for the initial five months of the fiscal year (July – November), before the City receives property tax revenues from the County.


  


· Use of $1.5 Million from the Sale of the Pinole Assisted Living Community (PALC) – On November 13, 2018, the Council approved a motion to place $1.5 million of General Fund revenue that the City received from the sale of PALC into either the City’s 115 Pension Trust or an unfunded OPEB liability trust. The $1.5 million is a portion of the $7.1 million General Fund balance noted above. While the previous City Council designated the $1.5 million for a specific purpose, the current City Council has the authority to redirect those funds to a different purpose, such as the Faria House renovation.





· Use of $500,000 from PALC – Similar to the $1.5 million discussed above, in FY 2019-20 PALC made another payment to the City, in the amount of $500,000.  These funds could be allocated towards the improvements at the Faria House.





· Proceeds from the Sale of Redevelopment Successor Agency Property – Due to the dissolution of redevelopment agencies, any property that was owned by the former City of Pinole Redevelopment Agency (RDA) must be disposed of. The proceeds of any sale of such property is distributed to the local taxing agencies.  The City, as a taxing agency, will receive, as property tax revenue, approximately 19% of the proceeds of the sale of any former RDA property. Earlier this month, the City, as the Successor Agency to the RDA, sold a former RDA property, located at Henry Avenue and Pinole Valley Road, which was a portion of the former Faria House parcel, for $470,000.  The City estimates that it will receive $89,000 from the sale.  These funds were not included in the FY 2020-21 budget and can be designated for any purpose by the City Council. The City is also currently in negotiations for the sale of a 7-acre parcel located at the Pinole Shores II Business Park.  When the property is sold, it is estimated that the City will receive $580,000 in property tax revenues. Those revenues are also not included in the FY 2020-21 budget and can be designated for any purpose by the City Council.





Obtaining New Financial Assets





· Grant Funding – Grant funding might be available for the Faria House renovation through State, federal, or nonprofit sources.  In May, the City received a notice from the California Natural Resources Agency of future grant opportunities.  The grants would provide funding for Museum and for Youth Community Access Programs.





The California Museum grant program, funded by the proceeds from the Snoopy Special Interest License Plate sales, will fund capital projects and program projects that assist the California Cultural and Historical Endowment (CCHE) in supporting and enhancing museum services. The grant awards range from $50,000 to $250,000 and require a match of at least 20%The Youth Community Access Program will fund small capital projects or program projects that increase youth access to natural and cultural resources. The grant awards range from $50,000 to $300,000 and require a match of at least 20% These two grants have limited funding and will be awarded on a competitive basis.





It might be possible to obtain grant funding through other State, federal, or nonprofit programs.





· Private Financing – In prior years, the City has obtained private financing to purchase equipment when the need was immediate and full funding for the item was limited.  One advantage of private financing is that it offers the City a pool of funds to purchase equipment or expedite a construction project.





Staff has obtained a proposal from a capital financing firm for a loan of $1,000,000.  At the City’s request, the firm has provided the City with three repayment plan options as listed below.




















As a condition of the financing, the City will be required to provide collateral. If this option is exercised, a new obligation of the General Fund will exist, and the City will need to budget the payment, either from new revenue or expenditure savings, each year through the term of the loan agreement.





Reducing Planned Expenditures





· Reducing Budgeted Expenditures - The City recently completed an extensive review of its revenues and expenditures as part of the creation of the FY 2020-21 Operating Budget. The budget includes $15,792,577 of General Fund (including Measures S 2006 and 2014) expenditures on personnel and $3,430,633 of other operating expenses, including services and supplies. These General Fund appropriations could be redirected to the Faria House. Staff only included in the Proposed FY 2020-21 Operating Budget expenditures that it considered necessary to maintain service levels and meet critical operational and community needs. Staff does not have any specific recommendations at this time for appropriations contained in the Adopted FY 2020-21 Operating Budget that should be re-appropriated to the Faria House. Staff can provide detailed information on appropriations contained in the Adopted FY 2020-21 Operating Budget to the Faria House Ad-Hoc Committee.





· Property Tax from Developed RDA Properties – Under State law, cities are exempt from paying property tax on city-owned property.  However, once a city sells a piece of city-owned property, the new owner is generally required to pay property tax on the property. Based on the construction value of the project that is anticipated to be built at Henry and Pinole Valley Road, the City is expecting to receive annual property tax revenues in the amount of $893. The City receives approximately $2,277 annually in property tax revenue from the other redeveloped portions of the former Faria parcel (Kaiser, Starbucks, and DaVita). The City does not segregate the property tax revenue that it receives from the former Faria parcel. That revenue is simply a portion of the overall property tax that the City receives, and is appropriated at such. The City could redirect the appropriation of these revenues specifically to the Faria House renovation. That would require backfilling the other projects or services that those funds are currently supporting.





One factor to consider in identifying potential funding sources is the timing of the improvements.  The cost estimate of the proposed improvements to the Faria House are based on 2019 costs.  Deferring this project for another year or longer could result in increased construction costs.  According to the Department of General Services, construction costs have increased at a rate of 4.4% annually over recent years.





Impact to Other City Projects and Services





Whichever funding option is selected, other than grant funding, there will be an impact to the City.





· Reduction in Interest Revenues – Utilizing $1.5 million from the General Fund balance would result in a reduction in interest revenues that would have been earned on those funds.  The current interest rate paid through Local Agency Investment Funds (LAIF) is 1.15%, which would equate to $17,500 per year of reduced interest earnings. 





· 115 Retirement Trust – In June 2018, the City approved funding of a 115 Pension Trust to mitigate the City’s pension cost over the next 20 years and to smooth annual contributions.  Based on the amount placed in the Trust, projected interest rates, anticipated drawdown of funds to pay annual retirement contributions, and expected rates of return on CalPERS investments, the current funding was projected to carry the City through the peak employer contribution periods. However, it was not expected to completely address the City’s unfunded pension liability. Any assets that are currently in the General Fund balance, including the proceeds from the sale of PALC, and are spent on the Faria House renovation will no longer be available to spend on the City’s unfunded pension liability in excess of what is contained in the 115 Pension Trust.





· Increase in Debt Service – Should the City obtain private financing for the Faria House improvements, the City will have to budget the annual debt service payments.  Depending on the repayment period and interest rates, the annual debt service could range from $122,517 to $219,436 per year. This amount will be a new expenditure in the General Fund.





· Deferral of Capital Improvement Projects – Until such time as it is determined which expenditures in the General Fund are to be reduced or eliminated, the impact to Capital Improvement Projects are unknown.





· Reduction in Service Levels to Community – On an annual basis, departments propose expenditures to maintain certain basic service levels and/or complete projects which staff does not have the bandwidth to accomplish.  As expenditure reductions are considered and/or are proposed, services levels or project completion may be impacted.





FISCAL IMPACT





There is no fiscal impact to receiving a report of funding options for the Faria House improvements.





ATTACHMENTS





None


image1.emf





image2.jpeg





		Return to Agenda: 






